
 

 

 

1 Amended to include item 8B2 and remove duplicate item 9J 

PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING 1AMENDED AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL 

Devin T. Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 

TUESDAY 
August 15, 2023 

5:00 P.M 
Please note:  HYBRID MEETING FORMAT  

Attend in Person: PINOLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 2131 PEAR STREET  
OR 

SHERATON GRAND SACRAMENTO HOTEL,  1230 J STREET, SACRAMENTO 
ROOM 1  92085350   (TELECONFERENCE- SASAI) 

OR 
Attend VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE – Details provided below 

How to Submit Public Comments: 
In Person:  Attend meeting at the Pinole City Council Chambers, fill out a yellow public comment
card and submit it to the City Clerk. 

Via Zoom: 
Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. Download 
the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a desktop computer, you 
can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you to join the meeting by phone. 

From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272 

Webinar ID: 893 3500 0272 
By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799   

• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although providing this
is not required for participation.

• Each speaker will be afforded up to 3 minutes to speak (subject to modification by the
Mayor)

• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment.

When the Mayor opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have 
a comment to provide and press *6 to unmute.  To comment with your video enabled, please let 
the City Clerk know you would like to turn your camera on once you are called to speak. 
Written Comments: All comments received before 3:00 pm the day of the meeting will
be posted on the City’s website on the agenda page (Agenda Page Link) and provided to the 

CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 

CLICK HERE for City Updates 

CLICK HERE for County Updates 

1 of 594

https://www.zoom.us/join
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272
https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/city_council/agendas_and_minutes
http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus
https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/


City Council 
Agenda – August 15, 2023 
Page 2 

City Council prior to the meeting.  Written comments will not be read aloud during the meeting. 
Email comments to comment@ci.pinole.ca.us Please indicate which item on the agenda you 
are commenting on in the subject line of your email. 

Please note:  Updated COVID-19 safety protocols will be posted outside the City Council 
Chambers.  Please review this information before entering the Council Chambers. 

OTHER WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 
LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   

VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 

If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Bell at (510) 724-8928 or hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 

Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 

Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and 
declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this 
State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of the law that their 
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  The people of this State 
do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  The people, in delegating 
authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good for the people to know 
and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining informed so that they may 
retain control over the instruments they have created. 

2 of 594

mailto:comment@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us


Pinole City Council  
Agenda –July 18, 2023 
Page 3 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 
together and growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect 
and understanding. 

3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 

4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   

None 

5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION

6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or 
unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate 
and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting.  PLEASE SEE THE 
COVERSHEET OF THE AGENDA FOR INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 

7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS

A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 

C.  City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 

F. City Attorney Report 

8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS

A. Proclamations

3 of 594



City Council   
Agenda – August 15, 2023 
Page 4  

B. Presentations  
 
1.  AB 43 - Setting Speed Limits – by Public Works Director Sanjay Mishra 

 
2.  East Bay Municipal Utility District – Updates  

 
9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on July 18, 2023. 
 

B. Receive the July 14, 2023 – August 11, 2023 – List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$3,741,157.74, the July 21, 2023, Payroll in the Amount of $491,186.62 and the 
August 4, 2023, Payroll in the amount of $475,534.19  

 
C. Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City and American 
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Union Local 
512 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025.  [Action:  Adopt Resolution 
per Staff Recommendation (Shell)] 

 
 

D. Award a Contract to Tetra Tech to Complete an Energy Conservation, 
Generation and Storage Assessment in an Amount Not to Exceed $47,938 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Dhillon)] 

 
E. Authorize Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306, Affordable Housing: “A Plan 

Without A Home” [Action:  Approve Response and Authorize Mayor’s signature 
per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 

 
F. Award A Contract For The Development Of A Storm Drain Master (CIP Project # 

IN1703) To West Yost In An Amount Not To Exceed $243,264.00 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation] 

 
G. Approve A Second Contract Amendment To The Agreement With Tripepi Smith 

For Additional Work On The City Seal, Logo And Branding Guidelines To 
Increase The Not To Exceed Amount To $32,000 And Appropriate Additional 
Funding In The Amount Not To Exceed $11,750 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per 
Staff Recommendation (Epps)] 

 
H. Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Third Amendment To 

The Agreement With The Natelson Dale Group To Develop A Comprehensive 
Economic Development Strategy And Appropriate An Additional $3,000 In 
Funding [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 

 
I. Adopt A Resolution Approving A Memorandum Of Understanding Between The 

City Of Pinole And The American Federation Of State, County, And Municipal 
Employees (AFSCME) Union Local 1 For The Period Of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 
2025 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Shell)] 

 
 

4 of 594



City Council   
Agenda – August 15, 2023 
Page 5  

 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the completion of the 
presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.  An official who engaged in an ex parte 
communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 

A. Introduction And First Reading Of An Ordinance Amending Pinole Municipal 
Code Section 2.04.200 Council-Manager Relations And Section 2.12.010 Time 
Of Regular City Council Meetings Consistent With The Updated City Council 
Meeting Procedures [Action:  Conduct Public Hearing and Introduce Ordinance on 
First Read (Casher)] 
 

11. OLD BUSINESS 
 
  None 
 
12.       NEW BUSINESS 
 
  None 

 
13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Open only to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to Be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes for City Council items 
and is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain 
emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain 
matters for consideration at a future meeting. 
 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 5, 2023 in 
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
POSTED:  August 11, 2023 at 4:00 pm 

5 of 594



Pinole City Council Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023   
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 

July 18, 2023   

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

The City Council Meeting was held in a hybrid format (in-person and via Zoom videoconference 
and broadcast) from the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor 
Murphy called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 5:02 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding. 

3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov. Code § 87105.   

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 

Devin Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem   
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

B. STAFF PRESENT 

Andrew Murray, City Manager    
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney  
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
Maria Picazo, Recreation Manager  
Sanjay Mishra, Public Works Director  
Jeremy Rogers, Community Services Director  
Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director  
Fiona Epps, Assistant to the City Manager  
Roxane Stone, Deputy City Clerk  

City Clerk Heather Bell announced the agenda had been posted on Thursday, July 13, 2023 at 
3:30 p.m. with all legally required written notices.   

9A

6 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 2 
 

Written comments had been received in advance of the meeting, distributed to the City Council, 
posted on the City website and made available to the public in the Council Chambers.   
 
Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda.  
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION:   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. 
  

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS   
Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, City Attorney 
Eric Casher, Human Resources Director Stacy Shell, Gregory Ramirez, IEDA 
Employee Organizations:  Pinole Police Employees Association (PPEA), 
AFSCME, Local 1, Local 512  

 
B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Gov. Code § 54957 
Title:  City Manager  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED 
 
Deputy City Clerk Roxane Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  

 
5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:43 p.m., Mayor Murphy reconvened the meeting into open session and announced there was 
no report from the Closed Session.     
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is 
subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 

A. Mayor Report 
 
1. Announcements 

 
Mayor Murphy hoped everyone had a wonderful Independence Day holiday.    

7 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 3 
 

Mayor Murphy reported the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) Bay Trail at Bay Front Park 
had been damaged after winter storms and had been closed since that time.  The City was 
seeking funding through the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to mitigate the 
issue.  He expressed his appreciation to the City’s food distribution volunteers who had continued 
to find ways to address food insecurity in the City of Pinole and in the region.  He congratulated 
and welcomed new businesses Uptown Yard and Sweet Piper’s to Old Town Pinole and 
encouraged residents to continue to support the City’s small business community.   
 
Mayor Murphy also reported that a community guide had been prepared entitled Preventing 
Wildfire:   How to Prepare for Wildfire Season In and Around Pinole, which guide included helpful 
information from various agencies and resources, to be available on the City website and shared 
on social media.  The guide would also be distributed to residents within the next few weeks.    
 
Mayor Murphy further reported that the month of July was Plastics Free July, a global movement 
helping people find solutions to plastic pollution.  Residents may participate by choosing to refuse 
single-use plastics as much as possible. The City of Pinole was teaming with FoodWare, a takeout 
made sustainable app to help reduce the use of single-use plastics.  He highlighted the options 
available through the app and urged residents to participate and provide input to the Community 
Development Department for a cleaner and healthier Pinole.  
 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments:  None  
 

C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reported she had attended the Mayors’ Conference and briefed the City 
Council on presentations of two potential bond measures in 2024, with more information on the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Bay Area Housing Finance Authority website link.  
She had also attended the East Bay Wildfire Safety Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) group 
with a recommendation to be presented to the potential participating jurisdictions in August or 
September.  She reported there had been a Project Labor Agreement (PLA) Subcommittee 
meeting, with next steps to communicate with another jurisdiction with a model PLA to learn 
whether that jurisdiction had any issues or desired adjustments to their PLA and discussions with 
labor representatives.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms added that through her own volunteer work, she had attended the Summer 
Games for the Special Olympics for Northern California in Santa Clara when the 2023 Special 
Olympics Volunteer of the Year had been awarded to Pinole resident and Pinole Police 
Department Public Information Officer (PIO) Commander Matt Avery.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin reported on her attendance at a meeting of the Revenue and 
Taxation Policy Committee of the League of California Cities and briefed the City Council on the 
discussions.  Also, along with Council member Sasai and the Assistant to the City Manager, she 
had met with a firm to discuss a possible agreement to help the City update its seal and logo.   
 
Council member Sasai reported he had attended a WestCAT Board meeting and briefed the City 
Council on the discussions.   
 
Council member Tave reported he had attended a meeting of RecycleMore and briefed the City 
Council on the discussions.  

8 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 4 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 

D.   Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Mayor Murphy to recognize Commander Matt 
Avery for his award as the 2023 Special Olympics Volunteer of the Year at a regular City 
Council meeting in August or September.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
Council member Martinez-Rubin offered a motion to defer a presentation on the Taxpayer 
Protection and Government Accountability Act ballot measure scheduled for the August 15, 2023 
Regular City Council meeting to the summer of 2024, which would be closer to when elections 
would occur. 
 
Mayor Murphy understood a motion was not necessary in that the direction would be 
communicated with the City Manager to the team.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Pro Tem Toms to direct staff 
to prepare a brief memorandum outlining the status of the agenda item related to 
enhancing the current City of Pinole ordinance which bans styrene, to possibly include 
the use of compostables in both City facilities and local eateries, and the timeline when 
the item would be brought before the City Council.  
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
Council member Sasai offered a motion for a discussion of the adoption of a City ordinance to 
prohibit the creation of new gas stations and the expansion, reconstruction and relocation of 
existing gas stations in the City of Pinole.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked whether such a request would be considered by the Municipal Code 
Update Subcommittee, and City Attorney Eric Casher stated it made sense to have a general 
discussion at the City Council level first with the City Council to provide direction on the type of 
regulations that could be implemented.  Thereafter the Municipal Code Update Subcommittee 
would review the item in the form of an ordinance.   
 

9 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 5 
 

ACTION:  Motion by Council member Sasai/Mayor Murphy for a request for a discussion 
of the adoption of a City ordinance to prohibit the creation of new gas stations and the 
expansion, reconstruction and relocation of existing gas stations in the City of Pinole.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Murphy/Mayor Pro Tem Toms to invite the East Bay Regional 
Parks District Board Member representing the City of Pinole as well as the General 
Manager to a future City Council meeting.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 

 
City Manager Andrew Murray provided an overview of the tentative agenda items for the August 
15, 2023 regular City Council meeting.  The regular City Council meeting for August 1, 2023 would 
be canceled.  
 

F. City Attorney Report 
 
City Attorney Casher reported the Municipal Code Update Subcommittee would meet in the month 
of August and he would poll members on their availability.  Potential ordinances to be considered 
would include a Panhandling Ordinance, an ordinance related to the City’s permitting of Single-
Family Day Care Homes and Facilities, Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station Usage and an 
update on the community engagement efforts around the Single-Use Plastic Ordinance.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED (Items 7D through 7F) 
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS  

 
A. Proclamations 

 
1. Recognizing Fire Chief Wynkoop in the event of his retirement  

 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing Fire Chief Christopher Wynkoop 
upon his retirement as the City of Pinole Fire Chief.   
 

10 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 6 
 

Fire Chief Wynkoop thanked the City Council for the proclamation, his family particularly his wife 
for her love and support, Department Heads, City Council, City staff and the Fire Labor Groups, 
for the progress made over the past few years.  He also recognized the fire professionals he had 
worked with in the cities of Stockton and Pinole and in the Contra Costa County Fire Protection 
District (CCCFPD).   
 
City Manager Murray offered a gift as a token of appreciation to Fire Chief Wynkoop in recognition 
and in appreciation of his service to the City of Pinole, particularly for his vision with respect to 
the new service model with the CCCFPD.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
  
Rafael Menis, Pinole, expressed his appreciation and recognition of Fire Chief Wynkoop for his 
service to the Pinole community, Contra Costa County and his support and efforts for the new 
service model with the CCCFPD.  He also commended Fire Chief Wynkoop for his character and 
commented on his personal conversations with Fire Chief Wynkoop, who had always been 
charitable, forward-thinking, kind and dedicated to the community to the best of his ability.  Fire 
Chief Wynkoop’s retirement from City staff would be a loss for the City but he suggested his 
retirement was well deserved and he wished him a happy retirement.   
 
David Ruport, Pinole, highlighted his personal experience with the Pinole Fire Department and he 
too wished Fire Chief Wynkoop well on his retirement after making Pinole better, and while he 
would be moving out of the area Chief Wynkoop would be in everyone’s heart.  He hoped that 
effort would be carried over with the CCCFPD.  He again wished Fire Chief Wynkoop well on 
whatever his future held.   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, thanked Fire Chief Wynkoop for his service to the City and for his successful 
efforts to reopen Fire Station 74.   
 
The City Council again expressed its sincere appreciation and gratitude to Fire Chief Wynkoop 
and emphasized he was always welcome in the City of Pinole.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  

 
2. National Parks and Recreation Month  

 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing July 2023 as National Parks and 
Recreation Month, with Parks and Recreation, Community Development and Public Works 
Department staff recognized for their work maintaining and enhancing the City of Pinole’s 
numerous park facilities.  The proclamation was presented to Recreation Manager Maria Picazo.   
 
Recreation Manager Maria Picazo thanked the City Council for the proclamation on behalf of her 
team and stated it was an honor to serve the Pinole community.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  

11 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 7 
 

3. Bastille Day  
 

The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing July 14, 2023 as Bastille Day.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Vincent Salimi, Pinole, thanked the City Council for the proclamation on behalf of the French-
American community and highlighted the background of Bastille Day, which led to French 
Independence Day and the relationship between the United States and France.  He also 
introduced members of the audience who would be speaking to the City Council.   
 
Chloé Soroquère, President, Official Committee, Franco-American Associations of the San 
Francisco Bay Area, thanked the City Council for the proclamation and explained the Committee 
had hosted the City Council and other members of City staff in 2022 during a Bastille Day Dinner.  
She provided an overview of the Franco-American Associations of the San Francisco Bay Area, 
which had started in 1880 for the sole purpose of uniting all French-American organizations of the 
Bay Area and organizing Bastille Day.  Everyone was invited to the Bastille Day Festival planned 
for July 13, 2024 at the Embarcadero Plaza in the City of San Francisco.  She added the 
organization was a zero-waste organization and would also celebrate Plastic Free July.  She also 
highlighted the principles of the French Revolution which remained in effect today, with a belief in 
liberty, equality and fraternity.  She also spoke to the number of people in the Bay Area and in the 
City of Pinole who were of French descent who were a big part of the community.   
 
Serge Morel, Consular Advisor, Consulate General of France in San Francisco, representing all 
French citizens in the United States accepted the proclamation on their behalf.                                                                                                                                             
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 

B. Presentations 
 

1.  Public Bank East Bay  
 
Community Development Director Lilly Whalen introduced Marjorie Lewis and George Quaye with 
Public Bank East Bay to provide a PowerPoint presentation.   
 
George Quaye, Friends of Public Bank East Bay, provided an extensive PowerPoint presentation 
on Public Bank East Bay which included an overview of a public bank, a financial institution owned 
by public entities such as a city/county/region instead of private shareholders.  He explained that 
a public bank was not a retail bank, competition for local financial institutions, or an extractive 
drain on the community.  Public banks ensured dollars were working for the public good by 
allowing governmental agencies to divest, investment in a circular local economy and increase 
public revenue.  He also highlighted as case study for a public bank the details for the Bank of 
North Dakota.    
 
Mr. Quaye provided an overview of Public Bank East Bay which planned for a 2025 opening, 
owned and capitalized by local cities (Richmond, Oakland and Berkeley) and Alameda County, 
governed by a 15-member Board with majority community members, and with partners from local 
financial institutions to increase their capacity. 

12 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 8 
 

Public Bank East Bay would be regulated by the State and the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) and would grow into taking municipal deposits and provide banking services 
for the cities and county, charging low and fair fees.  Public Bank East Bay would also be working 
on affordable housing development, residential electrification, small business lending and 
municipal financing and with those four areas would prioritize racial equity, community wealth 
building, environmental sustainability and other local priorities.   
 
Mr. Quaye further highlighted Assembly Bill (AB) 857 approved in 2019, which created a legal 
pathway for the establishment of public banks in the State of California.  He noted that resolutions 
had been adopted in support of Public Bank East Bay from the cities of Richmond, Berkeley, 
Oakland and Hayward; commitments to participate in an Agency Working Group had come from 
Richmond, Oakland and Berkeley; a slate of Board candidates for agency review had been 
finalized after extensive community outreach; and Public Bank East Bay had raised over $750,000 
with support from foundations and from Alameda County.   
 
Next steps included a resolution affirming Alameda County’s involvement in Public Bank East 
Bay’s creation and participation in the working group, and working with the staff from the cities of 
Oakland, Berkeley and Richmond to design the corporate structure and work with the Alameda 
County Treasurer to identify potential sources of funding to appropriate toward capitalization of 
Public Bank East Bay.  Local communities and organizations that had shown support for Public 
Bank East Bay were also identified.   
 
In response to questions from the City Council, Mr. Quaye and Ms. Lewis clarified the following: 
 

• Public Bank East Bay was regulated and not directly tied to functioning aspects of a city 
or county. 
 

• There would be a representative from Richmond, Berkeley and Oakland and two 
representatives from Alameda County for the Bank Board, with the other ten members of 
the 15-member Board to consist of community representatives. 
   

• Subsequent municipalities that joined Public Bank East Bay would have some say in 
where the money was spent when they provided resources to the Bank. 
 

• Public Bank East Bay was working on its business plan with specific decisions to be up to 
the Board given the Bank would be public, not private, and its main reason to exist was to 
democratize finance and consider how it would be best for everyone, not just the original 
founding members, but for all municipalities that may deposit into the Bank. 
 

• Public Bank East Bay would be looking at other resources from other agencies such as 
the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) District and the East Bay Municipal Utility District 
(EMBUD). 
 

• Public Bank East Bay would have to determine where and how the money would be spent 
pursuant to the Bank Charter and subject to FDIC regulations. 
 

• The final governance plan and business plan for Public Bank East Bay in its various 
iterations could be made available to the Pinole City Council.   

13 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 9 
 

• Public Bank East Bay was part of a state and nationwide movement but was different in 
that it chose to do its own fundraising to start the Bank allowing more of a say in setting it 
up and designing the governance system and community representation. 
 

• The way people would make money was that the Bank would be buying back bonds and 
issuing them at a less than expensive rate. 
   

• Once the regulatory process was complete, a date would be issued for the charter with 
incorporation to be in place and all institutional pieces of the Bank required to be in place 
on the day the charter was invoked.   
 

• The three municipalities referenced (Richmond, Oakland and Berkley) and Alameda 
County would kick-off the initial founders of the Bank, with the institution to be attractive 
to others, and as part of this process the structure to join was being worked on and there 
would be a path for other municipalities to join the Bank.  Once Public Bank East Bay was 
open and ready to operate, it would be ready to take deposits from municipalities but the 
specifics of potential community involvement had yet to be worked out.  The Working 
Group would be meeting in the near term and would be discussing initial questions around 
how it would integrate future municipalities in the governance and operational processes 
of the Bank.  
 

• Public Bank East Bay had an academy in which it would train Board members in finance 
and economics since there would be bankers, finance and community members and given 
the fiduciary responsibility for public money.   
 

• Board members would be vetted by a pre-vetting individual familiar with state regulators 
and the state would do its own vetting.  One could not be a member of the Board if the 
state deemed an individual to be unfit.  There was a list of ten current Board candidates 
on the Public Bank East Bay website with extensive curriculum vitae’s (CVs) and 
identification of who had passed the initial vetting for the Bank and who would be part of 
the charter.   
 

• The initial capitalization would be around $40 million between the three cities and Alameda 
County, with Alameda County carrying the largest load and which would provide sufficient 
funding for a cushion for Public Bank East Bay for the first three years, with a three-year 
turnaround for profitability.  Operationally, as soon as the charter was provided, funds and 
resources would be delivered with no delay.  Return on investment was anticipated after 
three years.   
 

Ms. Lewis asked that the City Council put in writing any additional questions regarding Public 
Bank East Bay that could be provided to the Working Groups now working on the business plan 
and allow the Board to answer any questions.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 

14 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 10 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These 
items will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or 
Council member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the 
Consent Calendar.  Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will 
be removed from the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent 
Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on June 20, 2023. 
 

B. Receive the June 17, 2023 – July 14, 2023 – List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$2,199,424.20 and the June 23, 2023, Payroll in the amount of $465,293.93 and 
the July 7, 2023 Payroll in the amount of $520,795.32 ($479,695.40 Regular 
Payroll and $41,099.92 Chief Wynkoop Leave Payout)  

 
C. Second Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 15.02.070 ‘Permitted Hours 

and Condition of Construction” of the Pinole Municipal Code [Action:  Waive 2nd 
Reading and Adopt Ordinance per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 

 
D. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Strategic 

Energy Innovations (SEI) to Support a Climate Fellow for FY 23/24 at a Not-To-
Exceed Amount of Forty-Nine Thousand Dollars ($49,000) [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 

 
E. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City 

of Pinole and Pinole Police Employees’ Association (PPEA) for the Period of July 
1, 2023 – June 30, 2025 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Shell] 

 
F. Adopt Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Service Agreement 

with Contra Costa County to Implement an Enhanced Energy 
Efficiency/Electrification Pilot Program in the City of Pinole [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 

 
Council member Martinez-Rubin requested that Item 9A be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for correction.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Item 9C, and asked that the City Council pull the item and amend 
it as it related to the constraints on nighttime construction in residential areas, which was currently 
defined as being between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.  He understood the City wanted 
to provide as much broad discretion to the City Manager as possible and the City Manager would 
likely not provide permission to allow construction to occur during the stated hours due to potential 
public backlash but suggested it would be worthwhile to codify the limits on construction hours in 
the ordinance.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, spoke to Item 9A and suggested the minutes provided initial 
comments.  

15 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 11 
 

For Item 9C, Mr. Hindler agreed with the comments from the previous speaker given the residents 
who lived near the building site, and for Item 9D, he agreed with providing funds for a Climate 
Fellow to bring the City up to speed on climate change.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin referenced Item 9A, Page 75 of 293 of the agenda packet, and 
requested the following revision to the fifth line of the first paragraph, to read:   
 

As an example, the discussion on ACA 4 had included public comment from people 
outside of the City of Pinole along with a few City residents, which was a larger issue and 
a matter of how the public and the City Council became aware and eventually engaged in 
local legislation that may affect residents and how the City operated. 
 

City Clerk Bell requested an additional revision to Page 72 of 293 of the agenda packet for the 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes for June 20, 2023 with respect to the comments attributed 
to Council member Sasai, as follows:   
 

Council member Sasai suggested when a union print shop was used the items printed 
show the union bug doing the work, which was good for visibility. 

 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Council member Martinez-Rubin to approve 
Consent Calendar Items 9A (as amended by Council member Martinez-Rubin and City 
Clerk Bell) and Items 9B through 9F, as shown.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to 
the completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official 
who engaged in an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose 
the communication on the record prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 

A. Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt a Resolution Confirming the Assessments and 
Ordering the Levy for the Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment 
District for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 [Action:  Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 

 
Public Works Director Sanjay Mishra provided a PowerPoint presentation of the Pinole Valley 
Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) for Fiscal Year 2023/2024, which 
included the background of the Pinole Valley Road LLAD and an overview of Zone A:  North of I-
80 and Zone B:  South of I-80 and Assessment Summary of Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. 
 

16 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 12 
 

Council member Martinez-Rubin spoke to recurrent public comments about more than one light 
being non-functional in the LLAD.  She asked whether that was a reflection of the relatively small 
amount the City received in funds to address the LLAD or whether it was something else. 
 
Public Works Director Mishra explained that the complaints received had been primarily about 
the lights in Zone B: South of I-80, and a couple of locations where street light poles had been 
knocked down on a frequent basis.  It cost the City around $16,000 for a single light pole 
replacement.  The light poles on the southern side of I-80 had not been replaced given that funds 
for Zone B were limited; however, light bulbs had been replaced when reported to the City.  There 
was also a systemic issue with the photovoltaic cells and wiring in Zone A and staff was working 
to resolve the wire connections.   
 
Council member Sasai again clarified with Public Works Director Mishra that the light poles cost 
$16,000 per pole to replace while the cost of the light bulbs was a minor expense.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked whether the LLAD could borrow from the General Fund if funds were 
limited, whether the assessment in the LLAD should be increased or whether the City had gone 
after the insurance companies of the vehicles that hit the light poles since most of the light poles 
that were down were a result of a vehicular accident.   
 
Public Works Director Mishra clarified the rate of recovery from private insurance companies 
ranged anywhere from zero to 25 percent of the maximum and that most of the time whoever hit 
the light pole was not known since oftentimes the accidents occurred during evening hours.   
 
Public Works Director Mishra also clarified in response to Council member Tave that the City paid 
for one light pole to be replaced in 2022, but had not replaced any light poles in 2023 since his 
assessment was that the light poles were in the wrong location.  He would rather have those light 
poles located on the sidewalk rather than in the medium where they were a target for larger 
trucks/vehicles.   He was working with staff on that option but had not yet proposed a larger Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) project.  A total of three light poles had been hit with only one replaced.  
He again clarified the available funds for LLAD Zones A and B, with only $5,000 remaining for 
Zone B.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, asked the City Council to support the staff recommendation, as 
presented.   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, asked whether it was possible to install lights where the light poles had been 
located along with signage warning drivers they were on camera possibly avoiding some of the 
accidents.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  
 
Public Works Director Mishra stated he could look into the suggestion from the public as part of 
the evaluation of placing the light poles on the sidewalk but a system would have to be in place 
before signage could be posted.   
 

17 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 13 
 

ACTION:  Motion by Council members Martinez-Rubin/Tave to adopt a resolution 
confirming the assessment and diagram as described in the Annual Assessment Report, 
levying an assessment for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 
2024, and ordering the City Engineer to prepare and submit the assessments to the Contra 
Costa County Assessor’s Office for placement onto the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 secured 
property tax roll. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 
 

11. OLD BUSINESS:  None  
 
12. NEW BUSINESS  
 

A. Review of the City’s Required Contributions to Pension and the Lifespan of the 
Section 115 Trust Fund [Action:  Receive Report (Guillory) 

 
Finance Director Markisha Guillory presented the staff report dated July 18, 2023, and introduced 
Doug Pryor with Foster & Foster, the consultant firm the City hired to analyze the City’s annual 
required contribution to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and to 
address the estimated lifespan of the Section 115 Trust Fund.   
 
Doug Pryor, Vice President and Actuary at Foster & Foster provided a PowerPoint presentation 
on the City of Pinole CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans, which included an overview of 
the Miscellaneous and Safety Groups formulas for CalPERS; Plan Funded Status – 
Miscellaneous and Safety Plans; details of the City’s Pension Obligation Bond (POB); 
Contribution Rates – Miscellaneous and Safety Plans; Investment Returns generated by 
CalPERS, and CalPERS changes with all information contained in the staff report.   
  
Finance Director Guillory continued the PowerPoint presentation and provided an overview of the 
City Pension Contributions and Trust Forecast, which included the City’s annual required 
contribution to CalPERS; annual required contribution to CalPERS; total pension costs; 
comparison of total pension costs; Section 115 Trust Fund and lifespan of Section 115 Trust Fund, 
again with all information contained in the staff report.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin clarified with Director Guillory that Foster & Foster’s preparation 
of the materials were particular to the City of Pinole with the bar graphs on Pages 4 and 5 of the 
PowerPoint presentation reflecting the City’s numbers and retired City employees, and the City 
had the obligation to pay those employees a pension relative to the year hired and based on the 
type of employee, with the amounts shown unfunded as of the current date.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin also spoke to the particulars related to the Section 115 Trust 
Fund which had shown a bit of a cushion, although funds would be exhausted in year 2029/2030.   
She confirmed with the City Manager the cushion was nowhere near the amount the City needed 
to meet its obligations to pay retirees.    
 

18 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 14 
 

Finance Director Guillory reiterated the information presented would be used to inform the Long-
Term Financial Plan (LTFP) and the City Council would make decisions on the sourcing of those 
funds.   
 
Council member Tave again clarified the Section 115 Trust Fund would be exhausted in year 
2029/2030.  He suggested there should be more employees paying into the fund than the City 
paying into the pension system.  He understood the POB had been considered as an emergency 
response and he asked when the City would take steps to have a bond issued.  He hoped to have 
that message relayed to the public early in the process.  He also asked whether the bond could 
be issued earlier since based on the projections it would not be enough.  
 
Mr. Pryor clarified there were more retired employees receiving benefits than active employees 
but that benefit itself did not make the plan upside down, which was a natural position for a mature 
pension plan.  The problem was the investment returns and that CalPERS had decreased its 
discount rate from the issuance of the first POB that mostly generated the unfunded liability, which 
had impacted most agencies across the state.  He added that a POB would involve borrowing 
money to pay CalPERS and if the City was able to borrow money at a low rate and CalPERS had 
a higher return they would come out ahead, whereas borrowing at a higher rate with CalPERS 
earning a lower return would create an upside down situation.  He had not seen any interest in 
POBs since the interest rates were so high, although possibly that window would come back when 
interest rates changed.   
 
Council member Tave found the POB process never-ending and he hoped someone at the state 
level was considering solutions. 
 
City Manager Murray again clarified the POB where the City had taken out a loan with a variable 
rate.  At that time, CalPERS allowed a city to pay off a portion of the unfunded liability through a 
side fund, with a fixed rate of return on the pay-off, although that process was no longer permitted 
by CalPERS.  Given that scenario, the City would not pursue the same approach and while not 
illegal modern finance practices strongly discouraged POBs. The City could look for another 
financial revenue source to bridge that gap.  Once the 115 Pension Trust was exhausted, the 
amount of the unfunded liability needed to be determined to allow the City to factor that figure into 
the City’s financial needs as part of the LTFP.  Staff needed to determine what budget adjustments 
would be required in the future in addition to determining the number as part of the LTFP.   
 
City Manager Murray added that when the Section 115 Trust had been created the thought was 
it would get the City through the entire pay-down of the unfunded liability, and when the trust 
forecast had been done based on the CalPERS contributions, the forecast was much lower than 
what they were now known to be.  One of the driving factors was the lower return on investment 
at CalPERS and other actions taken by CalPERS.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms found the most informative page of the PowerPoint was Slide 5, Total 
Pension Costs.  She noted in FY 2030/31, there would be a $3 million bump required but the 
Section 115 Trust would be exhausted.  She asked whether that could be flattened a bit sooner 
by stretching out the Section 115 Trust.  She suggested the City stretch the transfer amount and 
she asked whether it would be advantageous to trim the City’s budget so they could afford to do 
that and not be hit by a potential $3 to $5 million delta in FY 2031 to FY 2035/36.   
 

19 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 15 
 

Finance Director Guillory stated if that was the direction from the City Council to staff that could 
be done.  The formula used was one that had been established in 2018, and carried forward.  
There was no formal policy in place for transfers from the Section 115 Trust.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Page 267 of 293 of the agenda packet, Table 3, Comparison of 
the 2018 and 2023 Total Pension Cost Forecasts and noted the values listed for the 2018 forecast 
for Pension Obligation Bond Debt Service differed drastically from the values listed in the 2023 
forecast, both for the actuals for prior years and for the predictions for future years.  He asked if 
that was because of the variable rate of the bond meaning the amount actually needed to be paid 
due to interest changes.  He also noted the PowerPoint presentations provided by the Finance 
Director and Foster & Foster had not been posted on the City website and he asked that they be 
uploaded for future reference.   
 
Mr. Menis also commented that the magnitude of cost assumed there would not be further 
decreases in the amount CalPERS was actually able to pay their effective discount rate and 
assuming it would remain at the 6.8 percent and draw closer to the effective 5 percent on average 
rate, and if it continued to drop more there would be more costs.  In addition, the net delta even if 
accounting for the $3 million jump by spreading out the net effect of the lifetime of the Section 115 
Trust over more years would still create a larger net annual contribution than in the current fiscal 
year and every year until FY 2044/45.  That would even be assuming the discount rates were not 
worse, which was unlikely given the increasingly conservative assumptions that CalPERS would 
make to stabilize and avoid the volatility experienced in 2022.  He expected greater revenue 
changes to address even greater costs beyond those identified in the presentation.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Murphy advised the item was an informational report and no action was required.  He 
looked forward to the next steps and the LTFP assessment.   
 

B. Options for a Comprehensive Public Art Program [Action:  Receive Report and 
Provide Direction (Whalen)] 

 
Community Development Director Whalen and Community Services Director Jeremy Rogers 
provided a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed Comprehensive Public Art Program that 
included the definition of public art and with the current public art in the City of Pinole consisting 
of seven murals and six public tile mosaics.  The existing City policies related to public art in the 
General Plan; current funding for public art pursuant to the Public Art Fund; the components of 
an Art in Public Places Program, which had been encouraged as part of the Three Corridors 
Specific Plan; potential funding sources for a Public Art Program and components of a Percent 
for Art Ordinance were all highlighted with all information contained in the July 18, 2023 staff 
report.   
 
If the City Council was interested in establishing an Art in Public Places Program, staff 
recommended the City Council direct staff to work with the Community Services Commission to 
develop recommendations for a comprehensive Art in Public Places program. The Program could 
include guidelines for City art projects and collections, roles/responsibilities, collection 
management, maintenance, and conservation.   

20 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 16 
 

Work with the Planning Commission was also recommended to develop recommendations for a 
Percent for Art Ordinance and guidelines, procedures and criteria for art in private development 
and consultation with the Pinole Artisans and other professionals to provide recommendations on 
the maintenance and preservation and/or decommissioning (if necessary) of each mural in Pinole 
that had been commissioned by the Redevelopment Agency.  Staff would return to the City 
Council with a recommended plan of action and associated budget. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked if the City collected development fees for public art whether the 
Community Services Commission would identify the location for a potential piece of public art or 
whether City staff would make that decision. 
 
Community Services Director Rogers advised that everything would funnel through the 
Community Services Commission  who would vet any applications.   
 
Council member Tave asked how the fees collected as part of the Percent for Art Ordinance would 
be distributed, and Community Development Director Whalen explained that of the cities she had 
reviewed that had a Percent for Art Ordinance, there was a requirement for maintenance of public 
art on private development as part of an agreement with the developer, and with the developer to 
maintain the artwork through the life of the project.  If a developer decided to pay an in-lieu fee 
rather than integrating an art piece into the development, the in-lieu fee could be put towards the 
procurement of public art in the City or pay for maintenance costs for other public art in the City 
with a policy to dictate how those funds could be spent.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, stated she had recently been appointed to the Community Services 
Commission.  She suggested the Commission could do this work with each Commission member 
representing a school and possibly each member working with the community and schools to 
bring this program to Pinole.  She was pleased with the budget proposed for the Public Art 
Program.  She reported she had spoken with a member of Pinole Artisans who had explained 
that Pinole Artisans had approached the City about a Public Art Program in Pinole in the past with 
no response.  She would reach out to Pinole Artisans and invite them to the Community Services 
Commission where they could provide input and advice on how to pursue a Public Art Program.   
 
Name to be confirmed, explained that former Mayor Vincent Salimi had recommended a Public 
Art Program as a way to bring communities closer and address issues at hand.  As a United 
States citizen who had been born in Iran, she spoke to the Freedom Life Movement which would 
have its two-year anniversary of the death of Mahsa Amini which had been the impetus for the 
start of the movement of bringing a voice through art.  She spoke to her experience with art as a 
founder of a non-profit art organization and the promotion of art through art, dancing and music.  
A Public Art Program would bring communities together through amazing artists who could bring 
awareness to culture along with unity and love.  She also supported festivals such as Art and 
Wine Festivals as had been celebrated in other communities, which would be welcome if included 
in a Public Art Program.  She added there was interest from artists for murals that supported and 
recognized women’s rights and that could be part of a Public Art Program.   
 
Vincent Salimi, Pinole, supported a Public Art Program and suggested that diversity defined the 
City of Pinole with Pinole the 6th most diverse City in the state.  He encouraged the City to adopt 
a Public Art Program that reflected the diversity of the City of Pinole.   

21 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 17 
 

Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Page 276 of 293 of the agenda packet, Table 1:  Components 
of a Public Art Program, Artist Selection, and commented on his understanding of whether local 
artists would be given preference sometimes depended on funding.  If the City were to charge 
private developers a development fee to install public art or pay an in-lieu fee, he asked whether 
it would create limitations on the hiring of artists for public art.  In terms of the messages public 
art would represent, he asked whether the City would have any influence on the message in the 
public art, whether it would primarily be determined by the developer, or whether there would be 
a set of themes the City could rotate.  If that was the case, he asked what First Amendment 
limitations could be placed on the City’s ability to directly indicate what sort of public art could be 
required or suggested.  As to the maintenance of existing public art, he noted that existing public 
murals did not have a plan or funding source for maintenance.  In terms of a One Percent for Art 
Ordinance, he asked whether the City would consider separately a plan to evaluate the condition 
of existing murals and their maintenance.  He suggested there should be a priority to evaluate the 
condition of existing public art to ensure it was maintained and intact for the future and kept vibrant 
for as long as feasible.   
 
Dina Asna, Founder and Director of an East Bay Non-Profit organization, Iranian Women in 
Networking, empowering women in the arts, was excited about the possibility of a mural in the 
City of Pinole, drawing attention to the City.  She highlighted the WomanLifeFreedom’s Quilt 
project, which had received a lot of attention and which she hoped to bring to the City of Pinole.  
If the City proceeded with a Public Art Program, the organization was ready to assist the City and 
the community.  She commented that every City that had a program empowering women in the 
arts invited inclusivity, creativity and diversity.  She also read into the record a quote about art 
that had great meaning to her.  She emphasized that this matter went beyond the country of Iran 
and placed a light on an issue that a lot of women and members of the LGBTQ+ community were 
facing.  She hoped to receive feedback from City Council members.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Sasai thanked staff for the comprehensive report for the establishment of a 
Public Art Program in the City of Pinole.  He referenced the mural at the bus stop at San Pablo 
Avenue and Oak Ridge Road which had deteriorated and was a bad look for the City.  He 
suggested the funds available in the existing Public Art Fund offered an opportunity to address 
the maintenance of existing murals and public artwork in the City.  He also suggested funneling 
this effort through the Community Services Commission offered an opportunity to reassess the 
content and evaluate the appropriateness of existing art given that some of the artwork involved 
the current City seal or a depiction of a Native American individual and there were currently efforts 
to update the existing City seal and logo.   
 
Council member Sasai also looked forward to working collaboratively with staff on Crime 
Prevention through Environmental Design (CPTED) Rebate Improvement Program, which was 
due to come before the City Council soon, and which would offer an opportunity to do some 
outreach for owners of property in Pinole along with ways to incorporate more public art.   
 
Council member Sasai further thanked former Mayor Salimi and Council member Tave for the 
requested item for discussion given that public art was an avenue for the community to be seen 
and reflected in the City of Pinole and an opportunity to reduce graffiti and illegal dumping.  He 
supported the item.   

22 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 18 
 

Council member Martinez-Rubin thanked staff for the comprehensive report.  She was pleased 
the City may be ahead of the County’s work towards the establishment of a commission focused 
on the arts and there may be possibilities of sharing between the City and the County.  She looked 
forward to enhancing historical and cultural artwork along with the opportunity to maintain and 
create art pieces to reflect the history, culture and diversity of the City of Pinole beyond what a 
non-profit organization may be capable of doing.  Local government supporting reflections of its 
own representation via art was an indication of how governance could enhance the quality of life 
for residents, and the enhancements public art would provide could create opportunities for new 
artwork.  Overall, the idea was to have pieces that moved on and allowed one to reflect on what 
it was to like to live in an urban space that was becoming denser.  The City could also balance all 
of the hardscape with the experience, cultural and artistic representations of life in the City of 
Pinole.  She supported and looked forward to the next steps as staff had outlined and offered a 
motion to that effect.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms echoed the comments and explained that one of the first things she would 
like to see done was the rehabilitation of the murals and she looked forward to other installations 
of public artwork.  She also liked the idea of festivals and events to promote art and music.   
 
Mayor Murphy thanked staff for the presentation and partnership between City Departments.  He 
liked the framework of the item being funneled through the Community Services Commission and 
he hoped the Commission would be provided a budget to allow public art.  He supported the next 
steps as outlined by staff, and reiterated the land acknowledgement statement at the beginning 
of each City Council meeting agenda.  When considering public art, he wanted to see indigenous 
peoples focused in that framework and consider ways to honor the original people of Pinole and 
build culturally relevant and sensitive art projects with the Ohlone people.   
 
Mayor Murphy referenced Bay Front Park, which was an area in which he was intrigued with a lot 
of art and photography having featured the area and he would like to see some consideration to 
make the Wastewater Treatment Plant more beautiful, such as a piece of artwork on the building 
wall.  He wanted to identify unlikely places as centers for public art and wanted to bring together 
the 2019/2020 Beautification Ad Hoc Subcommittee recommendations, one of which was to instill, 
support and program commissioning artists to beautify utility boxes.  In addition, he also wanted 
to work in coordination with other agencies, including the County Art Council, which had created 
some surveys and public engagement workshops to define a County Art Strategy and the 
WCCUSD.  He referred to interest in a mural on the Pinole Valley Road front facing elevation of 
Collins Elementary School and with students to commission art and anything else that could be 
done on the WCCUSD campus’ infrastructure.  The same type of partnership should be 
considered for East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) facilities.   
 
Mayor Murphy also commented there was interest in doing an Iranian Human Rights light 
installation on City trees.  He suggested unlikely places for art should be considered, as an 
example, City roads, such as how some communities had painted Black Lives Matter on City 
roads as an art installation or using the City’s roads and crosswalks for possible artwork.  The use 
of banners also offered a way to install public art.    
 
Mayor Murphy referenced the Economic Development Plan vision for eco-tourism in the City of 
Pinole and how that could be mapped out.  This effort would offer an opportunity to achieve that 
vision.   
 

23 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 19 
 

Mayor Murphy also referenced a report from UCLA Luskin School with the Metropolitan Planning 
Council (MPC) to help city leaders’ work with community-based organizations and artists to 
develop shade, cooling infrastructure and the use of reflective paint on buildings, which could be 
part of the City of Pinole’s climate change and adaptation effort.  Further, he referenced the 
accessibility of artwork and offered examples at the Richmond Arts Center, and suggested when 
developing a Public Art Program for the City of Pinole they also consider different ways for people 
to offer and receive art.  He too thanked former Mayor Salimi and Council member Tave for 
leading the effort to bring the item forward.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Martinez-Rubin/Sasai for the City Council to support 
the recommendations by staff regarding the development of a Public Art Program. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
C. Steps Required to Sell the Faria House [Action:  Receive Report and Provide 

Direction (Mishra)] 
 
Public Works Director Mishra provided a PowerPoint presentation that included an overview of 
the background of the Faria House and the steps required to sell the property, as detailed in the 
July 18, 2023 staff report.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms described the history of the purchase of the property from the 
Redevelopment Agency as part of a long-range property management plan and how the assets 
of the former Redevelopment Agency had been managed.  If the City purchased the property 
from the Redevelopment Agency, she asked why the Faria House was now being identified as a 
housing asset rather than a City asset.  She emphasized that the revenue the City would receive 
from the sale of the property and how the funds would be distributed along with the details of the 
financial arrangement when the property had been purchased by the City should be clarified.  In 
addition, there was a discussion of rezoning in the staff report whereas the Specific Plan 
determined the property would be Mixed Use and she asked whether someone purchasing the 
property must go through the entitlement process.  She also commented on the exemptions from 
the Surplus Land Act and noted the Specific Plan included goals for the site to be Mixed Use, and 
asked whether or not the Faria House would qualify for an exemption.  She preferred that the 
property be a Mixed Use, which would allow people to patronize a business or whatever possible 
use there could be and be able to go into to the building and she wanted those details sorted out 
to ensure they were on the right path.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Alex Mog explained that the property had been transferred at the time of 
the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency as a housing asset and the City had decided to 
purchase the home outright, although not the property (the land).  The property (underlying 
ground) remained a housing asset with the home itself owned outright by the City.  Appraisals 
would be needed to be done to split the proceeds of the sale of those two things depending on 
how the property was sold.  Questions related to the Specific Plan designation would have to be 
researched by staff.   
 

24 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 20 
 

Council member Martinez-Rubin understood that an appraisal of the property had been done as 
recently as March 2023.  She asked whether that value was public information, and both Public 
Works Director Mishra and City Manager Murray stated the appraisal was around $340,000 for 
the home and property in an as-is condition.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked for clarification on how the assumed proceeds of the sale 
of the property would be distributed, which she understood must get to different entities prior to 
the City actually obtaining some of the funds and the percentage or amount would be estimated 
proceeds the City would receive. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Mog advised the appraisal had identified the value of the property and the 
home itself if the property were sold at full price.  If valued at $300,000 as an example, $200,000 
for the property and $100,000 for the home, and the property sold for $300,000, $100,000 would 
go to the General Fund since the City owned the house outright and the $200,000 would go into 
the Housing Fund since it was owned by the City as a housing asset.  No part of the property was 
owned by the Successor Agency.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin spoke to the criteria for selling the property and the qualifications 
of an entity if the property were to be sold.  She asked whether the qualifications would be based 
on intended use, to which Public Works Director Mishra detailed the requirements of the Surplus 
Land Act that identified the public agencies that must be notified if the property were sold.   
 
City Manager Murray added the City had experience with the disposition process through other 
surplus City properties and the sale of the Faria House would follow the same process.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, stated the Faria House had been an item upsetting to the community, had 
divided the City, the City had spent a lot of money on the Faria House and as a taxpayer she had 
been offended.  She detailed her numerous requests for copies of financial records and the record 
of attorney’s fees and staff time spent on the property.  She urged the City Council to sell the 
property and remove the property from the taxpayer’s burden.  She reiterated the Faria House 
had been very controversial, she recognized the current City Council had inherited the problem, 
again the community was divided, and she emphasized taxpayers could not afford to keep the 
Faria House.  She asked the City Council to do something now and pointed out two Council seats 
would be open in 2024 and taxpayers would remember how the City Council voted on this matter.   
 
David Ruport, Pinole, commented that the Faria House had been one of the longest running 
issues in Pinole without a solution.  It was now possible to remove this negative asset from the 
City’s tax rolls.  He thanked the City Manager and City staff who had taken a look at the accounting 
factors in this matter and who had pointed out that funds for the Faria House had taken away from 
basic issues the City should be addressing.  He acknowledged that the details to initiate the sale 
of the property needed to be worked out, there were valid questions about the initiation of the 
sale, but emphasized the sale of the property needed to happen.  He had reviewed 5,000 pages 
of City documents and a couple of thousand documents provided by the Pinole Historical Society, 
which had contrary solutions and opinions.  He suggested the City Council would make the right 
decision by selling the property.   
 

25 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 21 
 

Rafael Menis, Pinole, understood that whether the home, underlying land or the ground lease 
itself was sold the process for sale was the same, with the home having been purchased from the 
Redevelopment Agency to enable whatever use the sitting City Council desired.  If the home was 
sold alone with a ground lease for the property, he questioned why the criteria for the Surplus 
Land Act would be triggered since what was really underlying the conversation was whether the 
Pinole Historical Society would be able to purchase the Faria House for use as a museum.  While 
not stated explicitly in the agenda packet, it was generally understood that was the underlying 
context of this item, whereas the staff report seemed to state that would not be possible due to 
the requirements of the Surplus Land Act and he asked for clarification of that issue.  He also 
asked whether it would be possible for the Pinole Historical Society to purchase the home itself 
and not the underlying land and not have to convert the building into affordable housing since the 
staff report was unclear on that issue.  He asked that the core issue be clarified before the City 
Council took any action. 
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, agreed with the comments raised by Ms. Ruport, and while the Faria 
House was beautiful it should be sold and removed from the taxpayers’ burden.  He agreed the 
Faria House has been the longest standing City Council agenda item and he urged the City 
Council to sell the property whether it was to the Pinole Historical Society or to any other group.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, asked about the tax bill on the Faria House if action was suspended 
for another six months to a year.  Given that the City may be in dire straits due to CalPERS 
requirements and City wages over the next few years, he suggested the City should consider 
consolidating and selling other vacant City-owned properties.  As an example, he asked of the 
tax bill for the caretaker’s home which should be sold or leased and he asked of the cost to 
maintain the property including the surrounding park area since the property had deteriorated, 
locks in the men’s bathroom were broken and restrooms by the ballfield were inoperable. If the 
Faria House were sold, he preferred that the land be designated as Mixed Use property.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Responding to the public comments, Assistant City Attorney Mog explained that since the 
property was considered to be a housing asset, it must go to support affordable housing.  Part of 
the justification used was that the area was a park-like amenity that supported adjacent affordable 
housing units.  If the property became a private space, sold with the intended use as a private 
museum even if open to the general public, as an example, it would still be a private space and 
not something the City could continue to own as a housing asset.    
 
With respect to the Surplus Land Act, the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) had stated it would apply to most types of leases.  If the City were to sell the 
Faria House to a non-profit to operate as a museum and entered into a ground lease with the 
non-profit that ground lease would be subject to the Surplus Land Act.  The Surplus Land Act did 
not require the property be used in any specific way, but required as a first step that the City offer 
it to certain public agencies and non-profit housing providers to make an offer to the City and 
enter into negotiations.  After that process had concluded and if the City Council was not happy 
with any of those offers, the City Council could do whatever it wanted with a for- or non-profit 
entity.   
 

26 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 22 
 

Assistant City Attorney Mog further clarified that since the land was owned by the City as a 
housing asset, it must be given to a housing provider to sell to develop affordable housing or if 
sold, the proceeds must be taken and put into the Housing Fund. 
   
Separate from that under the Surplus Land Act, for any property the City sold, there were 
requirements depending on who the property was sold to and the stage in which it was sold 
whether affordable, if residential units were built on the property, and depending on the 
circumstances either 15 or 25 percent of the units must be affordable.  The City Council was the 
ultimate decision maker for who to sell the property to.   
 
Mayor Murphy asked that staff provide the most recent appraisal of the property to the City 
Council, and Public Works Director Mishra confirmed the information could be circulated to the 
City Council.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reiterated the Specific Plan and General Plan designated the property as 
Commercial Mixed Use, and when the property went out as part of the Surplus Land Act notice, 
she understood the City Council would have discretion if an offer was made by a Commercial 
developer who may want to rehabilitate the property. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Mog explained that during the negotiation phase the City was to prioritize 
affordable housing providers, but the law was also clear the City had no obligation to approve a 
rezoning or change in the Specific Plan designation.  If the City Council felt strongly in keeping 
the property as Commercial, when notices were sent out it would be emphasized that the property 
was zoned in a certain way and the City Council was not interested in rezoning.  If putting that 
message out, the City would not get more interest from affordable housing developers.   
 
City Manager Murray reiterated staff had gone through the Surplus Land Act for all recent City 
surplus property sales and had experience whether affordable housing developers had expressed 
interest or not for similar types of properties.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms was interested in the process but wanted to review proposals that may 
come in and have enough discretion on potential future uses.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin stated for the record she was a member of the Board of the 
Pinole Historical Society, which as part of its mission was to educate the history of Pinole and to 
support efforts related to that.  She reported there had been no interest on the part of the Pinole 
Historical Society Board to purchase something it could not afford up until as recently as March 
2023, when the City Council had heard and honored the interest of many members of the public.   
She also responded to some of the public comments at this time about division in the community 
and comments about the community’s lack of support for a broader use of a City property, which 
was intended prior to 2008 as a public space.  Specifically, documents and conversations in the 
staff report that had been pulled together for a meeting in November 2020, which spoke to that.    
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin stated the intended use was such that there would be a 
partnership or relationship created in support of something meant for public use with operation of 
that use by a non-profit.   
 
 

27 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 23 
 

That partnership then went into discussion and partial negotiations when a lease agreement had 
been reviewed, and while no action had been taken, it was not because the terms of the lease 
had been found to be unacceptable by the Pinole Historical Society but on the basis of other 
activity going on amongst the City Council, which led to the deferral of a decision how the intended 
use of the property would have occurred, whether intended for use as a museum for instance.    
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin stated all along the interest in use as a museum stemmed back 
to why the Faria House had been donated to the City, and all references to expenses by the 
taxpayers spoke to the interest of having the property used in such a way that it would hold 
artifacts, historical and educational pieces related to the City of Pinole.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin re-read a portion of the National Parks and Recreation Month 
proclamation into the record.  She noted the Faria House, as a structure and the property was 
part of Heritage Park, an omission as one of the City’s parks.  Over time, City staff had not 
necessarily paid attention to the direction from the City Council with respect to that property and 
it was in a state where there were questions as to how it could be used and plans to renovate the 
property to a point where further discussions about its use had been thwarted when the idea of 
having a property renovated for eventual use as a public space was not considered as urgent as 
other projects that would now be funded by the funds that had been set aside for that renovation.  
She found it a shame they were not looking at the property as becoming something that provided 
the City the kind of educational and cultural experience that a property supported by taxpayers 
could have to balance the kinds of other infrastructure needed. 
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin saw the Faria House and its property as opportunities to 
showcase a lot of the technology beginning to be seen in the City to help with clean energy, and 
highlight concurrently the agricultural history representing and honoring the past.  She explained 
there had to be the political will to see that and to consider it when discussing the value of the 
property that would not remedy the need for the City to acquire revenues to help meet unfunded 
liabilities.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked of the cost the City had incurred if it were to subsidize the 
need to renovate the property as a public space for future use that would be open to anyone in 
Pinole.  She noted the City had two national historical landmarks; the Bank of Pinole and 
Fernandez Mansion, both of which were held privately and not available to the general public.  If 
the Faria House was a public space and open to the public as Mixed Use or otherwise, the City 
could also create the conditions where it would be more of an opportunity for people to access 
something that was theirs.  She recognized the pressure to create more affordable housing would 
continue for years to come and the City had only recently experienced what the State Legislature 
had allowed for cities to build more housing, and the Housing Element would eventually have the 
City see more than 550 new units of different levels of affordability.  If the City were to invite 
inclusivity and creativity, it could and ought to be done in a way to reflect that there was something 
tangible where that creativity and inclusivity could meet. 
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin suggested there could be an intersection between preservation, 
promoting arts, promoting community building and community development, enhancing culture 
and enhancing civic pride, and she saw a lot of that possibility in keeping the Faria House and 
the property, which discussion had not yet occurred.      
 

28 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 24 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked if there was a notice of Surplus Land issued, how Heritage Park 
would be addressed, whether an easement would be required to be reserved for passage, or 
whether it could be sold, which needed to be clarified.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Mog explained that the issue of whether any part of the property would be 
considered parkland had been reviewed and the property had never been designated as a park 
on any City map or inventory.  He also clarified based on City Council direction and further 
investigation, the notice would specify whether the City would retain the strip where the path was 
located or whether an easement would be required across that land.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Tave/Sasai to extend the City Council meeting to 
11:30 p.m.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
Council member Sasai offered a motion, seconded by Council member Tave to declare the Faria 
House and the Property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue as “Surplus Land” pursuant to the Surplus 
Land Act (Gov. Code § 54220 et seq.) and to direct staff to take all the necessary steps to sell the 
Faria House and the property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue as outlined in the received City Council 
report.   
 
On the motion, City Manager Murray stated if the City Council wanted to move forward, direction 
to staff would be to return to the City Council with a resolution declaring the property as Surplus 
Land, as a separate action.  
 
Council member Sasai rescinded his initial motion.  He offered a new motion, seconded by 
Council member Tave to direct staff to draft a resolution and declare the Faria House and the 
Property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue as “Surplus Land” pursuant to the Surplus Land Act (Gov. 
Code § 54220 et seq.) and return to the City Council for adoption and to direct staff to take all the 
necessary steps to sell the Faria House and the property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue, as outlined 
in the received City Council report.   
 
On the motion, Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked during the time of drafting that the resolution clarify 
some discussion as to how to handle the separation of the park area from the Faria House.  She 
would support the motion mainly because she saw no other path forward, although she wanted 
to see a museum but it would not happen unless supported by some funder who would support it 
as a non-profit.  She wanted to see it as a Mixed Use, where customers could visit and see the 
home with enough flexibility for the City Council to have some say as to future uses. 
   
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Sasai/Tave to direct staff to draft a resolution and 
to declare the Faria House and the Property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue as “Surplus Land” 
pursuant to the Surplus Land Act (Gov. Code § 54220 et seq.) and return to the City Council 
for adoption, and to direct staff to take all the necessary steps to sell the Faria House and 
the property at 2100 San Pablo Avenue as outlined in the received City Council report.   
 

29 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 25 
 

Vote:   Passed  4-1 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   Martinez-Rubin   
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
Council member Martinez-Rubin offered a motion for staff to prepare for the City Council the 
projected costs associated with the Faria House if the City were to retain the property, or not, 
which would help inform the decision to be taken on the status of the home.   
 
City Manager Murray advised that information had been addressed as part of a prior discussion 
and he reported it had been estimated it would cost $50,000 per year for the City to maintain the 
property.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin rescinded her motion.  She offered a new motion for City staff to 
prepare a brief report with a list of possible funding sources for the Faria House to be used as a 
public space that would enhance the to-be-created Public Art Program.  
 
Mayor Murphy noted there would be a Grants Management Policy upcoming at a future City 
Council meeting with a Request for Proposal (RFP) around that work and possibly that request 
could be integrated as part of the work with the consultant.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reported that over the years she had been on the lookout for grant ideas 
and she had approached people who processed the federal programs through the County’s 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs a few years ago.  She had been 
informed at that time that a museum in the City of Pinole would not qualify for that funding source 
due to the City’s income levels and demographics. 
 
There was no second to the motion.   
 

D. Racial Equity in Pinole [Action:  Receive Report (Murray)] 
 
Assistant to the City Manager Fiona Epps provided a PowerPoint presentation on Racial Equity 
in the City of Pinole, which included an overview of current information on equity indicators and 
the assessment of equity in the community over time, also summarized in the July 18, 2023 staff 
report.  The difference between equity and equality; equity approaches to employment, housing, 
education, access to health care and public safety; proxy measure for racial integration of a 
community, access to health environments and income distribution were all highlighted.   
 
The racial composition of the City of Pinole; research on racial segregation in the San Francisco 
Bay Area conducted by U.C. Berkeley, The Othering and Belonging Institute and the results 
specifically for the City of Pinole; communities in the Bay Area most affected by cumulative 
pollution impacts, which information would be incorporated into the Draft of the Environmental 
Justice Element that also included information on 62 housing units in Pinole as part of an impacted 
community were also detailed.  It was noted that Municipal associations were examining their own 
organizations and providing case studies and other resources to member cities working on 
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Resources.  Examples of what some nearby cities were 
doing as part of equity were also provided for the cities of Concord and Richmond, and Sonoma 
County.   

30 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 26 
 

The City of Pinole was currently in the midst of an internal DEI Initiative with planning spearheaded 
by the Human Resources and City Manager’s Departments, measuring the inclusivity of the City’s 
work environment.  A consultant who had worked with other Bay Area cities had been hired to 
provide training to staff on inclusivity and related skills, with a staff working group to be established 
to advance DEI in the City organization in the future.  As part of the next steps, the City would 
continue to build on its internal DEI Initiative, identify shared equity values, carry out equity values 
and update the City Council. 
 
Mayor Murphy commented on the work place aging and equity issues in the City and asked how 
that had shown up in the research and how staff considered the approach, and Assistant to the 
City Manager Epps recalled a survey of City staff had addressed all different areas including 
diversity in age, income, race, ethnicity, gender identification and sex. 
 
City Manager Murray reiterated the next steps included setting up a staff working group that over 
time would examine all City programs with respect to equity for all protected classes including 
age. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, spoke to the racial equity lens and referenced Page 292 of 293 of the 
agenda packet, and the statement in the staff report that Pinole ranked fourth highest among the 
101 Bay Area cities in terms of how similar Pinole’s ethnic composition is to that of the Bay Area 
overall. However, that research also revealed that Pinole is only average among Bay Area cities 
in terms of integration at the neighborhood level (“intra-regional divergence”). By this measure, 
Pinole ranked 44th out of 101, and the most recent version of the Housing Element that had been 
submitted to the State on June 6, 2023, Pages 148 and 149, included a dissimilarity index for race 
and ethnicity.  He read into the record the figures as shown in this section, which highlighted the 
City had already looked into equity considerations in the Housing Element and had that data 
available.   
 
Mr. Menis encouraged the public and the City Council to use that data when considering an equity 
lens and approaches the City may take to further equity.  While the City was diverse, it was not 
integrated; and while steps had been taken over the past decade when reviewing past Housing 
Elements, particularly for the Pinole Valley which had shifted from a predominantly white region 
to a more racially integrated region as of 2020, the City would continue to have significant equity 
impacts that needed to be considered when considering actions of equity.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, stated it was his idea for this item to be placed on the agenda, and he 
recalled at the June 20, 2023 meeting there had been an item in the budget for a consultant for 
DEI.  He thanked City staff and the City Manager’s Office for the presentation.   
 
Tony Gutierrez, Pinole, asked whether people with disabilities were a protected class and whether 
they would be taken into consideration as part of a DEI Initiative, and City Manager Murray 
confirmed that physical ability was one of the protected classes considered for equity.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Murphy looked forward to the results from the ongoing efforts of the DEI Initiative.     
 

31 of 594



 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
July 18, 2023   
Page 27 
 

13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Only open to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6.   
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and 
is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, was disappointed the meeting had started 40 minutes late, which he 
found unprofessional with people waiting for the meeting to reconvene.  He suggested the City 
Manager had done a very good job as City Manager providing items of interest to the City Council 
and the community and he thanked Fire Chief Wynkoop for his service and wished him well on 
his deserved retirement.  He also spoke to the position of Assistant City Manager and having 
looked at other jurisdictions in the Bay Area, the Assistant City Manager was the second in 
command when the City Manager was not present.  He otherwise remained disappointed when 
Anthony Vossbrink called into City Council meetings his comments were not heard and having 
looked at other jurisdictions in West County individuals were allowed to complete their comments.  
He urged the City Council to listen to its constituents.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, commented the telephone number for Zoom was still not displayed 
on the screen for those desiring to call into the meeting remotely, which may discourage public 
participation.  He commented he had been unable to complete his comments on many occasions 
due to the format of the remote feed for Zoom.  He also expressed disappointment the City had 
canceled the Fourth of July fireworks with no information on the City website or signage posted 
in the community in a timely manner to notify the public of the cancelation by the Fire Marshal 
due to fire safety concerns, although the City Council had voted to hold the event.  He pointed out 
the grounds around the Wastewater Treatment Plant were unkempt and the Public Works 
Department should do a better job with needed maintenance, which work should be overseen by 
the City Manager.   
 
Tony Gutierrez, Pinole, again spoke to Item 12D and clarified with the City Manager as part of the 
consideration of a DEI Initiative all forms of disabilities would be a protected class.   
 
14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of August 15, 2023 in 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz.     
 
At 11:28 p.m., Mayor Murphy adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting of 
August 15, 2023 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  

32 of 594



City of Pinole, CA 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date 

Vendor: 4LEOO - 4LEAF, INC. 

J0605-23B 102500 07/14/2023 

J0605-23C 102741 08/11/2023 

J1909-04B 102741 08/11/2023 

J4118A-R 102500 07/14/2023 

J4118C-R 102552 07/21/2023 

Vendor: 2699 -AAA BUSINESS SUPPLIES & INTERIORS 

2255357-0 102501 07/14/2023 
2262308-0 102501 07/14/2023 

2264974-0 102501 07/14/2023 

2269040-0 102501 07/14/2023 

2277878-0 102650 07/28/2023 

2278186-0 102650 07/28/2023 

Vendor: AAA03 - AAA FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES 

12476109 102742 08/11/2023 

Vendor: 2187 - ACTION GLASS, INC. 

1107886 102743 08/11/2023 

Vendor: ADA03 - ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS 

INV399015 102744 08/11/2023 

INV399198 102702 08/04/2023 

INV399203 10.2702 08/04/2023 

Vendor: PR018 - ADT COMMERCIAL 

JULY 2023 102553 07/21/2023 

Vendor: AIR10 - AIRGAS USA, LLC 

5500624723 102651 07/28/2023 

Vendor: 2698 - ALAMEDA ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTORS INC. 

55599077.001 102502 07/14/2023 

Vendor: ALH01 -ALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS 

19593757 070623 102554 07/21/2023 

19593757 080323 102745 08/11/2023 

5025519 070623 102652 07/28/2023 

5025531 070623 102652 07/28/2023 

Vendor: 2063 - ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

2353654 102746 08/11/2023 

8/10/2023 10: 57:11 AM 

9B 
WARRANT LISTING 

By Vendor Name 

Payment Dates 7/14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

212-462-42101 PLAN REVIEW MAY 2023 BP23- 312.89 
0134 

212-462-42101 PLAN REVIEW JUNE 2023 BP23- 2,227.97 
0094 

212-462-42101 PERMIT TECH JUNE 2023 12,835.00 

212-462-42101 PROJECT MANAGER JANUARY 2,320.00 
2023 

212-462-42101 PERMITING PROJECT 16,640.00 
MANAGEMENT MAY 2023 

Vendor 4LEOO - 4LEAF, INC. Total: 34,335.86 

500-641-42201 OFFICE SUPPLIES WPCP 105.60 

500-641-42201 OFFICE SUPPLIES WPCP 84.16 

500-641-42201 COPY PAPER WPCP 213.85 

500-641-42201 CARTRIDGE WPCP 328.77 

S00-641-42201 OFFICE SUPPLIES- WPCP 220.S4 

500-641-42201 OFFICE SUPPLIES- WPCP 79.13 

Vendor 2699 - AAA BUSINESS SUPPLIES & INTERIORS Total: 1,032.05 

209-552-42108 LABOR FOR STEAM GREASE 2,349.80 
EXHAUST CLEANING PSC 

Vendor AAA03 -AAA FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES Total: 2,349.80 

209-558-42108 REPLACE BROKEN REAR 396.33 
WINDOW 

Vendor 2187 -ACTION GLASS, INC. Total: 396.33 

100-221-42514 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES PD 1,209.57 

100-221-42514 UNIFORMS AND PATCHES PD 799.79 

100-221-42514 UNIFORM/ PATCHES PD 1,168.90 

Vendor ADA03 - ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS Total: 3,178.26 

209-553-42108 ALARM SYSTEM TINY TOTS 101.59 

Vendor PR018 - ADT COMMERCIAL Total: 101.59 

100-343-44306 NITROGEN CYLINDER RENTAL- 53.46 
PW 

Vendor AIRlO - AIRGAS USA, LLC Total: 53.46 

500-641-44306 LED LAMP FOR LAB WPCP 586.42 

Vendor 2698 -ALAMEDA ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTORS INC. Total: 586.42 

100-222-42201 WATER FOR PD 302.74 

100-222-42201 WATER FOR PD 278.25 

500-641-42201 DRINKIKNG WATER-WPCP 106.93 

100-343-44306 DRINKING WATER-CORP YARD 216.85 

Vendor ALH01 -ALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS Total: 904.77 

100-116-42101 INSURANCE CONSULTING FEES 2,083.33 

Vendor 2063 -ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. Total: 2,083.33 

Page 1 of 36 

33 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number 

Vendor: 2073 - ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP 

INV49857 102503 

Vendor: 2013 - ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES INC. 

IS6662S5 102747 

IS666255 

IS666255 

102747 

102747 

Vendor: AME41 -AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING 

27046 102748 

27114 102748 

Vendor: AME52 - AMERICAN MESSAGING SERVICE, LLC 

W4102378XH 102703 

Payment Date 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/04/2023 

Vendor: AME47 - AMERINATIONAL COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 

LPM-23-001227 102555 07 /21/2023 

LPM-23-001227 102555 07/21/2023 

LPM-23-001491 102555 07/21/2023 

LPM-23-001491 102555 07/21/2023 

Vendor: MOR17 -ANA AVILA 

07312023 102704 08/04/2023 

Vendor: 2005 -ANIMAL DAMAGE MANAGEMENT, INC 

6911C 102705 08/04/2023 

Vendor: ARAOl -ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 

24988660 102749 08/11/2023 

24988660 102749 08/11/2023 

24988660 102749 08/11/2023 

5172133057 102653 07/28/2023 

5172133057 102653 07/28/2023 

5172133057 102653 07/28/2023 

5172135327 102653 07/28/2023 

5172135327 102653 07/28/2023 

5172135327 102653 07/28/2023 

5172138505 102653 07/28/2023 

5172138505 102653 07/28/2023 

5172138505 102653 07/28/2023 

5172141334 102653 07/28/2023 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) 

500-641-44306 HOSE WPCP 

Vendor 2073 - ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP Total: 

100-116-42101 

100-223-42101 

100-223-42101 

SPANISH TESTING 

SPANISH TESTING 

SPANISH TESTING 

Vendor 2013 -ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES INC. Total: 

100-112-42101 

100-112-42101 

JULY 2023 S-26 EDITING 

JULY 2023 S-26 

FOLIO/INTERNET EDllTNG 

Vendor AME41 - AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING Total: 

525-118-43101 MESSAGING BOARD FOR FIRE 

Vendor AME52 -AMERICAN MESSAGING SERVICE, LLC Total: 

285-464-42101 

750-463-42101 • 

285-464-42101 

750-463-42101 

DEFERRED WITH MONITORING 
MAY 2023 

DEFERRED WITH MONITORING 
MAY 2023 

DEFERRED WITH MONITORING 
JUNE 2023 

DEFERRED WITH MONITORING 
JUNE 2023 

Vendor AME47 - AMERINATIONAL COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. Total: 

525-118-47102 REIMBURSEMENT OFFICE 
PRINTERS 

Vendor MOR17 - ANA AVILA Total: 

100-345-42108 PET CONTROL SERVICES FOR 
FERNANDEZ AND PVR PARK 

Vendor 2005 - ANIMAL DAMAGE MANAGEMENT, INC Total: 

100-465-44410 Shirts for Community 
Development Team 

212-461-44410 Shirts for Community 
Development Team 

212-462-44410 Shirts for Community 
Development Team 

100-342-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES- GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

100-343-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES- GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

500-642-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES- GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

100-342-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 

MAINTENANCE 

100-343-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

500-642-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

100-342-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

100-343-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

500-642-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

100-342-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 
MAINTENANCE 

Amount 

415.71 

415.71 

121.00 

55.00 

66.00 

242.00 

124.15 

10.78 

134.93 

2.30 

2.30 

517.50 

232.50 

517.50 

232.50 

1,500.00 

114.19 

114.19 

250.00 

250.00 

66.73 

225.76 

217.57 

51.88 

264.11 

155.63 

51.75 

263.45 

155.25 

52.52 

267.37 

157.56 

56.20 

Page 2 of 36 

34 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

S172141334 102653 07/28/2023 100-343-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 286.13 
MAINTENANCE 

5172141334 1026S3 07/28/2023 S00-642-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 168.61 
MAINTENANCE 

S172143968 102653 07/28/2023 100-342-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL S2.22 
MAINTENANCE 

S172143968 102653 07/28/2023 100-343-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 26S.83 
MAINTENANCE 

S172143968 1026S3 07/28/2023 500-642-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES - GENERAL 156.64 
MAINTENANCE 

939388000-06302023 1025S6 07/21/2023 209-552-43804 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 169.62 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102556 07/21/2023 209-552-43804 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 219.62 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102556 07/21/2023 209-S52-43804 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 169.60 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102SS6 07/21/2023 209-SS2-43804 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 190.97 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102SS6 07/21/2023 500-641-44410 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 391.24 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102SS6 07/21/2023 S00-641-44410 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 437.63 

PSC JUNE 2023 
939388000-06302023 1025S6 07/21/2023 S00-641~44410 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 391.7S 

PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102SS6 07/21/2023 S00-641-44410 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 437.05 
PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-06302023 102SS6 07/21/2023 500-641-44410 LAUNDRY SERVICES WPCP & 437.0S 

PSC JUNE 2023 

939388000-07312023 1027SO 08/11/2023 209-552-43804 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 239.60 
AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 1027SO 08/11/2023 209-552-43804 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 219.62 
AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 1027SO 08/11/2023 209-SS2-43804 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 181.00 
AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 102750 08/11/2023 209-S52-43804 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 179.62 

AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 1027SO 08/11/2023 S00-641-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 437.05 
AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 102750 08/11/2023 500-641-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 450.39 

AND PSC 

939388000-07312023 102750 08/11/2023 500-641-44410 UNIFORM SERVICES WPCP 437.05 

AND PSC 

Vendor ARAOl - ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES Total: 7,904.07 

Vendor: ARM04 -ARMOR LOCKSMITH SERVICES 

82840 102751 08/11/2023 100-34S-44306 PADLOCK - MASTER 4 PIN 323.45 

RESTRICTED 

82907 102654 07/28/2023 100-222-42108 DUPLICATE KEYS- PD 134.83 

83157 102751 08/11/2023 100-222-42108 KEY DUPLICATES PD 24.88 

8316S 102706 08/04/2023 100-343-42107 TRUCK AUTO DOOR LOCK 80.11 

83211 102751 08/11/2023 100-222-42108 KEY DUPLICATES PD 36.18 

FC 9082 102751 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 FINANCE CHARGE OVERDUE 6.SO 
BALANCE 

Vendor ARM04 - ARMOR LOCKSMITH SERVICES Total: 605.95 

Vendor: ARM09 - ARMOUR PETROLEUM SVC/EQUP 

W0-25126 102504 07/14/2023 100-343-42108 REMOVED AND REPLACED 683.62 

LEAKING VAPOR SWIVEL 

ADAPT 

Vendor ARM09 -ARMOUR PETROLEUM SVC/EQUP Total : 683.62 

Vendor: ABAOl -ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 

AR032533 102707 08/04/2023 100-110-42401 FY23/24 ABAG MEMBERSHIP 6,165.00 

DUES 

Vendor ABAOl -ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS Total : 6,165.00 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 3 of 36 

35 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: ATTOl -AT&T 

000020120495 102708 08/04/2023 525-118-43101 PD PHONE 2,882.15 
000020210297 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 MIS PHONE 924.79 
000020212147 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 PW PHONE 897.09 
000020212148 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 ADMINISTRATION PHONE 3,823.04 
000020212149 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 RECREATION PHONE 1,045.39 
000020212150 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 CDD PHONE 184.30 
000020212152 102557 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 EOCPHONE 202.93 
000020266925 102708 08/04/2023 525-118-43101 PD PHONE 2,877.51 

Vendor ATTOl -AT&T Total: 12,837.20 

Vendor: BAXOO - BADGE FRAME, INC. 

210736 102709 08/04/2023 100-222-42201 SLIDE IN DOOR SIGNS PD 105.00 
210737 102709 08/04/2023 100-222-42201 OFFICER OF THE QUATER 32.00 

PLAQUE PD 

Vendor BAXOO - BADGE FRAME, INC. Total: 137.00 

Vendor: 2715 - BAKER TILLY US, LLP 

BT2485097 102655 07/28/2023 100-115-42101 STRATEGIC FINANCIAL 30,100.00 
PLANNING SUPPORT 2023 

Vendor 2715 - BAKER TILLY US, LLP Total: 30,100.00 

Vendor: BAY34 - BAY AREA NEWS GROUP- EAST BAY 

0001382544 102505 07/14/2023 100-112-42S14 CLASSIFIED ADS WEST COUNTY 67.50 
TIMES 

0001382544 102505 07/14/2023 100-112-42514 CLASSIFIED ADS WEST COUNTY 141.30 
TIMES 

0001385481 102752 08/11/2023 100-112-42514 LEGAL ADS FOR ORDINANCE 162.96 
AND HEARINGS 

0001385481 102752 08/11/2023 100-112-42514 LEGAL ADS FOR ORDINANCE 70.81 
AND HEARINGS 

0001385481 102752 08/11/2023 100-112-42514 LEGAL ADS FOR ORDINANCE 72.00 
AND HEARINGS 

0001385481 102752 08/11/2023 100-112-42514 LEGAL ADS FOR ORDINANCE 147.44 
AND HEARINGS 

Vendor BAY34 - BAY AREA NEWS GROUP- EAST BAY Total: 662.01 

Vendor: BAY29 - BAY POWER LLC 

3490 102558 07/21/2023 500-641-42107 CONSULTING SERIVES VALVE 400.00 
RECESSION WPCP 

Vendor BAY29 - BAY POWER LLC Total: 400.00 

Vendor: BEA03 - BEARING ENGINERING CO. 

5644922 102656 07/28/2023 500-641-44306 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES- 52.55 
WPCP 

Vendor BEA03 - BEARING ENGINERING CO. Total: 52.55 

Vendor: 2027 - BEEHIVE INDUSTRIES, LLC. 

2686 102559 07/21/2023 100-341-42510 BEEHIVE SUBSCRIPTION 8,000.00 
RENEWAL 08/23-07 /24 

2686 102559 07/21/2023 500-642-42510 BEEHIVE SUBSCRIPTION 11,500.00 
RENEWAL 08/23-07 /24 

Vendor.2027 - BEEHIVE INDUSTRIES, LLC. Total: 19,500.00 

Vendor: ESPOl - BELINDA ESPINOSA 

AUGUST 2023 102560 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMBU 361.20 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor ESPOl - BELINDA ESPINOSA Total: 361.20 

Vendor: 2703 - BETHANY SAMPSON 

06202023 102506 07/14/2023 209-552-43807 REFUND FOR SUMMER CRAFT 40.00 
FAIR 

Vendor 2703 - BETHANY SAMPSON Total: 40.00 

Vendor: BIROS - BIRITE FOODSERVICE DISTRIBUTORS 

6551595 102507 07/14/2023 209-552-43807 FUNDRAISING PANCAKE 1,215.38 
BREAKFAST 

6553789 102507 07/14/2023 209-552-43807 DRY GROCERIES -21.30 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 4 of 36 

36 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number 

6554639 102561 

6558864 102561 

6562606 102561 

6563307 102561 

6563843 102561 

6568097 102753 

6570682 102753 

6572232 102753 

6572233 102753 

Vendor: 2711 - BLADES GROUP LLC 

18041918 102657 

18042164 102657 

Vendor: 2701 - BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY 

90252054 102508 

Vendor: BOR02 - BORGES & MAHONEY CO. 

144558 102754 

Vendor: LOWOl - BRIAN LOWRY 

AUGUST 2023 102562 

Vendor: 1654 - BRINK'S INCORPORATED 

12364731 102755 

5905572 102755 

Vendor: CAL04 - CALCON SYSTEMS,INC. 

53757 102509 

53926 102563 

53926 102563 

Payment Date 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

Vendor: CAL97 - CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS COMMISION 

Q2 2023 102658 07 /28/2023 

Q2 2023 102658 07/28/2023 

Q3 202211 102658 07/28/2023 

Q3 202211 102658 07/28/2023 

Vendor: PER03 - CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTM 

100000017215011 102659 07/28/2023 

100000017215021 102659 07/28/2023 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM CREDIT PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM CREDIT PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 

Vendor BIROS - BIRITE FOODSERVICE DISTRIBUTORS Total: 

214-342-42514 

214-342-42514 

325-342-47205 

1 CUBIC YARD ROCK ASPHALT

PW 

1 CUBIC YARD ROCK ASPHALT

STREET MAINTENANCE 

Vendor 2711 - BLADES GROUP llC Total: 

DESIGN REVIEW FOR 

REPLACEMENT OF SPA 

OVERPASS 

Vendor 2701- BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY Total: 

500-641-44303 BUFFER SOLUTUION IOADATE 

CONCENTRATE WPCP 

Vendor BOR02 - BORGES & MAHONEY CO. Total: 

100-117-41101 

100-115-42101 

RETIREE MEDICAL REIMB 

AUGUST 2023 

Vendor LOWOl - BRIAN LOWRY Total: 

TRANSPORTTION AUGUST 

2023 

100-115-42101 TRANSPORTATION JULY 2023 

500-641-44306 

500-641-42107 

500-641-44306 

212-20024 

212-462-34211 

212-20024 

212-462-34211 

Vendor 1654 - BRINK'S INCORPORATED Total : 

MCC SURGE PROTECTION 
PARTS AND LABOR WPCP 

SERVICE CALL ETHERNET 

MEDIA CONVERTER WPCP 

SERVICE CALL ETHERNET 

MEDIA CONVERTER WPCP 

Vendor CAL04 - CALCON SYSTEMS,INC. Total: 

APRIL-JUNE 2023 CBSC 
COLLECTED 

APRIL-JUNE 2023 CBSC 

COLLECTED 

JULY-SEPTEMBER 2022 CBSC 

COLLECTED 

JULY-SEPTEMBER 2022 CBSC 

COLLECTED 

Vendor CAL97 - CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS COMMISION Total: 

100-117-41004 

100-117-41004 

UNFUNDED ACCRUED 

LIABILITY MISC CLASSIC-674 

UNFUNDED ACCRUED 
LIABILITY SAFETY CLASSIC- 675 

Amount 

847.55 

937.72 

-100.00 

-20.92 

1,369.20 

1,175.64 

-33.98 

1,066.97 

60.54 

6,496.80 

1,815.00 

2,420.00 

4,235.00 

316.96 

316.96 

617 .39 

617.39 

30.74 

30.74 

281.14 

4.71 

285.85 

5,750.00 

4,400.00 

3,935.17 

14,085.17 

1,194.20 

-116.72 

49.00 

-4.90 

1,121.58 

114,440.25 

144,002.17 

Page S of 36 

37 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number 

100000017215031 

Payment Number 

102659 

Vendor: CALOl - CAL TEST ANALYTICAL LAB 

709813 102510 

709825 

709994 

710092 

710778 

102510 

102660 

102564 

102756 

Vendor: CCP03 - CCP INDUSTRIES 

I N03326055 102710 

IN03329785 102710 

Vendor: COW01 - COW GOVERNMENT INC. 

KQ22206 102661 

KQ75882 102661 

KR72661 102711 

KR72661 102711 

Vendor: 2410 - CENTRALSQUARE TECHNOLOGIES, LLC. 

383620 102757 

Vendor: CITOS - CITY MECHANICAL, INC 

94513 102511 

94709 102662 

94930 102565 

94931 102565 

Vendor: FAl04 - CITY OF FAIRFIELD 

230709 102566 

Vendor: 2700 - CIVICPLUS, LLC 

265684 102512 

Vendor: 2289 - CLEAN WORLD GREASE TRAP SERVICES 

04175 102758 

Vendor: 2384 - CLEARSOURCE FINANCIAL CONSULTING 

UFC0623-463 102567 

Vendor: 2405 - CLIENTFIRST CONSULTING GROUP, LLC. 

15295 102759 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

Payment Date 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number 

100-231-41004 

Description (Payable) 

UNFUNDED ACCRUED 
LIABILITY FIRE PEPRA- 25716 

Vendor PER03 - CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTM Total: 

500-641-44305 

500-641-44305 

500-641-44305 

500-641-44305 

500-641-44305 

LAB SUPPLIES WPCP 

LAB SUPPLIES WPCP 

ROUTINE MONITORING 
SERVICES- WPCP 

CHEMICALS LAB SUPPLIES 
WPCP 

LAB SUPPLIES WPCP 

Vendor CALOl - CALTEST ANALYTICAL LAB Total : 

100-343-44410 

100-343-44410 

525-118-47102 

525-118-47102 

525-118-47102 

525-118-47102 

POWDER FREE EXAM GLOVES 

GOLIATH SAFETY GLASSES 

Vendor CCP03 - CCP INDUSTRIES Total: 

POLICE IN-CAR MDC 
COMPUTERS 

POLICE IN-CAR MDC 

COMPUTERS 

POLICE IN-CAR MDC 
COMPUTERS 

POLICE IN-CAR MDC 
COMPUTERS 

Vendor CDWOl - CDW GOVERNMENT INC. Total: 

525-118-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
SOFTWARE 

Vendor 2410 - CENTRALSQUARE TECHNOLOGIES, LLC. Total: 

209-553-42108 

100-222-42108 

209-557-42108 

100-222-42108 

100-221-42511 

525-118-42510 

209-552-43810 

HVAC MAINTENANCE TINY 
TOTS 

PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG HVAC 
MAINTENNANCE 

HVAC SERVICE CALL SWIM 
CENTER 

HVAC SERVICE CALL PUBLIC 
SAFETY BLDG. 

Vendor CIT08 - CITY MECHANICAL, INC Total : 

RANGE USE FEE PD 

Vendor FAI04 - CITY OF FAIRFIELD Total: 

AGENDA AND MINUTES 
MANAGEMENT ANNUAL FEE 

Vendor 2700 - CIVICPLUS, LLC Total: 

GREASE TRAP SERVICE PSC 

Vendor 2289 - CLEAN WORLD GREASE TRAP SERVICES Total: 

100-115-42101 COMPREHENSIVE FEE AND 
RATE STUDY 

Vendor 2384 - CLEARSOURCE FINANCIAL CONSULTING Total: 

525-118-42101 PM SERVICES UPGRADE 

Amount 

90.25 

258,532.67 

983.25 

83 .60 

542.45 

342.00 

171.95 

2,123.25 

395.64 

71 .27 

466.91 

1,133.04 

10,197.43 

6,798.31 

2,699.65 

20,828.43 

44,512.00 

44,512.00 

268.76 

1,240.85 

509.29 

1,244.00 

3,262.90 

972.00 

972.00 

19,491.00 

19,491.00 

140.00 

140.00 

7,200.00 

7,200.00 

19,007.00 

PERMIT LICENSING SOFTWARE-----
Vendor 2405 - CLIENTFIRST CONSULTING GROUP, LLC. Total : 19,007.00 

Page 6 of 36 

38 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date 

Vendor: 2717 - CDASTSIDE CONCRETE AND CONSTRUCTION INC. 

655 102760 08/11/2023 

Vendor: 2714 - COLLINS PTA 

07172023 102663 

Vendor: COM20 - COMCAST 

0210511-07162023 102712 

0363450 07012023 102664 

0413784-06182023 102569 

0419492-07022023 102569 

0426539-07102023 102712 

177156786 102568 

Vendor: CON56 - CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTERS 

79702656 102761 

Vendor: CON45 - CONCORD GARDEN EQUIPMENT 

625911 102570 

Vendor: 2626 - CONSOR NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

N202830CA.00-36 102665 

Vendor: CON98 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY LAW & JUSTICE SYS. 

07/28/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/28/2023 

UIS 23-Pin 102713 08/04/2023 

Vendor: CCC13 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

705985 102513 07 /14/2023 

705985 102513 07/14/2023 

Vendor: 1539 - CORDICO PSYCHOLOGICAL CORPORATION 

6794 102571 07/21/2023 

Vendor: COR12 - CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS LLC 

82179221 102572 07/21/2023 

Vendor: 1445 - CORTEZ TIRES AND AUTO REPAIR 

20739 102573 07/21/2023 

20986 102666 07/28/2023 

Vendor: 2220 - C:RESCO EQUIPMENT RENTALS 

5540972-0022 102514 07/14/2023 

5540972-0023 102762 08/11/2023 

8/10/2023 10: 57 : 11 AM 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number 

S00-641-47201 

Description (Payable) 

REMOVE AND REPLACE AIR 
RELIF VALVE WPCP 

Vendor 2717 - COASTSIDE CONCRETE AND CONSTRUCTION INC. Total: 

209-20307 

100-222-43103 

215-341-43101 

525-118-43101 

525-118-43101 

525-118-43101 

525-118-43101 

100-116-42101 

6/9/23 FERNANDEZ PARK BBQ 
AREA DEPOSIT REFUND 

Vendor 2714 - COLLINS PTA Total: 

CABLE PD 

1-80 MOBILITY CORRIDOR 
INTERNET SVCS 

TINY TOTS INTERNET 

INTERNET SWIM CENTER 

CABLE CH 

CABLE FOR PD 

Vendor COMZO - COMCAST Total: 

RANDOM TESTING WPCP 

Vendor CON56 - CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTERS Total: 

100-343-44306 SUPPLIES FOR CY 

Vendor CON4S - CONCORD GARDEN EQUIPMENT Total: 

325-342-47205 R01710 PRELIMINARY DESIGN 
SERVICES 

Vendor 2626 - CONSOR NORTH AMERICA, INC. Total: 

100-222-42201 ACCJIN SHARED COSTS 
FY2022/23 

Vendor CON98 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY LAW & JUSTICE SYS. Total: 

200-342-42101 

310-347-42101 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
MAINTENANCE APRIL 2023 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
MAINTENANCE APRIL 2023 

Vendor CCC13 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT Total: 

100-221-42101 PEPS- SA PD 

Vendor 1S39 - CORDICO PSYCHOLOGICAL CORPORATION Total: 

525-118-42510 CITYWIDE USAGE OF 
REALQUEST SOFTWARE 

Vendor COR12 - CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS LLC Total: 

100-221-42107 

100-221-42107 

NEW TIRE PACKAGE AND 
BRAKES PATROL CAR 

VEHICLE INSPECTION AND 
MAINTENANCE SVC-PD 

Vendor 144S - CORTEZ TIRES AND AUTO REPAIR Total: 

100-343-42513 

100-343-42511 

INSULATED BUCKET TRUCK 
RENTAL CY 

INSULATED BUCKET TRUCK 

Vendor 2220 - CRESCO EQUIPMENT RENTALS Total: 

Amount 

24,000.00 

24,000.00 

400.00 

400.00 

173.13 

250.06 

141.89 

156.89 

31.62 

888.41 

1,642:00 

126.00 

126.00 

572.65 

572.65 

5,765.62 

5,765.62 

4,556.52 

4,5S6.52 

3,447.34 

1,012.32 

4,459.66 

500.00 

soo.oo 

758.41 

7S8.41 

1,767.65 

1,064.54 

2,832.19 

4,425.00 

4,425.00 

8,BS0.00 

Page 7 of 36 

39 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date 

Vendor: 1278 - CRISTINA AHLSTRAND 

07162023 102574 07/21/2023 

Vendor: CSIOl - CSI FORENSIC SUPPLY 

PINOLEPD-0004 102763 08/11/2023 

Vendor: 2080 - CSW-STUBER-STROEH ENGINEERING GROUP INC 

2306138 102575 07 /21/2023 

2306141 102575 

2306142 102575 

2306143 102575 

2306155 102575 

2307012 102667 

Vendor: C0013 - DANA COOK 

AUGUST 2023 102576 

Vendor: HUGOl - DANNY HUGHES 

AUGUST 2023 102577 

Vendor: DEP02 - DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 

Ql 2023 102714 

Q2 2023 102714 

Q4 2022 102714 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

Vendor: DEPOl - DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE/ACCOUNTING OFFICE 

659039 102668 07 /28/2023 

659039 102668 07 /28/2023 

659039 102668 07 /28/2023 

66S757 102668 07 /28/2023 

Vendor: 1443 - DIESEL DIRECT WEST, INC. 

85229205 102515 

85241490 

85267446 

85280809 

85294105 

102578 

102715 

102715 

102764 

Vendor: DIV06 - DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT 

Q2 2023 102669 

Vendor: 2682 - EAN SERVICES, LLC 

33588202 102765 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/28/2023 

08/11/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

209-554-42201 OFFICE SUPPLIES PVC 19.73 

Vendor 1278 - CRISTINA AHLSTRAND Total: 19.73 

100-222-42514 NARK II TEST PD 

Vendor CSI01 - CSI FORENSIC SUPPLY Total: 

106-341-42101 STAFF ENHANCEMENT FOR 
PUBLIC WORKS 

325-342-47205 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN SERVICES 

106-343-47201 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN SERVICES 

500-641-42101 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN SERVICES 

377-342-47205 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN SERVICES 

106-343-47201 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
AND DESIGN SERVICES 

Vendor 2080 - CSW-STUBER-STROEH ENGINEERING GROUP INC Total: 

100-117-41101 

100-117-41101 

212-462'33215 

212-462-33215 

212-462-33215 

RETIREE MEDICAL REIMBU 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor C0013 - DANA COOK Total: 

RETIREE MEDICAL REIMB 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor HUGOl - DANNY HUGHES Total : 

SMIP JAN 1- MARCH 31, 2023 

SMIP FEES APRIL 1 - JUNE 30, 
2023 

SMIP AND SEISMIC HAZARD 

136.18 

136.18 

3,067.00 

912.00 

6,140.00 

714.00 

15,629.50 

2,450.00 

28,912.SO 

343.06 

-343.06 

113.36 

113.36 

662.64 

6,871.15 

430.76 

MAPPING FEES 10/1-12/31/22 - ---
Vendor DEP02 - DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION Total: 

100-116-42101 

100-221-42101 

100-221-42110 

100-116-42101 

.FINGERPRINTING SERVICES- HR 

FINGERPRINTING SERVICES- HR 

FINGERPRINTING SERVICES- HR 

FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 

Vendor DEP01 - DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE/ ACCOUNTING OFFICE Total: 

100-10601 

100-10601 

100-10501 

100-10601 

100-10501 

GASOLINE UNL 

GASOLINE UNL CY 

GASOLINE UNL CY 

GASOLINE UNL CY 

GASOLINE UNL CORP YARD 

Vendor 1443 - DIESEL DIRECT WEST, INC. Total: 

225-000-34223 APRIL-JUNE 2023 DISABILITY 
ACCESS & EDUCATION FEE 

7,964.55 

143.00 

132.00 

49.00 

64.00 

388.00 

2,417.51 

3,480.73 

3,142.88 

2,468.61 

2,307.44 

13,817.17 

93.50 

Vendor DIV06 - DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT Total: 93.60 

100-221-42514 RENT A CAR PD 187.18 

Vendor 2682 - EAN SERVICES, LLC Total: 187.18 

Page 8 of 36 

40 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023. 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: EAS27 ·EAST BAY REGIONAL COMM SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

20230223 102766 08/11/2023 100-221-42101 COMMUNICATION 07/23 - 42,120.00 
6/ 30/24 PD 

Vendor EAS27 - EAST BAY REGIONAL COMM SYSTEM AUTHORITY Total : 42,120.00 

Vendor: EBM01 · EBMUD 

231773-07252023 102716 08/04/2023 100-343-43102 2887 SIMAS AVE IRRIGATION 235.04 
USE ONLY 

232841-07272023 102716 08/04/2023 100-345-43102 3790 PINOLE VALLEY RD- 11,913.69 
IRRIGATION USE ONLY 

388057-06272023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 1960 Sarah Dr--lrrigation Use 260.34 
Only 

435474-06222023 102516 07/14/2023 209-559-43102 2937 Pinole Valley Rd--Tennis 86.16 
Court Restrooms 

464595-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 209-554-43102 635 Tennent Ave--Pinole Youth 36.61 
Center/CTV 

464595-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 505-119-43102 635 Tennent Ave--Pinole Youth 36.61 
Center/CTV 

464596-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-345-43102 2310 Park St--Fernandez Park 4,789.34 
Baseball Field 

465190-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 201-343-43102 813 Fernandez Ave--lrrigation 60.28 
Use Only 

465395-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-345-43102 1095 Nob Hill Ave--Parks & 577.37 
Gardens--Meadow Park 

465422-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 500-641-43102 80 TENNENT AVE--WASTE 1,237.31 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

465553-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 23011/2 San Pablo Ave-- 91.06 
Irrigation Use Only 

465569-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 209-558-43102 601 Tennent Ave--Memorial 104.00 
Hall 

465922-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 636 Tennent Ave--lrrigation 60.28 
Use Only 

465923-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-231-43102 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety 611.74 
Facility/Building 

465924-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-222-43102 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety 1,313.42 
Facility/Building 

465924-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-223-43102 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety 291.87 
Facility/Building 

465924-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-231-43102 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety 1,313.43 
Facility/Building 

466363-06292023 102516 07/14/2023 100-345-43102 1818 Canyon Dr--lrrigation Use 437 .68 
Only 

513648-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 2161 Plum St--Parking Lot 91.06 
Irrigation 

520575-07252023 102716 08/04/2023 100-345-43102 2690 BOX CANYON RD- 173.04 
IRRIGATION USE ONLY 

524589-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-345-43102 592 Marlesta Rd--lrrigation Use 776.22 
Only 

529821-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 209-552-43102 2500 Charles St--Senior Center 970.30 

529852-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 209-552-43102 2500 Charles St--Senior Center 688.04 

532187-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 2601 Charles St--lrrigation Use 60.28 
Only 

540499-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 1230 Pinole Valley Rd-- 60.28 
Irrigation Use Only 

541397-06292023 102516 07/14/2023 100-3;43-43102 1601 Marlesta Rd--lrrigation 60.28 
Use Only 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-110-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 7.65 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-111-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 18.35 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-112-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 16.82 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-115-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 49.86 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-116-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 16.82 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-117-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 134.58 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 239.80 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 200-342-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 42.82 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 9 of 36 

41 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 212-461-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 16.21 
545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 212-462-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 43.13 
545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 285-464-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 12.85 
545474-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 505-119-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 12.85 
554167-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 100-345-43102 1600 Primrose Lane--lrrigation 433.97 

Use Only 
554625-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 209-558-43102 601 Tennent Ave--Memorial 312.96 

Hall 
556324-07272023 102716 08/04/2023 100-345-43102 3790 PINOLE VALLEY ROAD 6,044.22 

IRRIGATION USE ONLY 
565167-06282023 102516 07/14/2023 201-343-43102 2100 San Pablo Ave--Offices-- 338.49 

Faria House 
565169-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 201-343-43102 2100 San Pablo Ave--Offices-- 109.74 

Faria House 
570108-07032023 102516 07/14/2023 310-347-43102 1303 Pinole Valley Rd-- 364.37 

Irrigation Use Only 
61013-06302023 102579 07/21/2023 201-343-43102 2100 SAN PABLO AVE- 94.14 

IRRIGATION USE ONLY 
610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-110-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 3.46 
610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-111-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 8.34 
610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-112-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 7.65 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-115-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 22.66 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-116-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices-City Hall 7.65 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-117-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 61.17 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 100-343-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 108.99 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 200-342-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 19.46 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 212-461-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 7.37 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 212-462-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 19.60 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 285-464-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 5.84 

610544461-06302023 102516 07/14/2023 505-119-43102 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall 5.84 

Vendor EBM01- EBMUD Total: 34,923.39 

Vendor: ECOOS - ECOLAB 

6338351350 102767 08/11/2023 209-552-42108 SOAP SUPPLIES PSC 991.48 

Vendor ECOOS - ECOLAB Total: 991.48 

Vendor: 2380 - ELIZABETH A. LYNN 

JUNE 2023 102580 07/21/2023 209-552-43802 POSTURE CLASSES PSC JUNE 48.30 
2023 

Vendor 2380 - ELIZABETH A. LYNN Total: 48.30 

Vendor: FEDOl - FEDEX 

8-157-18380 102581 07/21/2023 100-222-42201 PACKAGE BEING SENT FROM 12.77 
EVIDENCE PD 

Vendor FEDOl - FE DEX Total: 12.77 

Vendor: 1612 - FIRST VANGUARD RENTALS & SALES 

1-5072.21 102582 07/21/2023 200-342-47205 MULTIQUIP 525 GAL WATER 13,048.07 
TRAILER 

1-507235 102582 07/21/2023 200-342-47205 HANDIBEAD BEAD DISPENSER 539.00 

1-507640 102768 08/11/2023 209-551-42515 LIGHT TOWERS 1,378.41 

Vendor 1612 - FIRST VANGUARD RENTALS & SALES Total: 14,965.48 

Vendor: FIS01 - FISHER SCIENTIFIC 

4162281 102670 07/28/2023 500-641-44303 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 96.16 
PARTS-WPCP 

4335821 102670 07/28/2023 500-641-44305 LAB SUPPLIES- WPCP 53.42 

4370449 102670 07/28/2023 500-641-44305 LAB SUPPLIES-WPCP 126.19 

4405507 102670 07/28/2023 500-641-44305 LAB SUPPLIES-WPCP 202.90 

4714213 102769 08/11/2023 500-641-44303 ACETATE BUFF WPCP 254.62 

Vendor FISOl - FISHER SCIENTIFIC Total: 733.29 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 10 of 36 

42 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: FOR02 - FORENSIC SERVICES DIVISION 

PINPD-2306 102671 07/28/2023 100-222-42101 JUNE 2023 FORENSIC 1,260.00 
SERVICES-PD 

Vendor FOR02 - FORENSIC SERVICES DIVISION Total: 1,260.00 

Vendor: GAT07 - GATEWAY PINOLE VISTA, LLC 

AUGUST 2023 102583 07/21/2023 201-343-42513 1340 FITZGERALD DRIVE LEASE 100.00 
PAYMENT AUGUST 2023 

Vendor GAT07 - GATEWAY PINOLE VISTA, LLC Total: 100.00 

Vendor: 2457 - GEOLINKS 

BD0150876 102584 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 CLEARFIBER DIA 499.00 
BD0157431 102770 08/11/2023 525-118-43101 CLEAR FIBER DIA 25 499.00 

Vendor 2457 - GEOLINKS Total: 998.00 

Vendor: 2349 - GHD, INC. 

380-0033470-2 102672 07/28/2023 100-342-42101 PROFESSIONAL AND 27,335 .50 
TECHNICAL PLANNING FO ... 

380-0035339-3 102585 07/21/2023 100-342-42101 PROFESSIONAL AND 19,592.50 
TECHNICAL PLANNING FO ... 

Vendor 2349 - GHD, INC. Total : 46,928.00 

Vendor: GL008 - GLOBALSTAR 

000000052475661 102586 07/21/2023 525-118-43101 TELECOMMUNICATION 130.47 
PROGRAM 

000000054068292 102717 08/04/2023 525-118-43101 CELLULAR CHARGES 131.26 

Vendor GL008 - GLOBALSTAR Total: 261.73 

Vendor: 1153 - GOVERNMENTJOBS.COM, INC 

INV-36761 102518 07/14/2023 100-116-42101 SUBSCRIPTION FOR 120523- 6,271.41 
120424 

Vendor 1153 - GOVERNMENTJOBS.COM, INC Total: 6,271.41 

Vendor: GRA03 - GRAINGER 

9746593855 102519 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 COUPLING /UNION PARTS 194.00 
WPCP 

Vendor GRA03 - GRAINGER Total : 194.00 

Vendor: 1112 - GRAY-BOWEN-scon 

21961 102673 07/28/2023 325-342-47205 PM SERVICES: DESIGN PHASE 4,995.75 
OF SPA BRIDGE REPLACMNT 

Vendor 1112 - GRAY-BOWEN-SCOTT Total: 4,995.75 

Vendor: 2371 - GREEN HALO SYSTEMS INC 

4291 102520 07/14/2023 212-462-42106 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 175.00 

4348 102587 07/21/2023 212-462-42105 HOST AND ACCESS JULY 2023 175.00 

Vendor 2371 - GREEN HALO SYSTEMS INC Total : 350.00 

Vendor: 2244 - GYM DOCTORS 

00144654 102588 07/21/2023 100-221-42304 SEMI-ANNUAL PREVENTIVE 289.75 
MAINTENANCE 

Vendor 2244 - GYM DOCTORS Total: 289.75 

Vendor: HAC01 - HACH COMPANY 

13646182 102589 07/21/2023 500-641-44305 CHEMICALS LAB SUPPLIES 997.48 
WPCP 

13657913 102771 08/11/2023 500-641-44306 REACTOR ADAPTER WPCP 68.46 

13679838 102771 08/11/2023 500-641-44305 SAMPLE CELL WPCP 282.06 

Vendor HAC01 - HACH COMPANY Total: 1,348.00 

Vendor: HDL01 - HDL COREN AND CONE 

SIN030231 102718 08/04/2023 100-115-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TAX 2,125.00 
JULY - SEPT. 2023 

Vendor HDLOl - HDL COREN AND CONE Total: 2,125.00 

Vendor: HEA01- HEALTH CARE DENTAL TRUST 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-110-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 287.72 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-111-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 364.69 
INSURANCE PMT 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 11 of 36 

43 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7/14/2023 • 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-112-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 383.55 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-113-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 108.99 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-115-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 364.69 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-116-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 306.58 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-221-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 1,774.37 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-221-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 108.99 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102574 07/28/2023 100-222-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 535.19 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102574 07/28/2023 100-222-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 50.88 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-223-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 1,304.82 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-341-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 395.71 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-343-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 955.22 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 100-465-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 127.85 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 105-221-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 434.43 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102574 07/28/2023 105-231-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 50.88 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 106-222-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 127.85 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335354 102674 07/28/2023 105-231-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 108.99 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335354 102674 07/28/2023 209-551-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 255.70 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 209-552-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 91.58 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 209-554-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 86.66 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 209-554-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 115.07 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 212-461-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 255.70 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 212-462-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 287.72 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 500-641-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 1,030.26 
INSURANCE PMT 

335351/335364 102674 07/28/2023 500-642-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 229.51 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102674 07/28/2023 505-119-41002 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 255.70 
INSURANCE PMT 

335361/335364 102574 07/28/2023 998-20105 AUGUST 2023 DENTAL 361.56 
INSURANCE PMT 

Vendor HEAOl ·HEALTH CARE DENTAL TRUST Total: 10,773.96 

Vendor: 1098 ·HILLYARD, INC 

505193621 102772 08/11/2023 209-552-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES PSC 473.93 

Vendor 1098 - HILLYARD, INC Total: 473.93 

Vendor: HOMOl ·HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-222-42108 CITYWIDE SERVICES 11.49 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-222-42108 CITYWIDE SERVICES 25.79 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-222-42108 CITYWIDE SERVICES 100.02 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 20.44 

JULY2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44305 CITYWIDE SERVICES 50.34 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 39.13 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 12 of 36 

44 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 54.85 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 33.99 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 89.23 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 10.05 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 149.49 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 13.63 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 3.97 
JULY2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 14.15 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 47.04 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 100-345-44306 CITYWIDE SERVICES 12.57 
JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 207-344-42514 CITYWIDE SERVICES 31.43 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 500-642-42514 CITYWIDE SERVICES 114.40 

JULY 2023 102773 08/11/2023 500-642-42514 CITYWIDE SERVICES 28.80 

JULY 2023-2 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES JUNE 226.96 
2023 FY22-23 

JULY 2023-2 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES JUNE 135.47 
2023 FY22-23 

JULY 2023-2 102773 08/11/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES JUNE 59.41 
2023 FY22-23 

JULY 2023-2 102773 08/11/2023 100-345-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES JUNE 19.11 
2023 FY22-23 

JUNE 2023 102S21 07/14/2023 100-222-42108 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 110.BO 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 18.43 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 43.66 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 67.69 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 32.88 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 124.48 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 132.58 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 31.66 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 157.57 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 222.57 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 36.03 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 17.59 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 42.77 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 5.34 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 100-345-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 27.16 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 209-554-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 23.89 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 500-641-42108 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 48.05 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 31.86 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 21.88 

JUNE 2023 102521 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 12.63 

Vendor HOM01 - HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE Total: 2,501.28 

Vendor; HOR05 - HORIZON 

1R319862 102522 07/14/2023 100-345-44306 NEW VALVE TO REPLACE AT 168.10 

FERNANDEZ PARK 

Vendor HOR05 - HORIZON Total: 168.10 

Vendor: 1683 - HYOROSCIENCE ENGINEERS, INC. 

459002005 102590 07/21/2023 503-643-42101 REDLINE EDITS TO AS-BUILTS s,sso.oo 
Vendor 1683 - HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERS, INC. Total: 5,850.00 

Vendor: 1110 - HYONG-HAE CONNIE KIM 

07212023 102719 08/04/2023 212-462-42302 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 20.59 

CONFIRE MTG 022323 

Vendor 1110 - HYONG-HAE CONNIE KIM Total : 20.59 

Vendor: 10~04 - IDEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC. 

3132851510 102591 07/21/2023 500-641-44305 WENT200 ENTEROLERT 200PK 25.47 

WPCP 

Vendor IDE04 - IOEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC. Total: 25.47 

Vendor: IED02 - IEDA, INC. 

24221 102675 07/28/2023 100-116-42101 JULY LABOR RELATIONS 2,521.66 

CONSULTING- HR 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 13 of 36 

45 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number 

24257 

Payment Number 

102774 

Vendor: IMA01 - IMAGE SALES, INC. 

0075144-IN 102592 

Payment Date 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

Vendor: INN04 - INNOVATIVE COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY 

604200 102593 07 /21/2023 

Vendor: 2713 - ISAAC HELSABO 

07172023 102676 

Vendor: CUL03 - ISING'S CULLIGAN-LIVERMORE 

379X09263109 102523 

379X09391504 102775 

Vendor: M0014 - ISSAC MOORE 

JUNE 2023 102594 

Vendor: JWEOl - J, W. ENTERPRISES - NORTH 

251712 102776 

Vendor: COR15 - JACQUELINE L CORL-SEIDEL 

JUNE 2023 102595 

Vendor: MEL05 - JAMES MEL VIN 

AUGUST 2023 102596 

Vendor: 1611 - JANICE M. BYER 

JUNE 2023 102597 

Vendor: JAN92 -JAN-PRO OF THE GREATER BAY AREA 

18743 102524 

18868 102777 

18869 102777 

18870 102777 

18871 102777 

19216 102777 

Vendor: 2248 - JOANNA L. NUNES 

07212023 102720 

Vendor: 1630 -JOHN AND CLAIRE INVESTIGATIONS 

1468 102598 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number 

100-116-42101 

100-222-42201 

525-118-42107 

Description (Payable) 

LABOR RELATIONS FEES 

AUGUST 2023 

Vendor IED02 - IEDA, INC. Total: 

BADGES FRO PD 

Vendor IMA01 - IMAGE SALES, INC. Total: 

PD LABOR FOR SERVICE AUTO 
ATENDANT CPU 

Vendor INN04 - INNOVATIVE COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY Total: 

209-20307 

500-541-44305 

500-641-44305 

5/3/23 FERNANDEZ BBQ AREA 
DEPOSIT REFUND 

Vendor 2713 - ISAAC HELSABO Total : 

DEIONIZATION SERVICE WPCP 

CATALYTIC CARBON 

Amount 

2,521.66 

5,043.32 

47.63 

47.63 

900.00 

900.00 

200.00 

200.00 

548.00 

554.00 

DEIONIZATION SERVICE WPCP -----
Vendor CUL03 - ISING'S CULLIGAN-LIVERMORE Total: 1,102.00 

209-552-43802 EXERCISE CLASS PSC JUNE 2023 ___ -'4.::.0S::..:·c::.OO=-

Vendor M0014 - ISSAC MOORE Total: 405.00 

100-551-42511 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 

Vendor JWE01 - J. W. ENTERPRISES - NORTH Total: 

209-552-43802 BALANCE FLOOR YOGA PSC 

JUNE 2023 

Vendor COR15 - JACQUELINE L CORL-SEIDEL Total: 

100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMB 

AUGUST 2023 

Vendor MELDS - JAMES MELVIN Total : 

209-552-43802 EXERCISE CLASSES JUNE 2023 

Vendor 1611 - JANICE M. BYER Total: 

209-552-42108 JULY DAY PROTER SERVICE PSC 

209-554-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES AUGUST 

2023 PVC 

209-552-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICE AUGUST 

2023 PSC 

209-552-43810 JANITORIAL SERVICES AUGUST 

2023 PSC KITCHEN 

209-553-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES AUGUST 

2023 TINY TOTS 

209-552-42108 AUGUST DAY PORTER SERVICE 

PSC 

Vendor JAN92 - JAN-PRO OF THE GREATER BAY AREA Total: 

212-462-42302 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 

CONFIRE MTG 02232023 

Vendor 2248 -JOANNA L. NUNES Total : 

100-222-42101 OFFICER BACKGROUND PD 

Vendor 1630 - JOHN AND CLAIRE INVESTIGATIONS Total: 

142.77 

142.77 

397.60 

397.60 

164.90 

164.90 

720.00 

720.00 

2,257.00 

469.47 

434.45 

417.15 

501.40 

2,257.00 

6,336.47 

20.59 

20.59 

1,987.00 

1,987.00 

Page 14 of 36 

46 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: HAR29 - JOHN HARDESTER 

AUGUST 2023 102599 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMB 243.00 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor HAR29 - JOHN HARDESTER Total: 243.00 

Vendor: 2719 - JOSE REVES 

07312023 102778 08/11/2023 100-221-42302 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 51.09 
FOR POLICE ACADEMY 

Vendor 2719 - JOSE REVES Total: 51.09 

Vendor: 1641 - JOSUE ARDON 

071523 102677 07/28/2023 100-222-42514 FILMING, EDITING DEPOSIT- 390.00 
NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 

Vendor 1641 - JOSUE ARDON Total: 390.00 

Vendor: MISOl - JULIAN MISRA 

AUGUST 2023 102600 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMB 479.30 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor MISOl - JULIAN MISRA Total: 479.30 

Vendor: ROG06 - JUSTIN ROGERS 

07312023 102779 08/11/2023 100-221-42303 ICI CORE CLASS PD 7/17-7/28 180.00 

Vendor ROG06 - JUSTIN ROGERS Total: 180.00 

Vendor: KAI02 - KAISER PERMANETE 

320903364865-07092023 102780 08/11/2023 100-221-42101 APPLICANT PROCESSING 1,568.00 
RECRUITING 

Vendor KAl02 - KAISER PERMANETE Total : 1,568.00 

Vendor: MCP02 - KEITH McPHERSON 

AUGUST 2023 102601 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICAL REIMB 147.36 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor MCP02 - KEITH McPHERSON Total: 147.36 

Vendor: KEL09 - KELLER CANYON LANDFILL 

4212-000032220 102525 07/14/2023 500-641-44302 SLUDGE REMOVAL WPCP 5,306.79 

4212-000032256 102678 07/28/2023 500-641-44302 SLUDGE REMOVAL- WPCP 7,606.49 

4212-000032295 102781 08/11/2023 500-641-44302 SLUDGE REMOVAL WPCP 6,497.02 

Vendor KEL09 - KELLER CANYON LANDFILL Total : 19,410.30 

Vendor: TAM04 - KEN TAMPLEN 

107580 102526 07/14/2023 100-231-42512 WEED ABEMENT 25,483.00 

Vendor TAM04 - KEN TAMPLEN Total: 25,483.00 

Vendor: COP02 - KENETH COPPO 

AUGUST 2023 102602 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICAL REIMBUR 1,045.20 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor COP02 - KENETH COPPO Total : 1,045.20 

Vendor: KEN09 - KENNEDY AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

22-242 102603 07/21/2023 100-341-42101 2151 APPIAN WAY SWCP 2,679.50 
REVIEWS 

23-074 102527 07/14/2023 100-341-42101 PLAN CHECKING BP22-0304 524.25 

23-075 102527 07/14/2023 100-341-42101 LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT 349.50 

23-076 102527 07/14/2023 207-344-42514 STORM WATER SUPPORT 43 .75 

23-112 102679 07/28/2023 207-344-42101 STORMWATER SUPPORT 740.03 
FY22/23 

23-114 102603 07/21/2023 100-341-42101 2548 ALAMO MAP 932.00 
PROCESSING PARCEL REVIEW 

23-115 102603 07/21/2023 100-341-42101 2801 PVR GPS AND IP REVIEW 699.00 

Vendor KEN09 - KENNEDY AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 5,968.03 

Vendor: 2720 - KEVIN PRIDE 

07312023 102782 08/11/2023 100-221-42302 REIMBURSEMENT FOR 166.63 
MILEAGE TO POLICE ACADEMY 

Vendor 2720 - KEVIN PRIDE Total: 166.63 

Vendor: KN003 - KNORR SYSTEMS,INC. 

205401 102528 07/14/2023 209-557-42108 MINI BULK SODIUM GAL WPCP 1,903.09 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 15 of 36 

47 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 • 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

205409 102604 07/21/2023 209-557-42108 MURIATIC ACID MINI BULK 85 1.18 

Vendor KN003 ·KNORR SYSTEMS,INC. Total: 2,754.27 

Vendor: 2181 ·KOFF & ASSOCIATES INC. 

015749 102680 07/28/2023 100-116-42101 2023 TOTAL COMPENSATION 24,850.00 
STUDY 

Vendor 2181 ·KOFF & ASSOCIATES INC. Total : 24,850.00 

Vendor: 1424 • KRISTINA SANTOYO 

05312023 102783 08/11/2023 209-552-43809 PETIY CASH REIMBURSEMENT 180.00 
05/23-06/30/23 

05312023 102783 08/11/2023 209-552-43809 PETIY CASH REIMBURSEMENT 174.00 
05/23-06/30/23 

Vendor 1424 ·KRISTINA SANTOYO Total: 354.00 

Vendor: KU BOO - KUBWATER RESOURCES, INC. 

11896 102784 08/11/2023 500-641-44303 ZETAG 2293LB BAGS WPCP 6,341.75 
11915 102784 08/11/2023 500-641-44303 ZETAG 2293LB BAGS WPCP 6 341.75 

Vendor KU BOO· KUBWATER RESOURCES, INC. Total: 12,683.50 

Vendor: 2706 • LABCONCO CORPORATION 

772797 102605 07/21/2023 500-641-44305 DISPENSE SOAP WPCP 68.89 

Vendor 2706 • LABCONCO CORPORATION Total : 68.89 

Vendor: LAN15 ·LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 

11044029 102606 07/21/2023 100-223-42101 OVER THE PHONE 118.44 
TRANSLATION PD 

11073875 102785 08/11/2023 100-223-42101 OVER THE PHONE 142.88 
INTERPRETATION PD 

Vendor LAN15 ·LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES Total: 261.32 

Vendor: LAR04 - LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES 

00243.11-24 102681 07/28/2023 500-641-42101 ONGOING NPDES PERMIT 665.00 
ASSISTANCE FOR WPCP 

Vendor LAR04 ·LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES Total: 665.00 

Vendor: 1606 • LEFTA SYSTEMS 

INV-001951 102786 08/11/2023 100-221-42301 ANNUAL USER CONFERENC
0

E 398.00 

Vendor 1606 - LEFTA SYSTEMS Total: 398.00 

Vendor: 1847 ·LILLY WHALEN 

07312023 102787 08/11/2023 212-461-42302 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 333.89 
MEALS AND TRAVEL 

07312023 102787 08/11/2023 212-461-42302 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 185.36 
MEALS AND TRAVEL 

07312023 102787 08/11/2023 212-461-42303 REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE 122.00 
MEALS AND TRAVEL 

Vendor 1847 ·LILLY WHALEN Total : 641.25 

Vendor: CUR03 - LN CURTIS & SONS 

INV723848 102682 07/28/2023 100-221-44410 SAFETY EQUIPMENT· PD 5,656.40 

INV728233 102721 08/04/2023 100-221-44410 ASP RED TRAINING GUN PD 211.86 

INV730540 102788 08/11/2023 206-227-47105 POLICE SUPPLIES FOR SAFETY 3,778.69 

INV732583 102788 08/11/2023 206-227-47105 MKW LESS LETHAL LAUNCHER 5,575.30 
PD 

Vendor CUR03 • LN CURTIS & SONS Total: 15,222.25 

Vendor: 2476 • LORDS ELECTRIC INC. 

2 102789 08/11/2023 106-343-47201 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGIN 14,903.50 
STATIONS 

Vendor 2476 - LORDS ELECTRIC INC. Total : 14,903.50 

Vendor: MAN01 - MANNA FOODS, INC. 

997166 102607 07/21/2023 209-552-43804 FOOD PROGRAM PSC 241.20 

997167 102790 08/11/2023 209-552-43804 LUNCH PROGRAM PSC 154.41 

Vendor MAN01 ·MANNA FOODS, INC. Total: 395.61 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 16 of 36 

48 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date 

Vendor: 2689 - MARGARETE. JENSEN PRADO 

JUNE 2023 102608 07/21/2023 

Vendor: 2718 - MARIA ESCOBAR 

07312023 102791 08/11/2023 

Vendor: 2391 - MARIA FIGUEROA 

07192023 102683 07/28/2023 

07192023 102683 07/28/2023 

07192023 102683 07/28/2023 

07192023 102683 07/28/2023 

Vendor: WEL37 - MARINA WELCHES 

JUNE 2023 102684 07/28/2023 

MAY 2023 102684 07/28/2023 

Vendor: 2427 - MARK GRAHAM 

23-43 102609 07/21/2023 

Vendor: DRA01 - MARY DRAZBA 

AUGUST 2023 102610 07/21/2023 

Vendor: ROB21 - MARY ROBERTS 

AUGUST 2023 102611 07/21/2023 

Vendor: 1057 - MAUREEN TOMS 

07122023 102612 07/21/2023 

Vendor: MCM05 - MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 

10145291 102529 07/14/2023 

99837009 102685 07/28/2023 

Vendor: MEVOl - MEYERS NAVE, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

2052015 102792 08/11/2023 

205214 102792 08/11/2023 

205216 102792 08/11/2023 

205217 102792 08/11/2023 

205218 102792 08/11/2023 

205219 102792 08/11/2023 

205220 102792 08/11/2023 

205221 102792 08/11/2023 

205222 102792 08/11/2023 

205223 102792 08/11/2023 

205224 102792 08/11/2023 

8/10/2023 10 :57:11 AM 

Account Number 

209-552-43802 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Description (Payable) 

COLLAGE WORKSHOPS PSC 
JUNE 2023 

Amount 

129.50 

Vendor 2689 - MARGARETE. JENSEN PRADO Total: 129.50 

100-221-42302 

100-221-42107 

100-221-42303 

100-221,42514 

100-221-44301 

209-20015 

209-20015 

100-221-42101 

100-117-41101 

100-117-41101 

100-110-42302 

500-641-44306 

500-641-44306 

REIMBURSEMENT MILEAGE TO 
POLICE ACADEMY 

82.53 

Vendor 2718 - MARIA ESCOBAR Total : 82.53 

PETIY CASH REIMBURSEMENT
PD 

PEID CASH REIMBURSEMENT
PD 

PETIY CASH REIMBURSEMENT
PD 

PETIY CASH REIMBURSEMENT
PD 

Vendor 2391- MARIA FIGUEROA Total: 

JUNE 2023 GIFT SHOP SALES 
COMMISSION 

MAY 2023 GIFT SHOP SALES 
COMMISSION 

23.04 

72.39 

52.68 

60.01 

208.12 

10.50 

2.10 

Vendor WEL37 - MARINA WELCHES Total: 12.60 

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION PD ----=3"'5::..0·:.:;o.:;..o 
Vendor 2427 - MARK GRAHAM Total: 350.00 

RETIREE MEDICAL REIMBU 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor DRAOl - MARY DRAZBA Total: 

RETIREE MEDICARE REIMBU 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor ROB21 - MARY ROBERTS Total: 

REIMBURSEMENT CALCITIES 
REVENUES AND TAXATION 

Vendor 1057 - MAUREEN TOMS Total: 

ALUMINUM CAM GROOVE 
HOSE WPCP 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 
SUPPLIES- WPCP 

543.54 

543.54 

361.30 

361.30 

306.96 

306.96 

212.12 

291.56 

Vendor MCM05 - MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. Total: 503.68 

100-20011 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST 

100-20011 CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

100-20011 RISK MANAGEMENT 

100-20011 PINOLE SHORES II CR 

100-20011 2151 APPIAN WAY CR 

100-20011 600 ROBLE AVE/ 1230 SPA 

100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES FINANCE 

100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES PW 

100-20011 MVP CONSTUCTION LLC 
DISPUTE 

100-20011 CALIFORNIA OFR 
HOMEOWNERSHIP, INC VS 

100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES CITY CLERK 

899.00 

2,376.00 

124.00 

2,376.00 

453.00 

676.00 

915.00 

3,738.56 

27,704.50 

1,013.00 

341.00 

Page 17 of 36 

49 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

205225 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES CITY 294.00 
ATTORNEY 

205226 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES POLICE 1,218.00 
205227 102792 08/11/2023 100-116-42102 GENRAL SERVICES LABOR AND 1,372.00 

EMPLOYMENT 
205228 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 GENRAL SERVICES CODE 93.00 

ENFORCEMENT 
205229 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 GENRAL SERVICES 5,000.00 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
205230 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 GENERAL SERVICES 320.00 

RECREATIONAL 
205231 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 SUCCESSOR AGENCY 310.50 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
205232 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 HOUSING SUCCESSOR RDA 15,403.50 

AFFORDABLE 
205233 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 SUCCESSOR AGENCY RDA 132.00 

SURPLUS 
205785 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 CITY ATIORNEY SERVICES 18,431.18 
205793 102792 08/11/2023 100-20011 1S80 PINOLE VALLEY ROAD LLC 695.00 

Vendor MEYOl - MEYERS NAVE, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION Total: 83,885.24 

Vendor: 1311 - M-GROUP 

2003683 102530 07/14/2023 212-20346 830-848 SPA CEQA REVIEW 14,223.00 
2003838 102530 07/14/2023 212-20346 830-848 SPA CEQA REVIEW S,214.00 

Vendor 1311 - M-GROUP Total: 19,437.00 

Vendor: 1139 - MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

1186592 102794 08/11/2023 212-461-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAY 9,223.00 
2023 -JUNE 2023 

Vendor 1139 - MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. Total: 9,223.00 

Vendor: 1115 - MICHELLE FITZER 

AUGUST 2023 102613 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMB 361.20 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor 1115 - MICHELLE FITZER Total: 361.20 

Vendor: ROG02 - MILES ROGERS 

07212023 102686 07/28/2023 100-20402 RE-ISSUE STALE DATED CHECK 204.34 
94105 

Vendor ROG02 - MILES ROGERS Total: 204.34 

Vendor: 1890 - MM COMMUNICATIONS INC 

INV-1586 102614 07/21/2023 100-222-42514 GYM EQUPMENT PD 3,300.00 

Vendor 1890 - MM COMMUNICATIONS INC Total: 3,300.00 

Vendor: MUNlO - MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INC. 

IN1830733 102722 08/04/2023 100-231-42201 FIRE DEX MES GLOVE 646.99 

IN1831S37 102722 08/04/2023 100-231-42104 SUPPLIES FOR FIRE DPT. 3,222.15 
IN1834313 102722 08/04/2023 100-231-42104 FIRE UNIFORM 8,926.14 

Vendor MUNlO - MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INC. Total : 12,795.28 

Vendor: MUN07 - MUNICIPAL POOLING AUTH. 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-110-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 2,284.24 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-110-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 2,885.09 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-111-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 33,415.34 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102587 07/28/2023 100-111-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 42,220.73 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102587 07/28/2023 100-112-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 23,892.64 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-112-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 30,187.77 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102587 07/28/2023 100-113-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 203.04 
PREMIUMS 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 18 of 36 

50 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-113-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 256.54 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-115-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 28,600.68 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-115-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 36,136.27 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-116-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 27,729.62 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-116-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 35,035.70 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-221-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 200,521.50 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-221-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 253,354.00 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-222-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 28,386.81 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-222-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 35,866.04 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-223-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 72,619.28 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-223-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 91,752.71 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-341-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 50,452.79 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-341-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 63,745.88 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-342-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 6,218.62 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-342-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 7,857 .08 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-343-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 46,043.22 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-343-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 58,174.50 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-465-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 5,898.42 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 100-465-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 7,452.51 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 105-221-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 51,288.80 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 105-221-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 64,802.32 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 106-222-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 5,500.52 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 106-222-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 6,949.78 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 205-227-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 545.51 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 205-227-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 689.24 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-551-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 24,839.90 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-551-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 31,384.61 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-552-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 13,370.09 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-552-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 16,892.79 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-553-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 6,837.36 
PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-553-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 8,638.84 

PREMIUMS 

INV003255 102687 07/28/2023 209-554-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 12,460.80 

PREMIUMS 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 19 of 36 

51 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number 

INV003255 102687 

INV00325!? 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003255 102687 

INV003307 102615 

INV003349 102795 

Vendor: 2466 - MUNICIPAL RESOURCES GROUP, LLC. 

03-23-542 102796 

03-23-669 102723 

Vendor: MYEOl - MYERS STEVENS & TOOHEY CO 

1403647 102797 

1403647 

1403647 

102797 

102797 

Vendor: 2287 - NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE 

Payment Oate 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

07052023 102798 08/11/2023 

Vendor: 2716 - NATIONAL RECREATION AND PARK ASSOCIATION 

3928250718-MS23 102688 07 /28/2023 

3928250718-MS23 102688 

3928250718-MS23 102688 

Vendor: 2426 - NEW FRONTIER TENNIS 

07112023 102616 

Vendor: 2712 - NORTHERN LIGHTS POWER & ENERGY, INC. 

1082740 102724 

Vendor: 2448 - NSI LAB SOLUTIONS, LLC. 

421903 102689 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/28/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) 

209-554-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

212-461-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

212-461-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

212-462-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

212-462-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

500-641-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

500-641-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

500-642-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

500-642-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 

PREMIUMS 
505-119-41009 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 

PREMIUMS 

505-119-46201 FY2023-24 INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS 

100-112-46201 UNMET LIABILITY DEDUCTIBLE 
JUNE 2023 

100-116-42101 DOT DRUG & ALCOHOL 
TESTING APRIL - JUNE 2023 

Vendor MUN07 - MUNICIPAL POOLING AUTH. Total: 

100-111-42101 

100-111-42101 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES MAY 2023 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES JUNE 2023 

Vendor 2466 - MUNICIPAL RESOURCES GROUP, LLC. Total: 

100-221-41008 

100-223-41008 

105-221-41008 

POLICE LTD 

POUCE LTD 

POLICE LTD 

Vendor MYEOl - MYERS STEVENS & TOOHEY CO Total: 

100-221-42401 12 MONTHS CHIEF OF POLICE 
MAGAZINE 

Vendor 2287 - NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE Total: 

209-551-42101 

209-552-42101 

209-554-42301 

FEES FOR 3 CPRP 
CERTIFICATIONS-RECREATION 

FEES FOR 3 CPRP 
CERTI FICA TIONS-RECREA TION 

FEES FOR 3 CPRP 
CERTIFICATIONS-RECREATION 

Vendor 2716 - NATIONAL RECREATION AND PARK ASSOCIATION Total: 

209-554-42101 

500-641-44306 

JR. TENNIS CAMP JUNE 26-30, 
2023 

Vendor 2426 - NEW FRONTIER TENNIS Total: 

COGER PARTS WPCP 

Vendor 2712 - NORTHERN LIGHTS POWER & ENERGY, INC. Total: 

500-641-44305 LAB TESTING-WPCP 

Amount 

15,743.91 

26,279.69 

33,203.75 

34,242.12 

43,264.08 

86,183.29 

108,890.49 

17,294.05 

21,850.61 

14,453.54 

18,261.89 

331.00 

161.01 

1,8S5,553.01 

10,971.45 

9,194.22 

20,165.67 

534.60 

287.70 

59.40 

881.70 

60.00 

60.00 

336.00 

336.01 

336.00 

1,008.01 

1,102.50 

1,102.50 

6,607.03 
6,607.03 

502.00 

Vendor 2448 - NSI LAB SOLUTIONS, LLC. Total: 502.00 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 20 of 36 

52 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: OFF09 - OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF CCC 

23-3210 102531 07/14/2023 100-116-42514 PLAQUES AND BRASS PLATES 737.84 
23-3213 102531 07/14/2023 100-116-42514 BRASS PLATES 27.88 

Vendor OFF09 - OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF CCC Total : 765.72 

Vendor: OLIOl - OLIVERS TOWING INC 

21-10765-17 102690 07/28/2023 100-221-42107 VEHICLE STORAGE FEE- PD 300.00 
Vendor OLIOl - OLIVERS TOWING INC Total: 300.00 

Vendor: O'ROl - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 

JULY 2023 102725 08/04/2023 100-345-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 59.24 
JUNE 2023 102532 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 14.04 
JUNE 2023 102532 07/14/2023 100-343-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 50.44 
JUNE 2023 102532 07/14/2023 100-345-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 13.88 
JUNE 2023 102532 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 78.98 
JUNE 2023 102532 07/14/2023 500-642-42514 CITYWIDE PURCHASES 4.60 

Vendor O'ROl - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC Total: 221.18 

Vendor: OTIOl - OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY 

100401211329 102533 07/14/2023 209-554-42108 MAINTENANCE SERVICE JULY 184.16 
2023 PYC 

100401211924 102533 07/14/2023 100-222-42108 MAINTENANCE SERVICE JULY 124.60 
2023 

100401244252 102726 08/04/2023 209-554-42108 MAINTENANCE SERVICE AUG. 184.16 
2023 PYC 

100401244741 102726 08/04/2023 100-343-42108 MAINTENANCE SERVICE AUG. 124.91 
2023 CH 

100401244773 102726 08/04/2023 100-222-42108 MAINTENANCE SERVICE AUG. 124.60 
2023 SAFETY BLDG . 

Vendor OTIOl - OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY Total: 742.43 

Vendor: 1555 - OWEN EQUIPMENT 

00060470 102617 07/21/2023 207-344-42107 EXTENSION BROOM 517.90 

Vendor 1555 - OWEN EQUIPMENT Total: 517.90 

Vendor: OYE02 - OYE PRODUCTIONS 

071323REVISED 102535 07/14/2023 209-551-42515 SUMMER CONCERTS JULY 13, 1,250.00 

2023 

072723REVISED 102534 07/14/2023 209-551-42515 SUMMER CONCERT JULY 27, 1,250.00 
2023 

081023REVISED 102536 07/14/2023 209-551-42515 SUMMER CONCERTS AUGUST 1,250.00 

10,2023 

Vendor OYEOZ - OYE PRODUCTIONS Total: 3,750.00 

Vendor: CBAOO - PACIFIC CREDIT SERVICES 

38210000008 102618 07/21/2023 100-000-31510 COLLECTION FEES 238.25 

Vendor CBAOO - PACIFIC CREDIT SERVICES Total: 238.25 

Vendor: PAC41 - PACIFIC ECORISK 

19137 102691 07/28/2023 500-641-44305 NP DES ACUTE WET TESTING- 4,593.00 

WPCP 

Vendor PAC41 - PACIFIC ECORISK Total: 4,593.00 

Vendor: PAC55 - PACIFIC SITE MANAGEMENT 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 100-222-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 125.93 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 100-231-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 337.43 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 100-343-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 180.02 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 100-345-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 5,787.95 

SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 200-342-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 335.81 

SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 201-343-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 548.93 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 209-552-42108 M ONTH LY LANDSCAPE 204.23 
SERVICES 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 21 of 36 

53 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 209-553-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 212.31 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 209-55 7-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 212.31 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 310-347-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 62.16 
SERVICES 

62866 102619 07/21/2023 310-348-42108 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 65.37 
SERVICES 

Vendor PACSS - PACIFIC SITE MANAGEMENT Total: 8,072.45 

Vendor: 1469- PAN-PACIFIC SUPPLY COMPANY 

29613806 102537 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 DURATEMP THERMOMETER 1,510.94 
WPCP 

29613827 102537 07/14/2023 500-641-44306 VERTICAL PUMP BRONZE 4,805.73 
FITTED WPCP 

Vendor 1469 - PAN-PACIFIC SUPPLY COMPANY Total: 6,316.67 

Vendor: ATH02 - PATRICIA ATHENOUR 

AUGUST 2023 102620 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 REITREE MEDICAL REIMBU 164.90 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor ATHOZ - PATRICIA ATHENOUR Total: 164.90 

Vendor: LON02 - PATRICIA LONG 

JUNE 2023 102621 07/21/2023 209-552-43802 CWLD CLASSES JUNE 2023 168.00 

Vendor LON02 - PATRICIA LONG Total: 168.00 

Vendor: CLA17 - PAUL CLANCY 

AUGUST 2023 102622 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMBU 430.78 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor CLA17 - PAUL CLANCY Total: 430.78 

Vendor: PET08 - PET FOOD EXPRESS CORP 

40-2307PN 102799 08/11/2023 100-221-42514 SUPPLIES FOR MILO PD 61.70 

Vendor PET08 - PET FOOD EXPRESS CORP Total: 61.70 

Vendor: PGE01 - PG&E 

0081-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 2501 SAN PABLO AVE TRAFFIC 89.72 
CONTROLLER 

0209-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 S/E CORNER SAN PABLO AVE & 99.33 
TENNENT TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

0217-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-345-43103 TENNENT & PARK ST CLUB 21.61 

HOUSE 

0466-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 209-554-43103 635 TENNENT AVE YOUTH 36.91 

CTR/CATV 

0466-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 505-119-43103 635 TENNENT AVE YOUTH 55.37 
CTR/CATV 

0498-07122023 102692 07/28/2023 100-231-43103 3790 PINOLE VALLEY RD 1,208.62 
FIRESTATION 

0813-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 2149 1/2 APPIAN WAY TRAFFIC 67.06 
SIGNAL 

0883-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 100-222-43103 800 TENNENT AVE PUBLIC 1,105.02 
SAFETY FACILITY 

0883-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 100-223-43103 800 TENNENT AVE PUBLI C 221.00 
SAFETY FACILITY 

0883-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 100-231-43103 800 TENNENT AVE PUBLI C 884.03 
SAFETY FACILITY 

0887-07032023 102623 07/21/2023 200-342-43103 PINON AVE & SAN PABLO AVE 88.36 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-110-43103 2131 PEAR ST 134.10 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-111-43103 2131 PEAR ST 176.45 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-112-43103 2131 PEAR ST 194.08 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-115-43103 2131 PEAR ST 483.46 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-116-43103 2131 PEAR ST 141.16 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-117-43103 2131 PEAR ST 1,570.36 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-343-43103 2131 PEAR ST 2,925.47 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 2131 PEAR ST Sll.69 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 212-461-43103 2131 PEAR ST 211.73 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM Page 22 of 36 

54 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 212-462-43103 2131 PEAR ST 532.87 
0923-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 285-464-43103 2131 PEAR ST 176.45 
1093-06302023 102538 07/14/2023 500-642-43103 WEND/HAZEL AVE SEWAGE 732.10 

PLANT 
1121-07202023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 DEL MONTE & SAN PABLO 88.86 

TRAFFIC CONTROL LIGHT 
1156-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 209-554-43103 635 TENNENT AVE YOUTH 22.06 

CTR/CATV 
1156-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 505-119-43103 635 TENNENT AVE YOUTH 33.08 

CTR/CATV 
1233-07202023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 SAN PABLO AVE'TRAFFIC 94.12 

SIGNAL 
1462-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 209-552-43103 2500 CHARLES ST SENIOR 169.99 

CENTER 
1798-06282023 102538 07/14/2023 200-342-43103 2935 PINOLE VALLEY RD. 157.20 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
1798-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 200-342-43103 2935 PINOLE VALLEY RD. 161.66 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
1801-07112023 102692 07/28/2023 209-553-43103 2454 SIMAS AVE REC CTR & 22.08 

POOL 
2182-07032023 102623 07/21/2023 200-342-43103 OAKRIDGE/S,A.N PABLO AVE 81.13 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
2222-06262023 102623 07/21/2023 100-345-43103 STREET AND HIGHWAY 49.39 

LIGHTING 
2222-06262023 102623 07/21/2023 200-342-43103 STREET AND HIGHWAY 15,485.12 

LIGHTING 
2222-06262023 102623 07/21/2023 310-347-43103 STREET AND HIGHWAY 280.00 

LIGHTING 
2222-06262023 102623 07/21/2023 310,348-43103 STREET AND HIGHWAY 400.00 

LIGHTING 
2506-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 215-341-43103 701 Pinon/2489 San Pablo- 29.69 

Electric CHGS 

2620-07202023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 N/W CORNER APPIAN WAY & 127.20 
FITZGERALD DR TRAFFIC SIG 

2793-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 1451 FITZGERALD DR TRAFFIC 105.36 
SIGNAL 

3029-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 100-345-43103 1270 ADOBE RD@ OUTSIDE 97.81 
BATHROOMS 

3311-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 PINOLE VALLEY RD & HENRY 122.68 
TRAFFIC CONTROLLER 

3537-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-343-43103 659 TENNENT AVE PARKING 82.19 
LOT LIGHTS 

3834-07072023 102692 07/28/2023 100-231-43103 3790 PINOLE VALLEY RD 80.62 
FIRESTATION 

3850-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-345-43103 601 TENNENT AVE 136.19 
CARETAKER'S SHED 

3879-06272023 102538 07/14/2013 200-342-43103 N COR RAMONA ST AND 124.75 
PINOLE VALLEY RD 

3879-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 200-342-43103 N COR RAMONA ST AND 127.65 
PINOLE VALLEY RD 

3914-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 100-345-43103 FERNANDEZ PARK BALLPARK 117.38 
LIGHTING 

4065-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 209-559-43103 2937 PINOLE VALLEY RD 438.62 
TENNIS CT LIGHTS 

4157-07122023 102692 07/28/2023 100-222-43103 809 CITY HALL 16.47 

4193-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 HWY 80 PINOLE VALLEY RD 74.04 
TRAFFIC CONTROLLER 

4256-06272023 102538 07/14/2023 500-641-43103 11 TENNANT AVE 65, 780.40 

4256-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 500-641-43103 11 TENNANT AVE 78,770.97 

4368-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 APPIAN WAY & TARA HILLS 146.29 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

4612-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 201-343-43103 2100 SAN PABLO AVE FARIA 33.25 
HOUSE 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM Page 23 of 36 

55 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

5127-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 500-642-43103 893 1/2 SAN PABLO AVE PUMP 149.72 
STATION 

5137-07172023 102727 08/04/2023 209-557-43103 2450 SIMAS AVE SWIM CTR 1,573.72 
5374-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 1220 PINOLE VALLEY RD 118.29 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
5387-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 100-345-43103 588 MARLESTA RD LOUIS 43 .18 

FRANCIS PARK 
6043-07122023 102692 07/28/2023 100-231-43103 3790 PINOLE VALLEY RD 21.75 
6521-06282023 102538 07/14/2023 200-342-43103 IFO 971 SAN PABLO AVE- 107.56 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONTROL 
6521-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 200-342-43103 IFO 971 SAN PABLO AVE- 112.61 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONTROL 
6897-06282023 102538 07/14/2023 200-342-43103 PINOLE VALLEY RD & ESTATES 71.70 

AVE-TRAFFIC LIGHT CTRL 
6897-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 200-342-43103 PINOLE VALLEY RD & ESTATES 74.11 

AVE-TRAFFIC LIGHT CTRL 
6969-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 201-343-43103 2361 SAN PABLO AVE PARKING 116.22 

LOT LIGHTS 
7114-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 2429 SAN PABLO AVE 110.32 
7186-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 209-558-43103 601 TENNENT AVE PUBLIC 8.66 

MEETING HALL 
7509-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 TARA HILLS DR 500 FT APPIAN 71.15 

WAY TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
7547-06272023 102538 07/14/2023 100-222-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety 4,713.62 

Facility 
7547-06272023 102538 07/14/2023 100-223-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety 942.72 

Facility 
7547-06272023 102538 07/14/2023 100-231-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety 3,770.91 

Facility 
7547-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 100-222-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Publ ic Safety 5,995.17 

Facility 

7547-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 100-223-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety 1,199.03 
Facility 

7547-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 100-231-43103 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety 4,796.14 
Facility 

8086-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 N/S BORDER CITY OF PINOLE 80.65 

8511-07262023 102727 08/04/2023 100-345-43103 W/S PINOLE SHORES DR- 4.28 
SPRINKLER CONTROLLER 

8687-07202023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 FITZGERALD DR IFO LONG 116.72 
JOHN SILVERS TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

8716-07132023 102692 07/28/2023 500-641-43103 SEWAGE PLNT-FT OF TENNENT 4,046.27 

9824-07192023 102727 08/04/2023 310-347-43103 1303 PINOLE VALLEY RD 125.98 
TRAFFIC CONTROL SVC 

9900-07172023 102727 08/04/2023 200-342-43103 2303 GRANADA CT TRAFFIC 135.21 
CONTROL SERVICE 

9929-06262023 102538 07/14/2023 201-343-43103 790 PINOLE SHORES DR-NEW 92.13 
METAL BUILDING 

9929-07262023 102727 08/04/2023 201-343-43103 790 PINOLE SHORES DR-NEW 89.31 
METAL BUILDING 

9961-06272023 102538 07/14/2023 209-552-43103 2500 CHARLES ST-SENIOR 3,467.08 
CENTER 

9961-07272023 102800 08/11/2023 209-552-43103 2500 CHARLES ST-SENIOR 4,601.80 
CENTER 

9985-07182023 102727 08/04/2023 201-343-43103 NEAR 795 FERNANDEZ 119.39 
PARKING LOT LIGHTS 

Vendor PGEOl - PG&E Total: 211,998.60 

Vendor: PIN16 - PINOLE SEALS SWIM CLUB · 

07052023 102539 07/14/2023 209-557-42101 2023 SWIM SEASON ADVANCE 9,500.00 
PER CONTRACT 

07072023 102624 07/21/2023 209-557-42101 2023 SWIM SEASON 29,033.10 
REIMBURSEMENT #1 

Vendor PIN16 - PINOLE SEALS SWIM CLUB Total: 38,533.10 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM Page 24 of 36 

56 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: PIT06 - PITNEY BOWES 

07182023 102730 08/04/2023 100-111-42203 POSTAGE REFILL 062223 2,015.00 

Vendor PIT06 - PITNEY BOWES Total: 2,015.00 

Vendor: 1009 - PRECISION IT CONSULTING 

12946 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 29,000.00 
12946 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42105 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 820.00 
12946 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42105 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 995.00 
12946 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42106 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 138.18 
12946 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42106 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 563.41 
12947 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-42510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,641.00 
12972 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-47106 MONITORS FOR PCTV 277.88 
12974 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-47106 4 LAPTOPS CM 6,294.84 
12977 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-47106 MONITORS 4,828.35 
13011 102801 08/11/2023 525-118-47106 OWL CAMERA 1,215.55 
13505 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 29,000.00 

AUGUST 2023 
13505 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42105 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 995.00 

AUGUST 2023 
13505 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42105 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 820.00 

AUGUST 2023 
13505 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42106 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 128.31 

AUGUST 2023 
13505 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42106 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 552.47 

AUGUST 2023 
13518 102625 07/21/2023 525-118-42510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUNE 3,411.80 

2023 

Vendor 1009 - PRECISION IT CONSULTING Total: 82,681.79 

Vendor: 2388 - PRESTIGE PRINTING ANO GRAPHICS 

86100 102802 08/11/2023 100-341-42201 BUSINESS CARDS FOR MISHA, 123.87 
BETSY AND KIM 

86100 102802 08/11/2023 500-641-42201 BUSINESS CARDS FOR MISHA, 247.72 
BETSY AND KIM 

86417 102693 07/28/2023 100-222-42201 BUSINESS CARDS- PD 302.35 

Vendor 2388 - PRESTIGE PRINTING AND GRAPHICS Total: 673.94 

Vendor: PRl18 - PRIORITY 1 PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

9321 102803 08/11/2023 100-221-42107 GUN LOCK PD l,120.50 

Vendor PRl18 - PRIORITY 1 PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT Total: 1,120.50 

Vendor: 2485 - RICH CITY KIDS, INC. 

07112023 102694 07/28/2023 209-554-42101 HIP HOP DANCE CAMP 6/26- 525.00 
6/30/23 

Vendor 2485 - RICH CITY KIDS, INC. Total: 525.00 

Vendor: 2440 - RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC. 

49600 102804 08/11/2023 212-461-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUNE 4,462.25 
2023 

Vendor 2440 - RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC. Total: 4,462.25 

Vendor: 2685 - RJM DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

35760 102540 07/14/2023 106-345-47203 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,482.90 
RECREATION 

Vendor 2685 - RJM DESIGN GROUP, INC. Total : 9,482.90 

Vendor: 2646 - ROADSAFE TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, INC. 

178092 102695 07/28/2023 100-342-42514 PAINT FOR STREET 874.71 
MAINTENANCE-PW 

178945 102731 08/04/2023 100-342-42514 STENCIL GUARD PAINT 145.42 
PROTECTOR CY 

179759 102731 08/04/2023 100-342-42514 SIGNS CY 301.76 

179781 102731 08/04/2023 100-342-42514 STREET PAINT AND GLASS 729.84 
BEADS CY 

R-94061 102541 07/14/2023 100-343-42514 BARRICADE TYPE 1 WATER 1;567.55 
BARRICADE RENTALS 

Vendor 2646 - ROADSAFE TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, INC. Total: 3,619.28 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM Page 25 of 36 

57 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number 

Vendor: ROCll - ROCKWELL SOLUTIONS 

3135 102542 

Vendor: J&OOl - RUBBER DUST INC. 

158857 102626 

158858 

159486 

102626 

102805 

Vendor: 1450 - RUBENSTEIN SUPPLY COMPANY 

S2503525.001 102732 

Vendor: SEROS - SEROLOGICAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE 

24022 102627 

Vendor: 1714 - SHERRI D. LEWIS 

CC01PINOLE-FY2023/24 102733 

CC028PINOLE-FY2022/23 102628 

PC011PINOLE-FY2022/23 102543 

PC012PINOLE-FY2022/23 102543 

Vendor: 2632 - SHIPLEY POOL SERVICE 

17702 102629 

Vendor: 2688 - SHUMS CODA ASSOCIATES, INC. 

8580 102544 

8705 102544 

Vendor: SIE09 - SIERRA TRUCK AND VAN, INC. 

330424005 102630 

330502003 102630 

330725005 102734 

Vendor: 2048 - SONIC.NET, LLC 

1005407111 102631 

1006575457 102806 

Vendor: SON08 - SONSRAY MACHINERY, LLC. 

PS0083325-1 102696 

Vendor: SQUOO - SQUARE DEAL GARAGE 

42551 102597 

426~2 

42579 

44082 

44409 

102697 

102697 

102545 

102735 

Payment Date 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/04/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number 

500-641-44306 

Description (Payable) 

SEAL/CUTTERNUT/IMPELLER 
WPCP 

Vendor ROCll - ROCKWELL SOLUTIONS Total: 

100-343-42107 

100-345-42107 

207-344-42107 

REPLACED TIRE 

RF FLAT REPAIR 

TIRE REPLACED 

Vendor J&OOl - RUBBER OUST INC. Total : 

100-343-44306 SLOAN VACUUM BRKR 
DIAPHRAM CLOSTE RPR KT 

Vendor 14SO - RUBENSTEIN SUPPLY .COMPANY Total: 

100-222-42101 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES DNA 
TESTING EVIDENCE 

Vendor SEROS - SEROLOGICAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE Total: 

100-112-42101 

100-112-42101 

212-461-42514 

212-461-42514 

209-557-42108 

212-462-42101 

212-462-42101 

PREPARE MINUTES FOR CC 
MTG. 071823 

PREPARE MINUTES CITY 
COUNCIL MTG 050623 

PREPARE MINUTE PC MTG 5-
22-23 

PREPARE MINUTE PC MTG 
062623 

Vendor 1714 ·SHERRI D. LEWIS Total : 

SWIM POOL MAINTENANCE 

Vendor 2632 - SHIPLEY POOL SERVICE Total : 

PLAN REVIEW APRIL 2023 
BP23-0099 

PLAN REVIEW SERVICES APRIL 
2023 

Vendor 2688 - SHUMS CODA ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 

100-343-42107 

100-343-42107 

100-343-44306 

INSTALL HEADACHE RACK, SIDE 
BOXES TRAFIC ADV 

INSTALL BEACON LIGHT, 
CARRYOUT 

5"AMBER/WHITE LED-N 

Vendor SIE09 - SIERRA TRUCK AND VAN, INC. Total : 

525-118-43101 

525-118-43101 

200-341-47101 

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 

Vendor 2048 - SONIC.NET, LLC Total : 

4 FOOT ROTARY CUTTER- PW 

Vendor SON08 - SQNSRAY MACHINERY, LLC. Total: 

500-542-42107 

500-642-42107 

500-642-42107 

100-343-42107 

100-343-42107 

VEHICLE REPOAIRS- PW 

VEHICLE REPAIRS-PW 

VEHICLE REPAIRS- PW 

FUEL INJECTOR 

OIL CHANGE AND FILTER 

Amount 

7,739.83 

7,739.83 

845.99 

288.41 

795.27 

1,929.67 

228.97 

228.97 

3,400.00 

3,400.00 

1,050.00 

575 .00 

450.00 

225 .00 

2,400.00 

3,698.59 

3,698.59 

1,053.00 

1,750.61 

2,803.61 

6,095 .25 

988.24 

714.95 

7,798.44 

461 .90 

549.00 

1,010.90 

2,825.46 

2,825.46 

82.72 

521.62 

1,646.47 

765.45 

76.68 

Vendor SQUOO - SQUARE DEAL GARAGE Total: 3,092.94 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 26 of 36 

58 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

Vendor: 2690 - STACY L. CORTEZ 

04222029 102632 07/21/2023 100-551-42515 CANVAS PAINTING ACTIVITY 405.00 
FOR PRIDE EVENT 

Vendor 2690 - STACY L. CORTEZ Total: 405.00 

Vendor: STA42 - STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-111-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 142.36 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-222-42514 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 123.63 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-222-42514 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 53.45 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-222-42514 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 84.99 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-222-42514 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 41.71 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-341-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 205.60 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 100-465-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 76.95 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 209-553-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 394.92 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 209-553-42514 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.73 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 212-461-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 142.89 
JUNE 2023 

1649574126 102633 07/21/2023 212-462-42201 CITYWIDE OFFICE SUPPLIES 142.89 

JUNE 2023 

Vendor STA42 - STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT Total: 1,426.12 

Vendor: STEZO - STERICYCLE, INC. 

3006525323 102634 07/21/2023 100-222-42101 MEDICAL WASTE SERVICES PD 63.14 

3006562203 102807 08/11/2023 100-222-42101 MEDICAL WASTE PICKUP 63.14 
DISPOSAL PD 

Vendor STEZO - STE RI CYCLE, INC. Total: 126.28 

Vendor: 2436 - STRATEGIC ENERGY INNOVATIONS 

4587 102635 07/21/2023 212-461-42101 CLIMATE CORPS EXTENSION OF 4,650.00 

FELLOWSHIP INTERN 

Vendor 2436 - STRATEGIC ENERGY INNOVATIONS Total: 4,650.00 

Vendor: SYAOl -SYAR INDUSTRIES, LLC. 

73696454 102636 07/21/2023 214-342-42514 H MA TYPE A/B ASPHALT 208.58 

Vendor SYAOl - SYAR INDUSTRIES, LLC. Total: 208.58 

Vendor: 1253 - TARAH ORNELAS 

924 102637 07/21/2023 209-552-43809 MAY NEWSLETTER PSC 305.90 

925 102637 07/21/2023 209-552-43809 JUNE NEWSLETTER PSC 305.90 

926 102637 07/21/2023 209-552-43807 BANNER AND YARD SIGNS 378.81 
RECREATION 

950 102637 07/21/2023 100-343-42514 PRINTED DOOR HANGERS FOR 281.62 

TRAFFIC MEETING 

Vendor 1253 - TARAH ORNELAS Total: 1,272.23 

Vendor: 2707 - TARC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

07122023 102638 07/21/2023 212-462-34232 REFUND LICENSE PROCESSING 60.00 

FEE 

Vendor 2707 - TARC CONSTRUCTION, INC. Total: 60.00 

Vendor: 2702 - TENZIN NGADON 

06262023 102546 07/14/2023 209-555-43801 REFUND FOR DISH OF DISNEY 176.00 

CAMP 

Vendor 2702 - TENZIN NGADON Total : 176.00 

Vendor: KRIOl - TERRI KRIEGER 

AUGUST 2023 102639 07/21/2023 100-117-41101 RETIREE MEDICARE REIMBU 243.00 
AUGUST 2023 

Vendor KRIOl - TERRI KRIEGER Total: 243.00 

8/10/2023 10:57 : 11 AM Page 27 of 36 

59 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number Payment Number 

Vendor: TMOOO -T-MOBILE USA, INC 

9539652996 102736 

9539652997 102736 

Payment Date 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

Vendor: TRAZO-TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE DATA SOLUTIONS, INC. 

263397-202306-1 102640 07/21/2023 

Account Number 

100-221-42514 

100-221-42514 

525-118-43101 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/ZOZ3 - 8/11/ZOZ3 

Description (Payable) 

GPS LOCATE PD 

GPS LOCATE PD 

Vendor TMOOO - T-MOBILE USA, INC Total : 

Amount 

100.00 

100.00 

zoo.co 

DATA COLLECTIONS JUNE 2023 ----=l.::.37'-'.-'-40.::. 
Vendor TRA20 -TRANSUNION RISK AND Al TERNATIVE DATA SOLUTIONS, INC. Total: 137.40 

Vendor: 2633 - TRB AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

4898 102808 

4924 102641 

Vendor: 2365 - TRI PEPI, SMITH AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

10391 102642 

Vendor: USPOl - U.S. POSTMASTER 

08022023 102809 

Vendor: 2668 - UBEO BUSINESS SERVICES 

4174931 102643 

Vendor: UND01 - UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 

23USB124265 102698 

Vendor: UNl38 - UNIVAR USA INC 

51256323 102547 

51280635 102547 

51335075 

51352388 

1028.10 

102810 

Vendor: UNI07 - UNIVERSAL BUILDING SVCS. 

515335 102548 

515336 102548 

515337 102548 

515338 102548 

516698 102811 

9344 102548 

9345 102548 

9345-1 102737 

9486 102644 

9543 102699 

9638 102737 

9778 102737 

9779 102737 

8/10/2023 10: 57: 11 AM 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

08/04/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/28/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

08/04/2023 

212-462-42101 

212-462-42101 

PLAN REVIEW AND 

INSPECTIONS SERVICES JUNE 
2023 

SENIOR BLDG INSPECTOR JUNE 
2023 

Vendor 2633 - TRB AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 

100-111-42101 COP COMMUNICATIONS 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
MAY 23 

Vendor 2365 - TRIPEPI, SMITH AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 

209-551-42514 

525'118-42107 

POSTGE FOR FALL/WINTER 
EVENTS POSTCARD REC 

Vendor USPOl - U.S. POSTMASTER Total: 

CONTRACT USAGE CHARGE 
FOR JUNE 2023 

Vendor 2668 - UBEO BUSINESS SERVICES Total: 

500-642-42101 FY23/24 CA STATE FEE FOR 
REGULATORY COSTS 

Vendor UND01 - UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT Total: 

500-641-44303 SOD BISULFITE LIQ WPCP 

500-641-44303 SOD HYPO LIQUICHLOR WPCP 

500-641-44303 SOD BISULFITE BULK WPCP 

500-641-44303 SOD BISULFITE BULK WPCP 

Vendor UN138 - UNIVAR USA INC Total: 

100-343-42108 JANITORILA SERVICES JUNE 
2023 CH 

100-222-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES JUNE 
2023 PD PUBLIC SAFETY BLG 

209-557-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES JUNE 
2023 SWIM CENTER 

500-641-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES JUNE 
2023 WPCP 

500-641-42108 JANITORIAL SERVICES JULY 
2023 WPCP 

100-222-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES PD 

100-343-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES CH 

100-343-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES CH 

209-557-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES SWIM 
CENTER 

209-554-42108 SANITARY SUPPLIES- PYC 

100-343-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES CY 

100-222-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES PD 

100-343-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES CH 

87,044.64 

12,231.69 

99,276.33 

461.25 

461.25 

1,365.41 

1,365.41 

1,339.53 

1,339.53 

1,280.56 

1,280.56 

7,836.28 

6,994.88 

9,569.30 

9,838.74 

34,239.ZO 

1,296.00 

2,649.00 

1,400.00 

534.00 

534.00 

299.92 

266.86 

45.04 

93.43 

277.77 

815.87 

340.29 

291.89 

Page 28 of 35 

60 of 594



WARRANT LISTING Payment Dates: 7/14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payable Number Payment Number Payment Date Account Number Description (Payable) Amount 

9780 102737 08/04/2023 209-557-42108 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES SWIM 93.43 
CENTER 

Vendor UNl07 - UNIVERSAL BUILDING SVCS. Total: 8,937.50 

Vendor: USB06 - US BANK 

504801580 102645 07/21/2023 525-118-42107 RENTAL EQUIPMENT COPIERS 5,003.72 
CITYWIDE 

507218667 102738 08/04/2023 525-118-42107 COPIERS CITYWIDE 5,419.72 
JULY 2023 102739 08/04/2023 100-20018 CITYWIDE CREDIT CARDS 30,991.04 

Vendor USB06 - US BANK Total: 41,414.48 

Vendor: 2695 - USABLUEBOOK 

INV00066783 102646 07/21/2023 500-641-44305 AUTOCLAVE THERMOMETER 166.61 
CALIBRATED WPCP 

Vendor 2695 - USABLUEBOOK Total: 166.61 

Vendor: VAL04 - VALLEJO FIRE EXTINGUISHER 

95942 102812 08/11/2023 100-222-42514 FIRE EXTINGUISHER ANNUAL 577.69 
MAINT PD 

Vendor VAL04 - VALLEJO FIRE EXTINGUISHER Total : 577.69 

Vendor: VER02 - VERIZON WIRELESS 

9939705587 102740 08/04/2023 525-118-43101 CITYWIDE CELL PHONES 4,553.30 

Vendor VER02 - VERIZON WIRELESS Total: 4,553.30 

Vendor: VISOl - VISION SERVICE PLAN 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-110-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 
818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-111-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 
818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-112-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 
818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-113-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 
818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-115-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-116-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-221-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 446.64 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-222-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 130.27 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-223-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 223.32 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-341-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 93.05 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-343-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 148.88 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 100-465-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 105-221-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 74.44 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 105-231-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 106-222-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023· 106-231-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 209-551-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 209-552-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 37.22 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 209-554-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 18.61 

818410318 102.813 08/11/2023 212-461-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 37.22 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 212-462-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 500-641-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 186.10 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 500-642-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 55.83 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 505-119-41003 VISION AUGUST 2023 37.22 

818410318 102813 08/11/2023 998-20106 VISION AUGUST 2023 74.44 

818410333 102813 08/11/2023 998-20106 VISION PLAN COBRA 18.61 

Vendor VIS01 - VISION SERVICE PLAN Total: 2,065.71 

Vendor: LUKOO - VIVIENNE F. KEARSLEY-LUKE 

JUNE 2023 102647 07/21/2023 209-552-43802 GENTLE YOGA CLASSES PSC 71.75 
JUNE 2023 

Vendor LUKOO - VIVIENNE F. KEARSLEY-LUKE Total: 71.75 

Vendor: VWROl - VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC. 

8813215360 102549 07/14/2023 500-641-44305 PIPET SERO SUPPLIES WPCP 478.22 

8813240800 102549 07/14/2023 500-641-44305 GLASS DISP FLOOR WPCP 111.20 

Vendor VWR01-VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC. Total: 589.42 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM Page 29 of 36 

61 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

Payable Number 

Vendor: WCCOl -WCCTAC 

Q2 2023 

Payment Number 

102700 

Vendor: WECOl - WECO INDUSTRIES LLC 

0051803-IN 102550 

Vendor: 2603 - WEST VALLEY CONSTRUCTION CO, INC. 

137433 102551 

Vendor: WES54 - WESTERN SCIENTIFIC 

00039548 102648 

Vendor: 1520 - WEX BANK 

90358463 

90997714 

102649 

102814 

Vendor: WILS2 - WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

010-55506 102701 

Payment Date 

07/28/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/14/2023 

07/21/2023 

07/21/2023 

08/11/2023 

07/28/2023 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Account Number Description (Payable) 

212-462-34210 

500-642-42514 

500-642-47201 

APRIL-JUNE 2023 STMP FEE 
COLLECTED 

Vendor WCCOl - WCCTAC Total: 

HANO MAGNETIC SUPER SPOT 
LIGHT 

Vendor WECOl - WECO INDUSTRIES LLC Total : 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT MTG 
PINON AVE 

Vendor 2603 - WEST VALLEY CONSTRUCTION CO, INC. Total: 

500-641-44305 

100-221-44301 

100-221-44301 

500-642-42101 

ANNUAL CALIBRATION WPCP 

Vendor WES54 - WESTERN SCIENTIFIC Total: 

FUEL PURCHASES PD 

FUEL PURCHASES 

Vendor 1520 - WEX BANK Total: 

FY23/24 SEWER LEVY 

Amount 

121,449.08 

121,449.08 

532.08 

532.08 

9,470.00 

9,470.00 

1,373.39 

1,373.39 

70.00 

325.15 

395.15 

4,906.64 

Vendor WIL52 - WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES Total: 4,906.64 

Grand Total: 3,741,157.74 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM Page 30 of 36 

62 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

Fund 

100 - General Fund 

105 - Measure S -2006 

106- MEASURE S-2014 

200 - Gas Tax Fund 

Fund Summary 

201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund 

205 - Traffic Safety Fund 

206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc Fund 

207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund 

209 - Recreation Fund 

212 - Building & Planning 

214 - Solid Waste Fund 

215 - Measure C and J Fund 

226 - CASp Certification and Training Fund 

285 - Housing Land Held for Resale 

310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts 

325 - City Street Improvements 

377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund 

500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 

503 - Plant Expansion Fund 

505 - Cable Access TV 

525 - Information Systems 

750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund 

998 - Payroll Clearing 

Account Number 

100-000-31510 

100-10601 

100-110-41002 

100-110-41003 

100-110-41009 

100-110-42302 

100-110-42401 

100-110-43102 

100-110-43103 

100-110-46201 

100-111-41002 

100-111-41003 

100-111-41009 

100-111-42101 

100-111-42201 

100-111-42203 

100-111-43102 

100-111-43103 

100-111-46201 

100-112-41002 

100-112-41003 

100-112-41009 

100-112-42101 

100-112-42514 

100-112-43102 

100-112-43103 

100-112-46201 

100-113-41002 

100-113-41003 

100-113-41009 

Grand Total: 

Account Summary 
Account Name 

Other Tax/Business Lice ... 

Gas Tanks/Corp Yard 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Travel & Training/Mi/ea .. . 

Dues & Pub/Membershi .. . 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Office Expense 

Office Exp/Shipping & M ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Insurance/General Liabill ... 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Report Summary 

Payment Amount 

1,989,397.48 

116,728.88 

48,767.76 

39,008.50 

1,701.88 

1,234.75 

9,353.99 

2,128.38 

224,943.39 

445,676.82 

4,443.58 

279.75 

93.60 

1,230.14 

2,310.20 

11,990.33 

15,629.50 

565,241.67 

5,850.00 

33,152.10 

221,075.43 

465.00 

454.61 

3,741,157.74 

Payment Amount 

238.25 

13,817.17 

287.72 

55.83 

2,284.24 

306.96 

6,165.00 

11.11 

134.10 

2,886.09 

364.69 

55.83 

33,416.34 

20,626.92 

142.36 

2,015.00 

26.69 

176.45 

42,220.73 

383.55 

55.83 

23,892.64 

1,859.93 

662.01 

24.47 

194.08 

30,518.77 

108.99 

18.61 

203.04 

Page 31 of 36 

63 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM 

Account Number 

100-113-46201 

100-115-41002 

100-115-41003 

100-115-41009 

100-115-42101 

100-115-43102 

100-115-43103 

100-115-46201 

100-116-41002 

100-116-41003 

100-116-41009 

100-116-42101 

100-116-42102 

100-116-42514 

100-116-43102 

100-116-43103 

100-116-46201 

100-117-41004 

100-117-41101 

100-117-43102 

100-117-43103 

100-20011 

100-20018 

100-20402 

100-221-41002 

100-221-41003 

100-221-41008 

100-221-41009 

100-221-42101 

100-221-42107 

100-221-42110 

100-221-42301 

100-221-42302 

100-221-42303 

100-221-42304 

100-221-42401 

100-221-42511 

100-221-42514 

100-221-44301 

100-221-44410 

100-221-46201 

100-222-41002 

100-222-41003 

100-222-41009 

100-222-42101 

100-222-42108 

100-222-42201 

100-222-42514 

100-222-43102 

100-222-43103 

100-222-46201 

100-223-41002 

100-223-41003 

100-2 23-41008 

100-223-41009 

100-223-42101 

100-223-43102 

100-223-43103 

Account Summary 
Account Name 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C. .. 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/ Attorney Servi. .. 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/PERS Retir. .. 

Retiree Benefits/Medical. .. 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Accounts Payable/Miscel... 

Accounts Payable/CalCa .. . 

Deferred Rev/Unclaimed .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Long Term .. . 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma ... 

Prof Svcs/Fingerprinting 

Travel & Training/Conf-R .. . 

Travel & Training/Milea .. . 

Travel & Training/Meal A.. 

Travel & Training/Officer ... 

Dues & Pub/Membershi... 

Admin Exp/Equipment R .. . 

Admin Exp/Special Depa .. . 

Other Materials Supp/F .. . 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc. .. 

Office Expense 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Long Term .. . 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payment Amount 

256.54 

364.69 

55.83 

28,600.68 

39,710.85 

72.52 

483.46 

36,136.27 

306.58 

55.83 

27,729.62 

38,863.07 

1,372.00 

765.72 

24.47 

141.16 

35,035.70 

258,442.42 

5,032.84 

195.75 

1,570.36 

82,513.24 

30,991.04 

204.34 

1,883.36 

446.64 

534.60 

200,521.50 

44,670.00 

4,275.73 

49.00 

398.00 

300.25 

252.39 

289.75 

60.00 

972.00 

3,679.82 

455.16 

5,868.26 

253,354.00 

587.07 

130.27 

28,386.81 

6,773.28 

6,593.18 

5,637.26 

4,707.65 

1,313.42 

12,003.41 

35,866.04 

1,304.82 

223.32 

287.70 

72,619.28 

382.32 

291.87 

2,362.75 

Page 32 of 36 

64 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

Account Number 

100-223-46201 

100-231-41004 

100-231-42104 

100-231-42108 

100-231-42201 

100-231-42512 

lP0-231-43102 

100-231-43103 

100-341-41002 

100-341-41003 

100-341-41009 

100-341-42101 

100-341-42201 

100-341-42510 

100-341-46201 

100-342-41009 

100-342-42101 

100-342-42514 

100-342-44410 

100-342-46201 

100-343-41002 

100-343-41003 

100-343-41009 

100-343-42107 

100-343-42108 

100-343-42511 

100-343-42513 

100-343-42514 

100-343-43102 

100-343-43103 

100-343-44306 

100-343-44410 

100-343-46201 

100-345-42107 

100-345-42108 

100-345-43102 

100-345-43103 

100-345-44306 

100-465-41002 

100-465-41003 

100-465-41009 

100-465-42201 

100-465-44410 

100-465-46201 

100-551-42511 

100-551-42515 

105-221-41002 

105-221-41003 

105-221-41008 

105-221-41009 

105-221-46201 

105-231-41002 

105-231-41003 

106-222-41002 

106-222-41003 

106-222-41009 

106-222-46201 

106-231-41002 

Account Summary 
Account Name 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Emp Benefits/PERS Retir .. . 

Prof Svcs/Paramedic Serv .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Office Expense 

Admin Exp/Abatement 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Office Expense 

Admin Exp/Software Pur ... 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili... 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc .. . 

Admin Exp/Equipment R .. . 

Admin Exp/Rent 

Admin Exp/Special. Depa ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Other Materials Supp/M ... 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc .. . 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Other Materials Supp/M .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Office Expense 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili ... 

Admin Exp/Equipment R ... 

Admin Exp/Special Events 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Long Term .. . 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payment Amount 

91,752.71 

90.25 

12,148.29 

337.43 

646.99 

25,483.00 

1,925.17 

10,762.07 

396.71 

93.05 

50,452.79 

5,184.25 

329.47 

8,000.00 

63,745.88 

6,218.62 

46,928.00 

2,051.73 

264.57 

7,857.08 

966.22 

148.88 

46,043.22 

8,851.72 

3,704.21 

4,425.00 

4,425.00 

1,849.17 

1,267.41 

3,007.66 

3,739.26 

1,813.80 

58,174.50 

288.41 

6,037.95 

25,145.53 

469.84 

623.51 

127.85 

18.61 

5,898.42 

76.95 

66.73 

7,452.51 

142.77 

405.00 

434.43 

74.44 

59.40 

51,288.80 

64,802.32 

50.88 

18.61 

127.85 

18.61 

5,500.52 

6,949.78 

108.99 

Page 33 of 36 

65 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/2023 10:57:11 AM 

Account Number 

106-231-41003 

106-341-42101 

106-343-47201 

106-345-47203 

200-341-47101 

200-342-42101 

200-342-42108 

200-342-43102 

200-342-43103 

200-342-47205 

201-343-42108 

201-343-42513 

201-343-43102 

201-343-43103 

205-227-41009 

205-227-46201 

206-227-47105 

207-344-42101 

207-344-42107 

207-344-42514 

209-20015 

209-20307 

209-551-41002 

209-551-41003 

209-551-41009 

209-551-42101 

209-551-42514 

209-551-42515 

209-551-46201 

209-552-41002 

209-552-41003 

209-55;2-41009 

209-552-42101 

209-552-42108 

209-552-43102 

209-552-43103 

209-552-43802 

209-552-43804 

209-552-43807 

209-552-43809 

209-552-43810 

209-552-46201 

209-553-41009 

209-553-42108 

209-553-42201 

209-553-42514 

209-553-43103 

209-553-46201 

209-554-41002 

209-554-41003 

209-554-41009 

209-554-42101 

209-554-42108 

209-554-42201 

209-554-42301 

209-554-43102 

209-554-43103 

209-554-44306 

Account Summary 

Account Name 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Improvements/Building 

Improvements/Parks 

FF&E/Equipment 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Improvements/Streets 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Admin Exp/Rent 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Emp Benefits/Workers C .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

FF&E/Equipment (not-c ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Admin Exp/Special Depa .. . 

Accounts Payable/Vendo .. 

Deposits Payable/Recrea .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Admin Exp/Special Events 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C. .. 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-5truc ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Program Cost/Class Fees 

Program Cost/Food Prog ... 

Program Cos~/Fundraisi. .. 

Program Cost/Newsletter 

Program Cost/Center Ma .. 

Insurance/General Liabili... 

Emp Benefits/Workers C. .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Office Expense 

Admin Exp/Special Depa .. . 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Insurance/General Liabili... 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc. .. 

Office Expense 

Travel & Training/Conf ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Other Materials Supp/M .. . 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payment Amount 

18.61 

3,067.00 

23,493.50 

9,482.90 

2,825.46 

3,447.34 

335.81 

62.28 

18,750.54 

13;587.07 

548.93 

100.00 

602.65 

450.30 

545.51 

689.24 

9,353.99 

740.03 

1,313.17 

75.18 

12.60 

600.00 

255 .70 

55.83 

24,839.90 

336.00 

1,365.41 

5,128.41 

31,384.61 

91.58 

37 .22 

13,370.09 

336.01 

8,967.89 

1,658.34 

8,238.87 

1,940.15 

7,267 .98 

1,612.89 

965 .80 

557 .15 

16,892.79 

6,837.36 

1,084.06 

394.92 

16.73 

22.08 

8,638.84 

201.73 

18.61 

12,460.80 

1,627.50 

1,115.56 

19.73 

336.00 

36.61 

58.97 

23 .89 

Page 34 of 36 

66 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/2023 10:57: 11 AM 

Account Number 

209-554-46201 

209-555-43801 

209-557-42101 

209-557-42108 

209-557-43103 

209-558-42108 

209-558-43102 

209-558-43103 

209-559-43102 

209-559-43103 

212-20024 

212-20346 

212-461-41002 

212-461-41003 

212-461-41009 

212-461-42101 

212-461-42201 

212-461-42302 

212-461-42303 

212-461-42514 

212-461-43102 

212-461-43103 

212-461-44410 

212-461-46201 

212-462-33215 

212-462-34210 

212-462-34211 

212-462-34232 

212-462-41002 

212-462-41003 

212-462-41009 

212-462-42101 

212-462-42106 

212-462-42201 

212-462-42302 

212-462-43102 

212-462-43103 

212-462-444.10 

212-462-46201 

214-342-42514 

215-341-43101 

215'-341-43103 

226-000-34223 

285-464-42101 

285-464-43102 

285-464-43103 

310-347-42101 

310-347-42108 

310-347-43102 

310-347-43103 

310-348-42108 

310-348-43103 

325-342-47205 

377-342-47205 

500-641-41002 

500-641-41003 

500-641-41009 

500-641-42101 

Account Summary 
Account Name 

Insurance/General Liabili ... 

Program Cost/Youth Ca ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc .. . 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Accounts Payable/CA Sta .. . 

Developer Deposit/830- .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Office Expense 

Travel & Training/Milea ... 

Travel & Training/Meal A .. 

Admin Exp/Special Depa ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

Permit/Seismic (Strong ... 

Fees/STM P Fee 

Fees/CA State Building F .. . 

Fees/I ssuance/Processin .. . 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/ Software Mai... 

Office Expense 

Travel & Training/Milea ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili .. . 

Admin Exp/Special Depa .. . 

Utilities/Telephone 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Fees/CASp Fee $4 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc .. . 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Improvements/Streets 

Improvements/Streets 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payment Amount 

15,743.91 

176.00 

38,533.10 

8,761.32 

1,573.72 

396.33 

416.96 

8.66 

86.16 

438.62 

1,243.20 

19,437.00 

255.70 

37.22 

26,279.69 

18,335.25 

142.89 

519.25 

122.00 

675 .00 

23.58 

211.73 

225.76 

33,203 .75 

7,964.55 

121,449.08 

-121.62 

60.00 

287.72 

55.83 

34,242.12 

136,415.80 

350.00 

142.89 

41.18 

62.73 

532.87 

217.57 

43,264.08 

4,443.58 

250.06 

29.69 

93.60 

1,035.00 

18.69 

176.45 

1,012.32 

62.16 

364.37 

405.98 

65.37 

400 .00 

11,990.33 

15,629.50 

1,030.26 

186.10 

86,183 .29 

1,379.00 

Page 35 of 36 

67 of 594



WARRANT LISTING 

8/10/202310:57:11 AM 

Account Number 

500-641-42107 

500-641-42108 

500-641-42201 

500-641 '43102 

500-641-43103 

500-641-44302 

500-641-44303 

500-641-44305 

500-641-44306 

500-641-44410 

500-641-46201 

500-641-47201 

500-642-41002 

500-642-41003 

500-642-41009 

500-642-42101 

500-642-42107 

500-642-42510 

500-642-42514 

500-642-43103 

500-642-44410 

500-642-46201 

500-642-47201 

503-643-42101 

505-119-41002 

505-119-41003 

505-119-41009 

505-119-43102 

505-119-43103 

505-119-46201 

525-118-42101 

525-118-42105 

5 25-118-42106 

525-118-42107 

525-118-42510 

525-118-43101 

525-118-47102 

525-118-47106 

750-463-42101 

998-20105 

998-20106 

Project Account Key 

**None•• 

100342421011N2106 

10634347201FA1901 

10634347201FA2002 

106345472031N1704 

21246142101GP2201 

32534247205R01710 

32534247205R01902 

37734247205R02101 

50064147201SS2102 

Account Summary 

Account Name 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Prof Svcs/Building-Struc .. . 

Office Expense 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Other Materials Supp/SI. .. 

Other Materials Supp/C .. . 

Other Materials Supp/La .. . 

Other Materials Supp/M .. . 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili. .. 

!mprovements/Building 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Admin Exp/Software Pur .. . 

Admin Exp/Special Depa .. . 

Utilities/Electricity & Po .. . 

Safety Clothing 

Insurance/General Liabili ... 

Improvements/Building 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Emp Benefits/Dental 

Emp Benefits/Vision Care 

Emp Benefits/Workers C ... 

Utilities/Water 

Utilities/Electricity & Po ... 

Insurance/General Liabili... 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Prof Svcs/Network Main .. . 

Prof Svcs/Software Main .. . 

Prof Svcs/Equipment Ma .. . 

Admin Exp/Software Pur .. . 

Utilities/Telephone 

FF&E/Computer Equipm .. . 

FF&E/Computer Equipm .. . 

Prof Svcs/Professional Se .. 

Sal & Ben Payable/Denta ... 

Sal & Ben Payable/Vision ... 

Grand Total: 

Project Account Summary 

~ Approved by=~ 
Date: II J. 

Payment Dates: 7 /14/2023 - 8/11/2023 

Payment Amount 

4,800.00 

1,116.05 

1,386.70 

1,237.31 

148,597.64 

19,410.30 

47,890.87 

12,206.08 

32,314.87 

3,419.21 

108,890.49 

24,000.00 

229.61 

55.83 

17,294.05 

6,187.20 

2,250.81 

11,500.00 

679.88 

881.82 

793.69 

21,850.61 

9,470.00 

5,850.00 

255.70 

37.22 

14,453.54 

55.30 

88.45 

18,261.89 

121,519.00 

3,630.00 

1,382.37 

12,662.97 

27,302.21 

21,019.64 

20,942.62 

12,616.62 

465.00 

361.56 

93.05 

3,741,157.74 

Payment Amount 

3,606,493.09 

46,928.00 

8,590.00 

14,903.50 

9,482.90 

9,223.00 

4,995.75 

912.00 

15,629.50 

24,000.00 
3,741,157.74 

Page 36 of 36 

68 of 594



CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 9C 

DATE: AUGUST 15, 2023 

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: STACY SHELL, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE 
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES (AFSCME) UNION LOCAL 512 FOR THE PERIOD OF 
JULY 1, 2023 – JUNE 30, 2025 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the City and American Federation of State, County, and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Union Local 512 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 
30, 2025.  

BACKGROUND 

The current MOU between the City and AFSCME Local 512 expired on June 30, 2023.  
In accordance with the provisions of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, the City and the 
representatives of AFSCME Local 512 must meet and confer in good faith in an effort to 
reach agreement on terms for a successor MOU. 

Prior to the commencement of this round of negotiations, the City undertook a thorough 
review of the current MOU. The City’s labor relations consultant, IEDA, reviewed the 
MOU for potential clean up and clarifying matters, as had frontline Human Resources 
and Finance staff. The City also conducted a total compensation survey of benchmark 
positions within the AFSCME Local 512 bargaining unit to assess the City’s 
competitiveness in the labor market to attract and retain qualified employees. 

During the negotiations process, the AFSCME Local 512 and the City exchanged a 
number of economic and non-economic proposals and counter proposals. 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

The City’s negotiating team first met with AFSCME Local 512 on March 21, 2023, to 
commence negotiations for a successor MOU.  During the negotiation process, the City 
and AFSCME Local 512 met eight (8) times, with the exchange of proposals occurring 
throughout. After meeting and conferring, including the exchanging of counter 
proposals, the City and AFSCME Local 512 reached a Total Tentative Agreement (TTA) 
on July 20, 2023. AFSCME Local 512 members met and notified the City that the 
membership ratified the TTA on August 1, 2023. 

69 of 594



City Council Report  
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023 2 

The successor agreement (Exhibit A to the attached resolution) is for a two (2) year 
period. Outlined below are the significant economic changes to the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025.  
A summary of all the changes to the MOU are reflected in the TTA in Attachment B. 

Cost of Living Adjustment 

A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) of 4% effective the first full pay period following 
June 30, 2023 and another 4% COLA effective the first full pay period following June 
30, 2024. 

Equity Adjustment 

Based on the City’s desire to attract and retain quality employees, the City and 
AFSCME Local 512 agreed to equity adjustments for classifications identified in the 
City’s total compensation survey to be more than 5% below the median market rate 
effective the first full pay period following June 30, 2023.  

• Management Analyst (12.9%) – one incumbent
• Public Works Maintenance Supervisor (14.3%) – three incumbents
• Recreation Coordinator (15.8%) – four incumbents

Longevity Pay 

Enhancement of longevity pay from 2% at 15 years of service to 3% at 15 years of 
service effective the first full pay period following June 30, 2023. 

Life Insurance Benefit 

Enhancement of life insurance benefit from $40,000 to one time (1x) the employee’s 
annual salary effective the first full pay period following June 30, 2023. 

Long-Term/Short-Term Disability Benefit 

Increase Long-Term Disability max monthly benefit from $2,001 to $4,000. Eliminate 
Short-Term Disability benefit due to double coverage w/ State Disability Insurance. 

In addition to the economic proposals listed above, the City agreed to include language 
in the MOU pertaining to other non-economic provisions related to unit composition, 
union release time, City holidays, medical insurance premium contributions, 
management rights, bereavement leave, overtime calculation threshold, meal allotment, 
vacation buy back, section 125 benefits, uniform allowance payments, and retiree 
medical benefits as listed below: 

• Modify management rights for the City to meet and discuss contracting out
services within the bargaining unit’s scope of membership.

• Modify paid bereavement leave language to allow for non-consecutive leave
days taken for bereavement.

70 of 594



City Council Report  
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023 3 

• Modify overtime threshold to include sick leave in addition to holidays as “hours
worked” and redefine call back as all hours worked outside of regular schedule.

• Provide reimbursement of bridge toll for call backs.
• Increase vacation buy back hours from 52 to 80 hours per year.
• Update medical insurance premium cost share language to continue past

practice.
• Revise language to clarify (not modify) the retiree medical benefit provisions.
• Provide union with monthly listing of member information.

All economic and non-economic revisions, agreed to by the City and AFSCME Local 
512, in addition to other formatting or housekeeping changes, are identified in the 
attached redline version of the MOU between the City and AFSCME Local 512 
(Attachment C).  

The City continues to appreciate the willingness of our employees to complete 
negotiations in a cooperative spirit and we are pleased to be able to provide an increase 
in our employees’ base salaries and total compensation. This agreement represents an 
amenable compromise between the City and our employees and will increase retention 
and recruitment of experienced employees. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The total cost of the provisions for this bargaining unit under a two-year agreement is 
estimated at $543,634. However, the adopted FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital 
Budget already included a 3% COLA, so the net additional total cost is estimated at 
$321,297. 

The total costs are spread over various City funds, depending on each employee’s 
staffing allocation. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A  Resolution 
Exhibit A - Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole 
and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
Union Local 512 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025 

Attachment B Total Tentative Agreement – signed July 20, 2023, and ratified August 
1, 2023 

Attachment C Redlined Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole 
and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
Union Local 512 

71 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, 
COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFSCME) UNION LOCAL 512 FOR THE 

PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2023 – JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole and 
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Union 
Local 512 expired on June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 3505, the City’s 
Negotiating Team met and conferred in good faith with representatives of AFSCME 
Local 512 to negotiate a successor agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, representatives of the City and AFSCME Local 512 first met to 

commence negotiations on March 21, 2023, and reached a Total Tentative Agreement 
for a successor Memorandum of Understanding on July 20, 2023, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City agreed to retroactivity of the economic changes to the 

Memorandum of Understanding effective the first full pay period following June 30, 
2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Total Tentative Agreement for a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025, was ratified by the 
membership of AFSCME Local 512 on August 1, 2023.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
that it does hereby approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025, as 
provided in Exhibit A, herein incorporated by reference. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on August 15, 2023 the by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 

72 of 594



I hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this 15th day of August, 2023. 
  
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 

73 of 594



 

AFSCME 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

 
 
 

Between the City of Pinole and the 
Professional and Technical Employees 

Represented by AFSCME Local 512 
 
 
 
 

 

JULY 1, 2023 TO JUNE 30, 2025 
 

 
 

74 of 594



ii 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
PREAMBLE ......................................................................................................... 1 
ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS .................................................................................. 1 
ARTICLE II.  RECOGNITION .............................................................................. 2 

2.1 Job Classifications in the Unit. ............................................................... 2 
ARTICLE III.  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .............................................................. 2 

3.1 Management Rights Defined.................................................................. 3 
ARTICLE IV.  DUES DEDUCTION ...................................................................... 4 

4.1 Amount/Authorization. .............................................................................. 4 
4.2 Increases/Non-Pay Status. ..................................................................... 4 
4.3 Hold Harmless. ........................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE V.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES ........................................................ 5 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. ........................................ 5 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. ............................................................ 5 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. .............................................................. 5 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. .............................................................................. 5 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. ................................................. 5 

ARTICLE VI.  SALARIES .................................................................................... 5 
6.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. ............................................. 5 
6.2 Pay Plan. ...................................................................................................... 6 
6.3 Longevity ...................................................................................................... 6 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits ........................................................................................ 6 
6.5  Job Descriptions. ....................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE VII.  HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME .......................................... 6 
7.1 Workweek Defined. ................................................................................... 6 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule. ....................................................................... 7 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. ........................................................................... 7 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. ......................... 7 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. .................... 7 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. .............................................. 8 
7.7 Fair Labor Standards Act- Exempt/Non Exempt Status. ............... 8 
7.8 Call Back and Overtime. .......................................................................... 8 
7.9 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. .............................................. 9 
7.10 Court Appearance on Off Duty Hours. ................................................ 9 
7.11 Meal Allotment. ........................................................................................... 9 
7.12 Rest Periods. ............................................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE VIII.  CAR ALLOWANCE .................................................................. 10 
8.1 Car Allowance. .......................................................................................... 10 

75 of 594



iii 

ARTICLE IX.  STANDBY PAY ........................................................................... 10 
9.1 Employees Assigned. ............................................................................. 10 
9.2 City Issued Mobile Communication Device Assignments. .......... 10 
9.3 Standby Protocol...................................................................................... 10 
9.4 Standby Schedule Assignments. ........................................................ 11 
9.5 Rest Periods While on Standby. ......................................................... 11 
9.6 Amount of Standby Pay. ........................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE X  MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT WHEN CALLED BACK TO WORK 
 .............................................................................................................. 12 
10.1 Mileage Reimbursement-Portal to Portal. ........................................ 12 

ARTICLE XI.  CITY ISSUED MOBILE COMMUNICATION DEVICE PAY-24/7 
REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................. 12 
11.1 Employees Assigned. ............................................................................. 12 
11.2 Method of Assignment. .......................................................................... 12 
11.3 Amount of City Issued Mobile Communication Device Pay 

24/7. ............................................................................................................. 12 
11.4 Mileage Reimbursement While on 24/7 City Issued Mobile 

Communication Device Responsibility. ............................................. 13 
ARTICLE XII.  ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION ................................... 13 

12.1 Acting Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. ................................................ 13 
ARTICLE XIII.  JURY DUTY LEAVE ................................................................. 13 

13.1 Jury Duty Leave. ...................................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE XIV.  SICK LEAVE ............................................................................ 13 

14.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. .................................................................. 13 
14.2 Sick Leave Incentive. .............................................................................. 14 
14.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. .................................................... 14 
14.4 Use of Sick Leave. ................................................................................... 14 
14.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. ...................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE XV.   HOLIDAYS ............................................................................... 14 
15.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. ................................................................... 15 
15.2 List of Official Holidays. .......................................................................... 15 
15.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. ......................................... 16 
15.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. .................... 16 
15.5 Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. ............................. 16 

ARTICLE XVI.  VACATION ............................................................................... 16 
16.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. ....................................................... 16 
16.2    Vacation Sell Back. .................................................................................... 16 
16.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. ...................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE XVII.  MEDICAL INSURANCE .......................................................... 17 
17.1 Medical Insurance Provided. ................................................................ 17 
17.2     Retiree Medical Insurance. ..................................................................... 17 
17.3 Medical In-Lieu. ........................................................................................ 19 

ARTICLE XVIII.  DENTAL INSURANCE ........................................................... 19 
18.1 Dental Insurance Provided. .................................................................. 19 
18.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. ........................................................ 20 

76 of 594



iv 

ARTICLE XIX.  VISION INSURANCE ................................................................ 20 
19.1 Vision Insurance Provided. ................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE XX.  LIFE INSURANCE ..................................................................... 20 
20.1 Life Insurance Provided. ........................................................................ 20 
20.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. ........................................................... 20 

ARTICLE XXI.  DISABILITY INSURANCE ........................................................ 20 
21.1 Disability Insurance Provided. .............................................................. 21 
21.2 Disability Insurance Premium Rates. ................................................. 21 
21.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade.Error! Bookmark not defined. 

ARTICLE XXII.  DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION 
COVERAGE ......................................................................................... 21 
22.1 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. ............................... 21 
22.2 Medical, Dental, Vision Premium Rates. .......................................... 21 
22.3 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN. .............................................................. 21 

ARTICLE XXIII.  TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM ............................. 21 
23.1 Tuition Reimbursement Eligibility. ....................................................... 21 

ARTICLE XXIV.  INCENTIVE PAYS .................................................................. 22 
24.1 Educational Degree. ............................................................................... 22 
24.2 Bilingual Pay. ............................................................................................ 22 

ARTICLE XXV.  RETIREMENT PLAN ............................................................... 23 
25.1 Retirement Plan Defined. ...................................................................... 23 
25.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. ................................. 23 
25.3 CalPERS Contract Benefits. ................................................................. 23 

ARTICLE XXVI.  UNIFORM LAUNDRY SERVICE, AND SAFETY SHOE 
ALLOWANCE ...................................................................................... 24 
26.1 Uniform Laundry Service. ...................................................................... 24 
26.2 Safety Shoes. ............................................................................................ 24 

ARTICLE XXVII.  CERTIFICATION FEES ......................................................... 24 
27.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. .......................... 24 
27.2 Payment of Department Of Transportation License Fees. .......... 24 
27.3  Payment of Above-Grade Certification for Wastewater Employees.24 

ARTICLE XXIX.  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ....................................................... 25 
29.1 Paid Bereavement Leave ...................................................................... 25 
29.2 Immediate Family Defined. ................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE XXX.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ................................................... 25 
30.1 Grievance Defined. .................................................................................. 25 
30.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. ......................................................... 25 
30.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. ............................................................ 25 
30.4 Grievance Process. ................................................................................. 26 
30.5 Grievance Procedure. ............................................................................. 26 
30.6 Employee Appeals Board. ..................................................................... 27 
30.7 Non-Binding Confidential Mediation. ................................................. 28 
30.8 Employee Appeals Board or Mediator Recommendation to City 

Manager. .................................................................................................... 28 

77 of 594



v 

ARTICLE XXXI.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION ........................................................ 28 
31.1 Disciplinary Action ................................................................................... 28 
31.2 Causes for Disciplinary Action ............................................................. 29 
31.3 Forms of Discipline .................................................................................. 31 
31.4 Authority of Disciplinary Action ............................................................ 31 
31.5 Procedures for Written Reprimand ..................................................... 31 
31.6 Notice of Intended Discipline ................................................................ 31 
31.7 Notice of Discipline .................................................................................. 32 
31.8 Post-Disciplinary Appeal ........................................................................ 32 
31.9 Waiver of Steps or Time Limits ............................................................ 33 

ARTICLE XXXII. LAYOFF/REDUCTION IN HOURS ......................................... 34 
32.1 Layoff Policy .............................................................................................. 34 
32.2 Notification ................................................................................................. 34 
32.3 Order of Layoff .......................................................................................... 34 
32.4 Vacancy, Demotion, Retreat, and Seniority ..................................... 34 
32.5 Reinstatement List ................................................................................... 35 
32.6 Reinstatement ........................................................................................... 35 
32.7 Layoff of At-Will Employees .................................................................. 35 
32.8 Reduction in Hours .................................................................................. 36 

ARTICLE XXXIII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD ................................................... 36 
33.1 Objective of the Probationary Period ................................................. 36 
33.2 Probationary Period ................................................................................ 37 
33.3 Promotional Probationary Period ........................................................ 37 

ARTICLE XXXIV. ............................................................................................... 37 
UNION MEMBERSHIP, DUE DEDUCTION, AND NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

 .............................................................................................................. 37 
34.2 Annual AFSCME Local 512 Financial Reports Required. ........... 38 

ARTICLE XXXV.  DURATION ........................................................................... 40 
35.1 Term. ........................................................................................................... 40 
35.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. ................................................ 40 
35.3 Notice of Termination. ............................................................................ 40 
35.4 Effective Date. ........................................................................................... 40 
35.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes. .. 40 

 
SIGNATURES ..................................................................................................... 41 
ATTACHMENT A.  SALARY SCHEDULES ....................................................... 42 
ATTACHMENT B.  RESOLUTION ..................................................................... 43 
 
 

78 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

The City of Pinole and representatives of AFSCME Local 512 acknowledge and affirm 
that they have met and conferred in good faith, exchanged proposals and counter 
proposals and in all respects fulfilled their obligations under law to meet and confer in 
good faith. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is the product of the above-described meet and 
confer process. Representatives of the City agree to present this Memorandum of 
Understanding to the City Council for determination and representatives of the AFSCME 
Local 512 agree to present this Memorandum of Understanding to their membership for 
acceptance and approval. 
 
PREAMBLE 
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2001, the City of Pinole received a request from the 
American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)-Local 512 
to be recognized as the exclusive representative for employer-employee bargaining 
purposes of a bargaining unit comprised of Professional and Technical employees of 
the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council on January 15, 2002 approved Resolution Number 
103-2002 which officially recognized AFSCME Local 512 as the exclusive bargaining 
unit for the Professional and Technical employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and AFSCME Local 512 subsequently negotiated a 

Memorandum of Understanding, which was developed by mutual agreement of all 
parties; and 

 
WHEREAS, both the City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 are mutually interested 

in making certain modifications to this Memorandum of Understanding; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the following agreement represents a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Pinole and the Professional and Technical 
employees represented by AFSCME Local 512 with the term of July 1, 2023, through 
June 30, 2025.  
 
 
ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 "City" referred to herein shall be the City of Pinole. 
 
1.2 "Union" referred to herein shall be AFSCME Local 512. 
 
1.3 "Employee" referred to herein shall be all regular full-time and regular part-time 

employees of the City of Pinole in the job classifications set forth in Article 2 of 
this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

79 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  2 

1.4 "Agreement" referred to herein shall be this Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City and the Union. 

 
 
ARTICLE II.  RECOGNITION 
 
2.1 Job Classifications in the Unit. 
 
The Professional and Technical unit consists of the following job classifications: 

 
Accountant 
Accounting Specialist 
Administrative Coordinator 
Associate Civil Engineer 
Associate Planner 
Building Inspector I 
Building Inspector II 
Cable Access Coordinator 
Code Enforcement Officer I 
Code Enforcement Officer II 
Information Systems Administrator 
Information Systems Specialist 
Laboratory Analyst I 
Laboratory Analyst II 
Laboratory Supervisor 
Management Analyst 
Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
Public Works Specialist 
Recreation Coordinator 
Rental Inspector 
Senior Project Manager 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor 
Water Pollution Control Plant Supervisor 

 
The City agrees to recognize the Union as the exclusive representative of future 
positions appropriate to the unit, and agrees to meet and confer with the Union in all 
matters relating to wages, hours and working conditions of employees in such 
classifications.  
 
The City further reserves the right to exclude from the unit, those management and 
confidential employees so designated. The City also agrees to provide appropriate 
information, furnished by the Union and approved by the City Manager, to all new 
employees of the Union's recognition. 
 
 
ARTICLE III.  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

80 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  3 

 
3.1 Management Rights Defined. 
 
Unless specifically in conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), all 
management rights shall remain vested exclusively with the City.  City management 
rights include but are not limited to, all rights set forth in the City’s Employer Employee 
Labor Relations Resolution, and each of the following: 
 

a. The right to determine the mission of the City, including without limitation 
the City’s agencies, departments, divisions, institutions, boards, and 
commissions; 

 
b. The right of full and exclusive control of the management of the City; 

supervision of all operations; determinations of methods, means, locations 
and assignments of performing all work; and the composition, assignment, 
direction, location and determination of the size and mission of the work 
force; 

 
c. The right to determine the work to be done by employees, including 

establishment of service levels, appropriate staffing and the allocation of 
funds for any position(s) within the City; 

 
d. The right to review and inspect, without notice, all City-owned facilities, 

including without limitation, desktop computers, work areas and desks, 
email, computer storage drives, voicemail systems, as well as filing 
cabinets and systems; 

 
e. The right to change or introduce different, new or improved operations, 

technologies, methods or means regarding any City work, and to contract 
out for work, however, the City will meet and discuss with the bargaining 
unit representative prior to contracting out for work normally completed by 
classifications within the bargaining unit.  The City will meet with the Union 
no later than December 31, 2023, to provide the current status and review 
bargaining unit work contracted out at the time of ratification; 

 
f. The right to establish and modify qualifications for employment, including 

the content of any job classification, job description or job announcement, 
and to determine whether minimum qualifications are met; 

 
g. The right to maintain and modify the City’s Pay and Classification Plan 

subject to “meet and confer” requirements; 
h. The right to establish and enforce Employee Performance Standards and 

Employee Performance Evaluations; 
 
i. The right to schedule and assign work, make reassignments and assign 

overtime work; 

81 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  4 

 
j. The right to hire, fire, promote, reassign, transfer, release, discipline, 

layoff, terminate, demote, suspend or reduce in step or grade all 
employees; 

 
k. The right to establish and modify bargaining units and to assign new or 

amended job classifications to particular bargaining units; 
 
l. The right to inquire and investigate regarding complaints or concerns 

about employee performance deficiencies or misconduct of any sort, 
including the right to require employees to appear and respond truthfully in 
good faith regarding any City investigation; and 

 
m. The right to maintain orderly, effective and efficient operations. 

 
 
ARTICLE IV.  DUES DEDUCTION 
 
4.1 Amount/Authorization. 
 
The City shall deduct, once a month, the amount of union dues, as specified by the 
Union under the authority of an authorization card furnished by the Union and signed by 
the employee. Said deductions shall be forwarded promptly to the Union office. No 
authorization shall be allowed for payment of initiation fees, assessments or fines. 
 
4.2 Increases/Non-Pay Status. 
 
In the event the Union members vote to increase Union dues, the Union shall notify the 
City at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the dues increase. The 
employee earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and required deductions 
are made to cover the amount of the appropriate Union dues. When a member in good 
standing of the Union is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will 
be made to cover that pay period.  
 
In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during only part of the pay 
period, and the wages are not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall 
be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions have priority over 
Union dues. 
 
4.3 Hold Harmless. 
 
The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any claims made 
and against any suits instituted against the City on account of payroll deductions of 
Union dues. The Union agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it in error on 
account of the payroll deduction provision upon presentation of proper evidence thereof. 
 

82 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  5 

 
ARTICLE V.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined.  
 
The Union may designate at least one (1) employee and not more than three (3) 
employees as its steward(s) for the purpose of assisting other Union members in the 
resolution of disputes concerning wages, hours and working conditions. 
 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”.  
 
The City shall afford said stewards reasonable time off during working hours without 
loss of compensation or other benefits when engaged in the activities articulated under 
Government Code Section 3505.3 ; This is provided, however, that said time is 
scheduled so as not to interfere unduly with the workload and job requirements as 
determined by the Department Manager or Supervisor, and provided that such time 
afforded under this provision shall be devoted only to matters within the scope of 
representation. 
 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee.  
 
The Union may also designate a committee to meet and confer with the City's 
representatives regarding matters within the scope of representation. A maximum of 
three (3) members including the President of the Union shall be afforded reasonable 
time off during working hours without loss of compensation or other benefits while 
formally meeting and conferring, within the scope of representation. 
 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors.   
 
Union member(s) or steward(s) engaged in such activities shall first obtain approval 
from supervisors before leaving their assigned work areas on such business. The 
request shall not be unreasonably denied. 
 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings.   
 
All members of the Union shall be allowed a one-half hour release time each quarter for 
Union meetings. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI.  SALARIES 
 
6.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. 
 
6.1.1 Cost of Living Adjustment. 
 

83 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  6 

Effective first full pay period following July 1, 2023, classifications represented by the 
Union shall receive a four percent (4%) wage increase. 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2024, classifications represented by 
the Union shall receive a four percent (4%) wage increase. 
 
6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustment. 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2023, the following classifications 
represented by the Union shall receive equity increase adjustments in addition and 
concurrent with the above COLA for 2023: 
 
• Management Analyst  twelve and nine-tenths percent (12.9%) 
• PW Maintenance Supervisor fourteen and three-tenths percent (14.3%) 
• Recreation Coordinator  fifteen and eight-tenths percent (15.8%) 
6.2 Pay Plan. 
 
Attachment A reflects the salary steps for each represented position. 
 
6.3 Longevity 
 
Effective the full pay period following July 1, 2023 employees with fifteen (15) full 
continuous years of City services shall be given an additional three percent (3%) pay 
computed on their base hourly rate of pay. This benefit shall not compound, nor be 
compounded by, any other additional compensation. 
 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits 
 
For part-time regular employee(s), covered under this MOU, working at least 20 hours 
per week and less than 40 hours per week, compensation and benefits received other 
than the base hourly wage rate, shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours 
regularly scheduled to work in relation to full-time (forty-hour per workweek) employees 
or as defined by federal, state, lor local law, whichever is greater.   
 
6.5  Job Descriptions. 
The City will maintain job descriptions for each of the represented job classifications as 
listed in Section 2.1. 
 
 
ARTICLE VII.  HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
7.1 Workweek Defined. 
 
The employee's regular workday typically consists of eight hours and the workweek 
shall consist of a seven consecutive day period, Monday through Sunday. The standard 
City work period is a calendar week which begins at 12:00 am on Monday and ends 

84 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  7 

11:59 pm on Sunday.  Other schedules may be assigned consistent with Section 7.9 of 
this Agreement. The City reserves the right to assign new employees to other work 
weeks and will provide two consecutive days off. Where new workweeks are planned by 
the City, they shall be subject to discussion with and review by the Union. Any change 
in special workweeks, not otherwise provided for under this agreement, now in effect, 
shall be reviewed by the City and the Union. 
 
The City shall inform employees thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any permanent 
working hour change (s), which are to be made. It is understood that in cases of natural 
disasters or emergencies that this would not be necessary on a temporary basis. 
Emergency is defined as an unpredictable or unavoidable occurrence at unscheduled 
intervals requiring immediate action. An unpredictable occurrence is unplanned and 
unanticipated. An unavoidable occurrence permits one to have advance knowledge of 
the likelihood of the event. 
 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule. 
 
The City has the right to schedule overtime work as required in the manner most 
advantageous to the City and consistent with the requirement of municipal employment 
and the public interest. Overtime work assignments shall first be offered on a voluntary 
basis to employees, after which assignments shall be made by the Department 
Manager. 
 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. 
 
Overtime preference, insofar as practical, shall be given to the regular, full-time 
employees and on a seniority basis in the classification or position involved. Overtime 
work shall also be distributed equally among qualified employees insofar as possible. 
 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
For employees who work a regular schedule, overtime compensation shall be earned 
for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours during a seven day work period. Current 
City practice/policy is to include hours in paid leave status for holidays as outlined in 
Section 15.2 (excluding floating holidays) toward employees’ overtime thresholds. 
 
Effective the first full pay period after adoption, hours in paid leave status for holidays as 
outlined in Section 15. 2 (excluding floating holiday(s)) and sick leave used will count 
toward time worked for purposes of determining eligibility for the overtime rate. 
 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
The City of Pinole provides its employees the opportunity of alternative work schedules 
whereby some alternative work schedules include working more than eight (8) hours a 
day and less than five days a week. The shift duration hours, workweek, and work 
period for payroll purposes will be redefined on a case-by-case basis depending on the 

85 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  8 

alternative work schedule that has been approved and the related FLSA rules.  In these 
instances, at no time is the workweek defined as being more than forty (40) hours in a 
week.  
 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. 
 
Compensation for overtime hours worked shall be paid at one and one-half times the 
employee's base hourly rate in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 
Compensatory time off at the rate of one and one-half times the number of overtime 
hours worked may be accrued at the employee's request in lieu of time and one-half 
pay.  
 
Compensatory time off may be used at times convenient to the employee and the 
department provided that a reasonable advance notice of intent to use such time off is 
provided by the employee and approved by the Department. At no time shall accrued 
compensatory time off balance exceed eighty (80) hours. 
 
7.7 Fair Labor Standards Act- Exempt/Non Exempt Status. 
 
The City reserves the right to determine under the FLSA requirements whether or not a 
job classification is exempt or non-exempt for FLSA purposes.  Prior to changing the 
FLSA designation of a job classification represented by AFSCME, the City agrees to 
discuss the proposed changes with AFSCME under “meet and confer”. 
 
7.8 Call Back and Overtime. 
 
Employees called back to work shall be compensated for at least three (3) hours of pay 
at the rate of time and one-half the employee's basic hourly rate plus mileage 
reimbursement at the established IRS mileage rate for all hours outside their regular 
work schedule.  At the discretion of their Supervisor an employee called back to work 
shall be required to work the full three (3) hours. 
 
A request for an employee to continue work beyond the employee’s regular work 
schedule does not constitute “call back.” 
 
If in the event the three (3) hour call back period overlaps with the employee’s regular 
work schedule, the employee shall be entitled to the time and one-half rate for the hours 
worked prior to the beginning of their regular work schedule.  In addition, if the call back 
period overlaps the employee’s regular work schedule, the employee shall receive their 
regular rate of pay plus an additional .5 hours for each hour of overlap. 
 
For example:  Employee’s regular work schedule is from 7:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. (8 
hours).  Employee is called back to work at 6:00 a.m.  Employee is entitled to time and 
one-half pay rate from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., and from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. the 
employee receives two (2) hours of regular pay plus call back of .5 hours for each hour 

86 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  9 

of overlap (overlapping period).  The .5 hours reflects the difference between the 
employee’s regular rate of pay and the callback rate of pay. 
 
7.9 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. 
 
Based on mutual agreement of the City and the employee given City needs and staffing 
requirements, employees are eligible for alternative work hours or flexible hours. These 
schedules must be approved by the City Manager prior to any implementation and must 
meet all FLSA requirements. 
 
Alternative Work Schedule: 
 
A regular schedule that is other than the standard 5/8 schedule (eight hours per day, 
five days per week). Examples include a 4/10 schedule (ten hours per day, four days 
per week) or a 9/80 schedule (eight, nine-hour days and one eight-hour day with one 
day off in a biweekly pay period). Such alternatives are offered to allow workable 
schedules for employer and employee and must not create overtime as required under 
any of the Articles of this agreement or as required by law. 
 
Flex-Time Work Schedule:  
 
A non-regular work schedule with or without a consistent pattern as to the number of 
work hours per day or week, but an arrangement whereby the employee is obligated to 
perform work and be responsible for flexing the hours of his/her own work schedule in 
accordance with a written agreement between the employee and the City. 
 
7.10 Court Appearance on Off Duty Hours. 
 
Any employee appearing as a witness in court during off-duty hours and arising out of 
his/her employment by the City shall receive compensation.  If the time is considered 
overtime then the employee shall be compensated at the overtime rate; otherwise, it 
shall be compensated at the base hourly rate. 
 
7.11 Meal Allotment.  
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall reimburse each employee in the 
Local 512 Unit who is required to work more than four (4) hours prior to the beginning of 
their regular work shift or more than four (4) hours after completing their regular work 
shift a total of $15 for the cost of a meal.   
 
If an employee is required to work a sixth (6th) or seventh (7th) day during any regular 
scheduled workweek, the City shall also reimburse said employee a total of $15 for the 
cost of a meal. This meal allotment shall be paid to the employee at the next regular 
payroll after the meal is incurred. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 

87 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  10 

 
7.12 Rest Periods.  
 
Employees working a scheduled shift of six (6) hours or more shall be provided with one 
(1) fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) of the work day.  Rest 
periods shall be scheduled so as not to interfere with efficient operations of the City.  
Rest periods shall not be taken at the beginning or end of the work day, not contiguous 
with the employee’s lunch break.  Rest periods shall not be “banked” – if an employee 
does not take an available rest period, it shall not be carried over to the second half of 
the work shift or any subsequent day. 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  CAR ALLOWANCE 
 
8.1 Car Allowance. 
 
Effective July 1, 2005, the classification of Cable Access Coordinator shall receive a car 
allowance of $200.00 per month. 
 
 
ARTICLE IX.  STANDBY PAY 
 
9.1 Employees Assigned. 
 
Employees assigned to the classifications of Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations 
Supervisor, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor, Laboratory Supervisor, Laboratory 
Analyst I, and Laboratory Analyst II, shall be eligible for Standby Pay. These employees 
are required to remain continuously available, in accordance with Article 9.2, for the 
time period assigned to respond to calls for service.  
 
9.2 City Issued Mobile Communication Device Assignments.  
 
City Issued Mobile Communication Device will be carried by employee(s) assigned to 
standby in accordance with 9.1.  Employees assigned to standby who use their 
personal mobile communication device shall receive a stipend of thirty dollars ($30) per 
month until such time as a City mobile communication device is assigned by the City to 
the employee. There will be a seventy (70) mile radius limit from the City of Pinole for 
persons assigned a City Issued Mobile Communication Device or persons who receive 
a stipend. 
 
9.3 Standby Protocol. 
 
The City utilizes the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) for 
monitoring plant operations and processes.  The SCADA System is the primary method 
used for notification to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor and 
Environmental Analyst employees assigned to Standby for emergencies and alarms.  

88 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  11 

SCADA will call the first employees twice within a 30-minute period and in 15-minute 
intervals.  If that employee does not respond by calling in and acknowledging the call, 
then SCADA will call the next employee who is required to respond and will be eligible 
for Standby pay.  
 
Employees in the class Public Works Maintenance Supervisor who are required to 
perform services integral to their assigned job responsibilities in order to provide 
continuous public service and who are required to be available and respond after hours, 
will be eligible for standby pay.  
 
The person not assigned to be on Standby and who responds to the call will be 
compensated for the Standby duty at the Standby holiday rate for that day. Employees 
on Standby not responding to a call will not be paid for that day (except if they had 
responded to another call and are unavailable). 
 
9.4 Standby Schedule Assignments. 
 
Schedule changes will have to be approved by the Public Works Director/City Engineer 
through the Public Works Manager, Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager or the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor at least five working days in 
advance of the change. 
 
Persons who are sick or unable to work call outs will notify their immediate supervisor in 
order that the beeper may be reassigned. The replacement of person on sick leave, 
worker's compensation leave or on other approved leave will be on a voluntary basis. 

 
If there are no volunteers, the next person on the schedule will be the person to carry 
the cellular device. He or she will be paid at the standby rate for holidays while covering 
an unscheduled standby shift. 

 
9.5 Rest Periods While on Standby. 
 
An employee on Standby who is called out prior to 5:00 a.m. and who performs work 
shall have a rest period of six (6) hours preceding the employee's next regularly 
scheduled work shift. An employee who qualifies for this rest period shall be paid for all 
rest hours that overlap into their next regularly scheduled work shift. Such rest hours 
shall not be considered “hours worked” and will not be included in determining if an 
employee has worked overtime hours. 
 
In the event of an emergency or a work related situation or problem wherein said 
employee is required to work, as determined by the supervisor, said employee shall 
report to work as normally scheduled at the overtime pay rate for the designated rest 
period. 

 
9.6 Amount of Standby Pay. 
 

89 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  12 

The City agrees to pay the standby designee as follows: 
 
• Weekday  $40 per day 
• Weekend  $50 per day 
• Holiday  $60 per day 

 
 
ARTICLE X MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT WHEN CALLED BACK TO WORK. 
 
10.1 Mileage Reimbursement-Portal to Portal. 
 
Mileage reimbursement from portal-to-portal travel shall be paid to employees driving 
their personal vehicles when called back pursuant to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
rate in effect for all City travel.  Portal-to-portal travel reimbursement shall also include 
any applicable bridge toll charges. 
 
 
ARTICLE XI.  City Issued Mobile Communication Device PAY-24/7 
REQUIREMENTS 
 
11.1 Employees Assigned.   
 
Designated employees assigned to carry a City Issued Mobile Communication Device 
are required to remain continuously available for the time period assigned to respond to 
calls for service.  
 
11.2 Method of Assignment.   
 
The Department Manager shall make assignments for City Issued Mobile 
Communication Devices with City Manager approval. During the term of this MOU, the 
following job classifications are required to carry a City Issued Mobile Communication 
Device: 
 

• Cable Access Coordinator 
• Water Pollution Control Plant Supervisor 

 
If a Department Manager and/or the City determines that it is necessary to identify 
additional classifications other than those listed above to carry a City Issued Mobile 
Communication Device, the City will “meet and confer” with AFSCME Local 512 
representatives prior to implementation with the exception of a temporary emergency 
situation. 
 
11.3 Amount of City Issued Mobile Communication Device Pay 24/7. 
 

90 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  13 

During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the designated job classifications a 
total of $250 per month for carrying a City Issued Mobile Communication Device and 
responding as appropriate.  
 
11.4 Mileage Reimbursement While on 24/7 City Issued Mobile Communication 
Device Responsibility.   
 
With the exception of the Cable Access Coordinator who receives a car allowance, 
those employees who are outlined in Section 11.2 are eligible to receive mileage 
reimbursement from portal to portal travel if they are called back to work.  Mileage 
reimbursement shall be paid pursuant to the City adopted Internal Revenue Services 
(IRS) mileage reimbursement rate in effect for all city travel. 
 
 
ARTICLE XII.  ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION 
 
12.1 Acting Pay Defined and Rate of Pay.  
 
In the event an employee is assigned and performs the majority of the duties in a higher 
classification, following the fifth consecutive work day in that classification, he/she shall 
be placed at the lowest step of the higher classification that provides at least five 
percent (5%) above the employee’s base rate of pay, so long as the range for the higher 
classification is not exceeded.  
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the higher-level pay granted 
under this Section shall not inflate nor otherwise have any impact on any other special 
pays, allowances, or differentials granted by other portions of this Agreement. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIII.  JURY DUTY LEAVE  
 
13.1 Jury Duty Leave.  
 
An employee whose absence from work is required because of jury duty will be 
considered an excused absence with pay.  To receive full salary and benefits, the 
employee shall notify his/her supervisor three (3) days prior to jury duty and turn in to 
the Finance Department any payment for jury duty, excluding pay for travel and meals. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIV.  SICK LEAVE 
 
14.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned.  
 
For full-time employees working 40 or more hours a week, sick leave shall be earned 
and accrued at the rate of ninety-six (96) hours annually, one eight hours working day (8 
hours) for each continuous full calendar month of service, or 3.69 hours per pay period 

91 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  14 

in pay status. The employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period to earn 
accrued sick leave and accrual shall continue from the actual, initial date of most recent 
employment. Sick leave shall not be available to new employees prior to completion of 
three (3) continuous months of employment. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, hours shall accrue 
at a pro-rated rate based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work in 
relation to full-time. 
 
14.2 Sick Leave Incentive.   
 
Employee sick leave use shall be reviewed by the City at the end of each calendar year.  
Employees who do not use any sick leave for six consecutive months, July 1st through 
December 31st, and January 1st through June 30th, within the calendar year shall receive 
an additional four (4) hours of accrued vacation time.  Employees who do not use any 
sick leave for the entire calendar year (12 months) will receive an additional eight (8) 
hours of vacation time.  No employee may accrue more than eight (8) hours of vacation 
in any calendar year. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the number of 
hours received shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time. 
 
14.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care.  
 
Employees may use sick leave for illness or disability in his/her immediate family. 
Immediate family is defined in Article XXIX, Section 29.2. The maximum amount of sick 
leave that may be used for this purpose in any one calendar year shall be ten (10) 
working days. 
 
14.4 Use of Sick Leave.  
 
Employees may use sick leave in the event of a scheduled medical or dental 
appointment for the eligible employee, the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, or 
the employee’s dependent children that requires the employee’s absence from work. 
Sick leave shall not be available to new employees prior to completion of three (3) 
continuous months of employment. 
 
14.5 Other Use of Sick Leave.   
 
All other conditions regulating sick leave accruals and usage contained within the duly 
adopted City Personnel Rules and the City Family Leave Policy shall apply to all 
employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XV.   HOLIDAYS 

92 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  15 

 
15.1 Authorized Legal Holidays.  
 
In addition to the official holidays listed below, employees shall receive any day 
proclaimed by the President or Governor as a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, and 
shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. The granting of any paid time-off due to 
an Executive Order closing federal offices signed by the President of the United States 
shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year, employees  shall receive twelve (12) 
hours of floating holiday that may be taken on any day throughout a fiscal year (July 1 to 
June 30) with prior approval from an employee’s supervisor.    The twelve (12) hours of 
floating holiday shall not be carried forward to the next fiscal year or cashed out. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the number of 
hours received shall be pro-rated based on a percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time. 
 
15.2 List of Official Holidays. 
 
Employees shall receive twelve (12) annual paid holidays as follows: 
 

• January 1 New Year’s Day 
• Third Monday in January  Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
• Third Monday in February Washington’s Birthday 
• Last Friday in March Cesar Chavez Day 
• Last Monday in May Memorial Day 
• June 19 Juneteenth 
• July 4 Independence Day 
• First Monday in September Labor Day 
• November 11 Veteran’s Day 
• Fourth Thursday in November Thanksgiving 
• Fourth Friday in November Day after Thanksgiving 
• December 25 Christmas 

 
All Holidays are eight (8) hours regardless of the employee’s assigned shift.  For 
employees working an alternative or flex work schedule, when the holiday fall on a 
workday in which they are scheduled to work more than 8 hours, the employee may use 
their accrued vacation or compensatory time off to make o the difference between the 8 
hours and their scheduled hours or, subject to supervisor approval, the employee may 
make up the time within the workweek the holiday falls.  
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, each holiday (8 
hours) shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work 
in relation to full-time. 
 

93 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  16 

15.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday.  
 
In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the preceding 
Friday shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. In the event that any of the 
aforementioned days falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a 
holiday for pay purposes. 
 
15.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off.  
 
If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off the employee shall 
exercise one of the following options: 
 

• The employee shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay – providing a 
total of 88 hours of straight time pay for the pay period; OR 

 
• The employee shall take an alternate day off with holiday pay within two (2) pay 

periods (either in the same pay period as the holiday falls, or the following pay 
period).  The employee and his/her immediate supervisor shall determine the 
alternate day to be taken. 

 
15.5 Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday.  
 
An employee assigned by his/her Department Head to work on a holiday listed above 
shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay plus compensation at the overtime rate 
for hours actually worked on the holiday. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVI.  VACATION 
 
16.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. 
 
Upon supervisorial approval, employees shall be given their preference of requested 
vacation time, and in the case of conflict between employees, classification seniority 
shall prevail. 
 
16.2 Vacation Sell Back. 
 
An employee with a minimum of three (3) years of service has the option to sell back up 
to eighty (80) hours of vacation per calendar year provided the employee has a 
minimum of 160 hours of vacation accumulated. 
 
16.3 Rate of Vacation Earned.   
 
Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rates, to the following maximums, for 
continuous service performed: 
 
Years of Completed Service Hours Accrued Per Year/Pay Period  Maximum Accrual (Hrs) 

94 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  17 

 0 through 4       96/3.69    192 
 5 through 9     144/5.54    288 
 10 through 15    160/6.15    320 
 16+      192/7.38    384 
 
Once an employee reaches their maximum vacation accrual hours, they will no longer 
accrue vacation leave until they reduce their balance below the cap. Vacation will be 
accrued based on the years of service, by 26 pay periods to the second digit.  An 
employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period in order to accrue vacation 
leave. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, hours shall accrue 
at a pro-rated rate based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work in 
relation to full-time.  The maximum accrual cap shall be twice the pro-rated annual 
accrual.  A full-time employee who moves to a part-time position/status, and who has a 
vacation balance in excess of the pro-rated maximum amount, will be afforded six (6) 
months to use the excess accrued vacation and will continue to accrue vacation hours, 
at the pro-rated rate, during the six (6) month period.  The Supervisor will make every 
effort to grant vacation requests from an employee so situated.  If the requests cannot 
be granted, the excess vacation balance will be cashed-out. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVII.  MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
17.1 Medical Insurance Provided.   
 
For full-time regular employees, the City shall contribute toward the employee’s health 
premium as follows: 
 
Effective January 1, 2023 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2022 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 2024, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2023 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 2025, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2024 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Represented employees are free to choose any health care plan offered under the 
CalPERS Health Care Program. 
 
For part-time employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make a pro-
rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to 
work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
17.2     Retiree Medical Insurance. 

95 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  18 

 
During the term of this MOU the City will contribute toward retiree health premiums as 
follows: 
 
Existing City retirees and current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, 
receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium equal to that provided to 
current active employees. 
 
Current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, shall be offered the option to 
opt into the CalPERS Vesting Program upon retirement. If the employee opts-in to the 
CalPERS Vesting Schedule Program (GC 22893), the decision is irrevocable 
(permanent) as CalPERS does not allow the employee to opt out later. 
 
Current City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, will receive a City 
contribution toward their retiree health premium in an amount as described by the 
CalPERS Vesting Program (GC 22893), and summarized in the table below. 
 
The CalPERS Vesting Program is regulated by Government Code 22893 and applies to 
City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, and retired City employees hired 
before September 1, 2010, who voluntarily opt in upon retirement.  
 
Every year CalPERS calculates the State contribution rates towards retiree health 
premiums, referred to as State Annuitant Contribution Rates. If the rate or vested 
amount does not cover the entire cost of the health premium, the retired employee is 
responsible for the difference.  
 
A City retiree is eligible to receive a contribution towards the retiree medical premium if: 
 

1. The City retiree has a minimum of ten (10) years of CalPERS earned 
service credit to receive 50% of the employer contribution. 

a. Credited service is compensated CalPERS service time earned 
(G.C. 20069). 

b. Purchased “Additional Retirement Service Credit (ARSC)” does 
not qualify as it is not earned service. 

2. Five (5) of those ten (10) years of CalPERS earned service credit must 
be performed at the City of Pinole. 

a. Each additional CalPERS earned service credit year after the 
completion of ten years increases the City’s contribution 
percentage by 5% until the completion of 20 years, at which 
time the retiring employee is eligible for 100% of the State 
Annuitant Contribution Rate (100/90 formula). 

 
CalPERS Credited 
Years of Earned Service 

Percentage of City 
Contribution Based On  
The State’s Rate 

10  50  

96 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  19 

11  55  
12  60  
13  65  
14  70  
15  75  
16  80  
17  85  
18  90  
19  95  
20 or more  100  

 
17.3 Medical In-Lieu.  
 
Eligible full-time employees shall be allowed to receive payment in lieu of medical 
insurance as follows: 
 

• One-party coverage = $225 per month or $103.84 per pay period 
• Two-party coverage = $450 per month or $207.69 per pay period 
• Family coverage = $600 per month or $276.92 per pay period 

 
An employee must show proof of adequate medical insurance coverage under another 
health plan before the benefit may be received, and annually thereafter. Employees will 
be subject to provisions of the City's health plans in the event termination of in-lieu 
benefits and resumption of medical coverage is desired. 
 
Employees electing the medical in-lieu option shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
amount received for this option should their coverage election change. It is the duty of 
the employee to notify Human Resources of any such changes.  
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVIII.  DENTAL INSURANCE 
 
18.1 Dental Insurance Provided.    
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 and the employee’s eligible dependents, if desired.  Selection of 
the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City.  
 
The City-provided dental insurance plan provides for a maximum annual dental payout 
of $1,500 for each employee and for each employee’s eligible dependents.   
 

97 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  20 

For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make 
a pro-rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
18.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 and up to Family coverage if desired. Selection of the carrier is at 
the discretion of the City.  
 
The City-provided orthodontic insurance plan provides for a lifetime maximum 
orthodontic payout of $1,500 for each employee and for each employee’s eligible 
dependents. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIX.  VISION INSURANCE 
 
19.1 Vision Insurance Provided.   
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 for full family vision care coverage that provides for one 
examination, one set of lenses, and one frame per year. Selection of the carrier shall be 
at the discretion of the City.  The City provided plan shall provide for a $20 co-payment 
for examination and a $20 co-payment for materials. 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make 
a pro-rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XX.  LIFE INSURANCE 
 
20.1 Life Insurance Provided.   
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to provide term life insurance and 
accidental death and dismemberment insurance, for employees as defined in Section 
1.3 in the amount of one times (1x) the employee’s annual base wage salary. Selection 
of the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
20.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates.   
 
The City shall pay for all premium increases for life insurance coverage. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXI.  DISABILITY INSURANCE 

98 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  21 

 
21.1 Disability Insurance Provided.  
 
The City participates in CASDI for short term disabilities and shall provide a Long Term 
Disability (LTD) benefit as described in 21.2 for employees as defined in Section 1.3.  
The costs of the CASDI program are the responsibility of the employee, paid through 
payroll deductions. 
 
21.2 Long Term Disability Insurance. 
 

During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall provide employees as 
defined in Section 1.3, at its own expense, long term disability insurance of two-
thirds of salary up to six thousand dollars ($6,000) per month (four thousand 
dollars ($4,000) maximum benefit) with a 90-day waiting period. 

 
 
ARTICLE XXII.  DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION 

COVERAGE 
 
22.1 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined.  
 
A Domestic Partnership is defined pursuant to the California Family Code.  The City, in 
accordance with CalPERS regulations, will allow coverage for registered domestic 
partners of employees under the medical, dental and vision health care plans.  Prior to 
any coverage being provided, the employee must provide proof of domestic partnership 
registration with the California Secretary of State. 
 
22.2 Medical, Dental, Vision Premium Rates.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay health, dental and vision premiums 
as outlined in Articles XVII – XIX of this document.  Registered domestic partners 
meeting the above requirements shall be considered qualified dependents for the 
purposes of the City’s payment of these premiums. 
 
22.3 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN. 
 
The City will provide at its own expense a flexible benefit plan for bargaining unit 
members.  Selection of the benefit provider shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIII.  TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 
  
23.1 Tuition Reimbursement Eligibility. 
 
After completing one (1) year of service with the City, an employee will be eligible to 
participate in the tuition reimbursement program.  To be eligible, an employee must 

99 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  22 

satisfactorily complete three (3) or more semester units in qualifying job-related courses 
as approved by the Department Head and the City Manager.  
 
Upon completion of the course(s) with a passing grade of “C” or better, or “pass” if taken 
as pass/fail, the employee shall receive reimbursement for tuition, books and related 
expenses to a maximum annual amount of $600 per calendar year.  To receive 
reimbursement the employee must complete the Tuition Reimbursement form, submit 
copies of receipts for expenses, and proof of his/her final grade. 
 
All education or other training courses approved under this program shall be completed 
on an employee’s own time and at his/her own expense. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIV.  INCENTIVE PAYS 
 
24.1 Educational Degree.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City will pay those employees who have earned 
degrees from accredited college institutions, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, additional pay as follows: 
 

• Associate of Art/Science Degree  $ 75.00 per month or $34.61 per 
pay period 

• Bachelor of Art/Science Degree  $150.00 per month or $69.23 per 
pay period 

 
 
An employee is only eligible to receive educational degree premium pay for one-degree 
classification. An employee is not eligible to receive this pay for multiple degrees and/or 
disciplines. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
This Educational Degree Pay shall only be paid to employees holding a degree beyond 
that which is required for their classification, as outlined in the job description.  Effective 
July 1, 2010 employees currently receiving Degree Pay, who hold a position which 
requires the degree, shall continue to receive the pay until such time as they separate 
from employment or otherwise move from that position. 
 
24.2 Bilingual Pay.  

100 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  23 

 
During the term of this MOU, any employee who in the regular course of their 
employment and after successfully passing a City administered oral and written test, 
uses their bilingual proficiency on a regular basis for the benefit of the City shall receive 
bilingual pay of an additional 10% of their monthly base pay.  The City retains the 
discretion to determine which classifications/positions and which languages, are eligible.  
The benefit shall not compound, nor be compounded by, any other additional 
compensation.  
 
 
ARTICLE XXV.  RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
25.1 Retirement Plan Defined. 
 
The City shall contract with the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS) for the purpose of allowing employees to earn retirement benefits.  The City 
has contracted for at the 2.5% @ 55 Plan benefits for “Classic” members as defined by 
the PEPRA and CalPERS.  Employees who constitute “New” members may earn 
benefits under the 2% @ 62 Plan.  
 
25.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. 
 
Employees shall pay the full eight percent (8%) of the required CalPERS Employee 
Contribution Rate. 
 
The retirement contribution sharing formula for the CalPERS Employer Contribution 
Rate shall be as follows: 

 
A.    The employee’s total CalPERS contribution (combined Employee 

contribution and the Employee’s share of the City’s contribution) for 
employees shall be fifteen percent (15%). 

 
25.3 CalPERS Contract Benefits. 
 
The City currently participates through a contract in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS). For “Classic” Miscellaneous Members, the contract 
offers the following options: 
 

▪ Military Buy Back - The choice to participate in the CalPERS Military Buy 
Back program is solely at the discretion and cost of the employee.  

 
▪ Third Level 1959 Survivors Benefits 
 
▪ Single Highest Year Compensation Formula 
 
▪ Service Credit for Unused Sick Leave 

101 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  24 

 
 
ARTICLE XXVI.   UNIFORM LAUNDRY SERVICE, AND SAFETY SHOE 

ALLOWANCE 
 
26.1 Uniform Laundry Service. 
 
The City shall provide a weekly laundry service to job classifications for which the City 
requires standardized attire. The City maintains the ability to modify laundry service 
levels based on need requirement. In accordance with CalPERS compensation 
requirements, the cost of Uniform laundry services provided to an employee shall be 
reported as compensation to the employee. 
 
26.2 Safety Shoes. 
 
The allowance provided by the City for the purchase of safety shoes for maintenance 
and related job classifications for which the City requires safety shoes, shall be $200.00 
per year paid the first pay period in July annually.   
 
New employees shall be provided the safety shoe allowance above by the second full 
pay period after initial appointment.  Thereafter, the employee shall be eligible to 
receive the annual safety show allowance in July as described above, but not sooner 
than twelve (12) months after initial appointment. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVII.  CERTIFICATION FEES 
 
27.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. 
 
Costs involved in the issuance and renewal of certificates required by the City as a 
condition of employment in a regular full-time status with the City shall be paid directly 
or reimbursed by the City to the employee. 
 
27.2 Payment of Department Of Transportation License Fees. 
 
Driver's license fees shall not be included as a reimbursable cost; however, driver's 
license fees related to Department of Transportation requirements for a Class A or B 
license and the related medical examination shall be paid by the City. 
 
27.3 Payment of Above-Grade Certification for Wastewater Employees. 
 
The City will pay those employees who work at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant 
and who obtain a higher-grade certificate than what is required in their assigned job 
classification $75 a month ($34.62 per pay period).  The City shall also reimburse an 
employee the fee for the above grade certificate cost once obtained.  The City shall 
compensate employee for only one certificate. 

102 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  25 

 
 
ARTICLE XXVIII.  PLACEHOLDER FOR FUTURE USE 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIX.  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
29.1 Paid Bereavement Leave  
 
Any employee who is absent from work by reason of the death of a member of his/her 
immediate family may be allowed a bereavement leave of absence with full pay not to 
exceed five (5) workdays per incident.  However, when it is reasonable and necessary, 
good cause is shown, and upon approval of the Department Head, three (3) additional 
days may be granted for such leave. All bereavement leave must be taken within one 
year of said incident.  The days which are used as bereavement time off do not have to 
be consecutive in nature.  Certification of loss may be required in certain circumstances. 
In order to receive compensation while absent on bereavement leave, the employee 
shall notify his/her immediate supervisor or the Department Head prior to the time set to 
begin his/her next shift.   
 
29.2 Immediate Family Defined. 
 
Immediate family shall include the father, mother, step father, step mother, grandfather, 
grandmother, grandchild, brother, sister, step sister, step brother, father-in-law, mother-
in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, spouse or registered 
domestic partner, child or stepchild of the eligible employee. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXX.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
30.1 Grievance Defined. 
 
A grievance is an unresolved complaint or dispute regarding the application or 
interpretation of this MOU, the City Personnel Rules, other applicable regulations, 
policies or procedures governing personnel practices or working conditions. 
 
30.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. 
 
Use of this procedure shall not reflect unfavorably on the employee, the Supervisor(s), 
the Department Manager(s), or the general management of the City. Retaliatory or 
discriminatory action against an employee for using this procedure or discrimination in 
the application of a rule or policy shall be a violation of City policy. 
 
30.3 Grievance Procedure Defined.   
 
This grievance procedure is established to accomplish the following objectives: 

103 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  26 

 
a.  To settle the disagreement at the employee-supervisor level, if possible. 

 
b. To provide an orderly procedure to handle the grievance through each 

level of supervision, if necessary. 
 

c. To resolve the grievance as quickly as possible. 
 

d. To correct, if possible, the cause of the grievance to prevent future similar 
complaints. 

e. To reduce the number of grievances by allowing them to be expressed 
thereby adjusting and eliminating grievances. 
 

f. To promote harmonious relations among employees, their supervisors, 
and the departmental staff. 

 
g. To ensure fair and equitable treatment of all employees. 

 
30.4 Grievance Process.  
 
The conduct of Grievance Process shall be as follows: 
 

a. An aggrieved employee may be represented by his/her recognized 
employee organization, other representative of his/her choosing,  or may 
represent him or herself in preparing and presenting his/her grievance at 
any level of review. 

 
b. The employee and his representative(s), if any, may use a reasonable 

amount of work time, as determined by the appropriate management 
supervisor, if conferring about and in presenting a grievance. 

 
c. Any monetary grievances shall be limited to the date the grievance was 

originally filed in writing or otherwise as provided in Step I of the 
Grievance Procedure, except in cases where it was impossible for the 
employee to have had prior knowledge of an accounting error. 

 
d. The time limit specified in this article may be extended by mutual 

agreement of the aggrieved employee and the reviewer concerned. 
 
e. Should a decision not be rendered within a stipulated time limit, the 

aggrieved employee may immediately appeal to the next step. 
 
f. The grievance may be considered settled if the decision of any step is not 

appealed within the specified time limit. 
 
30.5 Grievance Procedure. 

104 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  27 

 
The Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 
 

• Step 1.  
 

The aggrieved employee will first attempt to resolve the grievance through 
informal discussion with his or her immediate supervisor by the end of the tenth 
calendar day following the incident upon which the grievance is based. Every 
attempt will be made to settle the issue at this level. 
• Step 2.  

 
If the grievance is not resolved through the informal discussions, the aggrieved 
employee will reduce the grievance to writing and submit copies to his or her 
Department Manager and the Human Resources Director or his or her designee 
within ten (10) calendar days of the discussion with his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Department Manager shall have ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of a 
written grievance to review the matter and prepare a written response. 
 
 
• Step 3. 

 
If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the aggrieved employee may appeal 
the decision of his or her Department Manager to the City Manager in writing 
within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the Department Manager‘s 
response. If the employee wishes, he or she may request to have the grievance 
reviewed by an Employee Appeals Board, or a State Mediator, prior to review by 
the City Manager, and he or she must so indicate in his or her appeal to the City 
Manager. 
 

30.6 Employee Appeals Board. 
 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance to the Employee Appeals 
Board, the Board shall be convened to hear the grievance on its merits with the purpose 
of attempting to resolve it in a satisfactory manner. This Board shall consist of three (3) 
members. One member shall be appointed by the affected employee or the Union; one 
member shall be appointed by the City; and the third member, who shall act as 
chairperson, shall be selected by the other two members.  

 
No member of the Board shall be a person in the normal line of supervision nor from 
within the same department or division as the affected employee. No member of the 
Board shall be compensated by the City for serving on the Board except that if a City 
employee serves on the Board, he or she shall be released for such service without loss 
of regular straight time compensation during his/her normal work hours. 

 

105 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  28 

The Employee Appeals Board shall then determine the facts of the grievance and 
submit a report of its findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten 
(10) calendar days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and 
recommendations shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
 
30.7 Non-Binding Confidential Mediation. 
 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance to the non-binding confidential 
mediation instead of the Employee Appeals Board, the City Manager or designee and the 
employee or employee’s representative within ten (10) days shall mutually select a 
mediator, or if agreement on a mediator cannot be reached, the parties may request 
that a mediator be assigned by the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service.   
 
The fees and expenses of mediation shall be shared equally by the City and the Union.  
In the event the employee is not represented by the Union, these fees shall be borne by 
the City.  All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them and no party 
shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by another party, if any.   
 
The Mediator shall then determine the facts of the grievance and submit a report of 
his/her findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten (10) calendar 
days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and recommendations 
shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
 
30.8 Employee Appeals Board or Mediator Recommendation to City Manager. 

 
Upon receipt of the employee's appeal and/or report and recommendations of the 
Employee Appeals Board or Mediator, the City Manager may elect the methods he or 
she then considers appropriate to review and settle the grievance. He or she shall 
render a written decision to all parties directly involved within fifteen (15) calendar days 
after receiving the employee's appeal, or if the Employee Appeals Board or Mediation 
procedure was utilized, after receipt of the Employee Appeals Board/Mediator’s report.  
The decision of the City Manager shall be final and not subject to appeal or review by 
the City Council. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXXI.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
31.1 Disciplinary Action 

 
Disciplinary action proposed and/or imposed against an employee whose 
position is represented under a collective bargaining agreement shall be 
governed by the process(es) as defined within that employee’s collective 
bargaining agreement. The City Manager is authorized to develop a disciplinary 
action process for employees not represented by a collective bargaining 
agreement; however, such a process shall not waive the at-will employment 
status of said unrepresented employees. 

106 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  29 

 
31.2 Causes for Disciplinary Action 

 
Disciplinary action may be taken for any just cause.  Cause for disciplinary action 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, any of the following: 

 
1. Fraud of any kind; or misstatement or untruths or omissions of any 

material fact in the application process or in securing appointment or 
promotion; or falsification or untruths concerning records, fellow 
employees, or work performed. 

 
2. Incompetence, inefficiency or carelessness in the performance of required 

duties; Less than satisfactory performance. 
 
3. Neglect of or inattention to job duties, including the conduct of personal 

affairs during working hours. 
 
4. Insubordination - willful disobedience, or failure to obey any proper 

direction made and given by a superior officer or supervisor. 
 
5. Misconduct - willful or wanton disregard of the interests of the City, or 

deliberate violation or disregard of behavioral norms/expectations  
 
6. Conduct unbecoming an employee of the City. 

 
7. Any acts or omissions, which are either incompatible with or unfavorable 

to the public service, or which tend to bring reproach or discredit to the 
City. 

 
8. Discourteous or non-cooperative treatment of the public, City elected 

officials, employees, or volunteers; Offensive or obscene language in 
public, or towards the public, City elected officials, or employees. 

 
9. Dishonesty or immorality on the job. 
 
10. Endangering self or others, or failure to follow adopted safety practices, or 

failure to properly use required personal protective gear or equipment. 
 
11. Reporting for duty or being on duty under the influence of any intoxicant or 

absenting oneself from duty or rendering oneself unfit to perform fully 
one’s duties for reasons attributable to or produced by intoxicants; Failure 
to notify a supervisor, in writing, when the employee is taking prescription 
medication that can impair judgment or performance. 

12. Failure to report to work as scheduled or failure to notify supervisor, in 
accordance with department standards, of one’s inability to report to work; 
Abuse of sick leave privileges. 

107 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  30 

 
13. Failure to immediately report a vehicle accident. 
 
14. Intimidation or interference with the rights of any employee; Fighting, 

assault and/or battery on the public, City elected officials, employees or 
volunteers. 

 
15. Failure to maintain the necessary license or certification required by the 

class specification. 
 
16. Sleeping on the job. 
 
17. Conviction of a crime, the nature of which has a direct bearing on 

continued employment. 
 
18. Unauthorized leave of absence; failure to report to work after an 

authorized leave of absence has expired or after a requested leave of 
absence has been disapproved, revoked or canceled; or any other 
unauthorized absence from work. 

 
19. Misuse or misappropriation of City property or funds; carelessness or 

negligence with the monies or other property of the City; appropriating to 
the employee’s own use any property of the City, or loaning, selling or 
giving away such property without legal authorization. 

 
20. Theft or sabotage of City property or funds. 
 
21. Using or attempting to use political influence in attempting to secure 

promotion, leave of absence, transfer, change of rate of pay or character 
of work. 

 
22. Inducing or attempting to induce a City employee to commit an unlawful 

act in violation of any lawful department or official regulation or order. 
 
23. Taking for personal use, from any person, a fee, gift or other valuable 

thing in connection with official work when such fee, gift or other valuable 
thing is given in the expectation of receiving favored treatment. 

 
24. Violation of or failure to abide by any condition of employment stipulated in 

the Municipal Code, Personnel Rules, any City Policies and Procedures, 
collective bargaining agreement (if any), administrative memorandum, or 
lawful official regulation or order of the City. 

 
25. Failure to cooperate in an official inquiry or investigation into an alleged 

violation of this MOU or the Personnel Rules. 
 

108 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  31 

26. Working overtime without supervisory authorization. 
 
27. Engaging in outside employment without supervisory authorization. 
 
28. Bringing a gun or any other dangerous weapon onto City property. 

 
31.3 Forms of Discipline 

 
A. Written Reprimand 
B. Suspension 
C. Reduction in Step 
D. Involuntary Demotion (Note:  Termination of an incentive pay or assignment 

pay is not considered demotion.) 
E. Termination 

 
31.4 Authority of Disciplinary Action 

 
The Department Head has authority to take disciplinary action.  The immediate 
supervisor has the authority to issue a written reprimand.  The Human Resources 
Director shall be notified of any proposed or pending disciplinary action, beyond 
a written reprimand.  The decision of the City Manager or designee shall be final 
and not subject to review by or appeal to the City Council. 

 
31.5 Procedures for Written Reprimand 

 
Employees may request a review by the Department Head regarding a written 
reprimand by submitting a written request within ten (10) days from the date of 
the written reprimand.  The Department Head shall review the employee’s 
submission, may meet with the employee within ten (10) days of the filing of the 
request and shall issue written findings within ten (10) days of the 
review/meeting.  The employee shall be entitled to representation, but is not 
entitled to an evidentiary hearing or to present witnesses.  Written reprimands 
are not subject to the discipline procedures set forth in the below Sections 
regarding Notice of Intended Discipline, Notice of Discipline, Post-Disciplinary 
Appeal, or the Grievance Procedure.   
 
In the event the written reprimand was issued by the Department Head, the 
employee may request a review by the Human Resources Director, per the 
procedure outlined above. 
 

31.6 Notice of Intended Discipline 
 
A. Prior to receiving any suspension, reduction in step, involuntary demotion or 

termination, the employee shall receive written notice of the proposed 
disciplinary action containing the following: 

   

109 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  32 

1. The proposed disciplinary action; 
2. The grounds on which the proposed discipline is based; 
3. A summary of the reasons for the proposed action;  
4. The documents, or access to the documents, upon which the 

proposed action is based;  
5. Notice to the employee of the right to respond to charges orally and/or 

in writing within seven (7) days from the service of the notice. 
 

B. An employee who desires to respond orally may do so by appearing at the 
time and place agreed upon by the employee and the Department Head.  The 
employee is entitled to representation, but is not entitled to an evidentiary 
hearing or to present witnesses.  If the employee demonstrates good cause 
why he/she cannot respond within seven (7) days, the City may grant a 
continuance. 

 
31.7 Notice of Discipline 

 
No disciplinary action against an employee, excluding probationary and other at-
will employees, shall be imposed unless such action is recommended by the City 
in a written notice of disciplinary action.  This notice shall be served on the 
employee (with a copy to the Union representative, if involved) and filed with the 
Human Resources Department no later than seven (7) days after the date of 
such action.  The notice shall include: 
 

1. A statement of the disciplinary action; 
2. The effective date of the action; 
3. The grounds on which the discipline is based; 
4. A summary of the reasons for the proposed action;  
5. The documents, or access to the documents, upon which the 

proposed action is based;  
6. A statement addressing the responses to the charges by the employee 

or designated representative, if any; 
7. Notice to the employee of the right to appeal. 

 
31.8 Post-Disciplinary Appeal 

 
The following post-disciplinary appeal procedures to suspensions, reductions in 
step, demotions and terminations: 

 
1. Within seven (7) days of the receipt of written notice of final disciplinary 

action, the disciplined employee may appeal the disciplinary action to 
the City Manager by filing a written request with the City Manager and 
providing a copy of the request to the Human Resources Director.  
Failure by the employee or the employee’s representative to initiate the 
appeal within the prescribed time limits shall waive the right of the 

110 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  33 

employee and the employee’s representative from appealing the 
discipline. 

 
2. The City Manager or designee and the employee or employee’s 

representative shall select a hearing officer who shall conduct an 
administrative hearing within sixty (60) days.  The hearing officer shall 
be selected from among a list of names not to exceed ten (10) names 
provided by the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service.  
The method of selection from said list shall consist of the following 
process: 

 
After a toss of coin to decide which party shall move first, the City 
Manager or designee and the employee or employee’s 
representative shall alternatively strike one name from the list until 
one name remains and such person shall act as the hearing officer. 
The next to the last name stricken shall be the alternate hearing 
officer to serve in the event the first hearing officer is not available.  
The procedure shall be followed until there is an available 
arbitrator. 
 

3. The fees and expenses of the hearing officer and court reporter (if any) 
shall be shared equally by the City and the Recognized Employee 
Organization.  In the event the employee is not represented by a 
Recognized Employee Organization, these fees shall be borne by the 
City.  All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them and 
no party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by 
another party.  Parties shall bear their own cost of any requested 
hearing transcript. 

 
4. The hearing officer shall make a recommendation to the City Manager 

to sustain, modify or reverse the disciplinary action.  A copy of the 
recommendation shall be given to the employee.  The City Manager 
will then issue a final written decision within fifteen (15) days of 
receiving the recommendation, and may, but is not required to, accept 
the hearing officer’s recommendation. 

 
In the event the disciplined employee reports directly to the City Manager, or the 
City Manager initiated the disciplinary action as described within this section, the 
hearing officer shall make a recommendation to the City Attorney.  The City 
Attorney’s decision shall be final and not subject to review by or appeal to the 
City Council. 

 
31.9 Waiver of Steps or Time Limits 

 
Any time limit or stage of the Discipline Procedure may be waived if all involved 
parties consent in writing. 

111 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  34 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXII. LAYOFF/REDUCTION IN HOURS 
 
32.1 Layoff Policy 

 
Whenever the City Manager and/or City Council determines in his/her/their sole 
discretion that it is necessary to abolish any position of employment due to 
changes in duties or organizational structure, economic conditions, lack of work 
or funds, or any other reason, the employee holding that position may be laid off, 
transferred, or demoted without disciplinary action and without the right of 
appeal. 

 
32.2 Notification 

 
An employee being laid off shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice. 
 
At the time affected employees are noticed of the layoff, the Human Resources 
Director will also provide written notice to the bargaining unit representative(s).  
The City and the bargaining unit representatives will engage in the meet and 
confer process regarding the impacts of the layoff.  Any questions or concerns 
regarding the order of layoff will be discussed during the impact meeting(s). 

 
32.3 Order of Layoff 

 
In each class, employees shall be laid off according to employment status in the 
following order: temporary, provisional, regular part-time, probationary full-time, 
and regular full-time.  In this chapter, probationary status means the probationary 
period required upon the initial employment with the City leading to a regular 
position. 

 
32.4 Vacancy, Demotion, Retreat, and Seniority 

 
When the City has determined that a regular employee is to be laid off, the City 
Manager shall first demote the regular employee (based upon seniority within the 
class at the City of Pinole) to a regular position vacancy, if any, in a lower class 
which the employee previously held.  All persons so demoted shall have their 
names placed on a reinstatement list for a period of one year. 

 
Upon layoff, regular employees have the right to retreat to a lower class in 
accordance with this layoff policy.  In order to retreat to a lower class an 
employee must have more seniority than at least one of the incumbents in the 
retreat class and request displacement action in writing to the Human Resources 
Director within seven (7) days of receipt of notice of layoff.  An employee 

112 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  35 

retreating to a lower class shall be placed at the salary step representing the 
least loss of pay. 
 
For purposes of layoff, seniority shall be defined as an employee’s tenure in a 
class. When an employee retreats to a lower class seniority for that class shall 
include the tenure of all higher classes. 

 
Seniority includes time accrued in regular full-time and regular part-time service.  
In this chapter, length of service for regular part-time employment is calculated 
on a pro-rata basis.  Employment in a temporary appointment position does not 
count in calculating seniority. 

 
32.5 Reinstatement List 

 
The names of all regular and probationary employees laid off, or demoted in lieu 
of layoff, shall be placed on a reinstatement list for the classification from which 
they were removed. 
 
Reinstatement list(s) shall remain in effect for twelve (12) months, unless 
exhausted sooner. 

 
Reinstatement lists shall take precedence over all other employment lists except 
that employees on such lists shall not have the right to displace working 
employees. 
 
Failure by a laid off employee to promptly respond to and accept a reinstatement 
offer in writing within  ten (10) days of the date the offer is mailed to his/her last 
known address shall result in removal of his/her name from the reinstatement list. 

 
Reinstatement will result in removal from the reinstatement list except when 
reinstatement is in a lower class. 

 
32.6 Reinstatement 

 
A former employee appointed from a reinstatement list shall have the following 
benefits restored: 

 
1. Accrued but unused sick leave. 
 
2. Seniority at the time of layoff for vacation accrual, years of service, and 

department purposes as defined within department operating procedures 
(e.g., work schedule preferences, vacation scheduling preferences). 

 
32.7 Layoff of At-Will Employees 

 

113 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  36 

By definition, employment at-will may be terminated by either the employee or 
the City at any time with or without cause and with or without notice.  Nothing in 
this chapter shall require the City Manager to allow a terminated at-will employee 
to displace an employee in a lower class or require the City Manager to place the 
terminated at-will employee on a reinstatement list. 

 
32.8 Reduction in Hours 
 

Whenever the City Manager and/or City Council determines in his/her/their sole 
discretion that it is necessary to reduce the funding for any position of 
employment due to changes in duties or organizational structure, economic 
conditions, lack of work or funds, or any other reason, the employee holding that 
position will have their working hours reduced accordingly, without disciplinary 
action and without the right of appeal. 
 
In the event that funding for a regular status position is reduced the impacted 
employee shall be given at least fourteen (14) days prior written notice. 
 
At the time affected employees are noticed of the reduction in hours, the Human 
Resources Director will also provide written notice to the bargaining unit 
representative(s).  The City and the bargaining unit representatives will engage in 
the meet and confer process regarding the impacts of the reduction in hours.   
 
Employees will have their salary, benefits and leave accruals reduced in 
proportion to their percentage of full-time status, and in accordance with the 
applicable MOU.  In the event that funding for a position that has had the hours 
reduced is returned to the previous level, employees shall not be entitled to any 
additional compensation, benefits, or seniority for the period during which their 
hours were reduced.  Seniority during the time of reduced hours shall be retained 
for future reduction in force, and department purposes as defined within 
department operating procedures (e.g., work schedule preferences, vacation 
scheduling preferences). 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXIII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
33.1 Objective of the Probationary Period 

 
The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the selection process and 
shall be utilized for closely observing the employee’s work, for securing the most 
effective adjustment of a new employee to his/her position, and for releasing any 
probationary employee whose performance in the opinion of the Department 
Head and/or the City Manager does not meet the required standards of work.  
Nothing in this policy is intended to limit the reasons for which an employee may 
be released during the probationary period.  Release of an employee during the 

114 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  37 

probationary period may be with or without cause and with or without prior notice 
to the employee. 

 
33.2 Probationary Period 

 
All original appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period 
of twelve (12) months of active duty from the date of probationary appointment.  
All promotional appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary 
period of six (6) months of active duty from the date of promotion.  Days absent 
without pay, or leaves with pay exceeding thirty (30) calendar days during the 
probationary period shall extend the probationary period by the same number of 
days so as to result in a probationary period of active working duty for the 
required six (6) or twelve (12) months of active duty.  Employees who transfer to 
another position in the same classification shall not be required to undergo a new 
probationary period for the position into which he/she is transferring, provided the 
employee has completed the probationary period in the classification at the time 
of transfer.  During the initial probationary period, the employee may be released 
at any time by the City Manager, City Manager’s designee, and/or the 
Department Head with or without cause and with or without prior notice.  An 
employee released during the probationary period has no right to appeal or 
grieve the release. 

 
By mutual written agreement of the Department Head and the employee, the 
initial probationary period may exceed twelve (12) months of active duty when in 
the opinion of the Department Head, and the City Manager additional time is 
necessary to evaluate the employee’s effectiveness in his/her position.  The 
probationary period shall not exceed eighteen (18) months of active duty. 

 
33.3 Promotional Probationary Period 

 
An employee who has previously completed the requisite probationary period for 
an initial appointment and who is rejected during a subsequent probationary 
period for a promotional appointment shall be reinstated to the former position 
from which the employee was appointed.  If the employee was dismissed for 
cause from employment during the promotional probationary period, the 
employee shall not be entitled to such reinstatement rights.  An employee 
rejected during the promotional probationary period has no right to appeal or 
grieve the rejection. 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXIV. 
Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee Orientation 
 
34.1  Union Membership 
 

115 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  38 

The City upon receipt of a certified written member list issued by a duly authorized Union 
official, shall deduct dues and voluntary deductions selected by members, as 
established by the Union from the salaries of its members. The Union shall notify the 
City in writing as to the amount of such dues uniformly required of all members of the 
Union and the amounts of any Union sponsored benefit deduction for its members. The 
sums so withheld shall be remitted by the City, without delay, along with a list of 
employees and their respective dues and voluntary deductions. The Union bears 
responsibility for allocating dues and voluntary deductions pursuant to the employee's 
request 
 
The employees’ earnings must be sufficient after legal and required deductions are 
made to cover the amount of the dues or deductions. When an employee is in a non-
pay status for an entire pay period, no withholdings will be made to cover the pay period 
from the future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during 
only part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, 
no deductions shall be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions 
(including health care deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 
 
34.2 Annual AFSCME Local 512 Financial Reports Required.  
 
AFSCME Local 512 shall submit copies of the financial report required pursuant to the 
labor management disclosures act of 1959 to the City Manager once annually. Copies 
of such reports shall be available to employees at the office of the union. 
 
34.3 Indemnification.  
 
AFSCME Local 512 shall indemnify and hold the City and its officers and employees 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, or any other actions arising from the 
collection of dues and deductions herein. In no event shall the City be required to pay 
for from its own funds Union dues, or deductions that the employee was obligated to 
pay, but failed to pay, regardless of the reason. 
 
34.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO) 
 
Assembly Bill AB119 (New Employee Orientation- NEO) requires that the public 
employer (City of Pinole) shall provide the exclusive representative (AFSCME Council 
57/ Local 512) of said employees, mandatory access to its new employee 
orientations. The parties agree to the following and acknowledges the parties’ 
obligation to negotiate pursuant to Government Code Section 3557 and as such, 
parties waive their right to compulsory arbitration provided in Government Code 
Section 3557. 
 
New employee orientation (NEO) means an "in person" meeting designated as such and 
scheduled with representatives of the City to advise and inform new employees of their 
employment benefits, responsibilities, Union/City Rules, and other similar related 
matters. Currently, the City performs new employee orientations. However, there may 

116 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  39 

be instances where orientations are held on a different date and/or time following their 
actual start date due to business needs. Typically, the orientation process lasts one (1) 
to two (2) hours and occurs during working hours. 
 
34.5 Notice Requirements 
 
The City of Pinole shall make every effort to provide written notice (by email or letter) 
to the Union of all new employee orientations, which they represent, at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days, no less than ten (10), prior to the scheduled orientation. The new 
employee orientation notice provided to the Union shall include the date, time, and 
location of the orientation. This will allow for proper scheduling to ensure that 
representative(s) from the Union are available to meet with the employee prior to or 
following the orientation session. If the Union or its representative are not available on 
the day or time The City has scheduled its orientation, The City will allow the Union to 
meet with the new employee within a week of hire. 
 
AFSCME Council 57 / Local 512 will be provided the opportunity to have its Unit 
President or the Union’s chosen designee to meet with the new employee for up to 45 
minutes of uninterrupted private time prior to or following the NEO. The Union may 
provide for example, literature, written materials, packet of information, and or a visual 
presentation about its Union to the new employee(s). 
 
The Union's portion of the NEO will be conducted during paid City time as a regular part 
of the new employee orientation. Typically, the Union’s representatives are comprised 
of the Business Agent and/ or the Unit President / or chosen designee bargaining unit 
member. Approval from the Department Director shall be authorized prior to a 
bargaining unit member attending the new employee orientation. At no time shall the 
bargaining unit member (acting as a Union representative) meeting with the new 
employee result in any overtime or additional costs to the City. A bargaining unit 
member attending the orientation as a Union representative shall do so during their 
regular working hours so as to not incur additional costs to the City. If release time is 
requested, the Union will provide The City, in advance notice, of the name(s) of the 
bargaining unit member(s) who they wish to attend the orientation. 
 
During the new employee orientation, The City shall clearly communicate to each new 
employee hired into a position/classification represented by the (AFSCME Local 512) 
bargaining unit, that the employee's position is represented by AFSCME Local 512. 
To properly identify current leaders, the Union will provide a roster of current 
representative(s) to the City of Pinole prior to such orientation. 
 
34.6 Reporting Requirements 
 
Within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire, The City 
shall provide AFSCME Local 512 with the name, job title, department, work location, 
work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email addresses on 
file with the employer, as well as home address of all newly hired employees. AB119 

117 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  40 

requires that The City provide the Union with this information for all employees in the 
bargaining unit at least every 120 days. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the City will provide to the Union on a monthly basis an 
electronic malleable list in Microsoft Excel of all bargaining unit members including the 
following information on file with the employer: full name, job classification, department, 
employee number, job type (full-time/part-time), work location, work, and personal 
telephone numbers, personal email addresses, work email addresses, home address, 
pay step, pay rate, and pay status. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXXV.  DURATION 
 
35.1 Term.   
 
This MOU shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2023 to and through June 30, 
2025.  
 
35.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations.  
 
It is mutually agreed that the approval and ratification of this Memorandum of 
Understanding relieves the City of any and all further obligations to meet and confer 
regarding the provisions of this agreement, as required by the Government Code of the 
State of California for the period covered by this agreement, except as to the provisions 
of section 30.3. Nothing herein shall prevent the parties to this Memorandum of 
Understanding from meeting and conferring, and making modifications hereto by mutual 
consent. 
 
35.3 Notice of Termination.  
 
This MOU shall continue in force and effect hereafter from year to year unless either 
party gives one hundred and twenty (120) days written notice prior to the expiration 
date, or any annual anniversary date thereafter to terminate or modify this Agreement. 

 
35.4 Effective Date.  
 
All provisions contained in this MOU are effective July 1, 2023, unless specifically stated 
otherwise.  
 
35.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes.   
 
In the event any portion of this Agreement is declared null and void under Federal or 
State law, the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, and the 
parties shall commence negotiations to ensure that the superseded portion shall be 
rewritten to conform as closely as is possible to the original intent. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

118 of 594



 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  41 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Stacy Shell, Human Resources Director Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Charlene Davis, Human Resources Analyst Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Gregory Ramirez, Chief Negotiator Date 
 
  
AFSCME Local 512 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Kim Young, President  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Rob Ouellette, Team Member  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Sarrah Patton, Team Member  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Kym Anderson, Chief Negotiator  Date

119 of 594



 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  42 

ATTACHMENT A – SALARY SCHEDULES 
 
 

EFFECTIVE JULY 3, 2023 
 
 

 
 
 

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2024 
 
 

 
 
 

120 of 594



 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  43 

ATTACHMENT B – RESOLUTION 
 
 
 
 

121 of 594



122 of 594



123 of 594



124 of 594



125 of 594



126 of 594



127 of 594



128 of 594



129 of 594



130 of 594



131 of 594



132 of 594



133 of 594



134 of 594



135 of 594



136 of 594



137 of 594



138 of 594



139 of 594



140 of 594



141 of 594



142 of 594



1 

AFSCME 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

 
 
 

Between the City of Pinole and the 
Professional and Technical Employees 

Represented by AFSCME Local 512 
 
 
 
 

 

JULY 1, 2021 2023 TO JUNE 30, 20232025 
 

 
 

143 of 594



ii 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
RESOLUTION  
PREAMBLE 1 
ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS .................................................................................. 1 
ARTICLE II.  RECOGNITION .............................................................................. 2 

2.1 Job Classifications in the Unit. ................................................... 2 
ARTICLE III.  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ............................................................ 32 

3.1 Management Rights Defined. .................................................... 3 
ARTICLE IV.  DUES DEDUCTION ...................................................................... 4 

4.1 Amount/Authorization. ............................................................... 4 
4.2 Increases/Non-Pay Status. ........................................................ 4 
4.3 Hold Harmless. .......................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE V.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES ........................................................ 5 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. ................................ 5 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. ................................................ 5 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. .................................................. 5 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. ............................................................... 5 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. ....................................... 5 

ARTICLE VI.  SALARIES .................................................................................... 5 
6.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. .................................... 5 
6.2 Pay Plan. ................................................................................... 6 
6.3 Longevity ................................................................................... 6 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits ....................................................................... 6 
6.5  Job Descriptions. ....................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE VII.  HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME ........................................ 76 
7.1 Workweek Defined. ................................................................. 76 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule. .......................................................... 7 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. ............................................................. 7 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. .................... 7 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. .............. 87 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. ..................................... 8 
7.7 Fair Labor Standards Act- Exempt/Non Exempt Status. ............ 8 
7.8 Call Back and Overtime. ............................................................ 8 
7.9 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. ..................................... 9 
7.10 Court Appearance on Off Duty Hours. ....................................... 9 
7.11 Meal Allotment. .......................................................................... 9 
7.12 Rest Periods. ........................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE VIII.  CAR ALLOWANCE .................................................................. 10 
8.1 Car Allowance. ........................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE IX.  STANDBY PAY ........................................................................... 10 
9.1 Employees Assigned. .............................................................. 10 

144 of 594



 iii  

9.2 City Issued Mobile Communication Device Assignments. ....... 10 
9.3 Standby Protocol. ................................................................ 1110 
9.4 Standby Schedule Assignments. ............................................. 11 
9.5 Rest Periods While on Standby. .............................................. 11 
9.6 Amount of Standby Pay. ...................................................... 1211 

ARTICLE X MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT WHEN CALLED BACK TO WORK.
 ............................................................................................... 12 

10.1 Mileage Reimbursement-Portal to Portal. ................................ 12 
ARTICLE XI.  CITY ISSUED MOBILE COMMUNICATION DEVICE PAY-24/7 

REQUIREMENTS .................................................................. 12 
11.1 Employees Assigned. .............................................................. 12 
11.2 Method of Assignment. ............................................................ 12 
11.3 Amount of City Issued Mobile Communication Device Pay 24/7.1312 
11.4 Mileage Reimbursement While on 24/7 City Issued Mobile 

Communication Device Responsibility. .................................... 13 
ARTICLE XII.  ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION ................................... 13 

12.1 Acting Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. ...................................... 13 
ARTICLE XIII.  JURY DUTY LEAVE ................................................................. 13 

13.1 Jury Duty Leave....................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE XIV.  SICK LEAVE ............................................................................ 13 

14.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. ................................................. 1413 
14.2 Sick Leave Incentive. ............................................................... 14 
14.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. ......................................... 14 
14.4 Use of Sick Leave. ................................................................... 14 
14.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. ......................................................... 14 

ARTICLE XV.   HOLIDAYS ........................................................................... 1514 
15.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. ...................................................... 15 
15.2 List of Official Holidays. ........................................................... 15 
15.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. ................................. 16 
15.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. ............... 16 
15.5 Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. ...................... 16 

ARTICLE XVI.  VACATION ............................................................................... 16 
16.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. ............................................ 16 
16.2    Vacation Sell Back. .................................................................... 16 
16.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. .................................................... 1716 

ARTICLE XVII.  MEDICAL INSURANCE .......................................................... 17 
17.1 Medical Insurance Provided. ................................................... 17 
17.2     Retiree Medical Insurance. ................................................... 1817 
17.3 Medical In-Lieu. ................................................................... 2019 

ARTICLE XVIII.  DENTAL INSURANCE ....................................................... 2019 
18.1 Dental Insurance Provided. ................................................. 2119 
18.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. ......................................... 2120 

ARTICLE XIX.  VISION INSURANCE ............................................................ 2120 
19.1 Vision Insurance Provided. .................................................. 2120 

ARTICLE XX.  LIFE INSURANCE ................................................................. 2120 
20.1 Life Insurance Provided. ...................................................... 2120 

145 of 594



 iv  

20.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. ........................................... 2220 
ARTICLE XXI.  DISABILITY INSURANCE .................................................... 2220 

21.1 Disability Insurance Provided. ............................................. 2221 
21.2 Disability Insurance Premium Rates. ................................... 2221 
21.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade. ............................. 2221 

ARTICLE XXII.  DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION 
COVERAGE ....................................................................... 2321 

22.1 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. .................... 2321 
22.2 Medical, Dental, Vision Premium Rates. ............................. 2321 
22.3 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN. .............................................. 2321 

ARTICLE XXIII.  TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM ......................... 2321 
23.1 Tuition Reimbursement Eligibility. ....................................... 2321 

ARTICLE XXIV.  INCENTIVE PAYS .............................................................. 2422 
24.1 Educational Degree. ............................................................ 2422 
24.2 Bilingual Pay. ....................................................................... 2422 

ARTICLE XXV.  RETIREMENT PLAN ........................................................... 2423 
25.1 Retirement Plan Defined. .................................................... 2523 
25.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. ...................... 2523 
25.3 CalPERS Contract Benefits. ................................................ 2523 

ARTICLE XXVI.   UNIFORM LAUNDRY SERVICE, AND SAFETY SHOE 
ALLOWANCE .................................................................... 2524 

26.1 Uniform Laundry Service. .................................................... 2524 
26.2 Safety Shoes. ...................................................................... 2624 

ARTICLE XXVII.  CERTIFICATION FEES ..................................................... 2624 
27.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. ................ 2624 
27.2 Payment of Department Of Transportation License Fees. ... 2624 
27.3  Payment of Above-Grade Certification for Wastewater Employees.2624 

ARTICLE XXIX.  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ................................................... 2625 
29.1 Paid Bereavement Leave .................................................... 2725 
29.2 Immediate Family Defined. .................................................. 2725 

ARTICLE XXX.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ............................................... 2725 
30.1 Grievance Defined. .............................................................. 2725 
30.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. ......................................... 2725 
30.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. ............................................ 2725 
30.4 Grievance Process. ............................................................. 2826 
30.5 Grievance Procedure. .......................................................... 2826 
30.6 Employee Appeals Board. ................................................... 2927 
30.7 Non-Binding Confidential Mediation. ................................... 2928 
30.8 Employee Appeals Board or Mediator Recommendation to City 

Manager. ............................................................................. 3028 
ARTICLE XXXI.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION .................................................... 3028 

31.1 Disciplinary Action ............................................................... 3028 
31.2 Causes for Disciplinary Action ............................................. 3029 
31.3 Forms of Discipline .............................................................. 3331 
31.4 Authority of Disciplinary Action ............................................ 3331 
31.5 Procedures for Written Reprimand ...................................... 3331 

146 of 594



 v  

31.6 Notice of Intended Discipline ............................................... 3331 
31.7 Notice of Discipline .............................................................. 3432 
31.8 Post-Disciplinary Appeal ...................................................... 3432 
31.9 Waiver of Steps or Time Limits ............................................ 3533 

ARTICLE XXXII. LAYOFF/REDUCTION IN HOURS ..................................... 3534 
32.1 Layoff Policy ........................................................................ 3534 
32.2 Notification ........................................................................... 3634 
32.3 Order of Layoff .................................................................... 3634 
32.4 Vacancy, Demotion, Retreat, and Seniority ......................... 3634 
32.5 Reinstatement List ............................................................... 3735 
32.6 Reinstatement ..................................................................... 3735 
32.7 Layoff of At-Will Employees ................................................. 3735 
32.8 Reduction in Hours .............................................................. 3736 

ARTICLE XXXIII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD ............................................... 3836 
33.1 Objective of the Probationary Period ................................... 3836 
33.2 Probationary Period ............................................................. 3837 
33.3 Promotional Probationary Period ......................................... 3937 

ARTICLE XXXIV. 3937 
UNION MEMBERSHIP, DUE DEDUCTION, AND NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

 ........................................................................................... 3937 
34.2 Annual AFSCME Local 512 Financial Reports Required. .... 4038 

ARTICLE XXXV.  DURATION ....................................................................... 4240 
35.1 Term. ................................................................................... 4240 
35.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. .................................. 4240 
35.3 Notice of Termination. ......................................................... 4240 
35.4 Effective Date. ..................................................................... 4240 
35.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes.4240 

 
ATTACHMENT A.  SALARY SCHEDULE 
ATTACHMENT B.  RESOLUTION 

147 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

The City of Pinole and representatives of AFSCME Local 512 acknowledge and affirm 
that they have met and conferred in good faith, exchanged proposals and counter 
proposals and in all respects fulfilled their obligations under law to meet and confer in 
good faith. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is the product of the above-described meet and 
confer process. Representatives of the City agree to present this Memorandum of 
Understanding to the City Council for determination and representatives of the AFSCME 
Local 512 agree to present this Memorandum of Understanding to their membership for 
acceptance and approval. 
 
PREAMBLE 
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2001, the City of Pinole received a request from the 
American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)-Local 512 
to be recognized as the exclusive representative for employer-employee bargaining 
purposes of a bargaining unit comprised of Professional and Technical employees of 
the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council on January 15, 2002 approved Resolution Number 
103-2002 which officially recognized AFSCME Local 512 as the exclusive bargaining 
unit for the Professional and Technical employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and AFSCME Local 512 subsequently negotiated a 

Memorandum of Understanding, which was developed by mutual agreement of all 
parties; and 

 
WHEREAS, both the City of Pinole and AFSCME Local 512 are mutually interested 

in making certain modifications to this Memorandum of Understanding; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the following agreement represents a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Pinole and the Professional and Technical 
employees represented by AFSCME Local 512 with the term of July 1, 2021 2023, 
through June 30, 20232025.  
 
 
ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 "City" referred to herein shall be the City of Pinole. 
 
1.2 "Union" referred to herein shall be AFSCME Local 512. 
 
1.3 "Employee" referred to herein shall be all regular full-time and regular part-time 

employees of the City of Pinole in the job classifications set forth in Article 2 of 
this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

148 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  2 

1.4 "Agreement" referred to herein shall be this Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City and the Union. 

 
 
ARTICLE II.  RECOGNITION 
 
2.1 Job Classifications in the Unit. 
 
The Professional and Technical unit consists of the following job classifications: 

 
Accountant 
Accounting Specialist 
Administrative Coordinator 
Associate Civil Engineer 
Associate Planner 
Building Inspector I 
Building Inspector II 
Cable Access Coordinator 
Code Enforcement Officer I 
Code Enforcement Officer II 
Environmental Analyst 
Information Systems Administrator 
Information Systems Specialist 
Laboratory Analyst I 
Laboratory Analyst II 
Laboratory Supervisor 
Management Analyst 
Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
Public Works Specialist 
Recreation Coordinator 
Rental Inspector 
Sr. Building Inspector  
Senior Project Manager 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor 
Water Pollution Control Plant Supervisor 

 
The City agrees to recognize the Union as the exclusive representative of future 
positions appropriate to the unit, and agrees to meet and confer with the Union in all 
matters relating to wages, hours and working conditions of employees in such 
classifications.  
 
The City further reserves the right to exclude from the unit, those management and 
confidential employees so designated. The City also agrees to provide appropriate 
information, furnished by the Union and approved by the City Manager, to all new 
employees of the Union's recognition. 
 

149 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  3 

 
ARTICLE III.  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 
3.1 Management Rights Defined. 
 
Unless specifically in conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), all 
management rights shall remain vested exclusively with the City.  City management 
rights include but are not limited to, all rights set forth in the City’s Employer Employee 
Labor Relations Resolution, and each of the following: 
 

a. The right to determine the mission of the City, including without limitation 
the City’s agencies, departments, divisions, institutions, boards, and 
commissions; 

 
b. The right of full and exclusive control of the management of the City; 

supervision of all operations; determinations of methods, means, locations 
and assignments of performing all work; and the composition, assignment, 
direction, location and determination of the size and mission of the work 
force; 

 
c. The right to determine the work to be done by employees, including 

establishment of service levels, appropriate staffing and the allocation of 
funds for any position(s) within the City; 

 
d. The right to review and inspect, without notice, all City-owned facilities, 

including without limitation, desktop computers, work areas and desks, 
email, computer storage drives, voicemail systems, as well as filing 
cabinets and systems; 

 
e. The right to change or introduce different, new or improved operations, 

technologies, methods or means regarding any City work, and to contract 
out for work;, however, the City will meet and discuss with the bargaining 
unit representative prior to contracting out for work normally completed by 
classifications within the bargaining unit.  The City will meet with the Union 
no later than December 31, 2023, to provide the current status and review 
bargaining unit work contracted out at the time of ratification; 

 
f. The right to establish and modify qualifications for employment, including 

the content of any job classification, job description or job announcement, 
and to determine whether minimum qualifications are met; 

 
g. The right to maintain and modify the City’s Pay and Classification Plan 

subject to “meet and confer” requirements; 
h. The right to establish and enforce Employee Performance Standards and 

Employee Performance Evaluations; 
 

150 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  4 

i. The right to schedule and assign work, make reassignments and assign 
overtime work; 

 
j. The right to hire, fire, promote, reassign, transfer, release, discipline, 

layoff, terminate, demote, suspend or reduce in step or grade all 
employees; 

 
k. The right to establish and modify bargaining units and to assign new or 

amended job classifications to particular bargaining units; 
 
l. The right to inquire and investigate regarding complaints or concerns 

about employee performance deficiencies or misconduct of any sort, 
including the right to require employees to appear and respond truthfully in 
good faith regarding any City investigation; and 

 
m. The right to maintain orderly, effective and efficient operations. 

 
 
ARTICLE IV.  DUES DEDUCTION 
 
4.1 Amount/Authorization. 
 
The City shall deduct, once a month, the amount of union dues, as specified by the 
Union under the authority of an authorization card furnished by the Union and signed by 
the employee. Said deductions shall be forwarded promptly to the Union office. No 
authorization shall be allowed for payment of initiation fees, assessments or fines. 
 
4.2 Increases/Non-Pay Status. 
 
In the event the Union members vote to increase Union dues, the Union shall notify the 
City at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the dues increase. The 
employee earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and required deductions 
are made to cover the amount of the appropriate Union dues. When a member in good 
standing of the Union is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will 
be made to cover that pay period.  
 
In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during only part of the pay 
period, and the wages are not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall 
be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions have priority over 
Union dues. 
 
4.3 Hold Harmless. 
 
The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any claims made 
and against any suits instituted against the City on account of payroll deductions of 

151 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  5 

Union dues. The Union agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it in error on 
account of the payroll deduction provision upon presentation of proper evidence thereof. 
 
 
ARTICLE V.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined.  
 
The Union may designate at least one (1) employee and not more than three (3) 
employees as its steward(s) for the purpose of assisting other Union members in the 
resolution of disputes concerning wages, hours and working conditions. 
 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”.  
 
The City shall afford said stewards reasonable time off during working hours without 
loss of compensation or other benefits when engaged in the activities articulated under 
Government Code Section 3505.3 ; This is provided, however, that said time is 
scheduled so as not to interfere unduly with the workload and job requirements as 
determined by the Department Manager or Supervisor, and provided that such time 
afforded under this provision shall be devoted only to matters within the scope of 
representation. 
 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee.  
 
The Union may also designate a committee to meet and confer with the City's 
representatives regarding matters within the scope of representation. A maximum of 
three (3) members including the President of the Union shall be afforded reasonable 
time off during working hours without loss of compensation or other benefits while 
formally meeting and conferring, within the scope of representation. 
 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors.   
 
Union member(s) or steward(s) engaged in such activities shall first obtain approval 
from supervisors before leaving their assigned work areas on such business. The 
request shall not be unreasonably denied. 
 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings.   
 
All members of the Union shall be allowed a one-half hour release time each quarter for 
Union meetings. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI.  SALARIES 
 
6.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments.  
 

152 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  6 

6.1.1 Cost of Living Adjustment. 
 
Effective first full pay period following July 1, 2021 2023, classifications represented by 
the Union shall receive a three percent (3%)four percent (4%) wage increase. 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2022 2024, classifications represented 
by the Union shall receive a three percent (3.0%)four percent (4%) wage increase. 
 
6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustment. concurrent with COLA increase above: 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 20212023, and concurrent with the 
COLA above,the following classifications represented by the Union shall receive a three 
percent (3%) equity increase adjustments in addition and concurrent with the above 
COLA for 2023:. 
 
• Management Analyst  twelve and nine-tenths percent (12.9%) 
• PW Maintenance Supervisor fourteen and three-tenths percent (14.3%) 
• Recreation Coordinator  fifteen and eight-tenths percent (15.8%) 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2022, and concurrent with the COLA 
above, classifications represented by the Union shall receive a three percent (3%) 
equity increase. 
 
6.2 Pay Plan. 
 
Attachment A reflects the salary steps for each represented position. 
 
6.3 Longevity 
 
Effective the full pay period following July 1, 2018 2023 employees with fifteen (15) full 
continuous years of City services shall be given an additional 2%three percent (3%) pay 
computed on their base hourly rate of pay. This benefit shall not compound, nor be 
compounded by, any other additional compensation. 
 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits 
 
For part-time regular employee(s), covered under this MOU, working at least 20 hours 
per week and less than 40 hours per week, compensation and benefits received other 
than the base hourly wage rate, shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours 
regularly scheduled to work in relation to full-time (forty-hour per workweek) employees 
or as defined by federal, state, lor local law, whichever is greater.   
 
6.5  Job Descriptions. 
The City will maintain job descriptions for each of the represented job classifications as 
listed in Section 2.1. 
 
 

153 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  7 

ARTICLE VII.  HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
7.1 Workweek Defined.   
 
The employee's regular workday typically consists of eight hours and the workweek 
shall consist of a seven consecutive day period, Monday through Sunday. The standard 
City work period is a calendar week which begins at 12:00 am on Monday and ends 
11:59 pm on Sunday.  Other schedules may be assigned consistent with Section 7.9 of 
this Agreement. The City reserves the right to assign new employees to other work 
weeks and will provide two consecutive days off. Where new workweeks are planned by 
the City, they shall be subject to discussion with and review by the Union. Any change 
in special workweeks, not otherwise provided for under this agreement, now in effect, 
shall be reviewed by the City and the Union. 
 
The City shall inform employees thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any permanent 
working hour change (s), which are to be made. It is understood that in cases of natural 
disasters or emergencies that this would not be necessary on a temporary basis. 
Emergency is defined as an unpredictable or unavoidable occurrence at unscheduled 
intervals requiring immediate action. An unpredictable occurrence is unplanned and 
unanticipated. An unavoidable occurrence permits one to have advance knowledge of 
the likelihood of the event. 
 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule.   
 
The City has the right to schedule overtime work as required in the manner most 
advantageous to the City and consistent with the requirement of municipal employment 
and the public interest. Overtime work assignments shall first be offered on a voluntary 
basis to employees, after which assignments shall be made by the Department 
Manager. 
 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority.  
 
Overtime preference, insofar as practical, shall be given to the regular, full-time 
employees and on a seniority basis in the classification or position involved. Overtime 
work shall also be distributed equally among qualified employees insofar as possible. 
 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned.  
 
For employees who work a regular schedule, overtime compensation shall be earned 
for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours during a seven day work period. Current 
City practice/policy is to include hours in paid leave status for holidays as outlined in 
Section 15.2 (excluding floating holidays) toward employees’ overtime thresholds.  
 
Effective the first full pay period after adoption, hours in paid leave status for holidays as 
outlined in Section 15. 2 (excluding floating holiday(s)) and sick leave used will count 
toward time worked for purposes of determining eligibility for the overtime rate. 

154 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  8 

 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned.  
 
The City of Pinole provides its employees the opportunity of alternative work schedules 
whereby some alternative work schedules include working more than eight (8) hours a 
day and less than five days a week. The shift duration hours, workweek, and work 
period for payroll purposes will be redefined on a case-by-case basis depending on the 
alternative work schedule that has been approved and the related FLSA rules.  In these 
instances, at no time is the workweek defined as being more than forty (40) hours in a 
week.  
 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. 
 
Compensation for overtime hours worked shall be paid at one and one-half times the 
employee's base hourly rate in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 
Compensatory time off at the rate of one and one-half times the number of overtime 
hours worked may be accrued at the employee's request in lieu of time and one-half 
pay.  
 
Compensatory time off may be used at times convenient to the employee and the 
department provided that a reasonable advance notice of intent to use such time off is 
provided by the employee and approved by the Department. At no time shall accrued 
compensatory time off balance exceed eighty (80) hours. 
 
7.7 Fair Labor Standards Act- Exempt/Non Exempt Status. 
 
The City reserves the right to determine under the FLSA requirements whether or not a 
job classification is exempt or non-exempt for FLSA purposes.  Prior to changing the 
FLSA designation of a job classification represented by AFSCME, the City agrees to 
discuss the proposed changes with AFSCME under “meet and confer”.   
 
7.8 Call Back and Overtime.  
 
Employees called back to work overtime shall be compensated for at least three (3) 
hours of pay at the rate of time and one-half the employee's basic hourly rate plus 
mileage reimbursement at the established IRS mileage rate for all hours outside their 
regular work schedule.  At the discretion of their Supervisor an employee called back to 
work shall be required to work the full three (3) hours. 
 
A request for an employee to continue work beyond the employee’s regular work 
schedule does not constitute “call back.” 
 
If in the event the three (3) hour call back period overlaps with the employee’s regular 
work schedule, the employee shall be entitled to the time and one-half rateovertime for 
the hours worked prior to the beginning of their regular work schedule.  In addition, if the 

155 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  9 

call back period overlaps the employee’s regular work schedule, the employee shall 
receive their regular rate of pay plus an additional .5 hours for each hour of overlap. 
 
For example:  Employee’s regular work schedule is from 7:00 a.m. – 4:40 30 p.m. (8 
hours).  Employee is called back to work at 6:00 a.m.  Employee is entitled to time and 
one-half pay rate from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., and from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. the 
employee receives two (2) hours of regular pay plus call back of .5 hours for each hour 
of overlap (overlapping period).  The .5 hours reflects the difference between the 
employee’s regular rate of pay and the callback overtime rate of pay. 
 
7.9 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. 
 
Based on mutual agreement of the City and the employee given City needs and staffing 
requirements, employees are eligible for alternative work hours or flexible hours. These 
schedules must be approved by the City Manager prior to any implementation and must 
meet all FLSA requirements. 
 
Alternative Work Schedule: 
 
A regular schedule that is other than the standard 5/8 schedule (eight hours per day, 
five days per week). Examples include a 4/10 schedule (ten hours per day, four days 
per week) or a 9/80 schedule (eight, nine-hour days and one eight-hour day with one 
day off in a biweekly pay period). Such alternatives are offered to allow workable 
schedules for employer and employee and must not create overtime as required under 
any of the Articles of this agreement or as required by law. 
 
Flex-Time Work Schedule:  
 
A non-regular work schedule with or without a consistent pattern as to the number of 
work hours per day or week, but an arrangement whereby the employee is obligated to 
perform work and be responsible for flexing the hours of his/her own work schedule in 
accordance with a written agreement between the employee and the City. 
 
7.10 Court Appearance on Off Duty Hours. 
 
Any employee appearing as a witness in court during off-duty hours and arising out of 
his/her employment by the City shall receive compensation.  If the time is considered 
overtime then the employee shall be compensated at the overtime rate; otherwise, it 
shall be compensated at the base hourly rate. 
 
7.11 Meal Allotment.  
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall reimburse each employee in the 
Local 512 Unit who is required to work more than four (4) hours prior to the beginning of 
their regular work shift or more than four (4) hours after completing their regular work 
shift a total of $15 for the cost of a meal.   

156 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  10 

 
If an employee is required to work a sixth (6th) or seventh (7th) day during any regular 
scheduled workweek, the City shall also reimburse said employee a total of $15 for the 
cost of a meal. This meal allotment shall be paid to the employee at the next regular 
payroll after the meal is incurred. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
7.12 Rest Periods.  
 
Employees working a scheduled shift of six (6) hours or more shall be provided with one 
(1) fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) of the work day.  Rest 
periods shall be scheduled so as not to interfere with efficient operations of the City.  
Rest periods shall not be taken at the beginning or end of the work day, not contiguous 
with the employee’s lunch break.  Rest periods shall not be “banked” – if an employee 
does not take an available rest period, it shall not be carried over to the second half of 
the work shift or any subsequent day. 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  CAR ALLOWANCE 
 
8.1 Car Allowance. 
 
Effective July 1, 2005, the classification of Cable Access Coordinator shall receive a car 
allowance of $200.00 per month. 
 
 
ARTICLE IX.  STANDBY PAY 
 
9.1 Employees Assigned. 
 
Employees assigned to the classifications of Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations 
Supervisor, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor, Laboratory Supervisor, Laboratory 
Analyst I, and Environmental Laboratory Analyst II, shall be eligible for Standby Pay. 
These employees are required to remain continuously available, in accordance with 
Article 9.2, for the time period assigned to respond to calls for service.  
 
9.2 City Issued Mobile Communication Device Assignments.  
 
City Issued Mobile Communication Device will be carried by employee(s) assigned to 
standby in accordance with 9.1.  Employees assigned to standby who use their 
personal mobile communication device shall receive a stipend of thirty dollars ($30) per 
month until such time as a City mobile communication device is assigned by the City to 
the employee. There will be a seventy (70) mile radius limit from the City of Pinole for 
persons assigned a City Issued Mobile Communication Device or persons who receive 
a stipend. 

157 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  11 

 
9.3 Standby Protocol. 
 
The City utilizes the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) for 
monitoring plant operations and processes.  The SCADA System is the primary method 
used for notification to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor and 
Environmental Analyst employees assigned to Standby for emergencies and alarms.  
SCADA will call the first employees twice within a 30-minute period and in 15-minute 
intervals.  If that employee does not respond by calling in and acknowledging the call, 
then SCADA will call the next employee who is required to respond and will be eligible 
for Standby pay.  
 
Employees in the class Public Works Maintenance Supervisor who are required to 
perform services integral to their assigned job responsibilities in order to provide 
continuous public service and who are required to be available and respond after hours, 
will be eligible for standby pay.  
 
The person not assigned to be on Standby and who responds to the call will be 
compensated for the Standby duty at the Standby holiday rate for that day. Employees 
on Standby not responding to a call will not be paid for that day (except if they had 
responded to another call and are unavailable). 
 
9.4 Standby Schedule Assignments. 
 
Schedule changes will have to be approved by the Public Works Director/City Engineer 
through the Public Works Manager, Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager or the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Supervisor at least five working days in 
advance of the change. 
 
Persons who are sick or unable to work call outs will notify their immediate supervisor in 
order that the beeper may be reassigned. The replacement of person on sick leave, 
worker's compensation leave or on other approved leave will be on a voluntary basis. 

 
If there are no volunteers, the next person on the schedule will be the person to carry 
the cellular device. He or she will be paid at the standby rate for holidays while covering 
an unscheduled standby shift. 

 
9.5 Rest Periods While on Standby. 
 
An employee on Standby who is called out prior to 5:00 a.m. and who performs work 
shall have a rest period of six (6) hours preceding the employee's next regularly 
scheduled work shift. An employee who qualifies for this rest period shall be paid for all 
rest hours that overlap into their next regularly scheduled work shift. Such rest hours 
shall not be considered “hours worked” and will not be included in determining if an 
employee has worked overtime hours. 
 

158 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  12 

In the event of an emergency or a work related situation or problem wherein said 
employee is required to work, as determined by the supervisor, said employee shall 
report to work as normally scheduled at the overtime pay rate for the designated rest 
period. 

 
9.6 Amount of Standby Pay. 
 
The City agrees to pay the standby designee as follows: 

 
• Weekday  $40 per day 
• Weekend  $50 per day 
• Holiday  $60 per day 

 
 
ARTICLE X MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT WHEN CALLED BACK TO WORK. 
 
10.1 Mileage Reimbursement-Portal to Portal. 
 
Mileage reimbursement from portal to portalportal-to-portal travel shall be paid to 
employees driving their personal vehicles when called back pursuant to the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) rate in effect for all City travel.  Portal-to-portal travel 
reimbursement shall also include any applicable bridge toll charges. 
 
 
ARTICLE XI.  City Issued Mobile Communication Device PAY-24/7 
REQUIREMENTS 
 
11.1 Employees Assigned.   
 
Designated employees assigned to carry a City Issued Mobile Communication Device 
are required to remain continuously available for the time period assigned to respond to 
calls for service.  
 
11.2 Method of Assignment.   
 
The Department Manager shall make assignments for City Issued Mobile 
Communication Devices with City Manager approval. During the term of this MOU, the 
following job classifications are required to carry a City Issued Mobile Communication 
Device: 
 

• Cable Access Coordinator 
• Water Pollution Control Plant Supervisor 

 
If a Department Manager and/or the City determines that it is necessary to identify 
additional classifications other than those listed above to carry a City Issued Mobile 
Communication Device, the City will “meet and confer” with AFSCME Local 512 

159 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  13 

representatives prior to implementation with the exception of a temporary emergency 
situation. 
 
11.3 Amount of City Issued Mobile Communication Device Pay 24/7. 
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the designated job classifications a 
total of $250 per month for carrying a City Issued Mobile Communication Device and 
responding as appropriate.  
 
11.4 Mileage Reimbursement While on 24/7 City Issued Mobile Communication 
Device Responsibility.   
 
With the exception of the Cable Access Coordinator who receives a car allowance, 
those employees who are outlined in Section 11.2 are eligible to receive mileage 
reimbursement from portal to portal travel if they are called back to work.  Mileage 
reimbursement shall be paid pursuant to the City adopted Internal Revenue Services 
(IRS) mileage reimbursement rate in effect for all city travel. 
 
 
ARTICLE XII.  ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION 
 
12.1 Acting Pay Defined and Rate of Pay.  
 
In the event an employee is assigned and performs the majority of the duties in a higher 
classification, following the fifth consecutive work day in that classification, he/she shall 
be placed at the lowest step of the higher classification that provides at least five 
percent (5%) above the employee’s base rate of pay, so long as the range for the higher 
classification is not exceeded.  
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the higher-level pay granted 
under this Section shall not inflate nor otherwise have any impact on any other special 
pays, allowances, or differentials granted by other portions of this Agreement. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIII.  JURY DUTY LEAVE  
 
13.1 Jury Duty Leave.  
 
An employee whose absence from work is required because of jury duty will be 
considered an excused absence with pay.  To receive full salary and benefits, the 
employee shall notify his/her supervisor three (3) days prior to jury duty and turn in to 
the Finance Department any payment for jury duty, excluding pay for travel and meals. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIV.  SICK LEAVE 
 

160 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  14 

14.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned.  
 
For full-time employees working 40 or more hours a week, sick leave shall be earned 
and accrued at the rate of ninety-six (96) hours annually, one eight hours working day (8 
hours) for each continuous full calendar month of service, or 3.69 hours per pay period 
in pay status. The employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period to earn 
accrued sick leave and accrual shall continue from the actual, initial date of most recent 
employment. Sick leave shall not be available to new employees prior to completion of 
three (3) continuous months of employment. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, hours shall accrue 
at a pro-rated rate based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work in 
relation to full-time. 
 
14.2 Sick Leave Incentive.   
 
Employee sick leave use shall be reviewed by the City at the end of each calendar year.  
Employees who do not use any sick leave for six consecutive months, July 1st through 
December 31st, and January 1st through June 30th, within the calendar year shall receive 
an additional four (4) hours of accrued vacation time.  Employees who do not use any 
sick leave for the entire calendar year (12 months) will receive an additional eight (8) 
hours of vacation time.  No employee may accrue more than eight (8) hours of vacation 
in any calendar year. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the number of 
hours received shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time. 
 
14.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care.  
 
Employees may use sick leave for illness or disability in his/her immediate family. 
Immediate family is defined in Article XXIX, Section 29.2. The maximum amount of sick 
leave that may be used for this purpose in any one calendar year shall be ten (10) 
working days. 
 
14.4 Use of Sick Leave.  
 
Employees may use sick leave in the event of a scheduled medical or dental 
appointment for the eligible employee, the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, or 
the employee’s dependent children that requires the employee’s absence from work. 
Sick leave shall not be available to new employees prior to completion of three (3) 
continuous months of employment. 
 
14.5 Other Use of Sick Leave.   
 

161 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  15 

All other conditions regulating sick leave accruals and usage contained within the duly 
adopted City Personnel Rules and the City Family Leave Policy shall apply to all 
employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XV.   HOLIDAYS 
 
15.1 Authorized Legal Holidays.  
 
In addition to the official holidays listed below, employees shall receive any day 
proclaimed by the President or Governor as a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, and 
shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. The granting of any paid time-off due to 
an Executive Order closing federal offices signed by the President of the United States 
shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year, employees  shall receive twelve (12) 
hours of floating holiday that may be taken on any day throughout a fiscal year (July 1 to 
June 30) with prior approval from an employee’s supervisor.    The twelve (12) hours of 
floating holiday shall not be carried forward to the next fiscal year or cashed out. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the number of 
hours received shall be pro-rated based on a percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time. 
 
15.2 List of Official Holidays. 
 
Employees shall receive twelve (12) annual paid holidays as follows: 
 

• January 1 New Year’s Day 
• Third Monday in January  Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
• Third Monday in February Washington’s Birthday 
• Last Friday in March Cesar Chavez Day 
• Last Monday in May Memorial Day 
• June 19 Juneteenth 
• July 4 Independence Day 
• First Monday in September Labor Day 
• November 11 Veteran’s Day 
• Fourth Thursday in November Thanksgiving 
• Fourth Friday in November Day after Thanksgiving 
• December 25 Christmas 

 
All Holidays are eight (8) hours regardless of the employee’s assigned shift.  For 
employees working an alternative or flex work schedule, when the holiday fall on a 
workday in which they are scheduled to work more than 8 hours, the employee may use 
their accrued vacation or compensatory time off to make o the difference between the 8 

162 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  16 

hours and their scheduled hours or, subject to supervisor approval, the employee may 
make up the time within the workweek the holiday falls.  
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, each holiday (8 
hours) shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work 
in relation to full-time. 
 
15.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday.  
 
In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the preceding 
Friday shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. In the event that any of the 
aforementioned days falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a 
holiday for pay purposes. 
 
15.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off.  
 
If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off the employee shall 
exercise one of the following options: 
 

• The employee shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay – providing a 
total of 88 hours of straight time pay for the pay period; OR 

 
• The employee shall take an alternate day off with holiday pay within two (2) pay 

periods (either in the same pay period as the holiday falls, or the following pay 
period).  The employee and his/her immediate supervisor shall determine the 
alternate day to be taken. 

 
15.5 Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday.  
 
An employee assigned by his/her Department Head to work on a holiday listed above 
shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay plus compensation at the overtime rate 
for hours actually worked on the holiday. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVI.  VACATION 
 
16.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. 
 
Upon supervisorial approval, employees shall be given their preference of requested 
vacation time, and in the case of conflict between employees, classification seniority 
shall prevail. 
 
16.2 Vacation Sell Back. 
 

163 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  17 

An employee with a minimum of three (3) years of service has the option to sell back up 
to fifty two (52)eighty (80) hours of vacation per calendar year provided the employee 
has a minimum of 160 hours of vacation accumulated. 
 
16.3 Rate of Vacation Earned.   
 
Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rates, to the following maximums, for 
continuous service performed: 
 
Years of Completed Service Hours Accrued Per Year/Pay Period  Maximum Accrual (Hrs) 
 0 through 4       96/3.69    192 
 5 through 9     144/5.54    288 
 10 through 15    160/6.15    320 
 16+      192/7.38    384 
 
Once an employee reaches their maximum vacation accrual hours, they will no longer 
accrue vacation leave until they reduce their balance below the cap. Vacation will be 
accrued based on the years of service, by 26 pay periods to the second digit.  An 
employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period in order to accrue vacation 
leave. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, hours shall accrue 
at a pro-rated rate based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work in 
relation to full-time.  The maximum accrual cap shall be twice the pro-rated annual 
accrual.  A full-time employee who moves to a part-time position/status, and who has a 
vacation balance in excess of the pro-rated maximum amount, will be afforded six (6) 
months to use the excess accrued vacation and will continue to accrue vacation hours, 
at the pro-rated rate, during the six (6) month period.  The Supervisor will make every 
effort to grant vacation requests from an employee so situated.  If the requests cannot 
be granted, the excess vacation balance will be cashed-out. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVII.  MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
17.1 Medical Insurance Provided.   
 
For full-time regular employees, the City shall contribute toward the employee’s health 
premium as follows: 
 
Effective January 1, 2021 2023 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2020 2022 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of 
coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 20222024, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2021 2023 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of 
coverage. 
 

164 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  18 

Effective January 1, 20232025, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2022 2024 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of 
coverage. 
 
Represented employees are free to choose any health care plan offered under the 
CalPERS Health Care Program. 
 
For part-time employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make a pro-
rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to 
work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
17.2     Retiree Medical Insurance. 
 
During the term of this MOU the City will contribute toward retiree health premiums as 
follows: 
 
Existing City retirees and current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, 
receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium equal to that provided to 
current active employees. 
 
Current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, shall be offered the option to 
opt into the CalPERS Vesting Program upon retirement. If the employee opts-in to the 
CalPERS Vesting Schedule Program (GC 22893), the decision is irrevocable 
(permanent) as CalPERS does not allow the employee to opt out later. 
 
Current City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, will receive a City 
contribution toward their retiree health premium in an amount as described by the 
CalPERS Vesting Program (GC 22893), and summarized in the table below. 
 
The CalPERS Vesting Program is regulated by Government Code 22893 and applies to 
City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, and retired City employees hired 
before September 1, 2010, who voluntarily opt in upon retirement.  
 
Every year CalPERS calculates the State contribution rates towards retiree health 
premiums, referred to as State Annuitant Contribution Rates. If the rate or vested 
amount does not cover the entire cost of the health premium, the retired employee is 
responsible for the difference.  
 
A City retiree is eligible to receive a contribution towards the retiree medical premium if: 
 

1. The City retiree has a minimum of ten (10) years of CalPERS earned 
service credit to receive 50% of the employer contribution. 

a. Credited service is compensated CalPERS service time earned 
(G.C. 20069). 

165 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  19 

b. Purchased “Additional Retirement Service Credit (ARSC)” does 
not qualify as it is not earned service. 

2. Five (5) of those ten (10) years of CalPERS earned service credit must 
be performed at the City of Pinole. 

a. Each additional CalPERS earned service credit year after the 
completion of ten years increases the City’s contribution 
percentage by 5% until the completion of 20 years, at which 
time the retiring employee is eligible for 100% of the State 
Annuitant Contribution Rate (100/90 formula). 

 
CalPERS Credited 
Years of Earned Service 

Percentage of City 
Contribution Based On  
The State’s Rate 

10  50  
11  55  
12  60  
13  65  
14  70  
15  75  
16  80  
17  85  
18  90  
19  95  
20 or more  100  

▪ Employees hired before July 1, 2010 are eligible to continue in the CalPERS 
Health Plan and receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium 
equal to that provided to current active employees, in accordance with 
Government Code Section 22892.   
 
Employees hired before July 1, 2010 shall be offered the option to elect to 
participate in the vesting program as defined below (described by Government 
Code Section 22893) as soon after the program implementation as allowed per 
CalPERS regulations. 

 
▪ Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010 receive a City contribution toward their 

retiree health premium in an amount as described by Government Code Section 
22893 (the PERS vesting schedule).   

 
The percentage of employer contribution toward retiree health premiums 
is determined annually by CalPERS and shall be based on the member's 
completed years of credited service (excluding any purchased service 
credits) at retirement as shown in the table below.  Employees must have 
a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City of Pinole and 10 years 
of total CalPERS service credit to be eligible for this benefit. 
 

166 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  20 

 Credited           Percentage of 
 Years               Employer 
 of Service        Contribution 
  10                    50 
  11                    55 
  12                    60 
  13                    65 
  14                    70 
  15                    75 
  16                    80 
  17                    85 
  18                    90 
  19                    95 
  20 or more       100 
 

As an example, the Employer contributions for 2010 are:   
✓ $493 for single – represents 100% of the weighted average of the four (4) 

health benefit plans that had the largest State enrollment. 
✓ $936 for 2-party – represents an additional 90% of the single rate.  
✓ $1202 for family coverage – represents 90% of the additional premium required 

for enrollment of family members.  
 
17.3 Medical In-Lieu.  
 
Eligible full-time employees shall be allowed to receive payment in lieu of medical 
insurance as follows: 
 

• One-party coverage = $225 per month or $103.84 per pay period 
• Two-party coverage = $450 per month or $207.69 per pay period 
• Family coverage = $600 per month or $276.92 per pay period 

 
An employee must show proof of adequate medical insurance coverage under another 
health plan before the benefit may be received, and annually thereafter. Employees will 
be subject to provisions of the City's health plans in the event termination of in-lieu 
benefits and resumption of medical coverage is desired. 
 
Employees electing the medical in-lieu option shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
amount received for this option should their coverage election change. It is the duty of 
the employee to notify Human Resources of any such changes.  
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVIII.  DENTAL INSURANCE 

167 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  21 

 
18.1 Dental Insurance Provided.    
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 and the employee’s eligible dependents, if desired.  Selection of 
the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City.  
 
The City-provided dental insurance plan provides for a maximum annual dental payout 
of $1,500 for each employee and for each employee’s eligible dependents.   
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make 
a pro-rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
18.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 and up to Family coverage if desired. Selection of the carrier is at 
the discretion of the City.  
 
The City-provided orthodontic insurance plan provides for a lifetime maximum 
orthodontic payout of $1,500 for each employee and for each employee’s eligible 
dependents. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIX.  VISION INSURANCE 
 
19.1 Vision Insurance Provided.   
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay the premium for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 for full family vision care coverage that provides for one 
examination, one set of lenses, and one frame per year. Selection of the carrier shall be 
at the discretion of the City.  The City provided plan shall provide for a $20 co-payment 
for examination and a $20 co-payment for materials. 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the City shall make 
a pro-rated premium contribution based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled 
to work in relation to full-time.  The pro-rated premium is based on the contribution 
maximum for regular full-time employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XX.  LIFE INSURANCE 
 
20.1 Life Insurance Provided.   
 

168 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  22 

During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to provide term life insurance and 
accidental death and dismemberment insurance, for employees as defined in Section 
1.3 in the amount of $40,000 each per year/per employeeone times (1x) the employee’s 
annual base wage salary. Selection of the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
20.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates.   
 
The City shall pay for all premium increases for life insurance coverage. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXI.  DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 
21.1 Disability Insurance Provided.  
 
The City agrees to provide the State Short-Term Disability Insurance 
programparticipates in CASDI for short term disabilities and shall provide a Long Term 
Disability (LTD) benefit as described in 21.2 for employees as defined in Section 1.3.  
The costs of this the CASDI program are the responsibility of the employee, paid 
through payroll deductions. 
 
21.2 Long Term Disability Insurance Premium Rates.  
 

• Short Term Disability Rates 
 

During the term of this MOU, the City shall provide, at its own expense, short 
term disability insurance of two-thirds of salary ($463 per week maximum benefit) 
with a 29-day waiting period. 
 
 
 

• Long Term Disability Rates 
 

During the term of this the MOU agreement, the City shall provide employees as 
defined in Section 1.3, at its own expense, long term disability insurance of two-
thirds of salary up to $3,000six thousand dollars ($6,000) per month ($2,000four 
thousand dollars ($4,000) maximum benefit) with a 90-day waiting period. 

 
21.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade.  
 
During the term of this MOU, employees have the option to upgrade the Long-Term 
Disability plan to provide two-thirds of salary up to $5,000 per month at employee 
expense provided that all AFSCME Local 512 members opt for this upgraded coverage 
with said expense taken as a payroll deduction and provided selected carrier agrees to 
this change. 
 
 

169 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  23 

ARTICLE XXII.  DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION 
COVERAGE 

 
22.1 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined.  
 
A Domestic Partnership is defined pursuant to the California Family Code.  The City, in 
accordance with CalPERS regulations, will allow coverage for registered domestic 
partners of employees under the medical, dental and vision health care plans.  Prior to 
any coverage being provided, the employee must provide proof of domestic partnership 
registration with the California Secretary of State. 
 
22.2 Medical, Dental, Vision Premium Rates.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City agrees to pay health, dental and vision premiums 
as outlined in Articles XVII – XIX of this document.  Registered domestic partners 
meeting the above requirements shall be considered qualified dependents for the 
purposes of the City’s payment of these premiums. 
 
22.3 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN. 
 
Effective sixty (60) days following adoption by the City Council of a successor MOU, the 
The City will establish and pay the costs for administeringprovide at its own expense a 
flexible benefit plan for bargaining unit members.  Selection of the benefit provider shall 
be at the discretion of the City. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIII.  TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 
  
23.1 Tuition Reimbursement Eligibility. 
 
After completing one (1) year of service with the City, an employee will be eligible to 
participate in the tuition reimbursement program.  To be eligible, an employee must 
satisfactorily complete three (3) or more semester units in qualifying job-related courses 
as approved by the Department Head and the City Manager.  
 
Upon completion of the course(s) with a passing grade of “C” or better, or “pass” if taken 
as pass/fail, the employee shall receive reimbursement for tuition, books and related 
expenses to a maximum annual amount of $600 per calendar year.  To receive 
reimbursement the employee must complete the Tuition Reimbursement form, submit 
copies of receipts for expenses, and proof of his/her final grade. 
 
All education or other training courses approved under this program shall be completed 
on an employee’s own time and at his/her own expense. 
 

170 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  24 

For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIV.  INCENTIVE PAYS 
 
24.1 Educational Degree.  
 
During the term of this MOU, the City will pay those employees who have earned 
degrees from accredited college institutions, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, additional pay as follows: 
 

• Associate of Art/Science Degree  $ 75.00 per month or $34.61 per 
pay period 

• Bachelor of Art/Science Degree  $150.00 per month or $69.23 per 
pay period 

 
 
An employee is only eligible to receive educational degree premium pay for one-degree 
classification. An employee is not eligible to receive this pay for multiple degrees and/or 
disciplines. 
 
For part-time regular employees working at least 20 hours per week, the payment shall 
be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours regularly schedule to work in relation to 
full-time. 
 
This Educational Degree Pay shall only be paid to employees holding a degree beyond 
that which is required for their classification, as outlined in the job description.  Effective 
July 1, 2010 employees currently receiving Degree Pay, who hold a position which 
requires the degree, shall continue to receive the pay until such time as they separate 
from employment or otherwise move from that position. 
 
24.2 Bilingual Pay.  
 
During the term of this MOU, any employee who in the regular course of their 
employment and after successfully passing a City administered oral and written test, 
uses their bilingual proficiency on a regular basis for the benefit of the City shall receive 
bilingual pay of an additional 10% of their monthly base pay.  The City retains the 
discretion to determine which classifications/positions and which languages, are eligible.  
The benefit shall not compound, nor be compounded by, any other additional 
compensation.  
 
 
ARTICLE XXV.  RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

171 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  25 

25.1 Retirement Plan Defined. 
 
The City shall contract with the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS) for the purpose of allowing employees to earn retirement benefits.  The City 
has contracted for at the 2.5% @ 55 Plan benefits for “Classic” members as defined by 
the PEPRA and CalPERS.  Employees who constitute “New” members may earn 
benefits under the 2% @ 62 Plan.  
 
25.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. 
 
Employees shall pay the full eight percent (8%) of the required CalPERS Employee 
Contribution Rate. 
 
The retirement contribution sharing formula for the CalPERS Employer Contribution 
Rate shall be as follows: 

 
A.    Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2021, the employee’s total 

CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and Employee’s 
share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be eighteen percent 
(18%).  

 
B.    Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2022, the The employee’s 

total CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and the 
Employee’s share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be fifteen 
percent (15%).  

 
25.3 CalPERS Contract Benefits. 
 
The City currently participates through a contract in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS). For “Classic” Miscellaneous Members, the contract 
offers the following options: 
 

▪ Military Buy Back - The choice to participate in the CalPERS Military Buy 
Back program is solely at the discretion and cost of the employee.  

 
▪ Third Level 1959 Survivors Benefits 
 
▪ Single Highest Year Compensation Formula 
 
▪ Service Credit for Unused Sick Leave 

 
 
ARTICLE XXVI.   UNIFORM LAUNDRY SERVICE, AND SAFETY SHOE 

ALLOWANCE 
 
26.1 Uniform Laundry Service. 

172 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  26 

 
The City shall provide a weekly laundry service to job classifications for which the City 
requires standardized attire. The City maintains the ability to modify laundry service 
levels based on need requirement. In accordance with CalPERS compensation 
requirements, the cost of Uniform laundry services provided to an employee shall be 
reported as compensation to the employee. 
 
26.2 Safety Shoes. 
 
The allowance provided by the City for the purchase of safety shoes for maintenance 
and related job classifications for which the City requires safety shoes, shall be $200.00 
per year paid the first pay period in July annually.   
 
New employees shall be provided the safety shoe allowance above by the second full 
pay period after initial appointment.  Thereafter, the employee shall be eligible to 
receive the annual safety show allowance in July as described above, but not sooner 
than twelve (12) months after initial appointment. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVII.  CERTIFICATION FEES 
 
27.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. 
 
Costs involved in the issuance and renewal of certificates required by the City as a 
condition of employment in a regular full-time status with the City shall be paid directly 
or reimbursed by the City to the employee. 
 
27.2 Payment of Department Of Transportation License Fees. 
 
Driver's license fees shall not be included as a reimbursable cost; however, driver's 
license fees related to Department of Transportation requirements for a Class A or B 
license and the related medical examination shall be paid by the City. 
 
27.3 Payment of Above-Grade Certification for Wastewater Employees. 
 
The City will pay those employees who work at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant 
and who obtain a higher-grade certificate than what is required in their assigned job 
classification $75 a month ($34.62 per pay period).  The City shall also reimburse an 
employee the fee for the above grade certificate cost once obtained.  The City shall 
compensate employee for only one certificate. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVIII.  PLACEHOLDER FOR FUTURE USE 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIX.  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

173 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  27 

 
29.1 Paid Bereavement Leave  
 
Any employee who is absent from work by reason of the death of a member of his/her 
immediate family may be allowed a bereavement leave of absence with full pay not to 
exceed five (5) workdays per incident.  However, when it is reasonable and necessary, 
good cause is shown, and upon approval of the Department Head, three (3) additional 
days may be granted for such leave. All bereavement leave must be taken within one 
year of said incident.  The days which are used as bereavement time off do not have to 
be consecutive in nature.  Certification of loss may be required in certain circumstances. 
In order to receive compensation while absent on bereavement leave, the employee 
shall notify his/her immediate supervisor or the Department Head prior to the time set to 
begin his/her next shift.   
 
29.2 Immediate Family Defined. 
 
Immediate family shall include the father, mother, step father, step mother, grandfather, 
grandmother, grandchild, brother, sister, step sister, step brother, father-in-law, mother-
in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, spouse or registered 
domestic partner, child or stepchild of the eligible employee. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXX.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
30.1 Grievance Defined. 
 
A grievance is an unresolved complaint or dispute regarding the application or 
interpretation of this MOU, the City Personnel Rules, other applicable regulations, 
policies or procedures governing personnel practices or working conditions. 
 
30.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. 
 
Use of this procedure shall not reflect unfavorably on the employee, the Supervisor(s), 
the Department Manager(s), or the general management of the City. Retaliatory or 
discriminatory action against an employee for using this procedure or discrimination in 
the application of a rule or policy shall be a violation of City policy. 
 
30.3 Grievance Procedure Defined.   
 
This grievance procedure is established to accomplish the following objectives: 
 

a.  To settle the disagreement at the employee-supervisor level, if possible. 
 

b. To provide an orderly procedure to handle the grievance through each 
level of supervision, if necessary. 
 

174 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  28 

c. To resolve the grievance as quickly as possible. 
 

d. To correct, if possible, the cause of the grievance to prevent future similar 
complaints. 

e. To reduce the number of grievances by allowing them to be expressed 
thereby adjusting and eliminating grievances. 
 

f. To promote harmonious relations among employees, their supervisors, 
and the departmental staff. 

 
g. To ensure fair and equitable treatment of all employees. 

 
30.4 Grievance Process.  
 
The conduct of Grievance Process shall be as follows: 
 

a. An aggrieved employee may be represented by his/her recognized 
employee organization, other representative of his/her choosing,  or may 
represent him or herself in preparing and presenting his/her grievance at 
any level of review. 

 
b. The employee and his representative(s), if any, may use a reasonable 

amount of work time, as determined by the appropriate management 
supervisor, if conferring about and in presenting a grievance. 

 
c. Any monetary grievances shall be limited to the date the grievance was 

originally filed in writing or otherwise as provided in Step I of the 
Grievance Procedure, except in cases where it was impossible for the 
employee to have had prior knowledge of an accounting error. 

 
d. The time limit specified in this article may be extended by mutual 

agreement of the aggrieved employee and the reviewer concerned. 
 
e. Should a decision not be rendered within a stipulated time limit, the 

aggrieved employee may immediately appeal to the next step. 
 
f. The grievance may be considered settled if the decision of any step is not 

appealed within the specified time limit. 
 
30.5 Grievance Procedure. 
 
The Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 
 

• Step 1.  
 

175 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  29 

The aggrieved employee will first attempt to resolve the grievance through 
informal discussion with his or her immediate supervisor by the end of the tenth 
calendar day following the incident upon which the grievance is based. Every 
attempt will be made to settle the issue at this level. 
• Step 2.  

 
If the grievance is not resolved through the informal discussions, the aggrieved 
employee will reduce the grievance to writing and submit copies to his or her 
Department Manager and the Human Resources Director or his or her designee 
within ten (10) calendar days of the discussion with his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Department Manager shall have ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of a 
written grievance to review the matter and prepare a written response. 
 
 
• Step 3. 

 
If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the aggrieved employee may appeal 
the decision of his or her Department Manager to the City Manager in writing 
within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the Department Manager‘s 
response. If the employee wishes, he or she may request to have the grievance 
reviewed by an Employee Appeals Board, or a State Mediator, prior to review by 
the City Manager, and he or she must so indicate in his or her appeal to the City 
Manager. 
 

30.6 Employee Appeals Board. 
 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance to the Employee Appeals 
Board, the Board shall be convened to hear the grievance on its merits with the purpose 
of attempting to resolve it in a satisfactory manner. This Board shall consist of three (3) 
members. One member shall be appointed by the affected employee or the Union; one 
member shall be appointed by the City; and the third member, who shall act as 
chairperson, shall be selected by the other two members.  

 
No member of the Board shall be a person in the normal line of supervision nor from 
within the same department or division as the affected employee. No member of the 
Board shall be compensated by the City for serving on the Board except that if a City 
employee serves on the Board, he or she shall be released for such service without loss 
of regular straight time compensation during his/her normal work hours. 

 
The Employee Appeals Board shall then determine the facts of the grievance and 
submit a report of its findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten 
(10) calendar days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and 
recommendations shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
 
30.7 Non-Binding Confidential Mediation. 

176 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  30 

 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance to the non-binding confidential 
mediation instead of the Employee Appeals Board, the City Manager or designee and the 
employee or employee’s representative within ten (10) days shall mutually select a 
mediator, or if agreement on a mediator cannot be reached, the parties may request 
that a mediator be assigned by the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service.   
 
The fees and expenses of mediation shall be shared equally by the City and the Union.  
In the event the employee is not represented by the Union, these fees shall be borne by 
the City.  All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them and no party 
shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by another party, if any.   
 
The Mediator shall then determine the facts of the grievance and submit a report of 
his/her findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten (10) calendar 
days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and recommendations 
shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
 
30.8 Employee Appeals Board or Mediator Recommendation to City Manager. 

 
Upon receipt of the employee's appeal and/or report and recommendations of the 
Employee Appeals Board or Mediator, the City Manager may elect the methods he or 
she then considers appropriate to review and settle the grievance. He or she shall 
render a written decision to all parties directly involved within fifteen (15) calendar days 
after receiving the employee's appeal, or if the Employee Appeals Board or Mediation 
procedure was utilized, after receipt of the Employee Appeals Board/Mediator’s report.  
The decision of the City Manager shall be final and not subject to appeal or review by 
the City Council. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXXI.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
31.1 Disciplinary Action 

 
Disciplinary action proposed and/or imposed against an employee whose 
position is represented under a collective bargaining agreement shall be 
governed by the process(es) as defined within that employee’s collective 
bargaining agreement. The City Manager is authorized to develop a disciplinary 
action process for employees not represented by a collective bargaining 
agreement; however, such a process shall not waive the at-will employment 
status of said unrepresented employees. 

 
31.2 Causes for Disciplinary Action 

 
Disciplinary action may be taken for any just cause.  Cause for disciplinary action 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, any of the following: 

 

177 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  31 

1. Fraud of any kind; or misstatement or untruths or omissions of any 
material fact in the application process or in securing appointment or 
promotion; or falsification or untruths concerning records, fellow 
employees, or work performed. 

 
2. Incompetence, inefficiency or carelessness in the performance of required 

duties; Less than satisfactory performance. 
 
3. Neglect of or inattention to job duties, including the conduct of personal 

affairs during working hours. 
 
4. Insubordination - willful disobedience, or failure to obey any proper 

direction made and given by a superior officer or supervisor. 
 
5. Misconduct - willful or wanton disregard of the interests of the City, or 

deliberate violation or disregard of behavioral norms/expectations  
 
6. Conduct unbecoming an employee of the City. 

 
7. Any acts or omissions, which are either incompatible with or unfavorable 

to the public service, or which tend to bring reproach or discredit to the 
City. 

 
8. Discourteous or non-cooperative treatment of the public, City elected 

officials, employees, or volunteers; Offensive or obscene language in 
public, or towards the public, City elected officials, or employees. 

 
9. Dishonesty or immorality on the job. 
 
10. Endangering self or others, or failure to follow adopted safety practices, or 

failure to properly use required personal protective gear or equipment. 
 
11. Reporting for duty or being on duty under the influence of any intoxicant or 

absenting oneself from duty or rendering oneself unfit to perform fully 
one’s duties for reasons attributable to or produced by intoxicants; Failure 
to notify a supervisor, in writing, when the employee is taking prescription 
medication that can impair judgment or performance. 

12. Failure to report to work as scheduled or failure to notify supervisor, in 
accordance with department standards, of one’s inability to report to work; 
Abuse of sick leave privileges. 

 
13. Failure to immediately report a vehicle accident. 
 
14. Intimidation or interference with the rights of any employee; Fighting, 

assault and/or battery on the public, City elected officials, employees or 
volunteers. 

178 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  32 

 
15. Failure to maintain the necessary license or certification required by the 

class specification. 
 
16. Sleeping on the job. 
 
17. Conviction of a crime, the nature of which has a direct bearing on 

continued employment. 
 
18. Unauthorized leave of absence; failure to report to work after an 

authorized leave of absence has expired or after a requested leave of 
absence has been disapproved, revoked or canceled; or any other 
unauthorized absence from work. 

 
19. Misuse or misappropriation of City property or funds; carelessness or 

negligence with the monies or other property of the City; appropriating to 
the employee’s own use any property of the City, or loaning, selling or 
giving away such property without legal authorization. 

 
20. Theft or sabotage of City property or funds. 
 
21. Using or attempting to use political influence in attempting to secure 

promotion, leave of absence, transfer, change of rate of pay or character 
of work. 

 
22. Inducing or attempting to induce a City employee to commit an unlawful 

act in violation of any lawful department or official regulation or order. 
 
23. Taking for personal use, from any person, a fee, gift or other valuable 

thing in connection with official work when such fee, gift or other valuable 
thing is given in the expectation of receiving favored treatment. 

 
24. Violation of or failure to abide by any condition of employment stipulated in 

the Municipal Code, Personnel Rules, any City Policies and Procedures, 
collective bargaining agreement (if any), administrative memorandum, or 
lawful official regulation or order of the City. 

 
25. Failure to cooperate in an official inquiry or investigation into an alleged 

violation of this MOU or the Personnel Rules. 
 
26. Working overtime without supervisory authorization. 
 
27. Engaging in outside employment without supervisory authorization. 
 
28. Bringing a gun or any other dangerous weapon onto City property. 

 

179 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  33 

31.3 Forms of Discipline 
 

A. Written Reprimand 
B. Suspension 
C. Reduction in Step 
D. Involuntary Demotion (Note:  Termination of an incentive pay or assignment 

pay is not considered demotion.) 
E. Termination 

 
31.4 Authority of Disciplinary Action 

 
The Department Head has authority to take disciplinary action.  The immediate 
supervisor has the authority to issue a written reprimand.  The Human Resources 
Director shall be notified of any proposed or pending disciplinary action, beyond 
a written reprimand.  The decision of the City Manager or designee shall be final 
and not subject to review by or appeal to the City Council. 

 
31.5 Procedures for Written Reprimand 

 
Employees may request a review by the Department Head regarding a written 
reprimand by submitting a written request within ten (10) days from the date of 
the written reprimand.  The Department Head shall review the employee’s 
submission, may meet with the employee within ten (10) days of the filing of the 
request and shall issue written findings within ten (10) days of the 
review/meeting.  The employee shall be entitled to representation, but is not 
entitled to an evidentiary hearing or to present witnesses.  Written reprimands 
are not subject to the discipline procedures set forth in the below Sections 
regarding Notice of Intended Discipline, Notice of Discipline, Post-Disciplinary 
Appeal, or the Grievance Procedure.   
 
In the event the written reprimand was issued by the Department Head, the 
employee may request a review by the Human Resources Director, per the 
procedure outlined above. 
 

31.6 Notice of Intended Discipline 
 
A. Prior to receiving any suspension, reduction in step, involuntary demotion or 

termination, the employee shall receive written notice of the proposed 
disciplinary action containing the following: 

   
1. The proposed disciplinary action; 
2. The grounds on which the proposed discipline is based; 
3. A summary of the reasons for the proposed action;  
4. The documents, or access to the documents, upon which the 

proposed action is based;  

180 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  34 

5. Notice to the employee of the right to respond to charges orally and/or 
in writing within seven (7) days from the service of the notice. 

 
B. An employee who desires to respond orally may do so by appearing at the 

time and place agreed upon by the employee and the Department Head.  The 
employee is entitled to representation, but is not entitled to an evidentiary 
hearing or to present witnesses.  If the employee demonstrates good cause 
why he/she cannot respond within seven (7) days, the City may grant a 
continuance. 

 
31.7 Notice of Discipline 

 
No disciplinary action against an employee, excluding probationary and other at-
will employees, shall be imposed unless such action is recommended by the City 
in a written notice of disciplinary action.  This notice shall be served on the 
employee (with a copy to the Union representative, if involved) and filed with the 
Human Resources Department no later than seven (7) days after the date of 
such action.  The notice shall include: 
 

1. A statement of the disciplinary action; 
2. The effective date of the action; 
3. The grounds on which the discipline is based; 
4. A summary of the reasons for the proposed action;  
5. The documents, or access to the documents, upon which the 

proposed action is based;  
6. A statement addressing the responses to the charges by the employee 

or designated representative, if any; 
7. Notice to the employee of the right to appeal. 

 
31.8 Post-Disciplinary Appeal 

 
The following post-disciplinary appeal procedures to suspensions, reductions in 
step, demotions and terminations: 

 
1. Within seven (7) days of the receipt of written notice of final disciplinary 

action, the disciplined employee may appeal the disciplinary action to 
the City Manager by filing a written request with the City Manager and 
providing a copy of the request to the Human Resources Director.  
Failure by the employee or the employee’s representative to initiate the 
appeal within the prescribed time limits shall waive the right of the 
employee and the employee’s representative from appealing the 
discipline. 

 
2. The City Manager or designee and the employee or employee’s 

representative shall select a hearing officer who shall conduct an 
administrative hearing within sixty (60) days.  The hearing officer shall 

181 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  35 

be selected from among a list of names not to exceed ten (10) names 
provided by the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service.  
The method of selection from said list shall consist of the following 
process: 

 
After a toss of coin to decide which party shall move first, the City 
Manager or designee and the employee or employee’s 
representative shall alternatively strike one name from the list until 
one name remains and such person shall act as the hearing officer. 
The next to the last name stricken shall be the alternate hearing 
officer to serve in the event the first hearing officer is not available.  
The procedure shall be followed until there is an available 
arbitrator. 
 

3. The fees and expenses of the hearing officer and court reporter (if any) 
shall be shared equally by the City and the Recognized Employee 
Organization.  In the event the employee is not represented by a 
Recognized Employee Organization, these fees shall be borne by the 
City.  All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them and 
no party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by 
another party.  Parties shall bear their own cost of any requested 
hearing transcript. 

 
4. The hearing officer shall make a recommendation to the City Manager 

to sustain, modify or reverse the disciplinary action.  A copy of the 
recommendation shall be given to the employee.  The City Manager 
will then issue a final written decision within fifteen (15) days of 
receiving the recommendation, and may, but is not required to, accept 
the hearing officer’s recommendation. 

 
In the event the disciplined employee reports directly to the City Manager, or the 
City Manager initiated the disciplinary action as described within this section, the 
hearing officer shall make a recommendation to the City Attorney.  The City 
Attorney’s decision shall be final and not subject to review by or appeal to the 
City Council. 

 
31.9 Waiver of Steps or Time Limits 

 
Any time limit or stage of the Discipline Procedure may be waived if all involved 
parties consent in writing. 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXII. LAYOFF/REDUCTION IN HOURS 
 
32.1 Layoff Policy 

 

182 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  36 

Whenever the City Manager and/or City Council determines in his/her/their sole 
discretion that it is necessary to abolish any position of employment due to 
changes in duties or organizational structure, economic conditions, lack of work 
or funds, or any other reason, the employee holding that position may be laid off, 
transferred, or demoted without disciplinary action and without the right of 
appeal. 

 
32.2 Notification 

 
An employee being laid off shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice. 
 
At the time affected employees are noticed of the layoff, the Human Resources 
Director will also provide written notice to the bargaining unit representative(s).  
The City and the bargaining unit representatives will engage in the meet and 
confer process regarding the impacts of the layoff.  Any questions or concerns 
regarding the order of layoff will be discussed during the impact meeting(s). 

 
32.3 Order of Layoff 

 
In each class, employees shall be laid off according to employment status in the 
following order: temporary, provisional, regular part-time, probationary full-time, 
and regular full-time.  In this chapter, probationary status means the probationary 
period required upon the initial employment with the City leading to a regular 
position. 

 
32.4 Vacancy, Demotion, Retreat, and Seniority 

 
When the City has determined that a regular employee is to be laid off, the City 
Manager shall first demote the regular employee (based upon seniority within the 
class at the City of Pinole) to a regular position vacancy, if any, in a lower class 
which the employee previously held.  All persons so demoted shall have their 
names placed on a reinstatement list for a period of one year. 

 
Upon layoff, regular employees have the right to retreat to a lower class in 
accordance with this layoff policy.  In order to retreat to a lower class an 
employee must have more seniority than at least one of the incumbents in the 
retreat class and request displacement action in writing to the Human Resources 
Director within seven (7) days of receipt of notice of layoff.  An employee 
retreating to a lower class shall be placed at the salary step representing the 
least loss of pay. 
 
For purposes of layoff, seniority shall be defined as an employee’s tenure in a 
class. When an employee retreats to a lower class seniority for that class shall 
include the tenure of all higher classes. 

 

183 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  37 

Seniority includes time accrued in regular full-time and regular part-time service.  
In this chapter, length of service for regular part-time employment is calculated 
on a pro-rata basis.  Employment in a temporary appointment position does not 
count in calculating seniority. 

 
32.5 Reinstatement List 

 
The names of all regular and probationary employees laid off, or demoted in lieu 
of layoff, shall be placed on a reinstatement list for the classification from which 
they were removed. 
 
Reinstatement list(s) shall remain in effect for twelve (12) months, unless 
exhausted sooner. 

 
Reinstatement lists shall take precedence over all other employment lists except 
that employees on such lists shall not have the right to displace working 
employees. 
 
Failure by a laid off employee to promptly respond to and accept a reinstatement 
offer in writing within  ten (10) days of the date the offer is mailed to his/her last 
known address shall result in removal of his/her name from the reinstatement list. 

 
Reinstatement will result in removal from the reinstatement list except when 
reinstatement is in a lower class. 

 
32.6 Reinstatement 

 
A former employee appointed from a reinstatement list shall have the following 
benefits restored: 

 
1. Accrued but unused sick leave. 
 
2. Seniority at the time of layoff for vacation accrual, years of service, and 

department purposes as defined within department operating procedures 
(e.g., work schedule preferences, vacation scheduling preferences). 

 
32.7 Layoff of At-Will Employees 

 
By definition, employment at-will may be terminated by either the employee or 
the City at any time with or without cause and with or without notice.  Nothing in 
this chapter shall require the City Manager to allow a terminated at-will employee 
to displace an employee in a lower class or require the City Manager to place the 
terminated at-will employee on a reinstatement list. 

 
32.8 Reduction in Hours 
 

184 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  38 

Whenever the City Manager and/or City Council determines in his/her/their sole 
discretion that it is necessary to reduce the funding for any position of 
employment due to changes in duties or organizational structure, economic 
conditions, lack of work or funds, or any other reason, the employee holding that 
position will have their working hours reduced accordingly, without disciplinary 
action and without the right of appeal. 
 
In the event that funding for a regular status position is reduced the impacted 
employee shall be given at least fourteen (14) days prior written notice. 
 
At the time affected employees are noticed of the reduction in hours, the Human 
Resources Director will also provide written notice to the bargaining unit 
representative(s).  The City and the bargaining unit representatives will engage in 
the meet and confer process regarding the impacts of the reduction in hours.   
 
Employees will have their salary, benefits and leave accruals reduced in 
proportion to their percentage of full-time status, and in accordance with the 
applicable MOU.  In the event that funding for a position that has had the hours 
reduced is returned to the previous level, employees shall not be entitled to any 
additional compensation, benefits, or seniority for the period during which their 
hours were reduced.  Seniority during the time of reduced hours shall be retained 
for future reduction in force, and department purposes as defined within 
department operating procedures (e.g., work schedule preferences, vacation 
scheduling preferences). 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXIII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
33.1 Objective of the Probationary Period 

 
The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the selection process and 
shall be utilized for closely observing the employee’s work, for securing the most 
effective adjustment of a new employee to his/her position, and for releasing any 
probationary employee whose performance in the opinion of the Department 
Head and/or the City Manager does not meet the required standards of work.  
Nothing in this policy is intended to limit the reasons for which an employee may 
be released during the probationary period.  Release of an employee during the 
probationary period may be with or without cause and with or without prior notice 
to the employee. 

 
33.2 Probationary Period 

 
All original appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period 
of twelve (12) months of active duty from the date of probationary appointment.  
All promotional appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary 
period of six (6) months of active duty from the date of promotion.  Days absent 

185 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  39 

without pay, or leaves with pay exceeding thirty (30) calendar days during the 
probationary period shall extend the probationary period by the same number of 
days so as to result in a probationary period of active working duty for the 
required six (6) or twelve (12) months of active duty.  Employees who transfer to 
another position in the same classification shall not be required to undergo a new 
probationary period for the position into which he/she is transferring, provided the 
employee has completed the probationary period in the classification at the time 
of transfer.  During the initial probationary period, the employee may be released 
at any time by the City Manager, City Manager’s designee, and/or the 
Department Head with or without cause and with or without prior notice.  An 
employee released during the probationary period has no right to appeal or 
grieve the release. 

 
By mutual written agreement of the Department Head and the employee, the 
initial probationary period may exceed twelve (12) months of active duty when in 
the opinion of the Department Head, and the City Manager additional time is 
necessary to evaluate the employee’s effectiveness in his/her position.  The 
probationary period shall not exceed eighteen (18) months of active duty. 

 
33.3 Promotional Probationary Period 

 
An employee who has previously completed the requisite probationary period for 
an initial appointment and who is rejected during a subsequent probationary 
period for a promotional appointment shall be reinstated to the former position 
from which the employee was appointed.  If the employee was dismissed for 
cause from employment during the promotional probationary period, the 
employee shall not be entitled to such reinstatement rights.  An employee 
rejected during the promotional probationary period has no right to appeal or 
grieve the rejection. 

 
 
ARTICLE XXXIV. 
Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee Orientation 
 
34.1  Union Membership 
 
The City upon receipt of a certified written member list issued by a duly authorized Union 
official, shall deduct dues and voluntary deductions selected by members, as 
established by the Union from the salaries of its members. The Union shall notify the 
City in writing as to the amount of such dues uniformly required of all members of the 
Union and the amounts of any Union sponsored benefit deduction for its members. The 
sums so withheld shall be remitted by the City, without delay, along with a list of 
employees and their respective dues and voluntary deductions. The Union bears 
responsibility for allocating dues and voluntary deductions pursuant to the employee's 
request 
 

186 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  40 

The employees’ earnings must be sufficient after legal and required deductions are 
made to cover the amount of the dues or deductions. When an employee is in a non-
pay status for an entire pay period, no withholdings will be made to cover the pay period 
from the future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during 
only part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, 
no deductions shall be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions 
(including health care deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 
 
34.2 Annual AFSCME Local 512 Financial Reports Required.  
 
AFSCME Local 512 shall submit copies of the financial report required pursuant to the 
labor management disclosures act of 1959 to the City Manager once annually. Copies 
of such reports shall be available to employees at the office of the union. 
 
34.3 Indemnification.  
 
AFSCME Local 512 shall indemnify and hold the City and its officers and employees 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, or any other actions arising from the 
collection of dues and deductions herein. In no event shall the City be required to pay 
for from its own funds Union dues, or deductions that the employee was obligated to 
pay, but failed to pay, regardless of the reason. 
 
34.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO) 
 
Assembly Bill AB119 (New Employee Orientation- NEO) requires that the public 
employer (City of Pinole) shall provide the exclusive representative (AFSCME Council 
57/ Local 512) of said employees, mandatory access to its new employee 
orientations. The parties agree to the following and acknowledges the parties’ 
obligation to negotiate pursuant to Government Code Section 3557 and as such, 
parties waive their right to compulsory arbitration provided in Government Code 
Section 3557. 
 
New employee orientation (NEO) means an "in person" meeting designated as such and 
scheduled with representatives of the City to advise and inform new employees of their 
employment benefits, responsibilities, Union/City Rules, and other similar related 
matters. Currently, the City performs new employee orientations. However, there may 
be instances where orientations are held on a different date and/or time following their 
actual start date due to business needs. Typically, the orientation process lasts one (1) 
to two (2) hours and occurs during working hours. 
 
34.5 Notice Requirements 
 
The City of Pinole shall make every effort to provide written notice (by email or letter) 
to the Union of all new employee orientations, which they represent, at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days, no less than ten (10), prior to the scheduled orientation. The new 
employee orientation notice provided to the Union shall include the date, time, and 

187 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  41 

location of the orientation. This will allow for proper scheduling to ensure that 
representative(s) from the Union are available to meet with the employee prior to or 
following the orientation session. If the Union or its representative are not available on 
the day or time The City has scheduled its orientation, The City will allow the Union to 
meet with the new employee within a week of hire. 
 
AFSCME Council 57 / Local 512 will be provided the opportunity to have its Unit 
President or the Union’s chosen designee to meet with the new employee for up to 45 
minutes of uninterrupted private time prior to or following the NEO. The Union may 
provide for example, literature, written materials, packet of information, and or a visual 
presentation about its Union to the new employee(s). 
 
The Union's portion of the NEO will be conducted during paid City time as a regular part 
of the new employee orientation. Typically, the Union’s representatives are comprised 
of the Business Agent and/ or the Unit President / or chosen designee bargaining unit 
member. Approval from the Department Director shall be authorized prior to a 
bargaining unit member attending the new employee orientation. At no time shall the 
bargaining unit member (acting as a Union representative) meeting with the new 
employee result in any overtime or additional costs to the City. A bargaining unit 
member attending the orientation as a Union representative shall do so during their 
regular working hours so as to not incur additional costs to the City. If release time is 
requested, the Union will provide The City, in advance notice, of the name(s) of the 
bargaining unit member(s) who they wish to attend the orientation. 
 
During the new employee orientation, The City shall clearly communicate to each new 
employee hired into a position/classification represented by the (AFSCME Local 512) 
bargaining unit, that the employee's position is represented by AFSCME Local 512. 
To properly identify current leaders, the Union will provide a roster of current 
representative(s) to the City of Pinole prior to such orientation. 
 
34.6 Reporting Requirements 
 
Within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire, The City 
shall provide AFSCME Local 512 with the name, job title, department, work location, 
work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email addresses on 
file with the employer, as well as home address of all newly hired employees. AB119 
requires that The City provide the Union with this information for all employees in the 
bargaining unit at least every 120 days. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the City will provide to the Union on a monthly basis an 
electronic malleable list in Microsoft Excel of all bargaining unit members including the 
following information on file with the employer: full name, job classification, department, 
employee number, job type (full-time/part-time), work location, work, and personal 
telephone numbers, personal email addresses, work email addresses, home address, 
pay step, pay rate, and pay status. 
 

188 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  42 

 
ARTICLE XXXV.  DURATION 
 
35.1 Term.   
 
This MOU shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2021 2023 to and through June 
30, 20232025.  
 
35.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations.  
 
It is mutually agreed that the approval and ratification of this Memorandum of 
Understanding relieves the City of any and all further obligations to meet and confer 
regarding the provisions of this agreement, as required by the Government Code of the 
State of California for the period covered by this agreement, except as to the provisions 
of section 30.3. Nothing herein shall prevent the parties to this Memorandum of 
Understanding from meeting and conferring, and making modifications hereto by mutual 
consent. 
 
35.3 Notice of Termination.  
 
This MOU shall continue in force and effect hereafter from year to year unless either 
party gives one hundred and twenty (120) days written notice prior to the expiration 
date, or any annual anniversary date thereafter to terminate or modify this Agreement. 

 
35.4 Effective Date.  
 
All provisions contained in this MOU are effective July 1, 20212023, unless specifically 
stated otherwise.  
 
35.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes.   
 
In the event any portion of this Agreement is declared null and void under Federal or 
State law, the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, and the 
parties shall commence negotiations to ensure that the superseded portion shall be 
rewritten to conform as closely as is possible to the original intent. 
 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

189 of 594



 

City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 512 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  43 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Stacy Shell, Human Resources Director Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Charlene Davis, Human Resources Analyst Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Gregory Ramirez, Chief Negotiator Date 
 
  
AFSCME Local 512 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Kim Young, President  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Rob Ouellette, Team Member  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Sarrah Patton, Team Member  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Kym Anderson, Chief Negotiator  Date 

190 of 594



  
 

   
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 9D 
  

 
 
DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROGRAM MANAGER 
     SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD A CONTRACT TO TETRA TECH TO COMPLETE AN ENERGY 

CONSERVATION, GENERATION AND STORAGE ASSESSMENT IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $47,938 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) to award a 
contract in a form acceptable to the City Attorney to Tetra Tech to complete an Energy 
Conservation, Generation and Storage Assessment (CIP Project # IN2201) in an amount 
not to exceed $47,938 and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole provides services from numerous City facilities and through a variety 
of City infrastructure, including roads, parks, and streetlights. The City has invested in 
some energy conservation and generation measures over the past 10 years. These 
include solar arrays, EV charging stations, and streetlight improvements. The City 
anticipates spending approximately $1.3 million on electric and natural gas consumption 
in City facilities during FY 2022-23.  

The City is interested in identifying steps that it could take to further conserve, generate, 
and store energy in City facilities and infrastructure. Through the Energy Conservation, 
Generation and Storage Assessment, the City seeks to achieve the following outcomes:  

• An assessment of the City’s energy use in its facilities and infrastructure. 
• Identification of cost effective and environmentally responsible investments in 

energy conservation, generation, and storage. 
• Identification of investments to make the City more resilient during power outages, 

natural disasters, and from the impacts of climate change. 
• A recommended system(s) to track and provide reports on savings that result from 

investment in energy conservation and generation at City facilities.  

On June 6, 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting consultant 
proposals to complete an Energy Conservation, Generation and Storage Assessment. 

191 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023   2 

The RFP was listed on www.publicpurchase.com, posted on the City of Pinole website, 
and distributed to firms identified through a web search. Responses were due on July 14, 
2023. 
 
The scope for this project includes the following: 

 
A. Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Trends Review 
B. Conditions Assessment 
C. Opportunities Analysis 
D. Recommendations 

 
A Final Energy Conservation, Generation and Storage Assessment report will be 
presented to the City Council. 
 
A total of five proposals were submitted and provided to the review panel (Panel). The 
Panel consisted of two City of Pinole staff representing the Public Works Department and 
a project management consultant who supported the RFP process. All responses were 
evaluated using the criteria in the RFP: 
 

A. Qualifications 
B. Cost 
C. Method for Executing Scope of Work 
D. Exceptions to the Consultant Services Agreement 
E. References 

 
Three firms were selected by the Panel for interviews to further demonstrate their 
qualifications. The Panel members identified Tetra Tech as the preferred consultant. A 
copy of the Tetra Tech proposal is attached (Attachment B).  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
City staff recommends Tetra Tech based on the firm’s experience conducting similar 
assessments, ability to match recommendations to available funding sources, the breadth 
of talent on the team that would be assigned to the project and the proposed approach to 
completing the scope of work.  
 
Tetra Tech’s proposal included a budget of $39,978. After selecting Tetra Tech as the 
preferred firm, staff added additional services related to EV charging at City facilities and 
validation of the Senior Center solar design and negotiated a contract cost of $47,938 for 
the project. 
 
  

192 of 594

http://www.publicpurchase.com/


City Council Report  
August 15, 2023   3 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The FY 2023/24 adopted CIP budget includes $50,000 in funding for CIP Project IN2201–
- Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment. There are sufficient funds in 
the City’s adopted CIP budget to award the contract to Tetra Tech in an amount not to 
exceed $47,938. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution 
B. Tetra Tech proposal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

193 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AWARDING A CONTRACT TO 

TETRA TECH FOR $47,938 TO COMPLETE AN ENERGY CONSERVATION, 
GENERATION AND STORAGE ASSESSMENT (CIP PROJECT # IN2201) IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $47,938 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE CONTRACT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Pinole (“City”) recognizes that energy efficiency and 

resiliency of City facilities is important to provide effective City services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City would like to better understand steps that it could take to 

further conserve, generate, and store energy in City facilities and infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is also interested in identifying investments to make the City 

more resilient during power outages, natural disasters, and from the impacts of climate 
change; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted the FY 2023/24 through FY 2027/28 Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) which includes an energy conservation, generation, and 
storage assessment (CIP Project # IN2201) as a funded project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) on June 6, 2023, 

on www.publicpurchase.com, posted the RFP on www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids and 
distributed to firms based on a web search, seeking proposals from qualified 
consultants to provide professional services for the development of a Energy 
Conservation, Generation and Storage Assessment; and 

 
WHEREAS, five proposals were received and evaluated by an interview panel 

based on the criteria outlined in the RFP, including the consultant's experience, 
qualifications, interview and proposed methodology; and 

 
WHEREAS, the interview panel has recommended that the contract be 

awarded to Tetra Tech based on the firm’s experience conducting similar assessments, 
ability to match recommendations to available funding sources, the breadth of talent on 
the team that would be assigned to the project and the proposed approach to completing 
the scope of work; 

 
    NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 
 

1. Tetra Tech’s proposal is found to be the most responsive proposal and is 
accepted by the City Council for development of an Energy Conservation, 
Generation and Storage Opportunities Assessment. 

194 of 594

http://www.publicpurchase.com/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids


ATTACHMENT A 

 
2. There is $50,000 allocated in the City’s adopted Capital Improvement 

Program budget for this project.  
 

3. The City Manager is authorized to execute a professional services contract 
with Tetra Tech in an amount not to exceed $47,938 for the Project in a form 
to be approved by the City Attorney.  

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 15th day of August 2023 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted 
on the 15th day of August 2023. 

 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

195 of 594



 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Proposal for: 
ENERGY CONSERVATION, GENERATION AND STORAGE 
ASSESSMENT 
City of Pinole 

 

July 14, 2023 
Revised – August 3, 2023 
 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS  

196 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

a 
 i  

Table of Contents  

Cover Letter ........................................................................................................................................................................................   

A. Qualifications .......................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

B. Key Personnel ......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

C. Method for Executing Scope of Work .................................................................................................................................. 15 

D. Fee Proposal ......................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

E. References ............................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

F. Conflicts and Termination .................................................................................................................................................... 19 

G. Standard Agreement ............................................................................................................................................................. 20 

 

 

197 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

RFQ No. 2005 January 16, 2020 
 

Use or disclosure of data contained on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal.     

Cover Letter 
July 14, 2023 
 
Public Works Director 
City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564  
 
Subject:  Proposal for an Energy Conservation, Generation, And Storage Assessment for the City of Pinole 

facilities 
  
Dear Sanjay Mishra: 

Tetra Tech Inc. is pleased to submit our proposal to provide an energy conservation, generation, and storage 
assessment for the City of Pinole facilities.   

Over the past 23 years, the Tetra Tech Energy Team has been an industry leader in energy and water auditing, 
onsite generation solutions including microgrids, energy resiliency, energy management, and sustainability 
services.  Tetra Tech has an unparalleled track record of providing top-level technical and engineering services 
and site-specific solutions to consistently deliver improved facility performance, energy conservation, and 
energy generation solutions to our clients.  We have established technical teams with expertise in a wide range 
of relevant skills.  We excel in developing technically sound, economically attractive, and actionable results for 
our clients.      

Tetra Tech’s Energy Team has extensive experience in conducting comprehensive and technology-specific 
energy audits and assessments.  Our team has performed ASHRAE Level II and other energy and water audits 
for 5.5. million square feet of federal, state, and local government facilities in multiple states over the past few 
years, as well as developed onsite energy generation and storage solutions and implementation plans to help 
our clients put the energy audit findings into practice to realize savings and improve resiliency.  

Main Point of Contact 

Jennifer Brainerd, Program Manager, Energy Services will serve as the main point of contact during the RFP 
review process.  P: 619.321.6703, Email: Jennifer.Brainerd@tetratech.com.  

I hope that after review of our qualifications, you will agree that Tetra Tech offers the best overall expertise to 
the City of Pinole in meeting your energy study needs.  This proposal is valid for 90 days following the date of 
this letter. If you should have any questions regarding our capabilities or similar work, please contact Jennifer 
or me. 

Sincerely, 

Kathy Vandenheuvel PE 
Operations Manager 
1230 Columbia Street, Ste. 1000, San Diego, CA 92101 
P: 619.321.6712, Email: kathy.vandenheuvel@tetratech.com   

198 of 594

mailto:Jennifer.Brainerd@tetratech.com
mailto:kathy.vandenheuvel@tetratech.com


Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 1   1  

A. Qualifications 
Tetra Tech offers the City of Pinole the following qualifications, experience, and benefits to perform the services: 

Proven background accomplishing energy audits with meaningful results.  We provide realistically priced capital 
improvement projects, in addition to low-cost and no-cost recommended operational changes and training that 
can drive energy efficiency. 

Experienced energy audit and resilience team backed by 27,000 employees world-wide and an established 
Energy Team ready to complete the work in a short timeline.  We have audited millions of square feet of 
facilities for clients across the country and developed onsite generation solutions.  We are not an ESCO and 
provide neutral assessments for clients, agnostic to specific technologies or implementation approaches.   

Experience identifying comprehensive energy solutions that qualify for state and federal funding sources and 
low-interest financing sources. Tetra Tech energy professionals work with stakeholders at all levels to craft an 
execution plan for each energy opportunity. 

The ability to develop site-specific energy generation and storage solutions.  We conduct a rigorous technical 
and economic evaluation of various onsite power generation sources. We determine appropriate generation 
sources to provide complete resilience for your site as required, including the most ideal capacity of renewable 
energy and battery storage. 

A team of Professional Engineers, Certified Energy Managers, and other energy professionals who have worked 
together on similar successful projects, including a lead auditor local to the East Bay who has supported a wide 
range of California utility customers, including PG&E. 

Tetra Tech History 
Founded in 1966, Tetra Tech has grown into a global leader in providing engineering and technical services.  Tetra Tech’s 
innovative, sustainable solutions help our clients address their energy, water, environment, infrastructure, and resource 
management needs. We are proud to be home to leading technical experts that stay at the forefront of emerging 
technologies in order to provide the highest and best solutions for our clients.  We combine the resources of a global, 
multibillion-dollar company with local, client-focused delivery. 

Throughout its history, Tetra Tech has proudly served local, state, and federal government agencies. We lead with science 
to provide services for the full life cycle of sites, from initial assessments, planning, and design for efficient communities 
through remediation and closure. Our industry-leading experts understand the complex challenges that face communities 
in managing their water, energy, infrastructure, asset management, and environmental needs. Tetra Tech provides energy 
management, infrastructure design, fuel storage design and maintenance, environmental compliance, natural and cultural 
resource management and protection, information technology support and cyber security, National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA) documentation, and master planning for governmental sites and facilities. 

Over the past 23 years, the Tetra Tech Energy Team has provided energy and water auditing, onsite generation solutions 
including microgrids, energy resiliency, energy management, retrocommissioning, resource conservation, and sustainability 
services.  Tetra Tech has an unparalleled track record of providing top-level technical and engineering services and site-
specific solutions to consistently deliver improved facility performance, energy conservation, and energy generation 
solutions to our clients.  We have established technical teams with expertise in a wide range of relevant skills.  We excel in 
developing technically sound, economically attractive, and actionable results for our clients. 

Tetra Tech has a long-standing history of providing innovative and cost-effective solutions to planning, engineering, 
management, environmental and energy problems worldwide. As a publicly-traded company headquartered in Pasadena, 
California, we have more than 550 offices in 120 countries on seven continents. Formed in 1999, our specialized Energy 
Team is headquartered in San Diego, California, with team members spread out across the country, with the lead auditor 
located in Lafayette, CA, to provide comprehensive energy management, assessment, planning, and design services to 

199 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 2   2  

local, state, and federal clients across the U.S.  Our Energy Team has performed energy assessments for more than 60 
million SF of facilities in the last 5 years, as well as comprehensive energy generation assessment and master planning.  

Specialized Expertise 
Tetra Tech’s expert energy auditors regularly accomplish energy audits for government clients, and we have established 
proven audit processes and procedures which we have shown to be effective in accomplishing multiple audit projects for 
government facilities in short periods of time.  In a recent project for the Michigan State Department of Veterans Affairs, we 
audited 63 facilities across the state, encompassing 2.3 million square feet as part of one contract including audits of 
administrative facilities, warehouses, vehicle maintenance facilities, secure areas, and emergency response facilities.  Our 
team will leverage the skills, techniques, and lessons learned to execute a cost-effective, thorough audit that meets all RFP 
requirements.  We aim to identify innovative energy solutions for our clients in all energy audits as the applicable 
technologies continue to develop and practices and procedures continue to be redefined.  Our technical experts identify 
deficiencies and develop diverse energy conservation measures (ECMs) including HVAC upgrades, lighting retrofits, control 
optimizations, building envelope improvements, combined heat and power, renewable energy and energy storage systems 
solutions as appropriate at each site.  All measures are fully evaluated with building modeling software or engineering 
calculations to take the results of the on-site audits and translate them into cost-effective projects that deliver substantial 
savings. Tetra Tech understands that all solutions identified must be vetted by the client to make certain that the client can 
operate and maintain the equipment. This is critical to any energy reduction strategy to maintain the integrity of the energy 
conservation solution implemented. 

We also have created 17 energy and water resilience plans, which help clients prioritize projects for the most critical 
functions, identifying potential funding sources, and create a 5-year implementation plan and strategy, in addition to 
identifying solutions to conserve energy, increase efficiency, improve resilience, and close vulnerability gaps related to 
utility infrastructure.   The resilience solutions frequently include an onsite microgrid capable of generating all or part of the 
site power requirements if the commercial grid fails.  Tetra Tech carefully analyzes the most appropriate generation 
sources such as solar, wind, battery storage, combined heat and power, fuel cells, backup diesel, and natural gas 
generators.  Our recommended solutions are most often hybrid microgrids with a combination of renewables, energy 
storage and continuous generators (natural gas or diesel).  Tetra Tech will provide a baseline for current site resilience, 
along with the most economical and technically feasible plan to achieve the desired level of resilience. 

Tetra Tech has provided detailed write-ups of three projects that highlight our experience with energy audits and on-site 
generation assessment and project development, including microgrids. 

1. Michigan Department of Military and Veterans Affairs – Energy Audits, Resilience Plans, and Microgrids 
2. State of South Dakota ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits and Resilience Planning, and Microgrids 
3. Energy and Water Resilience Plans for Idaho Military Department 

  

200 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 3   3  

 Michigan Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 
– Energy Audits, Resilience Plans, and Microgrids  
ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits – Tetra Tech conducted Level II ASHRAE 
comprehensive energy and water audits on 2.5 million square feet of 
facilities for the Michigan ARNG. Tetra Tech audited 63 facilities across the 
state of Michigan, including a wide variety of administrative and training 
facilities, vehicle and aircraft maintenance, aircraft hangars, water and 
wastewater systems, fire stations, and security police facilities. At each 
facility and group of facilities, our team assessed renewable energy 
alternatives and the feasibility of incorporating CHP systems.  

Tetra Tech established a valid energy and water baseline for each facility, 
and calculated energy and water use intensities for all facilities to track 
future progress as energy and water conservation measures are 
implemented. Tetra Tech’s auditing efforts identified $6.1 million of viable 
energy and water saving projects with a savings-to-investment ratio greater 
than 1.0. The total estimated cost savings associated with these ECMs and 
WCMs was $858,000 annually, which equates to roughly 16% of the DMVA’s 
electric consumption, 12% of the natural gas consumption, and 3 million 
gallons of water consumed across the state each year. Additionally, 
$300,000 in utility rebates were identified to help offset the capital costs of 
implementing the ECMs and WCMs. Projects included lighting and lighting 
controls; DDC system upgrades; plumbing; HVAC; building envelope; and 
renewable projects. 

Client: Department of Military Veterans 
Affairs (DMVA), State of Michigan 

Location: Michigan ARNG Sites Statewide 
Dates: 2017 – 2020 

Scope of Services: Energy and Water 
Resilience Plans, Microgrid Assessments, 

Energy Audits 
 

Contact: 
Maj Del Avery 

Real Property Specialist 
DMVA Michigan 

3423 N. Martin Luther King Jr., Blvd 
Lansing, MI 48906 

517.481.7566 
delbert.e.avery.mil@mail.mil 

Fort Custer had a small pilot microgrid in place, which Tetra Tech expanded to create a fully operational microgrid that 
could serve the entire installation in the event of an emergency.  Fort Custer had two ground mount PV arrays in place 
already, along with a small battery storage system and simple microgrid controller.  Tetra Tech identified an optimal 
amount of additional PV (1.0 MW) along with 960 kWh of new battery storage to serve the installation in routine grid 
connect mode.  The FCEC (Fort Custer Education Center) was found to be a good candidate for CHP.  A 333-kW CHP 
would serve the power and thermal requirements of the existing building, as well as the requirements of the future 
Armory, providing electric and thermal resilience for both sites.  Additional 333-kW natural gas generators can be added 
to the microgrid generation system as Fort Custer incurs future load growth. A cybersecurity specialist then assessed the 
cybersecurity of the microgrid and generation systems and made recommendations. Cybersecurity is an increasingly 
important factor in today’s world.  Tetra Tech designed the Fort Custer microgrid to include the ideal combination of on-
site generation assets to provide energy resilience, utility cost savings and increased reliance on renewable power. 

Energy and Water Resilience Plans – Tetra Tech developed four energy and water resilience plans for the Michigan Army 
National Guard (ARNG) – at three major sites (Camp Grayling, Fort Custer, and the Joint Forces Reserve Center), and one 
for ARNG statewide facilities. The plans included comprehensive energy audits of all facilities to identify energy 
conservation opportunities and included assessing each site for on-site power generation opportunities for increased 
resilience and utility cost savings. 

Tetra Tech met with base leadership and the mission owners to determine the mission-critical functions and talk about 
risks, threats, and opportunities with the stakeholders. Tetra Tech led a thorough discussion of the mission-critical loads 
as well as the essential supporting facilities and loads that would be required to keep critical missions fully operational. 
We conducted site visits, collected data, and established the energy, thermal, water, and wastewater resilience 
baselines. The energy consumption history was consolidated and put into an Excel spreadsheet for this client.  

201 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 4   4  

During the site visits, Tetra Tech discussed issues with the commercial power and natural gas distribution utilities as well 
as water and wastewater companies, as appropriate for each installation. The resilience of many military installations is 
only partially controlled within the confines of the post, so the agencies outside the post that play a role must be 
interviewed and their resilience evaluated to assess the vulnerabilities to the military site. The resilience of the energy 
and water supplies and the commercial infrastructure were assessed from the source to the fence line of the 
installations. Additionally, the infrastructure on the installation was assessed for age, condition, and risks of physical 
damage.  

Tetra Tech reviewed the recent energy audits to account for demand and consumption reductions that could reduce the 
size and quantity of assets required to meet the 14-day planning factor. We evaluated 3 years’ worth of energy data and 
discussed facility usage during that time to determine the most appropriate benchmark to use as steady state 
requirements.   

We then discussed the mission requirements with the mission owners to assess an appropriate planning factor for the 
facilities under emergency operating conditions – the 14-day demand and consumption that would support the mission 
in all reasonable situations. This is an important distinction in that steady-state requirements don’t equate to emergency 
demand requirements. Tetra Tech also incorporated the Real Property Development Plans (RPDPs) for each of the 
installations, making rough estimates of the future facility loads where data were not available.  

Tetra Tech provided a prioritized list of projects that could individually be accomplished to improve resilience of the sites 
over time. Each of these projects had an associated increase in energy and water resilience that would be achieved by 
implementing the projects. The team accomplished a cost estimate and life-cycle cost analysis (LCCA) for each of the 
projects and identified a possible funding stream. The final IEWPs included all identified solutions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

202 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 5   5  

South Dakota – ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits, Resilience Planning, and 
Microgrids  
Tetra Tech was contracted by the State of South Dakota Department of the Military to perform ASHRAE Level II audits 
on 593,960 square feet of Army National Guard (ARNG) facilities statewide.  Tetra Tech identified ECMs and WCMs, 
including lighting, HVAC upgrades and controls, which will save 1,323,629 kWh, 1,394 kGal water and $169,686 
annually when implemented.  Tetra Tech audited 44 facilities, including buildings such as armories, training facilities, 
headquarter buildings, dining facilities, and fitness centers.  In addition, Tetra Tech developed Energy and Water 
Resilience Plans for sites to assess vulnerabilities to energy and water supplies and infrastructure and make 
recommendations for measures to improve energy and water resilience.  Tetra Tech identified a microgrid project and 
assisted the state in developing a funding request submission through the Army’s Energy Resilience and Conservation 
Investment Project (ERCIP).  

The microgrid for Camp Rapid was developed in an effort to provide more onsite power generation for the installation, 
such that the base was less susceptible to commercial power outages.  Research into the current South Dakota Public 
Utility Commission policy revealed that the utility serving the base had proposed major changes to the existing net-
metering policy.  The utility was attempting to introduce a buy-all/sell-all tariff whereby all customers would be required 
to purchase all power from the utility and sell all power generated on site back to the utility at a price far below market 
value.  If the policy were adopted, it would completely erode the economics of all onsite power generation installed on 
base.  While the policy was ultimately not adopted by the PUC, it is an indicator of the local utility’s attempt to block 
customers from installing local microgrids.  This was a main driver for Tetra Tech to help design a microgrid that could 
potentially allow the base to move completely off-grid.    

The base had a goal of installing as much renewable energy as could be economically justified.  Tetra Tech performed 
extensive analysis on the base’s load profile, the utility rate structure, potential locations for solar arrays including 
rooftop, carports and ground mount, and the current cost of renewable microgrid components.  Analysis indicated that 
the ideal capacity for PV was 600-kW as a PV array exceeding this capacity would generate too much surplus power 
that would need to be stored in a large and expensive battery storage system. Tetra Tech then estimated an 
appropriate amount of battery capacity that would provide both resilience during a power outage, as well as peak 
shaving economic benefits. Operating the battery in peak shaving mode can reduce demand charges and improve PV 
system economics by 10-20 percent for most systems.  Tetra Tech designed the remaining generation components to 
be natural gas fired microturbines.  Natural gas is an abundant, affordable and reliable fuel source in South 
Dakota.  The microturbines were designed to replace an oversized backup diesel generator.  One of the microturbines 
is designed to operate in combined heat and power service, providing both heating and cooling for the installation 
headquarters building.  Additional microturbines are included in the design to provide a complete backup power 
solution for the base in the event of grid failure.  When the price of gas is favorable, the base can operate completely 
off grid with the hybrid microgrid.  The CHP system offers a very attractive return on investment.  The renewable and 
gas combined microgrid offers sufficient utility cost savings to meet the Army’s economic performance hurdles with an 
estimated simple payback of 15 years.  

Tetra Tech followed the specific army process to identify and review requirements, assess risk and conservation 
opportunities, generate solutions, and develop an implementation plan. The Energy and Water Resilience Plans 
identified over 100 projects for both resilience and energy and water conservation, including the hybrid microgrid 
project that would take the entire Camp Rapid site completely off grid for electricity.  Solutions were designed to 
safeguard the installation from future policy and net metering changes that would be unfavorable to the base.   

Client: South Dakota Department of the Military 
Location: South Dakota ARNG incl. Camp Rapid 
Dates: 2020 – 2021 
Scope of Services: Audits and Resilience Plans 

Contact: 
Mike Haltiner 
Energy Manager 
605.737.6557, michael.a.haltiner.nfg@mail.mil 

  

203 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 6   6  

Energy and Water Resilience Plans for Idaho Military Department 
Tetra Tech developed two energy and water resilience plans for the Idaho Army National Guard (ARNG) at Gowen Field 
and Orchard Combat Training Center (OCTC).   Tetra Tech collected data through the Initial Data Request, conducted 
site visits, facilitated stakeholder meetings, and developed solutions to improve resilience.  Tetra Tech followed four 
steps to identify and review requirements, assess risk and conservation opportunities, generate solutions, and develop 
an implementation plan. Tetra Tech identified solutions to sustain critical facilities for 14 days should the energy and 
water services be disrupted. Solutions included combined cooling, heating, and power (CCHP) systems, microgrids 
powered by the CCHP microturbines and existing solar arrays, as well as additional solar photovoltaic arrays with 
battery storage to meet resilient requirements. Tetra Tech identified potential advantages to allowing the State of 
Idaho to apply for federal Energy Resilience and Conservation Investment Program (ERCIP) funding for a project that 
proposes installing multiple combined heat and power microgrids to power critical facilities and reduce demand 
charges. Propane air systems were suggested for all sites to mitigate a natural gas utility disruption and provide critical 
thermal energy during winter months that, without, would greatly hinder operations. 

At Gowen Field, 21 facilities were audited with ASHRAE Level II audits which revealed 23 various energy conservation 
measures (ECM’s).  The ECMs included upgrades to boiler systems, hot and chilled water pumps, indoor and outdoor 
lighting, compressed air systems, plumbing fixtures, building automation system programming for make-up air units, 
supply air temperatures and schedules, heat pumps, unit heaters, water heaters, and window seals for a total savings 
of $96,000.  Reducing energy consumption is an important first step to planning for energy resilience.  Reducing the 
site load also reduces the first costs of generation assets needed to provide on-site power. 

The Army’s traditional approach to backup power is to provide diesel generators for all critical facilities. Historically, 
these diesel generators are poorly maintained and frequently do not start in times of emergency. In addition, fuel 
storage is typically only sufficient to last 24 to 72 hours, and fuel maintenance is critical to ensure moisture and/or 
sediment buildup has not contaminated the fuel supply.  The least expensive and simplest solution for meeting 
resilience requirements is to expand the existing diesel generation system and add fuel storage to sustain the site 
through the desired time period.  However, this solution adds diesel maintenance and testing costs, increases 
emissions during operation, and offers no long-term utility savings or progression towards site energy independence.  
The expanded diesel generation solution, along with other alternatives, was thoroughly investigated for Idaho’s Gowen 
Field.  

Expanding the existing backup diesel system for Gowen Field would include adding bulk diesel storage in three 
different areas, including one 9,000-gallon tank and two 3,000-gallon tanks.  However, there is an added burden of 
fuel testing with this option, along with the uncertainty of obtaining additional fuel delivery during an emergency. 
Therefore, Tetra Tech investigated other on-site generation opportunities for Gowen Field.  Natural gas-fired CCHP was 
found to be a good solution across the installation.  CCHP solutions were developed for four groups of buildings, all in 
close proximity, that had sufficient use for the waste heat off of microturbines year around. Three of these solutions 
included the use of absorption chillers, which turn waste heat into cooling, further reducing the electric cooling loads 
during warmer summer months.  It was also discovered that if Gowen Field installed natural gas-fired microturbines, 
they would qualify for a discounted gas rate from the local utility as a large-volume user.  The lower gas rate 
significantly improved the economics of CCHP.  Two of the CCHP systems have savings-to-investment ratios (SIR) of 
greater than 1.0 and two of the systems have SIR = 0.84.  CCHP assets have a positive return on investment, whereas 
diesel generation systems offer no return on investment and are only used during an emergency.  

Idaho ARNG leadership had another goal to increase renewable energy on site. Therefore, Tetra Tech evaluated 
suitable locations along with the economics of a new PV array.  Tetra Tech found two locations on base that were 
suitable for ground-mount arrays.  The first was an open field that could support a 600-kW PV system, and the second 
was a smaller open area that could support a 210-kW system. 

 

 

204 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 7   7  

 

 

 

 

 

  

            1,560 panels, 600-kW system                                                 546 panels, 210-kW system 

The local utility in Idaho has a net metering rule that any PV installations over 100-kW capacity cannot export surplus 
power back to the grid.  Therefore, Tetra Tech recommended that all PV power be directed onto the common 
distribution grid on base such that the majority of the renewable power could be consumed at the time of generation.  
Appropriate battery storage capacity was added to the system such that the surplus renewable power could be stored 
and not exported to the grid. The addition of renewable generation will prolong the duration of the diesel generation 
system during an emergency. Even though utility rates are relatively inexpensive in Idaho, this renewable generation 
system has an SIR of 0.85.   

Client: Idaho Military Department 
Location: Gowen Field and OCTC 
Dates: 2019 – 2021 
Scope of Services: Energy and Water Resilience 
Plans 
 

Contact: 
Lee Keeling 
State Energy Manager 
208.272.3293, leamon.e.keeling.mil@mail.mil 

 

  

205 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 8   8  

B. Key Personnel 
Name and Address of Firm / Corporate Officer Authorized to Execute Agreements 
Tetra Tech, Inc.  
Contracting/Project Management Office 
1230 Columbia Street, Suite 1000 
San Diego, CA 92101 
Principal-in-Charge: Kathy Vandenheuvel, Kathy.Vandenheuvel@tetratech.com,  

Staffing 
Tetra Tech’s proposed Energy Auditing and Resilience Planning team members are ready and available to perform this 
energy study for City of Pinole.  The following key personnel will be supported by our team of energy professionals across 
the U.S. Tetra Te3ch does not intend to use subcontractors for any portion of this contract. 

Tetra Tech’s proposed Project Manager, John Havens, is a 40-year veteran of the energy industry.  John worked as the 
Energy Manager for the Washington Army National Guard for over 12 years and then worked for the energy program at the 
National Guard Bureau for over 5 years.  Mr. Havens will be the point of contact for the City of Pinole to include all project 
communication, weekly progress updates, status meetings, billing, site visit coordination, schedule, quality 
assurance/quality control (QA/QC), etc. Mr. Havens has full authority to commit company resources to ensure timely, cost-
effective response and production of quality products to meet Pinole’s needs and expectations.  

Brennan Herdt, an East Bay-based mechanical engineer, will serve as the Lead Auditor and Deputy Project Manager to be 
the local lead for Tetra Tech on this contract.  He has over 15 years of expertise in performing energy audits, 
retrocommissioning, energy project management, and developing Energy Savings Performance Contracts (ESPCs). He will 
be the field lead for onsite assessments and will present the findings of the study to the City Council. 

Kristin Webster, will serve as the Energy Generation and Storage Subject Matter Expert. She is a Renewable Energy 
Professional (REP) and Certified Energy Manager (CEM) with 21 years of experience in energy efficiency, renewable energy 
sector and industrial manufacturing. She has experience performing feasibility studies for alternative power generation 
including PV, fuel cell, advanced energy storage, and combined heat and power (CHP) technologies. 

Neil Morrissette will serve as the Lead Electrical Engineer. He will review electrical distribution systems to evaluate the 
compatibility of existing electrical infrastructure with new energy generation and storage equipment. Mr. Morrissette has 
technical expertise in reviewing designs of mechanical and control systems; and developing energy and water conservation 
opportunities. He has also provided substation design services to an electric utility. 

Jim Perkins will serve as the Senior Technical Advisor for the contract. He has 20 years of experience identifying energy 
and water savings opportunities, developing a demand reduction plans in California, and implementing various energy 
storage technologies. He will provide technical guidance and reviews for all energy conservation, generation, and storage 
measures included in the assessment. 

Jennifer Brainerd is the Program Manager for the Tetra Tech Energy Services Team. She will provide quality control over all 
deliverables for the contract. She has over 25 years of experience in quality control (QC), program management, and 
project management. 

Tetra Tech’s proposed team has the requisite background, experience, and certifications. Our team includes: professional 
engineers (PE), Certified Energy Managers (CEM), Renewable Energy Professionals (REP) Certified Building Commissioning 
Professionals (CBCP), Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) professionals, and other energy 
professionals with direct experience conducting energy audits for government facilities Resumes for key personnel are 
provided on the following pages.  Tetra Tech does not anticipate using any subcontractors for this contract.  

206 of 594

mailto:Kathy.Vandenheuvel@tetratech.com


Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 9   9  

JOHN HAVENS, CEM  

Project Manager – Direct and guide all aspects of the project, working closely with 
team personnel and the City of Pinole to carry out all phases of work on time and on 
budget while exceeding expectations.  

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY 

Mr. Havens is an energy consultant, Certified Energy Manager, former LEED Green 
Associate, project manager, and program manager providing technical and 
administrative support to the government sector. His background as a former HVAC 
technician who specialized in DDC systems gives him a unique perspective when 
performing analysis of critical building energy systems and while conducting energy 
and water audits. Mr. Havens has been providing energy consulting since 1995, with 
over 12 years as the Energy Manager for the ARNG in Washington state and another 
5 plus years as the National Guard Bureau (NGB) Energy and Water Conservation 
Program Manager for the ARNG. He previously served as the REM for the Army 
Reserve’s 88th Readiness Division which is responsible for a 19-state region 
spanning Ohio to Washington state, where he was instrumental in analyzing and 
identifying energy and water deficiencies and suggested improvements in all of these 
facilities. He identified capital improvement projects across the 19-state region that 
once implemented will save over $3 million in avoided costs. Projects included 
multiple energy management system/direct digital control implementations, retro-
commissioning, lighting upgrades, HVAC upgrades, water efficiency upgrades, and 
two microgrid projects. His deep understanding of the ARNG’s four distinct funding 
types allows him to properly identify project funding streams for potential projects 
and with over 18 years working with the ARNG, he also understands the dual roles 
and responsibilities of the ARNG. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

Energy Audits – SDARNG, Michigan ARNG, West Virginia ARNG, Mississippi ARNG, 
North Carolina ARNG, Montana ARNG.  Led team that completed ASHRAE Level II and 
EISA-compliant energy audits for 5.5 million SF of ARNG facilities.   

Installation Energy and Water Plans – SDARNG, Michigan ARNG, West Virginia ARNG, 
Idaho ARNG, North Carolina ARNG, Montana ARNG, Colorado ARNG, Presidio of 
Monterey. Led development of IEWPs and resilience projects for the Army and ARNG. 
These plans include the inclusion of energy demand reduction measures either 
through conducting energy audits or incorporating energy audit data. 

REM, Army Reserve 88th Readiness Division at Ft. McCoy, WI. Supported a 19-state 
region from Ohio to Washington state of 300+ sites with 900+ buildings and 3 
million+ SF. Developed projects such as DDC, RCx, lighting upgrade, HVAC upgrades, 
and water efficiency upgrades. Worked on two solar photovoltaic projects that were 
selected as ERCIP projects. 

NGB Energy and Water Conservation Program Manager, National Guard Bureau.  
Responsible for oversight of the 55 state and territorial ARNG energy managers, 
ERCIP and QUTM project review and oversight, ESPC project review, energy cost and 
usage tracking and analysis, and quarterly and annual reporting. 

Washington ARNG Energy Manager.  Responsible for energy conservation in the 2 
million plus SF operated by Washington ARNG. His efforts resulted in cutting the 
energy footprint in half and documented avoided cost of over $13 million.  

 

 
 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

Program/Project Management 

Energy Resilience 

Sustainable Design 

Data analysis 

Energy Training 

Solar PV 

Wind Energy 

Microgrids 

REGISTRATIONS/AFFILIATIONS 

Association of Energy Engineers, 
Certified Energy Manager, 
#8118, 1999 – present 

LEED Green Associate, USGBC’s 
Green Building Certification 
Institute, # 10927373, 2014 - 
2016 

TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

40-hour Sustainable Design 
certification, Portland State 
University, 2001 

LEED NC and EB training, 
CFMOU, 2007 

Life Cycle Cost Analysis. CFMOU, 
1998 - 2007 

Energy Management, CFMOU, 
1998 – 2007 

Energy Laws and Regs, CFMOU, 
2007-2012 

Tridium Niagara Certified 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

40 

YEARS WITH TETRA TECH 

4 

SECURITY CLEARANCE 

Secret 

207 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 10   10  

BRENNAN HERDT, ENERGY CONSULTANT 

Deputy Project Manager, Lead Auditor – Complete energy engineering, energy 
auditing, HVAC assessment, and resource utilization to determine energy savings 
opportunities for customers.  Collect data, conduct site visits, analyze data, and 
develop plans and reports. Be local lead and assist Mr. Havens with managing 
project. 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  

Mr. Herdt is a qualified and experienced mechanical engineer with over 15 years of 
expertise in performing energy audits, retrocommissioning, energy project 
management, and developing financed energy projects.  Mr. Herdt has extensive 
experience catering energy conservation and production recommendations to 
government facilities with critical duties to the public during times of emergency. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

Resource Efficiency Manager. Performs energy audits on USCG bases, air stations, 
sector facilities, and housing developments. Buildings included office buildings, 
server rooms, auditoriums, classrooms, hangars, shops, and vehicle maintenance 
bays, and storage areas. Audited 4.4 million square feet of facilities and identified $6 
million of potential savings.   

Developing projects from energy audit conservation measures to compete for USCG 
energy project funding. I have successfully secured over $4.25 million in projects for 
sites in my area of responsibility. Project include lighting retrofits, heating equipment 
replacements, HVAC controls, rooftop air handler replacements, solar hot water 
installations, solar electric installation, and irrigation controls. These projects reduce 
the annual utility cost of the sties by an estimated $628,000. 

Providing technical support to USCG design engineers for major renovations of facility 
energy and water systems. This includes analysis of the energy impact of designed 
projects, and review of additional energy savings from new technologies such as heat 
recovery systems, ground source heat pumps, and battery energy storage.  Serving as 
a point of contact for USCG utility providers for energy rebates, metering programs, 
outage notifications and rate changes. Review billing statements to track energy and 
water usage of USCG sites. Analyze alternative rate schedules to identify the lowest 
cost option. Through billing reviews, removed over $56,000 of erroneous utility 
charges for USCG accounts. 

Worked with the Tetra Tech team to provide data and economic analysis for electric 
vehicle supply equipment (EVSE) at Coast Guard sites across the country.  The team 
performed economic analysis at 27 locations for potential installation of 
photovoltaics paired with EVSE, identifying sites that were economically feasible and 
providing supporting documentation to assist the client to apply for funding and as 
part of an EVSE solicitation package. The team analyzed charging station 
technologies and existing site electrical infrastructure to maximize benefits and 

minimize costs of new charging stations. 

 

 
 

EDUCATION 

B.S. Mechanical Engineering, 
University of California, Davis, 
Davis, California, 2008 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

ASHRAE Level I, II, & III Audits 

Energy Data Analytics 

Renewable Energy Site 
Assessments 

Energy Project Management 

Developing and Executing Energy 
Capital Improvement Projects 

Rebate and Incentive Programs 

Energy Auditing and Identification 
of ECMs  

Retrocommissioning  

Measurement and Verification for 
ESPCs/UESCs 

Energy Efficiency Energy Training 

REGISTRATIONS/AFFILIATIONS 

Professional Engineer, California 
#M35823 

Association of Energy Engineers, 
Member 

TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

HVAC Control and Energy 
Management Systems  

Chiller and Condenser Water 
Systems: Design, Performance, 
and Commissioning 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

15 
 

208 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 11   11  

KRISTIN WEBSTER, CEM  

Onsite Generation Engineer – Lead analysis of renewable options, including PV, 
battery storage, and CHP. Develop microgrid solutions. Conduct data analysis, 
develop solutions, collaborate with team, and document findings. 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  

Ms. Webster is a CEM with 20 years of experience in energy efficiency, renewable 
energy sector and industrial manufacturing. She has experience performing feasibility 
studies for alternative power generation including PV, fuel cell, advanced energy 
storage, and CHP technologies. She has conducted energy audits, data collection, 
interval data analysis, and detailed analysis of energy efficiency measures. Ms. 
Webster has extensive experience identifying energy conservation projects, 
developing renewable solutions, and performing lifecycle cost analysis for energy 
projects. Current experience includes developing renewable microgrid solutions for 
12 Department of Defense (DoD) clients in California and over 15 microgrid solutions 
in other states across the U.S.  Ms. Webster’s most recent microgrid designs include 
U.S Coast Guard Base Honolulu, West Point Academy, NY, and PV/BESS designs for 
multiple buildings across the Presidio of Monterey, CA campus.   

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

• Develop renewable and energy storage solutions to meet demand reduction and 
energy resiliency goals for DoD installations through energy and water audits 
• Develop hybrid microgrid solutions including solar, wind, storage, CHP, and 
diesel generation technology for DoD installations 
• Design energy storage systems to be paired with existing solar PV installations 
to accommodate zero export regulations and shifting peak period tariffs   
• Evaluate the feasibility and economics of CHP systems  
• Assess utility risk and infrastructure vulnerabilities for DoD installations. Create 
long-range plan for energy and water resilience. 

Army Microgrid Solutions.  Conducted CHP and PV analyses for South Dakota ARNG 
and other ARNGs in Michigan, Idaho, New York, and North Carolina.   Helped develop 
three microgrid solutions for Michigan ARNG installations to ensure complete 
resilience for critical buildings.  Developed a hybrid microgrid solution using solar, 
CHP with microturbines and energy storage for Camp Rapids, South Dakota, allowing 

the base to operate completely off-grid when needed.  Developed a solution to expand an existing small microgrid at Fort 
Custer, Michigan to add more PV, battery storage and natural gas generation to serve the entire installation.  Developed 
backup power and CHP solutions for three substations on the West Point Academy campus. 

Presidio of Monterey and USASA. Helped develop a multiple microgrid approach across the large campus.  Performed the 
analysis and strategy for the addition of renewables and battery storage to multiple buildings across the site. Established 
the energy resilience baseline for the site based on current diesel generation capacity and storage. Performed CHP 
feasibility studies across the site.  Designed a 2.0 MW ground-mount array with BESS to serve a remote satellite operation 
(USASA) located in a wildfire-prone area. Ms. Webster’s area of expertise lies in identifying appropriate technology and 
capacity for on-site distributed generation which can offer both utility cost savings as well as energy resilience.  

Renewable Microgrid Solution for Coast Guard Base Honolulu.  Developed a combination of carport and rooftop PV arrays 
across the base in order to offset the amount of electricity purchased from the local grid, as well as provide resilient power 
to base in the event of commercial power outages.  Identified the appropriate amount of battery storage to pair with PV to 
provide both economic and resilience benefits. Designed the system in accordance with the strict zero export regulations in 
the state of Hawaii.  Designed the system to accommodate EV chargers for future fleet electrification.    

 

 
 

EDUCATION 

B.S. Chemical Engineering, Minor 
Environmental Sciences, 
Colorado School of Mines 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

Solar PV 

Energy Storage 

Combined Heat and Power 

Energy Assessments 

Energy Efficiency Projects 

Distributed Energy Generation  

Training, Outreach, and 
Awareness 

REGISTRATIONS/AFFILIATIONS 

Engineer in Training (EIT) 

TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

Renewable Energy Professional 
(REP) 

Certified Energy Manager (CEM) 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

20 

YEARS WITH TETRA TECH 

7 

 

209 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 12   12  

NEIL MORRISSETTE, EIT 
Lead Electrical Engineer – Provide evaluation of electrical infrastructure as required. 
Assess capacities, limitations of existing transformers and distribution system to 
accommodate new solar and battery systems. 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  

Mr. Morrissette is an electrical engineer specializing in energy infrastructure, energy 
engineering, HVAC engineering, energy resilience, energy auditing, and resource 
efficiency management.  Mr. Morrissette provides energy auditing and energy 
resilience assessments services to various government clients, including the U.S. 
Army and the Army National Guard.  Mr. Morrissette has technical expertise in 
reviewing designs of mechanical and control systems; and developing energy and 
water conservation opportunities. He has also provided substation design services 
to an electric utility. Responsibilities included assisting lead engineers in schematic 
and wiring design of substations ranging from 34.5 kV up to 500kV. In addition, Mr. 
Morrissette assisted with estimating of future projects, feasibility studies including 
lightning protection and voltage drop calculations, and coordinating with 
construction teams and field engineers for post-construction drawing revisions to 
ensure drawing accuracy for the client. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

Energy Resilience Planning and Infrastructure Assessments 

Installation Energy and Water Plan Development, Multiple Installations, Multiple 
DoD Clients, 2021-Present.  Mr. Morrissette provided energy- and water-systems 

expertise to contribute to the development of Installation Energy and Water Plans (IEWP) for Department of Defense (DoD) 
clients.  Mr. Morrissette’ contributions to IEWP efforts include resilience assessments of energy and water infrastructure, 
identification and development of solutions to improve resilience and mission assurance through improved infrastructure 
and operational procedures and accomplishing cost estimates. Mr. Morrissette has supported IEWP projects for multiple 
states across the U.S. 

Energy Audits, Multiple Clients, 2021-Present.  Mr. Morrissette has performed energy and water audits for government and 
commercial facilities across the U.S.  He has identified and developed energy efficiency, conservation, and resilience 
projects.   

Electrical Engineering  

Design of Substation Relay, Protection, and Controls for First Energy Transmission Infrastructure, 2017 – 2020.  Mr. 
Morrissette provided design services as a consultant for Burns & McDonnell with their client First Energy. Responsibilities 
included assisting lead engineers in schematic and wiring design of substations ranging from 34.5 kV up to 500kV. In 
addition, Mr. Morrissette assisted with estimating of future projects, feasibility studies including lightning protection and 
voltage drop calculations, and coordinating with construction teams and field engineers for post-construction drawing 
revisions to ensure drawing accuracy for the client. 

  

 

 
 

EDUCATION 

B.S. Electrical Engineering, 
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 
Lincoln, NE, 2017 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

Electrical Infrastructure 
Assessments 

Energy Auditing 

Energy Efficiency Projects 

REGISTRATIONS/AFFILIATIONS 

Engineer in Training (EIT) 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

5 

 

210 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 13   13  

JIM PERKINS, CEM, CBCP, CORS IN EM, LEED AP  
Senior Technical Advisor – Provide planning and technical support for the project, 
review work products to ensure top performance.  

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  

Mr. Perkins is the Planning and Technical Advisor providing support for all of the 
Energy Programs including energy audits, energy master planning, 
retrocommissioning, REM, and energy resilience supporting a wide range of clients 
including the City of San Diego, Orange County (New York), ARNG, Army, Army 
Reserves, Navy, Marine Corps, Coast Guard, Air National Guard, Department of 
Veterans Affairs, and various state and city agencies. Mr. Perkins has previously 
served as the Resource Efficiency Manager for Camp Pendleton, CA identifying energy 
and water savings opportunities for the base, as well developing a load-shedding plan 
for rapid demand reduction in response to California grid constraints. Mr. Perkins 
supports the evaluation and implementation of microgrids, distributed generation 
assets, and various energy storage technologies. Mr. Perkins is a Certified Energy 
Manager (CEM) and a Certified Building Commissioning Professional as well a 
Certified Organizational Resilience Specialist in Emergency Management: Continuity 
of Governmental Operations, certified by International Consortium of Organization 
Resiliency. He has extensive experience performing and overseeing millions of square 
feet of energy and water assessments and identifying energy and water capital 
improvement projects. Mr. Perkins has also led efforts to complete Installation Energy 
and Water Plans, energy master plans for the Army and Army Reserves. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

PROJECT AND TEAM MANAGEMENT  

Comprehensive Audits and Studies. Oversaw energy audits for 5.5 million SF of 
facilities, led Advanced Metering Initiative study nationwide, supported feasibility 
studies.  

Resource Efficiency Manager Program. Provides project management and program 
leadership to resource efficiency management programs across the country for 
government clients, including ARNG, Army, Army Reserve, Navy, Marine Corps, Air 
Force, Air National Guard, and Coast Guard. Focuses on core performance goals 
including conducting energy and water audits, identifying opportunities to reduce 
utility costs, save energy and water, improve resilience, develop projects, increase 
renewable energy, and ensure a strong return on investment for each program. 

Energy Resilience.  Leads the Tetra Tech team managing energy resilience, energy 
security, microgrids, and distributed generation projects. Efforts include developing 
IEWPs, analyzing feasibility of improving energy resilience of critical facilities, as well 
as determining order of magnitude cost estimates.  

• South Dakota ARNG 
• Michigan ARNG Statewide 
• Idaho ARNG 
• North Carolina ARNG 
• Colorado ARNG 
• US Army at Presidio of Monterey and other sites, California 

  

 

 
 

EDUCATION  

B.A. International Economics, 
University of California, Los 
Angeles, 1999 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

Project and Team Management 

Complex Data Analysis and 
Financial Modeling  

Technical Report/Plan 
Preparation and Review 

Manage Client Relationships and 
Project Expectations 

Energy Auditing and Identification 
of Energy Conservation Measures 

Life-Cycle Cost Analysis 

REGISTRATIONS/AFFILIATIONS 

Association of Energy Engineers 

US Green Building Council, Long 
Beach, Steering Committee  

TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

Certified Energy Manager (CEM) 

Certified Organizational 
Resilience Specialist in 
Emergency Management: 
Continuity of Governmental 
Operations (CORS in EM) 

Certified Building Commissioning 
Professional (CBCP) 

USGBC Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design Accredited 
Professional (LEED AP) 

Civil Engineering Corps Officers 
School (CECOS) Facilities 
Management Course 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

20 

YEARS WITH TETRA TECH 

10 

211 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 14   14  

JENNIFER BRAINERD  

Program Manager, Quality Control – Manage all contractual and financial aspects of 
the project. Oversee Tetra Tech’s 3-step quality control process on all deliverables, to 
include a Technical Review, an Editorial Review, and a final Quality Control 
Coordinator review. 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  

As the Program Manager, Energy Services, Ms. Brainerd has over 25 years of 
consulting experience, including quality control (QC); program management; project 
management; document editing; public participation and community relations; 
contract administration; fact sheet, newsletter, and article development; meeting 
facilitation; policy development and analysis; and recruiting. She is currently providing 
program management, QC, document editing, community relations, and contract 
administration support for multiple energy management services contracts for 
multiple federal agencies. Ms. Brainerd manages the development, QC, and submittal 
of monthly status reports (MSRs), including administering a web-based online 
monthly reporting administration system. She ensures that all team contracts have 
appropriate quality control systems in place for all deliverables. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE  

QUALITY CONTROL 

Oversees the quality control of all deliverables and documents for the Tetra Tech 
Energy Team, including contracts to develop energy and water audits, as well as 
IEWPs. She ensures every deliverable goes through a three-tier review process and 
that teams follow procedures and policies in Quality Control Plans and Tetra Tech’s 
Quality Management Plans. She serves as a quality advocate on all contracts for the 
Tetra Tech Energy Team. 

• Energy and Water Audits – SDARNG, Michigan ARNG, Mississippi ARNG, West 
Virginia ARNG, North Carolina ARNG, Montana ARNG, US Coast Guard, ANG 
• IEWPs – SDARNG, Michigan ARNG, Idaho ARNG, West Virginia ARNG, North 
Carolina ARNG, Montana ARNG, Colorado ARNG, Presidio of Monterey 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

Works with Tetra Tech’s Program Manager, Energy Services, to manage the programs, 
contracts, marketing and proposal efforts, and team members that provide energy 
auditing, energy management, energy efficiency, and energy resiliency support to 

clients worldwide. Ensures that all team contracts have appropriate QC systems in place for all deliverables, oversees team 
recruiting efforts, and facilitates various communication systems for the team. 

TECHNICAL EDITING 

As a Tetra Tech Associate Editor, she works with other editors and QC staff to ensure the quality and consistency of all 
deliverables and documents. Ms. Brainerd edits plans, documents, reports, articles and MSRs. 

OUTREACH AND PROGRAM SUPPORT 

Provides community relations, program management, document editing, QC, and contract administration support to 
multiple REMs at Army, Air National Guard, Air Force, Navy, Marine Corps, Army, and Coast Guard bases, and other federal 
agencies such as Bonneville Power Administration. Develops articles for publication in base periodicals and websites to 
increase energy awareness among sailors and marines at those bases. She edits energy-related documents, such as 
monthly reports, award nominations, and technical manuals.  

 

 
 

EDUCATION 

B.A., Religious Studies and 
Theater, Occidental College, 
1992 

AREA OF EXPERTISE 

Quality Control 

Technical Editing 

Program Management 

Project Management 

Contract Administration 

Marketing and Proposal Writing 

Outreach 

Recruiting 

Meeting Facilitation 

TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

Tetra Tech Technical Writing On-
Line Training Course, 2009 and 
2012 

Tetra Tech Project Management 
On-Line Training Course, 2007 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

29 

YEARS WITH TETRA TECH 

27 

SECURITY CLEARANCE 

None 

212 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 15  

C. Method for Executing Scope of Work 
Tetra Tech has provided energy management and resilience planning and implementation support for more than 20 years 
for federal, state, and municipal clients around the country. Tetra Tech is an industry leader in energy management 
through our energy and water auditing, energy master planning, energy resilience, retro-commissioning (RCx), and 
sustainability services.  Based on that experience Tetra Tech has created the following project plan for the Energy 
Conservation, Generation, and Storage Assessment.   

A. Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Trends Review (August 7 – August 18) 

To demonstrate the current state of building energy performance and energy resiliency, Tetra Tech will review and 
summarize case studies from similar institutions that have recently underwent major energy upgrades. Case studies are 
published by the California Energy Commission, California utilities, the Energy and Efficiency Institute, the National 
Renewable Energy Laboratories, energy service companies, and other reputable sources. We will look for facilities and 
minimalities with similar use profiles to provide the City a clear vision of what can be achieved. 

B. Conditions Assessment (August 14 – September 1) 

Identify Energy Use Index and Load Profile 
Energy use at each facility will undergo a thorough analysis, including determining an Energy Use Index (EUI) for each 
facility to see how it compares with other buildings of similar use.  Tetra Tech uses specialized software to create load 
profiles for each facility that reveal if there are certain energy spikes or anomalies in energy use throughout the day or at 
certain times of the year.  Such energy spikes can present good opportunities for peak shaving or demand reduction. 

Tetra Tech understands that to identify solutions that will make sense for the various city facilities, it is necessary to 
understand how each facility is used, what operation the facility performs, and the current energy profile of each facility. To 
gain this understanding, our team will conduct a kickoff meeting, ask the necessary questions to all stakeholders, perform 
a comprehensive site investigation, and collect and analyze all relevant data for each facility.  Tetra Tech will collect all 
electric and gas bills, as well as interval data, for each building respectively.  Tetra Tech will review all available utility tariffs 
to ensure each facility is on the most advantageous tariff.  PG&E offers alternative tariffs for customers who install solar PV 
systems on site. Such tariffs will be evaluated in conjunction with any renewable system that is recommended for the site. 
Conduct Facility Energy Assessment Site Visits 
Tetra Tech will then perform energy assessments on all facilities identified in the RFP and discussed during the kickoff 
meeting. The assessment will provide a condition and energy use summary of HVAC systems, control systems, lighting 
systems, pumps, electric infrastructure, and building envelope components. During the site visits, Tetra Tech will take spot 
measurements and set up monitoring to evaluate the demand and operating hours of equipment with significant energy 
impacts. While on site, Tetra Tech’s lead auditor will conduct interviews with staff and occupants to establish the typical 
schedule of each building and identify issues with HVAC and lighting equipment that impact the comfort of occupants. 

C. Opportunities Analysis and D. Recommendations (September 4 – September 29) 

Identify Opportunities to Reduce Facility Energy Usage 
Our technical experts will identify energy conservation measures (ECMs) for each facility. Identified ECMs are fully 
evaluated with building modeling software or engineering calculations to take the results of the on-site audits and translate 
them into cost-effective projects that deliver substantial savings.  We aim to identify innovative energy solutions for our 
clients in all energy audits as the applicable technologies continue to develop and practices and procedures continue to be 
redefined.  We also understand the importance of finding low cost/no cost quick win measures for our clients, not only 
large capital improvement projects.  Our experience in auditing over 60 million square feet of facilities in the last 5 years 
means we also know which solutions are practical.  Our proposed solutions will include routine maintenance 
recommendations such that the positive effects and cost savings of each energy project can be fully realized for the life of 

213 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 16  

the project.  We assess implementation costs and cost savings to provide a simple payback and savings to investment 
ratio (and other financial indicators as requested) for each measure. 
Evaluate Options for Onsite Power Generation 
In addition to evaluating energy conservation opportunities for each facility, Tetra Tech will also evaluate the potential for 
on-site generation such that county facilities can supply all or a portion of their own energy requirements.  On-site power 
generation will allow county facilities to accomplish several key items: (1) savings on current utility bills, (2) energy 
resilience in the event the commercial grid is unavailable, and (3) energy independence.  Tetra Tech will evaluate the 
existing electrical distribution systems to determine the best approach for on-site power generation.  The Tetra Tech 
approach to scoping on-site generation technologies is to first evaluate the amount of renewable energy that the site can 
support, both from a real estate perspective and economic perspective. 

Tetra Tech will continue to develop the on-site power generation solution to include additional backup power generators to 
support the remaining facility load.  This can include adequate generation resources to serve the entire load of all city 
facilities, or it may include only the facilities that the City deems critical. Backup power generation is typically provided with 
diesel or natural gas, though propane can be considered where appropriate. 

Evaluate Energy Data Tracking Options 

Tracking building performance is an essential part of any energy initiative. Tetra Tech has worked with a wide variety of 
energy monitoring software and can find a solution that meets the needs of all City of Pinole facilities. Based on 
statements made by facilities staff during the site tour, the HVAC controls systems for most or all of the facilities are not 
functioning. Upgrades to these controls will likely be part of the recommended energy conservation measures. This 
presents an opportunity for the City to integrate energy monitoring into building controls systems. Including building level 
and equipment level power monitors in the building controls system would allow facilities staff to respond to energy needs 
alongside comfort and operational requirements. Energy monitoring will also allow the Public Works Department to verify 
the savings achieved through energy projects and energy produced by renewable energy systems. The cost of these 
upgrades will be included in the total project cost estimates. 

Determine Potential Funding Sources 
Over the last few years many new funding aids for local municipalities have been created at the federal and state level. 
Tetra Tech will review all available incentive programs, grant programs, and low-interest financing options for the City of 
Pinole so that the City can fully invest in their energy future. Programs included in the Inflation Reduction Act can allow the 
City to install leading edge energy technologies at a deep discount. Programs created in California’s Energy Conservation 
Assistance Act can provide the City with low-interest loans to pursue energy conservation and storage, and can reduce the 
burden on the City in contracting out energy work. 

Perform Lifecycle Cost Analysis 
Tetra Tech will perform a detailed financial analysis for cost savings associated with each energy efficiency and generation 
technology.  Tetra Tech will determine cost savings based on current utility rate structures, as well as alternative rate 
structures that may apply for renewable projects.  Determining an appropriate amount of energy storage capacity, along 
with cost savings attributed to energy storage will be a key component to the financial analysis.  Tetra Tech has extensive 
expertise and experience in pairing energy storage systems with renewables. We will right-size the battery energy storage 
system (BESS) and evaluate the best use-case for cost savings such as peak shaving or load shifting. Previous experience 
indicates that microgrid project economics can be improved by 10 to 20 percent by using the BESS appropriately. 

Tetra Tech has excellent relationships with many microgrid industry vendors that will enable us to quickly obtain technical 
and budgetary estimates.  We have current contacts with CHP vendors, solar, battery storage, and microgrid controllers 
that we can contact should there be any obstacles outside of our immediate expertise.  Tetra Tech will perform a lifecycle 
cost analysis (LCCA) for all design solutions that are developed.  The LCCA will include all operations and maintenance 
costs for the life of the system.  Tetra Tech will also include a thorough evaluation of all incentives that are available to 
assist with offsetting first costs of the project and any tax incentives that can be passed through to third parties. As a full-
service engineering and technical services consulting company, Tetra Tech has capabilities that cover all aspects of a 

214 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 17  

project. Tetra Tech has become an industry leader in energy management through our energy and water auditing, energy 
resilience, retro-commissioning (RCx), sustainability, and climate change services over the past 23 years.  

Tetra Tech’s proposed organizational structure for this contract is based on our proven success in performing on 
comparable contracts. We understand the nature of this solicitation’s requirements and propose a simple, flexible 
management structure that is based on (1) an established Program Management team who supports the project execution 
team; (2) a Senior Project Manager, who will manage the day-to-day tasks, deliverables, invoicing, and cost accounting to 
ensure all contractual obligations are met on-time and within budget; (3) a highly qualified Technical Support team of 
energy engineers and professionals who will carry out activities, and (4) access to a comprehensive reach-back network of 
subject matter experts who can provide specialized expertise when needed. 

Evaluate Electric Vehicle Charging Options 
The City of Pinole has the goal of installing electric vehicle (EV) charging stations at city facilities for use of staff, residents, 
and future city EVs. There are three main options for installing new EV charging stations: (1) add stations to existing 
parking lots of city facilities, (2) install stations at streetside parking spots adjacent to city facilities, and (3) install stations 
in a new proposed parking lot at the Senior Center. Tetra Tech will evaluate each of these options by assessing the 
capacity and condition of the electrical infrastructure at sites with significant parking availability. This evaluation will 
identify locations where charging stations can be installed with minimal additional costs associated with upgrading 
electrical panels, installing new transformers, or trenching though large sections of pavement. Tetra Tech will also review 
existing solar and EV proposals to assess the building loads with new charging ports. Finally, we will review incentive 
programs, grants, and low interest loans available to fund new charging ports. 

Validate Senior Center Solar Design 
The City of Pinole has sought out a proposal to install solar panels on parking lot canopies and the roof at the Senior 
Center. Tetra Tech will review the size and scope of the proposed project to validate the assumptions made by the solar 
installer. We will compare the production of the proposed system to the existing load of the building and estimate the load 
changes from new electric vehicle charging stations and from proposed energy conservation measures. Tetra Tech will 
provide an independent evaluation of the necessary size of a new PV system and the return on investment of PV 
installation options. 

E. Draft and Final Report and F. City Council Presentation (October 2 – October 27) 

Once all measures and recommendations have been evaluated Tetra Tech will prepare a report outlining the energy use, 
energy conservation measures, onsite energy generation opportunities, and energy storage requirements for each facility. 
The goal of this report will be to provide the City Council with a clear picture of the condition and needs of all facilities and 
provide City Staff a pathway for project funding and execution. A draft report will be completed by week 10 of the contract 
for the City to provide comments and feedback for the final report to be delivered withing 12 weeks of contract initiation. 
The Lead Auditor will then present the findings of this report to the City Counsel at a meeting of their choosing. These 
findings can be provided live or over video conference. 

D. Fee Proposal 
Tetra Tech proposes a Time and Materials, Not-to-Exceed pricing structure.  Our labor categories and rates are provided 
below along with a not-to-exceed estimate for the scope of work described in the RFP.  These rates include all labor costs, 
general and administrative costs, and travel costs.  All fees for non-hourly costs or services are included in the hourly rates.   

A. Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Trends Review 
Project Manager $146  8 $1,168 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  32 $4,256 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120  14 $1,680 
Lead Electrical Engineer $95  8 $760 
Senior Technical Advisor $145  8 $1,160 

215 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 18  

Subtotal $9,024 
B. Conditions Assessment 

Project Manager $146  8 $1,168 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  54 $7,182 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120  6 $720 
Lead Electrical Engineer $95  8 $760 
Senior Technical Advisor $145    $0 

Subtotal $9,830 
C. Opportunities Analysis 

Project Manager $146  8 $1,168 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  48 $6,384 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120  32 $3,840 
Lead Electrical Engineer $95  32 $3,040 
Senior Technical Advisor $145    $0 

Subtotal $14,432 
D. Recommendations 

Project Manager $146  8 $1,168 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  8 $1,064 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120  8 $960 
Lead Electrical Engineer $95  8 $760 
Senior Technical Advisor $145    $0 

Subtotal $3,952 
E. Draft and Final Report 

Project Manager $146  10 $1,460 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  32 $4,256 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120  12 $1,440 
Lead Electrical Engineer $95  8 $760 
Senior Technical Advisor $145  6 $870 

Subtotal $8,786 
F. City Council presentation. 

Project Manager $146  4 $584 
Lead Energy Auditor $133  10 $1,330 
Onsite Generation Engineer $120    $0 
Lead Electrical Engineer  $95    $0 
Senior Technical Advisor $145    $0 

Subtotal $1,914 
  
 Estimated Not-to-Exceed Total 
  

$47,938 

*These rates are fixed until December 31, 2023, at which time they are subject to an inflation-based adjustment 

Tetra Tech will invoice on a monthly basis by level of effort expended during that period based on the above rates.   

In developing our rates, Tetra Tech made the following assumptions:  

• The City of Pinole will provide Tetra Tech with reasonable access to facilities and information conducive to the 
efficient and accurate provision of Services, including such maps, drawings, records, and site access as are 
needed for the proper conduct of the Services, and shall indicate the reliability of all information provided.   

216 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 19  

• Tetra Tech shall exercise the degree of skill, care and diligence consistent with customarily accepted good 
practices and procedures at the time and location and for the type of Services performed. 

• Regarding an agreement to perform the services indicated in the proposal, neither the City of Pinole or Tetra Tech 
will be liable for any special, indirect, liquidated or consequential damages arising from or in connection with such 
agreement; and Tetra Tech’s total liability in connection with or arising out of the performance of services shall not 
exceed two times the amount paid for services rendered. Additionally, neither the City of Pinole or Tetra Tech will 
be considered in default in the performance of services to the extent that such performance is delayed by causes 
outside its control and not due to its fault or negligence and not reasonably foreseeable or, if foreseeable, cannot 
be avoided by the exercise of all reasonable efforts. 

• Rates include all labor costs, general and administrative costs, and travel costs. 

E. References 
The following table list multiple projects that Tetra Tech has recently completed for government clients, demonstrating our 
previous success with this scope of work. For these projects, Tetra Tech exceeded client expectations, providing added 
value on a consistent basis. Highlights of four shaded projects are in Section G. Other Information.   

Project Client Contact 

ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits, Energy 
and Water Resilience Plans, and 
Microgrid Assessments and Planning, 
statewide 

State of South Dakota 
Department of the Military 
Mike Haltiner, Energy Manager 
(605) 737-6557 
michael.a.haltiner.nfg@army.mil 

ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits and 
Energy and Water Resilience Plans, 
statewide 

North Carolina Department of Public Safety 
MAJ Kevin Sigmon, Director of Plans and 
Programming 
(984) 664-6251 
kevin.d.sigmon.mil@army.mil 

ASHRAE Level II Energy Audits, Energy 
and Water Resilience Plans, and 
Renewable Energy Feasibility, 
statewide 

State of Michigan 
Department Military and Veterans Affairs 
MAJ Del Avery, Real Property Specialist 
(517) 481-7566 
delbert.e.avery.mil@mail.mil 

State of West Virginia – ASHRAE Level II 
Energy Audits and Energy and Water 
Resilience Plans, statewide 

West Virginia Army National Guard 
MAJ Jason Fernatt, Facilities Management 
Brach Chief, (304) 561-6353 
jason.p.fernatt.mil@mail.mil 

Energy and Water Resilience Plans – 
Microgrid Assessments, Idaho Army 
National Guard, Statewide 

State of Idaho Military Department 
Lee Keeling, State Energy Manager 
(208) 272-3293 
leamon.e.keeling.nfg@army.mil 

Energy and Water Resilience Plan / 
Resource Efficiency Manager, Presidio 
of Monterey, California 

Presidio of Monterey, 
Mr. Jay Tulley, PE, CEM, Mechanical Engineer 
(217) 373-5870 
jay.h.tulley.civ@mail.mil 

 

F. Conflicts and Termination 
Tetra Tech has screened this opportunity for any potential conflicts of interest and has not identified any.   

217 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 20  

G. Standard Agreement 
Tetra Tech looks forward to supporting the City if we are selected as a contractor.  We have carefully reviewed the terms 
and conditions (T&Cs) associated with the Request for Proposal and Sample Contract.  We have agreed to accept the T&Cs 
without changes, should that be necessary. 

In our original proposal, we identified the following exceptions and are open to discussing their relevance to the scope of 
work (SOW) we are bidding on, if selected.  We regularly work with clients to reach mutually agreeable terms based on the 
scope of work, value, and risks associated with task orders and contracts. We are providing suggested exceptions and 
suggested language for your consideration as itemized below.   

1) Regarding 4.2.1 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance General Requirements.   

Tetra Tech’s standard insurance policy for this size of project covers up to $1 million per occurrence and $4 
million aggregate.  Tetra Tech requests the following change: 

a. 4.2.1 General requirements…in an amount not less than TWO ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000 
$1,000,000) per occurrence and FOUR TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($4,000,000 $2,000,000) aggregate… 

 

2) Regarding 4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation.  

Tetra Tech’s take exception and is unable to provide a waiver of subrogation for our professional liability insurance.  

a. Suggested Revision: “4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Except for Professional Liability, Consultant hereby agrees 
to waive subrogation which any insurer or contractor may require from Consultant by virtue of the payment of 
any loss...” 

 

3) Regarding 4.4.7 Excess Insurance. As part of Tetra Tech’s corporate risk management practices and policies, we 
require the required amount of insurance to be defined within the Agreement with the City.  

Tetra Tech takes the following exception:   

a. 4.4.7 Excess Insurance. If Consultant maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums specified herein, 
City shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. 

 

4) Regarding Consequential Damages,  

Tetra Tech takes the following exception:   

a. “5.1 General Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify 
and hold City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all 
…including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, attorneys’ fees and other related 
costs and expenses.” 

Tetra Tech requests addition of the following provision:   

b. “CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Neither Party shall be liable to the other for indirect, incidental or for 
consequential liabilities, damages, losses, costs or expenses, including specifically but without limitation, 
any based on loss of profits or revenue, loss of or interference, whether or not by third parties, with full or 
partial use of any equipment, facility or property, including real property, cost of replacement power, 
energy or product, delay in or failure to perform or to obtain permits or approvals, cost of capital, loss of 

218 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 21  

goodwill, claims of customers, fines or penalties assessed against client or similar damages or any other 
similar damages or loss suffered or incurred by such other party.” 

 

5) Regarding an Overall Limitation on Liability, Tetra Tech requests addition of the following provision: 

a. a. “LIMIATION ON LIABILITY. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of 
Consultant, Consultant’s officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and subconsultants, to the City 
and anyone claiming by, through, or under the City for any claims, losses, costs, or damages whatsoever 
arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to this Agreement from any cause or causes, including 
but not limited to negligence, professional errors and omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or 
breach of warranty, shall not exceed twice the dollar value of the work performed. Notwithstanding, this 
limitation shall not apply to damages resulting from death, bodily injury, or damage to tangible property.”   

219 of 594



Energy Conservation, Generation, and Strorage Assessment 
City of Pinole - REVISED 

 
 22  

 
 

Contracting Office 

1230 Columbia Street, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101 USA 

p. +1 (619) 525-7188 

f. +1 (619) 525-7186 

 

tetratech.com 

Tetra Tech is Leading with Science® to provide innovative, sustainable solutions that help our clients address their water, environment, 
infrastructure, resource management, energy, and international development challenges. We are proud to be home to leading technical experts 
in every sector and to use that expertise throughout the project life cycle. Our commitment to safety is ingrained in our culture and at the 
forefront of every project. We combine the resources of a global, multibillion-dollar company with local, client-focused delivery. tetratech.com 

220 of 594

http://www.tetratech.com/


  
 

   
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 9E 
  

 
 
DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:   LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE RESPONSE TO GRAND JURY REPORT NO. 2306, 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING: “A PLAN WITHOUT A HOME” 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
response to the Grand Jury report on Affordable Housing: “A Plan Without a Home.” 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Early in California’s history, the California Constitution established grand juries in each 
county. The California Penal Code includes provisions on the formation of grand juries 
and the powers and duties of grand juries. 
 
With respect to public agencies, grand juries are authorized to “investigate and report 
upon the operations, accounts, and records of the officers, departments, functions, and 
the method or systems of performing the duties of any such city or joint powers agency 
and make such recommendations as it may deem proper and fit.” (Cal. Penal Code 
section 925a) Within 90 days after the grand jury submits a report regarding the 
operations of any public agency, the “governing body of the public agency shall comment 
to the presiding judge of the superior court on the findings and recommendations 
pertaining to matters under the control of the governing body…” (Cal. Penal Code section 
933(c)) 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
On June 16, 2023 the Grand Jury requested that the City of Pinole, along with other public 
agencies in the County, respond to the Grand Jury Report No. 2306, Affordable Housing; 
“A Plan Without a Home.” 
 
Staff has reviewed the Report and identified the following as required responses specific 
to the City of Pinole: 
 

221 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023  2 

• Thirteen (13) findings. For each finding, the City is responsible for indicating one 
of the following actions: 

 
 We agree with the finding. 
 We disagree with the finding. 
 We partially disagree with the finding. 
 
In each case where the City disagrees or partially disagrees, the City must 
specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and include an explanation of 
the reasons therefor. 
 

• Ten (10) recommendations. For each recommendation, the City is responsible 
for replying by stating one the following actions: 

 
 The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary describing the 

implemented action. 
 The recommendation has not yet been implemented but will be implemented 

in the future, with a timeframe for implementation. 
 The recommendation requires further analysis. This response should explain 

the scope and parameters of the analysis or study, and a timeframe for the 
matter to be prepared for discussion. This timeframe shall not exceed six 
months from the date of the publication of the Grand Jury Report. 

 The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
is not reasonable, with an explanation thereof. 

 
The response must be provided to the Grand Jury no later than September 13, 2023. 
Staff collaborated with other Contra Costa County jurisdictions in drafting responses to 
the findings and recommendations. Accordingly, the attached draft responses are 
presented for the City Council’s consideration to transmit to the presiding judge. The City 
Council may propose alternative language to those responses. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact of preparing this response, aside from staff time.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Grand Jury Report: Affordable Housing: “A Plan Without a Home” 
B. Pinole’s Draft Response to the Grand Jury Report 

222 of 594



ATTACHMENT A

223 of 594



224 of 594



225 of 594



226 of 594



227 of 594



228 of 594



229 of 594



230 of 594



231 of 594



232 of 594



233 of 594



234 of 594



235 of 594



236 of 594



237 of 594



238 of 594



239 of 594



240 of 594



241 of 594



242 of 594



243 of 594



244 of 594



245 of 594



246 of 594



247 of 594



248 of 594



249 of 594



250 of 594



251 of 594



252 of 594



253 of 594



254 of 594



255 of 594



256 of 594



257 of 594



258 of 594



259 of 594



260 of 594



261 of 594



262 of 594



263 of 594



264 of 594



265 of 594



266 of 594



 

CITY OF PINOLE 
CITY HALL 

2131 Pear Street   Phone: (510) 724-9000 
Pinole, CA  94564 FAX: (510) 724-9826 
 

 
 

August 15, 2023 

Contra Costa County Grand Jury 
Attention: Cynthia Roberts, Foreperson 
PO Box 431  
Martinez, CA 94553 
ctadmin@contracosta.courts.ca.gov  

Transmitted via electronic mail and regular mail 

Subject: City of Pinole’s Response to the Grand Jury’s Report on Affordable Housing: “A Plan 
Without a Home” 

Dear Ms. Roberts: 

Below, please find the City of Pinole’s response to the Grand Jury Report No. 2306, Affordable 
Housing: “A Plan Without a Home.” 

Grand Jury Findings: 

F1: Within existing city or County infrastructure there is no clear owner who is responsible for 
achieving RHNA permitting targets. 

Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 1 because while a 
single entity is responsible for planning to accommodate RHNA permitting targets, jurisdictions 
do not undertake the development of housing projects themselves. Instead the Housing 
Element Update process requires jurisdictions to plan for how to remove governmental and 
non-governmental barriers to development and accommodate all types of housing based on 
RHNA allocations. Each jurisdiction's Housing Element specifies which departments are 
responsible for carrying out the Housing Element's Plans and Programs. In Pinole, the 
Community Development Department prepares the Annual Progress Report (APR), which is 
presented before the City Council annually prior to submission to HCD. The APR provides a 
status update on the jurisdiction’s progress in implementing its housing element on a yearly 
basis. 

ATTACHMENT B

267 of 594

mailto:ctadmin@contracosta.courts.ca.gov


 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 2 of 16  

F2. City and County officials see no direct path to meet state-mandated regional housing 
(RHNA) targets. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole disagrees with Finding 2 because there are multiple 
paths to meet the state-mandated regional housing needs allocation RHNA targets. First, at a 
policy level, cities and the County must identify adequate sites to meet the RHNA targets 
through their Housing Elements. For example, the City of Pinole’s adopted and certified 
Housing Element for the 2023-2031 Cycle identifies capacity to accommodate 152% (759 units) 
of the required RHNA (500 units). In addition, Housing Elements include strategies and 
programs to encourage housing development in accordance with State Law. The State will not 
certify a Housing Element that does not accommodate RHNA targets. Second, at an 
implementation or production level, cities and the County create pathways for others to 
construct housing but do not construct housing themselves. Cities and the County primarily rely 
on applicants and the development community, including affordable housing developers, to 
propose and construct units. 
 
F3. There are currently no measurable penalties if a city or a County does not achieve RHNA 
targets in an approved housing element plan. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 3 because while 
there are generally no legal or financial penalties if the cities and County do not achieve their 
RHNA targets, qualifying housing projects may take advantage of the streamlined, ministerial 
process created by SB 35 only if a city or the County has not achieved its RHNA targets.   
 
In addition, jurisdictions are subject to penalties if they do not adopt a Housing Element that is 
certified by the State, including designating adequate sites to accommodate the RHNA targets. 
For example, jurisdictions may be subject to litigation from individuals, housing rights’ 
organizations, developers, and/or the State of California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD). Depending on court decisions, local control may further 
diminish, beyond that prescribed in State law, including, for example, suspending the 
jurisdiction’s authority to issue building permits or approve certain land use permits. Cities and 
the County may also be subject to court-issued fines, court receivership, and streamlined 
approval processes that remove local discretion. 
 
Regardless of the reasons for lack of building permit activities, if jurisdictions do not issue 
building permits that meet the RHNA targets, developers may choose to use a ministerial 
process for housing projects that meet specified criteria (i.e., SB 35). In addition, a developer 
could choose to construct housing on sites that the jurisdiction has not designated for housing. 
 
F4. Data published by ABAG shows that Contra Costa County and most of its cities have 
missed their current RHNA targets for very low- and low-income housing allocations. The 
allocation requirements continue to increase (16x for very low-income and 4x for low-income 
residents). 

268 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 3 of 16  

Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 4. While it is true that 
many cities and the County as a whole missed their RHNA targets for very low and low-income 
housing, and that RHNA Allocation for very low- and low-income housing has continued to 
increase, the increase in RHNA allocation is not to the extent mentioned in this report. RHNA 
numbers from the past 3 cycles indicate that the current (6th) cycle has had the largest increase 
of 2.5x from the previous cycle in very low- and low-income housing requirements. 
 

Cycle Very Low % permitted Low  % permitted Source 

1999 - 2006 6,481 44% 3,741 48% link 

2007 - 2014 6,512 21% 4,325 24% link 

2015 - 2020 5,264 16% 3,086 55% link 

2023 - 2031 13,346 n/a 7,685 n/a link 

 
 
F5. Many obstacles hinder the development of AH at the local level, specifically for very low 
and low-income housing, including: 

a. Limited availability of land; 
b. Restrictive zoning policies specific to AH development; 
c. Limited developer interest to bring projects forward; 
d. Limited available funding; 
e. Lack of community support; 
f. NIMBY opposition & city council response to NIMBY opposition. 

 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 5. Despite the 
challenges listed above that may impede the creation of affordable housing, the City has taken 
steps to address each issue through our Housing Element programs, policies, and actions, to the 
best of our ability and in compliance with HCD standards. 
 
F6. Zoning changes are generally addressed only when a project is presented for 
development. Zoning obstacles include: 

a. Housing element plans that offer poor land choices for AH development; 
b. Restrictive height and high-density zoning policies; 
c. Lack of inclusionary housing ordinance(s) in many cities. 

 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 6. Most jurisdictions 
consider changing zoning during the review of the Housing Element and/or updating the 
General Plan, rather than solely in response to a proposed development project. The following 
provides specific responses to items a-c, above: 
 

269 of 594

https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/1999-2006_rhna_performance_revised_jan2015.pdf
https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/rhnaprogress2007_2014_082815.pdf
https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-12/2015-2020%20apr_permit_summaries_by_jurisdiction.pdf
https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-12/Final%20RHNA%20Methodology%20Report%202023-2031_update_11-22.pdf


 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 4 of 16  

 
 

a) Housing Element plans are required by law to provide an inventory of land that 
addresses the unique conditions of each jurisdiction. Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65583.2(b), Housing Element sites must include information on the number of 
dwelling units that a site can realistically accommodate, the RHNA income category the 
parcel is anticipated to accommodate, whether the parcel has available or planned and 
accessible infrastructure, and the existing use of the site, amongst other details. When 
selecting sites to accommodate the lower income RHNA, HCD provides jurisdictions with 
best practices to consider factors such as:  

 
1. Proximity to transit 
2. Access to high performing schools and jobs 
3. Access to amenities, such as parks and services 
4. Access to health care facilities and grocery stores 
5. Locational scoring criteria for Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (TCAC) Program 

funding 
6. Proximity to available infrastructure and utilities 
7. Sites that do not require environmental mitigation  
8. Presence of development streamlining processes, environmental exemptions, 

and other development incentives.  
 

However, sites that meet these locational criteria do not always meet the other existing 
use criteria required by HCD to demonstrate substantial evidence for existing uses to 
discontinue within the planning period. These include high vacancies, deteriorating 
conditions, marginally operating businesses, underutilization of sites, etc. These 
conditions are often directly contrary to access to high performing schools and jobs, 
amenities, adequate infrastructure, and clear of environmental hazards. 
 
In addition to the above requirements and pursuant to AB 686 (Government Code 
Section 65583(c)(10)), for Housing Elements due on or after January 1, 2021, sites must 
be identified throughout the community in a manner that affirmatively furthers fair 
housing (AFFH). AFFH means taking meaningful actions, in addition to combating 
discrimination, that overcome patterns of segregation and foster inclusive communities 
free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity based on protected characteristics.  
 
Very often the approach to sites selection is to target declining areas for 
redevelopment. Without tax increment financing as a reinvestment tool, jurisdictions 
must rely on private investments as catalyst to induce redevelopment in declining 
neighborhoods. Housing is the best catalyst. For jurisdictions that take a neighborhood 
revitalization approach to accommodating the RHNA, place-based strategies that focus 
on public improvements, economic development, prioritization of funding, and targeted 
outreach are used to complement the sites inventory strategies. For example, the City of 

270 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 5 of 16  

Pinole’s adopted and certified 6th Cycle Housing Element contains Program 19, which 
commits the City to pursuing programs to increase environmental health and quality of 
life across Pinole. 

 
b) Recent projects in Pinole demonstrate that the existing development standards 

(including setbacks and height requirements) do not constrain development from 
meeting, and in many cases exceeding, the maximum allowable density in each zone. 
According to State Density Bonus Law (SDBL), local agencies are required to allow 
increased density, reduced standards, and development incentives based on the 
number and type of affordable housing units proposed in a project. The SDBL applies to 
housing projects, including mixed-use developments, new subdivisions, or common-
interest development. Developers may request incentives and concessions from the 
jurisdiction’s regulatory or development standards that result in actual and identifiable 
cost reductions to provide for affordable housing costs or rents. The number of required 
incentives is based on the percentage of affordable units provided in the qualifying 
project. For example, developers may ask for increased height above that allowed by 
the zoning regulations. As such, height and density do not represent a restriction to 
development. Furthermore, many sites are located in transit-oriented neighborhoods 
where recent State laws have preempted restrictions on height and density. 
 

c) 16 jurisdictions in Contra Costa County have implemented inclusionary housing 
ordinances. The City of Pinole has an inclusionary housing ordinance that was adopted 
in 2010. The inclusionary housing ordinance stipulates that, for all rental or ownership 
developments of four or more units, at least 15 percent of the total units must be 
constructed and offered for sale or rent as affordable housing units. Of those units, no 
less than 40 percent (or 6 percent of the total) must be made available to very low-
income households.  
 
The City has seen recent development not only complying with these standards, but 
exceeding them. In the last two and a half years the City has entitled development of 
over 615 new units in Pinole, with 274 of the units being affordable. Two recent projects 
are one hundred percent affordable projects. The recently approved Pinole Vista project 
includes inclusionary units which exceeded the required percentage of very low-income 
units by the inclusionary housing ordinance to take advantage of state density bonus 
laws. Another recent development includes a subdivision of four units that increased 
from three to four units to provide one moderate income for-sale unit. This and other 
recently approved market and affordable housing projects demonstrate that the 
cumulative regulations have been able to facilitate a variety of new housing 
development, such that 80% of the City's RHNA could be met with currently approved 
projects. Recent development trends demonstrate that the City’s inclusionary housing 
requirements do not constraint development.  
 

271 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 6 of 16  

The City currently utilizes an incentive-based approach to achieving affordable housing 
on-site and does not collect in-lieu fees through the City’s inclusionary requirement. 
Program 7 in the City's Housing Element aims to address the constraints faced by 
smaller development projects, which often end up providing a higher proportion of 
affordable units due to their size. One such constraint is the lack of an in-lieu fee option. 
To create more flexibility for smaller projects and a new funding source for affordable 
housing initiatives, the City is pursuing the creation of an in-lieu fee alternative for the 
inclusionary housing requirement. The inclusionary fee will help ensure that the 
inclusionary requirements do not constrain smaller projects and that smaller projects 
are providing an equal proportion of affordable units as larger projects. 
 

F7. Penalties directed at cities and the County (financial, loss of control over local planning) 
are tied to not meeting state deadlines for Housing Element plan approval. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 7. We agree that 
there are penalties that are directly related to not meeting the statutory deadline of the 
Housing Element. Builder’s Remedy, where individuals may apply for a building permit on land 
that is not designated for housing, is one such penalty that is directly linked to meeting state 
deadlines for Housing Elements. 
 
We partially disagree with Finding 7 because there are other penalties that are not directly tied 
to the statutory deadline. There are penalties associated with lawsuits, which are rarely 
brought forward for simply missing the statutory deadline, but more due to a perception of 
continued inactions. Penalties also include eligibility for funding. 
 
As stated in the response to Finding 3, jurisdictions may be subject to litigation from individuals, 
housing rights’ organizations, developers, and/or HCD. Depending on court decisions, 
jurisdictions may lose additional local control, such as suspension of authority to issue building 
permits or approve certain land use permits; and/or cities and the County may be subject to 
court-issued fines, court receivership, and streamlined approval processes that remove local 
discretion. 
 
In addition, depending on specific programs, eligibility for some state funds requires a certified 
Housing Element (such as PLHA and State HOME funds). Finally, loss of local control is not 
limited to jurisdictions that do not meet specified timeframes for a certified housing element. 
For example, SB 35, the Housing Accountability Act, the No Net Loss Act, Density Bonus Law, 
and AB 2011/SB 6 specify what types of projects local jurisdictions must approve and where 
such projects must be approved, regardless of whether jurisdictions meet state deadlines for 
Housing Elements.  
 
 
 

272 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 7 of 16  

F8. Builder's Remedy and SB35 projects do not address ingrained local obstacles identified in 
this report that prevent the completion of approved AH projects. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 8 because while 
Builder's Remedy and SB35 projects are valuable tools that can expedite affordable housing 
development, they may not comprehensively address all the ingrained local obstacles identified 
in this report that hinder the completion of approved AH projects. The effectiveness of these 
streamlined processes can vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, and while they can help 
overcome certain barriers like restrictive zoning policies and prolonged approval timelines, 
other challenges mentioned in the report, such as limited available funding, community 
support, and NIMBY opposition, may continue to persist in diverse degrees in different 
locations. To achieve the successful completion of approved AH projects and effectively address 
these obstacles, a multifaceted and jurisdiction-specific approach is required, taking into 
account the unique circumstances and complexities faced by each locality. 
 
F9. When local Redevelopment Agencies (RDA’s) were discontinued by the state in 2012, the 
County and cities, did not address the loss of funding for affordable housing or find 
alternative funding to support affordable housing projects until voters passed Measure X in 
November 2020. Projects that target very low- and low-income residents were particularly 
impacted. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 9 because while the 
County and cities did not create or find new sources of funds for affordable housing after the 
State discontinued local RDAs, State law limits local jurisdictions’ ability to create new funding 
sources. Voters need to approve virtually all new funding or financing mechanisms to generate 
the revenues or funds needed to preserve existing affordable housing and construct or finance 
new affordable housing. The Board of Supervisors and Town/City Councils cannot, for example, 
float bonds any longer without voter approval.  
 
While Measure X, the countywide 20-year ½ cent sales tax was approved in November 2020, 
Measure X is projected to provide up to $12 million annually for “housing and related services” 
for the entire County (emphasis added). Measure X Affordable Housing funds will be distributed 
through a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) process, a competitive process. 
 
The City of Pinole has maintained former RDA assets, and revenues generated from those 
assets, in a Low- and Moderate-Income Housing Asset Fund that continues to be used to 
administer and monitor compliance with affordable housing and loan agreements and provide 
for affordable housing development. For example, the Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 
(SAHA) development at 811 San Pablo is 33 units on a 0.61 acre previously vacant infill parcel. 
The development is all lower-income housing units. The project is on city-owned land and the 
City is contributing over three million dollars in Housing Asset Funds towards the project’s 
construction in addition to providing the land. The project was entitled in under five months 
from application submittal and in one hearing with the Planning Commission. A grading permit 

273 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 8 of 16  

was submitted on July 5, 2022 and building permit was submitted on December 12, 2022. 
Construction began in June 2023. 
 
As a part of Program 7 in the City of Pinole’s adopted and certified Housing Element, the City is 
developing a Housing Successor’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund Policy. The 
policy will set priorities and goals for the use of affordable housing funds in the City as well as 
investigate the creation of an in-lieu fee as an additional alternative to the inclusionary housing 
requirement. 
 
F10. Measure X housing funds are not fully dedicated to building AH for very low- and low-
income residents. 
 
Response: The City of Pinole agrees with Finding 10. 
 
F11. Local funding provided by bonds like Measure X Housing Fund is a critical component of 
a developer’s overall ability to raise funds for an AH development. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 11 because while 
local funding provided by bonds like Measure X Housing Fund in Contra Costa County are a 
beneficial component to help fund affordable housing construction, the amount of funding 
available from Measure X is not high enough to be a critical factor in a developer's overall 
ability to raise funds for an affordable housing (AH) development. Bond funding requires voters’ 
approval. Depending on the timing (economic conditions and bond measures for other 
competing interests), bond financing has not been the most significant source of affordable 
housing financing. Under the Measure X Program Allocation Summary, only $10 million dollars 
(about 13% of FY 2022-23 funding and about 4.5% of total funding) were allocated to a Local 
Housing Trust Fund; for FY 2023-24, $12 million dollars were allocated. The Measure X Housing 
Funds are to be dispersed by the Department of Conservation and Development (DCD) and the 
Health Services’ Health, Housing and Homeless (HSD-H3) Services and the Housing Authority of 
the County of Contra Costa. While a contributing factor, Measure X dollars allocated to housing 
production is not critical to the overall ability of the jurisdictions to meet their RHNA 
requirements for affordable housing. 
 
F12. Cities that proactively engage citizens, address zoning obstacles, make reasonable zoning 
concessions, work collaboratively with developers, provide local funding support, and are 
united in addressing NIMBY opposition, have been successful in attracting AH projects. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 12 as the City of 
Pinole agrees that proactive strategies can help attract affordable housing developers and 
mitigate the barriers to housing production; however, proactive strategies alone do not result 
in affordable housing projects being constructed. For example, while City of Pinole engages in 
all of the above, a variety of other obstacles towards affordable housing development exist 
beyond a local jurisdiction’s control. This includes the gap in financing between constructing 

274 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 9 of 16  

market-rate versus affordable housing, land costs, the land-to-building ratio when a property 
contains an underutilized building, the cost to upgrade or renovate an existing nonresidential 
building to accommodate housing, infrastructure costs (on- and off-site), fees for public utilities 
(particularly for non-municipal utilities), among others. 
 
F13. The latest RHNA targets for cities and unincorporated Contra Costa County show a 
significant increase in the number of units that are expected to be permitted for very low and 
low-income housing. 
 
Response: Respectfully, the City of Pinole partially disagrees with Finding 13 as it is true that 
RHNA Allocation for very low- and low-income housing has continued to increase, however, the 
increase in RHNA allocation is not to the extent mentioned in the report. The overall number of 
RHNA targets has increased significantly over the last four cycles. The most dramatic increase 
was from Cycle 5 to Cycle 6, where the overall number of RHNA targets increased over 
twofold—from 20,630 to 49,043.  
 
However, proportionally, there has not been a significant increase in the percentage of very-
low and low-income RHNA targets. For example, the proportion of very low-income targets 
increased by only one percent – from 26% to 27% between Cycles 5 and 6; likewise, the 
proportion of low-income RHNA targets increased from 26% to 27% during the same period of 
time.  
 
Cycle Total 

Contra 
Costa 
RHNA 

Very Low Low 
Allocation Percentage 

of Total 
RHNA 

Allocation Percentage of 
Total RHNA 

3rd: 1999 - 2006 34,710 6,481 19% 3,741 11% 

4th: 2007 - 2014 27,072 6,512 24% 4,325 16% 

5th: 2015 - 2020 20,630 5,264 26% 3,086 15% 

6th: 2023 - 2031 49043 13,346 27% 7,685 16% 

 
Grand Jury Recommendations: 
 
R1. Each city and the County should consider assigning a staff position with clear leadership, 
ownership and accountability to achieve allocated RHNA targets. The individual in this 
position would be responsible for establishing and promoting an operational plan to achieve 
the RHNA goals set forth in the housing element plan. 
 

275 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 10 of 16  

Response: The recommendation (R1) has been implemented. California’s Housing Element 
Law acknowledges that, in order for the private market to adequately address the housing 
needs and demands of Californians, local governments must adopt plans and regulatory 
systems that provide opportunities for (and do not unduly constrain) housing development. 
Cities and Counties are not responsible for the development and construction of housing to 
achieve the allocated RHNA targets. Instead, they are responsible for the effective 
implementation of their housing elements and associated programs to address any existing 
constraints to housing and for tracking and reporting the jurisdiction’s progress toward 
achieving their RHNA. In the City of Pinole, the Community Development Department is 
assigned with the responsibility of the above tasks.  
 
R2. Each city and the County should report AH progress and lack of progress using data across 
all four measured income groups. Special attention should be paid to tracking the housing 
needs of residents categorized as very low- and low-income. Cities and the County should 
communicate their progress biannually, against RHNA targets at council and supervisor 
Meetings. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R2) has been implemented. State Law (§65400) requires 
each jurisdiction (city council or board of supervisors) to prepare an Annual Progress Report 
(APR) on the jurisdiction’s status and progress in implementing its housing element (HE) using 
forms and definitions adopted by the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD).  
 
The HE APR allows HCD to track the progress of the implementation of a jurisdiction’s Housing 
Element and requires its submission as a threshold requirement for several State housing 
funding programs1.  
 
Through the forms and tables provided by HCD2, jurisdictions must report annual data on 
housing in the APR, including the following: 

• Housing development applications received (including proposed number of units, types 
of tenancy, and affordability levels)  

• Building/construction activity 
• Progress towards the RHNA 
• Sites identified or rezoned to accommodate a shortfall in housing need  
• Program implementation status 
• Local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the development of housing 
• Projects with a commercial development bonus 
• Units rehabilitated or preserved 
• Locally owned lands included in the sites inventory that have been sold  

 
1 https://opr.ca.gov/docs/20220120-APR_Memo_2022.pdf  
2 https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/planning-and-community/housing-element/housing-
element-annual-progress-report.xlsm  

276 of 594

https://opr.ca.gov/docs/20220120-APR_Memo_2022.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/planning-and-community/housing-element/housing-element-annual-progress-report.xlsm
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/planning-and-community/housing-element/housing-element-annual-progress-report.xlsm


 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 11 of 16  

• Locally owned surplus sites 
 
Government Code §65400 requires the planning agency to provide this report, which covers the 
previous calendar year) to the legislative body (i.e., local Council or Board), HCD, and OPR by 
April 1 of each year. APRs must be presented to the local legislative body for its review and 
acceptance on a meeting agenda. The statute does not specify in which order they be provided, 
and HCD does not require the report to be submitted to the legislative body prior to submitting 
it to HCD. However, HCD recommends that planning departments provide the report to the 
local legislative body prior to sending it to HCD and OPR3. Biannual reporting would divert staff 
time from other housing programs.  
 
R3. Each city and the County should consider creating a dedicated AH commission comprised 
of a multi-disciplinary team of diverse citizens and led by a current, nonelected, city expert in 
planning. Each commission would be charged with providing a community voice in the 
process and helping to identify and address obstacles that hinder the development of 
affordable housing projects in their community. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R3) will respectfully not be implemented. We appreciate the 
thoughtful recommendation to create a dedicated Affordable Housing (AH) commission 
comprised of a multi-disciplinary team of diverse citizens, led by a current, non-elected, city 
expert in planning. While we acknowledge the potential benefits of such a commission, after 
careful consideration, we have decided not to pursue its implementation due to the following 
reasons: 
 

● Existing Planning Mechanisms: Our city and County already have established planning 
mechanisms and committees responsible for addressing affordable housing issues. 
These existing structures provide platforms for community engagement and 
collaboration, making the formation of a separate commission redundant and 
potentially duplicative of efforts. Pinole’s Planning Commission is comprised of a variety 
of citizens that provides recommendation on policy changes, reviews development 
projects, provides a community voice, and makes recommendations on changing zoning 
regulations, which can lead to a reduced number of obstacles to development.  

 
● Resource Constraints: Establishing and maintaining a dedicated AH commission would 

require additional financial and administrative resources. At present, our city and 
County are already allocating resources to multiple initiatives aimed at addressing 
affordable housing needs. Adding another commission might spread resources too thin 
and hinder the efficiency of current efforts. For example, the City of Pinole has a 
Planning Commission, Community Services Commission and Transportation and Traffic 
and Pedestrian Safety Commission. In the City of Pinole’s experience, each commission 
requires a designated staff member to manage the meeting, minutes, calendar, noticing, 

 
3 https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/planning-and-community/housing-element-annual-
progress-report-faq.pdf 

277 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 12 of 16  

among other tasks. Given the limited number of staff in the city, the City does not have 
staffing or staff capacity to create additional commissions.  
 

• Efficient Decision-Making: By involving a diverse range of citizens and experts in our 
existing 7-member  Planning Commission, we maintain a balanced and inclusive 
approach. This integration ensures streamlined decision-making processes and 
comprehensive representation of community interests without creating an additional 
layer of bureaucracy. 
 

● Alternative Approaches: Instead of forming a separate AH commission, we are 
committed to strengthening the involvement of community members and experts in our 
existing Planning Commission. Enhancing public outreach, conducting regular town hall 
meetings, and encouraging community feedback will remain focal points in our efforts 
to address obstacles hindering affordable housing development. In addition, our 
adopted and certified Housing Element includes Goals, Policies and Actions that identify 
and promote collaborations with the community, other agencies, and the development 
community. 

 
While we do not intend to pursue the recommended dedicated AH commission, we value the 
underlying principle of community engagement and recognize the importance of community 
input in the decision-making process. We will continue to explore alternative strategies that 
promote transparency, inclusivity, and community-driven solutions for affordable housing 
development in our city and County and we remain committed to finding the most effective 
and sustainable approaches to address affordable housing challenges, working in collaboration 
with stakeholders and community members to achieve our shared goals. 
 
R4. Each city and the County should consider reviewing existing processes and identifying 
changes that would address or resolve the specific obstacles identified in this report that 
hinder achieving RHNA allocation targets for very low- and low-income housing in their 
Community. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R4) has been implemented. As required by State Law, 
jurisdictions have reviewed existing processes and identified programs to address any potential 
constraints to development through the Housing Element’s Constraints and Zoning Analysis 
Section. Pinole’s adopted and certified Housing Element includes a number of zoning 
amendments as identified in the constraints section to ensure compliance with state law and 
remove constraints to development (Program 12). Additionally, the City will review and amend 
the Zoning Ordinance and Design Review Guidelines to ensure that all development standards, 
design guidelines, and findings are objective, and promote certainty in the planning and 
approval process (Program 13). Furthermore, the City has included multiple efforts to expedite 
the permitting and review process through reducing the necessary levels of approval (Program 
15).  
 

278 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 13 of 16  

It is important to mention the following additional components: 
 

• Stakeholder Engagement: To ensure a comprehensive and inclusive approach, 
stakeholders, including community members, developers, housing advocates, and 
relevant government agencies, were actively engaged throughout the process. Feedback 
and input from these stakeholders played a pivotal role in shaping the subsequent 
actions. 
 

• Identifying Key Obstacles: Based on the review and stakeholder input, specific 
constraints hindering the achievement of RHNA allocation targets were identified. These 
included issues related to zoning restrictions, lengthy permitting processes, funding 
constraints, and limited community support. 
 

• Development of a Housing Plan: With a clear understanding of the obstacles, each city 
and the County developed tailored action plans to address the identified challenges. 
These action plans outlined concrete steps, timelines, and responsible parties for 
implementation that have been or are in the process of being deemed appropriate by 
the State Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 

• Policy and Regulatory Reforms: To streamline affordable housing development, policy 
and regulatory reforms were introduced to the broader community at both the Planning 
Commission and City Council levels and noticed public hearings. These reforms aimed to 
remove unnecessary barriers, expedite permitting processes, and incentivize the 
construction of affordable housing. 
 

• Community Outreach and Education: Recognizing the importance of community 
support, extensive outreach and education efforts were undertaken to inform residents 
about the benefits of affordable housing and dispel common misconceptions. 

 
As a result of these actions, tangible progress can be made towards meeting RHNA allocation 
targets for very low- and low-income housing in each community. The review and reforms will 
lead to a more efficient and supportive environment for affordable housing development.  
 
In the two years prior to the January 31, 2023 deadline, the City of Pinole entitled over 615 new 
units in Pinole, with 274 of the units being affordable. Two affordable housing projects have 
broken ground, with more building permits currently in plan check, which will increase the 
overall housing stock for low-income residents. The engagement of stakeholders has fostered a 
collaborative approach to address housing challenges, and community support for affordable 
housing initiatives has grown significantly. 
 
While challenges persist, the ongoing commitment of the City of Pinole to address the obstacles 
identified in the report demonstrates significant strides in advancing affordable housing goals. 

279 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 14 of 16  

Continued efforts and collaboration will be crucial in achieving sustained progress and ensuring 
housing accessibility for all members of our communities. 
 
R5. Each city and the County should consider developing a public dashboard to report 
progress against RHNA targets. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R5) has been implemented. Each jurisdiction (city council or 
board of supervisors) must prepare an annual progress report (APR) on the jurisdiction’s status 
and progress in implementing its housing element using forms and definitions adopted by the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). (Government Code 
Section 65400.) Each jurisdiction’s APR must be submitted to HCD and the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR) by April 1 of each year (covering the previous calendar year (CY)). 
HCD compiles and showcases all APRs through their interactive digital data dashboard with 
downloadable data sets4.  
 
In addition, all jurisdictions are subject to Government Code Section 65863 (No Net Loss Law), 
which was amended in 2017 with SB 166, and requires jurisdictions to maintain adequate sites 
to accommodate remaining unmet RHNA at each income level throughout the life of an 
adopted Housing Element. The No Net Loss Law restricts cities and the County from approving a 
housing project at a lower density, or with fewer units than identified in the Housing Element 
unless a corresponding number of units are accommodated and identified elsewhere in the 
cities or County. To assist with the monitoring, cities and the County are developing standard 
language to include in staff reports when housing projects come forward to decision-makers for 
approval and are exploring a No Net Loss Tool to help monitor RHNA progress. Additionally, 
new to the most recently adopted Housing Element, the City of Pinole maintains a list of 
additional development opportunity sites to be used in the case of a net loss situation (Program 
1). 
 
R6. Each city and the County should consider, in their individual Housing Element plans, 
putting forth land zoned "suitable for residential use," without development obstacles, and 
located strategically close to existing services, for AH purposes. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R6) has been implemented. As required by State Law, 
jurisdictions are required to prepare a site inventory identifying land suitable and available for 
residential development to meet the locality’s regional housing needs by income level. Please 
see the response to Finding 6(a) for details. Further, in addressing HCD’s Affirmatively 
Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) requirements there is a thorough review of the site selection via 
the Tax Credit Allocation’s Committee (TCAC) Resource Map that designates areas of low-, 
moderate-, high-, and highest-resource within a jurisdiction and requires specific justification 
for placing affordable housing projects within low-resources areas (see Figure 37 in Pinole’s 
adopted and certified Housing Element). 

 
4 https://www.hcd.ca.gov/planning-and-community-development/annual-progress-reports 

280 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 15 of 16  

 
R7. Each city and the County should consider reviewing their zoning policies to identify 
restrictive zoning policies unique to their jurisdiction that impede AH projects and consider 
making zoning changes in light of that review that will support AH in their community. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R7) has been implemented. Through the Housing Element 
process, jurisdictions have reviewed their zoning policies and identified potential affordable 
housing development constraints unique to their jurisdiction. The Housing Element Goals, 
Policies and Programs section outlines forthcoming changes to zoning policies with specified 
timeframes to address the identified constraints.   
 
R8. Cities should consider adopting an inclusionary housing ordinance as part of their 
standard development policy by the end of 2023 (if not already in place). 
 
Response: The recommendation (R8) has been implemented. The City of Pinole has adopted a 
local inclusionary housing ordinance as of 2010. See the discussion in the response to Finding 
6(c) for details on the success of the ordinance.  
 
R9. Each city and the County should consider how to prioritize the implementation of housing 
projects that promote development of very low- and low-income housing. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R9) has been implemented. Due to permit streamlining 
requirements, it is critical for cities and counties to assess all development projects in the 
sequence they are received. Nevertheless, jurisdictions have implemented incentives and 
expedited permitting processes for certain categories of housing type or tenure. As a part of the 
City of Pinole’s adopted and certified housing element, the City will be developing permit 
streamlining, priority permitting process and a fast-track process for eligible applications 
(Program 15). Additionally, Program 6 commits the City to preparing, updating, or revising the 
General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) as appropriate to provide CEQA clearances for 
projects that comply with existing zoning. By reviewing and updating the EIR individual projects 
can utilize opportunities for tiering from environmental documentation and streamlining 
provided under CEQA, where applicable, which can reduce duplicative analyses, streamline 
environmental review and ultimately save time and money for the applicant. 
 
Further, the preservation and promotion of naturally occurring affordable housing (NOAH), is 
also part of our affordable housing strategy. While developing housing that is affordable to 
lower income households is important and a key strategy, preservation of affordable units is 
equally important and requires additional resources. It may, in some cases, be more cost 
effective to preserve existing units. Additionally, the promotion and fast-tracking of Accessory 
Dwelling Units, as NOAH, is a key strategy identified in our Housing Element. 
 
 

281 of 594



 
 

City of Pinole’s Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306  Page 16 of 16  

R10. Each city and the County should consider prioritizing Measure X funding requests that 
support projects that address RHNA targets for very low- and low-income residents. Each city 
and County should consider reporting regularly to their residents on the use of Measure X 
funds for such purposes. 
 
Response: The recommendation (R10) will respectfully not be implemented. Measure X is a 
countywide 20-year, ½ cent sales tax approved by Contra Costa County voters on November 3, 
2020 “to keep Contra Costa’s regional hospital open and staffed; fund community health 
centers, emergency response; support crucial safety-net services; invest in early childhood 
services; protect vulnerable populations; and for other essential county services.” Under the 
Measure X Program Allocation Summary, only $10 million dollars (about 13% of FY 2022-23 
funding and about 4.5% of total funding) were allocated to a Local Housing Trust Fund; for FY 
2023-24, $12 million dollars were allocated. The Measure X Housing Funds are to be dispersed 
by the Department of Conservation and Development (DCD) and the Health Services’ Health, 
Housing and Homeless (HSD-H3) Services and the Housing Authority of the County of Contra 
Costa. The use of Measure X funds for housing are reported by the County here: 
https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/8530/Measure-X  
 
The jurisdictions have identified local funding sources for each of their Program Actions in their 
Housing Element to support affordable housing projects that address RHNA targets for very 
low- and low-income residents.  
 
In Conclusion 
 
In closing, your letter has shed some light on critical aspects of the housing crisis we face today 
and affirmed that we are not alone as a jurisdiction in facing these challenges. Despite potential 
areas of partial disagreement, we acknowledge the factual basis of your findings and recognize 
the interconnectedness of the underlying conditions that have given rise to the current 
challenges.  
 
By working collaboratively and understanding the broader context of the housing crisis, we 
strive to develop more effective strategies and policies to address this pressing issue and create 
a more inclusive and sustainable housing landscape for all members of our community. 
 
Very Sincerely, 
 
 
Devin Murphy 
Mayor, City of Pinole 
 
CC: Pinole City Councilmembers 
 

282 of 594

https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/8530/Measure-X


  
 

   
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 9F 
  

 
 
DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROGRAM MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD A CONTRACT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STORM DRAIN 

MASTER (CIP PROJECT # IN1703) TO WEST YOST IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $243,264.00 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) to award a 
Consulting Services Agreement (Attachment B, the “Agreement”) to West Yost, for the 
development of a Storm Drain Master Plan (CIP Project # IN1703, the “Project”) in an 
amount not to exceed $243,264.00 and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The development of a Storm Drain Master Plan (SDMP) is an approved project in the City 
of Pinole’s current adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The Project will evaluate the 
current flood control system including vulnerabilities to climate change and establish a 
series of infrastructure improvement priorities to safeguard the community from flood risk. 
The development of an SDMP begins with an inventory and assessment of the City’s 
Storm Drain network. Next steps include preparation of models to evaluate existing 
hydraulic capacity, and finally a prioritized list of capital improvements to address the 
hydraulic deficiencies in the City’s drainage network.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
On June 1st, 2023, staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Project on 
www.publicpurchase.com and www.ci.pinole.ca.s/bids. Responses were due on July 6, 
2023. 
 
A total of 2 proposals were received. The proposers were interviewed by City staff, and 
based on the proposals and interviews reviews, staff selected West Yost.  
 
City staff recommends West Yost, given their extensive experience in delivering similar 
planning documents and projects that cover all aspects of wastewater, recycled water, 
groundwater, and stormwater engineering. Through the written proposal and oral 

283 of 594

http://www.publicpurchase.com/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.s/bids


City Council Report  
March 7, 2023   2 

interview, the firm demonstrated experience delivering projects similar in scope and size. 
Staff believes the firm’s team has the experience and professional competency that will 
result in a satisfactory product for the City. The timeline to finish the Project is 14 months, 
following the issuance of a Notice to Proceed.  
 
The cost proposal provided by West Yost for the scope of work as defined in the RFP is 
$243,264. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The FY 2023/24 adopted CIP budget includes $250,000.00 in funding for the Project. 
There are sufficient funds to award the contract to West Yost for the Project, in an amount 
not to exceed $243,264.00.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Consulting Services Agreement  

 

284 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AWARDING A CONSULTING 
CONTRACT FOR THE STORM DRAIN MASTER PLAN (CIP PROJECT # IN1703) TO 

WEST YOST IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $243,264 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole (“City”) has adopted the FY 2023/24 through FY 
2027/28 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which includes the development of a Storm 
Drain Master Plan (CIP Project # IN1703, the “Project”) as a funded project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project will evaluate the current flood control system including 

vulnerabilities to climate change and establish a series of infrastructure improvement 
priorities to safeguard the community from flood risk; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 1, 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) 

on www.publicpurchase.com and www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids; and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 6, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., the Public Works staff received two 
proposals; and 

 
WHEREAS, staff has determined that West Yost is the most qualified proposer; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the timeline to finish the Project is 14 months, following Notice to 

Proceed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current adopted capital budget for the Project has adequate funds 

to award the Professional Services Agreement. 
 
    NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 

1. West Yost’s bid of $243,264 is accepted by the City for the Storm Drain Master 
Plan project (CIP Project # IN1703, the “Project”). This proposal is on file with 
the Public Works Department and incorporated herein by this reference as 
though set forth in full.  
 

2. There is $250,000 allocated in the City’s adopted Capital Improvement 
Program budget for this Project.  

 
3. The City Manager is authorized to execute a consulting contract with West 

Yost’s bid in an amount not to exceed $243,264 for the Project in a form to be 
approved by the City Attorney.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 15th 
day of August 2023 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  285 of 594

http://www.publicpurchase.com/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids


ATTACHMENT A 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted 
on the 15th day of August 2023. 

 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

286 of 594



CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF PINOLE AND WEST YOST 

THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Pinole (“City”) and 
West Yost (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of August 16, 2023 (the 
“Effective Date”) in Pinole, California. 

Section 1.  SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and place 
and in the manner specified therein. In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms of this 
Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. 

1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
end on August 15, 2025, and Consultant shall complete the work described in Exhibit A 
by that date, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as 
provided for in Section 8.The time provided to Consultant to complete the services required 
by this Agreement shall not affect the City’s right to terminate the Agreement, as provided 
for in Section 8. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession. Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a professional manner and shall conform to the standards of 
quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
services pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, 
Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, 
reassign such person or persons. 

1.4 Time. Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to satisfy Consultant’s obligations hereunder. 

Section 2.    COMPENSATION. City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed 
Two Hundred Forty-Three Thousand Two Hundred Sixty Four Dollars ($243,264.00), for all work set forth 
in Exhibit A and all reimbursable expenses incurred in performing the work. In the event of a conflict between 
this Agreement and Consultant’s proposal regarding the amount of compensation, the Agreement shall 
prevail. City shall pay Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the 
manner set forth herein. The payments specified below shall be the only payments from City to Consultant 
for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.

Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in the manner specified herein. Except as specifically authorized 
by City, Consultant shall not bill City for duplicate services performed by more than one person. 

Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant. Consequently, the parties 

ATTACHMENT B

287 of 594



 

 

further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions 
and/or annuities to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible. City 
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement. 

 

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information: 

 

▪ Serial identifications of progress bills; i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice, 
etc.; 

▪ The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 

▪ A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 
billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and 
the percentage of completion; 

▪ At City’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time 
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and 
each reimbursable expense; 

▪ The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant 
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services 
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by 
Consultant and any individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant 
reaches or exceeds 800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time 
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit A; 

▪ The Consultant’s signature. 
 

2.2 Monthly Payment. City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for 
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. City shall 
have 30 days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements above 
to pay Consultant. 

 

2.3 Final Payment. City shall pay the last 10% of the total sum due pursuant to this Agreement 
within sixty (60) days after completion of the services and submittal to City of a final invoice 
if all services required have been satisfactorily performed. 

 

2.4 Total Payment. City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 
this Agreement. City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 

incurred by Consultant in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. 

 
2.5 Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall be 

consistent with the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
 
 

288 of 594



 

 

2.6 Reimbursable Expenses. Expenses not listed in Exhibit A are not chargeable to the City. 
 

2.7 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 
incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes. 

 
2.8 Payment upon Termination. In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 

Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination. Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. 

 

2.9 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 
services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

 
Section 3.   FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement.  

 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any services under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance specified herein and 
maintain that insurance throughout the term of this Agreement. The cost of such insurance shall be included in the 
Consultant’s bid or proposal. Consultant's insurance coverage shall extend to its vicarious liability for the acts and 
omissions of its subcontractors or other agents. 

 

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any and 
all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant in the amount required by 
applicable law. The requirement to maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance may be waived by the City upon written verification that 
Consultant is a sole proprietor and does not have any employees and will not have any employees 
during the term of this Agreement. 

 
4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

 

4.2.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
commercial general insurance for the term of this Agreement in an amount not less 
than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) per occurrence and FOUR MILLION 
DOLLARS ($4,000,000) aggregate, for risks associated with the Consultant’s 
operations contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

4.2.2 Automobile Insurance. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
Commercial Auto insurance coverage for the term of this Agreement in an amount 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per 
accident for risks associated with Consultant’s use of vehicles under this Agreement. 

 
4.2.3 Minimum scope of coverage. Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form 
CG 0001 (most recent edition) covering commercial General Liability on an 
“occurrence” basis. Automobile coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance 

289 of 594



 

 

Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (most recent edition) covering 
any auto (Code 1), or if Consultant has no owned autos, hired (code 8) and non- 
owned autos (Code 9).  

 

4.2.4 Additional requirements. Each of the following shall be included in the 
commercial general liability and auto liability insurance coverage or added as an 
endorsement to the policy: 

 
a. The Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance shall cover on an 

occurrence basis. 

b. City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as 
additional insureds for liability arising out of work or operations on behalf of the 
Consultant, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with 
such work or operations; or automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the 
Consultant. Coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the 
Consultant’s insurance at least as broad as CG 20 10 11 85, or both CG 20 10 10 
01 and CG 20 37 10 01. 

c. For any commercial general liability and auto liability claims arising from 
consultant’s operations hereunder, the Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, 
and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and non-contributing. 

d. The policy shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “separation of Insureds” or 
“severability” clause which treats each insured separately, except as regards the 
policy’s limits of liability. 

e. Consultant agrees to give at least 30 days prior written notice to City before 
coverage is canceled. 
 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. 
 

4.3.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for licensed 
professionals performing services pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not 
less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) per claim covering the 
Consultant’s negligent errors and omissions. 

 
4.3.2 Claims-made limitations. The following provisions shall apply as professional 

liability coverage is written on a claims-made form: 
 

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement. 

 
b. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be 

provided for at least five (5) years after completion of Consultant’s 
services under the Agreement or the work. 

 
c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 

claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five (5) years after completion of services under this 

290 of 594



 

 

Agreement. 
 

d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 
prior to the commencement of any services under this Agreement. 

 
4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

 

4.4.1 Submittal Requirements. Consultant shall submit the following to City prior to 
beginning services: 

a. Certificate of Liability Insurance in the amounts specified in this 
Agreement; and 

b. Additional Insured Endorsement as required for the General Commercial 
and Automobile Liability Polices. 

4.4.2 Acceptability of insurers. All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A:VII. 

4.4.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Insurance obtained by the 
Consultant shall have a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than ONE 
HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000). 

4.4.4 Wasting Policies.  Excepting professional liability insurance, no policy required 
herein shall include a “wasting” policy limit (i.e. limit that is eroded by the cost of 
defense). 

4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant hereby agrees to waive subrogation which 
its insurer may require from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. 
Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsements that may be necessary to 
affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not 
the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

4.4.6 Subcontractors. Consultant shall furnish separate certificates and 
endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be 
subject to all of the requirements stated herein, and Consultant shall ensure that 
City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers are covered as 
additional insured. 

4.4.7 Excess Insurance. Consultant may achieve the limits required herein via a 
combination of primary and excess limits. If Consultant maintains higher 
insurance limits than the minimums specified herein, City shall be entitled to 
coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. 
 

4.5 Remedies. In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to provide 
or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the 
time herein required, City may, at its sole option: 1) obtain such insurance and deduct 
and retain the amount of the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the 
Agreement; 2) order Consultant to stop services under this Agreement and withhold any 
payment that becomes due to Consultant hereunder until Consultant demonstrates 
compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 3) terminate this Agreement. 

 
Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 

5.1 General Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall  
indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers  free and 

291 of 594



 

 

harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liabilities, 
losses, damages, and/or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including bodily 
injury, wrongful death, in any manner arising out of  to any  negligent acts, omissions or 
willful misconduct of Contractor, its owners, officials, officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors and subcontractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of 
the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 
reasonable attorneys' fees and other related costs and expenses Contractor shall defend, 
at Contractor's own cost, expense, and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 
other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. Contractor shall pay and 
satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal 
proceeding. Contractor shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and/or volunteers, for any and all reasonable legal expenses and costs, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing 
the indemnity herein provided. Contractor's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted 
to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Contractor's Services are 
subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent 
required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Contractor. This Section 5.1 shall 
survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
5.2 PERS Indemnification. In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or 

subcontractor of Consultant providing services under this Agreement is determined by a 
court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or 
employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, 
or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such 
contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of City. 

 
Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

 

6.1 Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City. City shall have the right 
to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered pursuant 
to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; however, 
otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

 

6.2 Consultant No Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 

292 of 594



 

 

agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. 

 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 
 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and any subcontractors shall comply with 
all applicable and non-conflicting laws to the performance of the work hereunder.  

 

7.3 Other Governmental Regulations. To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 
fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, Consultant and any subcontractors shall 
comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of such 
fiscal assistance program. 

 

7.4 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and confirms to City that Consultant and its 
employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, and 
approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their respective professions. 
Consultant represents and confirms to City that Consultant and its employees, agents, any 
subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of 
this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are legally required to practice their 
respective professions. In addition to the foregoing, Consultant and any subcontractors shall 
obtain and maintain during the term of this Agreement valid Business Licenses from City. 

 
7.5 Pinole Business License. Consultant shall obtain a City of Pinole business license 

according to the terms of Title 5 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code and deliver to City 
proof of such business license prior to beginning work under this Agreement. Work under 
this Agreement cannot begin until the City receives proof that Consultant has obtained a 
City of Pinole business license. 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. Consultant shall not discriminate, on the basis 
of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any employee, 
applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant in, recipient 
of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, policies, rules, and 
requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment, contracting, 
and the provision of any services that are the subject of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required of Consultant thereby. 

 
Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement. 
 
 
 

 
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

 

8.1 Termination. City may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon written 
notification to Consultant. In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to 

293 of 594



 

 

compensation for services performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may 
condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City any or all documents, 
photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to 
Consultant or prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection with this Agreement. 

 

8.2 Extension. City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1. Any such extension shall be 
specified in writing by the City. Consultant understands and agrees that if City issues such 
an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide Consultant with compensation 
beyond the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement. Similarly, unless authorized 
by the City, City shall have no obligation to reimburse Consultant for any otherwise 
reimbursable expenses incurred during the extension period. 

 

8.3 Amendments. The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties. 

 
8.4 Assignment and Subcontracting. City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 

Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of Consultant’s unique professional competence, experience, and 
specialized professional knowledge. Consultant makes no other representations and no 
warranties, whether express or implied, with respect to its services performed under this 
Agreement. Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not 
assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written approval of the City. 
Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and 
provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without prior 
written approval of the City. 

 
8.5 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 

provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

 
8.6 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 

of this Agreement, City’s remedies shall included, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

8.6.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 
 

8.6.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and 
any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; 

 

8.6.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the work described in Exhibit A not 
finished by Consultant; or 

 
8.6.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the cost to complete the work described 

in Exhibit A that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that City would 
have paid Consultant pursuant to Section 2 if Consultant had completed the work. 

 
Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

 

294 of 594



 

 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. With the exception the standard 
details and design elements that Consultant created or owned prior to the commencement 
of a Project and used in connection with such Project (collectively, "Standard Details"), all 
reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or 
any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that 
relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property of the City. Consultant hereby 
agrees to deliver those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement and 
payment of all invoices due to Consultant. It is understood and agreed that the documents 
and other materials, including but not limited to those described above, prepared pursuant 
to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are not necessarily suitable for 
any future or other use by the City. City and Consultant agree that, until final approval by 
City, all data, plans, specifications, reports, and other documents are confidential and will not 
be released to third parties without prior written consent of both parties. 

 
9.2 Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 

of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request 
of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. 

 
Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

 

10.1 Not Used. 
 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 
Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of California. 

 
10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 

Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

 

295 of 594



 

 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 

 
10.6 Use of Recycled Products. Consultant shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports, 

written studies, and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at 
equal or less cost than virgin paper. 

 
10.7 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 

the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 
 
Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 

 

Consultant hereby represents and confirms that it is not now, nor has it been in the 
previous twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. If 
Consultant was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve 
months, Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 
may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if 
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 

 

Consultant will comply with all conflict-of-interest laws and regulations including, without 
limitation, City’s Conflict of Interest Code (on file in the City Clerk’s Office). It is incumbent 
upon the Consultant or Consultant’s firm to notify the City pursuant to section 10.10 Notices 
of any staff changes relating to this Agreement. 

 
a. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, all officers, employees 

and/or agents of Consultant, unless as indicated in Subsection b., will be performing 
a very limited and closely supervised function, and, therefore, are unlikely to have a 
conflict of interest arise. No disclosures are required for any officers, employees, 
and/or agents of Consultant, except as indicated in Subsection b. 

 

_________________________ 

Initialed by City Attorney’s Office 
 

b. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, Consultant(s) will be 
performing a specialized or general service for the City, and there is substantial 
likelihood that the Consultant’s work product will be presented, either written or orally, 
for the purpose of influencing a governmental decision. As a result, the following 
Consultant(s) shall be subject to the Disclosure Category “1-5” of the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code: 

 
296 of 594



 

 

 

 

10.8 Solicitation. Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, 
or interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 

 
10.9 Contract Administration. This Agreement shall be administered by the Public Works 
Director / City Engineer who shall act as the City’s representative. All correspondence shall be 
directed to or through the designee. 

 
10.10 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:  

 Elizabeth Drayer, Vice President 
West Yost 

2020 Research Park Drive, Suite 100 
Davis, CA 95618 

 

Any written notice to City shall be sent to: 
Sanjay Mishra, Public Works Director 
City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 

Pinole, CA 94564 
 

10.11 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 
technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction drawings 
shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for the 
report/design preparation. 

 
10.12 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 

represents the entire and integrated agreement between City and Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. 

 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 

 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 

CITY OF PINOLE CONSULTANT 

 

_________________________ ______________________________ 

Andrew Murray, City Manager Elizabeth Drayer, Vice President, PE  

 Consultant’s City of Pinole Business 

License #: ____________ 

 

297 of 594



 

 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
 

Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 

 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
 

Heather Bell, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

298 of 594



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

299 of 594



CITY OF PINOLE

Storm Drain  
Master Plan
JULY 6, 2023

300 of 594



1City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Table of Contents
01 Cover Letter 2

Addendum No. 1 Acknowledgment 4

02 Qualifications 5

03 Key Personnel 6

04 Method for Executing the Scope of Work 9

05 Fee Proposal 14

06 References 17

07 Conflicts and Termination 19

08 Standard Agreement 19

Appendix A - Resumes

301 of 594



2020 Research Park Drive
Suite 100
Davis, CA 95618

530.756.5905 phone
530.756.5991 fax
westyost.com

2

July 6, 2023

Sanjay Mishra, Public Works Director
City of Pinole
2131 Pear Street
Pinole, CA 94564

RE: Response to Request for Proposals for Storm Drain Master Plan

Dear Sanjay:

West Yost is pleased to provide you with this proposal for the Storm Drain Master Plan (Project). We are extremely well 
qualified for this project and will fully commit West Yost’s staff and our subconsultant, SKL Solutions (SKL), to this project. 
West Yost’s goal for this project is to identify a set of stormwater improvements that will provide the City with at least a 100-
year level of flood protection at a construction and capital cost that is affordable to the City.

Our proposed team brings extensive expertise in stormwater planning, stormwater modeling, facility sizing, storm drain 
condition assessment, storm drain system mapping, and capital improvement plan development, including project ranking 
and prioritization. We will lead three workshops throughout the project to maximize the benefit of City staff’s knowledge of 
the drainage system and achieve buy-in from City staff on the recommended drainage improvements.

Doug Moore will serve as the Project Manager. Doug has provided stormwater engineering services to clients in Northern 
California for the last 25 years. He has:

 ■ Prepared over a dozen stormwater master plans, including plans for the Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District, the Cities 
of Vacaville, Dixon, Live Oak, Healdsburg, and Napa; 

 ■ Designed major stormwater improvements including trash racks, detention basins (with wetland and riparian habitat), 
storm drains, and vegetated rock scour protection for eroding creek banks;

 ■ Prepared stormwater quality guidance documents; 

 ■ Prepared the City of Chico’s and Yuba City’s Storm Water Resource Plans;

 ■ Designed (civil) large scale uplands and wetlands habitat projects; and 

 ■ Integrated stormwater engineering/infrastructure into land use planning at city general plan update and specific plan 
preparation levels.

Doug is particularly skilled at quickly developing infrastructure concepts and plans that minimize construction costs without 
compromising system performance. He will help ensure the planning for this project achieves both the City’s stormwater 
design criteria and goals and provides multiple community-wide joint benefits.

Melissa Duffy of West Yost will be the Deputy Project Manager. She has prepared and assisted with stormwater master 
plans and technical stormwater and flood control plans for the Cities of Rancho Cordova, Vacaville, West Sacramento, and 
areas of Elk Grove and Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District. She is highly skilled at producing hydraulic models that are 
correctly configured and produce accurate results. Elizabeth Drayer will serve as the Principal-in-Charge, as she has for many 
of our recent stormwater master plans. As a West Yost Vice President, Elizabeth will also ensure that this project receives 
the necessary staffing and resources to achieve the critical schedule milestones.

01 Cover Letter

302 of 594



3City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

We have SKL on our project team to lead and perform the condition assessment tasks.  As you know, SKL is currently 
performing similar work for the City’s sewer system. Consequently, they bring significant existing knowledge of the City 
to this Storm Drain Master Plan Project. Their on-going City work will enable them to complete the storm drain condition 
assessment efficiently and to successfully integrate it with the sewer work.

We believe our proposed budget of $243,264 is reasonable for this master planning effort. However, if selected for this 
project, we can customize the work scope and budget to meet the City’s needs more closely. We would be happy to 
participate in a scoping workshop and tour of key stormwater facilities to help refine the scope and the budget while still 
maximizing the benefit to the City from this project. The scoping workshop and tour would be conducted at no cost to the 
City.

This proposal is a firm offer to enter into a contract with the City for this project in accordance with the provisions of the 
RFP. This proposal will remain valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal. If you have any questions or need additional 
information, please contact Doug Moore or Elizabeth Drayer.

Sincerely,
WEST YOST

Elizabeth T. Drayer, PE Douglas T. Moore, PE 
Principal-in-Charge and Vice President Project Manager 
925.461.6793 530.792.3275
edrayer@westyost.com dmoore@westyost.com

303 of 594



4City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Addendum 1: STORM DRAIN MASTER PLAN (SDMP) 
Page 3 of 3 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

STORM DRAIN MASTER PLAN (SDMP) 
 

JUNE 23, 2023 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
Receipt of Addendum No. 1 is hereby acknowledged by ___________________________________ 
 (Contractor’s Name) 
 
on the _______ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      By: _____________________________________ 
       Signature 
 
            _____________________________________  
         Title 
 
            _____________________________________ 
 
 

West Yost

6 July

Doug Moore, PE, Project Manager

304 of 594



5City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

West Yost is a consulting engineering firm that was founded 
in 1990. Our focus is exclusively water, wastewater, 
recycled water, groundwater, and stormwater. We have 
broad experience in providing planning, modeling, design, 
construction management, and program management 
services in these areas.

West Yost is headquartered in Davis, California, and has 
more than 200 staff members in ten offices. Our staff 
includes certified or registered professionals in chemical, 
civil, electrical, environmental, and mechanical engineering; 
wastewater treatment and regulatory compliance; geology, 
engineering geology, and hydrogeology; architecture; GIS; 
control systems, cybersecurity, and risk management; 
asset management and condition assessment; project 
management; and construction management and inspection 
services.

Dedication to Client Service and Quality
West Yost is dedicated to providing exceptional client service 
and high-quality work products. Our success at meeting 
ongoing client needs is exemplified by our long-term 
relationships and repeat work. Our experience will allow us 
to serve as a valuable extension of your staff. West Yost will 
manage projects proactively and provide responsive service 
and timely work products.

02 QUALIFICATIONS

OREGON
Lake Oswego

CALIFORNIA

Concord
Davis (Corporate HQ)
Lake Forest
Oceanside
Pleasanton
Sacramento
San Diego
Santa Rosa

ARIZONA

Phoenix

AZ

CA

OR

OFFICES

SKL Solutions Inc. is a small woman-
owned Sonoma County-based Corporation 
founded in 2021. They have the experience 
and expertise to assist you in meeting 

your stormwater and wastewater planning, system and 
operations assessment, and asset management needs. Their 
experience includes utility management, planning projects, 

condition assessment projects, program development 
and support, data management and visualization, and 
operations and maintenance (O&M) assessments and 
optimization. They are experienced with developing and 
integrating software in projects, such as asset management 
system (AMS), ArcGIS and PowerBI. Work will be performed 
at their offices in Petaluma, California.

305 of 594



6City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

West Yost proposes a project team experienced with stormwater master planning, modeling, condition assessment, and 
GIS mapping. Our key staff have the availability to meet the City’s schedule. Resumes for proposed staff are included in the 
Appendix. This project will be assigned to the West Yost office in Davis.

Poyom Riles, PE, QSD, ENV SP

Lucas Russell, EIT

Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP

Josh Steiner, EIT

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE 

Elizabeth Drayer, PE
PROJECT MANAGER

Doug Moore, PE

 QA/QC REVIEWER

Mark Kubik, PE

03 KEY PERSONNEL

DEPUTY PROJECT 
MANAGER

Melissa Duffy, PE

STAFF ENGINEERS

SKL Solutions

Katherine Hayden

Stephen Miksis

CONDITION 
ASSESSMENT

306 of 594



7City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Doug Moore, PE
PROJECT MANAGER

Doug Moore will be the Project Manager 
on this effort. Doug has more than 30 
years of experience in storm drainage 
facility master planning, CLOMR and 

LOMR development, dam failure studies, stormwater 
computer modeling, facilities planning, preliminary design, 
design and specifications, construction and capital cost 
estimating, project permitting, and project management. 
He has hydrologic and hydraulic modeling expertise with 
XPSWMM, Sacramento SWMM, HEC-1, HEC-2, HEC-HMS, 
HEC-RAS, MOUSE, MIKE URBAN, and RiverFLO-2D. He is 
currently addressing sea level rise issues for the City of 
Vallejo and Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District.

Elizabeth Drayer, PE
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE
Elizabeth Drayer will be the Principal-in-
Charge. She has served in this role for 
many of our storm drain master plan 
projects over the last 10 years. Elizabeth 

has expertise is in water resources engineering and multi-
disciplinary project teams. She has experience leading 
water resources planning studies and design projects 
and specializes in water supply and infrastructure master 
planning. She has prepared more than 24 water and utility 
master plans. She has also prepared many other studies 
and plans for clients including groundwater studies, 
drought response and water shortage contingency plans, 
facility operations plans, and emergency operations plans 
involving the evaluation of existing facilities, evaluation 
of existing and future water demands, identification of 
system deficiencies and needs, evaluation of water supply 
alternatives, and development of recommendations for 
capital improvements.

Mark Kubik, PE
QA/QC REVIEWER

Mark Kubik will review the team’s work 
products to verify accuracy, consistency, 
and completeness. Mark has more than 
three decades of experience and focuses 

on providing storm drainage master planning, floodplain 
determinations, flood frequency analyses, probable 
maximum flood studies, dam failure analyses, reservoir yield 
studies, and project management for stormwater projects.

Melissa Duffy, PE
DEPUTY PROJECT MANAGER
Melissa Duffy will be the Deputy Project 
Manager. Melissa focuses on hydrologic 
and hydraulic modeling and analysis for 
storm drainage master plans, drainage 

analyses, and FEMA Letter of Map Change applications. 
Melissa provides engineering analysis and design for 
pipeline, open channel, pump station, detention basin, 
and levee projects. Melissa’s construction management 
experience includes treatment plants, electrical systems, 
and health care facilities. Melissa is proficient in AutoCAD 
and ArcGIS. She has developed hydraulic and hydrologic 
models using HEC-RAS, HEC-HMS, Sacramento County 
Hydrologic Calculator, XPSWMM, PCSWMM, and MIKE 
URBAN.

Poyom Riles, PE, QSD, ENV SP
STAFF ENGINEER

Poyom Riles has a broad range of 
experience from 13 years as a practicing 
Civil/Environmental Engineer that includes 
hydrology, hydrodynamics, water quality, 

aquatic habitat restoration, hydromodification analysis, 
low impact development, stormwater planning and design, 
flood control planning, wastewater reclamation planning 
and design, evaluation of wastewater collection and water 
distribution systems, and utility master planning. Poyom 
is proficient in ArcGIS, HEC-HMS, HEC-RAS, HEC-EFM, and 
Mike11.

Lucas Russell, EIT
STAFF ENGINEER

Lucas Russell has experience in analysis 
and design of stormwater systems. His 
experiences include hydraulic modeling, 
open channel and storm drain hydraulics, 

analyzing watershed hydrology, sea level rise and coastal 
hydraulic assessments, drainage and improvement plan 
review, and digital mapping and drafting. Lucas is proficient 
with XPSWMM, EPA SWMM, HEC-HMS, HEC-RAS, ArcGIS, 
and AutoCAD.

307 of 594



8City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP
STAFF ENGINEER

Emma Erickson is a water resources 
engineer with an educational background 
in both civil and environmental 
engineering, understanding water 

resources from water quality, hydrological, and hydraulics 
standpoints. She has skills in analyzing watersheds and 
flood risk reduction structures using field assessments and 
mapping, drafting, and water modeling software, such as 
ArcMap, QGIS, HEC-RAS, EPA SWMM, and AutoCAD Civil3D.

Josh Steiner, EIT
STAFF ENGINEER

Josh Steiner has experience with modeling 
and collection systems planning for 
stormwater and wastewater systems. 
He has developed utility master plan 

documents, drainage and improvement plan reviews, 
geospatial analyses, and hydraulic models of wastewater 
and stormwater systems using InfoSWMM, InfoSewer, 
InfoWorks ICM, XPSWMM, PCSWMM, MIKE URBAN, and 
HEC-RAS software packages and is familiar with Python, 
Fortran, R, and VBA programming languages. He is currently 
addressing sea level rise issues for the City of Vallejo and 
Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District.

Katherine Hayden
SKL SOLUTIONS - 
CONDITION ASSESSMENT
Katherine Hayden is a Professional 
Engineer in water, wastewater, and 
stormwater infrastructure with more than 

20 years of experience in infrastructure asset management, 
planning, and capital improvements programs and projects. 
Her expertise includes planning, managing, and performing 
condition assessment, asset management, infiltration and 
inflow studies, master plans, and capital improvements. 
She is a subject matter expert (SME) in the InfoAsset asset 
management system (AMS), having implemented and 
managed it for Ross Valley Sanitary District (RVSD) and used 
it for condition assessment projects as a consultant for the 
County of Maui West Maui storm drains, East Bay Municipal 
Utility District (EBMUD) sewer interceptors, and City and 
County of Honolulu large diameter sewers. In 2021-22, SKL 
Solutions collaborated with the City of Pinole to finalize 
the Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP). Currently, 
SKL Solutions is providing On-Call Consulting Services for 
Wastewater/Stormwater Infrastructure for the City of 
Pinole.

Stephen Miksis
SKL SOLUTIONS -
CONDITION ASSESSMENT
Stephen Miksis has more than 20 
years of experience as a contractor 
and special district O&M manager in 

condition assessment, asset management, rehabilitation, 
and operation of gravity and pressurized pipeline systems 
and pump stations. He implemented InfoAsset Manager 
and Mobile (formerly InfoNet Desktop and Mobile) at 
Ross Valley Sanitary District and used it for asset mapping 
and inventory, risk assessment, condition assessment and 
capital improvements management, work order tracking, 
and making other data-driven decisions.  He is proficient 
in cleaning and visual inspection of storm drain and 
sanitary sewers and selecting and performing repair and 
rehabilitation with various methods such as cured-in-place 
pipe (CIPP), pipe bursting, localized liners, thermoplastic 
fold and form, cementitious spin coating, and gel grout 
injection. 

308 of 594



9City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

04 METHOD FOR EXECUTING 
THE SCOPE OF WORK

Our proposed method for executing the scope of work is 
summarized below.

Task 1. Project Management 
and Quality Control
TASK 1.1. PROJECT ADMINISTRATION
West Yost’s Project Manager and Deputy Project Manager 
will serve as the primary points of contact for the City 
and will be responsible for coordinating with the West 
Yost Team, completing monthly status reports, attending 
bi-weekly progress meetings with the City, schedule and 
budget tracking, internal meetings, general correspondence, 
and invoicing.

The West Yost Team’s overall project management 
approach will ensure that the City’s Storm Drain Master 
Plan is successfully completed on time and on budget. The 
approach is based on establishing clear and streamlined 
communication between the City Project Manager, the West 
Yost Project Manager and Deputy Project Manager, the SKL 
Project Manager, our project team, and other stakeholders 
as needed. West Yost’s Project Manager, Doug Moore, and 
Deputy Project Manager, Melissa Duffy, will provide the City 
two main points of contact, and will work to deliver the City 
a project that moves forward seamlessly.

In addition, West Yost conducts brief, monthly progress 
reviews to proactively manage the budget and schedule.

TASK 1.2. WORKSHOPS AND 
PROGRESS MEETINGS
The West Yost Project Manager and key project staff will 
attend bi-weekly virtual project meetings with City staff. 
With the anticipated 14-month project duration, it is 
assumed that 28 meetings will take place. In addition, it is 
anticipated that three virtual workshops will also be held 
during critical phases of the project. The first workshop will 
be a kickoff meeting with City staff to review the project 
goals and objectives, introduce key project staff and roles, 
identify and establish preferred communication techniques, 
provide an initial data request, discuss key issues for the 
project, and discuss any other items that the City may want 
to cover. West Yost will prepare an agenda before the kickoff 
meeting and provide a summary after the meeting. The 
kickoff meeting will involve the City’s Public Works Staff and 
staff of other City divisions, as appropriate. West Yost will 
act as a facilitator to help focus the discussion on the key 

issues and information needs for the Storm Drain Master 
Plan.

TASK 1.3. PROJECT QA/QC ACTIVITIES
All work products, engineering calculations, models, 
cost estimates, project methodology, and criteria will be 
thoroughly reviewed by a Principal Engineer, and comments 
will be addressed by project staff prior to delivery of work 
products to the City. In addition, it is anticipated that City 
staff will provide comments on the draft work products that 
will be addressed by project staff prior to producing the final 
deliverables.

TASK 1 DELIVERABLES:
 ■ Monthly status reports and invoices showing budgeted 
and expended hours for each task, percent complete 
for each task, a description of work completed during 
the previous month, anticipated work for the following 
month, and any issues requiring discussion or resolution.

 ■ Meeting materials will be provided for the kickoff and 
workshop meetings, including presentation materials, 
agenda, and meeting minutes.

 ■ A summary of action items will be provided after each bi-
weekly project meeting.

Task 2. System Inventory, Pipe 
Condition Assessment, and GIS 
Database Development
TASK 2.1. COLLECT AND REVIEW EXISTING 
STORM DRAIN SYSTEM INFORMATION
During the project kickoff meeting with City staff, we will 
discuss available data and references for the City’s existing 
storm drain system, known flooding issues, and areas of 
concern. West Yost and SKL will review the available data  
and prepare a data inventory map that identifies where 
storm system data is available and where data gaps exist.

West Yost will identify the existing storm drain system 
to be included in the hydraulic model. SKL will develop a 
storm drain GIS database for structures and pipes, including 
structure and pipe features and related condition tables. 
The storm drain GIS database schema will be consistent 
with the City’s sewer GIS database and based on National 
Association of Sewer Service Company (NASSCO) standard 
pipe and manhole assessment database schema.

309 of 594



10City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

hole, drain inlet, or outfall), invert elevation, rim or 
grate elevation, and data source. Other data fields can 
be added, as requested by the City. The populated GIS 
shapefiles will be provided to the City at the completion 
of the project.

 ■ A comprehensive condition assessment report, including 
a map of pipe conditions and a list ranking the identified 
deficiencies will be included in Chapter 3 of the Master 
Plan (See report outline in Task 5).

Once the data collection strategy has been approved by 
the City, the data collection effort and GIS input will be 
completed prior to starting Task 3.

TASK 2 DELIVERABLES:
 ■ A Data Collection Strategy, identifying data gaps and 
inconsistencies in the City’s storm drain infrastructure 
data, and a strategy to obtain the necessary data to 
update the City’s GIS geodatabase.

 ■ An updated GIS geodatabase will be provided to the City 
after the collected data has been incorporated.

 ■ Electronic files of draft Chapters 2 and 3 will be provided 
at the completion of the data collection effort.

Task 3. Identify Watersheds, 
Develop Models, and Evaluate 
Existing Hydraulic Capacity
TASK 3.1. DEVELOP SUBSHED BOUNDARIES
West Yost will evaluate watersheds within the City and 
define catchments based on available LiDAR topography 
and the City’s storm drain mapping. LiDAR covering the 
entire city is available from the U.S. Geological Survey 
(USGS). LiDAR was collected in 2018 and 2019 and is based 
on NAVD88 vertical datum. The City will be subdivided into 
approximately 100 separate subwatersheds (subsheds) 
to develop design flows at key locations. West Yost will 
also include subsheds for areas outside the City that are 
tributary to the City’s drainage facilities.

TASK 3.2. SUBSHED HYDROLOGIC ANALYSIS
Because the City is mostly built out, West Yost recommends 
evaluating only buildout land uses. Land use from the City’s 
General Plan will be used, and land uses will be verified 
with recent aerial imagery. There are three known proposed 
developments in the City. The proposed developments 
would need to mitigate any increases in flooding of the 
City’s system. The hydrologic buildout characteristics for 
each subshed will be calculated and summarized based on 
the required input of the model software selected.

TASK 2.2. GIS DATABASE DEVELOPMENT
SKL will prepare a data map for importing the GIS 
data into the storm drain GIS database and prepare a 
tabular summary of the data, including asset inventory 
completeness, and identified inconsistencies or gaps. 
SKL will prepare recommendations for record drawing 
information review or field reconnaissance that is required 
to prepare the hydraulic model.

TASK 2.3. INITIAL FIELD RECONNAISSANCE
SKL will perform 32 hours of field reconnaissance, 
performing surface inspections of the structures, including: 
visual inspections, photo documentation, structure and 
pipe depths, and pipe size measurements. Structures will 
be selected for inspection and data will be collected by 
editing the data within the GIS database. Selection of assets 
for inspection will be based on the need to collect or verify 
information to develop the hydraulic model and prepare a 
phased plan for future structure and pipe inspections.

TASK 2.4. PREPARE DATA COLLECTION STRATEGY
West Yost and SKL will prepare a strategy to update and 
obtain data for the existing storm drain system. The strategy 
will include a scope, fee, and schedule for the following 
tasks:

 ■ Performing field assessments to fill data gaps for the 
storm drain system that will be modeled. The modeling 
will include the trunk system, which we have defined 
as most pipes with diameters greater than or equal to 
15 inches in diameter. The field visits will include visual 
inspections, photo documentation, and measurements. 
Location, invert depths, and facility size information. In 
addition, dimensions and critical elevations for other 
system features including outfalls and channel cross 
sections will be collected.

 ■ Performing visual inspections of pipe material and 
condition at field assessment locations will be made, 
where possible, and additional investigations will be 
performed to characterize areas with performance 
problems, as needed. We will also identify if CCTV 
inspections are warranted and prepare the scope for that 
effort.

 ■ Preparing a comprehensive electronic system inventory 
in GIS. A GIS database will be developed for the City’s 
existing storm drain system, including storm drain pipes, 
maintenance holes, and drain inlets. The storm drain 
pipe data will include facility ID, diameter, upstream 
and downstream invert elevations, length, material, and 
data source (record drawings or field assessment). The 
data for storm drain maintenance holes, drain inlets, and 
outfalls will include facility ID, facility type (maintenance 

310 of 594



11City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

TASK 3.3. DEVELOP HYDROLOGIC 
AND HYDRAULIC MODEL
West Yost will develop a hydrologic and hydraulic model of 
the existing storm drain system in PCSWMM or XPSWMM 
software (based on the City’s preference). The modeling 
will focus on the trunk system, which we have defined as 
most pipes greater than or equal to 15 inches in diameter. 
We will also model smaller drain pipes, if necessary, in 
areas where there are known flooding problems. Where 
surcharges to the surface are predicted by the model, 
we will add a representation of the street flow (as broad, 
shallow trapezoidal channels) to the model to allow an 
accurate evaluation of flood hazards. Alternatively, we could 
implement two-dimensional surface flow modeling.

TASK 3.4. CALIBRATION
The model output will be verified and calibrated against 
available historical storm events and flooding records. A 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) California Data 
Exchange Center (CDEC) rain gauge is located at the Rodeo 
Fire Station with data from February 2004 to present. There 
is also a CDEC stage gauge along Pinole Creek at the San 
Pablo Avenue Bridge with data from March 2017 to present. 
If the City has flood maps or photos showing high water 
marks during flooding, West Yost can use the photos with 
historical rainfall data to perform a model calibration for 
the City of Pinole. If no flood maps or flooding photos exist, 
we will use the calibrated modeling developed by West 
Yost for the Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District (VFWD) 
to estimate the peak runoff rate per acre for various land 
use types. The hydrologic parameters for the Pinole model 
will be adjusted to produce similar peak flow rates. The 
VFWD model was calibrated using three district-owned rain 
gauges, flood photos, and flood maps delineated by District 
staff.

TASK 3.5. TAILWATER BOUNDARY 
CONDITIONS AND SEA LEVEL RISE
Pinole Creek is within a FEMA Zone AE, which means base 
flood (100-year) elevations have been established. West Yost 
will consider these FEMA base flood elevations to evaluate a 
range of assumptions for tailwater boundary conditions and 
discuss the merits of different approaches with City staff 
to determine the 100-year and 10-year tailwater boundary 
conditions to be used in the model.

Peak tides can be approximated based on available regional 
studies. The elevation of the current mean high tide can be 
increased to account for sea level rise in various amounts, 
depending on the level of risk that is acceptable to the City, 
acknowledging that higher sea levels may produce a greater 
number of locations that fail to meet performance criteria. 

West Yost has performed an evaluation of sea level rise for 
the design of a floodwall for VFWD and for a Storm Drain 
Master Plan for the City of Millbrae. We are also currently 
preparing sea level rise evaluations for Mare Island in 
Vallejo.

TASK 3.6. EVALUATE SYSTEM HYDRAULIC 
PERFORMANCE AND IDENTIFY DEFICIENCIES
The model will be run for the 10-year, 24-hour and 100- 
year, 24-hour design storm events. We will develop figures 
that show where the design criteria were violated for each 
model node (drain inlet or maintenance hole) or model 
link (pipe, street, or channel). The minor violations of the 
design criteria will be identified, and West Yost will discuss 
potential revisions to the design criteria and/or developing 
performance criteria with the City. West Yost will work 
with the City to prepare appropriate performance criteria 
to determine system improvement needs for existing 
facilities, allowing that some minor under performance for 
existing facilities may represent an acceptable level of risk 
and may not be cost effective to mitigate. For example, if 
the design criteria requires one foot of freeboard in the 
storm drain system, but at many locations there is less than 
one foot of freeboard without causing damage, then it 
might make sense to relax the criteria rather than propose 
millions of dollars of improvements to achieve the storm 
drain freeboard criteria. This work will partially inform the 
later determination of priorities for the CIP. Examples of 
appropriate design and performance criteria could include:

 ■ Design Criteria: New storm drains shall be sized so that 
the peak 10-year storm event water levels are at least one 
foot below the storm drain inlet grate elevations.

 ■ Performance Criteria: Existing storm drain systems shall 
convey the peak 10-year storm flow with the water level 
below the drain inlet grate or top of curb.

 ■ Design Criteria: Storm drains and street sections shall be 
designed so that the peak 100-year water levels are at 
least one foot below adjacent building pad elevations.

 ■ Performance Criteria: The peak 100-year water levels 
shall be at least 0.5 feet below adjacent building pad 
elevations.

TASK 3.7. DEVELOP PRELIMINARY SOLUTIONS
For up to 10 flooding problems, we will develop conceptual 
projects to achieve the agreed upon performance and 
design criteria and address the deficiencies identified in Task 
3.6. We will develop one to three conceptual alternatives 
for each area with deficiencies and will develop a qualitative 
analysis to determine which alternative is the most feasible. 
As an example of a qualitative analysis, an alternative that 
involves constructing a parallel storm drain of 24 inches 

311 of 594



12City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

in diameter will likely be cheaper than an alternative that 
involves buying 6 private properties and constructing a 
new detention basin. Based on this high-level qualitative 
feasibility analysis, we will recommend one alternative 
for each problem area. We will discuss the conceptual 
and recommended alternatives at a workshop (discussed 
in Task 1). Potential locations for providing stormwater 
detention basins to address sea level rise will be considered. 
Our experiences gained during preparation of similar 
drainage master plans will allow us to quickly identify the 
most feasible and cost-effective approaches to solve the 
identified problems.

TASK 3 DELIVERABLES:
Electronic files of draft Chapters 4, 5, and 6 of the Storm 
Drain Master Plan, documenting design criteria, modeling 
assumptions, inputs, data sources, model calibration 
methods, model output, interpretation of model results, 
and an uncertainty analysis. The report will discuss the 
hydraulic deficiencies in the City’s drainage network and will 
provide flood inundation maps and a ranking list of the most 
critical areas of the City.

Task 4. Propose Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIPs) for 
Storm Drain Improvements
TASK 4.1. EVALUATE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
The 10 proposed solutions identified in Task 3.7 will be 
further evaluated to identify implementation feasibility, how 
to incorporate water quality improvements, traffic issues, 
permit and easement requirements, major utility conflicts, 
operations and maintenance concerns, and public impacts. 
We will model the recommended improvements to size 
the facilities and confirm they will reduce or eliminate the 
identified deficiencies and will allow the drainage system to 
meet the design criteria.

TASK 4.2. DEVELOP COST CRITERIA
West Yost will prepare unit costs to be used for the 
development of cost estimates for the proposed 
improvements. This will include unit costs for the 
installation of pipes, excavation of channels and detention 
basins, construction of pump stations, surface restoration, 
dewatering, sheeting/shoring, and land acquisition costs or 
easement purchases.

We will work with the City to determine appropriate 
percentages for design/engineering, construction 
administration, environmental, permitting and legal costs, 
and appropriate costs of land.

TASK 4.3. PREPARE PRELIMINARY 
COST ESTIMATES
The developed unit cost data will be used to prepare a 
preliminary cost estimate for the preferred improvements 
in current dollars. We will also estimate costs for the 
operations and maintenance and 50-year replacement costs 
for the projects. 

TASK 4.4. DEVELOP PROJECT PRIORITIES
We will coordinate with City staff to identify factors 
that could affect the implementation timing of projects, 
including locations of other improvement projects with 
which storm drain projects can be constructed in tandem 
(such as other utility construction or street improvements), 
remaining life of pipes, and maintenance requirements. This 
information, in concert with severity of underperformance 
and risk to infrastructure, health, and safety, will inform 
decisions about which projects should be prioritized for 
improvement. This prioritization will be coordinated with 
the sewer planning SKL is performing for the City.

TASK 4.5. DEVELOP PHASED CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN
The proposed improvements will be documented in Chapter 
7 of the Storm Drain Master Plan, along with the timing and 
cost of implementation based on the City’s priorities and 
groupings developed in Task 4.4, focusing on high priority 
projects for the first five years of the schedule. Based on this 
five-year schedule, we will determine the annual budget 
required to implement the projects. A twenty-year schedule 
will be developed for the rest of the projects identified 
in Task 4.1, and an annual budget will be developed to 
determine the funds required per year. The twenty-year 
schedule will be developed at a lower level of detail since 
uncertainty in city budgets and timelines may result in 
adjusted project schedules.

SKL will support West Yost with documentation and 
selection of rehabilitation and repair methods and 
alternatives, including preparing a rehabilitation and repair 
methods table and recommendations for selection criteria 
to be used for selecting methods based on asset inventory 
and condition findings.

TASK 4.6. FINANCIAL PLAN/FUNDING 
SOURCE ALTERNATIVES
Based on information provided by City staff, we will gain 
an understanding of the available annual funds for capital 
improvement projects, and we will use this information to 
determine how proposed projects should be grouped by 
feasibility, priority, and cost to limit extreme differences in 

312 of 594



13City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

expenditures and City staff efforts from year to year. We will 
prepare an assessment of alternative funding sources:

 ■ For improvements that are required due to an increase 
in flows resulting from development, we will review 
the City’s current development impact fees and 
determine how these can be applied to identified Capital 
Improvement Projects.

 ■ For improvements required to address existing condition 
issues, we will assess a variety of funding mechanisms, 
including the City’s general fund, Measure C, assessment 
districts and an update on Senate Bill 231, which allows 
stormwater to be treated as a utility.

TASK 4 DELIVERABLES:
Electronic files of draft Chapter 7, including unit cost tables, 
preliminary cost estimates, a list of project priorities, and a 
Phased Capital Improvement Plan.

Task 5. Prepare Master Plan
TASK 5.1. PREPARE DRAFT MASTER PLAN
At the beginning of the project, West Yost will prepare 
a detailed outline of the project report. The outline will 
identify report chapters, subsections, tables, and figures. 
We will submit the outline to the City for review and 
comment, discuss the outline during progress meetings, 
and finalize the outline by addressing and incorporating 
City comments. As work is completed, we will present the 
work to the City by submitting draft report chapters or 
sections. This approach helps ensure the City receives a final 
document that fully meets their expectations. We anticipate 
the following chapters will be included in the Master Plan:

 ■ Chapter 1: Introduction, Project Purpose, and Goals

 ■ Chapter 2: Summary of Relevant Studies and Data

 ■ Chapter 3: Site Visits and System Mapping

 ■ Chapter 4: Design Criteria

 ■ Chapter 5: Model Development and Buildout Land Use 
Conditions Evaluation

 ■ Chapter 6: Recommended Stormwater Improvements and 
Costs

 ■ Chapter 7: Capital Improvement Plan

 ■ Chapter 8: Conclusions and Recommendations

Once the draft is prepared and submitted, West Yost will 
conduct a workshop with City staff to receive comments 
and discuss proposed updates to be incorporated into the 
Final Master Plan. SKL will provide support for this task as 
needed, ensuring that their efforts in Task 2 and Task 4 are 
incorporated.

TASK 5.2 PREPARE FINAL MASTER PLAN
West Yost will incorporate the City’s comments on the draft 
report into the final master plan report. If addressing the 
comments requires additional technical/engineering work, a 
contract amendment will be requested to cover that out-of-
scope work.

TASK 5 DELIVERABLES:
Electronic files of the Draft and Final Storm Drain Master 
Plan, model files, and GIS shapefiles for the City’s storm 
drain system.

Schedule
Our proposed schedule is shown in Table 1 below.

PROJECT TIMELINE MONTHS FROM KICKOFF

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Task 1 - Project Management and Quality Control: 
Ongoing
Task 2 - System Inventory, Pipe Condition 
Assessment, and GIS Database Development: 
2 months to prepare data collection strategy, 4 
months to execute strategy
Task 3 - Identify Watersheds, Develop Models, and 
Evaluate Existing Hydraulic Capacity: 4 months
Task 4 - Propose Capital Improvement Projects 
(CIPs) for Storm Drain Improvements: 3 months
Task 5 - Prepare Master Plan: Starting after 
completion of data collection strategy, ending 1 
month after completion of Task 4

Table 1: Proposed Storm Drain Master Plan Project Timeline
Workshop

313 of 594



14City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

05 FEE PROPOSAL

Costs
West Yost Associates EM/SM/GM II SE/SS/SG I SE/SS/SG I ESG  II ADM IV EM/SM/GM II Hours Fee Technology SKL Sub. Other Total

$315 $244 $244 $190 $144 $315 & Admin w/ markup Direct Costs
PROJECT: City of Pinole SDMP Doug Melissa Poyom Emma/Josh/Lucas Mark 6% 10%

Task 1 Project Management and Quality Control
1.01 Project Administration 6 14 20 5,306$             318$              2,700$            2,970$         8,594$             

1.02 Workshops and Progress Meetings 32 40 14 86 22,500$           1,350$           23,850$           

1.03 Project QA/QC Activities 16 16 32 8,944$             537$              9,481$             

Subtotal, Task 1 (hours) 38 70 0 14 0 16 138

Subtotal, Task 1 ($) 11,970$            17,080$            2,660$              5,040$              36,750$           2,205$           2,700$                 2,970$        41,925$           

Task 2 System Inventory, Condition Assessment, GIS 
Database Development

2.01 Collect and Review Existing SD Information 4 6 12 22 5,004$             300$              360$  396$            5,700$             

2.02 GIS Database Development 2 2 2 6 1,498$             90$                2,880$            3,168$         4,756$             

2.03 Initial Field Reconnaissance 1 2 3 803$                 48$                5,760$            6,336$         7,187$             

2.04 Prepare Data Collection Strategy 4 8 12 3,212$             193$              9,000$            9,900$         13,305$           

Subtotal, Task 2 (hours) 11 18 0 14 0 0 43

Subtotal, Task 2 ($) 3,465$              4,392$              2,660$              10,517$           631$              18,000$               19,800$      30,948$           

Task 3 Identify Watersheds, Develop Models, and 
Evaluate Existing Hydraulic Capacity

3.01 Develop Subshed Boundaries 2 20 16 12 50 11,694$           702$              12,396$           

3.02 Summarize Subshed Hydrologic Data 2 10 30 42 8,770$             526$              9,296$             

3.03 Develop Hydrologic/Hydraulic Model 6 20 20 60 2 108 23,680$           1,421$           25,101$           

3.04 Calibration 6 12 6 12 2 38 9,192$             552$              9,744$             

3.05 Tailwater and Sea Level Rise 6 8 4 18 4,818$             289$              5,107$             

3.06 Evaluate Performance, Identify Deficiencies 10 22 14 28 74 17,254$           1,035$           18,289$           

3.07 Develop Preliminary Solutions 8 8 8 16 40 9,464$             568$              10,032$           

Subtotal, Task 3 (hours) 40 100 68 158 0 4 370

Subtotal, Task 3 ($) 12,600$            24,400$            16,592$            30,020$            1,260$              84,872$           5,092$           89,964$           

Task 4 Evaluation of Storm Drain Improvements
4.01 Evaluate CIPs 6 12 4 36 2 60 13,264$           796$              14,060$           

4.02 Develop Cost Criteria 4 8 12 3,212$             193$              3,405$             

4.03 Preliminary Cost Estimates 8 10 6 24 6,100$             366$              6,466$             

4.04 Develop Project Piorities 4 8 2 14 3,842$             231$              4,073$             

4.05 Develop CIP 8 16 24 6,424$             385$              3,600$            3,960$         10,769$           

4.06 Develop Financial Plan/Funding Source Alternatives 6 8 2 16 4,330$             260$              4,590$             

Subtotal, Task 4 (hours) 36 62 6 42 0 4 150

Subtotal, Task 4 ($) 11,340$            15,128$            1,464$              7,980$              1,260$              37,172$           2,230$           3,600$                 3,960$        43,362$           

Task 5 Prepare Master Plan
5.01 Prepare Draft Master Plan 16 40 16 36 8 116 26,696$           1,602$           28,298$           

5.02 Prepare Final Master Plan 6 16 10 4 36 8,270$             496$              8,766$             

Subtotal, Task 5 (hours) 22 56 16 46 12 0 152

Subtotal, Task 5 ($) 6,930$              13,664$            3,904$              8,740$              1,728$              34,966$           2,098$           37,064$           

TOTAL (hours) 147 306 90 274 12 24 853

TOTAL ($) 46,305$            74,664$            21,960$            52,060$            1,728$              7,560$              204,277$         12,257$        24,300$               26,730$      243,264$        

Labor

314 of 594



15City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Storm Drain Master Plan Update
CITY OF DIXON
REFERENCE: Deborah Barr, City Engineer/Director of Utilities, 600 
East A Street, Dixon, CA 95620, (707) 678-7030 ext. 5306,  
dbarr@cityofdixon.us

TEAM: Doug Moore (Project Manager), Melissa Duffy (Deputy 
Project Manager), Lucas Russell (Staff Engineer)

CONTRACT VALUE: $264,848

DATES: 2021-2023

West Yost is completing the Storm Drain Master Plan Update 
for the City of Dixon. West Yost collected information 
relevant to this Storm Drain Master Plan Update to 
maximize the use of existing information and minimize the 
future data collection requirements. Because West Yost has 
provided drainage services to the City for about 25 years, 
we already had much of the required data. We updated 
the City’s storm drain GIS mapping for about 1,731 pipe, 
575 maintenance holes, and about 1,246 drain inlets. The 
GIS update included identifying the best data source for 
populating the attribute data (surveys or record drawings). 
We submitted the proposed GIS attribute plan (“schema”) 
to the City for review and comment, and then we finalized 
the schema and populated the database. We created a Web 
Map that was secure and will only be available to West 
Yost project staff and City staff with the appropriate login 
credentials. Using the GIS mapping, we will develop an Asset 
Management Plan, which is a condition and risk assessment 
of the City’s storm drainage system to identify and prioritize 
the facilities for rehabilitation and replacement based on 
likelihood of failure and consequence of failure. The Master 
Plan update also included updating the City-wide XPSWMM 
model to include greater detail and to address future 
climate change through an 18 percent increase in the design 
storm rainfall intensities and depths.  The next steps of the 
project include identifying solutions to flooding problems, 
preparing construction and capital cost estimates for the 
solutions, and preparing a capital improvement plan. We 
will also evaluate the City’s cyber security risk and identify 
improvements to reduce the risk. All the evaluations will be 
presented in draft and final storm drain master plan reports.

Stormwater Capital Improvement 
Program Master Plan
CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVA
REFERENCE: Dalia Fadl, PE, Principal Engineer, 2729 Prospect Park 
Drive, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670, (916) 851-8718,  
dfadl@cityofranchocordova.org

TEAM: Mark Kubik (Project Manager), Doug Moore (QA/QC), 
Melissa Duffy (Lead Project Modeler)

CONTRACT VALUE: $841,622

DATES: 2018 - 2021

West Yost completed the City of Rancho Cordova 
stormwater master plan, which focuses on evaluating the 
City’s trunk storm drain system. As part of this effort, West 
Yost built a hydraulic and hydrologic modeling for existing 
conditions and for evaluating future capital improvement 
projects (CIPs). West Yost completed a system-wide 
condition assessment to confirm the configuration of the 
trunk drain system and define its condition, lifespan, and 
risk of failure. Pipe improvements, detention storage, 
pump station reconstruction, and maintenance projects are 
needed to improve the drainage system capacity and water 
quality. The CIPs from the master plan include:

 ■ 11 flood control projects within 6 watersheds including 
pipe improvements, detention storage, and pump station 
reconstruction

 ■ 13 maintenance/condition improvement projects for 
pipes

 ■ 7 maintenance/condition improvement projects for 
channels/outfalls

 ■ 3 maintenance/condition improvement projects for 
manholes

West Yost also supports the City of Rancho Cordova in 
stormwater compliance to their Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer System Permit. This support includes Low Impact 
Development (LID), Source Control, California Trash Capture 
Amendment, Hydromodification, and Flood Control.

06 REFERENCES

315 of 594



16City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

Storm Drain Master Plan and Update and 
Follow-On Work
VALLEJO FLOOD AND WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
REFERENCE: Mark Tomko, Director of Engineering, 450 Ryder 
Street, Vallejo, CA 94590, (707) 644-8949 ext. 231

TEAM: Doug Moore (Project Manager), Mark Kubik (QA/QC), 
Melissa Duffy (Staff Engineer), Josh Steiner (Staff Engineer)

CONTRACT VALUE: Original SDMP: $700,000, Update: $277,300 

DATES: 2000 – 2020, related on-call services are still ongoing

Because the City of Vallejo is nearly built out, the original 
master plan focused on solving existing flooding problems 
rather than planning for future growth. The master plan 
was essentially a series of predesign reports for each of the 
flooding problems within the District. The major elements 
of this master plan included:

 ■ Active community involvement in the project through 
regular meetings with the District’s Citizen Advisory 
Committee and meetings with residents affected by the 
flooding problems.

 ■ The West Yost team conducted a GPS and Total Station 
field survey of over 6,000 storm drain facilities, such as 
catch basins, maintenance holes, culverts, pump stations, 
and open-channel cross sections. The field survey was 
performed using GPS and included surveying the location 
and elevation of the facilities, measuring the depth to the 
pipe inverts, and measuring the pipe sizes. The field data 
were processed into an AutoCAD Map GIS database and a 
Storm Drain Facilities Map Book. 

 ■ West Yost developed computer models of five watersheds 
within the District using the MOUSE hydrologic/hydraulic 
model package, and later updated the models to MIKE 
URBAN. The models included all 36-inch diameter pipes 
and larger, pipes relevant to all flooding problems, and all 
major open channels, and were used to develop solutions 
to the flooding problems. 

 ■ Predesign evaluations of the existing flooding problems 
were developed. These evaluations included developing, 
evaluating, and comparing alternative solutions to the 
flooding problems, estimating the construction and 
capital costs of the alternatives, and recommending a 
preferred alternative. 

 ■ Evaluated the feasibility of redirecting the highly polluted 
first flush flows and dry weather flows from the District’s 
storm drain system into the District’s sanitary sewer 
system for treatment at the wastewater treatment plant. 

 ■ Developed a $24.5 million Capital Improvement Program 
and financing plan.

H Street Pump Station
CITY OF DAVIS 
REFERENCE: Dianna Jensen, PE, Public Works Engineering and 
Transportation Director, 1717 Fifth Street, Davis, CA 95616, (530) 757-5639, 
djensen@cityofdavis.org

TEAM: Doug Moore (Project Manager), Mark Kubik (QA/QC)

CONTRACT VALUE: $163,000

DATES: 2018-2022

The watershed drainage study determined that the FEMA floodplain 
south of Covell Boulevard and north of UC Davis could be removed 
through a FEMA Letter of Map Revision. West Yost developed 
an XPSWMM 2-dimensional surface flow model linked to a one-
dimensional model of the trunk storm drain system to evaluate the 
adequacy of the existing Pump Station. West Yost calibrated the 
model using the February 4, 2017, storm event (an 83-year return 
frequency storm) using flooding photographs and the recorded 
wet well water level and pump operation data at the H Street 
Pump Station. Water surface elevations were estimated based on 
flood photographs, and after the calibration was completed, the 
modeled results were within 0.3 feet of the estimated water levels. 
We also simulated the 100-year, 24-hour design storm, and the 
model results showed that the existing FEMA flood plain could be 
significantly reduced in area and depth. A LOMR was prepared and 
submitted to FEMA identifying an accurate floodplain for the City, 
and FEMA has approved the model and floodplain delineation. The 
new FIRM panels became effective in August 2022.

Storm Drain Master Plan Update 
CITY OF VACAVILLE
REFERENCE: Brian Oxley, Engineering Manager, 650 Merchant Street, 
Vacaville, CA 95688, (707) 449-5313, brian.oxley@cityofvacaville.com

TEAM: Doug Moore (QA/QC), Melissa Duffy (Lead Project Modeler)

CONTRACT VALUE: $442,202

DATES: 2017-2021, related on-call services are still ongoing

West Yost completed the Storm Drain Master Plan for the City 
of Vacaville, which included hydrologic and hydraulic model 
development for existing and future conditions, development of the 
improvements necessary for future development, updating design 
standards, developing cost estimates, helping the City determine 
impact fees, and assessing areas to be protected by the 200-year 
flood. The project included developing a comprehensive stormwater 
plan for the area east of Leisure Town Road that evaluates impacts 
from the individual development projects and evaluates the 
cumulative impacts from all of the proposed developments. 

In the model development, West Yost utilized the City’s GIS system, 
available soil data, land uses, impervious cover, vegetation types, 
and rainfall depths. West Yost converted FEMA’s HEC-RAS model to 
XPSWMM to adequately assess existing and proposed detention 
basins, pipelines, and channels.

316 of 594



17City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

California Municipal Clients

Storm Drainage Work Performed

MASTER 
PLANNING

HYDROLOGIC 
AND HYDRAULIC 

ANALYSES

ON-CALL 
ENGINEERING 

SERVICES

GENERAL/ 
SPECIFIC PLAN 

SUPPORT

City of Davis n n n n

City of Dixon n n n n

City of Live Oak n n n n

City of Manteca n n n n

City of Millbrae n n n n

City of Elk Grove n n n

City of Rancho Cordova n n n

City of Vacaville n n n

Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District n n n

Zone 7 Water Agency n n n

City of Napa n n n

City of American Canyon n n

City of Benicia n n

City of Citrus Heights n n

City of Healdsburg n n

City of Rocklin n n

City of West Sacramento n n

City of Yuba City n n

Gilsizer County Drainage District n n

Solano County Water Agency n n

City of Tracy n n

City of Sacramento n n

City of Stockton n n

City of Burlingame n

City of Chico n

City of Cloverdale n

City of Folsom n

City of Roseville n

City of Sausalito n

Contra Costa Flood Control & Water n

County of Placer n

County of Sutter n

Sacramento County n

Town of Loomis n

Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency n

Sacramento County Water Agency n

City of Antioch n

City of Atwater n

City of Ceres n

City of Fairfield n

City of Milpitas n

City of Turlock n

317 of 594



18City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

 ■ Alameda County 
Flood Control & Water 
Conservation District

 ■ Alameda County Water 
District

 ■ Amador Water Agency
 ■ Bolinas Community Public 
Utility District

 ■ Calaveras County Water 
District

 ■ California American Water
 ■ California Water Service
 ■ Carmichael Water District
 ■ Castaic Lake Water Agency
 ■ Castro Valley Sanitary 
District

 ■ Central Basin Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Central Contra Costa 
Sanitary District

 ■ Central Marin Sanitation 
Agency

 ■ Citrus Heights Water District
 ■ City of Berkeley
 ■ City of Calistoga
 ■ City of Carlsbad
 ■ City of Cotati
 ■ City of Escalon
 ■ City of Fresno
 ■ City of Galt
 ■ City of Garden Grove
 ■ City of Hayward
 ■ City of Jackson
 ■ City of Lathrop
 ■ City of Lincoln
 ■ City of Livermore
 ■ City of Lodi
 ■ City of Lompoc
 ■ City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water & 
Power

 ■ City of Menlo Park
 ■ City of Modesto
 ■ City of Mountain View
 ■ City of Oceanside
 ■ City of Palm Springs
 ■ City of Pasadena
 ■ City of Petaluma
 ■ City of Pinole
 ■ City of Pleasanton
 ■ City of Redding
 ■ City of Redwood City

 ■ City of Rialto
 ■ City of Rio Vista
 ■ City of Rohnert Park
 ■ City of San Bruno
 ■ City of San Diego
 ■ City of San Jose
 ■ City of San Mateo
 ■ City of Santa Cruz
 ■ City of Santa Rosa
 ■ City of Sebastopol
 ■ City of St. Helena
 ■ City of Sunnyvale
 ■ City of Thousand Oaks
 ■ City of Ukiah
 ■ City of Vallejo
 ■ City of Waterford
 ■ City of Woodland
 ■ Coastside County Water 
District

 ■ Contra Costa Water District
 ■ County of Butte
 ■ County of Fresno
 ■ County of Glenn
 ■ County of Lassen
 ■ County of Marin
 ■ County of Napa
 ■ County of San Joaquin
 ■ County of Sonoma
 ■ County of Stanislaus
 ■ County of Yolo
 ■ Delta Diablo Sanitation 
District

 ■ Dublin San Ramon Services 
District

 ■ East Bay Municipal Utility 
District

 ■ East Orange County Water 
District

 ■ Eastern Municipal Water 
District

 ■ Elk Grove Water District
 ■ Fairfield-Suisun Sewer 
District

 ■ Golden State Water 
Company

 ■ Goleta Water District
 ■ Humboldt Bay Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Ironhouse Sanitary District
 ■ Irvine Ranch Water District
 ■ Jurupa Community Services 
District

 ■ Lake Hemet Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Marin Municipal Water 
District

 ■ Mendocino County
 ■ Mesa Water District
 ■ Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California

 ■ Mission Springs Water 
District

 ■ Monterey County Water 
Resources Agency

 ■ Monterey One Water
 ■ Mountain House 
Community Services District

 ■ Mt. View Sanitary District
 ■ Napa Sanitation District
 ■ Nevada County
 ■ North Marin Water District
 ■ Novato Sanitary District
 ■ Olivehurst Public Utility 
District

 ■ Olivenhain Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Orange County Water 
District

 ■ Oro Loma Sanitary District
 ■ Otay Water District
 ■ Placer County Water 
Agency

 ■ Port of Oakland
 ■ Rainbow Municipal Water 
District

 ■ Rancho California Water 
District

 ■ Rincon Del Diablo 
Municipal Water District

 ■ Rodeo Sanitary District
 ■ Ross Valley Sanitary District
 ■ Sacramento Area Flood 
Control Agency

 ■ Sacramento Area Sewer 
District

 ■ Sacramento Regional 
County Sanitation District

 ■ Sacramento Suburban 
Water District

 ■ San Gabriel Valley Water 
Company

 ■ San Jose Water Company
 ■ San Juan Water District

 ■ Santa Clara Valley Water 
District (Valley Water)

 ■ Santa Margarita Water 
District

 ■ Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District

 ■ Sausalito-Marin City 
Sanitary District

 ■ Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler 
County Sanitation District

 ■ Shasta County Water 
Agency

 ■ Silicon Valley Clean Water
 ■ Sonoma County Water 
Agency

 ■ South Coast Water District
 ■ South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority

 ■ South Placer Municipal 
Utility District (SPMUD)

 ■ South San Luis Obispo 
County Sanitation District

 ■ South Tahoe Public Utility 
District

 ■ Stockton East Water District
 ■ Tehama County Flood 
Control & Water 
Conservation District

 ■ Three Valleys Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Town of Windsor
 ■ Town of Yountville
 ■ Turlock Irrigation District
 ■ Union Sanitary District
 ■ Valley Center Municipal 
Water District

 ■ Victor Valley Wastewater 
Reclamation Authority

 ■ Water Replenishment 
District of Southern 
California

 ■ West Bay Sanitary District
 ■ West County Wastewater 
District

 ■ Western Municipal Water 
District

 ■ Westlands Water District
 ■ Yolo County Flood Control 
& Water Conservation 
District

 ■ Yuba Water Agency

California Municipal Clients

318 of 594



19City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

07 CONFLICTS AND TERMINATION

West Yost is not aware of any existing or potential conflicts of interest that may arise from work on this project. West Yost 
does not have any instances of work on contracts that have been terminated for cause by a public agency in the past five 
years.

08 STANDARD AGREEMENT

We have reviewed the terms of the draft Agreement and are able to accept them; however, we would first ask to discuss 
mutually beneficial clarifications in certain sections.

319 of 594



20City of Pinole  |  Storm Drain Master Plan  |  July 6, 2023

A APPENDIX - RESUMES

320 of 594



Doug Moore, PE
Project Manager

Doug Moore is an engineer with experience in storm drainage facility master planning, 
stormwater computer modeling, facilities planning, preliminary design, design and 
specifications, construction and capital cost estimating, project permitting, and project 
management. He has hydrologic and hydraulic modeling expertise with XPSWMM (1 
and 2 dimensional modeling), Sacramento SWMM, HEC-1, HEC-2, HEC-HMS, HEC-RAS, 
MOUSE, MIKE URBAN, and RiverFLO-2D. He has provided initial planning, detailed 
design, and construction period engineering services for four large detention basin 
projects, each of which created significant wildlife habitat areas. Doug has performed 
wastewater treatment plant planning and facility evaluations. He has prepared potable 
water demand estimates and facility evaluations. He is skilled at preparing potable 
water, wastewater, and stormwater evaluations for development specific plans, city 
and county wide general plans, and environmental impact reports. Doug is particularly 
skilled at quickly developing infrastructure concepts and plans that minimize 
construction costs without compromising system performance.

EXPERIENCE
H Street Pump Station Watershed Drainage Study, City of Davis, CA: Project 
Manager for a study to determine if the FEMA floodplain south of Covell Boulevard 
could be removed through a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) or Conditional Letter of Map 
Revision (CLOMR). West Yost developed an XP-SWMM two-dimensional surface flow 
model linked to a one-dimensional model of the trunk storm drain system to quickly 
evaluate the adequacy of the existing pump station to pump the peak flows that reach 
the pump station. The H Street Pump Station Watershed was subdivided into about 119 
subwatersheds for the hydrologic analysis. For the hydraulic analysis, about 140 segments 
of trunk storm drain were included in the model. The model also included the H Street 
Pump Station and the downstream channel along the railroad to the Covell Drain. The 
LiDAR topographic mapping was used to define the two-dimensional ground surface in 
XP-SWMM model. The storm drain system was defined with record drawings and through 
field measurements taken by City and West Yost staff. The model was calibrated with 
the February 4, 2017, storm event using the flood photographs and the recorded wet 
well water level and pump operation data at the H Street Pump Station. The 100-year 
floodplain was delineated. Five alternatives were developed and evaluated to further 
reduce the existing flooding and prevent flooding of houses during the 100-year event. 
Based on the calibrated model results, a LOMR application was submitted and approved 
by FEMA.

Drainage Pump Station and Detention Basin Improvements, City of Sacramento, 
CA: Developed a Sacramento Storm Water Management Model (SSWMM) and master 
plan of the Sump 151 watershed and existing drainage collection, detention, and 
pumping facilities. Identified the current level of flood protection as less than 2-year. 
Used the SSWMM to evaluate alternative improvement scenarios to provide a 10-year 
level of protection. Estimated the costs of the alternatives and used the SSWMM to 

STAFF TITLE: Engineering Manager II

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 30

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION
 � Professional Civil Engineer, 

California No. 58122,            
Nevada No. 19924

EDUCATION
 � MS, Civil Engineering, University 

of California, Davis
 � BS, Geology, University of Oregon
 � BS, Mathematics, University of 

Oregon

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
 � North Bay Engineers Club
 � California Stormwater Quality 

Association
 � Floodplain Management 

Association

AWARDS
 � California Water Environment 

Association, Sacramento Area 
Section 2011 Engineering 
Achievement Award – Dry 
Creek Levee Relocation at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, City 
of Roseville

 � American Society of Civil 
Engineers, Sacramento Section 
2011 Small Flood Control Project 
of the Year – Dry Creek Levee 
Relocation at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, City of Roseville

321 of 594



Doug Moore, PE | Page 2

hydrologic models and/or the City’s HEC-RAS hydraulic model. 
The resulting changes in flows and water surface elevations 
were determined and compared with existing conditions. 
The water surface elevations were also compared with 
previously surveyed structure finished flood elevations, and 
the number of predicted flooded structures was tabulated. 
Project construction and total capital cost estimates were also 
prepared. The Phase 1 results were presented to City staff 
in a workshop, and from the workshop five combinations of 
the individual project were identified for further evaluation 
(Combinations A-E). In Phase 2, Combinations A-E were 
evaluated with the SacCalc and HEC-RAS models and the 
resulting flow, water surface elevation, and flooded structures 
were summarized. The results of the Phase 2 work were 
presented to City staff in a second workshop. The work was 
also summarized in draft and final Technical Memoranda.

Laguna Creek and Whitehouse Creek Multi-Functional 
Corridor Project, City of Elk Grove, CA: Quality Assurance/
Quality Control reviewer for a floodplain evaluation. The City 
of Elk Grove plans to construct a raised pedestrian trail along 
Laguna Creek and Whitehouse Creek. The trail includes one 
bridge crossing Whitehouse Creek and two bridges crossing 
Laguna Creek. West Yost is completing a hydraulic analysis 
using HEC-RAS software to determine the impact of the 
proposed project to the floodplain during the 10-year and 
100-year design storms and evaluating mitigation measures to 
reduce or eliminate the impact. The evaluation also includes 
a scour analysis for the three proposed bridges using the HEC-
RAS model for the preferred alternative.

Skibbereen Monteith Storm Drain Planning and Design and 
Bid and Construction Services, Vallejo Flood and Wastewater 
District, Vallejo, CA: Project Manager for a project to evaluate 
the downstream impacts of the increased flow and prepare a 
hydraulic impact evaluation technical memorandum (TM) for the 
District due to Caltrans enlarging a culvert under Interstate-80 
from a 24-inch, corrugated metal pipe to a 30-inch, smooth 
interior steel pipe, which increased the flow crossing I-80. The 
evaluation identified the lowest-cost and most feasible approach 
to mitigate the increased flow was to construct 800 feet of new 
30-inch storm drain in Skibbereen Lane and Fleming Avenue. 
The geotechnical investigation of the new drain alignment 
identified shallow bedrock, which can be a concern for unknown 
conditions and added costs during construction. In light of this, 
West Yost prepared the construction plans set and bid approach 
to deal with the bedrock that would reduce the number of 
change orders for the District, led a prebid meeting, and 
provided engineering services during construction. 

minimize the costs associated with pumping and detention 
storage. Also estimated facilities construction costs of $2 
million to $4 million over previously proposed plans while 
providing the same level of flood protection. 

Storm Drainage Master Plan, Vallejo Sanitation & Flood 
Control District (VFWD), Vallejo, CA: Project Manager for 
the Storm Drainage Master Plan (SDMP) and personally 
performed about 20 percent of the modeling and technical 
work. The project included field surveys of over 5,000 storm 
drain facilities using a GPS system; developed computer 
models of four watersheds using the MOUSE hydrologic/
hydraulic model package; developed comparison level 
alternatives evaluation and selected a preferred project for 
32 flooding problems (including cost estimates); developed a 
capital improvement plan, provided PowerPoint presentation 
of the SDMP to the VFWD Citizens Advisory Committee, and 
prepared a four volume SDMP. 

On-Call Services, Vallejo Flood & Wastewater District, 
Vallejo, CA: As follow on work from the VFWD SDMP, 
Doug is serving as the Project Manager for providing on-
call stormwater services to VFWD. This work has included 
preparing the design of a headwall, trash rack, and access 
road for a VFWD open channel within Setterquist Park. He 
has also reviewed a Caltrans plan to enlarging three culverts 
under I-80 in the Skibereen/Monteith neighborhood and 
developed the lowest-cost storm drainage improvement plan 
to address the increased flows through the Caltrans culverts. 
He evaluated the causes and developed a solution to reduce 
the flooding of a single house on Humboldt Street. These 
tasks have been completed within the schedule needed for 
the VFWD to satisfy its obligations to the City of Vallejo and 
Caltrans. For a related project, Doug evaluated the causes 
of the flooding for several houses in the Hampshire and 
Mississippi Street Area from the December 30-31, 2005 storm 
(within the Austin Creek watershed). This evaluation included 
modeling the actual rainfall hyetograph with the MOUSE 
model of the Austin Creek Watershed. The model was found 
to closely reproduce the actual observed/reported flooding. 
From this work, it was determined that the storm exceeded 
the VFWD design criteria. This work was summarized in a 
PowerPoint presentation to the VFWD Board of Trustees 
on February 13, 2006. Through the on-call call contract, the 
MOUSE models have been updated to Mike Urban software. 

Elk Grove Creek Detention Basin Study, City of Elk Grove, 
CA: Project manager on a study to evaluate detention basin 
opportunities to reduce the 100-year flooding along Elk Grove 
Creek. West Yost evaluated expanding four existing detention 
basins (DB10, DB11, DB12, and DB13) and evaluating four 
new detention basins and one floodplain storage project 
(collectively called the “basins”). In the Phase 1 evaluation 
each of the basins was modeled using the City’s SacCalc 

322 of 594



Elizabeth Drayer, PE
Principal-in-Charge

Elizabeth’s expertise is in water resources engineering and multi-disciplinary project 
teams. She has experience leading water resources planning studies and design 
projects and specializes in water supply and infrastructure master planning. She has 
prepared more than 24 water and utility master plans, more than 20 water supply 
assessments, and more than 30 urban water management plans. She has also 
prepared many other studies and plans for clients including groundwater studies, 
drought response and water shortage contingency plans, facility operations plans, and 
emergency operations plans involving the evaluation of existing facilities, evaluation 
of existing and future water demands, identification of system deficiencies and needs, 
evaluation of water supply alternatives, and development of recommendations for 
capital improvements. She has prepared preliminary and detailed designs for water 
supply facilities such as pipelines, pump stations, reservoirs, and canals. Elizabeth is a 
West Yost Vice President and serves on West Yost’s Board of Directors.

EXPERIENCE
Local Water Supply Enhancement Study, North Marin Water District, Novato, CA.: 
Principal-in-Charge for the preparation of a study to identify feasible water supply 
sources that the District may implement to supplement supply it receives from its 
wholesaler, Sonoma Water. The study will review potential alternatives including 
recycled water system expansion, water treatment plant efficiency improvements, 
stormwater capture, reservoir capacity increase, and desalination. Potential 
alternatives will be evaluated based on the following considerations: cost, water 
quality, hazards and risks, political and institutional, and operational. Working with the 
District, feasible alternatives will be selected based on evaluation results. West Yost 
will include recommended next steps towards project implementation.

Emergency Water Supply Support, Mountain House Community Services District, 
Mountain House, CA: Principal-in-Charge for providing emergency water supply 
support to the Mountain House CSD. Recent (2015 and again in 2021) declarations of 
unavailability of water issued by the State Water Resources Control Board indicate that 
the Mountain House CSD needs to plan for emergency water supplies for short period 
interruptions (several days), medium period interruptions (several months), and 
long period interruptions (several years). West Yost has assisted the Mountain House 
CSD in preparing for a potential long-term interruption of water supply from Byron 
Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) that could be caused by a catastrophic earthquake 
destroying several Delta island levees and causing a long-term intrusion of salt water 
into the Delta and is assisting the Mountain House CSD in the evaluation of several 
short-term and long-term supply options.

2040 General Plan Update, City of Sacramento, CA: Principal-in-Charge and 
QA/QC Reviewer for the preparation of water, sewer and storm drain components 
for the update of the City’s General Plan. Work included the development of 

STAFF TITLE: Vice President

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 35

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS
 � Professional Civil Engineer, 

California No. 46872

EDUCATION
 � MS, Structural Engineering, 

University of California, Berkeley 
 � BS, Civil Engineering, University 

of California, Berkeley

CERTIFICATIONS
 � Underground Storage Tank 

Installation
 � UC Davis Extension, 32-hour 

Course, Groundwater Hydrology
 � UC Davis Extension, 32-hour 

Course, Principles of Toxicology

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
 � American Society of Civil 

Engineers
 � American Water Works 

Association
 � Association of California Water 

Agencies
 � WateReuse Association

323 of 594



Elizabeth Drayer, PE | Page 2

cost data and recent bid results with the recommended 
timing for future system improvements.

2020 Urban Water Management Plan, City of Stockton, CA: 
Project Manager for the preparation of the 2020 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP). Project tasks include review of 
the City’s water demands and water supplies for the last five 
years, projection of future water demands and water supplies 
through 2045, a report on the City’s compliance with its SB 
X7-7 per capita water use target for 2020, consideration of the 
impacts of Senate Bill 606 and Assembly Bill 1668 on the City’s 
future water demands, an update of the City’s on-going and 
planned water demand measures, and an update of the City’s 
water shortage contingency plan. West Yost assisted City staff 
during the public hearing and City Council adoption of the 
2020 UWMP and uploaded the final plan to the Department 
of Water Resources Water Use Efficiency data portal. 

2015 and 2020 Urban Water Management Plans, 
Various Clients: Served as the leader and coordinator of 
West Yost’s 2015 and 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
(UWMP) development team, responsible for review and 
interpretation of Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
UWMP requirements and tools (including UWMP standard 
tables, population tool and AWWA water audit software), 
development of practical approaches for UWMP preparation, 
understanding of information and data requirements, 
development of standardized document outlines and 
templates, liaison with DWR’s UWMP staff, team coordination 
and communications, and quality assurance/quality control. 
Under Elizabeth’s leadership, the West Yost team prepared 
sixteen 2015 UWMPs, all of which were determined by DWR 
to address the requirements of the California Water Code. 
As summarized below, 2015 UWMPs were prepared for the 
cities of Antioch, Modesto, Pleasanton, Roseville, Sacramento, 
San Bruno, Santa Rosa, Turlock, Ukiah, and Woodland, as well 
as the Coastside County Water District, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, Fontana Water Company, Mountain House 
Community Services District, Olivehurst Public Utility District, 
and Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency. 2020 UWMPs were 
prepared for the cities of Lincoln, Modesto, Napa, Petaluma, 
Pleasanton, Sacramento, San Bruno, Santa Rosa, Stockton, 
Turlock, and Woodland, as well as the Coastside County Water 
District, Dublin San Ramon Services District, Fontana Water 
Company, Mountain House Community Services District, 
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District, Woodland-Davis 
Clean Water Agency, and Zone 7 Water Agency.

background reports for each system, development of future 
demand and flow conditions based on the City’s future 
development plans, and evaluation of future infrastructure 
needs.

Recycled Water System Master Plan, Sonoma Valley 
County Sanitation District, Santa Rosa, CA: QA/QC reviewer 
for preparation of a Recycled Water System Master Plan for 
the District. The purpose of this Master Plan was to evaluate 
the District’s existing and proposed future recycled water 
system to achieve the District’s goal of optimizing the use of 
available recycled water supplies and minimize the discharge 
of this valuable resource. Tasks included review of evaluation 
results and findings and review of draft chapters of the 
Master Plan.

Downtown and El Camino Real Specific Plan Technical 
Report, City of Millbrae, CA: QA/QC Reviewer for a study 
evaluating impacts of intensification of land uses in the 
Millbrae downtown area on water, sewer and storm utilities. 
Results of the study will be used to develop impact fees for 
new development. The project included evaluating proposed 
land use intensification to estimate water demands and 
sewer flows, evaluating changes to impervious areas that 
impact stormwater runoff, using hydraulic models to assess 
impacts of new development and identify infrastructure 
required, and developing capital cost estimates for new 
infrastructure required.

Collection System Master Plan, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, Dublin, CA: Principal-In-Charge for the 
update of the District’s collection system master plan which 
will guide the District’s remaining collection system capital 
improvement projects and establish appropriate connection 
fees to fund them while recognizing the District’s strategic 
goal of maintaining competitive service rates. The master plan 
evaluated and developed solutions and policies for the long-
term management of the collection system, including Inflow 
and Infiltration (I/I) management and Private Sewer Lateral 
(PSL) policies.

Livermore Wastewater Collection System Master Plan, 
City of Livermore, CA: QA/QC reviewer for the sewer 
portion of combined water and wastewater master plans. 
Reviewed ADWF projections based upon the updated 
wastewater unit flow factors and the water demand 
projections, including rebound. Reviewed modeling results 
from the City’s existing H2OMAP Sewer hydraulic model 
including update to develop pipe network that included 
all gravity mains and force mains, preserving a one-to-one 
relationship with the City’s GIS. Reviewed development of 
a Capital Improvement Plan including project description, 
location, size and costs, developed from conceptual-level 

324 of 594



Melissa M. Duffy, PE 
Deputy Project Manager

Melissa Duffy is a civil engineer with a focus on hydrologic and hydraulic modeling 
and analysis for storm drainage master plans, drainage analyses, and FEMA Letter 
of Map Change applications. Melissa provides engineering analysis and design for 
pipeline, open channel, pump station, detention basin, and levee projects. Melissa’s 
construction management experience includes treatment plants, electrical systems, 
and health care facilities. Melissa is proficient in AutoCAD, and ArcGIS. She has 
developed hydraulic and hydrologic models using HEC-RAS, HEC-HMS, Sacramento 
County Hydrologic Calculator, XPSWMM, PCSWMM, and MIKE URBAN.

EXPERIENCE
Rancho Cordova Storm Drain Master Plan, City of Rancho Cordova, CA: Lead 
Project Engineer responsible for coordinating field assessments, developing 
hydrologic and hydraulic models, and identifying recommended improvements. 
West Yost prepared a stormwater master plan to evaluate the City’s trunk storm 
drain system. Services included data collection and condition assessment field work; 
preparing hydrologic and hydraulic modeling for the trunk system to identify capacity 
deficiencies; and evaluating potential low impact development projects that can help 
reduce runoff and improve water quality.

Storm Drain Master Plan Update, City of Dixon, CA: Deputy Project Manager for 
the City’s Storm Drain Master Plan Update. The update includes developing and 
populating a GIS database of the City’s storm drain system, performing a condition 
assessment of the City’s storm drain system, developing a City-wide hydrologic and 
hydraulic model in XPSWMM software, identifying deficiencies, and developing 
recommended capital improvement projects.

Storm Drain Master Plan Update, City of Tracy, CA: Project Manager for the Storm 
Drain Master Plan Update. West Yost is tasked with evaluating detention basin 
design criteria for the City based on criteria for surrounding agencies, developing a 
new hydrologic/hydraulic model in PCSWMM software and updating it based on the 
established basin design criteria, evaluating dual-use detention basins, and providing 
and updated City-wide Storm Drain Master Plan document.

Storm Drainage Master Plan Update, Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District, 
Vallejo, CA: Project Modeler for the Storm Drainage Master Plan Update (SDMPU) 
completing model updates and calibration for four watersheds using MIKE URBAN 
hydrologic/hydraulic modeling software. The model updates included adding storm 
drain improvements made since the SDMP was completed by West Yost in 2002 based 
on record drawings, and calibrating the model using rainfall data, pump station data, 
photographs, and District staff recollection. The goal for updating the SDMP was 
to calibrate the storm drain models to more accurately simulate the design storms, 
identify and document flooding problems and storm drain deficiencies, develop 

STAFF TITLE: Senior Engineer I

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 12

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION
 � Professional Civil Engineer, 

California No. 87217

EDUCATION
 � BS, Civil Engineering, Loyola 

Marymount University, 
Los Angeles, California

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
 � California Stormwater Quality 

Association

 � Floodplain Management 
Association

325 of 594



Melissa Duffy, PE | Page 2

along Salvador Creek. The analysis was used to prepare and 
submit a CLOMR application to FEMA on behalf of Burbank 
Housing.

Storm Drainage Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Update, 
City of West Sacramento, CA: Project Modeler serving as 
a subconsultant to Wood Rodgers for the hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling of the north portion of West Sacramento 
as part of the City-wide Storm Drainage/Stormwater Master 
Plan Update using the Sacramento County Hydrologic 
Calculator and XPSWMM. The model includes assessment 
management for strategic conveyance capacity, condition, 
and rehabilitation evaluations. The north portion of the 
model encompasses 5,922 acres for use and operation by the 
City of West Sacramento.

Elk Grove Kammerer Road, Dokken Engineering and City 
of Elk Grove, CA: Project Engineer for the drainage analysis 
of the proposed widening of Kammerer Road between 
Highway 99 and Bruceville Road and the extension from 
Bruceville Road to Interstate 5. Performed a hydraulic analysis 
to size the on-site multi-functional roadway drainage facilities 
to provide flood flow conveyance, flood detention storage, 
hydromodification mitigation, and stormwater quality 
treatment.

Conditional Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (CLOMR-F) 
Application for the Proposed PEP Housing Property, PEP 
Housing, Vacaville, CA: Project Manager for the hydraulic 
analysis and CLOMR-F submittal to remove the proposed 
development from the FEMA Zone A floodplain. A two-
dimensional hydraulic model was developed using HEC-RAS 
software to evaluate the existing and proposed conditions 
and determine the mitigation necessary to minimize the 
impact to the surrounding area. The conditions were 
compared by exporting and evaluating the results in ArcGIS, 
and the results were used to submit a CLOMR-F application to 
FEMA.

Brighton Landing and Roberts Ranch Drainage Study, City 
of Vacaville, CA: Project Engineer for the drainage analysis 
of the Roberts Ranch and Brighton Landing Developments 
in Vacaville, California. Hydrologic and hydraulic models 
were developed and analyzed for the existing and proposed 
conditions to determine the flooding impact to the adjacent 
Alamo Creek. The development includes approximately 
500 acres of residential development and a 120 acre-foot 
detention basin where the proposed projects will drain. A 
two-dimensional HEC-RAS model was developed to determine 
the flooding depths and extents to compare the existing and 
proposed conditions. 

improvements for flooding problems and system deficiencies, 
verify the sizing or downsize proposed improvements, 
evaluate options and recommend solutions for various 
problem areas, update unit costs  and improvement cost 
estimates, and update the drainage Capital Improvement 
Plan.

Drainage Support for the Sunrise Boulevard Widening, 
City of Rancho Cordova, CA: Project Manager serving 
as a subconsultant to Dewberry. West Yost is preparing a 
comprehensive hydrologic and hydraulic analysis for the 
widening of a section of Sunrise Boulevard from Kiefer 
Boulevard to Jackson Highway. Widening the existing two-lane 
Sunrise Boulevard to four-lanes and ultimately six lanes will 
likely increase stormwater flows discharging to Laguna Creek 
due to added impervious surfaces. West Yost is completing 
a drainage evaluation  for the proposed drainage facilities, 
including detention basins, stormwater pipelines, ditches, and 
culverts.

Drainage Support for the Laguna Creek Trails Project, 
Dokken Engineering, Elk Grove, CA: Project Manager and 
Lead Project Modeler for the hydraulic analysis of the Laguna 
Creek Trails project, a proposed pedestrian trail along Laguna 
Creek and Whitehouse Creek that includes a raised trail and 
three bridge crossings. The analysis uses HEC-RAS software to 
determine the impact of the proposed project and evaluate 
alternatives to mitigate the flooding impact. It also includes a 
scour analysis for the three proposed bridges. 

Rocklin City Tributary Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) 
Application, City of Rocklin, CA: Project Manager for the 
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis and LOMR submittal for the 
Rocklin City Tributary. Developed a hydrologic model in HEC-
HMS software, in accordance with Placer County Standards. 
The resulting hydrographs were routed through the City’s 
storm drain system using XPSWMM software. Peak flows 
were used as input to the revised FEMA HEC-RAS model. 
The hydrologic and hydraulic analysis was used to submit a 
LOMR application to FEMA, including a certified topographic 
work map with modified floodplain boundaries. The updated 
analysis corrected the floodplain boundary to remove 
multiple houses from FEMA flood hazard zones.

Hydraulic Analysis and CLOMR Submittal for the Proposed 
Heritage House and Valle Verde Projects, Burbank 
Housing, Napa, CA: Project Manager and Lead Project 
Modeler for the hydraulic analysis and CLOMR submittal for 
the proposed project. The project includes renovation of an 
existing vacant building into affordable housing,constructing 
a new multi-family residential building, and removing an 
existing bridge over Salvador Creek. A model was developed 
using HEC-RAS software to represent pre-project and post-
project conditions and determine the mitigation measures 
necessary to minimize increases in water surface elevation 

326 of 594



Mark Kubik, PE
QA/QC Reviewer

Mark Kubik is a civil engineer specializing in providing storm drainage master planning, 
floodplain determinations, flood frequency analyses, probable maximum flood 
studies, dam failure analyses, reservoir yield studies, and project management for 
stormwater projects. He is an expert stormwater modeler and is proficient in the use 
of many common computer models including HEC-RAS, HEC-HMS, SWMM, XPSWMM, 
HEC-DSS, and others. He is also experienced with two-dimensional hydraulic modeling 
using the Flo-2D and XPSWMM-2D models. Other experience includes continuous 
simulation analyses for evaluating channel stability, storm water quality analyses, 
detention basin and pipeline design, and infrastructure design for residential and 
commercial developments. Mark is experienced with Caltrans study requirements, 
including their Standard Location Hydraulic Study format. 

EXPERIENCE
On-Call Drainage Engineering Services, City of Rancho Cordova: Project Manager 
for various drainage-related assignments, including preparation of quantity and cost 
estimates of the future trunk drainage facilities that will be necessary to support 
future development in the City. This information will be used to support establishment 
of a new drainage fee program. Also performed peer reviews of drainage studies and 
drainage infrastructure designs prepared by others.

Basin 157 Storm Drainage Master Planning, City of Sacramento, CA: Project 
Manager for a storm drainage master plan for Basin 157, which covers nearly 2,800 
acres in the City of Sacramento. The basin includes large areas of both developed 
and undeveloped land. For the developed areas, the portions of the existing drainage 
system not meeting the City’s drainage criteria were identified along with the required 
facility upgrades. For the undeveloped areas, the drainage facilities necessary to 
safely convey runoff for buildout conditions were identified. Developed an unsteady-
state SWMM model of the drainage system and used it to establish existing drainage 
conditions, predict the potential effects of future development, and evaluate 
alternative drainage improvement projects. An implementation plan was prepared for 
a $66 million improvement plan. Mark has also completed similar studies for City of 
Sacramento Basins 22, 26, 67, 68, 69, 108, and 139. 

Drainage Master Plan, Reclamation District 784, Yuba County, CA: Managed 
the preparation of a drainage master plan for Reclamation District 784. Flood 
hydrographs were calculated for existing and ultimate conditions using HEC-1 and 
water surface profiles were calculated using an unsteady state (dynamic) computer 
model. Alternative flood control plans were developed to handle the increased 
runoff anticipated from future developement. Preferred alternatives were developed 
and estimates of construction, operation, and maintenance costs were prepared. A 
presentation of the master plan was delivered at a public meeting. 

STAFF TITLE: Principal Engineer II

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 33

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION
 � Professional Civil Engineer, 

California No. 50963

EDUCATION
 � BS, Civil Engineering, California 

Polytechnic State University, San 
Luis Obispo

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
 � Floodplain Management 

Association
 � California Stormwater 

Quality Association

327 of 594



Mark Kubik, PE | Page 2

200-Year Natomas Basin Interior Drainage Study, City 
of Sacramento, CA: Mark was the Project Manager for 
this project, which was required due to the Passage of 
Senate Bill 5 (SB5) in 2007. This bill changed the standard of 
flood protection for new developments in Sacramento-San 
Joaquin Valley communities. Among other requirements, SB5 
requires all communities within the Valley to make findings 
related to an urban level of flood protection (i.e., 200-year 
protection) before entering into development agreements. 
As part of a project team, West Yost prepared hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling to assist the City with meeting these new 
requirements. West Yost developed an XPSWMM model for 
the Natomas Basin and used the model to estimate the 200-
year water surface elevations within the system. The Natomas 
Basin is a very large watershed that covers approximately 83 
square miles. Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000) operates 
a system of levees, drainage canals, and pump stations 
to provide drainage and flood protection to the basin. RD 
1000 has a hydrologic/hydraulic model representing their 
system. The model was prepared using an old DOS version of 
EPA-SWMM. West Yost converted the model to XPSWMM, 
updated the model with known changes to the system since 
the original model was prepared, converted the vertical 
datum of the model from NGVD29 to NAVD88, and added a 
2-dimensional evaluation of a complex surface flow area. The 
model was used to estimate the 100-year and 200-year water 
surface elevations throughout the system and the results 
were used to map the floodplains for those storms.

Elk Grove Kammerer Road PA/ED, Dokken Engineering 
and City of Elk Grove, CA: Kammerer Road is proposed to 
be widened to a 4-lane expressway between Highway 99 
and Bruceville Road and extended from Bruceville Road to 
Interstate 5 (I-5). Project Manager for the preparation of 
a drainage study in support of the CEQA evaluation and to 
support development of 35% design plans. Developed the 
criteria to be used for sizing the various drainage facilities 
required for the Project and evaluated two approaches for 
crossing the existing railroad. Computed design flows to size 
cross culverts and ditches/channels to convey off-site flows 
for the CEQA analysis and performed hydraulic analyses to 
estimate the facility sizes required to convey off-site runoff. 
Performed hydraulic analysis to size the on-site roadway 
drainage facilities, which were configured as multi-functional 
facilities that provide flood flow conveyance, flood detention 
storage, hydromodification mitigation, and stormwater quality 
treatment. This work resulted in a preliminary drainage report 
that was be suitable for use with the CEQA evaluation and a 
Location Hydraulic Study that met Caltrans requirements.

Ogden Ranch Floodplain Study and Water Quality 
Plan, Silverado Homes: Project Manager for this study 
to evaluate the potential floodplain impacts for a 70-acre 
residential subdivision proposed adjacent to Laguna Creek 
in Sacramento County. Potential impacts to the flows and 
water surface elevations in the creek were evaluated with 
hydrologic and hydraulic modeling using HEC-1 and HEC-RAS. 
Mitigation measures, including compensating floodplain 
excavation and culvert improvements. In addition to the 
floodplain evaluation, a stormwater quality treatment 
plan was developed that defined the facilities required to 
mitigate for potential water quality impacts to the creek. The 
plan recommended construction of vegetated swales that 
would provide water quality treatment of project runoff and 
enhance the wildlife habitat at the project site.

Soscol Gateway Interior Drainage Project, City of 
Napa, CA: Mark was the Project Manager for this project 
that included hydrologic/hydraulic modeling of the 
existing floodplain and alternative improvement projects, 
coordination with private land owners, and coordination 
with the CEQA consultant and regulatory agencies (California 
Department of Fish and Game, etc.). West Yost developed a 
drainage plan that reduced the total project cost by about 
40 percent under the previously considered alternatives. 
Project tasks included confirmation of the sizing of a 
proposed USACE detention basin/pump station, evaluation 
of existing storm drains (sized for a 10-year storm) and 
channels to partially convey the 100-year storm flows, sizing 
of a proposed new pump station, and determination of the 
residual flooding depths and flow directions and velocities 
through 2-dimensional flood modeling using XPSWMM. The 
2-dimensional flood modeling results were presented in easily 
understandable maps of floodwater depths (colored shading) 
and flow vectors (arrows depicting the direction and velocity) 
for existing conditions. From these existing conditions maps, 
improvements were developed that reduce the 100-year 
flooding to a level that will include only minor ponding in the 
public streets. Flooding depth and vector maps were prepared 
for the improvement alternatives.

Neighborhoods 6 and 7 Storm Drainage Master Plan 
Study, City of Citrus Heights: Mark was the Project Manager 
for this Storm Drainage Master Plan Study. For this study, 
XPSWMM was used to develop stormwater models to identify 
and evaluate drainage improvements projects for a citywide 
capital improvement program. West Yost established and 
refined analysis procedures to efficiently identify flooding 
problems and to develop solutions. Key project objectives 
were to eliminate as many roadside ditches as possible; 
eliminate recurring local flooding, and develop a capital 
improvement program to help guide the City in implementing 
future drainage improvements. 

328 of 594



Poyom Riles, PE, QSD, ENV SP 
Staff Engineer

Mr. Riles is creative and passionate about water resources engineering, sustainable 
infrastructure, and ecosystem. He has a broad range of experience from 13 years as 
a practicing Civil/Environmental Engineer that includes hydrology, hydrodynamics, 
water quality, aquatic habitat restoration, hydromodification analysis, low impact 
development, stormwater planning and design, flood control planning, wastewater 
reclamation planning and design, evaluation of wastewater collection and water 
distribution systems, and utility master planning. He is technically capable in planning, 
analysis, and design of complex natural and urban water systems using a variety of 
applications and methodologies for hydraulic and hydrologic analysis.

EXPERIENCE
(Prior To Joining West Yost)

City of Tracy Storm Drainage Engineering Support MPSA, City of Tracy, CA: 
Project Engineer that provided on-call assistance to the City related to the City’s 
existing and proposed drainage facilities. Reviewed proposed storm drainage facilities 
serving development projects for conformance with City storm drainage master 
planning documents and City Design standards including Low Impact Development 
requirements. Includes:

 � Review of Medline International Park of Commerce (includes LID review)
 � Review of Ellis Place (includes LID review) 2015
 � Review of Tracy Apartments (includes LID review) 2015
 � Review of Brookview II (includes LID) 2015
 � Detention Basin 2B analysis (shown below) 2016
 � Lammers Watershed Analysis (shown below) 2016
 � Costco Basin analysis 2017

Valley View Park Stormwater Analysis, El Dorado Hills, CA: As Project Engineer, 
Poyom completed the stormwater analysis for a new park development in El Dorado 
Hills. The analysis included, hydologic analysis, culvert design, erosion assessment, and 
hydraulic capacity analysis for both proposed and existing conveyance structures.

Townsite Solar Drainage Design and Hydrology Assessment, Boulder City, 
Nevada: Poyom was the Project Engineer that completed drainage design and 
analysis for the Townsite Solar project in Nevada. Poyom was brought onto the project 
already over budget and behind schedule and was critical in providing a design 
solution and quickly iterating through the 2d hydraulic analysis that allowed the 
project to be approved for permitting.

STAFF TITLE: Senior Engineer I

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 13

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION
 � Professional Civil Engineer, 

California No. 81353

 � Qualified Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan Developer (QSD) 

 � Envision™ Sustainability 
Professional (ENV SP), Institute 
for Sustainable Infrastructure

EDUCATION
 � BS, Physics and BA in Fine Art, 

University of California, Santa 
Cruz

 � MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, California State 
University, San Jose

329 of 594



Poyom Riles, PE, QSD, ENV SP | Page 2

Plan (SP) on the receiving waters within and downstream 
of the SP area. The assessment was developed to inform 
the overall design of the planned multi-function open space 
corridors traversing the Project. Multi-function open space 
corridors are designed to provide drainage conveyance, 
flood control, water quality treatment, natural resources 
habitat, recreational opportunities, and aesthetic appeal. 
The primary mechanism for attenuating urbanized runoff 
from the developed areas was through the integration of 
flood control measures into the design of the corridors, with 
the potential to also provide some flow duration control for 
hydromodification mitigation purposes. Poyom performed 
long-term 1D hydrologic simulation analyses to determine 
hydromdification effects. The proposed flood control 
measures included a series of in-line cross channel berms 
spanning the width of the corridors with notches of varying 
dimensions. Furthermore, major road crossings over the 
corridors were designed to provide additional in-corridor 
peak flow attenuation.

Permanente Mine Sediment Basin, Santa Clara County, 
CA: Engineer of Record. Poyom developed a design set, 
construction specifications, and provided construction 
oversight for a sediment basin to catch stormwater and 
sediment from a section of the Permanente mine near 
Cupertino, California.

Low Impact Development Guidebook, Placer County, CA: 
Hydrologist. Poyom worked with a team to develop a Low 
Impact Development (LID) Guidebook for Placer County. 
The purpose of the guidebook is to provide guidance on 
the use and implementation of LID techniques that protect 
and enhance the water quality of Placer County in the 
Yuba, Truckee, and American River watersheds through 
the promotion of innovative, cost effective, storm water 
management techniques in the higher elevations. The 
guidebook is a web-based document that promotes and 
encourages the application of appropriate LID principles and 
strategies for planning, selecting, designing, constructing and 
maintaining new development and redevelopment.

Klamath River Renewal Project Erosion and Sediment 
Control for 60% Design, Siskiyou County, CA and Klamath 
County, OR: Project Engineer. Poyom provided erosion and 
sediment control design for the Klamath River Renewal 60% 
Design phase. The Klamath River Renewal Project involves 
the removal of 4 Dams along the Klamath River, restoration 
of the inundated upland area, and rehabilitation of the 
river corridor. The erosion and sediment control design was 
unconventional due to the unique nature of the project.

WM Davis St SPCC Plan Update, San Leandro, CA: Project 
Engineer. Poyom preformed hydrologic analysis, alternatives 
evaluation, site inspection and stormwater treatment 
measure recommendations as part of the Storm Water 
Pollution Control Plan Update for the Davis street Waste 
Management Facility. Poyom’s contribution included LID 
measure recommendations and design recommendations for 
site grading and paving operations.

State of California, Stormwater General Permit for 
Construction Activities, Various Locations, California: 
Poyom has developed numerous sediment and erosion 
control plans and storm water pollution prevention plans to 
satisfy state requirements for the NPDES general permit. QSD 
of record on a wide variety of Projects. Project experience 
includes linear and traditional projects ranging from risk 
level 1 to risk level 3. Projects have been completed in urban 
and rural environments throughout California, in sensitive 
aquatic habitat, in winter snow conditions, and with unique 
environmental risk factors. In addition to serving as QSD, 
Poyom has also preformed as QSP on many projects, and 
has been directly responsible for directing other designated 
inspectors.

No Discharge Technical Report (NONA), City of Newman, 
CA: Project Engineer. Poyom prepared a No Discharge 
technical report to support a notice of Non-Applicability 
(NONA) and a “no discharge” determination for the City of 
Newman Wastewater Treatment Facility. The report included 
analysis of the facility operations, topography, and historical 
rainfall records. Poyom used long term Rainfall records to 
demonstrate that all precipitation could be retained on site 
during the maximum annual, monthly, weekly and daily 
precipitation events.

Alder Creek Hydromodification Impacts Assessment, 
Sacramento, CA: Poyom was the hydrologist for a 
hydromodification impacts assessment of the planned 
Glenborough at Easton development on Alder Creek. 
Draft Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partnership (SSQP) 
Hydromodification Management Plan (HMP) performance 
criteria were applied to hydraulic model results from 
longterm continuous simulations developed for existing and 
project conditions. Per the criteria, the hydromodification 
assessment for Glenborough at Easton demonstrated that 
erosion potential (EP) criteria were met when planned water 
quality (WQ) basins were modified and additional upslope 
basins were added to minimize potential hydromodification 
effects along Alder Creek’s entire length below Prairie City 
Road to Lake Natoma.

Elverta Hydromodification Impacts Assessment, 
Sacramento, CA: Poyom was the hydrologist for a 
hydromodification impacts assessment of the Elverta Specific 

330 of 594



Lucas Russell, EIT 
Staff Engineer

Lucas Russell is a civil engineer specializing in analysis and design of stormwater 
systems. His experiences include; hydraulic modeling; open channel and closed 
conduit hydraulics; analyzing watershed hydrology; sea level rise and coastal 
hydraulics assessments; drainage and improvement plan review; and digital mapping 
and drafting. Lucas is proficient with XPSWMM, EPA SWMM, HEC-HMS, HEC-RAS, 
ArcGIS, and AutoCAD. 

EXPERIENCE
Lombardo Development Storm Drainage Evaluation, City of Dixon, CA: Staff 
engineer responsible for evaluating and revising the City of Dixon Storm Drain model 
and sizing a detention basin and associated pump station to accommodate flows from 
the proposed Lombardo development. Evaluation and revisions of the model included 
the update of hydrology standards and revising regional drainage systems to be 
consistent with updated engineering standards.

Stormwater Master Plan Update, City of Dixon, CA (Ongoing): Responsibilities 
have included the evaluation and entry of City record drawings into an ArcGIS Pro 
database, to be used in the creation of a web map and city-wide stormwater model. 
Additional tasks will include existing infrastructure condition assessments, developing 
hydraulic and hydrologic modeling efforts, and coordination with the Capital 
Improvement Plan. 

Basin G208 Storm Sewer Modeling Conversion, City of Sacramento, CA: Staff 
engineer responsible for hydrologic and hydraulic model creation, evaluation of the 
existing storm drain system, and development of potential improvements. Creation of 
the model was based on as-built plans, survey results, topography, and land use. The 
model was used to evaluate basin water levels and freeboard across multiple design 
storms before analyzing physical and operational modifications to an existing basin 
weir structure. 

Landing Lane, Arroyo Seco, and Hillcrest Boulevard Hydrology and Hydraulic 
Evaluation, City of Millbrae, CA: Project objectives entailed refining the City of 
Millbrae Storm Drain Masterplan model to simulate recorded flooding during multiple 
historic storm events before providing recommendations to eliminate flooding in 
project areas. The three project areas saw quick and extreme levels of flooding, 
resulting in property damage and loss of life. Responsibilities included the compilation 
of hydraulic and hydrologic data, modification of existing hydrologic model parameters 
and infrastructure data, implementation of historic rainfall and tidal data, identifying 
and calibrating sources of historic flooding, and reduction of flooding through 
recommendations for infrastructure improvements.

STAFF TITLE: Engineer I

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 2

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS
 � Engineer-in-Training, California 

No. 174535

EDUCATION
 � BS, Civil Engineering, California 

Polytechnic State University, San 
Luis Obispo

331 of 594



Lucas Russell, EIT | Page 2

Hydraulic Analysis of the San Antonio Spreading 
Grounds, Six Basins Watermaster, Lake Forest, CA: The 
project objective consisted of developing a two-dimensional 
hydraulic model to determine if recharge in the San Antonio 
Spreading Grounds (SASG) is being limited by the inflow 
structure configuration or internal hydraulic structures. 
Through this hydraulic model, the capacity of the spreading 
grounds was determined and opportunities for increasing 
recharge were suggested for further study. Responsibilities 
included assisting with the development of a model of the 
SASG to improve the understanding of the surface water flow 
through the SASG, analyzing flow limitations through internal 
hydraulic structures, and designing modifications to existing 
infrastructure to increase recharge through the SASG. 

On-Going Technical Support Services, Russian River 
Watershed Association (RRWA), CA: Project management 
of the annual RRWA Work Plan on behalf of 10 member 
agencies including several incorporated cities, two counties, 
and one special district. The work involves ongoing 
coordination with elected officials, agency staff and the 
public through regularly scheduled public meetings and 
outreach programs. Responsibilities include assisting with 
public outreach strategies including sponsorship coordination, 
restaurant placemats, publication of monthly environmental 
articles, social media accounts, and the regional safe 
medicine disposal program. Additional tasks include technical 
assistance with member agencies’ MS4 permit compliance 
and renewal, and   participation in California Stormwater 
Quality Association (CASQA) Phase II and Public Information/
Public Participation Subcommittees.

On-Call Drainage Engineering Services, City of Rancho 
Cordova, CA: Performs reviews of drainage studies and 
drainage infrastructure designs and improvement plans 
prepared by other consultants including low impact 
development water quality features, detention facilities, 
and erosion and sedimentation control plans for compliance 
with project conditions of approval and agency standards. 
The work includes preparation of comment memorandums, 
redline comments, and approval memorandums when 
warranted, in addition to close coordination with City and 
support staff.

Local Water Supply Enhancement Study, North Marin 
Water District, CA: Staff engineer assisting with evaluation 
of the potential water supply available through stormwater 
capture and conveyance into a lake serving as pre-treatment 
storage. The study focused on stormwater capture through 
dam construction at two locations in Novato, CA, and 
excavation at a third. Project areas required pump and force 
main design to transport water into nearby lake; pumping 
schedules were developed after an analysis of historical 
rainfall and runoff capture capacity in conjunction with 
available storage capacity and pumping costs. The study 
also evaluated options for increasing storage within the lake 
through sediment removal and the implementation of an 
adjustable gate at the currently notched spillway. 

Engineering Services- Residences East and West, Rancho 
Murieta, CA: Staff engineer responsible for hydrology and 
hydraulic model development, and flood control and water 
quality evaluation. Responsibilities included modeling pre-
project and post-project conditions for the project area 
and downstream flow paths in combination with relevant 
hydrologic modeling and calculation. The model was 
developed using record drawings, survey data, and relevant 
measurements taken in person. Upon completion, the post-
project model was used to size the onsite storm drain system 
to meet City and County criteria. Two detention basins were 
designed and modeled to meet required detention storage 
volumes and water quality requirements.

332 of 594



Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP
Staff Engineer

Emma Erickson is a water resources engineer with an educational background in 
both civil and environmental engineering, understanding water resources from water 
quality, hydrological, and hydraulics standpoints alike. She has skills in analyzing 
watersheds and flood risk reduction structures using field assessments and mapping, 
drafting, and water modeling software, such as ArcMap, QGIS, HEC-RAS, EPA 
SWMM, and AutoCAD Civil3D. Emma has provided stormwater, water quality, GIS, 
and sustainability analysis services to clients, such as City of Los Angeles Bureau of 
Engineering, Department of Defense, and public agencies, such as Caltrans and Calfire. 

EXPERIENCE
Design Storm Creation for the Combined Sewer System, City of Sacramento, 
CA: Project Engineer. Conducted a precipitation analysis to update the City of 
Sacramento’s combined sewer system design storm hyetographs and projected 
climate change design storm hyetographs to comply with the City’s NPDES permit. 
Established the City’s updated design storm intensity, with and without accounting 
for climate change impacts. Compared historical and future projected precipitation to 
inform near term capital improvement projects. Precipitation analysis process entailed 
data management through Excel, analysis and extraction in GIS, and documentation of 
the process in a technical memorandum.

West Sacramento Storm Drain Master Plan, City of West Sacramento, CA: Project 
Engineer. Created a storm drain master plan figure using GIS. This project will update 
the City’s Storm Drain Master Plan.

Basin 67 Stormwater Model, City of Sacramento, CA: Project Engineer. Developing 
a new Basin 67 stormwater model using the Innovyze XSPWMM software. The new 
Basin 67 XPSWMM model will be used to evaluate the current stormwater drainage 
deficiencies for the 10-year and 100-year, 24-hour design storms, and quantify the 
impacts of a pump station and detention basin. The process involves GIS analysis, data 
processing, and creating an XPSWMM model.

On-Call Drainage Engineering Services, City of Rancho Cordova, CA: Project 
Engineer. Conducts reviews of improvement plans and drainage studies prepared 
by developers, including grading and erosion and sedimentation control plans, for 
compliance with project conditions of approval and agency standards. The review 
process requires writing a comment memorandum and coordination with City and 
support staff.

On-Call Drainage Engineering Services, Sacramento County Water Agency, 
CA: Project Engineer. Conducts reviews of improvement plans and drainage 
studies prepared by developers by evaluating the low impact development (LID), 
hydromodification, and water quality for compliance with project conditions of 
approval and agency standards. 

STAFF TITLE: Engineer II

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 2

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS
 � Engineer-in-Training, California 
 � EnvisionTM Sustainability 

Professional

CERTIFICATIONS
 � OSHA Traffic Safety Certification 

EDUCATION
 � MS, Civil and Environmental 

Engineering, California 
Polytechnic University, San Luis 
Obispo

 � BS, Environmental Engineering, 
California Polytechnic University, 
San Luis Obispo

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
 � Surfrider Foundation

333 of 594



Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP | Page 2

Condition Assessment for the City of Oceanside’s facilities, 
including Robert A. Weese Filtration Plant, Mission Basin 
Groundwater Purification Facility, and City wells. Emma 
assessed details of several types of water treatment plant 
equipment.

Reservoir Study and Condition Assessment, City of Lake 
Oswego, OR: Project Engineer. Preparing a recommendation 
to the City of Lake Oswego for how to improve ten of their 
aging reservoirs, as well as assess possible siting for a 
proposed reservoir. Emma worked with the team to provide 
insight from geotechnical, seismic, and condition assessments 
to provide final recommendation on the future of the ten 
tanks and write a multiple hundred-page written report. 
Emma also created cost estimates, prepared GIS figures, 
created Capital Improvement Plan proposal sheets, and 
created several tables summarizing key information for the 
report and appendices. 

Woodland Spring Lake Recycled Water Pipeline, City of 
Woodland, CA: Project Engineer. Coordinated with utilities 
and created figures using GIS to begin utility mapping. The 
City of Woodland contracted with West Yost to design the 
Spring Lake Recycled Water Pipeline, which includes installing 
9,500 feet of 8-inch diameter PVC recycled water pipeline to 
extend recycled water to the Spring Lake specific plan area.

West Sacramento Storm Drain Master Plan, City of West 
Sacramento, CA: Project Engineer. Creating a storm drain 
master plan figure using GIS. This project will provide updates 
to the City’s  Storm Drain/Stormwater Master Plan.

Arcadia Wash Water Conservation Diversion Feasibility 
Study, City of Monrovia, Arcadia, CA: Civil Engineer. 
Feasibility study of a diversion to groundwater recharge 
basins and a future treatment wetland for the Safe, Clean 
Water LA program under Measure W to improve local 
and regional water quality. Provided technical writing and 
coordination to create project report. Created maps using 
GIS for analysis and presentation within report regarding 
project area, land use, monitoring locations, and jurisdictions. 
Worked in a team to create AutoCAD Civil3D pipe design 
for gravity and pumping alternative. Evaluated water nexus 
benefits of project, recommended community outreach 
strategies, anticipated associated permitting and legal 
requirements, assessed project impacts on Disadvantaged 
Communities, and researched similar projects to discern 
level of effectiveness. Created a Vector Minimization Plan per 
California Department of Health guidelines.

On-Going Technical Support Services, Russian River 
Watershed Association (RRWA), CA: Project Engineer. 
Project tasks for the annual RRWA Work Plan on behalf of 
10 member agencies including several incorporated cities, 
two counties, and one special district. Emma has assisted 
RRWA agencies anticipate SWRCB permits by researching 
trash capture in California by coordinating with various 
municipalities within the state and documenting through 
a technical memorandum. She has also helped with public 
outreach by writing environmental articles and making posts 
for the association’s website and social media.

SWPPP Development, City of Ventura, CA: Project Engineer. 
Created a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) site 
map figure to meet permit criteria using GIS in a project to 
upgrade the City’s treatment plant.

SWPPP Development, Irvine Ranch Water District, 
CA: Project Engineer. Developed a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and accompanying figures to meet 
permit criteria using GIS. This SWPPP was developed for the 
Woodbridge Recycled Water Pipeline project that was West 
Yost designed.

Peacock Gap Recycled Water Transmission Pipeline 
Project, Marin Municipal Water District, Corte Madera, 
CA: Staff Engineer for the alternatives analysis of three 
separate alignments established by the District linking the 
District’s existing recycled water system and the Peacock 
Gap Golf Club. The analysis was documented in a preliminary 
design report (PDR) which included preliminary design 
plans for approximately 45,000 feet of 12-inch diameter 
fused PVC pipeline. The PDR also documented geotechnical 
considerations, trenchless design parameters for specific 
crossing locations, and environmental compliance efforts 
required during Phase 2. Tasks involved requesting maps from 
utility providers, assisting with utility base map preparation, 
preparing report figures in GIS, reviewing proposed pipeline 
alignments, and assisting with report writing.

Woodbridge Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement, Irvine 
Ranch Water District, Irvine, CA: Staff Engineer. Conducted 
site visits to verify utility placement and identify recycled 
water main valves. This project will replace approximately 
50,000 feet of asbestos cement pipe (ACP) recycled water 
distribution mains with PVC and ductile iron pipeline in 
the village of Woodbridge. This project will also replace 
all existing services, air release and vacuum relief valve 
assemblies originating from the ACP mains being replaced, 
and isolation valves. 

Robert A. Weese Filtration Plant and Mission Basin 
Groundwater Purification Facility Master Plans, City of 
Oceanside, CA: Project Engineer. Communicating with 
manufacturers to assess replacement equipment costs for a 

334 of 594



Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP | Page 3

Continuing Eligibility Inspections, US Army Corps of 
Engineers SPL, Southern California and Arizona: Civil 
Engineer and Inspector. Inspected flood risk reduction 
channels for deficiencies that would minimize the structures’ 
capability to function in a major storm event. Utilized field 
techniques to evaluate and document structures. Created 
and incorporated review comments for resulting reports that 
provided recommendations for structure deficiencies.

Santa Ana River (E01) Levee Certification, Orange County 
Public Works, Orange County, CA: Hydrologic Model 
Analyst. Analyzed HEC-RAS models to provide quantitative 
insight on alterations to the levee. Analyzed impacts of bridge 
pier widening. Assessed model accuracy by comparing HEC-
RAS models. 

Periodic Levee Inspections, US Army Corps of Engineers 
SPL, Southern California: Civil Engineer. Created and 
incorporated review comments for reports detailing 
levee inspections, deficiencies, and recommendations for 
improvement. 

Taylor Yard Bridge Envision Assessment, City of Los 
Angeles Bureau of Engineering, Los Angeles, CA: Envision 
Sustainability Professional. Prepared Envision submittal 
package for City of LA to pursue Envision certification for the 
Taylor Yard Bridge over the Los Angeles River as part of the 
Los Angeles River Revitalization Master Plan. Assessed the 
bridge’s vulnerability, sustainability, and resilience by looking 
at floodplain analyses, water quality impacts, heat island 
effect impacts, habitat and wildlife assessments, community 
impacts, and more. Led coordination meetings for clients and 
created coordination documents. Created graphics using GIS.

Camp Roberts Construction Support Phases 4 & 5, 
California Army National Guard, San Miguel, CA: Civil 
Engineering Intern. Preparation of road improvement plans 
for the client to upgrade vehicle access within army base. 
Prepared design sheets for road improvements including 
creating pipe networks for culvert design using AutoCAD 
Civil3D. 

FDA Parking Lot Modifications, US Army Corps of 
Engineers, Irvine, CA: Civil Engineering Intern. Preparation 
of conceptual-level design plans, quantity calculations, and 
a USACE standards cost estimate to mitigate the parking lot. 
Created drainage and catch basin details to support support 
design. Incorporated comments from internal review as part 
of QA/QC. 

North Hollywood Park Stormwater Capture Project, City 
of Los Angeles Bureau of Engineering, Los Angeles, CA: 
Civil Engineering Intern. Stormwater capture, treatment, and 
infiltration of 2,040 acre feet per year within North Hollywood 
Park funded by the Safe, Clean Water LA Program under 

Measure W to improve water quality, water supply, flood risk, 
and improve community quality of life. Prepared detail sheets 
for design using AutoCAD Civil 3D. 

Albion Riverside Park, City of Los Angeles Bureau of 
Engineering, Los Angeles, CA: Civil Engineering Intern. 
Stormwater capture and reuse and park enhancements 
to improve water quality by decreasing pollutant loads, 
enhancing community space, protecting natural resources, 
reducing flood risk, and improving climate change resilience 
under Los Angeles Prop O. Incorporated construction 
comments from contractors to create finalized design As-
Builts for the project using AutoCAD Civil3D. 

Climate-Smart Capital Investment Plan, World Bank, 
Turkey, CA: Flood Mapping Technical Analyst. Created flood 
maps to help city planners locate climate-smart infrastructure 
locations. Utilized HEC-RAS, ArcGIS Pro, QGIS & GFA plug-in, 
ArcMap, HEC-GeoRAS, HEC-GeoHMS.

Santa Rosa Valley Basin Groundwater Recharge Analysis, 
Cambria Groups, Cambria, CA: Recharge Analyst. 
Determined crop evapotranspiration and irrigation water 
demand for parcels in the Santa Rosa Valley Groundwater 
Basin as part of groundwater recharge hydrologic study. 
Utilized hydrologic software and GIS to determine 
evapotranspiration rates from crop, well, parcel, and soil data. 

Bolsa Chica Lane Widening, Caltrans, Huntington Beach, 
CA: Engineering Intern. Investigated water quality and 
hydrology of watershed to write the Stormwater Data Report 
(SWDR). Recommended Construction Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) to protect against stormwater discharge 
pollutants. 

John Wayne Airport Oil Tank Construction, John Wayne 
Airport, Costa Mesa, CA: Engineering Intern. Conducted site 
visits to monitor under the Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP). Ensured BMP standards were upheld. 

PUBLICATIONS
 � Greve, A., & Whittington, J. (authors); White, R. A., 

Haney, B., Brauer, C., & Erickson, E. (supporting authors). 
(2020). Turkey: Climate-Smart Capital Investment 
Planning - Resilience Analysis, City of Manisa. Prepared 
for the World Bank, Istanbul, Turkey, 14.

 � Greve, A.,& Whittington, J. (authors); White, R. A., 
Haney, B., Brauer, C., & Erickson, E. (supporting authors). 
(2020). Turkey: Climate-Smart Capital Investment 
Planning - Resilience Analysis, City of Aydin. Prepared for 
the World Bank, Istanbul, Turkey, 15.

335 of 594



Josh Steiner, EIT 
Staff Engineer

Josh Steiner specializes in 1D and 2D hydraulic and hydrologic modeling and collection 
systems planning for stormwater and wastewater systems. His experience includes 
utility master planning, development impact evaluations, drainage and improvement 
plan reviews, construction and capital cost estimating, geospatial analyses, and 
hydraulic and hydrologic modeling through a variety of software packages.

EXPERIENCE
2040 Wastewater Master Plan Update, City of Stockton, CA: Staff engineer 
responsible for hydraulic sewer modeling and development of a comprehensive 
wastewater master plan for the City of Stockton. Project focused on a system-wide 
flow monitoring program, inflow and infiltration analysis, development of a fully 
dynamic hydraulic model and all model inputs using InfoSWMM, evaluation of the 
system under existing and future dry weather and wet weather flow events, and 
development of a capital improvement program. The project involved review of land 
use data and Significant Industrial Users that contribute flow to the sewer system. 
The model was developed from GIS, survey data and record drawings. The model was 
calibrated to measured dry weather and wet weather flows and used to evaluate the 
system under dry weather conditions and wet weather storm events for current and 
future flow conditions.

Hydraulic Model Update, Capacity Analysis, and Annexation Study, Ross Valley 
Sanitary District, San Rafael, CA: Staff engineer responsible for recalibration 
of the District’s wastewater hydraulic model in Infoworks ICM. The District’s 
existing hydraulic model was recalibrated with flow monitoring data captured in 
the 2020/2021 wet season. Hydraulic analyses were conducted to evaluate the 
effectiveness of recent collection system improvements, to evaluate the need for 
several remaining potential capital improvement projects, and to identify additional 
capacity deficient areas within the collection system that were heavily influenced 
by groundwater infiltration and rainfall-dependent inflow and infiltration. The 
recalibrated hydraulic model was then used in a wastewater annexation study for 
the San Geronimo Valley. The annexation study involved developing wastewater 
generation factors for potentially annexed parcels, developing average dry weather 
and peak wet weather wastewater flows from the San Geronimo Valley, and 
identifying improvements for the District’s collection system that would be necessary 
to convey the annexed wastewater flows. 

Sewer and Storm Drainage Evaluations, Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District, 
City of Vallejo, CA: Project Manager responsible for performing sanitary sewer and 
storm drain evaluations for future developments in the City of Vallejo. Projects focus 
on using the District’s MIKE URBAN hydraulic and hydrologic models to determine 
pre-development sewer and drainage conditions and potential post-development 
effects to the District’s collection systems, analyzing the District’s hydraulic models 

STAFF TITLE: Engineer II

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 3

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS
 � Engineer-in-Training: 

Environmental, California No. 
168371

CERTIFICATIONS
 � OSHA 10-Hour Safety and Health

EDUCATION
 � BS, Environmental Resources 

and Engineering, Humboldt State 
University, Arcata

 � AS, Natural Sciences, Santa Rosa 
Junior College, Santa Rosa 

336 of 594



Josh Steiner, EIT | Page 2

that would result from sewer rehabilitation projects, 
adjusting the modeled rainfall response in sewersheds 
identified as having high susceptibility to inflow and 
infiltration, quantifying the effects of these reductions on the 
downstream Sears Point Pump Station, and determining the 
cost associated with implementing such sewer rehabilitation 
projects. 

Trash Capture Modeling Services, Vallejo Flood and 
Wastewater District, City of Vallejo, CA: Project manager 
responsible for modeling the effects of proposed trash 
capture devices within the District’s stormwater collection 
system. The project involved using the District’s MIKE URBAN 
stormwater hydraulic models to provide input on the trash 
capture device design, and to identify upstream capacity 
issues, downstream tidal influences, and working with the 
District to help develop a custom trash capture component 
design. 

Elk Grove Creek Detention Basin Study, City of Elk Grove, 
CA: Staff engineer responsible for river modeling of Elk Grove 
Creek to evaluate potential floodplain, detention basin, and 
channel modification projects. Study focused on HEC-RAS 
modeling to optimize detention basin and floodplain size 
and reduce design storm flooding, programming real time 
controls for basin influent and effluent flows, evaluating the 
effects and feasibility of various channel modification efforts, 
analyzing the combined flood reduction potential of several 
detention basin, floodplain, and channel modification projects 
when implemented together, and preparing and presenting 
cost estimates.

24th and 25th Street Linear Storage Modeling, City of 
Sacramento, CA: Staff engineer responsible for InfoWorks 
ICM hydraulic modeling of Sacramento’s combined sewer 
system to evaluate the feasibility of two potential linear 
storage options. The project focused on updating the existing 
model to match current City record drawings and evaluating 
various modeled storage volumes and its effect on flooding 
depths.

Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Services, City of Cotati, 
CA: Staff engineer responsible for analyzing the City’s 
wastewater collection system for opportunities to reduce 
inflow and infiltration in the system. The Project involved 
analyzing flow monitoring data to determine the type of 
inflow and infiltration occurring within the collection system 
with the goal of reducing the yearly volume of wastewater 
discharged to the wastewater treatment facility. Analysis 
revealed that on-going groundwater infiltration during the 
wet weather season is a likely target. Initial recommendations 
was for CCTV inspection in the low-lying areas of the 
collection system, with continuing analysis for further 
recommendations. 

for changes in peak discharge, water surface elevations, 
and available capacity. Where needed, improvements were 
sized and recommended to the District’s collection system to 
accommodate proposed developments.

White Slough Tide Gate Flooding Evaluation, Vallejo Flood 
and Wastewater District, City of Vallejo, CA: Staff engineer 
responsible for evaluating the flooding potential from White 
Slough and Austin Creek for various White Slough tide gate 
operation configurations using the District’s MIKE URBAN 
stormwater hydraulic and hydrologic models. The project 
involved updating the hydraulic model boundary conditions 
with estimated future tidal levels that account for sea level 
rise, performing hydraulic model evaluations with various 
dynamic tide gate operations, and identifying potential 
flooding locations using results from the hydraulic model and 
the District’s topographic data.

Wastewater Master Plan and Hydraulic Model Update 
Review, Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District, City of 
Vallejo, CA: Staff engineer responsible for reviewing the 
District’s updated Wastewater Master Plan and accompanying 
Infoworks ICM wastewater hydraulic model. The Project 
involved reviewing the updated Wastewater Master Plan for 
validity, clarity, and overall consistency with District standards. 
The Project also involved reviewing the accompanying 
Infoworks ICM hydraulic model for modeled scenario 
reliability, modeled infrastructure accuracy, and consistency 
with the District’s geospatial database and MIKE URBAN 
hydraulic model. 

Sears Point Pump Station Alternatives Evaluation, Vallejo 
Flood and Wastewater District, City of Vallejo, CA: 
Staff engineer responsible for evaluating two alternative 
approaches to addressing sewer impacts from planned 
development tributary to the Sears Point Pump Station 
and Sears Point Storage Facility using the District’s MIKE 
URBAN wastewater hydraulic model. Using results and data 
obtained from previously completed sewer evaluations and 
the District’s updated Master Plan, the hydraulic model 
was revised to reflect buildout flows tributary to the Sears 
Point Pump Station. Capacity results and cost analyses were 
prepared for each pump station alternative and commercial 
and residential impact fees were calculated for future 
tributary developments.

Sears Point Pump Station Sewer Rehabilitation Study, 
Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District, City of Vallejo, CA: 
Staff engineer responsible for evaluating the feasibility of 
implementing sewer rehabilitation projects upstream of the 
Sears Point Pump Station as a means of mitigating capacity 
issues at the pump station. The analysis involved using the 
District’s Infoworks ICM wastewater hydraulic model to 
determine the potential reduction in inflow and infiltration 

337 of 594



Josh Steiner, EIT | Page 3

Pond 3 Solids Removal and Sludge Sampling, City of 
Cloverdale, CA: Staff engineer responsible for on-site 
observations and record keeping of the contractor’s sludge 
dewatering process prior to off-hauling. The Project involved 
documentation of site inspections, collecting samples of 
dewatered sludge, transporting samples for testing to a 
third-party analytical laboratory, and verifying lab results with 
results determined by the contractor. 

On-Call Drainage Engineering Services, City of Rancho 
Cordova, CA: Staff engineer responsible for performing 
peer reviews of drainage studies and drainage infrastructure 
designs and improvement plans prepared by developers 
including low impact development water quality features, 
detention facilities, and erosion and sedimentation control 
plans for compliance with project conditions of approval 
and agency standards. The work includes preparation of 
comment memorandums, PDF redline comments, and 
approval memorandums when warranted in addition to close 
coordination with City staff.

Technical Support Services, Russian River Watershed 
Association, CA: Staff engineer for a regional watershed 
restoration coalition. Josh maintained the Association’s 
interactive web map by creating new map displays and 
updating data content; developed and maintained work plans 
and budgeting spreadsheets, created contaminant monitoring 
figures to assist member agencies with stormwater 
permitting; and collaborated with regional partners to 
promote and support local cleanup events and restoration 
efforts.

338 of 594



 
 

 KATHERINE HAYDEN PRESIDENT 
 

 

 

 

 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, 
ABILITIES 
♦ Asset management 
♦ Condition assessment of 

gravity and pressurized 
pipeline systems 
including NASSCO 
PACP/MACP 

♦ InfoAsset 
Manager/Mobile 
(formerly InfoNet 
Desktop/ Mobile) SME 

♦ ArcGIS office and mobile 
applications and 
integration with other 
asset management 
systems 

♦ Data management and 
visualization 

♦ PipeTech, WinCAN, 
Granite XP CCTV 
databases 

♦ Capital Improvement 
Plans and Programs 

♦ Pipeline and pump 
station rehabilitation 

♦ Project management 

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS 
University of California, 
Berkeley  
1995 – B.S. Engineering 
 

NASSCO (prior certifications)  
PACP/MACP v.7.0 
ITCP CIPP 

CONTACT 
(415) 902-4083 

sklsolutions.net 
khayden@sklsolutions.net 

PROFILE 

Katherine Hayden is a Professional Engineer in water, wastewater, and stormwater 
infrastructure with more than 20 years of experience in infrastructure asset 
management, planning, and capital improvements programs and projects. Her 
expertise includes planning, managing, and performing condition assessment, asset 
management, infiltration and inflow studies, master plans, and capital improvements. 
She is a subject matter expert (SME) in the InfoAsset asset management system (AMS), 
having implemented and managed it for Ross Valley Sanitary District (RVSD) and used 
it for condition assessment projects as a consultant for the County of Maui West Maui 
storm drains, East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) sewer interceptors, and City 
and County of Honolulu large diameter sewers. 

RELEVANT PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

STORMWATER AND WASTEWATER PROJECTS AND PROGRAM SUPPORT (SKL) 
 Sanitary Sewer Inflow and Infiltration Assessment, Town of Yountville, 2023-

ongoing 
 Storm Drain Master Plan, Town of Corte Madera, 2022-ongoing 
 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) Update, City of Pinole, 2021-2022 
 On-Call Engineering, Operations, Construction Management, and Technical Support 

Consulting Services, Town of Corte Madera, 2021-ongoing 
 On-Call Consulting Services for Wastewater/Stormwater Infrastructure, City of 

Pinole, 2023-ongoing 

WASTEWATER AND STORMWATER PROJECTS AND PROGRAM SUPPORT (RVSD, BC) 
 West Maui Storm Drain Condition Assessment, County of Maui (2019-2020, BC) 
 Capital Improvement Program, RVSD (2012-2019) 
 Infrastructure Asset Management Plan/Program (IAMP), RVSD (2013 Plan, 2013-

2019 Implementation, 2019+ Update). Plan and program that changed the 
management of infrastructure assets to be data-driven and based on asset 
management principles.  

 Large Diameter Condition Assessment and Large Diameter Gravity Sewer 
Rehabilitation Projects I and II, RVSD (2013-2019). Condition assessment of 8 miles 
of large diameter gravity sewers and implementation of a rehabilitation plan over 7 
years, RVSD (2015-2019) 

 InfoNet AMS Development, Implementation, and Improvements, RVSD (2013-2019) 
 Flow Monitoring Study and SmartCover implementation, Condition Assessment 

Program and Reinspection Plan development and I&I reduction planning, RVSD 
(2013-2019) 

 PS 12 Bon Air and PS 13 Greenbrae Pump Station Rehabilitation Projects and PS 15 
Kentfield Rehabilitation Project, RVSD (2015-2019) Project Manager/District 
Engineer/Department Manager for pump station rehabilitations of three major pump 
stations 

 Wastewater Interceptor Inspection, East Bay Municipal Utility District, (2011, BC) 
339 of 594



 
Katherine, SKL Solutions Inc., Resume Page 2 

 
 Large Diameter Sewer Structural Condition Assessment Project, City and County of 

Honolulu (2009-2010, BC). Assessment and recommendations for 200 miles of large 
diameter sewers through approximately 4,200 remote manhole and pipeline 
inspections using pole zoom cameras, CCTV, confined space entry, and laser 
scanning.  

 Downtown Area Sewer Evaluation, City of Concord, Trunk Sewer Condition 
Assessment, West Valley Sanitation District, SMD 3 Regional Sewer Project Design 
for County of Placer 

 Wastewater Collection System Master Plans, Burlingame Hills Sewer Maintenance 
District (County of San Mateo), City of Los Altos, and South Tahoe Public Utility 
District (2009-2011, BC). Recommended collection system capital improvement 
programs following master planning hydraulic, structural, and O&M condition 
assessment and evaluation. 

 Waipio WWPS Upgrade, Wahiawa WWPS Facility Assessments, City & County of 
Honolulu and Wet Weather Capacity Studies, Cities of Santa Cruz and San Mateo 
(2007-2009, BC) 

 Sewer Rehabilitation and Infiltration & Inflow Minimization Study, City & County of 
Honolulu (1995-1999, BC). Developed and prioritized CIP projects for a $2 billion 
capital improvement plan to address structural and hydraulic deficiencies identified 
during the five-year study. 

PRIOR WORK EXPERIENCE 

Ross Valley Sanitary District (RVSD). 2011–2019. Infrastructure Asset Manager, 
Engineer. 2010–2021. Key asset management team member and SME, and manager 
of the IAMP program beginning in 2016. Managed the data interface between the 
InfoNet database (asset inventory and mapping as well as work orders) and risk model. 
Developed and managed CIP plans, defined project scopes, schedules, and budgets, 
performed annual reviews/updates of project definitions, cost, and prioritization, 
coordinated with stakeholders. Integrated IAMP approaches to achieve a dynamic and 
flexible CIP, track and report progress, including regulatory (Cease and Desist Order) 
compliance. Prioritized and managed a dynamic, balanced and cost-effective CIP over 
a 6-8 year planning horizon, within budget and project delivery constraints. 
Brown and Caldwell (BC). 1995-2000, 2007-2011, 2019-2020. Performed analyses 
and prepared plans and studies, developed and prioritized CIP projects during 
structural, hydraulic, and operations and maintenance (O&M) condition assessment 
projects and programs, other planning studies, infiltration and inflow (I&I) studies, and 
master plans, and project designs. 

 

340 of 594



 

 

 STEPHEN MIKSIS VICE PRESIDENT 
 

 

 

 

 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, 
ABILITIES 
♦ InfoAsset Manager and 

Mobile 
♦ Asset mapping and 

locating, inventory 
♦ Field investigations and 

visual inspections 
♦ Condition assessment 

planning and project 
management  

♦ NASSCO PACP/MACP 
♦ CCTV data management 

and QA/QC 
♦ Selection and optimization 

of cleaning, inspection, 
monitoring, and repair 
equipment and methods 

♦ Gravity pipeline and pump 
station O&M, CIP, and 
asset management 
program development and 
implementation 

♦ Emergency management 
services 

♦ Public outreach 
♦ Workforce development 

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS 
University of Southern 
California  
2002 - Economics 
 

CWEA  
Collections Grade IV 

AFFILIATIONS 
CWEA 

CONTACT 
(707) 241-5858 

sklsolutions.net 
smiksis@sklsolutions.net 

PROFILE 

Stephen Miksis has more than 20 years of experience as a contractor and special 
district O&M manager in condition assessment, asset management, rehabilitation, and 
operation of gravity and pressurized pipeline systems and pump stations. He 
implemented InfoAsset Manager and Mobile (formerly InfoNet Desktop and Mobile) at 
Ross Valley Sanitary District and used it for asset mapping and inventory, risk 
assessment, condition assessment and capital improvements management, work order 
tracking, and making other data-driven decisions.  He is proficient in cleaning and 
visual inspection of storm drain and sanitary sewers and selecting and performing 
repair and rehabilitation with various methods such as cured-in-place pipe (CIPP), pipe 
bursting, localized liners, thermoplastic fold and form, cementitious spin coating, and 
gel grout injection. 

RELEVANT PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

STORMWATER AND WASTEWATER PROJECTS AND PROGRAM SUPPORT (AT SKL) 
 Sanitary Sewer Inflow and Infiltration Assessment, Town of Yountville, 2023-

ongoing 
 Storm Drain Master Plan, Town of Corte Madera, 2022-ongoing 
 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) Update, City of Pinole, 2021-2022 
 On-Call Engineering, Operations, Construction Management, and Technical Support 

Consulting Services, Town of Corte Madera, 2021-ongoing 
 On-Call Consulting Services for Wastewater/Stormwater Infrastructure, City of 

Pinole, 2023-ongoing 

CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND REHABILITATION (AT MSI) 
 Calpine Geysers Storm Drains Condition Assessment and Rehabilitation, Town of 

Geyserville 
 Caltrans HWY 780/80 Storm Drains Condition Assessment and Rehabilitation, City 

of Vallejo 
 Manhole Rehabilitation for Lake County Special District, Town of Clear Lake 
 Ukiah Airport Storm Drain Condition Assessment and Rehabilitation, City of Ukiah  
 Condition Assessment for Storm Drains, Town of Windsor 
 Condition Assessment for Storm Drains, Presidio Trust, San Francisco 
 Condition Assessment for Storm Drains, County of Marin 
 Condition Assessment for Storm Drains, Sonoma County 

ASSET MANAGEMENT AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT (AT RVSD) 
 Condition Assessment Program - Development and implementation of program for 

in-house CCTV, manhole, and pump station inspection and assessment (2014-2021) 
 InfoNet/InfoAsset Asset Management System (AMS) - Selection and implementation 

of system for asset mapping, inventory, and work order management (2011-2013) 

341 of 594



 
Stephen Miksis, SKL Solutions, Resume Page 2 

 
 InfoAsset Manager/Mobile (formerly InfoNet Desktop/Mobile) AMS - Management 

and improvements including expanding asset classes to pump stations, integrating a 
multi-layer work order system, and optimizing mobile system integrations (2013-
2021) 

 Infrastructure Asset Management Program - Supported implementation of the plan 
and performed dynamic updates based on new data and solutions (2013-2021) 

 Infrastructure Asset Management Plan and Update - Supported development of the 
Plan (2012-2013) and the Update which included and InfoMaster risk model (2019-
2021)  

 Large Diameter Condition Assessment Project - Assessment of 8 miles of 18- to 42-
inch diameter gravity sewers (2015) 

 O&M Risk Assessment - Development, implementation, and management of data-
driven decision-making processes for collection system O&M activities to improve 
efficiencies and reduce risks of failure (2016-2021) 

 Advanced Technologies – Researched, selected, implemented, and integrated 
advanced technologies such as SmartCover Systems monitors for flow data analysis, 
I&I reduction and SSO prevention (59 Units) and MatterPort 3D scanning of pump 
and lift stations for virtual walk throughs and condition assessment of the stations 
(2016-2021) 

PUMP STATION ASSESSMENT AND REHABILITATION (AT RVSD) 
 Wastewater Pump Station 12 and 13 Rehabilitation Project (2017-2018) 
 Wastewater Pump Station 15 Rehabilitation Project (2018-2020) 

PRIOR WORK EXPERIENCE 

Ross Valley Sanitary District (RVSD). 2010–2021. Operations and Maintenance 
Manager, Superintendent. Developed, managed, and optimized O&M programs for 
collection system pipelines and pump stations. Supported development and 
implementation of condition assessment program, infrastructure asset management 
plan/program, and data management systems including InfoNet/InfoAsset asset 
management system and multi-platform integration with CCTV software and ArcGIS 
office and field applications. Managed the Maintenance, Repair, Condition 
Assessment, and Pump Crews.  
Miksis Services Incorporated (MSI). 2002–2010. Program Manager. Key team 
member delivering 400+ stormwater and sanitary sewer system projects of varying 
scope and size for various state and local agencies as well private organizations. 
Project work included visual inspection (including CCTV), condition assessment, 
rehabilitation planning, and rehabilitation of linear assets such as pipes and culverts 
and vertical assets such as manholes, vaults, and pump stations.  

 

342 of 594



WE SUPPORT OUR COMMUNITIES 

WE ARE WATER FOCUSED  

WE TAKE PRIDE IN WHAT WE DO 

WE STRIVE TO BECOME OUR BEST 

WE DO WHAT’S RIGHT 

WE BELIEVE IN QUALITY 

WE LISTEN 

WE SOLVE CHALLENGING PROBLEMS 

WE SEE THE BIGGER PICTURE 

WE TAKE OWNERSHIP 

WE COLLABORATE 

WE HAVE FUN 

WE ARE WEST YOST

343 of 594



 
 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  9G 

 
DATE  AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: FIONA EPPS, ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE A SECOND CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO THE 

AGREEMENT WITH TRIPEPI SMITH FOR ADDITIONAL WORK ON 
THE CITY SEAL, LOGO AND BRANDING GUIDELINES TO INCREASE 
THE NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT TO $32,000 AND APPROPRIATE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $11,750 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) that: 
 

1. Approves a second contract amendment to the Consultant Services 
Agreement with Tripepi Smith to perform additional work on the new City 
seal, logo and branding guidelines in a total amount of not to exceed 
$32,000. 

 
2. Appropriate $11,750 from the General Fund for this effort. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City Council approved the formation of the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee at a 
City Council meeting on March 21, 2023 to further explore options for a new City seal. 
The City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee has been actively working toward the creation of a 
new proposed seal and logo.  
 
The City has a contract with Tripepi Smith (TS) to provide branding services (see 
Attachment B for the original contract, signed March 15, 2022). Staff asked Tripepi 
Smith to pause the branding efforts until the City was able to meet with a member 
representative from the Confederated Nations of Lisjan to discuss the appropriateness 
of the current City seal. For that reason, the contract was amended on January 13, 
2023 to extend the contract term through April 15, 2023 (see Attachment C for the 
contract amendment).  
 
TS delivered the first round of concept logos to City Council during the March 21, 2023 
Council meeting but were unable to complete all work within the contract term based on 
Council’s direction to form the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee and revise the logo 
concepts. 

344 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023  2 

 
The City has spent a total of $7,000 on branding services provided through the contract. 
The total amount City Council approved in the agreement for branding services, which 
was a part of the communication and engagement plan, was $20,250.  
 
The Subcommittee requested a new proposal from TS with a revised scope of work 
(see Attachment D for the new proposal) that would deliver designs for a City seal in 
addition to a logo, and a set of branding guidelines. The new proposal amount is 
$20,375, not to exceed $25,000 in total project fees. 
 
The Subcommittee decided to conduct community outreach efforts internally by the City 
Manager Department using existing tools and resources with recommendations on best 
practices from TS. To date, the City has received 100 responses from the public about 
how they would envision a new City seal and logo. This public input will be provided to 
TS to be incorporated into the seal and logo revisions. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Subcommittee recommends that the City hire TS to deliver expanded branding 
services which would include the artistic design and development of a new City seal and 
logo, and to complete the branding guidelines. 
 
City staff is seeking Council’s approval of a second amendment to the agreement with 
TS. Under the amendment, TS will design and develop a new City seal, logo, and 
branding guidelines for the City with guidance from the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee. 
 
The new proposal amount is for $25,000, including $20,375 for the delivery of the 
branding services plus $4,625 for additional ad hoc services if needed. The City does 
not anticipate ad hoc expenses being incurred. 
 
The City has already spent a total of $7,000 on branding services to date. The total 
amount approved in the agreement for branding services on March 15, 2022 was 
$20,250, which leaves $13,250 of previously approved funds available to use for future 
branding services. The City does not have budget allocated for seal and logo redesign 
services which equate to the new TS proposal total of $25,000 in the Fiscal Year 23/24 
budget. 
 
Because the FY 23/24 budget does not have adequate funds allocated for city seal and 
logo redesign, the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee requests that City Council approve 
an amendment to the FY 23/24 budget to include additional allocation in the amount of 
$11,750 ($25,000 - $13,250) to execute the contract. The new total not to exceed 
amount for the contract, including the proposed amendment, will be $32,000 ($25,000 + 
$7,000). 
 

345 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023  3 

A copy of the proposed amendment between the City and TS is attached (Exhibit 1 in 
the Draft Resolution), which includes the scope of services and cost proposal. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
A resolution approving this contract with Tripepi Smith would result in an additional 
$11,750 be added to the FY 23/24 budget.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A - Draft Resolution  
  Exhibit 1 – Second Contract Amendment 
B - Original Contract with Tripepi Smith, executed March 15, 2022 
C - First Contract Amendment, executed January 30, 2023 
D - New Proposal from Tripepi Smith with Expanded Scope of Work 
 
 

346 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO.  2023- 
 

RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  OF  PINOLE  APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
THE CONTRACT WITH TRIPEPI SMITH FOR THE CITY SEAL, LOGO AND 

EXPANDED BRANDING GUIDELINES  TO INCREASE THE NOT TO EXCEED 
AMOUNT TO $32,000 AND APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL FUNDING IN THE 

AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $11,750 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the formation of the City Seal Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee who has been actively working toward the development and creation of a 
new proposed seal and logo; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has an existing contract with Tripepi Smith in the amount of 
$20,375 to provide branding services but were unable to complete all work within the 
contract term; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee requested a new proposal from 
Tripepi Smith with a revised scope of work that would deliver designs for a city seal in 
addition to a logo, and a set of branding guidelines; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed second amendment will incorporate the revised scope 

of work and increase the amount of the contract total not to exceed $32,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional budget of $11,750 needs to be allocated in order to execute 

the contract amendment; 
 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City approve the second amendment 
with Tripepi Smith to complete the branding guidelines work and seal and logo redesign; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the annual cost of the contract for FY 2023-24 will not exceed the 
amount approved in the budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pinole City Council does 
hereby authorize the City Manager to execute a second amendment to the contract with 
Tripepi Smith, in a form approved by the City Attorney, to provide design and expanded 
branding guideline services for the City’s new seal and logo in an amount of $25,000 
bringing the total amount of the agreement to not to exceed $32,000. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Pinole City Council does hereby 

allocate an additional $11,750  to the FY 23/24 budget for this purpose.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Pinole held on the 15th day of August 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 

347 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced, passed, and 

adopted on this August 15, 2023. 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

348 of 594



  

AMENDMENT No. 2 THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

TRIPEPI SMITH 
 
This Second Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement  (the “Agreement”), is 
made by and entered into between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and Tripepi Smith (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as 
“Parties”)  as of the date executed below. 
 

RECITALS  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Consulting Services 
Agreement dated March 15, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and  
 

WHEREAS, on January 13, 2023 the Parties agreed to extend the term of the 
Agreement to end on April 15, 2023 unless otherwise extended as provided for in 
Section 8.2 of the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, any extension to the term of the Agreement must be made in writing 
and signed by both Parties as provided for in Section 8.2 of the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Scope of Services to include 
expanded branding guidelines services and creation of a new City seal and logo; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to extend the term of Agreement such that the 
Agreement with an expanded Scope of Services would terminate on January 31, 2024. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Term. Section 1.1 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the contract term 
through January 31, 2024. 
 
2. Services. The Scope of Services contained in Exhibit A of the Agreement shall be 
amended to include the services identified in Exhibit A of this Amendment.  
 
3. Compensation. Section 2 of the Agreement is amended to increase the total not to 
exceed amount under the contract by $11,750, to a new total of $32,000. The first 
sentence of Section 2 shall not read as follows:  
 

City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed $32,000 
for all work set forth in Exhibit A and all reimbursable expenses incurred in 
performing the work. 

 

349 of 594



  

4. Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended 
by the Parties to modify the term of the Agreement. With the exception of the foregoing, 
all other terms and conditions in the Agreement, remain in full force and effect. To the 
extent there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Amendment and the terms 
of the Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
5. Effective Date. This Amendment will become effective August 15, 2023. 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray     Ryder Todd Smith 
City Manager      CEO      
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
 
        
____________________________ 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  
5277914.1  

350 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 1 of 21 
 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PINOLE AND TRIPEPI SMITH 

 
THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Pinole (“City”) and 

Tripepi Smith and Associates, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of 
March 15, 2022 (the “Effective Date”) in Pinole, California. 
 
Section 1. SERVICES.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and 
place and in the manner specified therein.  In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms 
of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. 
 

1.1 Term of Services.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
end on December 31, 2022, and Consultant shall complete the work described in Exhibit A 
by that date, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as 
provided for in Section 8.  The time provided to Consultant to complete the services 
required by this Agreement shall not affect the City’s right to terminate the Agreement, as 
provided for in Section 8. 

 
1.2 Standard of Performance.  Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 

Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession.  Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a professional manner and shall conform to the standards of 
quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 

 
1.3 Assignment of Personnel.  Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 

services pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, 
Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, 
reassign such person or persons. 

 
1.4 Time.  Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to satisfy Consultant’s obligations hereunder. 

 
Section 2. COMPENSATION.  City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed 
$45,000, for all work set forth in Exhibit A and all reimbursable expenses incurred in performing the work.  
In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and Consultant’s proposal regarding the amount of 
compensation, the Agreement shall prevail.  City shall pay Consultant for services rendered pursuant to 
tasks for “Create Communication and Engagement Plan” and “Branding” on a fixed price basis, as 
described in Exhibit B. The City shall pay Consultant for services on other tasks on a time and materials, 
not-to-exceed basis, as described in Exhibit B. Consultant shall perform the services at the time and in the 
manner set forth herein.  The payments specified below shall be the only payments from City to Consultant 
for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in the manner 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

351 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 2 of 21 
 

specified herein.  Except as specifically authorized by City, Consultant shall not bill City for duplicate 
services performed by more than one person. 
 
Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant.  Consequently, the parties 
further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions 
and/or annuities to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible.  City 
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement, 
and the applicable sections of Exhibit D. 
 

2.1 Invoices.  Consultant shall submit invoices, pursuant to the denoted payment schedule in 
Exhibit B for all work that is being performed on a fixed cost basis. For any ad hoc work or 
time and material work requested by the City, Tripepi Smith will invoice for that work on the 
last day of each month for work performed during that month. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

 
▪ Serial identifications of progress bills, i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice, 

etc.; 
▪ A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 

billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and 
the percentage of completion;  

▪ For invoices related to ad hoc or time and materials work, the total number of 
hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, 
agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder, as well as 
a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by Consultant and any 
individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant reaches or exceeds 
800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time necessary to complete the 
work described in Exhibit A;  

 
2.2 Monthly Payment.  City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received during 

the month, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs 
incurred.  City shall have 30 days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the 
requirements above to pay Consultant. 

 
2.3 Final Payment.  City shall pay the last 10% of the total sum due pursuant to this 

Agreement within sixty (60) days after completion of the services and submittal to City of a 
final invoice, if all services required have been satisfactorily performed. 

 
2.4 Total Payment.  City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 

this Agreement.  City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 
incurred by Consultant in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement.  City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

352 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 3 of 21 
 

 In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. 

 
2.5 Hourly Fees.  Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not exceed 

the amounts shown on the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
2.6 Reimbursable Expenses.  Reimbursable expenses shall not exceed one thousand dollars 

($1,000).  Reimbursable expenses are included in the total amount of compensation 
provided under this Agreement that shall not be exceeded. 

 
2.7 Payment of Taxes.  Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 

incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes. 
 
2.8 Payment Upon Termination.  In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 

Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination.  Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. 

 
2.9 Authorization to Perform Services.  The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 

services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

 
Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT.  Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement.  City shall make available to Consultant only the facilities and equipment listed 
in Exhibit C, and only under the terms and conditions set forth therein. 
 
Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  Before beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, unless otherwise specified below, shall procure the types and 
amounts of insurance listed below against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant and its agents, 
representatives, employees, and subcontractors.  Consistent with the following provisions, Consultant shall 
provide proof satisfactory to City of such insurance that meets the requirements of this section and under 
forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the City.  Consultant shall maintain the insurance policies 
required by this section throughout the term of this Agreement.  The cost of such insurance shall be 
included in the Consultant's bid.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any 
subcontract until Consultant has obtained all insurance required herein for the subcontractor(s) and 
provided evidence thereof to City.  Verification of the required insurance shall be submitted and made part 
of this Agreement prior to execution. 
 

4.1 Workers’ Compensation.  Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

353 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 4 of 21 
 

and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant.  The Statutory Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) per accident.  In the alternative, 
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet those requirements, but only if 
the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Determination of whether a self-insurance program meets the standards of the 
Labor Code shall be solely in the discretion of the City. The insurer, if insurance is 
provided, or the Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all rights 
of subrogation against the City and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for loss 
arising from work performed under this Agreement. 

 
4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.   
 

4.2.1 General requirements.  Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
commercial general and automobile liability insurance, if Consultant owns any 
automobiles, for the term of this Agreement in an amount not less than ONE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, combined single limit 
coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement. If a 
Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability form or other 
form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general 
aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such 
coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising 
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage 
to property resulting from activities contemplated under this Agreement, including 
the use of owned and non-owned automobiles. 

 
4.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage.  Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form 
CG 0001 (ed. 11/88) or GL 0002 (ed.1/73) covering comprehensive General 
Liability and Insurance Services Office form number GL 0404 covering Broad 
Form Comprehensive General Liability.  Automobile coverage shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) 
Code 1, if the Consultant owns any vehicles.  No endorsement shall be attached 
limiting the coverage. 

 
4.2.3 Additional requirements.  Each of the following shall be included in the 

insurance coverage or added as a certified endorsement to the policy: 
 

a. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not 
on a claims-made basis. 

 
b. Any failure of Consultant to comply with reporting provisions of the policy 

shall not affect coverage provided to City and its officers, employees, 
agents, and volunteers. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

354 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 5 of 21 
 

 
4.3 Professional Liability Insurance.   
 

4.3.1 General requirements.  Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for 
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) covering the licensed 
professionals’ errors and omissions.  Any deductible or self-insured retention shall 
not exceed $150,000 per claim. 

 
4.3.2 Claims-made limitations.  The following provisions shall apply if the professional 

liability coverage is written on a claims-made form: 
 

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement. 

 
b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be 

provided for at least five years after completion of the Agreement or the 
work, so long as commercially available at reasonable rates. 

 
c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 

claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.  
The City shall have the right to exercise, at the Consultant’s sole cost and 
expense, any extended reporting provisions of the policy, if the Consultant 
cancels or does not renew the coverage. 

 
d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 

prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. 
 
4.4 All Policies Requirements. 
 

4.4.1 Acceptability of insurers.  All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A:VII. 

 
4.4.2 Verification of coverage.  Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 

Consultant shall furnish City with complete certified copies of all policies, including 
complete certified copies of all endorsements.  All copies of policies and certified 
endorsements shall show the signature of a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.   

 
4.4.3 Notice of reduction in or cancellation of coverage.  A certified endorsement 

shall be attached to all insurance obtained pursuant to this Agreement stating that 
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, or reduced in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

355 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 6 of 21 
 

coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.  In the event that any 
coverage required by this section is reduced, limited, cancelled, or materially 
affected in any other manner, Consultant shall provide written notice to City at 
Consultant’s earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than ten (10) 
working days after Consultant is notified of the change in coverage. 

 
4.4.4 Additional insured; primary insurance.  A certified endorsement at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office form number CG 20 10 (11/85 ed.) shall be 
attached to all policies stating that the City and its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to each of the 
following: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Consultant, 
including the insured’s general supervision of Consultant; products and completed 
operations of Consultant, as applicable; premises owned, occupied, or used by 
Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, or used by the Consultant in the 
course of providing services pursuant to this Agreement.  The coverage shall 
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City or its 
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
 A certified endorsement shall be attached to all policies stating that coverage is 

primary insurance with respect to the City and its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers, and that no insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City shall be 
called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage. 

 
4.4.5 Deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Consultant shall disclose to and 

obtain the approval of City for the self-insured retentions and deductibles before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.   

 
During the period covered by this Agreement, only upon the prior express written 
authorization of Contract Administrator, Consultant may increase such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers.  The Contract Administrator may condition approval of an increase in 
deductible or self-insured retention levels with a requirement that Consultant 
procure a bond, guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of 
them. 
 

4.4.6 Subcontractors.  Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 
policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. 

 
4.4.7 Variation.  The City may approve a variation in the foregoing insurance 

requirements, upon a determination that the coverage, scope, limits, and forms of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

356 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 7 of 21 
 

such insurance are either not commercially available, or that the City’s interests 
are otherwise fully protected. 

 
4.5 Remedies.  In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to provide 

or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time 
herein required, City may, at its sole option exercise any of the following remedies, which 
are alternatives to other remedies City may have and are not the exclusive remedy for 
Consultant’s breach: 

 
▪ Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such 

insurance from any sums due under the Agreement; 
 

▪ Order Consultant to stop work under this Agreement or withhold any payment that 
becomes due to Consultant hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, 
until Consultant demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 

 
▪ Terminate this Agreement. 
 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.  Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all losses, liability, claims, 
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or 
damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent 
caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of Consultant or its 
employees, subcontractors, or agents, by acts for which they could be held strictly liable, or by the quality 
or character of their work.  The foregoing obligation of Consultant shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of 
life, damage to property, or violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
City or its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers and (2) the actions of Consultant or its employees, 
subcontractor, or agents have contributed in no part to the injury, loss of life, damage to property, or 
violation of law.  It is understood that the duty of Consultant to indemnify and hold harmless includes the 
duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  Acceptance by City of insurance 
certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability 
under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.  This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall 
apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been 
determined to apply.  By execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 
 
In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services 
under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer contributions 
for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of 
City. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

357 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 8 of 21 
 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 
 

6.1 Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City.  City shall have the 
right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; 
however, otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

 
6.2 Consultant No Agent.  Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 

authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent.  Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. 

 
Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 
 

7.1 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 
7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Consultant and any subcontractors shall comply with 

all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder including but not limited to 
the California Labor Code and the prevailing wage requirements set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
7.3 Other Governmental Regulations.  To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 

fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, Consultant and any subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of 
such fiscal assistance program. 

 
7.4 Licenses and Permits.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and 

its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, 
and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their respective 
professions.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and its 
employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect 
at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are 
legally required to practice their respective professions.  In addition to the foregoing, 
Consultant and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 
Agreement valid Business Licenses from City. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

358 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 9 of 21 
 

7.5 Pinole Business License. Consultant shall obtain a City of Pinole business license 
according to the terms of Title 5 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code and deliver to City 
proof of such business license prior to beginning work under this Agreement.  Work under 
this Agreement cannot begin until the City receives proof that Consultant has obtained a 
City of Pinole business license. 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.  Consultant shall not discriminate, on the 
basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant 
in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in 
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required 
of Consultant thereby.   

 
Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement. 

 
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 
 

8.1 Termination.  City may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days and without 
cause upon written notification to Consultant pursuant to this section and the applicable 
sections of Exhibit D.   

 
In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services 
performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may condition payment of 
such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City any or all documents, photographs, 
computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to Consultant or 
prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection with this Agreement. 
 

8.2 Extension.  City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1.  Any such extension shall be 
specified in writing by the City.  Consultant understands and agrees that if City issues such 
an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide Consultant with compensation 
beyond the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement.  Similarly, unless authorized 
by the City, City shall have no obligation to reimburse Consultant for any otherwise 
reimbursable expenses incurred during the extension period. 

 
8.3 Consultant’s Identity and Personnel. The person identified on page one as the 

CONSULTANT’s Key Personnel will be the key person for the performance of services 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s additional key personnel who will work on the 
PROJECT are identified in Exhibit B.  Any addition or deletion of a firm (whether working 
as a joint venture partner or subconsultant), or any change in key personnel may be made 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

359 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 10 of 21 
 

only upon prior written approval by CITY.  CONSULTANT shall notify CITY of any 
proposed change of ownership or fundamental structure in CONSULTANT’s firm. Within 
thirty (30) calendar days of such notice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT whether CITY will 
approve such changed firm or personnel to continue providing services under this 
AGREEMENT or whether CITY will terminate this AGREEMENT.  Nothing in this provision 
shall be construed to limit CITY’s right to terminate this AGREEMENT for cause or without 
cause as set forth in Article I, Section C of this AGREEMENT.  Subcontracts between the 
CONSULTANT and any subconsultants will be subject to review and approval of CITY’s 
representative.  

 
If CONSULTANT reassigns or reduces the commitment of any such key personnel, 
CONSULTANT shall provide a suitable replacement, subject to the approval of CITY, and 
CONSULTANT shall provide a reasonable number of unbilled hours of work for such 
replacement personnel to the extent required to bring the personnel up to speed. 

 

8.4 Amendments.  The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties and consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
8.5 Assignment and Subcontracting.  City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 

Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of Consultant’s unique professional competence, experience, and 
specialized professional knowledge.  Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for 
entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation and competence of 
Consultant.  Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the 
prior written approval of the City.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors noted 
in the proposal, without prior written approval of the City.  See the applicable sections of 
Exhibit D for additional requirements. 

 
8.6 Survival.  All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 

provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

 
8.7 Options upon Breach by Consultant.  If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 

of this Agreement, City’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

8.7.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 
 
8.7.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 

other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; 
 
8.7.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the work described in Exhibit A not 

finished by Consultant; or 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

360 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 11 of 21 
 

8.7.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the cost to complete the work 
described in Exhibit A that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
City would have paid Consultant pursuant to Section 2 if Consultant had 
completed the work.  

 
Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 
 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance.  All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City.  Consultant hereby agrees to deliver 
those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement.  It is understood and 
agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use.  City and Consultant agree that, until 
final approval by City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 
confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both 
parties and pursuant to the applicable sections of Exhibit D. 

 
9.2 Consultant’s Books and Records.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 

of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement 
consistent with the applicable sections of Exhibit D.  

 
9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records.  Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 

Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City pursuant to the applicable sections of Exhibit D.  Under California Government 
Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to the 
examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit of 
the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 

 
Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

10.1 Attorneys’ Fees.  If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled.  The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

361 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 12 of 21 
 

10.2 Venue.  In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 
Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of California. 

 
10.3 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 

Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

 
10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach.  The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 

Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

 
10.5 Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 

and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 
 
10.6 Use of Recycled Products.  Consultant shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports, 

written studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at 
equal or less cost than virgin paper. 

 
10.7 Conflict of Interest.  Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 

the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.   

 
Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 
 
Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) 
months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City.  If Consultant was an 
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months, 
Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement.  Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant.  Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 
may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if 
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 

 
Consultant will comply with all conflict of interest laws and regulations including, without 
limitation, City’s Conflict of Interest Code (on file in the City Clerk’s Office) and the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

362 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 13 of 21 
 

requirements set forth in Exhibit D.  It is incumbent upon the Consultant or Consultant’s 
firm to notify the City pursuant to section 10.10 Notices of any staff changes relating to this 
Agreement. 
 
a. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, all officers, employees 

and/or agents of Consultant(s), unless as indicated in Subsection b, will be 
performing a very limited and closely supervised function, and, therefore, are unlikely 
to have a conflict of interest arise.  No disclosures are required for any officers, 
employees, and/or agents of Consultant, except as indicated in Subsection b. 

 
       
Initialed by City Attorney’s Office 

 
b. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, Consultant(s) will be 

performing a specialized or general service for the City, and there is substantial 
likelihood that Consultant’s work product will be presented, either written or orally, for 
the purpose of influencing a governmental decision.  As a result, the following 
Consultant(s) shall be subject to the Disclosure Category “1-5” of the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code: 

 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 

 
10.8 Solicitation.  Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or 

interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 
 
10.9 Contract Administration.  This Agreement shall be administered by City Manager who 

shall act as the City’s representative.  All correspondence shall be directed to or through 
City Manager or his or her designee. 

 
10.10 Notices.  Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 
 

Ryder Todd Smith 
President 
Tripepi Smith 
PO Box 52152 
Irvine, CA 92619 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

363 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 14 of 21 
 

Any written notice to City shall be sent to: 
 
City Manager 
City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 

 
10.11 Professional Seal.  Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 

technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation.   

 
10.12 Integration; Incorporation.  This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 

represents the entire and integrated agreement between City and Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. 

 
10.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE     CONSULTANT 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    Ryder Todd Smith, President 
 

Consultant’s City of Pinole Business 
License # _____ _________ 

 
 
Attest:      
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

364 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 15 of 21 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The Consultant’s scope of services will include the following and any modifications or additions agreed to 
by the Parties. 
 

1. Create Communication and Engagement Plan (High-Level Recommendations and Tactical Steps) 
 
Create a Communication and Engagement Plan that identifies the tools, mechanisms, and procedures that 
the City should use to effectively communicate information to residents and businesses as well as engage 
residents and businesses in two-way dialog and participation in community and civic affairs. The Plan will 
address the following topics: 
 

• Strategic communications, digital communications and marketing 
• Traditional communications strategy 
• Crisis communications 
• Internal communications recommendations 
• Resident engagement opportunities 
• Maintaining stakeholder engagement and building trusting relationships 

 
The Communication and Engagement Plan shall be developed in consideration of the following key issues 
for the City: 
 

• The City’s location in the Bay Area and diverse, multilingual population 
• The City’s interested and engaged residents and businesses 
• The desire for equitable, inclusive, and representative communication and dialog on City issues 
• The varying preferences of residents and businesses for different communication channels and 

issues of a digital divide 
• The desire to provide multiple opportunities to residents and businesses to engage with City 

officials and staff, including through volunteerism 
• The need for the City to have unified and consistent messages and practices across departments 

while allowing departments to continue their existing specialized successful communication and 
engagement programs 

• The communication and engagement practices that are legally required of a full-service City 
• The significant number of digital communication tools that are now available and their 

appropriateness for use by public agency staff 
• The City’s cable television station, which serves as a communication channel by broadcasting 

public meetings and service announcements and serves as an original content creator 
• The desire to create a brand for the City and to undertake placemaking 
• The Strategic Plan strategies that relate to communication and engagement, including updates of 

the City’s Emergency Operations Plan (EOP); potential restoration of the community emergency 
response team (CERT) program; development of economic development, capital improvement, 
long-term financial, land use, and information technology plans; and development of an 
intergovernmental affairs program 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

365 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 16 of 21 
 

• The desire for residents and businesses to have opportunities to provide input to the development 
of the communication and engagement plan 

 
2. Initial Set Up of Tactical Steps and Practices 

 
Consultant shall assist City with the initial set up of the tactical steps and practices recommended in the 
Communication and Engagement Plan. Such assistance shall be limited to 15 hours of Tripepi Smith 
consulting time. 
 

3. Branding 
 
Consultant will develop 10 identity concepts for consideration by a City-formed committee of staff members. 
Consultant will iterate on three concepts selected by the City-formed committee for two rounds. Finally, the 
committee will select one identity to move forward with. Consultant will concurrently develop color scheme 
options and those options will be integrated into the new logo. Once the logo and color selections are 
complete, Consultant will deliver a basic style guide and provide standard template documents for letter 
head, business cards, memos and a PowerPoint template deck. Consultant will provide the style guide and 
logo lockups in various formats to the City to aid the rollout of the new logo. 
 

4. Miscellaneous other Communication and Engagement Services 
 
These additional services will be provided on a time and materials basis using the rate denoted in Exhibit B. 
 
Consultant will advise the City on a refresh of the architecture, functionality, and appearance of the City 
website. 
 
Consultant will provide miscellaneous other communication and engagement services as agreed to by the 
Parties. 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

366 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 17 of 21 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES FOR TIME AND MATERIALS WORK 
 
 

Title Resource Hourly - Standard 
Principal $300.00 

Director $200.00 

Art Director $200.00 

Senior Business Analyst $160.00 

Business Analyst $115.00 

Junior Business Analyst $95.00 

Senior Videographer/Animator $160.00 

Photographer/Videographer $110.00 

Senior Graphic Designer $145.00 

Graphic Designer $110.00 

Web Developer $160.00 

Drone Operator $160.00 

 
Travel Costs 
 
Travel costs must be pre-authorized and then will be reimbursed by the City for any requested travel. 
Travel costs to be covered are for airfare, lodging and car rental. If Tripepi Smith is requested to be onsite, 
we will invoice for travel time at half rate of the resource’s Standard Hourly Rate. However, if the resource 
is onsite for at least six (6) hours of billable time in a day, we will not invoice for travel time. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

367 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 18 of 21 
 

 
Equipment Costs 
 
Tripepi Smith offers some services that require equipment, such as drone operations and video production.  
 
As such, in those cases, the following rates apply:  

Title Half Day Full Day 

Video Equipment $350 $550 

Drone Equipment N/A $500 

 
Five-hundred-fifty dollars ($550) for a full day of video equipment use (includes full set of video equipment). 
Full day is defined as a shoot lasting four (4) or more hours. 
Three-hundred-fifty dollars ($350) for a half day of video equipment use. Half day is defined as anything 
under four (4) hours of video production. All such expenses will be authorized by the City prior to fee being 
assessed. 
Five-hundred dollars ($500) per day drone fee applies and is not inclusive of the drone operator time 
(Drone Operator rate).  
 
Service Fees  

Title Client Pays Directly Client Reimburses TS 

Print costs, digital advertising, media 
placement, voiceover/captions No Fees 10% 

 
Typically, Tripepi Smith prefers to have service providers bill the client directly to avoid additional 
administrative costs and because we have no economic interest in the service provider selection. If Tripepi 
Smith is asked to pay the bill for the client, we will apply a ten percent (10%) agency fee to the 
reimbursement expense. Typical services include, but are not limited to: 
 
Print Costs: Tripepi Smith is happy to use a printer of the client’s choosing for print production work, or to 
recommend a printer with whom we have experience. 
Digital Advertising: Tripepi Smith is a Google Partner and Constant Contact Solution Provider and has 
Facebook Certified staff. We consider digital platforms to be a cornerstone element of any outreach 
strategy; often this comes with digital advertising fees. 
Media Placement: Tripepi Smith can help liaise on behalf of the City for advertising space within various 
mediums, such as newspapers, magazine or websites. 
Voiceover, Translation and Closed Caption Fees: Tripepi Smith occasionally uses third-party resources to 
record voiceovers for videos, generate closed captions for videos, and for non-English language 
translations. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

368 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 19 of 21 
 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR FIXED FEE WORK 
 
Communications and Engagement Plan Development: 
 
$6000 to kickoff the project 
$5000 after delivering draft plan 
$5500 after acceptance of final draft or within 45 days of draft plan delivery, whichever comes first 
$3000 following presentation to senior staff and/or city council or within 90 days of draft plan delivery 
Total of $19,500 for delivery of the City Communications and Engagement Plan. 
 
If Tripepi Smith is requested to come onsite to make final presentation to staff or the city council, the travel 
fee will be $1,500 
 
Tripepi Smith’s fees for the City Brand Development will be as follows: 
 
$4000 to kickoff the project 
$3000 after delivering ten logo concepts 
$3000 after two iterations on the preferred three concepts 
$4000 after selection of the final logo 
$2250 to kickoff the style guide development 
$4000 upon delivery of the style guide and the denoted templates 
Total of $20,250 for delivery of the City Brand Development process. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

369 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 20 of 21 
 

EXHIBIT C 
CITY-FURNISHED FACILITIES 

 
City shall furnish physical facilities such as desks, filing cabinets, and conference space, as may be 
reasonably necessary for Consultant’s use while consulting with City employees and reviewing records and 
the information in possession of the City.  The location, quantity, and time of furnishing those facilities shall 
be in the sole discretion of City.  In no event shall City be obligated to furnish any facility that may involve 
incurring any direct expense, including but not limited to computer, long-distance telephone or other 
communication charges, vehicles, and reproduction facilities. 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

370 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between March 15, 2022 
City of Pinole and Tripepi Smith  Page 21 of 21 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 

ADDITIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 
None 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B34400D1-2E36-4ECB-A535-C3D8791BE92C

371 of 594



  

AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

TRIPEPI SMITH 
 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement  (the “Amendment”), is made by 
and entered into between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and Tripepi Smith (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as 
“Parties”)  as of the date executed below. 
 

RECITALS  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Consulting Services 
Agreement dated March 15, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is to end on December 31, 2022 unless 
otherwise extended as provided for in Section 1.1 of the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, any extension to the term of the Agreement must be made in writing 
and signed by both Parties as provided for in Section 8.2 of the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to extend the term of Agreement such that the 
Agreement will now terminate on April 15, 2023. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Term. Section 1.1 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the contract term 
through April 15, 2023. 
 
2. Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended 
by the Parties to modify the term of the Agreement. With the exception of the foregoing, 
all other terms and conditions in the Agreement, remain in full force and effect. To the 
extent there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Amendment and the terms 
of the Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
3. Effective Date. This Amendment will become effective January 13, 2022. 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44E3FD21-719E-4D02-8996-6D88343DC519

372 of 594



  

City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray     Ryder Todd Smith 
City Manager      CEO      
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
 
        
____________________________ 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  
5277914.1  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44E3FD21-719E-4D02-8996-6D88343DC519

1/28/20231/30/2023

1/30/2023

373 of 594



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 44E3FD21719E4D0289966D88343DC519 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: Tripepi Contract Amendment-Branding Services_2023-1-13_FINAL.DOC

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 2 Signatures: 3 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Fiona Epps

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

2131 Pear St

Pinole, CA  94564

fepps@ci.pinole.ca.us

IP Address: 207.105.182.162

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             1/27/2023 2:33:38 PM

Holder: Fiona Epps

             fepps@ci.pinole.ca.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: City of Pinole Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Ryder Todd Smith

ryder@tripepismith.com

President

Tripepi Smith and Associates, Inc.

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 216.3.131.238

Sent: 1/27/2023 2:36:39 PM

Viewed: 1/28/2023 7:14:12 PM 

Signed: 1/28/2023 7:14:18 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 1/28/2023 7:14:12 PM
      ID: 01b91d69-de50-4bbf-a754-81bb1570f3c0

Andrew Murray

amurray@ci.pinole.ca.us

City Manager

Andrew Murray

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 192.184.142.27

Sent: 1/28/2023 7:14:20 PM

Viewed: 1/30/2023 8:53:25 AM 

Signed: 1/30/2023 8:53:47 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 1/30/2023 8:53:25 AM
      ID: 56cc2658-69f3-4d95-bf90-952af4a48ca9

Eric Casher

ecasher@meyersnave.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 206.169.145.130

Sent: 1/30/2023 8:53:49 AM

Viewed: 1/30/2023 9:54:59 AM 

Signed: 1/30/2023 9:55:07 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 1/30/2023 9:54:59 AM
      ID: 80f08949-5d88-4428-b40a-e2801e5018d6

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

374 of 594



Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 1/27/2023 2:36:39 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 1/30/2023 9:54:59 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 1/30/2023 9:55:07 AM

Completed Security Checked 1/30/2023 9:55:07 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

375 of 594



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, City of Pinole (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you 

certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing 

to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read the 

information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically 

to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please 

confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and 

signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 5/26/2020 12:30:12 PM
Parties agreed to: Ryder Todd Smith, Andrew Murray, Eric Casher

376 of 594



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact City of Pinole:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 

 

To advise City of Pinole of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the 

body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email address.  We 

do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from City of Pinole  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body 

of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone 

number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with City of Pinole  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

377 of 594



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body of such request you must state your 

email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other information 

from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online 

documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify City of Pinole as described above, you consent to receive 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you by City of Pinole during the course of your relationship with City of 

Pinole. 

378 of 594

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


 

 

Statement of Work 

CITY OF PINOLE 

 
 

Expanded Branding and Community Outreach Services 

 
 
 

 
  

379 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 2 

COVER LETTER 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal to provide expanded branding and community outreach 
services for the City of Pinole. 
 
Tripepi Smith has a strong track record of helping more than 100 public agencies across California advance 
their community outreach and engagement. The City of Pinole has requested additional branding and 
community outreach services to supplement branding work from a prior engagement.   
 
We understand the City’s desire to revise initial logo concepts based on several rounds of community 
feedback as well as develop a city seal for the City of Pinole.  
 
Tripepi Smith’s work with dozens of cities has given us a front row seat and experience dealing with a full 
range of issues and challenges. We use this experience to deliver informed, practices and proven 
communication ideas for our city clients. Further, we combine that expertise with deep local government 
partnerships, as evidenced by our speaking engagements at numerous conferences and our partnership with 
local government leaders likes Institute for Local Government, the League of California Cities and the 
Municipal Management Association of Northern California. Finally, this proposal identifies the talented team 
members that will be responsible for delivering on the project. 
 
Regards, 

 
Ryder Todd Smith  
Co-Founder & President 
 
Ryder@TripepiSmith.com • (626) 536-2173 • Fax: (949) 679-8371 
PO Box 52152, Irvine, CA 92619 
Website: TripepiSmith.com 
Ryder is the contact person throughout the proposal evaluation period. 

 

  

380 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 3 

Fixed Deliverables 

City Logo Completion   
Tripepi Smith offers a team of graphic designers and artists headed up by 
our Creative Director, Kevin Bostwick. Tripepi Smith deploys our creative 
team and analysts to develop logos, brand themes, taglines and brand 
statements for public agencies. The City previously engaged Tripepi 
Smith to assist with a brand development process that was staff-
driven and had limited community involvement. The City would like 
Tripepi Smith to supplement that process with community outreach, 
and revise initial logo concepts based on community feedback.  
 
Starting with the logo concepts presented to the City Council in March 
2023, Tripepi Smith will carry out three additional rounds of revision. Each 
round of revisions will be based on community feedback. Community outreach 
details are outlined below. 
 
The three rounds of revisions will be completed as follows:  

• Concept Round 
o Tripepi Smith recommends that this round is aimed at identifying the logo concept(s) 

preferred by the subcommittee/community and is therefore calling this the “Concept 
Round” of revisions. 

o Tripepi Smith will update existing logo drafts based on City Council meeting feedback, 
subcommittee meeting feedback, and community survey 1 (survey already complete) and 
will deliver updated “Concept Logos.” 

o Tripepi Smith will present up to four concept logos this round. Once Tripepi Smith presents 
the concept logos, scope includes up to three additional updated drafts within this round 
of revisions to land on selections for inclusion in the Focus Survey. 

o Flat-rate cost 
§ Tripepi Smith’s cost for the Concept Round: $3,200 (Art Director - 15-16 hours @ 

$210/hr) 
 

• Focus Round 
o Tripepi Smith recommends that this round is aimed at focusing in on the logo design(s) 

preferred by the subcommittee/community and is therefore calling this the “Focus Round” 
of revisions. 

o Staff will gather community feedback via community survey 2 (“Focus Survey”) and provide 
summarized data to Tripepi Smith. 

o Tripepi Smith recommends collaborating on survey questions to gather most effective 
feedback.  

o Tripepi Smith will apply revisions based on community feedback and deliver updated 
“Focus Logos.” 

o Tripepi Smith will present up to four logo designs this round (and potentially fewer logos if 
the subcommittee opts to focus in on a smaller number). Once Tripepi Smith presents the 

381 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 4 

focus round logos, scope includes up to three additional updated drafts within this round of 
revisions to land on one, possibly two, for inclusion in the Finalization Round. 

o Flat-rate cost 
§ Tripepi Smith’s cost for the Focus Round: $3,200 (Art Director - 15-16 hours @ 

$210/hr) 

 

• Finalization Round 
o Tripepi Smith recommends that this round be aimed at finalizing a logo selection and is 

therefore calling this the “Finalization Round” of revisions. 
o Staff will gather community feedback on second draft via community survey 31 (“Final Logo 

Selection Survey”) and provide summarized data to Tripepi Smith. 
o Tripepi Smith recommends collaborating on survey questions to gather most effective 

feedback. 
o Tripepi Smith will apply revisions based on community feedback and deliver an updated 

proposed “Final Logo.” 
o Tripepi Smith will present preferably one logo design (up to two, if necessary) this round ( 

from which to zero in on the final option. Once Tripepi Smith presents the finalization round 
logo(s), scope includes up to three additional updated drafts within this round of revisions, 
to land on logo(s) to present to Council. 

o Tripepi Smith will present proposed Final Logo at City Council Meeting; City Council will 
review and/or approve the logo.  

o Flat-rate cost 
§ Tripepi Smith’s cost for the Final Round: $3,275 (Combination of Tripepi Smith 

Roles) 
 

 

City Seal Development 
In addition to the new logo, which will be reserved for marketing and general outreach campaigns, Tripepi 
Smith will also develop a new city seal that the City can use for official City communications. The city seal will 
be developed internally, sans community feedback, and will be based on the direction of the City’s Ad Hoc 
City Seal Committee. This proposal assumes that the City’s Ad Hoc City Seal Committee will provide Tripepi 
Smith with their concepts for a city seal. (Should concept development work be requested, Tripepi Smith 
could work to deliver such work on an Ad Hoc basis.) 
 
Tripepi Smith will provide three initial options based upon the Committee’s concepts, and staff and the 
Committee will provide feedback and select one option, Tripepi Smith will revise the selected option based 
on input and provide a second draft for feedback. After the second round of feedback, Tripepi Smith will 
develop a third and final option.  

 

 
1 For surveys 2 and 3, Tripepi Smith recommends including logo option ranking (top favorite, second favorite, third 
favorite etc.) and providing word bubble summary of qualitative logo feedback.   

382 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 5 

o Flat-rate cost 
§ Tripepi Smith’s cost for the city seal design/development: $4,400 (Art Director – 20-

21 hours @ $210/hr) 

 

Style Guide 
Once the logo, seal and color selections are complete, Tripepi Smith will deliver a basic style guide and 
provide standard template documents for letter head, business cards, memos and a PowerPoint template 
deck. Tripepi Smith will provide the style guide and logo lockups in various formats to the City to aid the 
rollout of the new logo. 
 

o Flat-rate cost 
§ Tripepi Smith’s cost for the style guide: $6,300 (Combination of Tripepi Smith roles) 

383 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 6 

Tripepi Smith’s fees/payment schedule for the expanded branding and community outreach work will be as 
follows: 
 
$3,200 upon delivery of Concept Logos 
$3,200 upon delivery of Focus Logos 
$3,275 upon delivery of Final Logos 
$2,200 upon delivery of first draft of city seal options 
$2,200 upon delivery of final draft of city seal 
$2,250 to kick off the style guide development 
$4,050 upon delivery of the style guide and the denoted templates 
 
Total of $20,375.00 for delivery of the branding and community outreach process. 

Total Project Fees 
Project fees shall not exceed $25,000. These total project fees leave $4,625 outside of the above fixed-price 
work to perform Ad Hoc work or travel if needed. 
 
Project will commence in July 2023 and it is anticipated the project will complete by January 31, 2024. 

  

384 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 7 

Time and Materials Work 
Sometimes, the nature of the work we do cannot be included in a retainer and is best handled on a project 
price basis or a time & materials basis if sufficient details are not available to fix price a solution. In these 
cases, Tripepi Smith will use the following information and rates to price this additional work with the City. 

Retainer Discount 
When client monthly retainers exceed six-thousand-five-hundred dollars ($6,750) a month, have access to our 
reduced Hourly – Retainer rates noted below. Otherwise, any ad hoc work done outside the scope of the 
Retainer would be at the Hourly – Standard rates. 
 
 

Title Resource Hourly - Standard Hourly - Retainer 

Principal $315.00 $294.00 

Director $210.00 $183.75 

Art Director $210.00 $183.75 

Senior Business Analyst $168.00 $147.00 

Business Analyst $120.75 $110.25 

Junior Business Analyst $99.75 $89.25 

Senior Videographer/Animator $168.00 $152.25 

Photographer/Videographer $115.50 $105.00 

Senior Graphic Designer $152.25 $136.50 

Graphic Designer $115.50 $105.00 

Web Developer $168.00 $147.00 

Drone Operator $168.00 $152.25 

Other Costs 
Because Tripepi Smith offers a broad set of services, including extensive content production, we have some 
other content production-related fees that may come up during our engagement that we want to tell you 
about. 

Travel Costs 
Travel costs must be pre-authorized and then will be reimbursed by the City for any requested travel. Travel 
costs to be covered are for airfare, lodging and car rental. If Tripepi Smith is requested to be onsite, we will 
invoice for travel time at half rate of the resource’s Standard Hourly Rate. However, if the resource is onsite for 
at least six (6) hours of billable time in a day, we will not invoice for travel time. 
  

385 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 8 

Equipment Costs 
Tripepi Smith offers some services that require equipment, such as drone operations and video production. 
As such, in those cases, the following rates apply:  

Title Half Day Full Day 

Video Equipment $400 $600 

Drone Equipment N/A $500 

• Six hundred dollars ($600) for a full day of video equipment use (includes full set of video equipment). 
Full day is defined as a shoot lasting four (4) or more hours. 

• Four hundred dollars ($400) for a half day of video equipment use. Half day is defined as anything 
under four (4) hours of video production. All such expenses will be authorized by the City prior to fee 
being assessed. 

• Five-hundred dollars ($500) per day drone fee applies and is not inclusive of the drone operator time 
(Drone Operator rate).  

Service Fees  

Title Client Pays Directly Client Reimburses TS 

Print costs, digital advertising, media 
placement, voiceover/captions No Fees 10% 

Typically, Tripepi Smith prefers to have service providers bill the client directly to avoid additional 
administrative costs and because we have no economic interest in the service provider selection. If Tripepi 
Smith is asked to pay the bill for the client, we will apply a ten percent (10%) agency fee to the reimbursement 
expense. Typical services include, but are not limited to: 
 
Print Costs: Tripepi Smith is happy to use a printer of the client’s choosing for print production work, or to 
recommend a printer with whom we have experience. 
Digital Advertising: Tripepi Smith is a Google Partner and Constant Contact Solution Provider and has 
Facebook Certified staff. We consider digital platforms to be a cornerstone element of any outreach strategy; 
often this comes with digital advertising fees. 
Media Placement: Tripepi Smith can help liaise on behalf of the City for advertising space within various 
mediums, such as newspapers, magazine or websites. 
Voiceover, Translation and Closed Caption Fees: Tripepi Smith occasionally uses third-party resources to 
record voiceovers for videos, generate closed captions for videos, and for non-English language translations. 
 
  

386 of 594



City of Pinole / Expanded Branding and Community Outreach / Version 2.0 

 

 9 

Tripepi Smith Partnership Discounts 
Tripepi Smith has financial interest in certain related entities. These partnerships allow Tripepi Smith to offer 
clients extra media reach or additional services at partner pricing. Partnerships include: 

PublicCEO 
– digital news about public affairs, reaching over 10,000 California government executives 

https://www.publicceo.com 

Civic Business Journal  
– digital interest stories about the people in local government 

https://www.civicbusinessjournal.com 

FlashVote 
– planning, implementing, measuring civic surveys 

https://www.flashvote.com 

TS Talent Solutions 
– talent search services for local government and related agencies 

https://tstalentsolutions.com 

Payments and Invoicing 
Fixed price project work will be invoiced per the above noted payment schedule. 

Any ad hoc work performed during the prior month will be invoiced on the last day of the month. 

Tripepi Smith will email an invoice to the designated email address(es) of the person overseeing our contract 
and will accept payment by check. Preference is for payment with net 30-day terms. 

Billing 
Time at Tripepi Smith is billed in 15-minute increments – i.e. we invoice our time in the following examples: 
1.25, 0.75, 4.0 or 6.5 hours. 

Annual Increase 
Tripepi Smith will increase the hourly rates and retainer fees for all resources by five percent (5%) or the 
national BLS Consumer Price Index — whichever is higher — each year on the anniversary of the contract, 
starting on the first anniversary of any contract when the contract duration is longer than one year. Otherwise, 
new rates will be negotiated with each new contract renewal period. 

387 of 594



  
 

   
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 9H 
  

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE NATELSON 
DALE GROUP TO DEVELOP A COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND APPROPRIATE AN ADDITIONAL 
$3,000 IN FUNDING  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution (Attachment A) 
that: 
 

1. Authorizes the City Manager to execute the third amendment to the Consultant 
Services Agreement with The Natelson Dale Group to develop a temporary/interim 
logo and tagline for the City’s Economic Development program to be utilized while 
the development of the City-wide branding effort is underway; and 

 
2. Appropriate $3,000 from the General Fund for this effort. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2020, the Pinole City Council adopted a thoughtful and ambitious Strategic Plan for the 
City. Among other priorities, Goal 3 (Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole), Strategy 4 directed the 
creation of a comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (EDS) that includes a 
focus on downtown redevelopment to activate the core of the community as a destination 
for the region (including gateway and wayfinding signage as well as branding). In 
September of 2021, The Natelson Dale Group (TNDG) was selected to assist the City in 
creation of the EDS (see Attachment B for the original contract, signed September 13, 
2021). 
 
In October of 2022 the City Council adopted the five-year Economic Development 
Strategy1. The EDS is designed to achieve four major goals over a five-year period, 
including expanding economic opportunities for Pinole’s resident workforce, creating 

 
1 https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/economic_development/economic_development_strategy  

388 of 594

https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/economic_development/economic_development_strategy


City Council Report  
August 15, 2023  2 

placemaking initiatives and targeted business/development attraction, revitalizing 
commercial and industrial areas, and strengthening the City’s fiscal position.  
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
One remaining task in TNDG’s contract involves working with TNDG's partner agency, 
the Golden Shovel Agency, to create a brand for Pinole's new Economic Development 
program. The process of branding the program will include the following tasks: 
 

• Development of Name of Pinole ED Program 
• Development of Logo and Tagline 
• Development of Brand Style Guide 
• Preparation of identity materials (including business card, letterhead, envelope, 

PowerPoint template, etc.) 
 

Staff asked TNDG to pause formally branding the ED program until the citywide branding 
effort, currently underway, has concluded. For that reason, the City and TNDG extended 
the service term of the contract first through June 30, 2023 (see Attachment C for the 
first contract amendment) and subsequently through June 30, 2024 (see Attachment D 
for the second contract amendment).  
 
As the staff begins to kickstart EDS Year One activities, it is now advisable to create a 
temporary or interim brand for the ED program. Due to the additions to the work scope, 
TNDG is requesting a $3,000 augmentation to the Golden Shovel Agency’s budget for 
the EDS contract. The budget augmentation would support the additional research, 
meetings and design work needed to create interim branding. The increase of $3,000 will 
bring the total amount of the contract to not to exceed $91,130. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total additional cost to increase the contract is $3,000. These costs are to be allocated 
from General Fund to support the services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A:  Draft Resolution 

Exhibit A- Third Contract Amendment 
B:  Original Contract, executed September 21, 2021 
C:  First Contract Amendment, executed November 18, 2022 
D:  Second Contract Amendment, executed July 3, 2023 
 

 

389 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO.  2023-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING A 
THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE NATELSON DALE GROUP 
AND AMENDING THE FY 23/24 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE AN ADDITIONAL $3,000 
IN FUNDING FROM THE GENERAL FUND  
 

 
WHEREAS, on September 13, 2021 the City and The Natelson Dale Group  

(TNDG) entered into a Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement”) to assist with the 
development of an Economic Development Strategy, including branding for the Pinole 
Economic Development program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Economic Development Strategy was adopted on October 18, 

2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, one remaining task in the Agreement involves creating a brand for 

Pinole's new Economic Development program; and 
 
WHEREAS, formal branding the ED program will occur after the citywide branding 

effort, currently underway, has concluded; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires that as the staff begins to kickstart EDS Year One 

activities, an interim brand for the ED program is developed; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the additions to the work scope, a $3,000 augment to the 

Agreement is required to support the additional research, meetings and design work 
needed to create interim branding, which will bring the total amount of the agreement to 
not to exceed Ninety-One Thousand, One Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($91,130). 
 
          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and 
correct and made part of this resolution. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole hereby: 
 
1- Authorizes the City Manager to execute a third amendment to the Consultant 

Services Agreement with TDNG (Exhibit A, herein) in an amount not to exceed 
an additional $3,000 for interim branding of the ED program; and 

2- Amends the FY2023/24 budget to appropriate $3,000 from the General Fund 
to support the interim branding. 

 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 15th day of August, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
NOES:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 

390 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSTAIN:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 15th day of August, 2023 
 
____________________________________  
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 

391 of 594



Exhibit A 

  

 
AMENDMENT No. 3 TO THE 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

THE NATELSON DALE GROUP 
 

This Third Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement (the “Agreement”), is 
made by and entered into between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and The Natelson Dale Group (TNDG, “Consultant”) (together 
sometimes referred to as “Parties”) as of the date executed below. 

 
RECITALS  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into a Consulting Services Agreement 

dated September 13, 2021 (the “Agreement”) with a Scope of Services in Exhibit A and 
total compensation (not to exceed $88,130) in Section 2, with the term of the contract to 
end on August 31, 2022 unless otherwise extended as provided for in Section 8.2 of the 
Agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2022 the Parties agreed to agreed to extend the 
term of the Agreement through June 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 3, 2023 the Parties agreed to agreed to extend the term of 

the Agreement through June 30, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Scope of Services and increase 
the total compensation in Section 2 by Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000) to a total not to 
exceed amount of Ninety-One Thousand, One Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($91,130); 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 

Exhibit A of the Agreement shall be amended to include the additional 
scope of development of a temporary logo and tagline for the City’s 
Economic Development Organization to be utilized while the development 
of the City-wide branding effort is underway. 

 
Section 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to increase compensation by 
Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000) for the additional temporary logo/tagline 
development work, increasing the total amount of the Agreement to not to 
exceed amount of Ninety-One Thousand, One Hundred and Thirty Dollars 
($91,130). 
   

392 of 594



Exhibit A 

  

With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Service 
Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 
 
 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
       
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    Roger Dale, Managing Principal  
        
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
 
 
Attest:      
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 

393 of 594



Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group Page 1 of 18 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE NATELSON DALE GROUP 

THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Pinole (“City”) and 
The Natelson Dale Group (TNDG, “Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of 
September 13, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) in Pinole, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and 
place and in the manner specified therein.  In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms 
of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. 

1.1 Term of Services.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
end on August 31, 2022, and Consultant shall complete the work described in Exhibit A by 
that date, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as 
provided for in Section 8.  The time provided to Consultant to complete the services 
required by this Agreement shall not affect the City’s right to terminate the Agreement, as 
provided for in Section 8. 

1.2 Standard of Performance.  Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession.  Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a professional manner and shall conform to the standards of 
quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel.  Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
services pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, 
Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, 
reassign such person or persons. 

1.4 Time.  Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to satisfy Consultant’s obligations hereunder. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION.  City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed 
$88,130, for all work set forth in Exhibit A and all reimbursable expenses incurred in performing the work.  
In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and Consultant’s proposal regarding the amount of 
compensation, the Agreement shall prevail.  City shall pay Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement on a time and materials, not-to-exceed basis at the time and in the manner set forth herein.  
The payments specified below shall be the only payments from City to Consultant for services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in the manner specified herein.  
Except as specifically authorized by City, Consultant shall not bill City for duplicate services performed by 
more than one person. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

394 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 2 of 18 
 

 
Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant.  Consequently, the parties 
further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions 
and/or annuities to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible.  City 
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement, 
and the applicable sections of Exhibit D. 
 

2.1 Invoices.  Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date.  Invoices shall contain the following information: 

 
▪ Serial identifications of progress bills, i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice, 

etc.; 
▪ The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
▪ A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 

billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and 
the percentage of completion;  

▪ At City’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time 
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and 
each reimbursable expense;  

▪ The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant 
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services 
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by 
Consultant and any individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant 
reaches or exceeds 800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time 
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit A;  

▪ The Consultant’s signature. 
 

2.2 Monthly Payment.  City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for 
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.  City 
shall have 30 days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements 
above to pay Consultant. 

 
2.3 Final Payment.  City shall pay the last 10% of the total sum due pursuant to this 

Agreement within sixty (60) days after completion of the services and submittal to City of a 
final invoice, if all services required have been satisfactorily performed. 

 
2.4 Total Payment.  City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 

this Agreement.  City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 
incurred by Consultant in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement.  City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

395 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 3 of 18 
 

 In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. 

 
2.5 Hourly Fees.  Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not exceed 

the amounts shown on the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
2.6 Reimbursable Expenses.  Reimbursable expenses are specified in Exhibit B, and shall 

not exceed     ($  ).  Expenses not listed in Exhibit B are 
not chargeable to City.  Reimbursable expenses are included in the total amount of 
compensation provided under this Agreement that shall not be exceeded. 

 
2.7 Payment of Taxes.  Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 

incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes. 
 
2.8 Payment Upon Termination.  In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 

Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination.  Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. 

 
2.9 Authorization to Perform Services.  The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 

services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

 
Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT.  Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement.  City shall make available to Consultant only the facilities and equipment listed 
in Exhibit C, and only under the terms and conditions set forth therein. 
 
Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  Before beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, unless otherwise specified below, shall procure the types and 
amounts of insurance listed below against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant and its agents, 
representatives, employees, and subcontractors.  Consistent with the following provisions, Consultant shall 
provide proof satisfactory to City of such insurance that meets the requirements of this section and under 
forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the City.  Consultant shall maintain the insurance policies 
required by this section throughout the term of this Agreement.  The cost of such insurance shall be 
included in the Consultant's bid.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any 
subcontract until Consultant has obtained all insurance required herein for the subcontractor(s) and 
provided evidence thereof to City.  Verification of the required insurance shall be submitted and made part 
of this Agreement prior to execution. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

396 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 4 of 18 
 

4.1 Workers’ Compensation.  Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any 
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant.  The Statutory Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) per accident.  In the alternative, 
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet those requirements, but only if 
the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Determination of whether a self-insurance program meets the standards of the 
Labor Code shall be solely in the discretion of the City. The insurer, if insurance is 
provided, or the Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all rights 
of subrogation against the City and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for loss 
arising from work performed under this Agreement. 

 
4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.   
 

4.2.1 General requirements.  Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the term of this 
Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) 
per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work 
contemplated by this Agreement. If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an 
Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be 
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at least 
twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall include but shall not be 
limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and personal injury, 
including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from 
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and non-
owned automobiles. 

 
4.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage.  Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form 
CG 0001 (ed. 11/88) or GL 0002 (ed.1/73) covering comprehensive General 
Liability and Insurance Services Office form number GL 0404 covering Broad 
Form Comprehensive General Liability.  Automobile coverage shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) 
Code 1.  No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

 
4.2.3 Additional requirements.  Each of the following shall be included in the 

insurance coverage or added as a certified endorsement to the policy: 
 

a. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not 
on a claims-made basis. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

397 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 5 of 18 
 

b. Any failure of Consultant to comply with reporting provisions of the policy 
shall not affect coverage provided to City and its officers, employees, 
agents, and volunteers. 

 
4.3 Professional Liability Insurance.   
 

4.3.1 General requirements.  Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for 
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) covering the licensed 
professionals’ errors and omissions.  Any deductible or self-insured retention shall 
not exceed $150,000 per claim. 

 
4.3.2 Claims-made limitations.  The following provisions shall apply if the professional 

liability coverage is written on a claims-made form: 
 

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement. 

 
b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be 

provided for at least five years after completion of the Agreement or the 
work, so long as commercially available at reasonable rates. 

 
c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 

claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.  
The City shall have the right to exercise, at the Consultant’s sole cost and 
expense, any extended reporting provisions of the policy, if the Consultant 
cancels or does not renew the coverage. 

 
d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 

prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. 
 
4.4 All Policies Requirements. 
 

4.4.1 Acceptability of insurers.  All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A:VII. 

 
4.4.2 Verification of coverage.  Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 

Consultant shall furnish City with complete certified copies of all policies, including 
complete certified copies of all endorsements.  All copies of policies and certified 
endorsements shall show the signature of a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

398 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 6 of 18 
 

4.4.3 Notice of reduction in or cancellation of coverage.  A certified endorsement 
shall be attached to all insurance obtained pursuant to this Agreement stating that 
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.  In the event that any 
coverage required by this section is reduced, limited, cancelled, or materially 
affected in any other manner, Consultant shall provide written notice to City at 
Consultant’s earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than ten (10) 
working days after Consultant is notified of the change in coverage. 

 
4.4.4 Additional insured; primary insurance.  A certified endorsement at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office form number CG 20 10 (11/85 ed.) shall be 
attached to all policies stating that the City and its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to each of the 
following: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Consultant, 
including the insured’s general supervision of Consultant; products and completed 
operations of Consultant, as applicable; premises owned, occupied, or used by 
Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, or used by the Consultant in the 
course of providing services pursuant to this Agreement.  The coverage shall 
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City or its 
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
 A certified endorsement shall be attached to all policies stating that coverage is 

primary insurance with respect to the City and its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers, and that no insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City shall be 
called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage. 

 
4.4.5 Deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Consultant shall disclose to and 

obtain the approval of City for the self-insured retentions and deductibles before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.   

 
During the period covered by this Agreement, only upon the prior express written 
authorization of Contract Administrator, Consultant may increase such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers.  The Contract Administrator may condition approval of an increase in 
deductible or self-insured retention levels with a requirement that Consultant 
procure a bond, guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of 
them. 
 

4.4.6 Subcontractors.  Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 
policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

399 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 7 of 18 
 

4.4.7 Variation.  The City may approve a variation in the foregoing insurance 
requirements, upon a determination that the coverage, scope, limits, and forms of 
such insurance are either not commercially available, or that the City’s interests 
are otherwise fully protected. 

 
4.5 Remedies.  In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to provide 

or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time 
herein required, City may, at its sole option exercise any of the following remedies, which 
are alternatives to other remedies City may have and are not the exclusive remedy for 
Consultant’s breach: 

 
▪ Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such 

insurance from any sums due under the Agreement; 
 

▪ Order Consultant to stop work under this Agreement or withhold any payment that 
becomes due to Consultant hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, 
until Consultant demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 

 
▪ Terminate this Agreement. 
 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.  Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all losses, liability, claims, 
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or 
damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent 
caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of Consultant or its 
employees, subcontractors, or agents, by acts for which they could be held strictly liable, or by the quality 
or character of their work.  The foregoing obligation of Consultant shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of 
life, damage to property, or violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
City or its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers and (2) the actions of Consultant or its employees, 
subcontractor, or agents have contributed in no part to the injury, loss of life, damage to property, or 
violation of law.  It is understood that the duty of Consultant to indemnify and hold harmless includes the 
duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  Acceptance by City of insurance 
certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability 
under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.  This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall 
apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been 
determined to apply.  By execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 
 
In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services 
under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer contributions 
for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

400 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 8 of 18 
 

payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of 
City. 
 
Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 
 

6.1 Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City.  City shall have the 
right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; 
however, otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

 
6.2 Consultant No Agent.  Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 

authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent.  Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. 

 
Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 
 

7.1 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 
7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Consultant and any subcontractors shall comply with 

all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder including but not limited to 
the California Labor Code and the prevailing wage requirements set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
7.3 Other Governmental Regulations.  To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 

fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, Consultant and any subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of 
such fiscal assistance program. 

 
7.4 Licenses and Permits.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and 

its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, 
and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their respective 
professions.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and its 
employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect 
at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are 
legally required to practice their respective professions.  In addition to the foregoing, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

401 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 9 of 18 
 

Consultant and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 
Agreement valid Business Licenses from City. 

 
7.5 Pinole Business License. Consultant shall obtain a City of Pinole business license 

according to the terms of Title 5 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code and deliver to City 
proof of such business license prior to beginning work under this Agreement.  Work under 
this Agreement cannot begin until the City receives proof that Consultant has obtained a 
City of Pinole business license. 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.  Consultant shall not discriminate, on the 
basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant 
in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in 
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required 
of Consultant thereby.   

 
Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement. 

 
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 
 

8.1 Termination.  City may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days and without 
cause upon written notification to Consultant pursuant to this section and the applicable 
sections of Exhibit D.   

 
In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services 
performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may condition payment of 
such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City any or all documents, photographs, 
computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to Consultant or 
prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection with this Agreement. 
 

8.2 Extension.  City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1.  Any such extension shall be 
specified in writing by the City.  Consultant understands and agrees that if City issues such 
an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide Consultant with compensation 
beyond the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement.  Similarly, unless authorized 
by the City, City shall have no obligation to reimburse Consultant for any otherwise 
reimbursable expenses incurred during the extension period. 

 
8.3 Consultant’s Identity and Personnel. The person identified on page one as the 

CONSULTANT’s Key Personnel will be the key person for the performance of services 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

402 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 10 of 18 
 

under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s additional key personnel who will work on the 
PROJECT are identified in Exhibit B.  Any addition or deletion of a firm (whether working 
as a joint venture partner or subconsultant), or any change in key personnel may be made 
only upon prior written approval by CITY.  CONSULTANT shall notify CITY of any 
proposed change of ownership or fundamental structure in CONSULTANT’s firm. Within 
thirty (30) calendar days of such notice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT whether CITY will 
approve such changed firm or personnel to continue providing services under this 
AGREEMENT or whether CITY will terminate this AGREEMENT.  Nothing in this provision 
shall be construed to limit CITY’s right to terminate this AGREEMENT for cause or without 
cause as set forth in Article I, Section C of this AGREEMENT.  Subcontracts between the 
CONSULTANT and any subconsultants will be subject to review and approval of CITY’s 
representative.  

 
If CONSULTANT reassigns or reduces the commitment of any such key personnel, 
CONSULTANT shall provide a suitable replacement, subject to the approval of CITY, and 
CONSULTANT shall provide a reasonable number of unbilled hours of work for such 
replacement personnel to the extent required to bring the personnel up to speed. 

 

8.4 Amendments.  The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties and consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
8.5 Assignment and Subcontracting.  City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 

Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of Consultant’s unique professional competence, experience, and 
specialized professional knowledge.  Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for 
entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation and competence of 
Consultant.  Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the 
prior written approval of the City.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors noted 
in the proposal, without prior written approval of the City.  See the applicable sections of 
Exhibit D for additional requirements. 

 
8.6 Survival.  All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 

provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

 
8.7 Options upon Breach by Consultant.  If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 

of this Agreement, City’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

8.7.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 
 
8.7.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 

other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

403 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 11 of 18 
 

8.7.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the work described in Exhibit A not 
finished by Consultant; or 

 
8.7.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the cost to complete the work 

described in Exhibit A that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
City would have paid Consultant pursuant to Section 2 if Consultant had 
completed the work.  

 
Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 
 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance.  All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City.  Consultant hereby agrees to deliver 
those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement.  It is understood and 
agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use.  City and Consultant agree that, until 
final approval by City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 
confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both 
parties and pursuant to the applicable sections of Exhibit D. 

 
9.2 Consultant’s Books and Records.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 

of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement 
consistent with the applicable sections of Exhibit D.  

 
9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records.  Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 

Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City pursuant to the applicable sections of Exhibit D.  Under California Government 
Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to the 
examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit of 
the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 

 
Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

10.1 Attorneys’ Fees.  If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

404 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 12 of 18 
 

that party may be entitled.  The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

 
10.2 Venue.  In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 

Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of California. 

 
10.3 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 

Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

 
10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach.  The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 

Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

 
10.5 Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 

and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 
 
10.6 Use of Recycled Products.  Consultant shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports, 

written studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at 
equal or less cost than virgin paper. 

 
10.7 Conflict of Interest.  Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 

the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.   

 
Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 
 
Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) 
months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City.  If Consultant was an 
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months, 
Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement.  Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant.  Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 
may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if 
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

405 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 13 of 18 
 

 
Consultant will comply with all conflict of interest laws and regulations including, without 
limitation, City’s Conflict of Interest Code (on file in the City Clerk’s Office) and the 
requirements set forth in Exhibit D.  It is incumbent upon the Consultant or Consultant’s 
firm to notify the City pursuant to section 10.10 Notices of any staff changes relating to this 
Agreement. 
 
a. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, all officers, employees 

and/or agents of Consultant(s), unless as indicated in Subsection b, will be 
performing a very limited and closely supervised function, and, therefore, are unlikely 
to have a conflict of interest arise.  No disclosures are required for any officers, 
employees, and/or agents of Consultant, except as indicated in Subsection b. 

 
       
Initialed by City Attorney’s Office 

 
b. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, Consultant(s) will be 

performing a specialized or general service for the City, and there is substantial 
likelihood that Consultant’s work product will be presented, either written or orally, for 
the purpose of influencing a governmental decision.  As a result, the following 
Consultant(s) shall be subject to the Disclosure Category “1-5” of the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code: 

 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 

 
10.8 Solicitation.  Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or 

interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 
 
10.9 Contract Administration.  This Agreement shall be administered by City Manager who 

shall act as the City’s representative.  All correspondence shall be directed to or through 
City Manager or his or her designee. 

 
10.10 Notices.  Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 
 

Roger Dale 
Managing Principal 
The Natelson Dale Group 
P.O. Box 489 
Yorba Linda, CA 92885 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

406 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 14 of 18 
 

Any written notice to City shall be sent to: 
 
City Manager 
City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 

 
10.11 Professional Seal.  Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 

technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation.   

 
10.12 Integration; Incorporation.  This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 

represents the entire and integrated agreement between City and Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. 

 
10.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE     CONSULTANT 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    [NAME, TITLE] 
 

Consultant’s City of Pinole Business 
License # __21-10490_________________ 

 
 
Attest:      
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

407 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 15 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The Consultant’s scope of services will include the scope of work listed on pages 15-22 of the Consultant’s 
proposal of April 30, 2021 and any modifications or additions agreed to by the Parties. 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

408 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 16 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 
 
The fees charged by Consultant for work performed on an hourly basis shall not exceed the hourly rates 
shown in the fee proposal contained on page 23 of the Consultant’s proposal of April 30, 2021. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

409 of 594



 

Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group  Page 17 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT C 
CITY-FURNISHED FACILITIES 

 
City shall furnish physical facilities such as desks, filing cabinets, and conference space, as may be 
reasonably necessary for Consultant’s use while consulting with City employees and reviewing records and 
the information in possession of the City.  The location, quantity, and time of furnishing those facilities shall 
be in the sole discretion of City.  In no event shall City be obligated to furnish any facility that may involve 
incurring any direct expense, including but not limited to computer, long-distance telephone or other 
communication charges, vehicles, and reproduction facilities. 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

410 of 594



Consulting Services Agreement between September 13, 2021 
City of Pinole and The Natelson Dale Group Page 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT D 

ADDITIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

None 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

411 of 594



PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

Submitted to: 
CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

IN ASSOCIATION WITH: 

Golden Shovel Agency 

April 30, 2021 

T H E  N A T E L S O N  D A L E  G R O U P ,  I N C .
Y O R B A  L I N D A ,  C A  •  w w w . n a t e l s o n d a l e . c o m  
O :  7 1 4 . 6 9 2 . 9 5 9 6  •  F :  7 1 4 . 6 9 2 . 9 5 9 7   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

412 of 594



 

Table of Contents 
 

1. COVER LETTER ............................................................................................................................1 

2. QUALIFICATIONS ........................................................................................................................3 

3. KEY PERSONNEL ....................................................................................................................... 11 

4. SCOPE OF WORK ....................................................................................................................... 15 

5. FEE PROPOSAL .......................................................................................................................... 23 

6. REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................. 24 

7. CONFLICTS AND TERMINATIONS ............................................................................................... 25 

8. STANDARD AGREEMENT ........................................................................................................... 25 

APPENDIX A – LINKS TO SAMPLE WORK PRODUCTS .......................................................................... 26 

APPENDIX B – COMPANY PROFILE (GOLDEN SHOVEL AGENCY) .......................................................... 27 

 

Cover Photo Credits: Cover Photo Credits: “Pinole Bayfront Park Sunset” by David Abercrombie – Own 
work. Licensed under CC BY-SA 4.0 via Flickr.com – https://flic.kr/p/2k9n3GD 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

413 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

1 

1.   COVER LETTER  
 

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 
P.O. Box 489 

Yorba Linda, CA 92885 
(714) 692-9596 phone / (714) 692-9597 fax 

E-mail: dale@natelsondale.com  
www.natelsondale.com  

 
 
April 30, 2021 
#7562 
 
Mr. Andrew Murray  
City Manager 
City of Pinole  
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, California 94564 
 
Re: Proposal to Prepare Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
 
Dear Mr. Murry: 
 
In response to your solicitation, The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) is extremely pleased to 
submit this proposal to prepare a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy for the City of 
Pinole. TNDG is a national economic analysis and economic development consulting firm 
established in California in 1974. Our practice focuses largely on the planning and implementation 
of business retention/expansion/attraction and entrepreneurial development programs. The 
firm’s work often involves direct linkages between a community’s industry attraction plans and its 
real estate development potentials. In this regard, we have a strong understanding both of local 
real estate markets and of the larger regional economic trends that drive demand for commercial 
and industrial land use.  
 
TNDG is a “boutique” firm not only in terms of size but also in terms of philosophy and approach. 
In this regard, the firm’s principal personally manages every contract and maintains primary 
contact with the client. As our references will attest, exceptional responsiveness to the unique 
needs of each client is a hallmark of our approach. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

414 of 594

mailto:dale@natelsondale.com
http://www.natelsondale.com/


 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

2 

In addition to our long track record in strategic planning and related technical analysis, TNDG also 
maintains an active role in supporting California’s economic development community and 
advancing best practices within the profession. In this regard, the firm took the lead on behalf of 
the California Association for Local Economic Development (CALED) and the California Academy 
for Economic Development (CAED) on the implementation of a California-specific training and 
certification program for economic development professionals (the recently launched “ACE” 
program). 
 
We are excited that our team for this submission includes Golden Shovel Agency, an 
internationally acclaimed economic development marketing and communications firm. As 
described under our proposed approach to the assignment, Golden Shovel would create a 
branding strategy to support implementation of the economic development strategic plan 
prepared by TNDG. 
 
Our team’s current familiarity with economic conditions in the East Bay area is in part based on 
our work over the past year on an economic opportunities analysis and strategic planning process 
for the City of Antioch. 
 
I will serve as the contact person during the selection process, and am also the individual authorized 
to negotiate with the City and contractually bind the firm. My contact information is listed on the 
letterhead. As per the RFP, this proposal is valid for 90 days from the date of its submittal. 
 
We very much appreciate your consideration of our team and sincerely hope we have the 
opportunity to serve the City of Pinole on this exciting project. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
THE NATELSON DALE GROUP, INC. 

 
Roger Dale 
Managing Principal 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

415 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

3 

2.   QUALIFICATIONS 

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) brings exceptional experience in economic development 
strategic planning to this assignment. From this work, TNDG has developed nationally recognized 
expertise in the following key areas: 1) Target Industry Strategies and Cluster Development, 2) 
Integration of Economic Development with Workforce Development, and 3) Structuring of Local 
and Regional Economic Development Partnerships. The firm’s work often involves direct linkages 
between a community’s industry attraction plans and its real estate development potentials.  
 
An abbreviated listing of TNDG’s relevant project experience is provided below, followed by more 
detailed descriptions of selected assignments. Within the TNDG projects listed in this submittal 
are a number of suburban cities that have their own specific economic development interests, 
while at the same time being heavily impacted by the neighboring central city’s economic and 
demographic base, industry targets, and other factors affecting its fortunes, and by virtue of the 
relationship, the fortunes of the suburban place as well. 

 
Economic Development Strategies 
Counties      
Guilford County (North Carolina) 
Kern County 
Larimer County (Colorado) 
Los Angeles (San Gabriel Valley subregion) 
Osceola County (Florida) 
San Bernardino 
San Diego (South County Subregion) 
San Joaquin County 
Ventura County 
Yuma County (Arizona) 

Cities 
Anaheim 
Antioch 
Arvin 
Bakersfield 
Beaumont  
Burbank 
Camarillo 
Coachella 
Compton 
Escondido 
Fresno 
Garland (Texas) 
Kyle (Texas) 
Los Angeles 
Menifee  
Ontario 
Palm Desert 
San Francisco 
Simi Valley 
Stockton 
Tracy 
Ventura 
Vista 

Indian Tribes 
Agua Caliente (Palm Springs) 
Cahuilla (Riverside County) 
Yavapi-Apache (Arizona) 

Larger Regions 
Hampton Roads (Virginia) Region (5 counties and 9 independent cities)  
Tri-cities Area of Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

416 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

4 

General Plan Economic Studies  
City of Agoura Hills City of Malibu 
City of Alhambra City of Monterey Park 
City of Beaumont City of Ontario 
City of Calabasas City of Port Hueneme 
City of California City City of Redondo Beach 
City of Chino City of Rialto 
City of Costa Mesa City of San Bernardino 
City of Fontana City of San Clemente 
City of Garden Grove City of Santa Monica 
City of La Quinta City of Santa Paula 
City of Los Angeles  

 
Economic Development SWOT Assessments, Industry Cluster Studies, and Strategic Plans: 

Antioch, California: Economic Baseline and Strategic Plans (2021). TNDG is currently finalizing 
work on an economic development baseline analysis and strategic planning process for the City of 
Antioch. This assignment has included a target industry/cluster analysis, an extensive stakeholder 
outreach process, and preparation of customized strategic plans for two high-priority 
employment centers. 

Vista, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2020). TNDG completed a nine-month 
economic development strategic planning process for the City of Vista in north San Diego County. 
This work included a target industry analysis, commercial/industrial real estate demand 
projections, an extensive stakeholder outreach process, and preparation of a strategic plan that 
leverages the City’s economic development programming through partnerships with an array of 
regional organizations. 

Beaumont, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2019). TNDG completed a detailed 
Economic Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and commercial/ 
industrial real estate market forecast, for the City of Beaumont. The Plan focuses on leveraging 
the City’s strategic location in the eastern Inland Empire, available land resources, skilled resident 
workforce, and quality-of-life amenities.  

Menifee, California: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (2018). TNDG completed a 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for the City of Menifee. The six-month 
planning process included a detailed analysis of the community’s economic development assets 
and opportunities, as well as its current deficiencies and challenges. The background analyses 
included a target industry study focused on defining potential growth opportunities within the 
larger Riverside County/San Diego County economy. Given Menifee’s large population of out-
commuting high-skilled workers, the industry cluster analysis emphasized potential connections 
to regional high-tech sectors.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

417 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

5 

Camarillo, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2018). TNDG completed a detailed 
Economic Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and commercial/ 
industrial real estate market forecast, for the City of Camarillo. The Plan focuses on improving the 
City’s business/development friendliness, maintaining the strength of the City’s retail shopping 
districts, leveraging the emerging cluster of technology start-ups in Ventura County, and pursuing 
placemaking investments as part of a larger focus on economic vitality. 

Palm Desert, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2018). TNDG completed a 
detailed Economic Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and 
commercial/industrial real estate market forecast, for the City of Palm Desert. The Plan focuses 
on leveraging the City’s strategic location within the Coachella Valley and its well-established 
reputation as a center for tourism, retail trade, and higher education. The implementation plan 
includes a business incubator/accelerator focused the Valley’s emerging technology cluster. 

San Bernardino, California: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for 
IVDA/SBIAA (2018). TNDG completed a five-year CEDS for the Inland Valley Development Agency 
(IVDA) and San Bernardino International Airport Authority (SBIAA) in 2018. This process included a 
series of meetings with the CEDS Committee, as well as direct coordination with five constituent 
jurisdictions (four cities and Indian tribe) to update strategic priorities and candidate 
infrastructure projects. The economic and workforce development initiatives include a focus on 
high-technology sectors related to the region’s aviation and logistics clusters.  

Ventura County, California:  Economic Vitality Strategic Plan (2017). TNDG completed a 
comprehensive Economic Vitality Strategic Plan for the County of Ventura. The year-long effort 
included the following components:  an extensive analysis of the current state of the Ventura 
County economy; an innovative Economic Impact Analysis that gathers and analyzes relevant data 
sets to quantify the impact of County governmental operations on the local economy; a detailed 
industry cluster analysis; and extensive stakeholder outreach. Consistent with longstanding 
community values, the Plan focuses on advancing economic vitality while carefully protecting the 
region’s amenity-rich, high quality of life environment. 

Hampton Roads, Virginia:  Strategic Plan for Growth Opportunities (GO) Virginia Program 
(2017). TNDG served as a subcontractor to Old Dominion University on the preparation of a 
strategic economic plan addressing challenges among the communities in the Hampton Roads 
region of Virginia. Blessed by the nation’s largest natural deep water port and host to the world’s 
biggest naval base, the Hampton Roads region has nonetheless struggled to recover from 
decreases in federal procurement spending and curtailed defense spending associated with the 
Budget Control Act of 2012. The GO Virginia program was created by the Virginia legislature to 
encourage cross-jurisdictional cooperation in economic development efforts to create sustainable 
regional economic growth.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

418 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

6 

Larimer County (Fort Collins), Colorado: Economic Development Asset Assessment (2016). TNDG 
completed a comprehensive assessment of the public, private and institutional “assets” that 
influence Larimer County’s economic development potentials. The assessment is intended to 
identify existing strengths that can be better leveraged as well as existing gaps in infrastructure 
and service provision that warrant future investment by the County. The assessment will provide 
the framework for a long-range economic development vision and strategy for the County. 

Kyle, Texas: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2015). TNDG completed a detailed Economic 
Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis, for the City of Kyle. The Plan 
focuses on leveraging the City’s strategic location along I-35 between Austin and San Antonio. A 
key theme of the Plan is to position the City as a destination for regional visitors and higher-value 
economic activities. The Plan provides a framework for re-organizing the City’s Economic 
Development Tourism Board, and for re-assessing the City’s partnerships with several regional 
economic development organizations. 

Stockton, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2015). The TNDG team completed a 
detailed Economic Development Strategic Plan for the City of Stockton, California. The Plan 
provides a comprehensive blueprint for the City’s economic development programming as part of 
an overall restructuring of the municipal government. The planning process included extensive 
interaction with a range of public and private partner organizations that will have critical roles in 
implementing the strategy. Given the City’s across-the-board efforts to reposition itself 
economically, the Plan encompasses a broad range of topics including infrastructure, economic 
incentives, development streamlining, neighborhood revitalization, visitor amenities, housing 
diversification, retail tenant recruitment, target industry attraction and entrepreneurial 
development. 

Yuma County, Arizona: Manufacturing Development Strategy (2015).  The TNDG team prepared 
a strategic plan for Yuma County for the Investing in Manufacturing Communities Partnership 
(IMCP) program. This work included a manufacturing-focused target industrial analysis; 
infrastructure assessment; substantial stakeholder outreach; and development of a 
comprehensive Action Plan. The planning process involved extensive coordination with the 
County, four cities (three in Arizona and one in Mexico), two universities, a community college, 
the county-level Workforce Investment Board, and various private organizations involved in 
county-level economic development (Economic Development Corporation, Manufacturers 
Association, and Chamber of Commerce). 

Garland, Texas:  Target Industry Strategy (2014).  TNDG participated in the preparation of this 
strategic plan (led by the University of North Texas), which included a target industry analysis, 
competitive assessment of Garland with respect to other Dallas-area communities, assessment of 
the current manufacturing base in the city and the challenges faced by employers and real estate 
developers, and community development issues. Although the Plan focused on strategies for 
target industries, TNDG integrated these with relevant community and workforce-development 
strategies. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

419 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

7 

Escondido, California:  Economic Development Master Plan (2013, updated 2018).  TNDG 
completed a Market Opportunities Analysis and Economic Development Master Plan for the City 
of Escondido. The Plan was completed in tandem with a regional Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategy (CEDS) for the North San Diego County region. TNDG’s work included an in-
depth demographic analysis, an assessment of economic/ market opportunities, a target 
industry/cluster analysis, as well as a focus on revitalization of key commercial areas in the City. 

Osceola County (Greater Orlando), Florida: Economic Diversification Strategy (2012). Osceola 
County is adjacent to Orlando, Florida and experienced significant disinvestment in the early 
2000’s due to older visitor amenities (hotels, motels, amusement facilities, etc.) not keeping pace 
with competitive facilities in Orlando. TNDG’s strategy focused on identifying potential industries 
(in addition to tourism) that can provide the basis for diversifying and revitalizing the local 
economy. 

Yuma County, Arizona:  Workforce and Economic Development Summit (2001, repeated 2011). 
TNDG facilitated a Workforce and Economic Development Summit for Yuma County. The 
consultants’ work for the six-month Summit process involved substantial background research 
and analysis; facilitation of a series of Summit meetings with approximately 70 local stakeholders; 
and preparation of a comprehensive Action Plan. As part of the analytical work, the consultants 
identified key industry “clusters” suitable for diversifying Yuma’s economic base. The Summit 
process was originally completed in 2001; based on the success of the original effort, the client 
retained TNDG to repeat the process in 2010-2011. 

San Francisco, California:  Workforce Development Strategy for Bay Area Media Industry (2011). 
TNDG developed a comprehensive strategy to guide “career repositioning” services for dislocated 
journalists and media workers in the San Francisco Bay Area (an estimated 7,500 Bay Area media 
industry jobs have been lost over the past decade). TNDG’s work included an extensive online 
survey of existing and former Bay Area journalists (with over 700 individuals participating) and 
executive interviews with media executives. In addition, TNDG completed a detailed analysis of 
employment trends (by both industry and occupation) for the overall Bay Area media cluster.  

Los Angeles, California:  Economic Development Strategy for Solar LA (2009). TNDG was retained 
by the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power in 2009 to generate a Strategic Action Plan to 
expand solar-industry activity in Los Angeles. The work was part of LADWP’s mission to 
implement the Solar LA plan. The objective of the Strategic Action Plan is to leverage the 
investment associated with Solar LA to develop a solar industry cluster in Los Angeles and 
maximize the creation of cleantech jobs. 

Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia:  Target Industry Analysis (2006). The TNDG Team 
completed an industry cluster analysis for the Tri-Cities Economic Development Alliance. The 
purpose of the study was to identify target industries/clusters for this 10-county region in 
Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

420 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

8 

Anaheim, California:  Industry Location Analysis and Attraction Strategy (2005). TNDG 
developed a comprehensive economic development program for the City of Anaheim. TNDG’s 
work focused on assessing Anaheim’s strengths as they relate to industrial attraction and 
identifying specific industry clusters which the City should emphasize in its marketing efforts. 
TNDG’s recommendations included a special focus on multi-media and high technology firms.  

Guam:  Feasibility Study and Strategic Plan for Regional Distribution Center (2004). TNDG was 
part of multi-disciplinary team that completed a feasibility study and strategic plan for the 
development of a regional distribution center in Guam. The center was planned to build upon 
Guam’s existing airport and seaport infrastructure to position Guam as a distribution hub serving 
various Asian countries and the continental United States.  

Ventura, California:  Business Plan for “Eco Industry” Industrial Park (2003). TNDG completed a 
feasibility study and business plan for the development of an eco-industrial park (EIP) in the City 
of San Buenaventura. The intent of the program is to attract “eco industrial” users to major 
Brownfield sites currently occupied with abandoned oil production facilities. TNDG’s work 
included a detailed market analysis of the eco industry cluster; review of “best practices” for EIP 
development based on a national survey of existing parks; identification of state and federal 
funding sources applicable to the project; and a detailed business plan for implementation. The 
plan focuses on positioning the EIP as the centerpiece of a countywide industry cluster focused on 
resource recovery, related manufacturing and alternative energy development. 

The National and Regional Directory of Targeted Growth Industries (2002). TNDG published The 
National and Regional Directory of Targeted Growth Industries, an economic development 
resource publication. This research involved review and summarization of several hundred 
economic development strategic plans and industry trends analyses from throughout the U.S. 

Fresno, California:  Federal Empowerment Zone (EZ) Application (2001). The TNDG Team 
prepared a successful application resulting in Fresno’s designation as one of only seven urban 
Empowerment Zones under Round III of the EZ program. Fresno’s submission was ranked number 
one in the country during this application round. TNDG was responsible for the overall 
management of several hundred stakeholders involved in various aspects of the application 
process. 

Greensboro (Guilford County), North Carolina:  Industry Attraction Strategy (2001). TNDG 
prepared an industry “cluster” analysis and attraction strategy for the Greensboro Economic 
Development Partnership. The focus of the strategy is to expand the community’s base of high-
technology sectors to offset the ongoing declines of Greensboro’s traditional mainstay industries 
(tobacco, apparel and furniture manufacturing). The analysis involved defining Guilford County’s 
potential niche markets within a 13-county reference area, and also included a review of 
statewide potentials vis-à-vis the overall Mid-Atlantic region.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

421 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

9 

Burbank, California:  Economic Diversification Strategy (2000). The Team developed a 
comprehensive Action Plan to guide the City of Burbank’s economic development programming 
over the next five to ten years. As background to the strategic recommendations, TNDG 
completed an industry “cluster” analysis to identify new sectors into which the City’s economy 
can diversify, and a detailed “competitive assessment” identifying Burbank’s competitive position 
within the state.  

Kern County, California:  Economic Development Strategic Plan (2000). TNDG was retained by 
the County of Kern to develop a strategic plan to create the approximately 20,000 new jobs 
needed for the County to fulfill its obligations under the CalWORKS (welfare-to-work) program. 
The consultants’ work included a comprehensive assessment of the County’s workforce 
development programs, as well as a detailed industry “cluster” analysis to identify the sectors 
with the greatest potential for employment growth meeting the needs of the county’s workforce. 
The target industry analysis included an in-depth assessment of the county’s and the state’s 
competitiveness within a five-state region. The Strategy was developed over approximately a one-
year time frame and involved a substantial public outreach effort. 

 

Market Studies Completed for Municipal Planning Processes: 

Azusa, California: Retail, Hotel, Office and Residential Market Analysis for Gold Line Station 
Areas (2015). TNDG completed market demand forecasts and financial feasibility analyses for 
transit-oriented development near the two planned Gold Line stations in Azusa. TNDG’s work will 
guide land use, zoning and development density policies and will also be utilized as the basis for a 
market-oriented implementation strategy for the planning areas. 

Downtown Core and Corridors Specific Plan, Fullerton, California (2014). TNDG served as the 
project economist for the Fullerton Downtown Core and Corridors Specific Plan process (a 
planning firm was the lead consultant for this project). The Plan area covers a large portion of the 
City and includes 15 distinct subareas. TNDG’s work includes a market study to identify future 
development opportunities in each subarea, pro forma financial analysis to define market-
attractive development densities by land use type, and a strategic implementation element for 
the Plan. 

Ontario, California: Analysis of Market Absorption Potentials and Related Socioeconomic 
Impacts of Meredith International Centre Specific Plan (2014). TNDG was retained by the City of 
Ontario to evaluate realistic market potentials and related fiscal/socioeconomic impacts for the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan - a major mixed-use project near the Ontario 
International Airport.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

422 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

10 

San Francisco, California: Analysis of Impacts of Project Labor Agreements on Real Estate 
Project Feasibility (2010).  TNDG was retained by the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency to 
complete a comprehensive analysis of the economic impacts of project labor agreements (PLA’s). 
This study included pro forma case studies (for a range of private development projects involving 
Agency investment) to determine the potential impacts on project development costs. The study 
also involved an extensive literature review of academic and public agency studies addressing the 
costs and benefits of PLA’s. 

Market Analysis and Financial Pro Forma for Downtown Specific Plan, Huntington Beach, 
California (2010). As part of a Specific Plan process, TNDG completed a comprehensive market 
absorption study for Downtown Huntington Beach.  Consistent with the City’s development vision 
for the area, the study focused on the potentials to attract the following land uses:  high-
density/mixed-use residential, retail, higher-end restaurants, entertainment, hotel/B&B 
development, and office.  In addition to evaluating market absorption potentials, TNDG 
completed pro forma financial evaluations to determine the development densities necessary to 
allow for feasible redevelopment of key opportunity sites.  

Economic/Financial Analyses for Proposed Development Projects, Santa Monica, California 
(2007-2015). On behalf of the City of Santa Monica, TNDG has completed economic and financial 
analyses (or peer reviewed applicant-submitted studies) for various projects requiring 
development agreements with the City. These studies typically include the following components:  
value enhancement analyses (to quantify the incremental property value associated with 
requested development entitlements); pro forma financial analyses, fiscal impact analyses and 
focused market research to develop credible assumptions/inputs for the other studies. The 
primary purpose of the financial pro formas is to provide a basis for the negotiation of community 
benefits (including affordable housing) to be provided by the developers. To date, TNDG has 
completed economic analyses for eight proposed projects. 

Transit-Oriented District Studies, Los Angeles, California (1999-2000).  TNDG served as the 
project economist on three separate multidisciplinary teams charged with defining development 
strategies for the areas surrounding various transit stations in the City of Los Angeles.  The studies 
considered ¼- and ½-mile radii around each site and involved detailed assessments of transit-
related market opportunities.  TNDG was also responsible for recommending City policies and 
incentives to attract the desired development. 

San Clemente, California:  Citywide Commercial and Industrial Market Analysis (1999).  TNDG 
completed a Citywide analysis of commercial and industrial development potentials for the City of 
San Clemente. The market study addressed retail, hospitality, office, business park and industrial 
land uses.  The study was an update of a comprehensive real estate market evaluation completed 
by TNDG as part of a General Plan update process.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

423 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

11 

3. KEY PERSONNEL 

Roger Dale – Managing Principal, TNDG 

Project Role: Mr. Dale will serve as Team Leader for the assignment. In this capacity, he will be 
responsible for primary client liaison, day-to-day completion of work assignments and products, 
and coordination of the overall project team. Mr. Dale will serve as the lead presenter/facilitator 
at key public meetings for the assignment. Mr. Dale has been a project manager with TNDG for 33 
years and managed TNDG’s work on the previous TNDG projects listed in this proposal. 

Experience: Roger Dale has been affiliated with The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) since 1988 
and currently serves as the firm’s managing principal. His background encompasses the fields of 
real estate development, economic development, regional economic analysis, environmental and 
land use policy, financial forecasting, and renewable energy. His project experience with TNDG 
includes preparation of regional-scale economic development strategic plans, real estate market 
forecasting, demographic research and modeling, fiscal impact analysis, cost/benefit assessment, 
redevelopment, business retention/attraction, and workforce development program 
assessments. 

Over the past 20 years, a significant focus of Mr. Dale’s work has been on the development of 
cluster-based economic and workforce development strategies. In this regard, he has managed 
industry cluster analyses and developed related retention/ expansion/attraction plans for the 
following clients:  the cities of Antioch, Stockton, Bakersfield, Anaheim, Los Angeles, Burbank, and 
San Buenaventura, California; the County of Kern, California; the County of Yuma, Arizona; the 
High Desert Regional Economic Development Authority (San Bernardino County, California); the 
Forward Greensboro (North Carolina) Economic Development Partnership; the Tri-Cities 
(Tennessee/Virginia) Economic Development Alliance; the County of Osceola, Florida; the County 
of Larimer, Colorado; and the cities of Garland and Kyle, Texas. 

Reflecting his longstanding interest in sustainability issues, he serves on the Board of the Roberts 
Environmental Center – a leading publisher of global climate change research and the nation’s 
foremost analyst of corporate sustainability reporting. He has recently completed feasibility 
studies and related economic development strategies for solar energy projects in California, 
Arizona and China. He has prepared more than 50 economic analyses as part of environmental 
impact reports. 

Education: Mr. Dale received his B.A. cum laude in Economics from Claremont McKenna College 
in Claremont, California. He also holds a master's degree in Resource and Environmental 
Economics from the University of California at Riverside. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

424 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

12 

Joe McClure – Senior Associate, TNDG  

Project Role: Mr. McClure will be a principal participant throughout the process, including the 
baseline data collection, target industry analysis, stakeholder interviews and final report 
preparation.  

Experience: Joe McClure has served as principal or manager of land economics research and 
advisory-services organizations for the last 37 years. During this tenure, Joe’s practice has focused 
on the following outputs: 

• Economic development strategic focus:  consolidating views on a region’s economic 
development targets, workforce, development challenges, and strategic options, 
integrating target industries into the local economy, and relating a region’s existing 
economic base to its competitive environment. 

• Market analyses with fiscal and strategic components:  highest and best use analysis, 
analysis of rapidly growing trade areas, cash flow and development strategy analysis, fiscal 
benefits of development. 

• Fiscal/economic analyses with a strategic component:  impacts on the business community 
and tax receipts from freeway and other road projects, and assessing redevelopment 
prospects of under-performing areas. 

• Special research projects, including studies of local labor forces and employer-employee 
relations, economic impacts of bicycle recreation, and transit behaviors and opinions in 
rural regions. 

 
Mr. McClure’s multidisciplinary background incorporates many phases of the community and real 
estate development process:  economic analysis and strategy development, market and financial 
feasibility assessment, and planning and design. He is a registered architect in Arizona. His 
organizational affiliations include the Western Regional Science Association (WRSA)—an 
international group of economic geographers, and the Arizona Association for Economic 
Development (AAED). 
 
He has presented papers on business and economic development issues at economic 
development conferences, has served as Adjunct Lecturer at the University of Arizona in the 
Geography and Regional Development program, and on ULI Advisory/Technical Services Teams. 
McClure served as a Civil Engineering Officer in the U.S. Air Force, and is currently an advisor to a 
start-up venture involving mobile digital communications. 
 
Education: Joe has an M.S. in Urban Planning, in a program that emphasized regional economics, 
from the University of Arizona and completed additional post-graduate work in economic geography 
at UA. He has a B.S. in Architecture from the University of Cincinnati. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

425 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

13 

Alan Levenson – Senior Associate, TNDG  

Project Role: Mr. Levenson will provide technical support throughout the process and assist with 
the preparation of summary reports.  

Experience: Mr. Levenson brings to The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. an academic background in 
economic theory with particular emphasis on economic development. Prior to joining the firm, 
Mr. Levenson spent two years as a research consultant for NEMESIS (Núcleo de Estudos Modelos 
Espaciais Sistêmicos), which is a research network dedicated to the study of systemic spatial 
models of the Brazilian economy. 

A significant focus of Mr. Levenson’s work at TNDG has been on preparing regional economic 
impact analyses for a wide range of projects. Among others, these projects have included a major 
regional health care facility in Riverside, CA, a technology and education park in Tustin, CA, a 
business park in Victorville, CA, and a highway construction interchange project in Pima County, 
AZ. These analyses have involved modeling various projects’ short-term (construction-phase) and 
permanent (annually recurring) benefits to the regional economy. The benefits have been 
summarized by estimating a project’s impact on total gross output, value added, earnings, and 
employment in the region. As part of this work, Mr. Levenson has experience with the major 
economic impact modeling software packages, including the Bureau of Economic Analysis’s 
Regional Input-Output Modeling System (RIMS) and the IMPLAN program. 

Mr. Levenson has managed the preparation of a number of regional economic development 
plans, with a particular focus on industry “cluster” strategies. This work has involved a wide range 
of activities: from performing quantitative/ statistical analysis to more qualitative analysis, 
including conducting numerous interviews with key players of potential clusters. Mr. Levenson 
has participated in industry cluster studies for the following clients: the Forward Greensboro 
(North Carolina) Economic Development Partnership, the Tri-Cities Tennessee Cluster Study 
(Tennessee), the Yuma Private Industry Council (Arizona), and the City of San Buenaventura 
(California). 

Mr. Levenson also has a significant amount of experience in fiscal impact analyses, retail market 
analyses, and real estate development feasibility analyses. 

Education: Mr. Levenson joined TNDG 19 years ago, after receiving his B.A. with honors in 
Economics and Political Science from the University of California at Riverside. Mr. Levenson’s 
undergraduate studies included additional coursework in applied mathematics related to 
economic analysis. He also holds a Master’s in Business Administration degree, with a 
concentration in Real Estate Finance, from UCLA’s Anderson School of Management. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

426 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

14 

Joe Collins – Research Associate, TNDG 

Project Role: Mr. Collins will support the project team with data compilation and GIS mapping. 

Experience: Joseph Collins serves as a Research Associate for TNDG. Over the years, his 
professional career has involved him in a variety of both private and public projects in the 
Midwest and Southwest US. His varied experience includes: fiscal and land economic feasibility 
analysis, geospatial and descriptive data analytics, graphic presentation, market analysis, and the 
practice of urban planning and development, as summarized below. 

• Market Analysis of Greater Phoenix Metropolitan Area for Industrial, Multifamily, Office, and 
Retail Real Estate Inventory. 

• Analyzing required development improvements and associated costs pertaining to large tracts 
of land planned for single-family residential subdivisions and planned industrial pad sites. 

• Analyzing costs/benefits of single-family residential development versus various commercial 
development options within municipalities. 

• Analyzing the costs/benefits of annexation of established residential subdivisions. 
• Conducting land use analysis and absorption studies, and real estate appraisal and market 

analyses. 
• Geospatially analyzing building, property, land use, zoning, parking, traffic, demographic, 

economic, financial, tax, and other associated qualitative/quantitative data for various 
projects. 

• Developing a Geographic Information System (GIS) relational parcel database for various 
properties located in a downtown area. 

• Providing graphic support in the creation of various reports, exhibits, presentations, and other 
associated media used to present to the public, various boards and commissions, city councils, 
non-profit associations, and private clients. 

• Providing project coordination for the creation of an interactive website for departmental 
customer service. 

• Conducting research and technical analysis to evaluate findings and/or to take action on 
various real estate development applications, land use decisions, and processing other 
regulatory actions associated with the development of real estate. 

• Designing marketing and relocation packages for potential businesses looking to purchase 
and/or lease property. 

• Reviewing construction plans for conformance with applicable city regulations, policies, and 
requirements. 

Education: Mr. Collins obtained a M.B.A. from Grand Canyon University in Phoenix, Arizona, a 
M.S. in Regional and Community Planning from Kansas State University in Manhattan, Kansas, and 
a B.S. in Geography/Community Planning from Kansas State University. In addition, he has 
completed coursework for general real estate appraisal at the Arizona School of Real Estate and 
Business in Scottsdale, Arizona.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

427 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

15 

4. SCOPE OF WORK 

Our Understanding of the City’s Position Relative to this Planning Process 

The City is restarting its economic development function, and the economic development strategy 
will both help launch that activity and provide another vehicle (since the adoption of the City’s 
strategic plan last year) by which Pinole residents will express their opinions and preferences with 
regard to the economic future of the City. Pinole has many options for development given its 
location and existing economic and population base. The City’s issues related to existing, and 
some aging, retail, the need to upgrade certain infrastructure elements, and desire to integrate 
successfully, and also distinctively, into the growing East Bay region have elements in common 
with other communities in the area, as well as characteristics that are specific to Pinole. 

In recognition of the above, TNDG will give particular attention to the following: 

 Pinole residents’ commuting patterns and the community’s fit with evolving trends of 
working from home, which also has relevance for supporting the entrepreneurial 
community in Pinole. 

 The strategic role of redevelopment/revitalization/repurposing for targeted areas and 
properties, to serve economic development along with community enhancement and 
quality-of-life interests, and the relationship of types of desired economic activity to 
property resources. Although this type of consideration is regularly incorporated into 
TNDG’s strategic planning work, it is particularly relevant in Pinole. 

 The integration of community development with economic development, in terms of, for 
example, goal/strategy interrelationships, the relationship of local jobs to the resident 
workforce, and similar considerations. Strategic direction for the City articulated in the 
2020-2025 Strategic Plan will also have a role in this particular consideration. 

 The need for economic development strategic directions to be translatable into marketing 
messages, in ways that can distinguish Pinole among East Bay communities with their own 
unique characteristics. 

 Sustainability issues – climatic, economic, social, etc. – that could affect economic 
development options in Pinole, including those of particular concern to the city, but also 
potentially relevant regional, national, and global issues. 

 The role of the City’s wastewater treatment plant in the feasibility of various economic 
development options. 

Overall Approach 

Our overall approach to the assignment will include a balanced mix of: 
 

 Background research and technical analysis by the consultant team; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

428 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

16 

 
 A comprehensive stakeholder engagement process; 

 
 Appropriate integration of the City’s existing economic, community and workforce 

development programs (including relevant regional initiatives); 
 

 Close coordination with City staff throughout the planning effort; and 
 

 Preparation of an action-oriented strategic plan that reflects Pinole’s unique market 
opportunities, stakeholder consensus on priorities, and our team’s intimate familiarity 
with contemporary best practices for local economic development. 

 
The specific tasks proposed for each component of the work scope are outlined below. The 
structure and order of tasks is based on TNDG’s successful experience in preparing economic 
development strategies for numerous comparable communities.  
 
A. Review and analysis of existing demographic and socioeconomic data, labor force 

characteristics, sales tax revenue and other key economic data. 
 
A.1 Review of City Documents / Project Kickoff Meeting. TNDG will facilitate a virtual kickoff 
meeting with City staff to review the overall work scope and project schedule; identify any City 
documents/resources relevant to the process; establish protocols for team communications; 
begin to identify key stakeholders to include in the outreach effort; and refine the public 
engagement strategy (TNDG’s initial recommendations are outlined below, but it is our 
expectation that this approach would be further customized to reflect the City’s specific 
preferences). 
 
A.2 Compile and Analyze Key Datasets. TNDG will compile background information from a range 
of public and private data sources including the following: 
 

• U.S. Census / American Community Survey (ACS) 
• Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) 
• Contra Costa County Assessor’s Office 
• California Department of Finance (DOF) 
• California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA) 
• California Employment Development Department (EDD) 
• U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) 
• Published real estate market data 
• EMSI (for existing and projected employment, by detailed industry and occupation) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

429 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

17 

Where appropriate, demographic and economic data will be evaluated at multiple levels of 
geography (city, county, and state) to allow for comparison of local conditions to reference-area 
benchmarks. 
 
Deliverable for Task A: 
 
Memorandum summarizing key data sets compiled for the assignment 

 
 

B. Review and analysis of the primary strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats that 
directly impact the economic competitiveness of the City. 

 
TNDG will prepare a comprehensive strength-weakness-opportunity-threat (SWOT) analysis to 
guide the subsequent strategy formulation tasks. The SWOT analysis will be based in part on 
direct input from key local stakeholders. As such, the SWOT review will be closely coordinated 
with the initial stages of TNDG’s community outreach process.  
 
The SWOT summary will quantify Pinole’s potentials for quality economic growth, based on the 
following information sources: the baseline data compiled in Tasks A.1 and A.2; input from local 
stakeholders; and the consultant’s longstanding knowledge of economic development “best 
practices.” The SWOT summary will consider the following issue categories: 
 

• Geographic setting (including topography, climate, resources, etc.) 
• Proximity to larger economic regions 
• Demographic makeup (existing and projected) 
• Workforce availability and skill levels (for the City and the larger “commute shed” region in 

which it is located) 
• Workforce commute patterns (for residents commuting out of City and workers 

commuting into City) 
• Education system  
• Existing economic base (i.e., mix of industry types) 
• Existing land use conditions and available land for development/redevelopment 
• Infrastructure conditions and capacity (including transportation access and broadband 

service) 
• Housing availability and affordability 
• Quality of life 
• Community image 
• Resident/community attitude towards growth 
• Regulatory environment (local and state level) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

430 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

18 

• Economic development partnerships (public and private) 
• Economic development incentives 

 
The SWOT summary will identify the core strengths and opportunities that Pinole can leverage for 
desired economic growth and prioritize these opportunities to allow for a strategic approach to 
marketing the community. With respect to weaknesses and threats, the SWOT will distinguish 
between issues that can realistically be mitigated and issues that are likely to be permanent 
constraints (thereby helping to define types of economic growth that are not realistic targets for 
the City). 
 
A key focus of the SWOT analysis, which will be further explored during the stakeholder outreach 
program (Task E below), will be to identify the essential qualities and values that make  
Pinole unique, and to engage the community in a dialogue about the most effective ways to 
leverage those unique assets to create quality economic growth. In working with the community 
to identify the qualities that should be retained and protected, it will also be important to identify 
the types of economic activities that the community does not want to emphasize in future 
economic development efforts. These core community values will be reflected in all subsequent 
tasks of the strategic planning process. 
 
Deliverable for Task B: 
 
SWOT Summary (memorandum report) 
 
 
C. Market Potentials Analysis 
 
As detailed below, TNDG’s market potentials analysis would include two major components: 

 
• A business/industry sector analysis to identify specific industries/clusters that would offer 

strong potentials for high-quality economic growth in Pinole; and 
 

• A consumer demand / real estate market analysis to forecast demand for new 
commercial and industrial development in the City. 

 
C.1 Business Sector Analysis (identification of target industries/clusters). The target industry 
analysis would include the following steps: 
 

A. Identify and review documentation for regional (e.g., East Bay) industry targeting efforts 
potentially relevant to Pinole. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

431 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

19 

B. Complete city-level “cluster” analysis to identify candidate industries for Pinole. This 
analysis will include the following steps: 

 
a. Compile detailed data (6-digit NAICS code level) on current and recent historic 

employment in the City. 
 

b. Evaluate the City’s comparative strengths relative to the larger Bay Area and East 
Bay regions, utilizing standard economic analysis techniques such as location 
quotient and shift-share analysis. 

 
c. Evaluate City’s linkages to relevant regional industry clusters.  

 
To facilitate efficient completion of the target industry/cluster analysis, TNDG would utilize 
customized employment data from EMSI.  
 
C.2 Consumer Demand Analysis and Commercial/Industrial Real Estate Market Projections. 
Utilizing the datasets compiled in Task A.2, TNDG will prepare customized versions of its real 
estate demand forecasting models. These models project future opportunities for local economic 
development based on anticipated population and employment growth. The models consider the 
existing and future demographic makeup of the City’s resident population, as well as potential 
demand from regional residents and visitors. The models address the following land uses: 
 

• Industrial/R&D space  
• Retail restaurant space  
• Office space 

 
With respect to retail/restaurant businesses, the TNDG demand model will identify specific 
opportunities for additional facility development (or new retail/restaurant tenancies in existing 
space) in Pinole. The model first evaluates existing retail attraction patterns (comparing potential 
demand to actual existing sales) and then estimates the portion of the existing sales attraction 
that could realistically be retained given the increasing impacts of online sales. The model also 
forecasts future demand growth based on projected increases in local/regional population, 
employment and highway traffic. Potential demand for new retail businesses is expressed in 
terms of square feet supportable by major retail category (i.e., apparel, home furnishings, 
specialty, general merchandise, grocery, restaurants, hardware, etc.). 
 
Deliverables for Task C: 
 
Summary report (draft and final) for Business/Industry Sector Analysis 
Summary report (draft and final) for Consumers Demand / Real Estate Market Analysis   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

432 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

20 

D. Preparation of a customized, locally based economic development strategy setting forth 
goals and objectives for taking advantage of the opportunities and solving the economic 
development challenges of the City, including suggested activities, projects and programs 
and objectives to implement goals set forth in the strategy 

 
The TNDG Team will integrate the findings and strategic implications from all preceding tasks into 
a comprehensive Economic Development Strategic Plan (EDSP) for Pinole. The Plan will provide a 
detailed blueprint for the City’s economic development programming, with both short-term (2-
year) and longer-term (5-year) recommendations for attracting, strengthening, and sustaining the 
identified set of target industries and implementing other strategies. The Implementation Plan 
will be organized in terms of the following elements:  
 
 A Real Estate Development/Marketing Strategy, including specific recommendations for 

optimizing light industrial, office and retail development opportunities. These 
recommendations would be location-specific and oriented to key “opportunity sites” (or other 
subareas) identified during the course of the planning process.  
 

 A Business Retention/Expansion/Attraction Strategy reflecting the specific industry clusters 
and market segments identified in the technical analyses. The target industry strategy will 
include the following components: 
 

• Specific recruitment goals and objectives.  
• Workforce development strategies oriented to the needs of the priority industry 

clusters.  
• Recommendations regarding physical infrastructure improvements and other 

“capacity building” issues relevant to the targeted industry clusters.   
• Strategies for supporting and encouraging entrepreneurship and innovative 

activities within targeted industry clusters. 
 

 A Branding and Logo Strategy (developed by Golden Shovel Agency) to communicate the 
City’s goals and initiatives through a new logo and brand identity that focus on engaging with 
target audiences.  The branding strategy will create a unifying identity and a compelling 
message that the City of Pinole can leverage to engaging with its target audiences; specifically 
the communities, existing businesses, site selectors, prospective businesses, investors, and 
the region. This process will also include the delivery of a formal brand style guide for brand 
consistency and compliance. Your brand is your story and your relationship with others:  A 
brand is more than just a logo and colors. The brand of your organization influences each 
visitor’s point of communication. (i.e., website, phone calls, newsletters, newspapers, office 
visits, mailings, etc.).  It must effectively support the marketing strategy of attraction while 
communicating with your target audiences. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

433 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

21 

 Specific Recommendations for Leveraging Key Regional Initiatives and Resources within the 
City’s overall development and business attraction efforts.  
 

 A strategy to address Foundational Elements, including: 1) recommendations regarding 
physical infrastructure improvements and other “capacity building” issues affecting the 
viability of the target clusters, 2) integration of existing assets such as transportation and 
educational systems, and 3) recommended measures to ensure the City’s “business 
friendliness” (reflecting key competitiveness issues identified in the proceeding tasks). 

 
 A Prioritization Matrix indicating the potential timing of the various action items (immediate, 

1-2 years, 3-5 years), and identifying the specific projects and programs that would provide 
the best leverage of available resources.  

 
 Recommended Staffing/Organizational Structure for the City’s economic development 

programming. 
 

 A Responsibility Matrix indicating the entities who would most appropriately be tasked with 
carrying out various action items (including collaborating regional agencies and private sector 
“partners”).  
 

 A Monitoring Program to track the implementation of the Plan and to refine strategy 
objectives over time. The monitoring program will include performance-based “metrics” 
utilizing readily available data sources.  

 
Deliverable for Task D: 
 
EDSP document (draft and final) 
 
 
E. Stakeholder / Community Engagement 

 
TNDG’s overall stakeholder/community engagement will include the following components: 

• A series of “summit” meetings with an ad hoc economic development committee 
(representing a broad mix of the City’s business leaders and institutional partners); 

• A community workshop oriented to the general public; 
• Presentation of the final EDSP to the Pinole City Council for consideration and approval; 

and 
• As-needed coordination meetings with City staff. 

 
The proposed formats of the committee meetings and community workshop are described below.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

434 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

22 

 
E.1 Interaction with Economic Development Committee. The concept of an Economic 
Development “Summit” process would be utilized as the primary tool for engaging the ad hoc 
economic development committee. This process, used successfully in TNDG strategic plan 
development for a number of other clients, would consist of a progressive series of three work 
sessions during the course of the assignment and would be designed to allow for periodic (e.g., 
annual) follow-up committee meetings subsequent to the completion of the plan. In TNDG’s 
experience, the follow-up meetings provide a highly effective mechanism for monitoring (and 
showcasing) implementation progress and, very importantly, for maintaining the stakeholders’ 
interest in (and sense of accountability for) long-term success of the program. The proposed 
sequence of Summit meetings for this process would be as follows: 

 
• Summit Meeting #1 would be concurrent with the SWOT analysis (Task B) and would have 

two major purposes: (a) the TNDG team would present key findings from the team’s initial 
technical studies; and (b) TNDG would facilitate a workshop to get the committee’s 
preliminary ideas on key issues, constraints and opportunities affecting Pinole’s economic 
development potentials. 
 

• Summit Meeting #2 would occur approximately mid-way through the process. At this 
meeting TNDG would present a preliminary strategic framework for the plan and then 
facilitate a workshop to get the committee’s input on potential implementation strategies. 
 

• Summit Meeting #3 would occur near the end of the process. At this meeting TNDG would 
review the Draft EDSP (which would be circulated to the committee in advance of the 
meeting) and will get feedback from the committee members regarding: (a) prioritization 
of the specific strategies included in the plan, and (b) designation of “lead entities” (i.e., 
specific City departments and/or external “partner” organizations) for each 
implementation strategy. 

 
E.2 Community Workshop. TNDG’s budget for this proposal includes a community workshop 
oriented towards the general public (Pinole residents and the business community). The purpose 
of this meeting would be to present a draft of the EDSP and to get community input (via 
facilitated discussion) on prioritization of EDSP programs and action items.  
 
Appendix A of this proposal provides web links to recent EDSP work products completed by our 
team. Although all of our work products are highly customized to reflect the unique 
circumstances, needs and opportunities of each client, the provided samples provide a good 
indication of the level of detail and overall quality of work that Pinole can expect for this project. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

435 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

23 

5. FEE PROPOSAL 

The TNDG team would complete the proposed scope of work for a total fixed fee of $88,130 
(EIGHTY-EIGHT THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY DOLLARS). Consultant hours by major 
project component are estimated as follows: 

 

TNDG proposes the following payment schedule for this contract: 

Task A Summary (memorandum report) $10,000 
SWOT Summary (memorandum report) $10,000 
Commercial/Industrial Real Estate Demand Report (draft) $12,500 
Commercial/Industrial Real Estate Demand Report (final) $2,500 
Business Industry/Sector Report (draft) $12,500 
Business Industry/Sector Report (final) $2,500 
Summit Meeting #1 $3,000 
Summit Meeting #2 $3,000 
Summit Meeting #3 $3,000 
Community Workshop $3,000 
Branding and Logo Strategy (draft) $6,500 
Branding and Logo Strategy (final) $3,000 
Draft EDSP $9,500 
Final EDSP $2,500 
Final hold-back payment for satisfactory completion of all tasks $4,630 
      Total $88,130 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

436 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

24 

6. REFERENCES 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Vista, CA 
Client Contact: Kevin Ham, CEcD, HLM, ACE 

Director of Economic Development 
City of Vista  
(760) 643-5244  
kham@cityofvista.com 

Dates: April 2020 – February 2021 
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson, Joe Collins 

 
Project: Target Industry Analysis & Comprehensive Economic Development 

Strategy (CEDS) for City of Escondido, CA 
Client Contact: Michelle Geller 

(former Economic Development Manager for City of Escondido) 
Economic Development Manager 
City of Oceanside 
(760) 435-3351  
mgeller@oceansideca.org 

Dates: January 2012 – July 2012 (updated in 2018) 
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson 

 
Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for County of Ventura, CA  
Client Contact: Paul Stamper 

Deputy Executive Officer, County Executive Office 
County of Ventura 
(805) 654-3938 
Paul.Stamper@ventura.org 

Dates: June 2016 – October 2017  
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson, Joe Collins 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

437 of 594

mailto:kham@cityofvista.com
mailto:mgeller@oceansideca.org
mailto:Paul.Stamper@ventura.org


 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

25 

7. CONFLICTS AND TERMINATIONS 

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) does not have any existing or potential conflicts of interest 
relative to this assignment. 

In February 2021, TNDG was terminated from its role as subcontractor for a General Plan update 
for the City of Solvang, CA. The City requested that TNDG withdraw from the project due to a 
perceived conflict of interest resulting from TNDG’s concurrent work for the County of Santa 
Barbara (TNDG was evaluating Sheriff’s Department cost allocations for contract law enforcement 
cities – including Solvang – as part of a contract negotiation process). 

 

8. STANDARD AGREEMENT 

If selected for this assignment, The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) will accept all terms of the 
City’s Standard Consulting Services Agreement. In addition, TNDG will provide and maintain all 
insurances required by the agreement.  

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

438 of 594



 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

26 

APPENDIX A – LINKS TO SAMPLE WORK PRODUCTS 

Representative samples of TNDG’s work are accessible online at the links provided below.  
Although all of our work products are highly customized to reflect the unique circumstances, 
needs and opportunities of each client, the provided samples provide a good indication of the 
level of detail and overall quality of work that Pinole can expect for this project. 
 
Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for County of Ventura, CA  

Report Link: http://vcevsp.org/strategic-plan/strategic-planning-documents/ 

 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Palm Desert, CA 

Report Link: https://www.cityofpalmdesert.org/home/showdocument?id=9273 

 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Kyle, TX 

Report Link: http://kyleed.com/sites/default/files/files/Resources/Kyle%20Economic%20D
evelopment%20Strategic%20Plan%20(9-10-15)%20FINAL.pdf 

 

Project: Investing in Manufacturing Communities Strategic Plan for Yuma County, AZ 

Report Link: http://www.yumacountyaz.gov/home/showdocument?id=23631 

 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Stockton, CA 

Report Link: http://www.stocktongov.com/files/EDStrategicPlan.pdf 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

439 of 594

http://vcevsp.org/strategic-plan/strategic-planning-documents/
https://www.cityofpalmdesert.org/home/showdocument?id=9273
http://kyleed.com/sites/default/files/files/Resources/Kyle%20Economic%20Development%20Strategic%20Plan%20(9-10-15)%20FINAL.pdf
http://kyleed.com/sites/default/files/files/Resources/Kyle%20Economic%20Development%20Strategic%20Plan%20(9-10-15)%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.yumacountyaz.gov/home/showdocument?id=23631
http://www.stocktongov.com/files/EDStrategicPlan.pdf


 

PROPOSAL - COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

27 

APPENDIX B – COMPANY PROFILE (GOLDEN SHOVEL 
AGENCY) 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

440 of 594



G R O U N D B R E A K I N G 
E C O N O M I C
D E V E LO P M E N T  
C O M M U N I C AT I O N S

W W W . G O L D E N S H O V E L A G E N C Y . C O M

SERVICES WE PROVIDE:

• Strategic Marketing Plans 

• Content Strategies and Solutions 

• Web Development 

• Branding 

• Public Relations 

• Social Media Management 

• Paid Campaigns 

• Lead Generation 

• Virtual Reality Tours 

• Opportunity Zone Marketing 

•  Additional Communications Tools

TO IMPLEMENT GROUNDBREAKING 
COMMUNICATIONS  
STRATEGIES, CONTACT:

Warren Westcott 
National Sales Manager 
952.454.4068 
wwestcott@goldenshovel.com

Working with clients on a monthly basis, Golden Shovel strategists 

understand your goals and objectives intimately. They become  

trusted extensions of your team and pull in additional resources  

when necessary. Whether that involves design changes, creating  

custom content, or running an outbound marketing campaign,  

we understand the best way to meet your immediate or long term  

needs. Golden Shovel strategists serve as both account managers  

and project managers to ensure that your communication and  

marketing needs are met month in and month out.

ABOUT GOLDEN SHOVEL

Golden Shovel Agency is a full-service communications firm, working 

exclusively with economic developers, chambers, cities, counties, and 

state government. We bring creative energy to the work of economic 

development. Whether the goal is to attract and support great  

businesses or great talent, we specialize in your world. We’ve helped 

over 200 communities across North America shape and tell their  

stories in order to strengthen the vitality of their regional economies.

We are knowledge experts and communications specialists. Our team 

has a deep understanding of economic development and we use this 

expertise to support our client’s daily activities. Whether it’s engaging 

the press, attracting investments and workforce, or communicating  

with stakeholders and board members, our focus is on our client’s  

success and their consistent ability to win in a competitive space. 

NEED TO ATTRACT 
BUSINESS AND  

TALENT TO YOUR 
COMMUNITY?

ARE YOUR CURRENT 
MARKETING  
STRATEGIES  

REACHING THEIR  
INTENDED  

AUDIENCES?

IS THE DAILY  
CHALLENGE OF  

TIME AND  
RESOURCES  
HINDERING  

POSSIBLE GROWTH?

DO YOU NEED A 
MORE COMPETITIVE 
APPROACH TO WIN 

BUSINESS  
CONSISTENTLY?

THAT’S WHY EVERYTHING WE DO CONNECTS BUSINESSES  
AND TALENT WITH THE COMMUNITIES THEY WILL THRIVE IN.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

441 of 594



OUR CLIENTS SAY IT BEST:

“I worked with Golden Shovel Agency to build an economic  

development portal for Great River Energy and our 28 member  

co-ops. The team at Golden Shovel Agency customizes their  

solution to meet the individual needs of their clients.  

The professionalism, attention to detail, and customer  

service that Golden Shovel provides is outstanding.”

Tom Lambrecht • Great River Energy

“Selecting Golden Shovel to build our new Economic Development 

website was not a risk. Their work with other communities across the 

country garnered immediate consideration. Golden Shovel delivered, 

making this the most seamless, stress-less website development 

project with which I have ever been engaged.”

Linda DiMario • Irvine Chamber Economic Development

“As York County Development Corporation undertook the  

design of the website in partnership with Golden Shovel,  

we had some high level goals. In today’s competitive world, it is  

imperative to stand out, yet have our site answer the questions  

a business or site selector would have. Golden Shovel  

has been an invaluable partner in our efforts.”

Lisa Hurley • York County Development Corporation

G R O U N D B R E A K I N G  E C O N O M I C 
D E V E L O P M E N T  M A R K E T I N G  & 

C O M M U N I C A T I O N S

4 3  E A S T  B R O A D W AY  •  L I T T L E  FA L L S ,  M I N N E S O TA  5 6 3 4 5

W W W . G O L D E N S H O V E L A G E N C Y . C O M

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

442 of 594



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

9/8/2021

(OC) Heffernan Insurance Brokers
18004 Sky Park Circle, Suite 210
Irvine CA 92614

Heffernan Insurance Brokers
925-934-8500 925-934-8278

HIB24-7@heffins.com

License#: 0564249 Travelers Casualty Insurance Company of America 19046
NATEDAL-01 Travelers Property Casualty Company of America 25674

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 489
Yorba Linda CA 92885

Continental Casualty Company 20443

199701259

A X 2,000,000
X 1,000,000

5,000

2,000,000

4,000,000
X

Y 6803R0268982147 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

4,000,000

A Included in GL

X X

Y 6803R0268982147 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

B XY UB8R7414412147G 10/1/2021 9/1/2022

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
C Professional Liability MCH254071817 7/27/2021 7/27/2022 Per Claim

Aggregate
Deductible

$2,000,000
$2,000,000
$5,000

City of Pinole and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are included as an additional insured and primary with respects to the General Liability and
Automobile Liability policies per the attached endorsements, if required. Waiver of Subrogation is included on Workers Compensation policy per the attached
endorsement, if required.

City of Pinole
Attn: Andrew Murray
2131 Pear Street
Pinole, CA 94564

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

443 of 594



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED
(ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS AND SURVEYORS)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

CG D3 81 09 15 © 2015 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.
Includes the copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission

Page 1 of 2

1. The following is added to SECTION II – WHO IS
AN INSURED:

Any person or organization that you agree in a
"written contract requiring insurance" to include as
an additional insured on this Coverage Part, but:

a. Only with respect to liability for "bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal injury"; and

b. If, and only to the extent that, the injury or
damage is caused by acts or omissions of
you or your subcontractor in the performance
of "your work" to which the "written contract
requiring insurance" applies, or in connection
with premises owned by or rented to you.

The person or organization does not qualify as an 
additional insured: 

c. With respect to the independent acts or
omissions of such person or organization; or

d. For "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal injury" for which such person or
organization has assumed liability in a
contract or agreement.

The insurance provided to such additional insured 
is limited as follows: 

e. This insurance does not apply on any basis to
any person or organization for which
coverage as an additional insured specifically
is added by another endorsement to this
Coverage Part.

f. This insurance does not apply to the
rendering of or failure to render any
"professional services".

g. In the event that the Limits of Insurance of the
Coverage Part shown in the Declarations
exceed the limits of liability required by the
"written contract requiring insurance", the
insurance provided to the additional insured
shall be limited to the limits of liability required
by that "written contract requiring insurance".
This endorsement does not increase the
limits of insurance described in Section III –
Limits Of Insurance.

h. This insurance does not apply to "bodily
injury" or "property damage" caused by "your
work" and included in the "products- 
completed operations hazard" unless the
"written contract requiring insurance"
specifically requires you to provide such
coverage for that additional insured, and then
the insurance provided to the additional
insured applies only to such "bodily injury" or
"property damage" that occurs before the end
of the period of time for which the "written
contract requiring insurance" requires you to
provide such coverage or the end of the
policy period, whichever is earlier.

2. The following is added to Paragraph 4.a. of
SECTION IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY CONDITIONS:

The insurance provided to the additional insured
is excess over any valid and collectible other
insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or
on any other basis, that is available to the
additional insured for a loss we cover. However, if
you specifically agree in the "written contract
requiring insurance" that this insurance provided
to the additional insured under this Coverage Part
must apply on a primary basis or a primary and
non-contributory basis, this insurance is primary
to other insurance available to the additional
insured which covers that person or organizations
as a named insured for such loss, and we will not
share with the other insurance, provided that:

(1) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" for
which coverage is sought occurs; and 

(2) The "personal injury" for which coverage is 
sought arises out of an offense committed; 

after you have signed that "written contract 
requiring insurance". But this insurance provided 
to the additional insured still is excess over valid 
and collectible other insurance, whether primary, 
excess, contingent or on any other basis, that is 
available to the additional insured when that 
person or organization is an additional insured 
under any other insurance.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

444 of 594



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Page 2 of 2 CG D3 81 09 15© 2015 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.
Includes the copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission

3. The following is added to Paragraph 8., Transfer 
Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us, 
of SECTION IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL 
LIABILITY CONDITIONS: 

We waive any right of recovery we may have 
against any person or organization because of 
payments we make for "bodily injury", "property 
damage" or "personal injury" arising out of "your 
work" performed by you, or on your behalf, done 
under a "written contract requiring insurance" with 
that person or organization. We waive this right 
only where you have agreed to do so as part of 
the "written contract requiring insurance" with 
such person or organization signed by you 
before, and in effect when, the "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" occurs, or the "personal injury" 
offense is committed.  

4. The following definition is added to the 
DEFINITIONS Section: 

"Written contract requiring insurance" means that 
part of any written contract under which you are 
required to include a person or organization as an 
additional insured on this Coverage Part,  
provided that the "bodily injury" and "property 
damage" occurs and the "personal injury" is 
caused by an offense committed: 

a. After you have signed that written contract; 

b. While that part of the written contract is in 
effect; and 

c. Before the end of the policy period.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

445 of 594



WORKERS COMPENSATION

(BLANKET WAIVER)

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS

POLICY NUMBER:

AND
EMPLOYERS LIABILITY POLICY

ENDORSEMENT – CALIFORNIA

ENDORSEMENT    WC 99 03 76 (  A) -

UB-8R741441-21-47-G

HARTFORD CT 06183
ONE TOWER SQUARE

001

Schedule

Job DescriptionPerson or Organization

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not 
enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule.  

The additional premium for this endorsement shall be            % of the California workers' compensation pre-  
mium. 

2.00

ENGINEERSANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR 
WHICH THE INSURED HAS AGREED 
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT EXECUTED 
PRIOR TO LOSS TO FURNISH THIS 
WAIVER.

Countersigned byInsurance Company

PremiumInsured
Endorsement No.Policy No.Endorsement Effective

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise 
stated.  

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of  
the policy.) 

ST ASSIGN: DATE OF ISSUE: Page of08-16-21 1 1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8555BF9A-1FE3-4973-AEAA-78FCECF0F76DDocuSign Envelope ID: 9958C1CD-7724-43C7-AA88-C159B4876293

446 of 594



  

 
AMENDMENT No. 1 TO THE 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

THE NATELSON DALE GROUP 
 

This First Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated September 13, 2021 
(the “Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and The Natelson Dale Group (“Consultant”) (together sometimes 
referred to as “Parties”) is approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Section 1 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the term of services 
through June 30, 2023. 
   
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Service 
Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 
 
 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
       
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    Roger Dale, Managing Principal  
        
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
 
 
Attest:      
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E5CE0FDD-8E2E-4549-9610-7E02981EC172

11/17/202211/18/2022

447 of 594



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: E5CE0FDD8E2E454996107E02981EC172 Status: Completed

Subject: Docusign: TNDG Contract Amendment

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 1 Signatures: 4 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Lilly Whalen

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

2131 Pear St

Pinole, CA  94564

lwhalen@ci.pinole.ca.us

IP Address: 207.105.182.162

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             11/17/2022 4:14:59 PM

Holder: Lilly Whalen

             lwhalen@ci.pinole.ca.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: City of Pinole Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Roger Dale

dale@natelsondale.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 172.88.221.154

Sent: 11/17/2022 4:19:19 PM

Viewed: 11/17/2022 4:20:24 PM 

Signed: 11/17/2022 4:20:31 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 11/17/2022 4:20:24 PM
      ID: b102e861-0abd-4b0f-a610-d0f1fd10932e

Andrew Murray

amurray@ci.pinole.ca.us

City Manager

Andrew Murray

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 207.105.182.162

Sent: 11/17/2022 4:20:33 PM

Viewed: 11/18/2022 8:35:10 AM 

Signed: 11/18/2022 8:35:17 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 11/18/2022 8:35:10 AM
      ID: 35a06b0d-3a9d-4762-a787-bcdf59f1361f

Eric Casher

ecasher@meyersnave.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 107.116.89.53

Signed using mobile

Sent: 11/18/2022 8:35:19 AM

Viewed: 11/19/2022 10:03:13 AM 

Signed: 11/19/2022 10:03:28 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 11/19/2022 10:03:13 AM
      ID: 6a8824a9-1dbe-490e-bfa5-22e804950773

Heather Bell

hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us

City Clerk

City of Pinole

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 47.229.65.50

Sent: 11/19/2022 10:03:30 AM

Viewed: 11/23/2022 12:14:28 PM 

Signed: 11/23/2022 12:25:23 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

448 of 594



In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Roxane Stone

RStone@ci.pinole.ca.us

Deputy City Clerk

City of Pinole

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 11/23/2022 12:25:25 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/20/2021 3:55:51 PM
      ID: 675f8c29-e843-4f2d-8268-42975da9964c

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 11/17/2022 4:19:19 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 11/23/2022 12:14:28 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 11/23/2022 12:25:23 PM

Completed Security Checked 11/23/2022 12:25:25 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

449 of 594



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, City of Pinole (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you 

certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing 

to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read the 

information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically 

to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please 

confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and 

signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 5/26/2020 12:30:12 PM
Parties agreed to: Roger Dale, Andrew Murray, Eric Casher, Roxane Stone

450 of 594



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact City of Pinole:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 

 

To advise City of Pinole of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the 

body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email address.  We 

do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from City of Pinole  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body 

of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone 

number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with City of Pinole  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

451 of 594



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body of such request you must state your 

email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other information 

from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online 

documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify City of Pinole as described above, you consent to receive 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you by City of Pinole during the course of your relationship with City of 

Pinole. 

452 of 594

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


  

 
AMENDMENT No. 2 TO THE 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

THE NATELSON DALE GROUP 
 

This Second Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated September 13, 
2021 (the “Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and The Natelson Dale Group (“Consultant”) (together sometimes 
referred to as “Parties”) is approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Section 1 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the term of services 
through June 30, 2024. 
   
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Service 
Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 
 
 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
       
____________________________  _______________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    Roger Dale, Managing Principal  
        
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
 
 
Attest:      
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4CF41756-6632-44E9-8568-245026BCB44F

7/3/20237/3/2023

453 of 594



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 4CF41756663244E98568245026BCB44F Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: TNDG Amendment No 2.doc

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 1 Signatures: 4 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Lilly Whalen

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

2131 Pear St

Pinole, CA  94564

lwhalen@ci.pinole.ca.us

IP Address: 207.105.182.162

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             6/30/2023 8:52:18 AM

Holder: Lilly Whalen

             lwhalen@ci.pinole.ca.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: City of Pinole Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Roger Dale

dale@natelsondale.com

Principal

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 172.88.221.154

Sent: 6/30/2023 8:54:57 AM

Viewed: 7/3/2023 7:51:22 AM 

Signed: 7/3/2023 7:51:26 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/3/2023 7:51:22 AM
      ID: 128858ef-b602-4ea0-9abd-2b939a8090e2

Andrew Murray

amurray@ci.pinole.ca.us

City Manager

Andrew Murray

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 135.180.244.243

Signed using mobile

Sent: 7/3/2023 7:51:27 AM

Viewed: 7/3/2023 8:26:53 AM 

Signed: 7/3/2023 8:27:06 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/3/2023 8:26:53 AM
      ID: d1b18637-3468-4aef-a492-19a65711096a

Eric Casher

ecasher@meyersnave.com

City Attorney

City of Pinole

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 206.169.145.130

Sent: 7/3/2023 8:27:07 AM

Viewed: 7/3/2023 8:31:20 AM 

Signed: 7/3/2023 8:31:30 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/3/2023 8:31:20 AM
      ID: a0f8909b-6e92-49cc-bf36-cd1f2921de05

Heather Bell

hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us

City Clerk

City of Pinole

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 207.105.182.162

Sent: 7/3/2023 8:31:31 AM

Viewed: 7/5/2023 11:21:50 AM 

Signed: 7/5/2023 11:22:03 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

454 of 594



In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Roxane Stone

RStone@ci.pinole.ca.us

Deputy City Clerk

City of Pinole

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 7/5/2023 11:22:04 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/20/2021 3:55:51 PM
      ID: 675f8c29-e843-4f2d-8268-42975da9964c

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 6/30/2023 8:54:57 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 7/5/2023 11:21:50 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 7/5/2023 11:22:03 AM

Completed Security Checked 7/5/2023 11:22:04 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

455 of 594



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, City of Pinole (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you 

certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing 

to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read the 

information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically 

to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please 

confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and 

signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 5/26/2020 12:30:12 PM
Parties agreed to: Roger Dale, Andrew Murray, Eric Casher, Roxane Stone

456 of 594



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact City of Pinole:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 

 

To advise City of Pinole of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the 

body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email address.  We 

do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from City of Pinole  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body 

of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone 

number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with City of Pinole  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

457 of 594



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us and in the body of such request you must state your 

email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other information 

from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online 

documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify City of Pinole as described above, you consent to receive 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you by City of Pinole during the course of your relationship with City of 

Pinole. 

458 of 594

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


 
 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 9I  

 
 
 
DATE: AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
FROM: STACY SHELL, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE 
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES (AFSCME) UNION LOCAL 1 FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 
1, 2023 – JUNE 30, 2025 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the City and American Federation of State, County, and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Union Local 1 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 
2025.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current MOU between the City and AFSCME Local 1 expired on June 30, 2023.  In 
accordance with the provisions of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, the City and the 
representatives of AFSCME Local 1 must meet and confer in good faith in an effort to 
reach agreement on terms for a successor MOU. 
 
Prior to the commencement of this round of negotiations, the City undertook a thorough 
review of the current MOU. The City’s labor relations consultant, IEDA, reviewed the 
MOU for potential clean up and clarifying matters, as had frontline Human Resources 
and Finance staff. The City also conducted a total compensation survey of benchmark 
positions within the AFSCME Local 1 bargaining unit to assess the City’s 
competitiveness in the labor market to attract and retain qualified employees. 
 
During the negotiations process, the AFSCME Local 1 and the City exchanged a 
number of economic and non-economic proposals and counter proposals. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City’s negotiating team first met with AFSCME Local 1 on March 29, 2023, to 
commence negotiations for a successor MOU.  During the negotiation process, the City 
and AFSCME Local 1 met eleven times, with the exchange of proposals occurring 
throughout. After meeting and conferring, including the exchanging of counter 
proposals, the City and AFSCME Local 1 reached a Total Tentative Agreement (TTA) 
on July 27, 2023. AFSCME Local 1 members met and notified the City that the 
membership ratified the TTA on August 2, 2023. 
 

459 of 594



City Council Report  
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023  2 

The successor agreement (Exhibit A to the attached resolution) is for a two (2) year 
period. Outlined below are the significant economic changes to the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025.  
A summary of all the changes to the MOU are reflected in the TTA in Attachment B. 
 

Cost of Living Adjustment 
 
A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) of 4% effective the first full pay period following 
June 30, 2023 and another 4% COLA effective the first full pay period following June 
30, 2024. 

 
Equity Adjustment 

 
Based on the City’s desire to attract and retain quality employees, the City and 
AFSCME Local 1 agreed to equity adjustments for classifications identified in the City’s 
total compensation survey to be more than 5% below the median market rate effective 
the first full pay period following June 30, 2023.  
 

• Accounting Technician (7.0%) – no incumbents 
• Administrative Assistant (7.3%) – three incumbents 
• Community Service Officer (17.2%) – two incumbents 
• Police Property Specialist (23.3%) – one incumbent 

 
One-Time, Lump-Sum Payment 

 
In the total compensation survey, aside from the individual classifications identified 
above, on average, a number of benchmark classifications were found to be less than 
5% below market salary. To help mitigate this inequity, the City and AFSCME Local 1 
agreed to a non-pensionable, one-time, lump-sum payment of $2,861.00 to be paid to 
eligible members not affected by the equity adjustments noted above. 
 

Certification/License Pay 
 
Increase premium pay from $75/month to $85/month for Pesticide Applicator, 
Agricultural Pest Control, WWTP Grade III, Building Official, & Refrigerant Recovery & 
Recycle certification/license. 
 

Uniform Allowance 
 
Increase safety shoe reimbursement from $200 to $225 per year. 
 

Life Insurance Benefit 
 

Enhancement of life insurance benefit from $40,000 to one time (1x) the employee’s 
annual salary effective the first full pay period following June 30, 2023. 

 
Long-Term/Short-Term Disability Benefit 

 
460 of 594



City Council Report  
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023  3 

Increase Long-Term Disability max monthly benefit from $2,001 to $4,000. Eliminate 
Short-Term Disability benefit due to double coverage w/ State Disability Insurance. 
 
In addition to the economic proposals listed above, the City agreed to include language 
in the MOU pertaining to other non-economic provisions related to unit composition, 
union release time, City holidays, medical insurance premium contributions, 
management rights, bereavement leave, overtime calculation threshold, meal allotment, 
vacation buy back, section 125 benefits, uniform allowance payments, and retiree 
medical benefits as listed below: 
 

• Incorporate side letter agreement language to include newly created or revised 
classifications assigned to the unit. 

• Union members may request paid time off using their accrued leave, up to a total 
of 80-hours total per year for the bargaining unit, for Union business. 

• Clean-up holiday language to identify holiday dates 7/1/2023 – 6/30/2025. 
• Update medical insurance premium cost share language to continue past 

practice. 
• Modify management rights for the City to meet and discuss contracting out 

services within the bargaining unit’s scope of membership. 
• Modify paid bereavement leave language to allow for non-consecutive leave 

days taken for bereavement and add niece and nephew. 
• Modify overtime threshold to include sick leave in addition to holidays as “hours 

worked” and redefine call back as all hours worked outside of regular schedule. 
• Increase meal allotment from $10 to $20. 
• Increase vacation buy back hours from 52 to 80 hours per year. 
• Memorialize the City’s obligation to meet and confer on the impacts of a section 

125 vendor change. 
• Modify uniform allowance payment schedule to be issued bi-weekly instead of bi-

annually. 
• Revise language to clarify (not modify) the retiree medical benefit provisions. 

 
All economic and non-economic revisions, agreed to by the City and AFSCME Local 1, 
in addition to other formatting or housekeeping changes, are identified in the attached 
redline version of the MOU between the City and AFSCME Local 1 (Attachment C).  
 
The City continues to appreciate the willingness of our employees to complete 
negotiations in a cooperative spirit and we are pleased to be able to provide an increase 
in our employees’ base salaries and total compensation. This agreement represents an 
amenable compromise between the City and our employees and will increase retention 
and recruitment of experienced employees. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total cost of the provisions for this bargaining unit under a two-year agreement is 
estimated at $563,130. However, the adopted FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital 
Budget already included a 3% COLA, so the net additional total cost is estimated at 
$401,766. 
 

461 of 594



City Council Report  
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023  4 

The total costs are spread over various City funds, depending on each employee’s 
staffing allocation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A  Resolution  
 Exhibit A - Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole 

and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
Union Local 1 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025 

Attachment B Total Tentative Agreement – signed July 27, 2023, and ratified August 
2, 2023 

Attachment C Redlined Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole 
and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
Union Local 1 

462 of 594



RESOLUTION 2023- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, 
COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFSCME) UNION LOCAL 1 FOR THE 

PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2023 – JUNE 30, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Pinole and 
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Union 
Local 1 expired on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 3505, the City’s 
Negotiating Team met and conferred in good faith with representatives of AFSCME 
Local 1 to negotiate a successor agreement; and 

WHEREAS, representatives of the City and AFSCME Local 1 first met to 
commence negotiations on March 29, 2023, and reached a Total Tentative Agreement 
for a successor Memorandum of Understanding on July 27, 2023, and  

WHEREAS, the City agreed to retroactivity of the economic changes to the 
Memorandum of Understanding effective the first full pay period following June 30, 
2023; and  

WHEREAS, the Total Tentative Agreement for a successor Memorandum of 
Understanding for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025, was ratified by the 
membership of AFSCME Local 1 on August 2, 2023.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
that it does hereby approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Pinole and AFSCME Local 1 for the period of July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025, as provided 
in Exhibit A, herein incorporated by reference. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on August 15, 2023 the by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ATTACHMENT A

463 of 594



I hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this 15th day of August, 2023. 
  
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 

464 of 594



 

LOCAL 1 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

 
 
 

Between the City of Pinole and 
AFSCME Public Employees Union – Local One 

 
 
 
 

 

JULY 1, 2023 TO JUNE 30, 2025 
 

 

465 of 594



ii 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Public Employees Union – Local One 
Memorandum of Understanding 

 
Table Of Contents 

 
 
PREAMBLE  ............................................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS ....................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION .................................................................................... 2 
2.1 Unit Composition. ............................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE III. DUES DEDUCTION ............................................................................. 2 
3.1 Payroll Deduction of Union Dues. ................................................................... 3 
3.2 Notification of Union Dues Increase. ............................................................... 3 
3.3 Hold Harmless and Indemnification Clause. ................................................... 3 

ARTICLE IV. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP .................................................... 3 
4.1 Revocation of Union Membership. .................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE V. UNION REPRESENTATIVES .............................................................. 4 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. ..................................................... 4 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. ...................................................................... 4 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. ........................................................................ 4 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. ..................................................................................... 4 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. ............................................................. 4 
5.6 Leave for Union Activities. ............................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE VI. SALARIES ........................................................................................... 5 
6.1.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. .......................................................... 5 
6.2 Pay Plan. ......................................................................................................... 5 
6.3 Longevity. ........................................................................................................ 6 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits. ............................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE VII. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME .................................................. 6 
7.1 Work Week Defined. ........................................................................................ 6 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule................................................................................. 6 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. ................................................................................... 6 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. ......................................... 7 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. ..................................... 7 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. ........................................................... 7 
7.7 Call Back. ........................................................................................................ 7 
7.8 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. .......................................................... 8 
7.9 Court Appearance on Off-Duty Hours by Community Services Officers. ........ 9 
7.10 Meal Allotment. ................................................................................................ 9 
7.11 Rest Periods. ................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE VIII. STANDBY PAY .................................................................................... 9 
8.1 Employees Assigned. ...................................................................................... 9 
8.2 Method of Assignment. .................................................................................... 9 
8.3 Cell Phone Assignments. .............................................................................. 10 
8.4 Standby Protocol. .......................................................................................... 10 
8.5 Standby Schedule Assignments. ................................................................... 10 
8.6 Standby Exceptions. ...................................................................................... 10 
8.7 Rest Periods While on Standby. .................................................................... 10 
8.8 Amount of Standby Pay. ................................................................................ 11 
8.9 Mileage Reimbursement While on Standby. ................................................. 11 

ARTICLE IV. ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION ........................................... 11 
9.1 Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. ....................................................................... 11 

466 of 594



iii 

ARTICLE X. SICK LEAVE ...................................................................................... 12 
10.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. ........................................................................... 12 
10.2 Sick Leave Incentive. ..................................................................................... 12 
10.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. ............................................................... 12 
10.4 Use of Sick Leave. ......................................................................................... 12 
10.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. .............................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE XI. HOLIDAYS ......................................................................................... 13 
11.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. ............................................................................ 13 
11.2 List of Official Holidays. ................................................................................. 13 
11.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. ...................................................... 14 
11.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. .................................... 14 
11.5    Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. .............................................. 14 

ARTICLE XII. VACATION ......................................................................................... 14 
12.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. ................................................................. 14 
12.2 Vacation Sell Back. ........................................................................................ 14 
12.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. .............................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE XIII. MEDICAL INSURANCE ..................................................................... 15 
13.1 Medical Insurance Provided. ......................................................................... 15 
13.2 Retiree Medical Insurance. ............................................................................ 16 
13.3 Medical In-Lieu Payments. ............................................................................ 17 

ARTICLE XIV. DENTAL INSURANCE ....................................................................... 18 
14.1 Dental Insurance Provided. ........................................................................... 18 
14.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. ................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE XV. VISION INSURANCE ......................................................................... 18 
15.1 Vision Insurance Provided. ............................................................................ 18 

ARTICLE XVI. LIFE INSURANCE ............................................................................. 18 
16.1 Life Insurance Provided. ................................................................................ 18 
16.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. ..................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE XVII. DISABILITY INSURANCE ................................................................. 19 
17.1 Disability Insurance Provided. ....................................................................... 19 
17.2 Long Term Disability Insurance. .................................................................... 19 
17.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade. ....................................................... 19 

ARTICLE XVIII. FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN, DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP AND 
COVERAGE DEFINED ...................................................................... 19 
18.1 Flexible Benefits Plan. ................................................................................... 19 
18.2 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. .............................................. 19 

ARTICLE XIX. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM ......................................... 20 
19.1 Eligibility for Participation in the Tuition Reimbursement Program. .............. 20 

ARTICLE XX. PREMIUM PAY .................................................................................. 20 
20.1 Pesticide Applicators License. ....................................................................... 20 
20.2 Agricultural Pest Control License. ................................................................. 20 
20.3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Grade License. .............................. 21 
20.4 International Certified Building Official Certificate. ........................................ 21 
20.5 ASE Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Review Certificate. ..................... 21 
20.6 Educational Degrees. .................................................................................... 21 
20.7 Bilingual Pay. ................................................................................................. 22 

ARTICLE XXI. RETIREMENT .................................................................................... 22 
21.1 CalPERS Retirement Plan. ........................................................................... 22 
21.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. ............................................... 22 

ARTICLE XXII. LAUNDRY SERVICE, SAFETY SHOE, UNIFORM AND SAFETY 
EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE .............................................................. 23 
22.1 Uniform Laundry Service. .............................................................................. 23 
22.2 Safety Shoes. ................................................................................................ 23 

467 of 594



iv 

22.3 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Uniform 
Allowance. ..................................................................................................... 23 

22.4 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Safety 
Equipment. .................................................................................................... 24 

22.4.2 Types of Safety Equipment Required-Sworn. ............................................... 24 
22.4.3 Safety and Repair of Safety Equipment. ....................................................... 24 
22.4.4 Amount of Safety Equipment Allowance. ...................................................... 24 
22.5 Withholding Payment of Clothing Allowance. ................................................ 24 

ARTICLE XXIII. CERTIFICATION FEES ..................................................................... 25 
23.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. ......................................... 25 
23.2 Payment of Department of Transportation License Fees. ............................. 25 

ARTICLE XXV. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ................................................................... 25 
25.1 Paid Bereavement Leave. ............................................................................. 25 
25.2 Definition of Immediate Family. ..................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE XXVI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .............................................................. 25 
26.1 Grievance Defined. ........................................................................................ 26 
26.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. ................................................................... 26 
26.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. ...................................................................... 26 
26.4 Grievance Process. ....................................................................................... 26 
26.5 Grievance Procedure..................................................................................... 27 

ARTICLE XXVII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD ................................................................ 29 
27.1 Objective of the Probationary Period. ............................................................ 29 
27.2 Probationary Period. ...................................................................................... 29 
27.3 Promotional Probationary Period. ................................................................. 29 

ARTICLE XXVIII. Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee 
Orientation ........................................................................................ 30 
28.2 Annual AFSCME/Local One Financial Reports Required. ............................ 30 
28.3 Indemnification. ............................................................................................. 30 
28.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO). ................................................. 31 
28.5 Notice Requirements. .................................................................................... 31 
28.6  Reporting Requirements. .............................................................................. 32 

ARTICLE XXIX. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ................................................................... 32 

ARTICLE XXX. DURATION ........................................................................................ 33 
30.1 Term. ............................................................................................................. 33 
30.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. ............................................................ 33 
30.3 Notice of Termination. ................................................................................... 34 
30.4 Effective Date. ............................................................................................... 34 
30.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes. ..................... 34 

SIGNATURES 35 
APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULES 36 
 Effective July 3, 2023 36 
 Effective July 1, 2024 36 

APPENDIX B RESOLUTION 37 
APPENDIX C CSO COURT APPEARANCE OVERTIME 38 
 

468 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

The City of Pinole and representatives of Public Employees Union Local One 
acknowledge and affirm that they have met and conferred in good faith, exchanged 
proposals and counter proposals and in all respects fulfilled their obligations under law 
to meet and confer in good faith. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is the product of the above-described meet and 
confer process. Representatives of the City agree to present this Memorandum of 
Understanding to the City Council for determination and representatives of the Public 
Employees Union Local One agree to present this Memorandum of Understanding to 
their membership for acceptance and approval. 
 
 
PREAMBLE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole on July 6, 1971, entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding, with the United Employees, Local 796; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Memorandum of Understanding, contained provisions for its 
continuance on a year-to-year basis conditioned on either party giving notification of 
termination or modification; and 
 

WHEREAS, the employees formerly represented under this agreement by United 
Employees, Local 790 have formally decertified said representative and have certified 
Public Employees Union Local One as their representative in labor negotiations as of 
July 1, 1995, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Union has indicated to the City, and the City has indicated to the 
Union, its desire to make certain modifications to this Memorandum of Understanding 
 

THEREFORE, the following agreement represents a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Pinole and AFSCME/Public Employees Union Local 
One for the term of July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025, with the same terms and 
conditions of the previous Memorandum of Understanding and subsequent 
amendments between the City and the Union. 
 
 
ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 "City" referred to herein shall be the City of Pinole. 
 
1.2 "Union" referred to herein shall be the AFSCME Council 57/Public Employees 

Union Local One. 
 
1.3 "Employee" referred to herein shall be all regular full-time and regular part-time 

employees of the City of Pinole as illustrated in Article 2 of this Memorandum of 
Understanding.  A regular full-time employee is any employee regularly 

469 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  2 

scheduled to work forty (40) hours per work week.  A regular part-time employee 
is any employee regularly scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per work 
week. 
 

1.4 "Agreement" referred to herein shall be this Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City and the Union. 

 
 
ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION 
 
2.1 Unit Composition. 
 
The City hereby recognizes the Union as the majority representative of the following job 
classifications: 

 
Accounting Technician 
Administrative Assistant 
Cable Access Technician 
Community Services Officer 
Cook 
Laboratory Technician I 
Laboratory Technician II 
Permit Technician I 
Permit Technician II 
Permit Technician III 
Police Property Specialist 
Police Records Specialist 
Public Works Maintenance Worker 
Public Works Senior Maintenance Worker 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Senior Operator 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Senior Maintenance Mechanic 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Maintenance Mechanic 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator in Training 

 
The City agrees to recognize the Union as the exclusive representative of future 
positions appropriate to the unit and agrees to meet and confer with the Union in all 
matters relating, to wages, hours and working conditions of employees in such 
classifications. The City further reserves the right to exclude from membership those 
management and confidential employees so designated. The City also agrees to 
provide appropriate information, furnished by the Union and approved by the City 
Manager, to all new employees of the Union's recognition. 
 
 
ARTICLE III. DUES DEDUCTION 
 

470 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  3 

3.1 Payroll Deduction of Union Dues. 
 
The City shall deduct, once a month, the amount of union dues, as specified by the 
Union under the authority of an authorization card furnished by the Union and signed by 
the employee. Said deductions shall be forwarded promptly to the Union office. No 
authorization shall be allowed for payment of initiation fees, assessments or fines. The 
payroll deductions shall be spelled out in Article 28. 
 
3.2 Notification of Union Dues Increase. 
 
In the event the Union members vote to increase union dues, the Union shall notify the 
City at least thirty days prior to the effective date of the dues increase. The employee 
earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and required deductions are made 
to cover the amount of the appropriate union dues. When a member in good standing of 
the Union is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will be made to 
cover that pay period from future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in 
non-pay status during only part of the pay period, and the wages are not sufficient to 
cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be made. In this connection, all other legal 
and required deductions have priority over Union dues. 
 
3.3 Hold Harmless and Indemnification Clause. 
 
The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any claims made 
and against any suits instituted against the City on account of payroll deductions of 
union dues. The Union agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it in error on 
account of the payroll deduction provision upon presentation of proper evidence thereof. 
 
 
ARTICLE IV. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP 
 
4.1 Revocation of Union Membership. 
 
The City agrees to revocation of Union membership provision as follows: 
 
It is understood that an employee may not revoke his or her authorization for regular 
monthly Union membership dues deduction except: 
 

a.  During a period no less than 60, nor more than 90 days, preceding the         
expiration date of this agreement; 

 
b. In the event of the employee's separation from regular City service, or in 

the event the employee is appointed to a permanent position in a 
classification not covered by this agreement, revocation may take place at 
the time of such status change; or  

 

471 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  4 

c. In the event of a leave of absence without pay or a disability, dues 
deduction shall be suspended until such time as the employee returns to 
his covered classification. 

 
 
ARTICLE V. UNION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. 
 
The Union may designate at least one employee in each division within a department as 
its steward for the purpose of assisting other union members in the resolution of 
disputes concerning wages, hours and working conditions. 
 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. 
 
The City shall afford said stewards reasonable time off during working hours without 
loss of compensation or other benefits when engaged in the activities articulated under 
Government Code Section 3505.3; provided however, that said time is scheduled so as 
not to interfere unduly with the workload and job requirements, as determined by the 
Department Manager or Supervisor; provided further that such time afforded under this 
provision shall be devoted only to matters within the scope of representation. 
 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. 
 
The Union may also designate a committee including a representative from each area 
or department to meet and confer with the City's representatives regarding matters 
within the scope of representation. A maximum of four members including the President 
of the Union shall be afforded reasonable time off during working hours without loss of 
compensation or other benefits while formally meeting and conferring, within the scope 
of representation.  The Union will make a good faith effort to minimize the impact on the 
operations of any one Department. 
 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. 
 
Union stewards engaged in such activities shall first obtain approval from their 
Supervisor before leaving their assigned work areas on such business. 
 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. 
 
All members of the Union shall be allowed a one-half hour release time each quarter for 
Union meetings. 
 
5.6 Leave for Union Activities. 
 

472 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  5 

From time to time up to two (2) employees per calendar year may request leave to 
participate in union activities, e.g., attendance at union conferences, conventions, 
trainings, or retreats. 
 
Such requests for union leave shall follow the procedure for requesting union release 
time.  Union leave is not compensable time unless the employee requests to use their 
own accrued leaves, i.e., accrued vacation leave, accrued floating holiday leave, or 
accrued CTO leave. 
 
Requests for union leave shall be provided to the City not less than 30 days prior to the 
time being requested off and are subject to approval. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI. SALARIES 
 
6.1.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. 
 
Effective first full pay period following July 1, 2023, classifications represented by the 
Union shall receive a four percent (4%) general wage increase. 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2024, classifications represented by 
the Union shall receive a four percent (4%) general wage increase. 
 
6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustment. 
 
Effective first full pay period following July 1, 2023, the following classifications 
represented by the Union shall receive market equity increase adjustments in addition 
and concurrent with the above COLA for 2023: 
 
• Accounting Technician  seven percent (7.0%) 
• Administrative Assistant  seven and three-tenths percent (7.3%) 
• Community Service Officer  seventeen and two-tenths percent (17.2%) 
• Police Property Specialist  twenty-three and three-tenths percent (23.3%) 
 
6.1.3 One-Time Lump Sum Retention Payment. 
 
Eligible employees who are not in the classifications identified in 6.1.2 Market Equity 
Adjustment shall receive a non-pensionable, one-time lump sum retention payment in 
the amount of two thousand eight hundred and sixty-one dollars ($2,861) each, payable 
the first full pay period following adoption and subject to all applicable withholding.  
Eligible employees are those employees that 1) do not receive an equity adjustment 
under 6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustments; 2) are actively employed as of June 30, 2023; 
3) are actively employed at time of payment.  Employees who have separated, for 
whatever reason, during the time frame listed are not eligible. 
6.2 Pay Plan. 
 

473 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  6 

Attachment A reflects the salary steps for each represented position. 
 
6.3 Longevity. 
 
Effective July 1, 2021, employees with fifteen (15) full continuous years of City service 
shall be given an additional 2% pay computed on their normal straight time rate of pay. 
 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits. 
 
For part-time regular employee(s), covered under this MOU, working at least 20 hours 
per week and less than 40 hours per week, compensation and benefits received other 
than the base hourly wage rate, shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours 
regularly scheduled to work in relation to full-time or as defined by federal, state, or local 
law, whichever is greater.   
 
 
ARTICLE VII. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
7.1 Work Week Defined.  
 
The employee's regular workday shall consist of eight hours and the workweek typically 
consists of a seven consecutive day period, Monday through Sunday. Other schedules 
may be assigned consistent with Section 7.8 of this Agreement. The City reserves the 
right to assign new employees to other works weeks and will provide two consecutive 
days off. Where new work weeks are planned by the City, they shall be subject to 
discussion with and review by the Union. Any change in special workweeks, not 
otherwise provided for under this agreement, now in effect, shall be reviewed by the 
City and the Union. 
 
The City shall inform employees thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any permanent 
working hour change (s), which are to be made. It is understood that in cases of natural 
disasters or emergencies that this would not be necessary on a temporary basis. 
Emergency is defined as an unpredictable or unavoidable occurrence at unscheduled 
intervals requiring immediate action. An unpredictable occurrence is unplanned and 
unanticipated. An unavoidable occurrence permits one to have advance knowledge of 
the likelihood of the event. 
 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule. 
 
The City has the right to schedule overtime work as required in the manner most 
advantageous to the City and consistent with the requirement of municipal employment 
and the public interest. Overtime work assignments shall first be offered on a voluntary 
basis to employees, after which assignments shall be made by the Department 
Manager. 
 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. 

474 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  7 

 
Overtime preference, insofar as practical shall be given to the regular, full-time 
employees and on a seniority basis in the classification or position involved. Overtime 
work shall also be distributed equally among qualified employees insofar as possible. 
 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
For employees who work a regular schedule, overtime compensation shall be earned 
for hours worked in excess of (40) hours during a seven-day work period.  The standard 
City work period is a calendar week which begins at 12:00 am on Monday and ends at 
11:59 pm on Sunday.  Current City practice/policy is to include hours in paid leave 
status for holidays as outlined in Section 11.2 (excluding floating holiday) toward 
employees’ overtime thresholds. 
 
Effective the first full pay period after adoption, hours in paid leave status for holidays as 
outlined in Section 11.2 (excluding floating holidays) and sick leave used will count 
toward time worked for purposes of determining eligibility for the overtime rate. 
 
 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
The City of Pinole provides its employees the opportunity of alternative work schedules 
whereby some alternative work schedules include working more than 8 hours a day and 
less than five days a week. The shift duration hours, work week, and work period for 
payroll purposes will be redefined on a case-by-case basis depending on the alternative 
work schedule that has been approved and related FLSA rules.  In these instances, at 
no time is the workweek defined as being more than forty (40) hours in a week. 
Therefore, employees on an alternative work schedule will earn overtime only when 
he/she works more hours in a day than their regular work schedule as approved by the 
City Manager. 
 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. 
 
Compensation for overtime hours worked shall be paid at one and one-half times (1.5x) 
the employee's base hourly rate in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA). Compensatory time off at the rate of one and one-half times (1.5x) the number 
of overtime hours worked may be accrued at the employee's request in lieu of time and 
one-half pay. Compensatory time off may be used at times convenient to the employee 
and the department provided that a reasonable advance notice of intent to use such 
time off is provided by the employee. 
 
At no time shall accrued compensatory time off balance exceed eighty (80) hours with 
payback to be at the accrued rate. Compensatory time off is paid at the employee’s 
FLSA overtime rate. 

 
7.7 Call Back. 

475 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  8 

 
Employees called back to work shall be compensated for at least three (3) hours of pay 
at the rate of time and one-half the employee's base hourly rate plus mileage 
reimbursement at the established IRS mileage rate for all hours outside their regular 
work schedule.  At the discretion of their Supervisor an employee called back to work 
shall be required to work the full three (3) hours. 
 
A request for an employee to continue work beyond the employee’s regular work 
schedule does not constitute “call back.” 
 
If in the event the three (3) hour call back period overlaps with the employee’s regular 
work schedule, the employee shall be entitled to the time and one-half rate for the hours 
worked prior to the beginning of their regular work schedule.  In addition, if the call back 
period overlaps the employee’s regular work schedule, the employee shall receive their 
regular rate of pay plus an additional .5 hours for each hour of overlap. 
 
For example:  Employee’s regular work schedule is from 7:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. (8 
hours).  Employee is called back to work at 6:00 a.m.  Employee is entitled to time and 
one-half pay rate from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., and from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. the 
employee receives two (2) hours of regular pay plus call back of .5 hours for each hour 
of overlap (overlapping period).  The .5 hours reflects the difference between the 
employee’s regular rate of pay and the callback rate of pay.  
 
7.8 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. 
 
Based on mutual agreement of the City and the employee given City needs and staffing 
requirements, employees are eligible for, and may request, alternative work hours or 
flexible hours. These schedules must be approved by the City Manager prior to any 
implementation and must meet all Fair Labor Standards Act requirements. 
 

Alternative Work Schedule: 
 
A regular schedule that is other than the standard 5/8 schedule (eight hours per day, 
five days per week). Examples include a 4/10 schedule (ten hours per day, four days 
per week) or a 9/8/1 schedule (eight, nine hour days and one eight-hour day with one 
day off in a biweekly pay period). Such alternatives are offered to allow workable 
schedules for employer and employee and must not create overtime as required under 
any of the Articles of this agreement or as required by law. 
 

Flex-Time Work Schedule: 
 
A non-regular work schedule with or without a consistent pattern as to the number of 
work hours per day or week, but an arrangement whereby the employee is obligated to 
perform work and be responsible for flexing the hours of his/her own work schedule in 
accordance with a written agreement between the employee and the City. 
 

476 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  9 

7.9 Court Appearance on Off-Duty Hours by Community Services Officers. 
 
Any Community Services Officer appearing as a witness during off-duty hours and 
arising out of his/her employment by the City shall receive compensation.  If the time is 
considered overtime then the employee shall be compensated at the overtime rate; 
otherwise, it shall be compensated at the base hourly rate.  Any Community Services 
Officer so appearing shall be paid at a rate for actual time required, with a minimum of 
three (3) hours of compensation. 
 
7.10 Meal Allotment. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall reimburse each employee in the 
Local One Unit who is required to work more than four (4) hours prior to the beginning 
of their regular work shift or more than four (4) hours after completing their regular work 
shift a total of twenty dollars ($20) for the cost of a meal. 
 
If an employee is required to work a sixth (6th) or seventh (7th) day during any regular 
scheduled workweek, the City shall also reimburse said employee a total of twenty 
dollars ($20) for the cost of a meal. This meal allotment shall be paid to the employee at 
the next regular payroll after the meal is incurred. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
7.11 Rest Periods. 
 
Employees working a scheduled shift of six (6) hours or more shall be provided with one 
(1) paid fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) of the work day.  Rest 
periods shall be scheduled so as not to interfere with efficient operations of the City.  
Rest periods shall not be taken at the beginning or end of the work day, not contiguous 
with the employee’s lunch break.  Rest periods shall not be “banked” – if an employee 
does not take an available rest period, it shall not be carried over to the second half of 
the work shift or any subsequent day. 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII. STANDBY PAY 
 
8.1 Employees Assigned. 
 
Designated employees assigned to Standby are required to remain continuously 
available via the City assigned cellular telephone for the time period assigned to 
respond to calls for service.  
8.2 Method of Assignment. 
 
Assignment for standby shall be made on an equalized rotating basis based on 
seniority. 
 

477 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  10 

8.3 Cell Phone Assignments. 
 
City-provided cell phones will be carried for a two-week period in conjunction with pay 
periods. There will be a primary person and a secondary person assigned to standby 
status for each two-week period.  There will be a seventy- (70) mile radius limit from the 
City of Pinole for persons carrying the cell phone. 
 
8.4 Standby Protocol. 
 
The Police Department will call the primary number twice in a 15-minute period. If there 
is no answer to these calls, the Police Department will call the secondary number. If 
whoever responds to a call requires assistance, they will call the other person on call. If 
there is no response within 15 minutes, the person who responded will call the home 
telephone number of the other on-call employee. 
 
If unable to locate this person, the responding employee shall call other employees for 
assistance. The person not on call who responds will be remunerated at the standby 
pay at the holiday rate for that day. Persons on standby not responding to a call will not 
be paid for standby for that day (except if they had responded to another call and are 
unavailable). 
 
8.5 Standby Schedule Assignments. 
 
Schedule changes will have to have prior approval from the Public Works Director/City 
Engineer through the Public Works Manager or Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager. 
 
Persons who are sick or unable to work call outs will notify their immediate supervisor in 
order that the cell phone may be reassigned. The replacement of person on sick leave, 
worker's compensation leave or on other approved leave will be on a voluntary basis. 
 
If there are no volunteers, the next person on the schedule will be the person to carry 
the cell phone. He or she will be paid at the standby rate for holidays while covering an 
unscheduled standby shift. 

 
8.6 Standby Exceptions. 
 
Standby assignments for the Wastewater Treatment Plant personnel and the 
Wastewater Mechanic shall be identical of the above except that these personnel will 
carry the cell phone through Monday because of days off. There will be only one 
employee assigned to standby per two-week period. 
 
8.7 Rest Periods While on Standby. 
 
An employee on standby who is called out between 1:00 a.m. and 4:00 am and who 
performs a minimum of two (2) hours of work shall have a rest period of six (6) hours 
preceding the employee's next regularly scheduled work shift. An employee who 

478 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  11 

qualifies for this rest period shall be paid for all rest hours that overlap into their next 
regularly scheduled work shift. 
 
For purposes of determining the time frame of the rest period, an employee will be 
required to "clock out" upon their departure from their workplace. The employee shall 
use the City provided time method for this purpose located in their assigned workplace. 
It is understood that the six-hour rest period shall commence at the time the employee 
"clocks out" from work. 
 
In the event of an emergency or a work related situation or problem wherein said 
employee is required to work, as determined by the supervisor, said employee shall 
report to work as normally scheduled at the overtime pay rate for the designated rest 
period. 
 
8.8 Amount of Standby Pay. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the standby designee as 
follows: 
 

• Weekday  $40 per day 
• Weekend  $50 per day 
• Holiday  $60 per day 

 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
8.9 Mileage Reimbursement While on Standby. 
 
Mileage reimbursement from portal to portal travel shall be paid to employees driving 
their personal vehicle when called back pursuant to the IRS mileage reimbursement 
rate in effect for all city travel. 
 
 
ARTICLE IV. ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION 
 
9.1 Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. 
 
In the event an employee is assigned and performs duties in a higher classification, 
following the fifth consecutive workday in that classification, he/she shall be placed at 
the lowest step of the higher classification that provides at least five percent (5%) above 
the employee’s regular base rate of pay, so long as the range for the higher 
classification is not exceeded.  
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the higher-level pay granted 
under this Section shall not inflate nor otherwise have any impact on any other special 
pays, allowances, or differentials granted by other portions of this Agreement. 
 

479 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  12 

ARTICLE X. SICK LEAVE 
 
10.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. 
 
For full-time employees working 40 or more hours a week, sick leave shall be earned 
and accrued at the rate of eight (8) hours for each continuous full calendar month of 
service and shall, or 3.69 hours per pay period in pay status.  The employee must be in 
paid leave status for the full pay period to earn accrued sick leave and accrual shall 
continue from the actual, initial date of most recent employment. Sick leave shall not be 
available to new employees prior to completion of three continuous months of 
employment. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
10.2 Sick Leave Incentive. 
 
Employee sick leave use shall be reviewed by the City at the end of each calendar year 
to determine if any employee qualifies for the sick leave incentive. Employees who do 
not use any sick leave for six consecutive months, July 1st through December 31st, and 
January 1st through June 30th, within the calendar year shall receive an additional four 
(4) hours of accrued vacation time.  Employees who do not use any sick leave for the 
entire calendar year (12 months) will receive an additional eight (8) hours of vacation 
time.  No employee may accrue more than eight (8) hours of vacation in any calendar 
year. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
10.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. 
 
Employees may use sick leave for illness or disability in his/her immediate family. The 
maximum amount of sick leave that may be used for this purpose in any one calendar 
year shall be ten (10) working days.  The hours used under this section will be counted 
towards the maximum hours allowed if FMLA is requested within the same calendar 
year. 
 
10.4 Use of Sick Leave. 
 
Employees may use sick leave in the event of a scheduled medical or dental 
appointment for the eligible employee, the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, or 
the employee’s dependent children that requires the employee’s absence from work. 
The hours used under this section will be counted towards the maximum hours allowed 
if FMLA is requested within the same calendar year. Sick leave shall not be available to 
new employees prior to completion of three continuous months of employment. 
 
10.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. 
 

480 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  13 

All other conditions regulating sick leave accruals and usage contained within the duly 
adopted City Personnel Rules and the City Family Leave Policy shall apply to all 
employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XI. HOLIDAYS 
 
11.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. 
 
In addition to the official holidays listed below, employees shall receive any day 
proclaimed by the President or Governor as a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, and 
shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. The granting of any paid time-off due to 
an Executive Order closing federal offices that is signed by the President of the United 
States, shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year, employees shall receive twelve (12) 
hours of floating holiday that may be taken on any day throughout a fiscal year (July 1 to 
June 30) with prior approval from an employee’s supervisor.  The twelve (12) hours of 
floating holiday shall not be carried forward to the next fiscal year or cashed out. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
11.2 List of Official Holidays. 
 
Employees shall receive twelve (12) annual paid holidays as follows: 
 

• January 1 New Year’s Day 

• Third Monday in January  Martin Luther King’s Birthday 

• Third Monday in February Washington’s Birthday 

• Last Friday in March Cesar Chavez Day 

• Last Monday in May Memorial Day 

• June 19 Juneteenth  

• July 4 Independence Day 

• First Monday in September Labor Day 

• November 11  Veteran’s Day 

• Fourth Thursday in November* Thanksgiving 

• Fourth Friday in November** Day after Thanksgiving 

• December 25 Christmas 
 

*  11/23/2023 and 11/28/2023 
** 11/24/2024 and 11/29/2024 

 
All Holidays are eight (8) hours regardless of the employee’s assigned shift. For 
employees working an alternative or flex work schedule, when the holiday falls on a 
workday in which they are scheduled to work more than 8 hours, the employee must 

481 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  14 

use their accrued vacation or compensatory time off to make up the difference between 
the 8 hours and their scheduled hours. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
11.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. 
 
In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the preceding 
Friday shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. In the event that any of the 
aforementioned days fall on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a 
holiday for pay purposes. 
 
11.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. 
 
If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off the employee shall 
exercise one of the following options: 
 

• The employee shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay – providing a 
total of 88 hours of straight time pay for the pay period; OR 

• The employee shall take an alternate day off within two (2) pay periods (either in 
the same pay period as the holiday falls, or the following pay period).  The 
employee and his/her immediate supervisor shall determine the alternate day to 
be taken. 

 
11.5    Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. 
 
An employee assigned by his/her Department Head to work on a holiday listed above 
shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay plus compensation at the overtime rate 
for hours actually worked on the holiday. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XII. VACATION 
 
12.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. 
 
Upon supervisorial approval, employees shall be given their preference of vacation 
time, and in the case of conflict between employees, classification seniority shall prevail. 
To minimize any conflicts, employees shall submit request for vacation use for the 
preceding six (6) months on or before January 10 and July 10 of each year.  Seniority 
referred to herein shall be defined as the date of hire by classification. 
 
12.2 Vacation Sell Back. 
 

482 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  15 

An employee with a minimum of three (3) years of service has the option to sell back up 
to eighty (80) hours of vacation per calendar year, provided said employee has a 
minimum of 160 hours of vacation accumulated. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
12.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. 
 
Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rates, to the following maximums, for 
continuous service performed: 
 
 Years of Completed Service   Hrs. Accrued Per Year/Pay Period Maximum Accrual (Hrs) 
 0 through 4    96/3.69   192 
 5 through 9    144/5/53   288 
 10 through 15    160/6.15   320 
 16+     192/7.38   384 
 
Once an employee reaches their maximum vacation accrual hours, they will no longer 
accrue vacation leave until they reduce their balance below the cap. Vacation will be 
accrued based on the years of services, by 26 pay periods to the second digit.  An 
employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period in order to accrue vacation 
leave. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIII. MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
13.1 Medical Insurance Provided. 
 
For full-time regular employees, the City agrees to contribute toward the employee’s 
health premium as follows: 
 
Effective January 1, 2023 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2022 Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 2024 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2023 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 2025, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health premium 
will reflect the 2024 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
The City pays the medical premiums for the preceding month in the prior month.  
Employees share of medical premium are also deducted concurrently with the one 
month in advance. Any increase in the premium the City agrees to pay towards 
employees medical will be applied concurrently with the employee deduction.  
 

483 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  16 

Represented employees are free to choose any health care plan offered under the 
CalPERS Health Care Program. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
13.2 Retiree Medical Insurance. 
 
During the term of this MOU the City will contribute toward retiree health premiums as 
follows: 
 

Existing City retirees and current City employees hired before September 1, 
2010, receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium equal to that 
provided to current active employees. 
 
Current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, shall be offered the 
option to opt into the CalPERS Vesting Program upon retirement. If the employee 
opts-in to the CalPERS Vesting Schedule Program (GC 22893), the decision is 
irrevocable (permanent) as CalPERS does not allow the employee to opt out 
later. 
 
Current City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, will receive a City 
contribution toward their retiree health premium in an amount as described by the 
CalPERS Vesting Program (GC 22893), and summarized in the table below. 
 
The CalPERS Vesting Program is regulated by Government Code 22893 and 
applies to City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, and retired City 
employees hired before September 1, 2010, who voluntarily opt in upon 
retirement.  
 
Every year CalPERS calculates the State contribution rates towards retiree 
health premiums, referred to as State Annuitant Contribution Rates. If the rate or 
vested amount does not cover the entire cost of the health premium, the retired 
employee is responsible for the difference.  
 
A City retiree is eligible to receive a contribution towards the retiree medical 
premium if: 

 
1. The City retiree has a minimum of ten (10) years of CalPERS earned 

service credit to receive 50% of the employer contribution. 
 

a. Credited service is compensated CalPERS service time earned 
(G.C. 20069). 

b. Purchased “Additional Retirement Service Credit (ARSC)” does 
not qualify as it is not earned service. 

 

484 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  17 

2. Five (5) of those ten (10) years of CalPERS earned service credit must 
be performed at the City of Pinole. 

 
a. Each additional CalPERS earned service credit year after the 

completion of ten years increases the City’s contribution 
percentage by 5% until the completion of 20 years, at which 
time the retiring employee is eligible for 100% of the State 
Annuitant Contribution Rate (100/90 formula). 

 
CalPERS Credited 
Years of Earned Service 

Percentage of City 
Contribution Based On 
The State’s Rate 

10  50  
11  55  
12  60  
13  65  
14  70  
15  75  
16  80  
17  85  
18  90  
19  95  
20 or more  100  

 
13.3 Medical In-Lieu Payments. 
 
Eligible full-time employees shall be allowed to receive payment in lieu of medical 
insurance as follows: 
 

• One-party coverage = $225 per month or $103.85 per pay period 
• Two-party coverage = $450 per month or $207.69 per pay period 
• Family coverage = $600 per month or $276.92 per pay period 

 
An employee must show proof of adequate medical insurance coverage under another 
health plan before the benefit may be received, and annually thereafter. Employees will 
be subject to provisions of the City's health plans in the event termination of the medical 
in-lieu benefit and resumption of medical coverage is desired. 
 
Employees electing the medical in-lieu option shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
amount received for this option should their coverage election change. It is the duty of 
the employee to notify Human Resources of any such changes.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 

485 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  18 

ARTICLE XIV. DENTAL INSURANCE 
 
14.1 Dental Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the premium for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3 plus Family coverage if desired.  Selection of the 
carrier shall be at the discretion of the City. The City provided dental insurance plan 
provides for a maximum annual dental payout of $1,500 for each employee and for 
each employee’s eligible dependents.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
14.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, employees as defined in Section 1.3, the City 
agrees to pay the premium for the employee and up to Family coverage if desired. 
Selection of the carrier is at the discretion of the City. The City provided orthodontic 
insurance plan provides for a maximum lifetime orthodontic payout of $1,500 for each 
employee and for each employee’s eligible dependents.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XV. VISION INSURANCE 
 
15.1 Vision Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the premium for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3 and up to full family vision care coverage. The City 
provided plan shall provide for a $20 co-payment for examination and a $20 co-payment 
for materials. Selection of the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVI. LIFE INSURANCE 
 
16.1 Life Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to provide term life insurance in 
the amount of one times (1x) the employee’s annual base wage salary for employees as 
defined in Section 1.3 in the Local One unit. Selection of the carrier shall be at the 
discretion of the City. 
 
16.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. 
 

486 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  19 

During the term of this MOU agreement, the City shall pay the premium for life 
insurance coverage of one times (1x) the employee’s annual base wage salary for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3, per year per employee in the Local One unit. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVII. DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 
17.1 Disability Insurance Provided. 
 
The City participates in CASDI for short term disabilities and shall provide a Long Term 
Disability (LTD) Benefit as described in 17.2.  The costs of this program are the 
responsibility of the employee and are paid through payroll deductions. 
 
17.2 Long Term Disability Insurance. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall provide employees as defined in 
Section 1.3, at its own expense, long term disability insurance of two-thirds of salary up 
to six thousand dollars (($6,000) per month (four thousand dollars ($4,000)) maximum 
benefit) with a consecutive 90-day waiting period. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
17.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade. 
 
Employees have the option to upgrade the Long-Term Disability plan to provide two-
thirds of salary up to $5,000 per month at employee expense; provided that all Local 
One unit members opt for this upgraded coverage with said expense taken as a payroll 
deduction. 

 
 
ARTICLE XVIII. FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN, DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP AND 
COVERAGE DEFINED 
 
18.1 Flexible Benefits Plan. 
 
The City will pay the costs for administering a flexible benefits plan for bargaining unit 
members.  Selection of the benefit provider shall be at the discretion of the City.  If the 
City decides to change the administrator for this benefit it will notify the Union not less 
than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the anticipated change date and offer to meet and 
confer with the Union over the impacts of said change. 
 
18.2 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. 
 

487 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  20 

A Domestic Partnership is defined pursuant to the California Family Code.  The City, in 
accordance with CalPERS regulations, will allow coverage for eligible domestic partners 
of employees under the medical, dental and vision health care plans.  Prior to any 
coverage being provided, the employee must provide proof of domestic partnership in 
the form of a valid Certificate of Domestic Partnership issued by the California Secretary 
of State. 
 
ARTICLE XIX. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 
 
19.1 Eligibility for Participation in the Tuition Reimbursement Program. 
 
After completing one (1) year of service with the City, an employee is eligible to 
participate in the tuition reimbursement program.  To be eligible, an employee must 
satisfactorily complete three or more semester units in accredited qualifying job-related 
courses as approved by the Department Head and the City Manager.  
 
Upon completion of the course(s) with a passing grade of “C” or better, or “pass” if taken 
as pass/fail, the employee shall receive reimbursement for tuition, books and related 
expenses to a maximum annual amount of $600 per calendar year.  To receive 
reimbursement the employee must complete the Tuition Reimbursement form, submit 
copies of receipts for expenses, and proof of his/her final grade. 
 
All education or other training courses approved under this program shall be completed 
on an employee’s own time and at his/her own expense. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
ARTICLE XX. PREMIUM PAY 
 
20.1 Pesticide Applicators License. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Pesticide 
Applicator's License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an additional 
eighty-five dollars ($85) per month.  The City will assume all costs of maintaining such 
licenses.  The Department Manager with the approval of the City Manager will 
determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.2 Agricultural Pest Control License. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Agricultural Pest 
Control Adviser's License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an 
additional eighty-five dollars ($85) per month. The City will assume all costs of 

488 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  21 

maintaining such licenses.  The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Grade License. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
specification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Operator's Certification Grade III License or above eighty-five dollars 
($85) per month. Employees who possess a higher-grade certificate than what is 
required in their assigned job classification shall also be eligible for this pay. For 
example, if an employee is classified by the City as a Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Operator I and possesses a State Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II certification, 
he/she is eligible for this pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.4 International Certified Building Official Certificate. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current International 
Certified Building Official Certificate and utilize said certificate in their job responsibilities 
an additional eighty-five dollars ($85) per month.  The City will assume all costs of 
maintaining such licenses. The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.5 ASE Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Review Certificate. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Air Conditioning 
License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an additional eighty-five 
dollars ($85) per month. The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.6 Educational Degrees. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City will pay those employees who have 
earned degrees from accredited college institution additional pay as follows: 
 

• Associates of Art/Science Degree  $ 75.00 per month or $34.61 per pay period 
• Bachelor of Arts/Science Degree  $150.00 per month or $69.23 per pay period 

 

489 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  22 

An employee is only eligible to receive educational degree premium pay for either an 
Associates of Arts/Science degree or Bachelor of Arts/Science degree.  This amount of 
pay is based on an employee possessing either an AA/AS or a BA/BS degree and not 
for both.  An employee is not eligible to receive this pay for multiple degrees and/or 
disciplines. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
This Educational Degree Pay shall only be paid to employees holding a degree beyond 
that which is required for their classification, as outlined in the job description.  Effective 
July 1, 2010, employees currently receiving Degree Pay, who hold a position which 
requires the degree, shall continue to receive the pay until such time as they separate 
from employment or otherwise move from that position. 
 
20.7 Bilingual Pay. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, any employee who in the regular course of 
their employment and after successfully passing a City administered oral and written 
test, uses their bilingual proficiency on a regular basis for the benefit of the City shall 
receive bilingual pay of an additional 5% of their monthly base salary.  This premium 
pay will be effective the first day of the pay period following successful completion of the 
testing process. The City retains the discretion to determine which 
classifications/positions and which languages, are eligible.  This benefit shall not 
compound, nor be compounded by, any other additional compensation. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXI. RETIREMENT 
 
21.1 CalPERS Retirement Plan. 
 
The City shall provide retirement benefits through a contract with the Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS).  The City’s retirement plan is the 2.5% at 55 Plan for 
“classic” employees as defined by PEPRA and CalPERS.  Employees hired on or after 
January 1, 2013 that are “New Members” as defined by PEPRA and CalPERS are 
under the 2% at 62 Plan. 
 
21.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. 
 
Employees under the 2.5% @ 55 plan shall pay the full eight percent (8%) of the 
required CalPERS Employee Contribution Rate.  In accordance with PEPRA, 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 that are “New Members” as defined by 
PEPRA and CalPERS will be responsible to pay their contribution to CalPERS equal to 
50% of the total normal cost for their defined Plan as determined by CalPERS. 
 

490 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  23 

The retirement contribution sharing formula for the CalPERS Employer Contribution 
Rate under the 2.5% at 55 Plan shall be as follows: 
 

A.    Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2021, the employee’s total 
CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and Employee’s 
share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be eighteen percent 
(18%).  

 
B.     Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2022, the employee’s total 

CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and the Employee’s 
share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be fifteen percent (15%). 

 
 
ARTICLE XXII. LAUNDRY SERVICE, SAFETY SHOE, UNIFORM AND SAFETY 

EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE 
 
22.1 Uniform Laundry Service. 
 
The City shall provide a weekly laundry service to all represented maintenance and 
related classes for which the City requires standard attire. The City maintains the ability 
to modify laundry service levels based on need requirement.  In accordance with 
CalPERS compensation requirements, the cost of uniform laundry services provided to 
an employee shall be reported as compensation to the employee. 
 
22.2 Safety Shoes. 
 
The allowance provided by the City for the purchase of safety shoes, except for the 
Police Property Specialist, for maintenance and related job classifications for which the 
City requires safety shoes is two hundred twenty-five dollars ($225) per year paid the 
first pay period in January annually. The allowance paid to employees becoming eligible 
throughout the year shall be prorated. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
22.3 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Uniform 
Allowance. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City-provided uniform allowance for 
Community Services Officers and Police Property Specialist shall be $650.00 per 
calendar year and paid on a pro-rated basis each pay period within that year.  The total 
allowance paid to employees becoming eligible for the allowance throughout the year 
shall be prorated for that year. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 

491 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  24 

22.4 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Safety 
Equipment. 
 
22.4.1 Police Property Specialist. 
 

Employees in the classification of Police Property Specialist shall be provided 
safety equipment by the Department, including a flashlight and holder and radio 
and holder, and other safety equipment as deemed necessary by the 
Department. 
 

22.4.2 Types of Safety Equipment Required-Sworn. 
 

Community Services Officers (CSO) are required to purchase, maintain and 
replace the following items of safety equipment:  duty belt, handcuffs, handcuff 
case, mace holder, baton holder, flashlight, baton, belt keepers (4), rain gear.  
The City will provide all other safety items as deemed necessary. 

 
22.4.3 Safety and Repair of Safety Equipment. 
 

Each CSO shall have available and maintain in proper working order each of the 
above-listed items according to Department standards.  The City will repair or 
replace City issued equipment other than safety equipment listed in Section 
22.4.2, that is not in a usable state due to damage or deterioration. 

 
22.4.4 Amount of Safety Equipment Allowance. 
 

The City will provide each CSO $130.00 per fiscal year ($5.00 per pay period), 
for the purchase of the safety equipmentlisted in Section 22.4.2. 

 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
22.5 Withholding Payment of Clothing Allowance. 
 
Payment of the clothing allowance shall be withheld from employees in the following 
types of status: 
 

a. injury leave or sick leave in excess of three consecutive months; 
b. Medical leave of absence without pay; and/or 
c. Any leave, paid or unpaid, following an application for disability retirement. 

 
It is the intent of this Article that the clothing allowance be paid only in those 
circumstances in which it can reasonably be expected that a represented employee is, 
or in the near future will be, available for work requiring the use of uniforms, extended 
vacation leave excepted. 
 
 

492 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  25 

ARTICLE XXIII. CERTIFICATION FEES 
 
23.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. 
 
Costs involved in the issuance and renewal of certificates required by the City as a 
condition of employment in a regular status with the City shall be paid directly or 
reimbursed by the City to the employee. 
 
23.2 Payment of Department of Transportation License Fees. 
 
Driver's license fees shall not be included as a reimbursable cost; however driver's 
license fees related to Department of Transportation requirements, that is Class A or B 
license fees and the related medical examination shall be paid by the City. 
 
An employee shall have the option to utilize any of the City’s approved medical 
providers for the required medical examination (Concentra or Muir Diablo).  The 
employee shall also have the option to use the Provider of their choice, however they 
shall only be reimbursed up to the City annually negotiated rates with Concentra and 
Muir Diablo. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXV. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
25.1 Paid Bereavement Leave. 
 
Any employee who is absent from work by reason of the death of a member of his/her 
immediate family may be allowed a paid bereavement leave with full pay not to exceed 
five (5) workdays per incident. Certification of loss may be required under certain 
circumstances. However, when it is reasonable and necessary and good cause is 
shown, and upon approval of the Department Head and City Manager, three (3) 
additional paid bereavement days may be granted for such leave. All bereavement 
leave must be taken within one year of said incident.  The days which are used as time 
off do not have to be consecutive.  In order to receive compensation while absent on 
bereavement leave, the employee shall notify his or her immediate Supervisor or the 
Department Head prior to the time set for beginning his/her next shift. 
 
25.2 Definition of Immediate Family. 
 
For purposes of this section immediate family shall be defined to include spouse or 
eligible domestic partner certified by the California Secretary of State, child or stepchild, 
father, mother, step father, step mother, grandfather, grandmother, grandchild, brother, 
sister, step sister, step brother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
son-in-law, or daughter-in-law, niece, or nephew, of the employee. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

493 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  26 

 
26.1 Grievance Defined. 
 
A grievance is any dispute which arises out of the application, enforcement, or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the City Personnel Rules, other applicable regulations, 
policies or procedures governing personnel practices or working conditions. 
 
26.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. 
 
Use of this procedure shall not reflect unfavorably on the employee, the Supervisor(s), 
the Department Manager(s), or the general management of the City. Retaliatory or 
discriminatory action against an employee for using this procedure or discrimination in 
the application of a rule or policy shall be a violation of City policy. 
 
26.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. 
 
This grievance procedure is established to accomplish the following objectives: 
 

a.  To settle the disagreement at the employee-supervisor level, if possible. 
 
b. To provide an orderly procedure to handle the grievance, through each level 

of supervision, if necessary. 
 
c. To resolve the grievance as quickly as possible. 
d. To correct. if possible, the cause of the grievance to prevent future similar 

complaints. 
 
e. To reduce the number of grievances by allowing them to be expressed 

thereby adjusting and eliminating grievances. 
 
f. To promote harmonious relations among employees, their supervisors, and 

the departmental staff. 
 
g. To insure fair and equitable treatment of all employees. 

 
26.4 Grievance Process. 
 
Conduct of Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 
 

a. An aggrieved employee may be represented by his/her recognized 
employee organization, other representative of his/her choosing, including 
an attorney or may represent him or herself in preparing and presenting his 
grievance at any level of review. 

 

494 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  27 

b. The employee and his representative(s), if any, may use a reasonable 
amount of work time, as determined by the appropriate management 
supervisor, if conferring about and in presenting a grievance. 

c. Any monetary grievances shall be limited to the date the grievance was 
originally filed in writing or otherwise as provided in Step I of the Grievance 
Procedure, except in cases where it was impossible for the employee to 
have had prior knowledge of an accounting error. 

 
d. The time limit specified in this article may be extended by mutual agreement 

of the aggrieved employee and the reviewer concerned. 
 
e. Should a decision not be rendered within a stipulated time limit, the 

aggrieved employee may immediately appeal to the next step. 
 
f. The grievance may be considered settled if the decision of any step is not 

appealed within the specified time limit. 
 
26.5 Grievance Procedure. 
 
The Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 

 
 Step 1. 

 
The aggrieved employee will first attempt to resolve the grievance through informal 
discussion with his immediate supervisor by the end of the tenth calendar day following 
the incident upon which the grievance is based. Every attempt will be made to settle the 
issue at this level. 

 
A grievance involving disciplinary action cannot be resolved at a level less than that at 
which the decision for disciplinary action was made. The aggrieved employee may 
petition to the individual who initiated the action being grieved; or, may petition the next 
higher level of supervision for resolution of the grievance. 
 
 Step 2. 

 
If the grievance is not resolved through the informal discussions, the employee will 
reduce the grievance to writing and submit copies to his Department Manager and the 
Personnel Officer within ten (10) calendar days of the discussion with his or her 
immediate supervisor. 

 
The Department Manager shall have ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of a written 
grievance to review the matter and prepare a written response. 

 
Step 3. 
 

495 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  28 

If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the aggrieved employee may appeal the 
decision of his Department Manager to the City Manager in writing within ten calendar 
days of the receipt of the Department Manager‘s response. If the employee wishes, he 
or she may request to have the grievance reviewed by an Employee Appeals Board, 
prior to review by the City Manager, and he or she must so indicate in his or her appeal 
to the City Manager. 
 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance first to the Employee Appeals 
Board, the Board shall be convened to hear the grievance on its merits with the purpose 
of attempting to resolve it in a satisfactory manner. This Board shall consist of three (3) 
members. One member shall be appointed by the affected employee or the Union; one 
member shall be appointed by the City; and the third member who shall act as 
chairperson, shall be selected by the other two members. 
 
No member of the Board shall be a person in the normal line of supervision nor from 
within the same department or division as the affected employee. No member of the 
Board shall be compensated by the City for serving on the Board except that if a City 
employee serves on the Board, he/she shall be released for such service without loss of 
regular straight time compensation during his/her normal work hours. 
 
The Employee Appeals Board shall then determine the facts of the grievance and 
submit a report of its findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten 
calendar days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and 
recommendations shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
Upon receipt of the employee's appeal and/or report and recommendations of the 
Employee Appeals Board, the City Manager may elect the methods he then considers 
appropriate to review and settle the grievance. He/she shall render a written decision to 
all parties directly involved within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the 
employee's appeal, or if the Employee Appeals Board procedure was utilized, after 
receipt of the Employee Appeals Board report. 
 
If the grievance results from disciplinary action taken against the employee, and steps 
one and two of the grievance procedure have been exhausted, the City Manager as 
Hearing Officer shall conduct a hearing, within 30 days of the receipt of the employee's 
appeal or Employee Appeals Board report if such has been requested. However, upon 
receipt of an Employee Appeals Board report, the grievance procedure may be 
concluded if mutually agreed between the grievant and the Department Manager. 
 
If a hearing, though, is to be conducted, the City Manager may continue the hearing 
either for the convenience of the City or upon written application of the employee for a 
period not to exceed an additional 30 days. Written notice of the time and place of the 
hearing, and any continuance thereof, shall be given to the employee.  
 
Such hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 11513 of 
the Government Code of the State of California, except that the employee and other 
persons may be examined as provided in Section 19580 of the Government Code, the 

496 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  29 

employee may be represented by an attorney or his recognized employee organization, 
and the parties may submit all proper and competent evidence against or in support of 
the causes The City Manager shall render a written decision within fifteen days after 
concluding the hearing, and the decision of the City Manager shall be final and not 
subject to review or appeal by the City Council. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
27.1 Objective of the Probationary Period. 
 
The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the selection process and shall be 
utilized for closely observing the employee’s work, for securing the most effective 
adjustment of a new employee to his/her position, and for releasing any probationary 
employee whose performance in the opinion of the Department Head and/or the City 
Manager does not meet the required standards of work.  Nothing in this policy is 
intended to limit the reasons for which an employee may be released during the 
probationary period.  Release of an employee during the probationary period may be 
with or without cause and with or without prior notice to the employee. 
 
27.2 Probationary Period. 
 
All original appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of 
twelve (12) months of active duty from the date of probationary appointment.  All 
promotional appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of six 
(6) months of active duty from the date of promotion.  Days absent without pay, or 
leaves with pay exceeding thirty (30) calendar days during the probationary period shall 
extend the probationary period by the same number of days so as to result in a 
probationary period of active working duty for the required six (6) or twelve (12) months 
of active duty.  Employees who transfer to another position in the same classification 
shall not be required to undergo a new probationary period for the position into which 
he/she is transferring, provided the employee has completed the probationary period in 
the classification at the time of transfer.  During the initial probationary period, the 
employee may be released at any time by the City Manager, City Manager’s designee, 
and/or the Department Head with or without cause and with or without prior notice.  An 
employee released during the probationary period has no right to appeal or grieve the 
release. 
 
The Department Head may extend, the initial probationary period beyond the twelve 
(12) months of active duty when in the opinion of the Department Head, and the City 
Manager additional time is necessary to evaluate the employee’s effectiveness in 
his/her position.  The probationary period shall not exceed eighteen (18) months of 
active duty. 
 
27.3 Promotional Probationary Period. 
 

497 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  30 

An employee who has previously completed the requisite probationary period for an 
initial appointment and who is rejected during a subsequent probationary period for a 
promotional appointment shall be reinstated to the former position from which the 
employee was appointed.  If the employee was dismissed for cause from employment 
during the promotional probationary period, the employee shall not be entitled to such 
reinstatement rights.  An employee rejected during the promotional probationary period 
has no right to appeal or grieve the rejection. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVIII. Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee 

Orientation 
 
28.1 Union Membership. 
 
The City upon receipt of a certified written member list issued by a duly authorized Union 
official, shall deduct dues and voluntary deductions selected by members, as 
established by the Union from the salaries of its members. The Union shall notify the 
City in writing as to the amount of such dues uniformly required of all members of the 
Union and the amounts of any Union sponsored benefit deduction for its members. The 
sums so withheld shall be remitted by the City, without delay, along with a list of 
employees and their respective dues and voluntary deductions. The Union bears 
responsibility for allocating dues and voluntary deductions pursuant to the employee's 
request. 
 
The employees’ earnings must be sufficient after legal and required deductions are 
made to cover the amount of the dues or deductions. When an employee is in a non-
pay status for an entire pay period, no withholdings will be made to cover the pay period 
from the future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status doing 
only part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, 
no deductions shall be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions 
(including health care deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 
 
28.2 Annual AFSCME/Local One Financial Reports Required. 
 
AFSCME / Local One shall submit copies of the financial report required pursuant to the 
labor management disclosures act of 1959 to the City Manager once annually. Copies 
of such reports shall be available to employees at the office of the union. 
 
28.3 Indemnification. 
 
AFSCME / Public Employees Union, Local One shall indemnify and hold the City and its 
officers and employees harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, or any other 
actions arising from the collection of dues and deductions herein. In no event shall the 
City be required to pay for from its own funds Union dues, or deductions that the 
employee was obligated to pay, but failed to pay, regardless of the reason. 
 

498 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  31 

28.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO). 
 
Assembly Bill AB119 (New Employee Orientation- NEO) requires that the public 
employer (City of Pinole) shall provide the exclusive representative (AFSCME Council 
57/ Public Employees Union, Local One) of said employees, mandatory access to its 
new employee orientations. The parties agree to the following and acknowledges the 
parties’ obligation to negotiate pursuant to Government Code Section 3557 and as 
such, parties waive their right to compulsory arbitration provided in Government Code 
Section 3557. 
 
New employee orientation (NEO) means an "in person" meeting designated as such and 
scheduled with representatives of the City to advise and inform new employees of their 
employment benefits, responsibilities, Union/City Rules, and other similar related 
matters. Currently, the City performs new employee orientations. However, there may 
be instances where orientations are held on a different date and/or time following their 
actual start date due to business needs. Typically, the orientation process lasts one (1) 
to two (2) hours and occurs during working hours. 
 
28.5 Notice Requirements. 
 
The City of Pinole shall make every effort to provide written notice (by email or letter) 
to the Union of all new employee orientations, which they represent, at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days, no less than ten (10), prior to the scheduled orientation. The new 
employee orientation notice provided to the Union shall include the date, time, and 
location of the orientation. This will allow for proper scheduling to ensure that 
representative(s) from the Union are available to meet with the employee prior to or 
following the orientation session. If the Union or its representative are not available on 
the day or time The City has scheduled its orientation, The City will allow the Union to 
meet with the new employee within a week of hire. 
AFSCME Council 57 /Public Employees Union, Local One will be provided the 
opportunity to have its Unit President or the Union’s chosen designee to meet with the 
new employee for up to 45 minutes of uninterrupted private time prior to, or following, the 
NEO. The Union may provide for example, literature, written materials, packet of 
information, and or a visual presentation about its Union to the new employee(s). 
The Union's portion of the NEO will be conducted during paid City time as a regular part 
of the new employee orientation. Typically, the Union’s representatives are comprised 
of the Business Agent and/ or the Unit President / or chosen designee bargaining unit 
member. Approval from the Department Director shall be authorized prior to a 
bargaining unit member attending the new employee orientation. At no time shall the 
bargaining unit member (acting as a Union representative) meeting with the new 
employee result in any overtime or additional costs to the City. A bargaining unit 
member attending the orientation as a Union representative shall do so during their 
regular working hours so as to not incur additional costs to the City. If release time is 
requested, the Union will provide The City, in advance notice, of the name(s) of the 
bargaining unit member(s) who they wish to attend the orientation. 
 

499 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  32 

During the new employee orientation, The City shall clearly communicate to each new 
employee hired into a position/classification represented by the (AFSCME/ Local One) 
bargaining unit, that the employee's position is represented by AFSCME / Local One. 
To properly identify current leaders, the Union will provide a roster of current 
representative(s) to the City of Pinole prior to such orientation. 
 
28.6  Reporting Requirements. 
 
Within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire, The City 
shall provide Public Employees Union, Local One with the name, job title, department, 
work location, work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email 
addresses on file with the employer, as well as home address of all newly hired 
employees. AB119 requires that The City provide the Union with this information for all 
employees in the bargaining unit at least every 120 days. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIX. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 
Unless specifically in conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), all 
management rights shall remain vested exclusively with the City.  City management 
rights include but are not limited to: 
 

a) The right to determine the mission of the City, including without limitation 
the City’s agencies, department, divisions, boards, and commissions; 

 
b) The right of full and exclusive control of the management of the City; 

supervision of all operations; determinations of methods, means, location 
and assignments of performing all work; and the composition, assignment, 
direction location and determination of the size and mission of the work 
force; 

 
c) The right to determine the work to be done by employees, including 

establishment of service levels, appropriate staffing and the allocation of 
funds for an position(s) within the City; 

 
d) The right to review and inspect, without notice, all City-owned facilities, 

including without limitation, desktop computers, work areas and desks, 
email, computer storage drives, voicemail systems, as well as filing 
cabinet systems; 

 
e) The right to change or introduce different, new or improved operations, 

technologies, methods or means regarding any City work, and to contract 
out for work, however, the City will meet and discuss with the Union prior 
to contracting out work normally completed by classifications within the 
bargaining unit.  The City will meet with the Union no later than December 
31, 2023, to provide the current status and to review bargaining unit work 
contracted out at the time of ratification; 

500 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  33 

 
f) The right to establish and modify qualifications for employment, including 

the content of any job classification, job description or job announcement, 
and to determine whether minimum qualification are met; 

 
g) The right to maintain and modify the City’s Pay and Classification Plan 

subject to “meet and confer” requirements; 
 

h) The right to establish and enforce Employee Performance Standards and 
Employee Performance Evaluations; 

 
i) The right to schedule and assign work, make reassignments and assign 

overtime work; 
 

j) The right to hire, fire, promote, reassign, transfer, release, discipline, 
layoff, terminate, demote, suspend or reduce in step or grade all 
employees; 

 
k) The right to establish and modify bargaining units and to assign new or 

amended job classifications to particular bargaining units; 
 

l) The right to inquire and investigate regarding complaints or concerns 
about employee performance deficiencies or misconduct of any sort, 
including the right to require employees to appear, respond truthfully in 
good faith regarding any City investigation; and 

 
m) The right to maintain orderly, effective and efficient operations. 

 
“The City's reservation of its management rights does not modify the City's obligation to 
meet and confer on the impacts of management rights decisions on the terms and 
conditions of employment of employees covered by this MOU, to the extent that meet 
and confer would be otherwise required by the Meyers Milias Brown Act.” 
 
 
ARTICLE XXX. DURATION 
 
30.1 Term. 
 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2023, to and through June 
30, 2025.  
 
 
30.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. 
 
It is mutually agreed that the approval and ratification of this Memorandum of 
Understanding relieves the City of any and all further obligations to meet and confer 

501 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  34 

regarding the provisions of this agreement, as required by the Government Code of the 
State of California for the period covered by this agreement, except as to the provisions 
of Section 28.3.  
 
Otherwise, nothing herein shall prevent the parties to this Memorandum of 
Understanding from meeting and conferring, and making modifications hereto by mutual 
consent. 
 
The parties shall begin meeting to negotiate a successor agreement no later than 
February 1, 2025, or other date agreed to by the parties. 
 
30.3 Notice of Termination. 
 
This Agreement shall continue in force and effect thereafter from year to year unless 
either party gives written notice one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the 
expiration date, or any annual anniversary date thereafter to terminate or modify this 
Agreement. 
 
30.4 Effective Date. 
 
All provisions contained in this agreement are effective on the agreement execution 
date unless otherwise specified. 

 
30.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes. 
 
In the event any portion of this Agreement is declared null and void by superseding 
Federal or State law, the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force and 
effect, and the parties shall commence negotiations to ensure that the superseded 
portion shall be rewritten to conform as closely as is possible to the original intent. 
 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

502 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  35 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Stacy Shell, Human Resources Director Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Charlene Davis, Human Resources Analyst Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Gregory Ramirez, Chief Negotiator Date 
 
 
 
AFSCME PUBLIC EMPLOYEES UNION LOCAL 1 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Ana AvilesAvila, President  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Jose Garcia, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Linda Segundo, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Anthony Wilson, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Lisa A. Davis, Chief Negotiator and    Date 
Senior Business Agent

503 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  36 

ATTACHMENT A - SALARY SCHEDULE 
 
 

EFFECTIVE 07/03/2023 
 

 
 

EFFECTIVE 07/01/2024 
 

 
 
 
 

504 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  37 

ATTACHMENT B - RESOLUTION 
 
 

505 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  38 

ATTACHMENT C - CSO COURT APPEARANCE OVERTIME 
 
 

506 of 594



507 of 594



508 of 594



509 of 594



510 of 594



511 of 594



512 of 594



513 of 594



514 of 594



515 of 594



516 of 594



517 of 594



518 of 594



519 of 594



520 of 594



521 of 594



522 of 594



523 of 594



524 of 594



525 of 594



526 of 594



527 of 594



528 of 594



529 of 594



530 of 594



531 of 594



532 of 594



533 of 594



534 of 594



535 of 594



536 of 594



537 of 594



538 of 594



539 of 594



540 of 594



541 of 594



542 of 594



543 of 594



 

LOCAL 1 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

 
 
 

Between the City of Pinole and 
AFSCME Public Employees Union – Local One 

 
 
 
 

 

JULY 1, 2021 2023 TO JUNE 30, 20232025 
 

 

544 of 594



ii 

City of Pinole and AFSCME Public Employees Union – Local One 
Memorandum of Understanding 

 
Table Of Contents 

 
 
PREAMBLE 1 

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS ....................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION .................................................................................... 2 
2.1 Unit Composition. ............................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE III. DUES DEDUCTION ............................................................................. 2 
3.1 Payroll Deduction of Union Dues. ................................................................... 3 
3.2 Notification of Union Dues Increase. ............................................................... 3 
3.3 Hold Harmless and Indemnification Clause. ................................................... 3 

ARTICLE IV. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP .................................................... 3 
4.1 Revocation of Union Membership. .................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE V. UNION REPRESENTATIVES .............................................................. 4 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. ..................................................... 4 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. ...................................................................... 4 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. ........................................................................ 4 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. ..................................................................................... 4 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. ............................................................. 4 

ARTICLE VI. SALARIES ........................................................................................... 5 
6.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. .......................................................... 5 
6.2 Pay Plan. ....................................................................................................... 65 
6.3 Longevity. ........................................................................................................ 6 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits. ............................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE VII. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME .................................................. 6 
7.1 Work Week Defined. ........................................................................................ 6 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule................................................................................. 6 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. ................................................................................. 76 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. ......................................... 7 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. ..................................... 7 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. ........................................................... 7 
7.7 Call Back and Overtime. ................................................................................ 87 
7.8 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. .......................................................... 8 
7.9 Court Appearance on Off-Duty Hours by Community Services Officers. ........ 9 
7.10 Meal Allotment. ................................................................................................ 9 
7.11 Rest Periods. ................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE VIII. STANDBY PAY .................................................................................... 9 
8.1 Employees Assigned. .................................................................................. 109 
8.2 Method of Assignment. ................................................................................ 109 
8.3 Cell Phone Assignments. .............................................................................. 10 
8.4 Standby Protocol. .......................................................................................... 10 
8.5 Standby Schedule Assignments. ................................................................... 10 
8.6 Standby Exceptions. ...................................................................................... 10 
8.7 Rest Periods While on Standby. ................................................................ 1110 
8.8 Amount of Standby Pay. ................................................................................ 11 
8.9 Mileage Reimbursement While on Standby. ................................................. 11 

ARTICLE IV. ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION ........................................... 11 
9.1 Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. ....................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE X. SICK LEAVE ...................................................................................... 12 

545 of 594



iii 

10.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. ........................................................................... 12 
10.2 Sick Leave Incentive. ..................................................................................... 12 
10.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. ............................................................... 12 
10.4 Use of Sick Leave. ......................................................................................... 12 
10.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. .......................................................................... 1312 

ARTICLE XI. HOLIDAYS ......................................................................................... 13 
11.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. ............................................................................ 13 
11.2 List of Official Holidays. ................................................................................. 13 
11.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. ...................................................... 14 
11.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. .................................... 14 
11.5    Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. .............................................. 14 

ARTICLE XII. VACATION ......................................................................................... 14 
12.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. ................................................................. 14 
12.2 Vacation Sell Back. .................................................................................... 1514 
12.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. .............................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE XIII. MEDICAL INSURANCE ..................................................................... 15 
13.1 Medical Insurance Provided. ......................................................................... 15 
13.2 Retiree Medical Insurance. ............................................................................ 16 
13.3 Medical In-Lieu Payments. ........................................................................ 1917 

ARTICLE XIV. DENTAL INSURANCE ................................................................... 2018 
14.1 Dental Insurance Provided. ....................................................................... 2018 
14.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. ............................................................... 2018 

ARTICLE XV. VISION INSURANCE ..................................................................... 2018 
15.1 Vision Insurance Provided. ........................................................................ 2018 

ARTICLE XVI. LIFE INSURANCE ......................................................................... 2118 
16.1 Life Insurance Provided. ............................................................................ 2118 
16.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. ................................................................. 2118 

ARTICLE XVII. DISABILITY INSURANCE ............................................................. 2119 
17.1 Disability Insurance Provided. ................................................................... 2119 
17.2 Long Term Disability Insurance. ................................................................ 2119 
17.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade. ................................................... 2119 

ARTICLE XVIII. DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP AND COVERAGE DEFINED ........... 2219 
18.1 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. .......................................... 2219 

ARTICLE XIX. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM ..................................... 2220 
19.1 Eligibility for Participation in the Tuition Reimbursement Program. .......... 2220 

ARTICLE XX. PREMIUM PAY .............................................................................. 2320 
20.1 Pesticide Applicators License. ................................................................... 2320 
20.2 Agricultural Pest Control License. ............................................................. 2320 
20.3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Grade License. .......................... 2321 
20.4 International Certified Building Official Certificate. .................................... 2321 
20.5 ASE Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Review Certificate. ................. 2421 
20.6 Educational Degrees. ................................................................................ 2421 
20.7 Bilingual Pay. ............................................................................................. 2422 

ARTICLE XXI. RETIREMENT ................................................................................ 2522 
21.1 CalPERS Retirement Plan. ....................................................................... 2522 
21.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. ........................................... 2522 

ARTICLE XXII. LAUNDRY SERVICE, SAFETY SHOE, UNIFORM AND SAFETY 
EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE .......................................................... 2523 
22.1 Uniform Laundry Service. .......................................................................... 2523 
22.2 Safety Shoes. ............................................................................................ 2523 
22.3 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Uniform 

Allowance. ................................................................................................. 2623 

546 of 594



iv 

22.4 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Safety 
Equipment. ................................................................................................ 2624 

22.4.2 Types of Safety Equipment Required-Sworn. ........................................... 2624 
22.4.3 Safety and Repair of Safety Equipment. ................................................... 2624 
22.4.4 Amount of Safety Equipment Allowance. .................................................. 2624 
22.5 Withholding Payment of Clothing Allowance. ............................................ 2724 

ARTICLE XXIII. CERTIFICATION FEES ................................................................. 2725 
23.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. ..................................... 2725 
23.2 Payment of Department of Transportation License Fees. ......................... 2725 

ARTICLE XXV. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ............................................................... 2725 
25.1 Paid Bereavement Leave. ......................................................................... 2725 
25.2 Definition of Immediate Family. ................................................................. 2825 

ARTICLE XXVI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .......................................................... 2825 
26.1 Grievance Defined. .................................................................................... 2826 
26.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. ............................................................... 2826 
26.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. .................................................................. 2826 
26.4 Grievance Process. ................................................................................... 2926 
26.5 Grievance Procedure................................................................................. 2927 

ARTICLE XXVII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD ............................................................ 3129 
27.1 Objective of the Probationary Period. ........................................................ 3129 
27.2 Probationary Period. .................................................................................. 3129 
27.3 Promotional Probationary Period. ............................................................. 3229 

ARTICLE XXVIII. Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee 
Orientation .................................................................................... 3230 
28.2 Annual AFSCME/Local One Financial Reports Required. ........................ 3330 
28.3 Indemnification. ......................................................................................... 3330 
28.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO). ............................................. 3331 
28.5 Notice Requirements. ................................................................................ 3331 
28.6  Reporting Requirements. .......................................................................... 3432 

ARTICLE XXIX. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ............................................................... 3432 

ARTICLE XXX. DURATION .................................................................................... 3633 
30.1 Term. ......................................................................................................... 3633 
30.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. ........................................................ 3633 
30.3 Notice of Termination. ............................................................................... 3634 
30.4 Effective Date. ........................................................................................... 3634 
30.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes. ................. 3634 

 
 

547 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

The City of Pinole and representatives of Public Employees Union Local One 
acknowledge and affirm that they have met and conferred in good faith, exchanged 
proposals and counter proposals and in all respects fulfilled their obligations under law 
to meet and confer in good faith. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is the product of the above-described meet and 
confer process. Representatives of the City agree to present this Memorandum of 
Understanding to the City Council for determination and representatives of the Public 
Employees Union Local One agree to present this Memorandum of Understanding to 
their membership for acceptance and approval. 
 
 
PREAMBLE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole on July 6, 1971, entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding, with the United Employees, Local 796; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Memorandum of Understanding, contained provisions for its 
continuance on a year-to-year basis conditioned on either party giving notification of 
termination or modification; and 
 

WHEREAS, the employees formerly represented under this agreement by United 
Employees, Local 790 have formally decertified said representative and have certified 
Public Employees Union Local One as their representative in labor negotiations as of 
July 1, 1995, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Union has indicated to the City, and the City has indicated to the 
Union, its desire to make certain modifications to this Memorandum of Understanding 
 

THEREFORE, the following agreement represents a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Pinole and AFSCME/Public Employees Union Local 
One for the term of July 1, 2021 2023, through June 30, 2023 2025, with the same 
terms and conditions of the previous Memorandum of Understanding and subsequent 
amendments between the City and the Union. 
 
 
ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 "City" referred to herein shall be the City of Pinole. 
 
1.2 "Union" referred to herein shall be the AFSCME Council 57/Public Employees 

Union Local One. 
 
1.3 "Employee" referred to herein shall be all regular full-time and regular part-time 

employees of the City of Pinole as illustrated in Article 2 of this Memorandum of 
Understanding.  A regular full-time employee is any employee regularly 

548 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  2 

scheduled to work forty (40) hours per work week.  A regular part-time employee 
is any employee regularly scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per work 
week. 
 

1.4 "Agreement" referred to herein shall be this Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City and the Union. 

 
 
ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION 
 
2.1 Unit Composition. 
 
The City hereby recognizes the Union as the majority representative of the following job 
classifications: 

 
Accounting Technician 
Administrative Assistant 
Cable Access Technician 
Community Services Officer 
Cook 
Environmental AssistantLaboratory Technician I 
Laboratory Technician II 
Permit Technician I 
Permit Technician II 
Permit Technician III 
Police Property Specialist 
Police Records Specialist 
Public Works Maintenance Worker 
Public Works Senior Maintenance Worker 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Senior Operator 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Senior Maintenance Mechanic 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Maintenance Mechanic 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator in Training 

 
The City agrees to recognize the Union as the exclusive representative of future 
positions appropriate to the unit and agrees to meet and confer with the Union in all 
matters relating, to wages, hours and working conditions of employees in such 
classifications. The City further reserves the right to exclude from membership those 
management and confidential employees so designated. The City also agrees to 
provide appropriate information, furnished by the Union and approved by the City 
Manager, to all new employees of the Union's recognition. 
 
 
ARTICLE III. DUES DEDUCTION 
 

549 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  3 

3.1 Payroll Deduction of Union Dues. 
 
The City shall deduct, once a month, the amount of union dues, as specified by the 
Union under the authority of an authorization card furnished by the Union and signed by 
the employee. Said deductions shall be forwarded promptly to the Union office. No 
authorization shall be allowed for payment of initiation fees, assessments or fines. The 
payroll deductions shall be spelled out in Article 28. 
 
3.2 Notification of Union Dues Increase. 
 
In the event the Union members vote to increase union dues, the Union shall notify the 
City at least thirty days prior to the effective date of the dues increase. The employee 
earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and required deductions are made 
to cover the amount of the appropriate union dues. When a member in good standing of 
the Union is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will be made to 
cover that pay period from future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in 
non-pay status during only part of the pay period, and the wages are not sufficient to 
cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be made. In this connection, all other legal 
and required deductions have priority over Union dues. 
 
3.3 Hold Harmless and Indemnification Clause. 
 
The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any claims made 
and against any suits instituted against the City on account of payroll deductions of 
union dues. The Union agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it in error on 
account of the payroll deduction provision upon presentation of proper evidence thereof. 
 
 
ARTICLE IV. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP 
 
4.1 Revocation of Union Membership. 
 
The City agrees to revocation of Union membership provision as follows: 
 
It is understood that an employee may not revoke his or her authorization for regular 
monthly Union membership dues deduction except: 
 

a.  During a period no less than 60, nor more than 90 days, preceding the         
expiration date of this agreement; 

 
b. In the event of the employee's separation from regular City service, or in 

the event the employee is appointed to a permanent position in a 
classification not covered by this agreement, revocation may take place at 
the time of such status change; or  

 

550 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  4 

c. In the event of a leave of absence without pay or a disability, dues 
deduction shall be suspended until such time as the employee returns to 
his covered classification. 

 
 
ARTICLE V. UNION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
5.1 Union Representatives/Stewards Defined. 
 
The Union may designate at least one employee in each division within a department as 
its steward for the purpose of assisting other union members in the resolution of 
disputes concerning wages, hours and working conditions. 
 
5.2 Time Off for “Meet and Confer”. 
 
The City shall afford said stewards reasonable time off during working hours without 
loss of compensation or other benefits when engaged in the activities articulated under 
Government Code Section 3505.3; provided however, that said time is scheduled so as 
not to interfere unduly with the workload and job requirements, as determined by the 
Department Manager or Supervisor; provided further that such time afforded under this 
provision shall be devoted only to matters within the scope of representation. 
 
5.3 “Meet and Confer” Committee. 
 
The Union may also designate a committee including a representative from each area 
or department to meet and confer with the City's representatives regarding matters 
within the scope of representation. A maximum of four members including the President 
of the Union shall be afforded reasonable time off during working hours without loss of 
compensation or other benefits while formally meeting and conferring, within the scope 
of representation.  The Union will make a good faith effort to minimize the impact on the 
operations of any one Department. 
 
5.4 Notice to Supervisors. 
 
Union stewards engaged in such activities shall first obtain approval from their 
Supervisor before leaving their assigned work areas on such business. 
 
5.5 Release Time for Quarterly Meetings. 
 
All members of the Union shall be allowed a one-half hour release time each quarter for 
Union meetings. 
 
5.6 Leave for Union Activities. 
 

551 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  5 

From time to time up to two (2) employees per calendar year may request leave to 
participate in union activities, e.g., attendance at union conferences, conventions, 
trainings, or retreats. 
 
Such requests for union leave shall follow the procedure for requesting union release 
time.  Union leave is not compensable time unless the employee requests to use their 
own accrued leaves, i.e., accrued vacation leave, accrued floating holiday leave, or 
accrued CTO leave. 
 
Requests for union leave shall be provided to the City not less than 30 days prior to the 
time being requested off and are subject to approval. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI. SALARIES 
 
6.1.1 Cost of Living and Market Adjustments. 
 
Effective first full pay period following July 1, 20212023, classifications represented by 
the Union shall receive a three percent (3%)four percent (4%) general wage increase. 
 
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 20222024, classifications represented 
by the Union shall receive a three percent (3.0%)four percent (4%) general wage 
increase. 
 
6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustment. 
 
Effective first full pay period following July 1, 20212023, or if a Total Tentative 
Agreement is reached on or after September 1, 2021, the first full pay period following 
ratification by the Union and approval by the City,the following classifications 
represented by the Union shall receive a three percent (3%) market equity increase 
adjustments in addition and concurrent with the above COLA for 2023:. 
 
• Accounting Technician  seven percent (7.0%) 
• Administrative Assistant  seven and three-tenths percent (7.3%) 
• Community Service Officer  seventeen and two-tenths percent (17.2%) 
• Police Property Specialist  twenty-three and three-tenths percent (23.3%) 
 
6.1.3 One-Time Lump Sum Retention Payment. 
 
Eligible employees who are not in the classifications identified in 6.1.2 Market Equity 
Adjustment shall receive a non-pensionable, one-time lump sum retention payment in 
the amount of two thousand eight hundred and sixty-one dollars ($2,861) each, payable 
the first full pay period following adoption and subject to all applicable withholding.  
Eligible employees are those employees that 1) do not receive an equity adjustment 
under 6.1.2 Market Equity Adjustments; 2) are actively employed as of June 30, 2023; 
3) are actively employed at time of payment.  Employees who have separated, for 

552 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  6 

whatever reason, during the time frame listed are not eligible.Effective the first full pay 
period following July 1, 2022, classifications represented by the Union shall receive a 
three percent (3.0%) market equity increase adjustment. 
 
6.2 Pay Plan. 
 
Attachment A reflects the salary steps for each represented position. 
 
6.3 Longevity. 
 
Effective July 1, 2021, employees with fifteen (15) full continuous years of City service 
shall be given an additional 2% pay computed on their normal straight time rate of pay. 
 
6.4 Pro-rata Benefits. 
 
For part-time regular employee(s), covered under this MOU, working at least 20 hours 
per week and less than 40 hours per week, compensation and benefits received other 
than the base hourly wage rate, shall be pro-rated based on the percentage of hours 
regularly scheduled to work in relation to full-time or as defined by federal, state, or local 
law, whichever is greater.   
 
 
ARTICLE VII. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
7.1 Work Week Defined.  
 
The employee's regular workday shall consist of eight hours and the workweek typically 
consists of a seven consecutive day period, Monday through Sunday. Other schedules 
may be assigned consistent with Section 7.8 of this Agreement. The City reserves the 
right to assign new employees to other works weeks and will provide two consecutive 
days off. Where new work weeks are planned by the City, they shall be subject to 
discussion with and review by the Union. Any change in special workweeks, not 
otherwise provided for under this agreement, now in effect, shall be reviewed by the 
City and the Union. 
 
The City shall inform employees thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any permanent 
working hour change (s), which are to be made. It is understood that in cases of natural 
disasters or emergencies that this would not be necessary on a temporary basis. 
Emergency is defined as an unpredictable or unavoidable occurrence at unscheduled 
intervals requiring immediate action. An unpredictable occurrence is unplanned and 
unanticipated. An unavoidable occurrence permits one to have advance knowledge of 
the likelihood of the event. 
 
7.2 Overtime Work Schedule. 
 

553 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  7 

The City has the right to schedule overtime work as required in the manner most 
advantageous to the City and consistent with the requirement of municipal employment 
and the public interest. Overtime work assignments shall first be offered on a voluntary 
basis to employees, after which assignments shall be made by the Department 
Manager. 
 
7.3 Overtime and Seniority. 
 
Overtime preference, insofar as practical shall be given to the regular, full-time 
employees and on a seniority basis in the classification or position involved. Overtime 
work shall also be distributed equally among qualified employees insofar as possible. 
 
7.4 Regular Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
For most employees who work a regular schedule, overtime compensation shall be 
earned for hours worked in excess of (40) hours during a seven-day work period.  The 
standard City work period is a Calendar calendar week which begins at 12:00 am on 
Monday and ends at 11:59 pm on Sunday.  Current City practice/policy is to include 
hours in paid leave status for holidays as outlined in Section 11.2 (excluding floating 
holiday) toward employees’ overtime thresholds. Employees on an alternative work 
schedule become eligible for overtime when the actual hours worked exceed forty (40) 
hours during their work week. 
 
Effective the first full pay period after adoption, hours in paid leave status for holidays as 
outlined in Section 11.2 (excluding floating holidays) and sick leave used will count 
toward time worked for purposes of determining eligibility for the overtime rate. 
 
 
7.5 Alternative Work Week-Amount of Overtime Earned. 
 
The City of Pinole provides its employees the opportunity of alternative work schedules 
whereby some alternative work schedules include working more than 8 hours a day and 
less than five days a week. The shift duration hours, work week, and work period for 
payroll purposes will be redefined on a case-by-case basis depending on the alternative 
work schedule that has been approved and related FLSA rules.  In these instances, at 
no time is the workweek defined as being more than forty (40) hours in a week. 
Therefore, employees on an alternative work schedule will earn overtime only when 
he/she works more hours in a day than their regular work schedule as approved by the 
City Manager. 
 
7.6 Rate of Overtime/Compensatory Time. 
 
Compensation for overtime hours worked shall be paid at one and one-half times (1.5x) 
the employee's base hourly rate in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA). Compensatory time off at the rate of one and one-half times (1.5x) the number 
of overtime hours worked may be accrued at the employee's request in lieu of time and 

554 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  8 

one-half pay. Compensatory time off may be used at times convenient to the employee 
and the department provided that a reasonable advance notice of intent to use such 
time off is provided by the employee. 
 
At no time shall accrued compensatory time off balance exceed eighty (80) hours with 
payback to be at the accrued rate. Compensatory time off is paid at the employee’s 
FLSA overtime rate. 

 
7.7 Call Back and Overtime. 
 
Employees called back to work overtime shall be compensated for at least three (3) 
hours of pay at the rate of time and one-half the employee's base hourly rate plus 
mileage reimbursement at the established IRS mileage rate for all hours outside their 
regular work schedule.  At the discretion of their Supervisor an employee called back to 
work shall be required to work the full three (3) hours. 
 
A request for an employee to continue work beyond the employee’s regular work 
schedule does not constitute “call back.” 
 
If in the event the three (3) hour call back period overlaps with the employee’s regular 
work schedule, the employee shall be entitled to the time and one-half overtimerate for 
the hours worked prior to the beginning of their regular work schedule.  In addition, if the 
call back period overlaps the employee’s regular work schedule, the employee shall 
receive their regular rate of pay plus an additional .5 hours for each hour of overlap. 
 
For example:  Employee’s regular work schedule is from 7:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. (8 
hours).  Employee is called back to work at 6:00 a.m.  Employee is entitled to time and 
one-half pay rate from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., and from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. the 
employee receives two (2) hours of regular pay plus call back of .5 hours for each hour 
of overlap (overlapping period).  The .5 hours reflects the difference between the 
employee’s regular rate of pay and the callback overtime rate of pay.  
 
7.8 Alternative Work Schedules/Flex Time. 
 
Based on mutual agreement of the City and the employee given City needs and staffing 
requirements, employees are eligible for, and may request, alternative work hours or 
flexible hours. These schedules must be approved by the City Manager prior to any 
implementation and must meet all Fair Labor Standards Act requirements. 
 

Alternative Work Schedule: 
 
A regular schedule that is other than the standard 5/8 schedule (eight hours per day, 
five days per week). Examples include a 4/10 schedule (ten hours per day, four days 
per week) or a 9/8/1 schedule (eight, nine hour days and one eight-hour day with one 
day off in a biweekly pay period). Such alternatives are offered to allow workable 

555 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  9 

schedules for employer and employee and must not create overtime as required under 
any of the Articles of this agreement or as required by law. 
 

Flex-Time Work Schedule: 
 
A non-regular work schedule with or without a consistent pattern as to the number of 
work hours per day or week, but an arrangement whereby the employee is obligated to 
perform work and be responsible for flexing the hours of his/her own work schedule in 
accordance with a written agreement between the employee and the City. 
 
7.9 Court Appearance on Off-Duty Hours by Community Services Officers. 
 
Any Community Services Officer appearing as a witness during off-duty hours and 
arising out of his/her employment by the City shall receive compensation.  If the time is 
considered overtime then the employee shall be compensated at the overtime rate; 
otherwise, it shall be compensated at the base hourly rate.  Any Community Services 
Officer so appearing shall be paid at a rate for actual time required, with a minimum of 
three (3) hours of compensation. 
 
7.10 Meal Allotment. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall reimburse each employee in the 
Local One Unit who is required to work more than four (4) hours prior to the beginning 
of their regular work shift or more than four (4) hours after completing their regular work 
shift a total of $10twenty dollars ($20) for the cost of a meal. 
 
If an employee is required to work a sixth (6th) or seventh (7th) day during any regular 
scheduled workweek, the City shall also reimburse said employee a total of $10twenty 
dollars ($20) for the cost of a meal. This meal allotment shall be paid to the employee at 
the next regular payroll after the meal is incurred. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
7.11 Rest Periods. 
 
Employees working a scheduled shift of six (6) hours or more shall be provided with one 
(1) paid fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) of the work day.  Rest 
periods shall be scheduled so as not to interfere with efficient operations of the City.  
Rest periods shall not be taken at the beginning or end of the work day, not contiguous 
with the employee’s lunch break.  Rest periods shall not be “banked” – if an employee 
does not take an available rest period, it shall not be carried over to the second half of 
the work shift or any subsequent day. 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII. STANDBY PAY 
 

556 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  10 

8.1 Employees Assigned. 
 
Designated employees assigned to Standby are required to remain continuously 
available via the City assigned cellular telephone for the time period assigned to 
respond to calls for service.  
8.2 Method of Assignment. 
 
Assignment for standby shall be made on an equalized rotating basis based on 
seniority. 
 
8.3 Cell Phone Assignments. 
 
City-provided cell phones will be carried for a two-week period in conjunction with pay 
periods. There will be a primary person and a secondary person assigned to standby 
status for each two-week period.  There will be a seventy- (70) mile radius limit from the 
City of Pinole for persons carrying the cell phone. 
 
8.4 Standby Protocol. 
 
The Police Department will call the primary number twice in a 15-minute period. If there 
is no answer to these calls, the Police Department will call the secondary number. If 
whoever responds to a call requires assistance, they will call the other person on call. If 
there is no response within 15 minutes, the person who responded will call the home 
telephone number of the other on-call employee. 
 
If unable to locate this person, the responding employee shall call other employees for 
assistance. The person not on call who responds will be remunerated at the standby 
pay at the holiday rate for that day. Persons on standby not responding to a call will not 
be paid for standby for that day (except if they had responded to another call and are 
unavailable). 
 
8.5 Standby Schedule Assignments. 
 
Schedule changes will have to have prior approval from the Public Works Director/City 
Engineer through the Public Works Manager or Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager. 
 
Persons who are sick or unable to work call outs will notify their immediate supervisor in 
order that the cell phone may be reassigned. The replacement of person on sick leave, 
worker's compensation leave or on other approved leave will be on a voluntary basis. 
 
If there are no volunteers, the next person on the schedule will be the person to carry 
the cell phone. He or she will be paid at the standby rate for holidays while covering an 
unscheduled standby shift. 

 
8.6 Standby Exceptions. 
 

557 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  11 

Standby assignments for the Wastewater Treatment Plant personnel and the 
Wastewater Mechanic shall be identical of the above except that these personnel will 
carry the cell phone through Monday because of days off. There will be only one 
employee assigned to standby per two-week period. 
 
8.7 Rest Periods While on Standby. 
 
An employee on standby who is called out between 1:00 a.m. and 4:00 am and who 
performs a minimum of two (2) hours of work shall have a rest period of six (6) hours 
preceding the employee's next regularly scheduled work shift. An employee who 
qualifies for this rest period shall be paid for all rest hours that overlap into their next 
regularly scheduled work shift. 
 
For purposes of determining the time frame of the rest period, an employee will be 
required to "clock out" upon their departure from their workplace. The employee shall 
use the City provided time method for this purpose located in their assigned workplace. 
It is understood that the six-hour rest period shall commence at the time the employee 
"clocks out" from work. 
 
In the event of an emergency or a work related situation or problem wherein said 
employee is required to work, as determined by the supervisor, said employee shall 
report to work as normally scheduled at the overtime pay rate for the designated rest 
period. 
 
8.8 Amount of Standby Pay. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the standby designee as 
follows: 
 

• Weekday  $40 per day 
• Weekend  $50 per day 
• Holiday  $60 per day 

 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
8.9 Mileage Reimbursement While on Standby. 
 
Mileage reimbursement from portal to portal travel shall be paid to employees driving 
their personal vehicle when called back pursuant to the IRS mileage reimbursement 
rate in effect for all city travel. 
 
 
ARTICLE IV. ACTING IN HIGHER CLASSIFICATION 
 
9.1 Pay Defined and Rate of Pay. 
 

558 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  12 

In the event an employee is assigned and performs duties in a higher classification, 
following the fifth consecutive workday in that classification, he/she shall be placed at 
the lowest step of the higher classification that provides at least five percent (5%) above 
the employee’s regular base rate of pay, so long as the range for the higher 
classification is not exceeded.  
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the higher-level pay granted 
under this Section shall not inflate nor otherwise have any impact on any other special 
pays, allowances, or differentials granted by other portions of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE X. SICK LEAVE 
 
10.1 Rate of Sick Leave Earned. 
 
For full-time employees working 40 or more hours a week, sick leave shall be earned 
and accrued at the rate of eight (8) hours for each continuous full calendar month of 
service and shall, or 3.69 hours per pay period in pay status.  The employee must be in 
paid leave status for the full pay period to earn accrued sick leave and accrual shall 
continue from the actual, initial date of most recent employment. Sick leave shall not be 
available to new employees prior to completion of three continuous months of 
employment. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
10.2 Sick Leave Incentive. 
 
Employee sick leave use shall be reviewed by the City at the end of each calendar year 
to determine if any employee qualifies for the sick leave incentive. Employees who do 
not use any sick leave for six consecutive months, July 1st through December 31st, and 
January 1st through June 30th, within the calendar year shall receive an additional four 
(4) hours of accrued vacation time.  Employees who do not use any sick leave for the 
entire calendar year (12 months) will receive an additional eight (8) hours of vacation 
time.  No employee may accrue more than eight (8) hours of vacation in any calendar 
year. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
10.3 Use of Sick Leave for Family Care. 
 
Employees may use sick leave for illness or disability in his/her immediate family. The 
maximum amount of sick leave that may be used for this purpose in any one calendar 
year shall be ten (10) working days.  The hours used under this section will be counted 
towards the maximum hours allowed if FMLA is requested within the same calendar 
year. 
 
10.4 Use of Sick Leave. 

559 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  13 

 
Employees may use sick leave in the event of a scheduled medical or dental 
appointment for the eligible employee, the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, or 
the employee’s dependent children that requires the employee’s absence from work. 
The hours used under this section will be counted towards the maximum hours allowed 
if FMLA is requested within the same calendar year. Sick leave shall not be available to 
new employees prior to completion of three continuous months of employment. 
 
10.5 Other Use of Sick Leave. 
 
All other conditions regulating sick leave accruals and usage contained within the duly 
adopted City Personnel Rules and the City Family Leave Policy shall apply to all 
employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE XI. HOLIDAYS 
 
11.1 Authorized Legal Holidays. 
 
In addition to the official holidays listed below, employees shall receive any day 
proclaimed by the President or Governor as a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, and 
shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. The granting of any paid time-off due to 
an Executive Order closing federal offices that is signed by the President of the United 
States, shall be at the discretion of the City. 
 
Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year, employees shall receive twelve (12) 
hours of floating holiday that may be taken on any day throughout a fiscal year (July 1 to 
June 30) with prior approval from an employee’s supervisor.  The twelve (12) hours of 
floating holiday shall not be carried forward to the next fiscal year or cashed out. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
11.2 List of Official Holidays. 
 
Employees shall receive twelve (12) annual paid holidays as follows: 
 

• January 1 New Year’s Day 

• Third Monday in January  Martin Luther King’s Birthday 

• Third Monday in February Washington’s Birthday 

• Last Friday in March Cesar Chavez Day 

• Last Monday in May Memorial Day 

• June 19 Juneteenth  

• July 4 Independence Day 

• First Monday in September Labor Day 

• November 11  Veteran’s Day 

• Fourth Thursday in November* Thanksgiving 

560 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  14 

• Fourth Friday in November** Day after Thanksgiving 

• December 25 Christmas 
 

*  11/2523/2021 2023 and 11/2428/20222023 
** 11/2624/2021 2024 and 11/2529/20222024 

 
All Holidays are eight (8) hours regardless of the employee’s assigned shift. For 
employees working an alternative or flex work schedule, when the holiday falls on a 
workday in which they are scheduled to work more than 8 hours, the employee must 
use their accrued vacation or compensatory time off to make up the difference between 
the 8 hours and their scheduled hours. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
11.3 Holidays Falling on Saturday or Sunday. 
 
In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the preceding 
Friday shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. In the event that any of the 
aforementioned days fall on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a 
holiday for pay purposes. 
 
11.4 Holidays Falling on a Regularly Scheduled Day Off. 
 
If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off the employee shall 
exercise one of the following options: 
 

• The employee shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay – providing a 
total of 88 hours of straight time pay for the pay period; OR 

• The employee shall take an alternate day off within two (2) pay periods (either in 
the same pay period as the holiday falls, or the following pay period).  The 
employee and his/her immediate supervisor shall determine the alternate day to 
be taken. 

 
11.5    Compensation for Hours Worked on a Holiday. 
 
An employee assigned by his/her Department Head to work on a holiday listed above 
shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay plus compensation at the overtime rate 
for hours actually worked on the holiday. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XII. VACATION 
 
12.1 Vacation Schedule and Seniority. 
 

561 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  15 

Upon supervisorial approval, employees shall be given their preference of vacation 
time, and in the case of conflict between employees, classification seniority shall prevail. 
To minimize any conflicts, employees shall submit request for vacation use for the 
preceding six (6) months on or before January 10 and July 10 of each year.  Seniority 
referred to herein shall be defined as the date of hire by classification. 
 
12.2 Vacation Sell Back. 
 
An employee with a minimum of three (3) years of service has the option to sell back up 
to fifty two (52)eighty (80) hours of vacation per calendar year, provided said employee 
has a minimum of 160 hours of vacation accumulated. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
12.3 Rate of Vacation Earned. 
 
Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rates, to the following maximums, for 
continuous service performed: 
 
 Years of Completed Service   Hrs. Accrued Per Year/Pay Period Maximum Accrual (Hrs) 
 0 through 4    96/3.69   192 
 5 through 9    144/5/53   288 
 10 through 15    160/6.15   320 
 16+     192/7.38   384 
 
Once an employee reaches their maximum vacation accrual hours, they will no longer 
accrue vacation leave until they reduce their balance below the cap. Vacation will be 
accrued based on the years of services, by 26 pay periods to the second digit.  An 
employee must be in a paid status for the full pay period in order to accrue vacation 
leave. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIII. MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
13.1 Medical Insurance Provided. 
 
For full-time regular employees, the City agrees to contribute toward the employee’s 
health premium as follows: 
 
Effective January 1, 2020 2023 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2019 2022 Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 
 
Effective January 1, 2022 2024 the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2021 2023 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of 
coverage. 

562 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  16 

 
Effective January 1, 20232025, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will reflect the 2022 2024 CalPERS Public Agency Kaiser rate at each level of 
coverage. 
 
The City pays the medical premiums for the preceding month in the prior month.  
Employees share of medical premium are also deducted concurrently with the one 
month in advance. Any increase in the premium the City agrees to pay towards 
employees medical will be applied concurrently with the employee deduction.  
 
Represented employees are free to choose any health care plan offered under the 
CalPERS Health Care Program. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
13.2 Retiree Medical Insurance. 
 
During the term of this MOU the City will contribute toward retiree health premiums as 
follows: 
 

Existing City retirees and current City employees hired before September 1, 
2010, receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium equal to that 
provided to current active employees. 
 
Current City employees hired before September 1, 2010, shall be offered the 
option to opt into the CalPERS Vesting Program upon retirement. If the employee 
opts-in to the CalPERS Vesting Schedule Program (GC 22893), the decision is 
irrevocable (permanent) as CalPERS does not allow the employee to opt out 
later. 
 
Current City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, will receive a City 
contribution toward their retiree health premium in an amount as described by the 
CalPERS Vesting Program (GC 22893), and summarized in the table below. 
 
The CalPERS Vesting Program is regulated by Government Code 22893 and 
applies to City employees hired on or after September 1, 2010, and retired City 
employees hired before September 1, 2010, who voluntarily opt in upon 
retirement.  
 
Every year CalPERS calculates the State contribution rates towards retiree 
health premiums, referred to as State Annuitant Contribution Rates. If the rate or 
vested amount does not cover the entire cost of the health premium, the retired 
employee is responsible for the difference.  
 
A City retiree is eligible to receive a contribution towards the retiree medical 
premium if: 

563 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  17 

 
1. The City retiree has a minimum of ten (10) years of CalPERS earned 

service credit to receive 50% of the employer contribution. 
 

a. Credited service is compensated CalPERS service time earned 
(G.C. 20069). 

b. Purchased “Additional Retirement Service Credit (ARSC)” does 
not qualify as it is not earned service. 

 
2. Five (5) of those ten (10) years of CalPERS earned service credit must 

be performed at the City of Pinole. 
 

a. Each additional CalPERS earned service credit year after the 
completion of ten years increases the City’s contribution 
percentage by 5% until the completion of 20 years, at which 
time the retiring employee is eligible for 100% of the State 
Annuitant Contribution Rate (100/90 formula). 

 
CalPERS Credited 
Years of Earned Service 

Percentage of City 
Contribution Based On 
The State’s Rate 

10  50  
11  55  
12  60  
13  65  
14  70  
15  75  
16  80  
17  85  
18  90  
19  95  
20 or more  100  

▪ Existing retirees retain their retiree health contribution rate. 
 

▪ Employees hired before July 1, 2010 receive a City contribution toward their 
retiree health premium equal to that provided to current active employees.  
Employees hired before July 1, 2010 shall be offered the option to opt into the 
vesting program as soon after the program implementation as allowed per 
CalPERS regulations. 

 
▪ Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010 receive a City contribution toward their 

retiree health premium in an amount as described by Government Code Section 
22893 (the PERS vesting schedule).  Government Code Section 22893 currently 
reads as follows: 

 

564 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  18 

(a) Notwithstanding Section 22892, the percentage of employer 
contribution payable for postretirement health benefits for an employee of 
a contracting agency subject to this section shall, except as provided in 
subdivision (b), be based on the member's completed years of credited 
state service at retirement as shown in the following table: 
 
 Credited           Percentage of 
 Years               Employer 
 of Service        Contribution 
  10                    50 
  11                    55 
  12                    60 
  13                    65 
  14                    70 
  15                    75 
  16                    80 
  17                    85 
  18                    90 
  19                    95 
  20 or more       100 
 
 This subdivision shall apply only to employees who retire for service and 
are first employed after this section becomes applicable to their employer, 
except as otherwise provided in paragraph (6). The application of this 
subdivision shall be subject to the following provisions: 
 
   (1) The employer contribution with respect to each annuitant shall be 
adjusted by the employer each year. Those adjustments shall be based 
upon the principle that the employer contribution for each annuitant may 
not be less than the amount equal to 100 percent of the weighted average 
of the health benefit plan premiums for an employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self-alone, during the benefit year to which the formula is applied, for 
the four health benefit plans that had the largest state enrollment, 
excluding family members, during the previous benefit year. For each 
annuitant with enrolled family members, the employer shall contribute an 
additional 90 percent of the weighted average of the additional premiums 
required for enrollment of those family members, during the benefit year to 
which the formula is applied, in the four health benefit plans that had the 
largest state enrollment, excluding family members, during the previous 
benefit year. Only the enrollment of, and premiums paid by, state 
employees and annuitants enrolled in basic health benefit plans shall be 
counted for purposes of calculating the employer contribution under this 
section. 
 

565 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  19 

   (2) The employer shall have, in the case of employees represented by a 
bargaining unit, reached an agreement with that bargaining unit to be 
subject to this section. 
 
   (3) The employer shall certify to the board, in the case of employees not 
represented by a bargaining unit, that there is not an applicable 
memorandum of understanding. 
 
   (4) The credited service of an employee for the purpose of determining 
the percentage of employer contributions applicable under this section 
shall mean state service as defined in Section 20069, except that at least 
five years of service shall have been performed entirely with that 
employer. 
 
   (5) The employer shall provide the board any information requested that 
the board determines is necessary to implement this section. 
 
   (6) The employer may, once each year without discrimination, allow all 
employees who were first employed before this section became applicable 
to the employer to individually elect to be subject to the provisions of this 
section, and the employer shall notify the board which employees have 
made that election. 
   (b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the contribution payable by an 
employer subject to this section shall be equal to 100 percent of the 
amount established pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) on behalf 
of any annuitant who either: 
 
   (1) Retired for disability. 
 
   (2) Retired for service with 20 or more years of service credit entirely 
with that employer, regardless of the number of days after separation from 
employment. The contribution payable by an employer under this 
paragraph shall be paid only if it is greater than, and made in lieu of, a 
contribution payable to the annuitant by another employer under this part. 
The board shall establish application procedures and eligibility criteria to 
implement this paragraph. 
 
   (c) This section does not apply to any contracting agency, its 
employees, or annuitants unless and until the agency files with the board 
a resolution of its governing body electing to be so subject. The resolution 
shall be adopted by a majority vote of the governing body and shall be 
effective at the time provided in board regulations. 

 
13.3 Medical In-Lieu Payments. 
 

566 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  20 

Eligible full-time employees shall be allowed to receive payment in lieu of medical 
insurance as follows: 
 

• One-party coverage = $225 per month or $103.85 per pay period 
• Two-party coverage = $450 per month or $207.69 per pay period 
• Family coverage = $600 per month or $276.92 per pay period 

 
An employee must show proof of adequate medical insurance coverage under another 
health plan before the benefit may be received, and annually thereafter. Employees will 
be subject to provisions of the City's health plans in the event termination of the medical 
in-lieu benefit and resumption of medical coverage is desired. 
 
Employees electing the medical in-lieu option shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
amount received for this option should their coverage election change. It is the duty of 
the employee to notify Human Resources of any such changes.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XIV. DENTAL INSURANCE 
 
14.1 Dental Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the premium for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3 plus Family coverage if desired.  Selection of the 
carrier shall be at the discretion of the City. The City provided dental insurance plan 
provides for a maximum annual dental payout of $1,500 for each employee and for 
each employee’s eligible dependents.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
14.2 Orthodontic Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, employees as defined in Section 1.3, the City 
agrees to pay the premium for the employee and up to Family coverage if desired. 
Selection of the carrier is at the discretion of the City. The City provided orthodontic 
insurance plan provides for a maximum lifetime orthodontic payout of $1,500 for each 
employee and for each employee’s eligible dependents.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XV. VISION INSURANCE 
 
15.1 Vision Insurance Provided. 
 

567 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  21 

During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to pay the premium for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3 and up to full family vision care coverage. The City 
provided plan shall provide for a $20 co-payment for examination and a $20 co-payment 
for materials. Selection of the carrier shall be at the discretion of the City.  
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVI. LIFE INSURANCE 
 
16.1 Life Insurance Provided. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City agrees to provide term life insurance in 
the amount of $40,000 perone times (1x) the employee’s annual base wage salary for 
employees as defined in Section 1.3 in the Local One unit. Selection of the carrier shall 
be at the discretion of the City. 
 
16.2 Life Insurance Premium Rates. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City shall pay the premium for life 
insurance coverage of $40,000 forone times (1x) the employee’s annual base wage 
salary for employees as defined in Section 1.3, per year per employee in the Local One 
unit. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
 
ARTICLE XVII. DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 
17.1 Disability Insurance Provided. 
 
The City participates in CASDI for short term disabilities and shall provide a Long Term 
Disability (LTD) Benefit as described in 17.2agrees to provide the State Short-Term 
Disability Insurance program, for employees as defined in Section 1.3.  The costs of this 
program are the responsibility of the employee, and are paid through payroll deductions. 
 
17.2 Long Term Disability Insurance. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, the City shall provide employees as defined in 
Section 1.3, at its own expense, long term disability insurance of two-thirds of salary up 
to $3,000six thousand dollars (($6,000) per month ($2,000four thousand dollars 
($4,000)) maximum benefit) with a consecutive 3090-day waiting period. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
17.3 Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade. 

568 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  22 

 
Employees have the option to upgrade the Long-Term Disability plan to provide two-
thirds of salary up to $5,000 per month at employee expense; provided that all Local 
One unit members opt for this upgraded coverage with said expense taken as a payroll 
deduction. 

 
 
ARTICLE XVIII. FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN, DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP AND 
COVERAGE DEFINED 
 
18.1 Flexible Benefits Plan. 
 
The City will pay the costs for administering a flexible benefits plan for bargaining unit 
members.  Selection of the benefit provider shall be at the discretion of the City.  If the 
City decides to change the administrator for this benefit it will notify the Union not less 
than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the anticipated change date and offer to meet and 
confer with the Union over the impacts of said change. 
 
18.12 Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined. 
 
A Domestic Partnership is defined pursuant to the California Family Code.  The City, in 
accordance with CalPERS regulations, will allow coverage for eligible domestic partners 
of employees under the medical, dental and vision health care plans.  Prior to any 
coverage being provided, the employee must provide proof of domestic partnership in 
the form of a valid Certificate of Domestic Partnership issued by the California Secretary 
of State. 
 
ARTICLE XIX. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 
 
19.1 Eligibility for Participation in the Tuition Reimbursement Program. 
 
After completing one (1) year of service with the City, an employee is eligible to 
participate in the tuition reimbursement program.  To be eligible, an employee must 
satisfactorily complete three or more semester units in accredited qualifying job-related 
courses as approved by the Department Head and the City Manager.  
 
Upon completion of the course(s) with a passing grade of “C” or better, or “pass” if taken 
as pass/fail, the employee shall receive reimbursement for tuition, books and related 
expenses to a maximum annual amount of $600 per calendar year.  To receive 
reimbursement the employee must complete the Tuition Reimbursement form, submit 
copies of receipts for expenses, and proof of his/her final grade. 
 
All education or other training courses approved under this program shall be completed 
on an employee’s own time and at his/her own expense. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 

569 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  23 

 
ARTICLE XX. PREMIUM PAY 
 
20.1 Pesticide Applicators License. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Pesticide 
Applicator's License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an additional 
$75.00eighty-five dollars ($85) per month.  The City will assume all costs of maintaining 
such licenses.  The Department Manager with the approval of the City Manager will 
determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.2 Agricultural Pest Control License. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Agricultural Pest 
Control Adviser's License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an 
additional $75.00eighty-five dollars ($85) per month. The City will assume all costs of 
maintaining such licenses.  The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Grade License. 
 
During the term of the MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
specification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Operator's Certification Grade III License or above $75.00eighty-five 
dollars ($85) per month. Employees who possess a higher-grade certificate than what is 
required in their assigned job classification shall also be eligible for this pay. For 
example, if an employee is classified by the City as a Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Operator I and possesses a State Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II certification, 
he/she is eligible for this pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.4 International Certified Building Official Certificate. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current International 
Certified Building Official Certificate and utilize said certificate in their job responsibilities 
an additional $75.00eighty-five dollars ($85) per month.  The City will assume all costs 
of maintaining such licenses. The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 

570 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  24 

 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.5 ASE Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Review Certificate. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, when not required by the employee’s 
classification, the City will pay those employees who have a current Air Conditioning 
License and utilize said license in their job responsibilities an additional $75.00eighty-
five dollars ($85) per month. The Department Manager with the approval of the City 
Manager will determine whether an employee is eligible for the additional pay. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
20.6 Educational Degrees. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City will pay those employees who have 
earned degrees from accredited college institution additional pay as follows: 
 

• Associates of Art/Science Degree  $ 75.00 per month or $34.61 per pay period 
• Bachelor of Arts/Science Degree  $150.00 per month or $69.23 per pay period 

 
An employee is only eligible to receive educational degree premium pay for either an 
Associates of Arts/Science degree or Bachelor of Arts/Science degree.  This amount of 
pay is based on an employee possessing either an AA/AS or a BA/BS degree and not 
for both.  An employee is not eligible to receive this pay for multiple degrees and/or 
disciplines. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
This Educational Degree Pay shall only be paid to employees holding a degree beyond 
that which is required for their classification, as outlined in the job description.  Effective 
July 1, 2010, employees currently receiving Degree Pay, who hold a position which 
requires the degree, shall continue to receive the pay until such time as they separate 
from employment or otherwise move from that position. 
 
20.7 Bilingual Pay. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, any employee who in the regular course of 
their employment and after successfully passing a City administered oral and written 
test, uses their bilingual proficiency on a regular basis for the benefit of the City shall 
receive bilingual pay of an additional 5% of their monthly base salary.  This premium 
pay will be effective the first day of the pay period following successful completion of the 
testing process. The City retains the discretion to determine which 
classifications/positions and which languages, are eligible.  This benefit shall not 
compound, nor be compounded by, any other additional compensation. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 

571 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  25 

 
 
ARTICLE XXI. RETIREMENT 
 
21.1 CalPERS Retirement Plan. 
 
The City shall provide retirement benefits through a contract with the Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS).  The City’s retirement plan is the 2.5% at 55 Plan for 
“classic” employees as defined by PEPRA and CalPERS.  Employees hired on or after 
January 1, 2013 that are “New Members” as defined by PEPRA and CalPERS are 
under the 2% at 62 Plan. 
 
21.2 Employee and Employer Contribution Rates. 
 
Employees under the 2.5% @ 55 plan shall pay the full eight percent (8%) of the 
required CalPERS Employee Contribution Rate.  In accordance with PEPRA, 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 that are “New Members” as defined by 
PEPRA and CalPERS will be responsible to pay their contribution to CalPERS equal to 
50% of the total normal cost for their defined Plan as determined by CalPERS. 
 
The retirement contribution sharing formula for the CalPERS Employer Contribution 
Rate under the 2.5% at 55 Plan shall be as follows: 
 

A.    Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2021, the employee’s total 
CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and Employee’s 
share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be eighteen percent 
(18%).  

 
B.     Effective the full pay period that contains July 1, 2022, the employee’s total 

CalPERS contribution (combined Employee contribution and the Employee’s 
share of the City’s contribution) for employees shall be fifteen percent (15%). 

 
 
ARTICLE XXII. LAUNDRY SERVICE, SAFETY SHOE, UNIFORM AND SAFETY 

EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE 
 
22.1 Uniform Laundry Service. 
 
The City shall provide a weekly laundry service to all represented maintenance and 
related classes for which the City requires standard attire. The City maintains the ability 
to modify laundry service levels based on need requirement.  In accordance with 
CalPERS compensation requirements, the cost of uniform laundry services provided to 
an employee shall be reported as compensation to the employee. 
 
22.2 Safety Shoes. 
 

572 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  26 

The allowance provided by the City for the purchase of safety shoes, except for the 
Police Property Specialist, for maintenance and related job classifications for which the 
City requires safety shoes is $200.00two hundred twenty-five dollars ($225) per year 
paid the first pay period in January annually. The allowance paid to employees 
becoming eligible throughout the year shall be prorated. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
22.3 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Uniform 
Allowance. 
 
During the term of this MOU agreement, the City-provided uniform allowance for 
Community Services Officers and Police Property Specialist shall be $650.00 per 
calendar year, and paid on a pro-rated basis each pay period within that yearthe first 
pay period in January annually.  The total allowance paid to employees becoming 
eligible for the allowance throughout the year shall be prorated for that year. 
 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
22.4 Community Services Officer and Police Property Specialist Safety 
Equipment. 
 
22.4.1 Police Property Specialist. 
 

Employees in the classification of Police Property Specialist shall be provided 
safety equipment by the Department, including a flashlight and holder and radio 
and holder, and other safety equipment as deemed necessary by the 
Department. 
 

22.4.2 Types of Safety Equipment Required-Sworn. 
 

Community Services Officers (CSO) are required to purchase, maintain and 
replace the following items of safety equipment:  duty belt, handcuffs, handcuff 
case, mace holder, baton holder, flashlight, baton, belt keepers (4), rain gear.  
The City will provide all other safety items as deemed necessary. 

 
22.4.3 Safety and Repair of Safety Equipment. 
 

Each CSO shall have available and maintain in proper working order each of the 
above-listed items according to Department standards.  The City will repair or 
replace City issued equipment other than safety equipment listed in Section 
22.4.2, that is not in a usable state due to damage or deterioration. 

 
22.4.4 Amount of Safety Equipment Allowance. 
 

573 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  27 

The City will provide each CSO $130.00 per fiscal year ($5.00 per pay period), 
for the purchase of the safety equipmentlisted in Section 22.4.2. 

 
For part-time employees, please refer to Article 6.4 regarding Pro-Rata Benefits. 
 
22.5 Withholding Payment of Clothing Allowance. 
 
Payment of the clothing allowance shall be withheld from employees in the following 
types of status: 
 

a. injury leave or sick leave in excess of three consecutive months; 
b. Medical leave of absence without pay; and/or 
c. Any leave, paid or unpaid, following an application for disability retirement. 

 
It is the intent of this Article that the clothing allowance be paid only in those 
circumstances in which it can reasonably be expected that a represented employee is, 
or in the near future will be, available for work requiring the use of uniforms, extended 
vacation leave excepted. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIII. CERTIFICATION FEES 
 
23.1 Payment for Certificate Issuance and Renewals. 
 
Costs involved in the issuance and renewal of certificates required by the City as a 
condition of employment in a regular status with the City shall be paid directly or 
reimbursed by the City to the employee. 
 
23.2 Payment of Department of Transportation License Fees. 
 
Driver's license fees shall not be included as a reimbursable cost; however driver's 
license fees related to Department of Transportation requirements, that is Class A or B 
license fees and the related medical examination shall be paid by the City. 
 
An employee shall have the option to utilize any of the City’s approved medical 
providers for the required medical examination (Concentra or Muir Diablo).  The 
employee shall also have the option to use the Provider of their choice, however they 
shall only be reimbursed up to the City annually negotiated rates with Concentra and 
Muir Diablo. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXV. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
25.1 Paid Bereavement Leave. 
 

574 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  28 

Any employee who is absent from work by reason of the death of a member of his/her 
immediate family may be allowed a paid bereavement leave with full pay not to exceed 
five (5) workdays per incident. Certification of loss may be required under certain 
circumstances. However, when it is reasonable and necessary and good cause is 
shown, and upon approval of the Department Head and City Manager, three (3) 
additional paid bereavement days may be granted for such leave. All bereavement 
leave must be taken within one year of said incident.  The days which are used as time 
off do not have to be consecutive.  In order to receive compensation while absent on 
bereavement leave, the employee shall notify his or her immediate Supervisor or the 
Department Head prior to the time set for beginning his/her next shift. 
 
25.2 Definition of Immediate Family. 
 
For purposes of this section immediate family shall be defined to include spouse or 
eligible domestic partner certified by the California Secretary of State, child or stepchild, 
father, mother, step father, step mother, grandfather, grandmother, grandchild, brother, 
sister, step sister, step brother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
son-in-law, or daughter-in-law, niece, or nephew, of the employee. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
26.1 Grievance Defined. 
 
A grievance is any dispute which arises out of the application, enforcement, or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the City Personnel Rules, other applicable regulations, 
policies or procedures governing personnel practices or working conditions. 
 
26.2 Reflection for Use of Procedure. 
 
Use of this procedure shall not reflect unfavorably on the employee, the Supervisor(s), 
the Department Manager(s), or the general management of the City. Retaliatory or 
discriminatory action against an employee for using this procedure or discrimination in 
the application of a rule or policy shall be a violation of City policy. 
 
26.3 Grievance Procedure Defined. 
 
This grievance procedure is established to accomplish the following objectives: 
 

a.  To settle the disagreement at the employee-supervisor level, if possible. 
 
b. To provide an orderly procedure to handle the grievance, through each level 

of supervision, if necessary. 
 
c. To resolve the grievance as quickly as possible. 

575 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  29 

d. To correct. if possible, the cause of the grievance to prevent future similar 
complaints. 

 
e. To reduce the number of grievances by allowing them to be expressed 

thereby adjusting and eliminating grievances. 
 
f. To promote harmonious relations among employees, their supervisors, and 

the departmental staff. 
 
g. To insure fair and equitable treatment of all employees. 

 
26.4 Grievance Process. 
 
Conduct of Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 
 

a. An aggrieved employee may be represented by his/her recognized 
employee organization, other representative of his/her choosing, including 
an attorney or may represent him or herself in preparing and presenting his 
grievance at any level of review. 

 
b. The employee and his representative(s), if any, may use a reasonable 

amount of work time, as determined by the appropriate management 
supervisor, if conferring about and in presenting a grievance. 

c. Any monetary grievances shall be limited to the date the grievance was 
originally filed in writing or otherwise as provided in Step I of the Grievance 
Procedure, except in cases where it was impossible for the employee to 
have had prior knowledge of an accounting error. 

 
d. The time limit specified in this article may be extended by mutual agreement 

of the aggrieved employee and the reviewer concerned. 
 
e. Should a decision not be rendered within a stipulated time limit, the 

aggrieved employee may immediately appeal to the next step. 
 
f. The grievance may be considered settled if the decision of any step is not 

appealed within the specified time limit. 
 
26.5 Grievance Procedure. 
 
The Grievance Procedure shall be as follows: 

 
 Step 1. 

 
The aggrieved employee will first attempt to resolve the grievance through informal 
discussion with his immediate supervisor by the end of the tenth calendar day following 

576 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  30 

the incident upon which the grievance is based. Every attempt will be made to settle the 
issue at this level. 

 
A grievance involving disciplinary action cannot be resolved at a level less than that at 
which the decision for disciplinary action was made. The aggrieved employee may 
petition to the individual who initiated the action being grieved; or, may petition the next 
higher level of supervision for resolution of the grievance. 
 
 Step 2. 

 
If the grievance is not resolved through the informal discussions, the employee will 
reduce the grievance to writing and submit copies to his Department Manager and the 
Personnel Officer within ten (10) calendar days of the discussion with his or her 
immediate supervisor. 

 
The Department Manager shall have ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of a written 
grievance to review the matter and prepare a written response. 

 
Step 3. 
 

If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the aggrieved employee may appeal the 
decision of his Department Manager to the City Manager in writing within ten calendar 
days of the receipt of the Department Manager‘s response. If the employee wishes, he 
or she may request to have the grievance reviewed by an Employee Appeals Board, 
prior to review by the City Manager, and he or she must so indicate in his or her appeal 
to the City Manager. 
 
If the aggrieved employee selects to submit the grievance first to the Employee Appeals 
Board, the Board shall be convened to hear the grievance on its merits with the purpose 
of attempting to resolve it in a satisfactory manner. This Board shall consist of three (3) 
members. One member shall be appointed by the affected employee or the Union; one 
member shall be appointed by the City; and the third member who shall act as 
chairperson, shall be selected by the other two members. 
 
No member of the Board shall be a person in the normal line of supervision nor from 
within the same department or division as the affected employee. No member of the 
Board shall be compensated by the City for serving on the Board except that if a City 
employee serves on the Board, he/she shall be released for such service without loss of 
regular straight time compensation during his/her normal work hours. 
 
The Employee Appeals Board shall then determine the facts of the grievance and 
submit a report of its findings along with a recommendation for settlement within ten 
calendar days from their appointment to the case. Copies of the report and 
recommendations shall be submitted to the City Manager and the aggrieved employee. 
Upon receipt of the employee's appeal and/or report and recommendations of the 
Employee Appeals Board, the City Manager may elect the methods he then considers 

577 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  31 

appropriate to review and settle the grievance. He/she shall render a written decision to 
all parties directly involved within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the 
employee's appeal, or if the Employee Appeals Board procedure was utilized, after 
receipt of the Employee Appeals Board report. 
 
If the grievance results from disciplinary action taken against the employee, and steps 
one and two of the grievance procedure have been exhausted, the City Manager as 
Hearing Officer shall conduct a hearing, within 30 days of the receipt of the employee's 
appeal or Employee Appeals Board report if such has been requested. However, upon 
receipt of an Employee Appeals Board report, the grievance procedure may be 
concluded if mutually agreed between the grievant and the Department Manager. 
 
If a hearing, though, is to be conducted, the City Manager may continue the hearing 
either for the convenience of the City or upon written application of the employee for a 
period not to exceed an additional 30 days. Written notice of the time and place of the 
hearing, and any continuance thereof, shall be given to the employee.  
 
Such hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 11513 of 
the Government Code of the State of California, except that the employee and other 
persons may be examined as provided in Section 19580 of the Government Code, the 
employee may be represented by an attorney or his recognized employee organization, 
and the parties may submit all proper and competent evidence against or in support of 
the causes The City Manager shall render a written decision within fifteen days after 
concluding the hearing, and the decision of the City Manager shall be final and not 
subject to review or appeal by the City Council. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVII. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
27.1 Objective of the Probationary Period. 
 
The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the selection process and shall be 
utilized for closely observing the employee’s work, for securing the most effective 
adjustment of a new employee to his/her position, and for releasing any probationary 
employee whose performance in the opinion of the Department Head and/or the City 
Manager does not meet the required standards of work.  Nothing in this policy is 
intended to limit the reasons for which an employee may be released during the 
probationary period.  Release of an employee during the probationary period may be 
with or without cause and with or without prior notice to the employee. 
 
27.2 Probationary Period. 
 
All original appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of 
twelve (12) months of active duty from the date of probationary appointment.  All 
promotional appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of six 
(6) months of active duty from the date of promotion.  Days absent without pay, or 

578 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  32 

leaves with pay exceeding thirty (30) calendar days during the probationary period shall 
extend the probationary period by the same number of days so as to result in a 
probationary period of active working duty for the required six (6) or twelve (12) months 
of active duty.  Employees who transfer to another position in the same classification 
shall not be required to undergo a new probationary period for the position into which 
he/she is transferring, provided the employee has completed the probationary period in 
the classification at the time of transfer.  During the initial probationary period, the 
employee may be released at any time by the City Manager, City Manager’s designee, 
and/or the Department Head with or without cause and with or without prior notice.  An 
employee released during the probationary period has no right to appeal or grieve the 
release. 
 
The Department Head may extend, the initial probationary period beyond the twelve 
(12) months of active duty when in the opinion of the Department Head, and the City 
Manager additional time is necessary to evaluate the employee’s effectiveness in 
his/her position.  The probationary period shall not exceed eighteen (18) months of 
active duty. 
 
27.3 Promotional Probationary Period. 
 
An employee who has previously completed the requisite probationary period for an 
initial appointment and who is rejected during a subsequent probationary period for a 
promotional appointment shall be reinstated to the former position from which the 
employee was appointed.  If the employee was dismissed for cause from employment 
during the promotional probationary period, the employee shall not be entitled to such 
reinstatement rights.  An employee rejected during the promotional probationary period 
has no right to appeal or grieve the rejection. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXVIII. Union Membership, Due Deduction, and New Employee 

Orientation 
 
28.1 Union Membership. 
 
The City upon receipt of a certified written member list issued by a duly authorized Union 
official, shall deduct dues and voluntary deductions selected by members, as 
established by the Union from the salaries of its members. The Union shall notify the 
City in writing as to the amount of such dues uniformly required of all members of the 
Union and the amounts of any Union sponsored benefit deduction for its members. The 
sums so withheld shall be remitted by the City, without delay, along with a list of 
employees and their respective dues and voluntary deductions. The Union bears 
responsibility for allocating dues and voluntary deductions pursuant to the employee's 
request. 
 
The employees’ earnings must be sufficient after legal and required deductions are 
made to cover the amount of the dues or deductions. When an employee is in a non-

579 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  33 

pay status for an entire pay period, no withholdings will be made to cover the pay period 
from the future earnings. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status doing 
only part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, 
no deductions shall be made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions 
(including health care deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 
 
28.2 Annual AFSCME/Local One Financial Reports Required. 
 
AFSCME / Local One shall submit copies of the financial report required pursuant to the 
labor management disclosures act of 1959 to the City Manager once annually. Copies 
of such reports shall be available to employees at the office of the union. 
 
28.3 Indemnification. 
 
AFSCME / Public Employees Union, Local One shall indemnify and hold the City and its 
officers and employees harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, or any other 
actions arising from the collection of dues and deductions herein. In no event shall the 
City be required to pay for from its own funds Union dues, or deductions that the 
employee was obligated to pay, but failed to pay, regardless of the reason. 
 
28.4 AB119 - New Employee Orientation (NEO). 
 
Assembly Bill AB119 (New Employee Orientation- NEO) requires that the public 
employer (City of Pinole) shall provide the exclusive representative (AFSCME Council 
57/ Public Employees Union, Local One) of said employees, mandatory access to its 
new employee orientations. The parties agree to the following and acknowledges the 
parties’ obligation to negotiate pursuant to Government Code Section 3557 and as 
such, parties waive their right to compulsory arbitration provided in Government Code 
Section 3557. 
 
New employee orientation (NEO) means an "in person" meeting designated as such and 
scheduled with representatives of the City to advise and inform new employees of their 
employment benefits, responsibilities, Union/City Rules, and other similar related 
matters. Currently, the City performs new employee orientations. However, there may 
be instances where orientations are held on a different date and/or time following their 
actual start date due to business needs. Typically, the orientation process lasts one (1) 
to two (2) hours and occurs during working hours. 
 
28.5 Notice Requirements. 
 
The City of Pinole shall make every effort to provide written notice (by email or letter) 
to the Union of all new employee orientations, which they represent, at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days, no less than ten (10), prior to the scheduled orientation. The new 
employee orientation notice provided to the Union shall include the date, time, and 
location of the orientation. This will allow for proper scheduling to ensure that 
representative(s) from the Union are available to meet with the employee prior to or 

580 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  34 

following the orientation session. If the Union or its representative are not available on 
the day or time The City has scheduled its orientation, The City will allow the Union to 
meet with the new employee within a week of hire. 
AFSCME Council 57 /Public Employees Union, Local One will be provided the 
opportunity to have its Unit President or the Union’s chosen designee to meet with the 
new employee for up to 45 minutes of uninterrupted private time prior to, or following, the 
NEO. The Union may provide for example, literature, written materials, packet of 
information, and or a visual presentation about its Union to the new employee(s). 
The Union's portion of the NEO will be conducted during paid City time as a regular part 
of the new employee orientation. Typically, the Union’s representatives are comprised 
of the Business Agent and/ or the Unit President / or chosen designee bargaining unit 
member. Approval from the Department Director shall be authorized prior to a 
bargaining unit member attending the new employee orientation. At no time shall the 
bargaining unit member (acting as a Union representative) meeting with the new 
employee result in any overtime or additional costs to the City. A bargaining unit 
member attending the orientation as a Union representative shall do so during their 
regular working hours so as to not incur additional costs to the City. If release time is 
requested, the Union will provide The City, in advance notice, of the name(s) of the 
bargaining unit member(s) who they wish to attend the orientation. 
 
During the new employee orientation, The City shall clearly communicate to each new 
employee hired into a position/classification represented by the (AFSCME/ Local One) 
bargaining unit, that the employee's position is represented by AFSCME / Local One. 
To properly identify current leaders, the Union will provide a roster of current 
representative(s) to the City of Pinole prior to such orientation. 
 
28.6  Reporting Requirements. 
 
Within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire, The City 
shall provide Public Employees Union, Local One with the name, job title, department, 
work location, work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email 
addresses on file with the employer, as well as home address of all newly hired 
employees. AB119 requires that The City provide the Union with this information for all 
employees in the bargaining unit at least every 120 days. 
 
 
ARTICLE XXIX. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 
Unless specifically in conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), all 
management rights shall remain vested exclusively with the City.  City management 
rights include but are not limited to: 
 

a) The right to determine the mission of the City, including without limitation 
the City’s agencies, department, divisions, boards, and commissions; 

 

581 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  35 

b) The right of full and exclusive control of the management of the City; 
supervision of all operations; determinations of methods, means, location 
and assignments of performing all work; and the composition, assignment, 
direction location and determination of the size and mission of the work 
force; 

 
c) The right to determine the work to be done by employees, including 

establishment of service levels, appropriate staffing and the allocation of 
funds for an position(s) within the City; 

 
d) The right to review and inspect, without notice, all City-owned facilities, 

including without limitation, desktop computers, work areas and desks, 
email, computer storage drives, voicemail systems, as well as filing 
cabinet systems; 

 
e) The right to change or introduce different, new or improved operations, 

technologies, methods or means regarding any City work, and to contract 
out for work;, however, the City will meet and discuss with the Union prior 
to contracting out work normally completed by classifications within the 
bargaining unit.  The City will meet with the Union no later than December 
31, 2023, to provide the current status and to review bargaining unit work 
contracted out at the time of ratification; 

 
f) The right to establish and modify qualifications for employment, including 

the content of any job classification, job description or job announcement, 
and to determine whether minimum qualification are met; 

 
g) The right to maintain and modify the City’s Pay and Classification Plan 

subject to “meet and confer” requirements; 
 

h) The right to establish and enforce Employee Performance Standards and 
Employee Performance Evaluations; 

 
i) The right to schedule and assign work, make reassignments and assign 

overtime work; 
 

j) The right to hire, fire, promote, reassign, transfer, release, discipline, 
layoff, terminate, demote, suspend or reduce in step or grade all 
employees; 

 
k) The right to establish and modify bargaining units and to assign new or 

amended job classifications to particular bargaining units; 
 

l) The right to inquire and investigate regarding complaints or concerns 
about employee performance deficiencies or misconduct of any sort, 
including the right to require employees to appear, respond truthfully in 
good faith regarding any City investigation; and 

582 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  36 

 
m) The right to maintain orderly, effective and efficient operations. 

 
“The City's reservation of its management rights does not modify the City's obligation to 
meet and confer on the impacts of management rights decisions on the terms and 
conditions of employment of employees covered by this MOU, to the extent that meet 
and confer would be otherwise required by the Meyers Milias Brown Act.” 
 
 
ARTICLE XXX. DURATION 
 
30.1 Term. 
 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2021 2023, to and through 
June 30, 20232025.  
 
 
30.2 MOU “Meet and Confer” Obligations. 
 
It is mutually agreed that the approval and ratification of this Memorandum of 
Understanding relieves the City of any and all further obligations to meet and confer 
regarding the provisions of this agreement, as required by the Government Code of the 
State of California for the period covered by this agreement, except as to the provisions 
of Section 28.3.  
 
Otherwise, nothing herein shall prevent the parties to this Memorandum of 
Understanding from meeting and conferring, and making modifications hereto by mutual 
consent. 
 
The parties shall begin meeting to negotiate a successor agreement no later than 
February 1, 20232025, or other date agreed to by the parties. 
 
30.3 Notice of Termination. 
 
This Agreement shall continue in force and effect thereafter from year to year unless 
either party gives written notice one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the 
expiration date, or any annual anniversary date thereafter to terminate or modify this 
Agreement. 
 
30.4 Effective Date. 
 
All provisions contained in this agreement are effective on the agreement execution 
date unless otherwise specified. 

 
30.5 Continuation of MOU in Light of Federal/State Law Changes. 
 

583 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  37 

In the event any portion of this Agreement is declared null and void by superseding 
Federal or State law, the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force and 
effect, and the parties shall commence negotiations to ensure that the superseded 
portion shall be rewritten to conform as closely as is possible to the original intent. 
 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

584 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
CITY OF PINOLE 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Stacy Shell, Human Resources Director Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Charlene Davis, Human Resources Analyst Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Gregory Ramirez, Chief Negotiator Date 
 
 
 
AFSCME PUBLIC EMPLOYEES UNION LOCAL 1 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Ana AvilesAvila, President  Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Jose Garcia, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Linda Segundo, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Anthony Wilson, Team Member Date 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________ 
Lisa A. Davis, Chief Negotiator and    Date 
Senior Business Agent

585 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

ATTACHMENT A - SALARY SCHEDULE 
 
 

EFFECTIVE 07/03/2023 
 

 
 

EFFECTIVE 07/01/2024 
 

 

 
 
 

586 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

ATTACHMENT B - RESOLUTION 
 
 

587 of 594



City of Pinole and AFSCME PEU Local 1 
Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025  1 

ATTACHMENT C - CSO COURT APPEARANCE OVERTIME 
 
 

588 of 594



   

5098295.1  

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 10A 

 
 
DATE:  AUGUST 15, 2023 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:  ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.04.200 
COUNCIL-MANAGER RELATIONS AND SECTION 2.12.010 TIME OF 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
UPDATED CITY COUNCIL MEETING PROCEDURES 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive the first reading of an 
ordinance amending Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.200 to update the description 
of City Council and City Manager relations, and amending Section 2.12.010 to modify 
the start time of regularly scheduled City Council meetings, consistent with the updated 
City Council Meeting Procedures.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Pinole City Council has established, by resolution, procedures for creating and 
posting City Council meeting agendas, the standard Council meeting agenda format, 
and procedures for conducting City Council meetings. The City Council has a tradition 
of reviewing the meeting procedures each year and considering revisions. The current 
procedures are contained in Resolution 2022-07, approved on February 1, 2022.  
 
In its regularly scheduled meeting of March 7, 2023, the Pinole City Council discussed 
and approved changes to the City Council Meeting Procedures. On March 21, 2023, 
the City Council provided direction to staff to work with the Municipal Code Update 
Subcommittee to propose updates to the Pinole Municipal Code to align with the recent 
updates to the City Council Meeting Procedures. Specifically, updating the Municipal 
Code to reflect a new City Council Meeting time of 5:00 p.m. and any additional changes 
to the Municipal Code that may be required for consistency with the City Council 
Meeting Procedures. 
 
On April 24, 2023, the Municipal Code Update Subcommittee reviewed the City Council 
Meeting Procedures and relevant sections of the Pinole Municipal Code as directed by 
the City Council. The Subcommittee identified two sections of the Municipal Code which 
require revision in order to effectuate consistency with City Council Meeting Procedures. 
 

589 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023 

The proposed Ordinance (Exhibit A) reflects the Subcommittee’s proposed and 
unanimously approved revisions to amend Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.200 to 
clarify matters on which City Council may give orders or instructions to the City 
Manager, and amending Section 2.12.010 to modify the start time of regularly scheduled 
City Council meetings. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The proposed ordinance will amend the following sections of the Pinole Municipal Code: 
 

1. Chapter 2.04 “City Manager,” Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager Relations” to 
clarify that the matters on which City Council may give orders or instructions to 
the City Manager must relate to matters requiring City Council Approval; and  
 

2. Chapter 2.12 “Council Meetings,” Section 2.12.010 “Time of Regular Meetings” 
of the Pinole Municipal Code to revise the start time of the regularly scheduled 
meetings of the Pinole City Council from six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) to five p.m. (5:00 
p.m.). 

 
Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager Relations”  
 
Chapter 2.04 “City Manager,” Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager Relations” currently 
provides: 
 

“The City Council and its members shall deal with the administrative services 
of the city only through the City Manager, except for the purpose of inquiry, 
and neither the City Council nor any member thereof shall give orders or 
instructions to any subordinates of the City Manager. The City Manager shall 
take his or her orders and instructions from the City Council only when sitting 
in a duly convened meeting of the City Council and no individual councilman 
shall give any orders or instructions to the City Manager.” 

 
Consistent with the City Council Meeting Procedures the proposed Ordinance will 1) 
revise Section 2.04.200 to remove language which authorizes individual Council 
Members to direct the City Manager with respect to administrative services in order to 
avoid the appearance that Council members act independently, and 2) add language to 
clarify that the matters on which City Council may give orders or instructions to the City 
Manager must relate to matters within the City Council’s jurisdiction as a governing 
body, and not as individual Councilmembers. 
 
Section 2.12.010 “Time of Regular Meetings” 
 
Section 2.12.010 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code establishes a set time, date and 
location for regularly scheduled meetings of the Pinole City Council. It currently provides 
that the regularly scheduled meetings of the Pinole City Council shall be held at six p.m. 
(6:00 p.m.). 
 

590 of 594



City Council Report  
August 15, 2023 

Certain council actions, such as adoption of ordinances and discussion of executive 
compensation, are required to take place during regular City Council meetings. 
Meetings with multiple action items for the City Council to consider, as well as 
presentations, can often last several hours extending into the late evening. Because 
certain closed session items can only be discussed at a regular meeting under the City’s 
current Ordinance and compliance with the provisions of the Brown Act, the City Council 
must schedule all closed sessions at the beginning of a Council meeting or immediately 
following the regular council meeting.  
 
The City of Pinole is authorized to change or amend the start time of regularly scheduled 
City Council meetings. The proposed Ordinance amends Section 2.12.010 of the Pinole 
Municipal Code to advance the start time of regularly scheduled City Council meetings 
from six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) to 5 p.m. (5:00 p.m.) consistent with the updated City Council 
Meeting Procedures.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Adopting the proposed Ordinance will have no direct fiscal impact. Costs related to staff 
attendance and preparation for Council Meetings will not change as the proposed 
Ordinance will only impact the meeting start time and not impact meeting duration or 
frequency. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 A. Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pinole Amending Section 2.04.200 
and Section 2.12.010 of the Pinole Municipal Code  

 
5329893.2  

591 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-XX 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
AMENDING SECTION 2.04.200 OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 

CITY COUNCIL’S RELATIONS WITH THE CITY MANAGER AND AMENDING 
SECTION 2.12.010 OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO MODIFY THE START 

TIME OF REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 1, 2022, the City Council established, by resolution, 
procedures for creating and posting City Council meeting agendas, the standard Council meeting 
agenda format, and procedures for conducting City Council meetings pursuant to Resolution 
2022-07 (“City Council Meeting Procedures”); and 
 WHEREAS, on March 7, 2023, the Pinole City Council discussed and approved changes 
to the City Council Meeting Procedures; and 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has identified two sections of the Pinole Municipal Code 
(the “PMC”) which require revision in order to eliminate inconsistencies between the Municipal 
Code and the revised City Council Meeting Procedures; and 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend PMC Chapter 2.04 “City Manager,” 
Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager Relations” to clarify that with respect to administrative 
matters, the full City Council may give orders or instructions to the City Manager in a City 
Council meeting; and  
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend PMC Chapter 2.12 “Council Meetings,” 
Section 2.12.010 “Time of Regular Meetings” to advance the City Council’s fixed meeting time 
from six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) to five p.m. (5:00 p.m.) consistent with the City Council Meeting 
Procedures. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does ordain as follows: 
Section 1. Recitals.   
 
The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2. Municipal Code Amendment – Chapter 2.04. 
 
Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.04 “City Manager,” Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager 
Relations” is hereby amended as follows (with text in strikeout indicating deletion and double 
underline indicating addition).   
 

“2.04.200 COUNCIL- MANAGER RELATIONS. 
 
The City Council and its members shall deal with the administrative services of the city 
only through the City Manager, except for the purpose of inquiry, and neither the no 
member of the City Council nor any member thereof shall give orders or instructions 
to any subordinates of the City Manager. The City Manager shall take his or her orders 
and instructions from the City Council on matters requiring City Council approval only 

592 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

when sitting in a duly convened meeting of the City Council and no individual 
councilman shall give any orders or instructions to the City Manager. 
 

Section 3. Municipal Code Amendment – Chapter 2.04. 
 
Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.04 “City Manager,” Section 2.04.200 “Council-Manager 
Relations” is hereby amended as follows (with text in strikeout indicating deletion and double 
underline indicating addition).   
 

“2.12.010 TIME OF REGULAR MEETINGS.  

The regular meetings shall be held in the council chambers on the first (1st) and third 
(3rd) Tuesdays of each month at six five p.m. (6:00 5:00 p.m.), except when a meeting 
day falls upon a holiday, in which case the meeting shall be held on the next succeeding 
business day at the same hour.” 

 
Section 4. Severability. 
 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force 
and effect. To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable. The City Council of the City 
of Pinole hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held 
unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. 
 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall take effect 
and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 
 
Section 6. Publication. 
 
Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause this 
Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three public places in 
the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 
36933. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of _______ 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
             

593 of 594



ATTACHMENT A 

        
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney  
 

5325225.1  
 

594 of 594


	2023-08-15 HYBRID AGENDA FINAL_A
	9A
	9B
	9C
	SR Local 512 MOU from 7-1-23 to 6-30-2025 FINAL
	Recommendation
	BACKGROUND
	review and analysis

	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENTS


	RESO Local 512 MOU 8-15-23 FINAL
	Pinole_AFSCME_L512_2023-2025_MOU_FINAL
	0083_001
	Pinole_AFSCME_L512_2023-2025_MOU_REDLINE DRAFT

	9D
	StaffReport_IN2201
	DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023
	TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER
	SUBJECT: AWARD A CONTRACT TO TETRA TECH TO COMPLETE AN ENERGY CONSERVATION, GENERATION AND STORAGE ASSESSMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $47,938
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT

	ATTACHMENTS

	AttachmentA_Resolution_IN2201
	AttachmentB_TetraTech
	Cover Letter
	A. Qualifications
	B. Key Personnel
	C. Method for Executing Scope of Work
	A. Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Trends Review (August 7 – August 18)
	B. Conditions Assessment (August 14 – September 1)
	C. Opportunities Analysis and D. Recommendations (September 4 – September 29)
	E. Draft and Final Report and F. City Council Presentation (October 2 – October 27)

	D. Fee Proposal
	E. References
	F. Conflicts and Termination
	G. Standard Agreement


	9E
	ccsr 8-15-23 response to CGJ- final
	DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023
	TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE RESPONSE TO GRAND JURY REPORT NO. 2306, AFFORDABLE HOUSING: “A PLAN WITHOUT A HOME”
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND

	Attachment A- Grand Jury Report No. 2306, Affordable Housing
	Attachment B - Draft Response Letter - Final

	9F
	Staffreport Storm Drain MP
	DATE:   AUGUST 15, 2023
	TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER
	SUBJECT: AWARD A CONTRACT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STORM DRAIN MASTER (CIP PROJECT # IN1703) TO WEST YOST IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $243,264.00
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT

	ATTACHMENTS

	AttachmentA_Reso_SDMP
	AttachmentB_AgreementSDMP
	West Yost_Pinole Storm Drain Master Plan.pdf
	Pinole Storm Drain Master Plan
	Table of Contents
	01 Cover Letter
	Addendum No. 1 Acknowledgement
	02 Qualifications
	03 Key Personnel
	04 Method for Executing the Scope of Work
	05 Fee Proposal
	06 References
	07 Conflicts and Termination
	08 Standard Agreement
	Appendix A - Resumes
	01 Doug Moore, PE
	02_Elizabeth Drayer, PE
	03 Melissa Duffy, PE
	04 Mark Kubik, PE
	05 Poyom Riles, PE, QSD, ENV SP
	06 Lucas Russell, EIT
	07_Emma Erickson, EIT, ENV SP
	08 Josh Steiner, EIT
	09 SKL - Katherine Hayden
	10 SKL - Stephen Miksis




	9G
	SR TS Seal-Logo-Branding Second Amendment_2023-08-15
	DATE  AUGUST 15, 2023
	TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
	RecommendationS
	review and analysis

	ATTACHMENTS

	ATTACHMENT A - RESO Branding-Logo-Seal Contract 2023-08-15
	EXHIBIT 1 - TS Second Contract Amendment-Branding Services_2023-08-15
	ATTACHMENT B - TS CSA_Comm and Eng Plan and Branding_2022-03-15
	ATTACHMENT C - TS Contract Amendment Completed_2023-1-13
	ATTACHMENT D - Expanded Branding and Community Outreach Proposal_2023-08

	9H
	ccsr 8-14-23 TDNG 3K increase - Final
	DATE: AUGUST 15, 2023
	TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND

	Attachment A
	Attachment A - Exhibit A
	Attachment B
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)

	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	1.   COVER LETTER


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	2.   QUALIFICATIONS


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	3. KEY PERSONNEL
	Roger Dale – Managing Principal, TNDG



	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	3. KEY PERSONNEL
	Joe McClure – Senior Associate, TNDG



	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	3. KEY PERSONNEL
	Alan Levenson – Senior Associate, TNDG



	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	3. KEY PERSONNEL
	Joe Collins – Research Associate, TNDG



	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	4. SCOPE OF WORK


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	5. FEE PROPOSAL


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	6. REFERENCES


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	7. CONFLICTS AND TERMINATIONS
	8. STANDARD AGREEMENT


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	APPENDIX A – LINKS TO SAMPLE WORK PRODUCTS


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group, Inc.)
	APPENDIX B – COMPANY PROFILE (GOLDEN SHOVEL AGENCY)


	Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Proposal (The Natelson Dale Group Inc.).pdf
	Golden Shovel_Overview of Services_2021_Westcott


	Attachment C
	Attachment D

	9I
	SR Local 1 MOU from 7-1-23 to 6-30-2025 FINAL
	Recommendation
	BACKGROUND
	review and analysis

	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENTS


	RESO Local 1 MOU 8-15-23 FINAL
	Pinole_Local_1_MOU_2023-2025_FINAL
	Pinole_Local_1_All_Tentative_Agreements_Listing_&_TAs_2023
	Pinole_Local_1_MOU_2023-2025_DRAFT REDLINE

	10A
	Pinole - SR - Ordinance Amending Council Meeting Time
	Pinole - Ordinance Amending Council Meeting Time


	Return to Agenda: 


